
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 
FOR 

 

Tuesday, June 17, 2014 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 

6:30 pm City Council Executive Session 
(Labor Negotiations, pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(d)) 

 
 7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

(following the City Council Meeting) 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

  
 
6:30 PM CITY COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
1. LABOR NEGOTIATION (ORS 192.660(2)(D) 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT 

 
A. Approval of June 3, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Resolution 2014-037 Certifying the provision of certain municipal services in order to 

qualify the City to receive State revenues 
C. Resolution 2014-038 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) with Metro and Washington County regarding a Joint Industrial Site 
Readiness and Planning Grant benefiting Sherwood’s Tonquin Employment Area 
 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Resolution 2014-039 Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal Year 2014-15 
(Julie Blums, Finance Director) 
 

B. Resolution 2014-040 Transferring Budget Expenditure Appropriations between categories 
for Budget Year 2013-14 (Julie Blums, Finance Director) 

 
C. Resolution 2014-041 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Blackline, 

Inc. for the 2014 Slurry Seal Program (Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 
 

D. Resolution 2014-042 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Musco 
Sports Lighting LLC for installation of field lights at Laurel Ridge Middle School and 
additional lights at Sherwood Middle School (Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 

 
E. Resolution 2014-043 Approving the Terms of an Employment Agreement between Joseph 

Gall and the City of Sherwood (Council President Linda Henderson & Councilor Dave Grant) 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
AGENDA 

 
SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 

June 17, 2014 
 
 

6:30 pm City Council Executive Session 
 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 
 

URA Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
(following the City Council Meeting) 

 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
A. Resolution 2014-044 Adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the City Zoning and 

Community Development Code, establishing fees for miscellaneous City services and 
establishing an effective date (Julie Blums, Finance Director) 
 

B. Resolution 2014-045 Declaring the City of Sherwood’s election to Receive state revenues 
(Julie Blums, Finance Director) 

 
C. Resolution 2014-046 Adopting the FY2014-15 budget of the City of Sherwood, making 

appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take 
such action necessary to carry out the adopted budget (Julie Blums, Finance Director) 

 
D. Ordinance 2014-012 Amending Chapter 6 of the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan (part 2), 

amending the Transportation Street Functional Classification Map, adopting a new 
Transportation System Plan, establishing an effective date, and repealing Ordinance 2000-
1104 establishing the Capacity Allocation Program (CAP) (Julia Hajduk. Community 
Development Director) 

 
8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
9. CITY MANAGER AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
10. ADJOURN TO URA BOARD MEETING 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas 
are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available 
to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 
 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 1 of 9 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

June 3, 2014 
 
 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 7:08 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave 

Grant, Krisanna Clark, Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer and Robyn Folsom.  
 

4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Police Captain Ty Hanlon, 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Planning Program 
Coordinator Kirsten Allen, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 
City Attorney Chris Crean. 

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the Consent Agenda. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
A. Approval of May 6, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approval of May 20, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Resolution 2014-031 Authorizing the City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement 

for the Washington County Community Development Block Grant Program for program years 
2015-2017 

D. Resolution 2014-032 Reappointing David Scheirman to the Parks and Recreation Board 
E. Resolution 2014-033 Reappointing Mary Reid to the Parks and Recreation Board 
F. Resolution 2014-034 Appointing David Sorensen to the Parks and Recreation Board 
G. Resolution 2014-035 Appointing Eric Evans to the Parks and Recreation Board 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR FOLSOM, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR.  

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item and was informed that the TVF&R Captain had not 
arrived, he adjusted the order of business under Presentations. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 2 of 9 

 
A. Boy Scout Recognition 
 
No Scouts were present. 
 
B. Recognition of Robin Hood Maid Marian Court Members 
 
Mayor Middleton welcomed Kristine Mulkey the 2014 Robin Hood Festival Maid Marian Court 
Chaperone and the Junior and Senior Court members. Ms. Mulkey came forward and read a brief bio for 
each member of the court. The City Council presented the court members with a Certificate of 
Recognition. Senior Court members; Maid Marian Jessica Bertalotto. Lauren Kuiper, Madeleine 
LeCorre, and Jessica Mulkey. Junior Court members; Kendall Lee, Delaney Long, Tiffany Meissinger, 
Sophia Mulkey, Julia Pahukula.  
 
Sandy Wallace, the Archery Chair came forward and said she started volunteering with the Robin Hood 
Festival in 1971 and has been Archery Chair since 1975. She referred to a letter she provided to the 
Council and thanked the Council for their consideration. She informed the Council that two couples from 
Nottingham will be participating in the Archery Competition and requested that the Council officially 
welcome and recognize them. She said the couples would be knighted at the Knighting Ceremony. 
Mayor Middleton said that they would be recognized. She invited everyone to attend the Archery 
Competition on July 19-20 at Edy Ridge School from 9:00 am to 3:00 pm. She said it is unique and the 
only one in the world. She commented on a trip she took to Nottingham and the special and inviting 
treatment she received and stated it would be nice to recognize our visitors.   
 
Maid Marian Senior Court member Whitney Groeger arrived late due to a previous commitment and 
Mayor Middleton presented her with a Certificate of Recognition.  
 
C. Introduction of TVF&R New Sherwood Station 33 Captain, Brian Smith 
 
Captain Brian Smith came forward and introduced his crew and said he began his career as a volunteer 
fire fighter in McMinnville and worked for McMinnville Fire for 3½ years before being hired by TVF&R in 
2001. He stated that in October of 2013 he was promoted to Captain and he has been assigned to the 
Sherwood Fire Station. He said it is not very often that a newly appointed Captain gets the opportunity to 
choose a station and Sherwood was at the top of his list. He thanked everyone for their involvement in 
the recent Community Services Fair and said approximately 800 people attended. He thanked the 
voters of Sherwood for passing the levy replacement and said it passed with over 66% support. He said 
he was involved in the advocacy campaign and noted that the community of Sherwood had the most 
yard signs. He thanked Mayor Middleton for publically endorsing the levy. He commented that he is 
replacing Captain Dan who served for 15 years and stated how beloved he was by his crews and the 
community. He invited everyone to visit the fire station at any time.  
 
Council President Henderson commented that the timing of the Community Services Fair gave Captain 
Smith the opportunity to meet members of the community. She thanked TVF&R for continuing the event 
that is so important to the children and noted that TVF&R partner with the Public Works Department and 
Life Flight. 
 
Councilor Butterfield said that he dropped in at the station a couple weeks ago and spoke with the crew 
and said they were excited about having a new Captain.  

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 3 of 9 

 
Captain Smith recognized the crew and said Lieutenant Watson and Lieutenant Hertzog have been 
helpful with the transition.     
 
D. Tree City USA Recognition, Ruth Williams, VP of Oregon Community Tree’s 
 
Ruth Williams with Oregon Community Tree’s came forward and stated for 9 consecutive years 
Sherwood has received the Tree City USA designation which requires that you take care of street trees, 
acknowledge street trees and that you celebrate Arbor Day. She said Sherwood received an additional 
Growth Award this year from the Arbor Day Foundation for the tree inventory with over 700 trees. She 
said the Growth Award also considers the ongoing work that is done every year, such as planting over 
3000 trees. She presented the City with an Arbor Day flag.   
 
Mayor Middleton said that we are proud of how the Public Works Department manages the trees. 
 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk commented on the work performed by the Public Works 
Department and recognized Kirsten Allen as the coordinator of all the data and organizer of the Arbor 
Day Celebration.  
 
E. Sherwood Main Street Presentation 
 
Lee Weislogel, President of Sherwood Main Street provided an update to the Council and introduced the 
Executive Committee: Secretary Jennifer Fagerstrom, Treasurer Gregg Jacot and Vice President Bill 
Montgomery. He provided an overview of the organization and said the Main Street Program was 
established by the City in 2008 and they have advanced to the transforming level and stated there are 
91 cities in Oregon in this program. He provided handouts (see record, Exhibit B) showing an overview 
and history. He commented on successes and mentioned, facilitating Old Town construction, being part 
of Sweet Story, 503 Uncorked, Da Mimmo’s, Escape to Yoga, Cannery Row, Railroad Street Antiques 
and having Halloween in Old Town where 30 businesses participated.  
 
Jennifer Fagerstrom commented on the importance of livability, community development and economic 
development. She said the purpose of Sherwood Main Street is to bring businesses and community 
organizations together and to create a sustainable and growing Old Town. She stated they have been 
working on establishing relationships supporting the Old Town community, the City and others 
throughout. She said they have been supporting programs and issues where they found the greatest 
need. She commented on the partnership with the City on the streetscape, which was a great success 
story. She said they have narrowed their focus down to three key areas: ways to drive traffic into Old 
Town, supporting community events and supporting Old Town economic development. She said there 
are opportunities such as the new housing being added, the new businesses, and the completed plaza. 
She commented on the trail projects as an opportunity with added activity and said they want to be part 
of that. She stated they are committed to collaborate with the City, the Chamber and community 
businesses and organizations to push things forward in a positive manner. She said they will be looking 
for input and thanked Council liaisons Krisanna Clark and Matt Langer. She noted there are challenges 
such as bandwidth and funding. She said the most successful Main Street Programs have a full or part 
time paid director and that is their long-term goal and needs to be a priority. She noted another 
challenge is the City does not have a dedicated Economic Development Director and mentioned the 
challenge of limited volunteer support.  
 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 4 of 9 

Bill Montgomery said the main goal is to get more people into Old Town and referred to a map they 
developed with about 60 businesses listed. He said they distributed the map last month and have 
received gratitude and some assistance from the businesses. He said they plan to distribute them in 
visitor’s centers, the Refuge, wineries, City Hall, the Library, apartments and where it will help. He 
referred to the historical walking tour map he developed which has 12 sites all originally built from 1890 
to 1922 and it shows what businesses are on those sites now. He explained they had a tour of 
Sherwood with a group from Eugene last month and would like to do more of these types of events. He 
said they needed to get both maps printed before Sherwood Cruisin’. He commented on the committee 
requirements of Oregon Main Street Program and said with such a small number they are more task 
oriented.  
 
Gregg Jacot said he attended an Oregon Main Street presentation in Dayton with Lee and Bill and said 
there were about 25 cities represented. He said one of the tools they decided to use is a calendar which 
shows the relationships and events which is shared at their monthly meetings, he said it lets them plan 
around the events and they can help promote events. He commented on the coordination of 
organizations at the Tree Lighting Ceremony and said he realized a need for someone to provide 
direction to let everyone know what was going on. He said they created a vest labeled “Main Street 
Ambassadors” to be worn by volunteers to provide direction and information to visitors at events such as 
Cruisin’ this year. 
 
 Lee Weislogel thanked the Council and offered to answer questions. 
 
Councilor Clark said she appreciates everything the group does and said they are making huge 
progress in supporting businesses and the community.  
 
Councilor Langer said you can see the fruits of your labor with the maps and calendars and the events 
in Old Town. He said there is now traction and commented on their momentum and thanked them for all 
of their energy and time.  
 
Mayor Middleton announced that they are now voting on the Pix on the Bricks. He said County 
Commissioner Roy Rogers and the transportation group is still working on the railroad to see if they can 
come up with something for the use of the tracks and said they have a small amount of money to do 
studies. He said Sherwood Main Street should be involved.  
  
Council President Henderson commented on the usefulness of the map and said it is practical and will 
be a great resource. 
 
Gregg Jacot said the dream is to have a newsletter and website up and functional with this map and a 
calendar. He commented that it is difficult when you are just working with volunteers. He said the next 
step is to get the media portion update.   
 
Lee Weislogel referred to the cost of printing the maps and the donations they have received so far. 
 
City Manager Joe Gall said the City has resources to cover the cost and suggested they speak with 
Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier.  
 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 5 of 9 

Council President Henderson commented that Lee Weislogel used to serve on the City Council and has 
been involved in this program for years and thanked him and all of the executive members for their 
service.  
 
Councilor Folsom commented on the traffic in Old Town on Saturday and said it is very exciting and 
congratulated the committee and said their work is paying off.  
  
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Renee Brouse and Ben Bole with Sherwood Rotary approached the Council and commented on the 15th 
Annual Tree Sale held in Albertson’s parking lot and said it is the fundraiser that helps them give back to 
the community with projects such as Murdock Park. She said they could not do this without the City’s 
support and thanked them for the permits and allowing them to store their trailer at the Public Works 
building and now at Sentinel Storage.   
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2014-036 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Rychart 

Excavation, Inc. to replace storm system on Lincoln Street between Willamette and Division  
 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon came forward and said this is part of the Pavement Management 
Program that is being funded by Storm Water Fees and said prior to any road project they go in and 
televise and video the storm and sanitary system which they found failure on Lincoln Street. He said the 
lower part of Lincoln has a lot of collapse in it and said we have elevation issues in the upper part of 
Lincoln if we ever want to pave that road. He asked that this contract be awarded to Rychart for 
$87,986.47 with a 20% contingency because they know they will run into some issues as they have to 
dig close to retaining walls and power lines and there are spring issues on Lincoln. He said if the 
resolution is approved they will have a schedule tomorrow for Rychart to do the work and notices will go 
out to property owners on Lincoln Street and the contractor will start the work within the next few weeks. 
He said they are currently in design for pavement management and said we should see something in 
August for approval of a pavement contract.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked for questions from Council or a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2014-036, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR FOLSOM, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED 
IN FAVOR. 
 
B. Ordinance 2014-010 Amending the Sherwood Municipal Code Chapter 12.08, Sidewalks 

Construction and Repair  
 
Craig Sheldon said the original ordinance is from 1977 and staff worked with the City Attorney’s office to 
update the code to reflect what currently occurs. He said some of the changes will benefit the 
homeowners as well as the City. He explained currently, it could be up to 8 weeks before we notify them 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 6 of 9 

by the time staff brings something to Council for approval. He said in the new ordinance they are asking 
that staff work directly with the property owner so the staff will not have to bring 140 items to Council for 
approval then wait 30 days, which means there can be 6 to 8 week before they can talk to the property 
owner about a sidewalk issue. He said the other change is regarding noticing and explained now they 
are required to notice in the newspaper, which runs about $400 and $1000 every time you notice and 
said this would save that cost. He said the notices would be a certified mailing for the first original notice 
as they do now and if they can’t contact the property owners staff would be able to use the door hanger 
method. He explained there is a small amount of interest charged in the new ordinance if the owner 
does not pay the bill or does not do anything with the sidewalk program, he said this makes it so staff 
does not have to come to Council in order to work with the property owner and wait 6 to 8 weeks. He 
said that is the biggest change. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked if we needed to have a public hearing. The City Recorder replied it is not 
required as this is not a land use issue and the Council may accept comments. Mayor Middleton asked 
if anyone would like to comment. With no comments received he closed the public hearing. 
 
Council President Henderson asked if “work with the homeowner” meant an alternative payment plan. 
Craig responded that they would work with the homeowner as opposed to coming to the Council and 
getting approval of working with multiple properties. He said staff will send a certified mailing to the 
customers to let them know there is a sidewalk issue and said the customer can call Public Works and 
staff will explain the program. Ms. Henderson asked if they are still rolling the program out in phases. 
Craig replied yes. He said if you approve this we will only need to come back to Council for 
consideration of a lien if it goes that far.  
 
Mayor Middleton thanked Craig for the information he provided for his Homeowner’s Association. 
 
Councilor Clark clarified that Public Works is still offering the incremental payment plan. Craig said there 
is a sidewalk fee and they offer a program to property owners in certain areas, as the City is divided up 
into 4 areas. He explained staff comes in and inspect the sidewalks each budget year and they have 
about $50,000 each budget year. He said the City splits the cost of repair 50/50 with the property owner 
and they have up to a year to pay. He stated they are getting calls from other cities that are trying to do 
the same thing.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked for questions from the Council or a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT 
ORDINANCE 2014-010, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 
PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
C. Ordinance 2014-011 Amending Section 13.24 of the Sherwood Municipal code to authorize 

extending the duration of a Reimbursement District 
 
Julia Hajduk said this proposed ordinance will amend Section 13.24 of the code and said currently we 
have provisions for establishing reimbursement districts and how they are developed and allocated but 
there is no process to extend. She said the Council received a request from the School District, which is 
the only reimbursement district that we currently have, requesting the Council consider amending this 
section of the code to allow a process to consider an extension and that is what the proposed language 
does. She said if this ordinance is approved you are not giving the reimbursement district an extension 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 7 of 9 

you are opening the door for the School District to have the ability to request the Council to extend. She 
said the rational to extend is the slowing of the economy. She said this would allow the Council to 
consider other situations in the future and would outline a process for Council to consider and provide 
criteria to consider and outlines the notice procedure to ensure that we are properly noticing the property 
owners.  
 
Council President Henderson asked when the extension request would come back. Julia replied that is 
up to the School District and said it will be effective 30 days after adoption and once adopted they could 
come in any time between then and 2018. 
 
With no other questions or comments, the following motion was received.  
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BUTTERFIELD TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2014-
011, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON, MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL PRESENT 
MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Councilor Butterfield announced the Parks and Recreation Board do not meet this month and they have 
four new Board members. He stated he is the liaison to the School Board and he is glad the ordinance 
passed.  
 
Councilor Folsom reminded everyone to Bark for Your Park and vote online twice a day to win money 
for our proposed dog park. She said the information is on the City website and Sherwood has 1100 
votes.  Mr. Gall said that Sherwood is in 21st place nationally and we need to be in 15th place and have 3 
days left to vote, he encouraged everyone to spread the word. Councilor Folsom said that would help as 
the Parks Board has already designated a place for the dog park which is up at Snyder Park. She 
commented on how spectacular Snyder Park is and thanked Public Works for all of their hard work. She 
announced that the Senior Center is having a Father’s Day event on June 13th and are hosting an 
Abraham Lincoln performer and have invited the Mayor and the Councilors. She said lunch will start at 
11:30 am and the performance will start at 12:30 pm. She congratulated the Sherwood High School 
Band Wind Ensemble who was awarded 2nd place at State. She said the Sherwood High School choir 
competed at State for the 2nd consecutive year and the Mixolydians, the a-cappella group, competed at 
the sign off competition and have also been invited to perform at the Rose Festival. She announced that 
the Planning Commission passed the TSP which will be coming to Council and thanked the Planning 
Commissioners for their hard work and encouraged people to come to a meeting or watch online. She 
announced the Cultural Arts Commission  has a new Chair who has been involved in arts for 30 years 
and is an advocate for the arts. She commented on the Altered Arts Festival that will be in Veterans 
Park this Saturday from 10 – 4 with over 30 vendors. She said the commission is partnering with SFA on 
the Missoula Children’s Theater and the first play is Black Beard the Pirate from June 23-28 and the 
second play is Pinocchio from July 7-12. She said registration can be found at sherwoodarts.org and is 
open, she encouraged everyone to sign up early. She announced they are doing a survey on the 
website regarding the Summer Movie Program, asking if they want to stay at Cannery Square or return 
to Stella Olsen Park and said the votes are split, she encouraged everyone to take the survey. She 
added that they will host four movies this summer starting in August and The Gardner Team is the 
sponsor. She announced that an Italian nonprofit group is partnering with SFA to host an Italian festival 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 8 of 9 

on Friday August 15th in Cannery Square from 4-7 pm with lots of vendors and entertainment. She said 
that she and Council President Henderson met with Representative Davis to discuss things that are 
going on in Salem and she encouraged everyone to contact their legislatures. She stated that they 
discussed the mechanism for school funding and Rep. Davis feels there is an opportunity now with the 
economy improving and they need to hear our concerns. She said this is an opportunity and there has 
been a lot taken away from the schools over the last 10-15 years. She stated Rep. Davis said he rarely 
hears from anyone about education issues. She commented that Sherwood has great schools and are 
an example for doing a lot with a little and the community helping to support the schools and said maybe 
now is the time to take advantage of an improving economy.   
 
Councilor Langer announced that Cruisin’ is June 14th and the YMCA is gearing up for the annual 
maintenance project later in the summer and said there will be quite a bit of investment in the facility.  
 
Councilor Clark announced that the Sherwood Middle School Band with their dance class will be 
participating in the Junior Rose Festival Parade. She announced that June 7th from 8 to noon at the 
Tualatin Triathlon, the Legacy Health Center is going to be sponsoring a program for helmets where 
they fit children and adults with helmets of all kinds for a reasonable price. She announced there is a car 
wash fundraiser at Kohl’s parking lot for the Wildlife Camp on Saturday and the Summer Reading 
Program kicks off at the Sherwood Library. She said the Wildcat Haven is having a dog walk at Stella 
Olsen Park on June 28th from 11 to 3 pm and you can sign up online.  
 
Council President Henderson announced that Library Manager Pam North is retiring this month and 
invited everyone to the retirement party on June 23rd in the Community Room. She congratulated Julia 
Hajduk on the CDBG grant. Julia commented that the City received notice from the EPA last week that 
we were invited to the next step for a $200,000 Site Assessment Grant through the EPA and said this 
was really competitive and said she led the efforts but there was support from a consultant and Craig 
Sheldon, Tom Pessemier, and Julie Blums all provided support. She said this was actually the second 
year and last year they received some great comments that allowed them to write a successful 
application and said the grant will allow them to assess more thoroughly the Tannery Site. She 
explained that the site is foreclosed upon by the County and there have been some assessment on a 
large part of it but not on the smaller more buildable piece and this will allow us to do some assessment 
and look at the feasibility of the City acquiring that property and putting it into reuse. She said it is not 
recommended to acquire the property without realizing the liabilities so they will explore that more 
thoroughly. Councilor Henderson said that when she traveled to Washington DC with Tom Pessemier 
they met with EPA staff that encouraged them to redirect the efforts with the grant and said we also had 
support from the local EPA office. She commented they spent less than $3500 to go to Washington DC 
and in return received very valuable information from members of staff on a grant that is six figures and 
said it is a very competitive process. She congratulated staff for putting it together and said she is 
looking forward to someday figuring out what it is going to take to clean up that site.  
 
Council President Henderson referred to the newly widened sidewalks and the new businesses in Old 
Town and asked staff if there is any coordination with the special events permit process for when people 
want to set up seasonal seating that they leave outside and asked if there are any requirement to leave 
sidewalks open.  
 
City Manager Gall replied that the code is silent on that and there is not a sidewalk café permit and said 
they are talking about having some regulations around it but not necessarily the permit route, something 
more tangible that would be a win for both the businesses and the City. He commented on the money 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
June 3, 2014 
Page 9 of 9 

spent to widen the sidewalks on Railroad Street and the businesses are taking advantage of that. He 
said there are issues of liability and pedestrian access. He stated the businesses have approached the 
City and want permission to use the sidewalks. He said we don’t have a process yet but the 
conversation is starting so it can be controlled.  
 
Councilor Henderson reported that the Charter Review Committee continues to meet and announced 
that they had a successful vote with all of the ballot measures passing by approximately 85%. She said 
she wished the voter turnout was more than 23%. She said the Charter Review Committee will be 
meeting on Wednesday, June 18th at 6:30 pm.  
 
Mayor Middleton thanked Councilor Folsom for the tickets to the VPA and said it was outstanding and is 
looking forward to programs in the new Community Center. He said he did the Run for the Love of 
Schools and said it was organized and Sherwood had a nice turnout. He stated he will be walking in the 
Rose Parade with Charlie Hales and other Mayors.   
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 

10. CITY MANAGER AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Mr. Gall reminded everyone that in November the Mayor’s seat and three Council seats are up for 
election and tomorrow is the first day to file for those seats and said the primary contact is the Elections 
Officer Sylvia Murphy.  
 
Mayor Middleton announced that they would have a work session on July 1 at 7:00 p.m. in order to 
discuss the TSP and the Police Advisory Board.  
 

11. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Middleton adjourned the meeting at 8:28 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 

11



 

Resolution 2014-037, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director  
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2014-037, Certifying the Provision of Certain Municipal 

Services in Order to Qualify the City to Receive State Revenues 
 
 
 
Issue: 
This is a resolution that certifies to the State of Oregon that City of Sherwood provides 
sufficient services to be eligible to receive state revenues. 
 
Background: 
The State of Oregon distributes a portion of Cigarette, Liquor taxes and Highway 
Apportionment Fees to eligible municipalities.  
 
Financial Impacts: 
The allocation of this revenue is based on population. In Sherwood’s case, this amounts to 
$286,500 in FY15 General Fund revenue and $1,079,064 in FY15 Street Fund revenue. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-037 certifying the 
provision of certain municipal services in order to qualify the City to receive State 
revenues.  
 
 

12



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-037 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

RESOLUTION 2014-037 
 
CERTIFYING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL SERVICES IN ORDER TO 

QUALIFY THE CITY TO RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 
 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.760, provides for Oregon municipalities to 
receive state revenues from cigarette and liquor taxes and highway apportionment fees 
if they certify that they meet eligibility requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the desirability of assisting the state officer 
responsible for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance 
with ORS 221.760. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1:  It is hereby certified that the City of Sherwood provides the following 

municipal services: 
  
 Police Protection 
 Street Construction, Maintenance, and Lighting 

  Sanitary Sewer 
  Storm Sewers 
  Planning, Zoning, and Subdivision Control 
  Water Utility 
 
Section 2:   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 

 

    
        _______________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

13



Resolution 2014-038, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 

FROM: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
Through: Chris Crean, City Attorney and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager  
 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-038, authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Metro and Washington County 
regarding a joint industrial site readiness and planning grant benefiting 
Sherwood’s Tonquin Employment Area  

 

 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) with Metro and Washington County to formalize our participation in the “Joint Industrial Site 
Readiness and Planning Grant” which will benefit Sherwood’s Tonquin Employment Area? 

 
Background: 
Washington County and the City of Sherwood were awarded a $255,000 Construction Excise Tax 
(CET) grant from Metro in August 2013. The grant will fund site assessments of selected large 
(25+ acres) lot industrial sites in Wilsonville, Tualatin, Sherwood, Forest Grove and Hillsboro, as 
well as an implementation plan for the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) in Sherwood. Sherwood 
and Washington County initially prepared separate grant applications and were directed by Metro 
to merge them as a condition of funding. Resolution 2014-028 authorized a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the City and County delegating grant administration responsibilities 
to Washington County but outlining the dual roles and responsibilities of both parties, as well as 
acknowledging that the City of Sherwood would receive a portion of the grant funds to help cover 
staff costs associated with the grant.  Because both the County and the City were awarded the 
initial grant from Metro, it was determined that both would need to sign the intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) with Metro, even though the City of Sherwood is not directly administering the 
grant funds.  
  
The project will follow the framework developed for the Regional Industrial Site Readiness Project 
in 2012, which was sponsored by Metro, Business Oregon, NAIOP, Port of Portland, and the 
Portland Business Alliance. Each site will have a detailed site assessment prepared, which 
includes analysis of existing infrastructure, site constraints, and estimated mitigation costs. The 
final product includes site concept plans based on the analysis work. Additionally, each jurisdiction 
will receive ‘decision-ready’ formatted documentation to submit to Business Oregon if they decide 
to pursue that certification, and presentation materials to use for outreach. The Sherwood site 
implementation plan will refine infrastructure needs for development, re-examine the market 
conditions to determine the highest and best use, and develop a marketing strategy. This will serve 
as a pilot project that other jurisdictions can use for developing implementation plans for their sites 
in the future.  

14



Resolution 2014-038, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The City and County have received word that Metro may have additional CET resources to apply 
to these two combined projects; however this has not been finalized.  In order to get this project 
started, it is recommended that the Council authorize signing this IGA with the understanding that 
additional modifications to the work plan and budget may be made in the future.   
 

Financial Impacts: 
The City will receive $25,446 from Washington County as disbursement of our share of grant 
funds. This was identified as revenue in the FY14-15 budget. Staff and resources necessary to 
accomplish this project were included in the FY14-15 budget.   
 

Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-038 authorizing the City to 
enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Metro and Washington County for a 
Construction Excise Tax grant to fund site assessments of large lot industrial sites within the 
county and an implementation plan for the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) in Sherwood. 
 

15



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-038 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit 1 (12 pgs) 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-038 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
(IGA) WITH METRO AND WASHINGTON COUNTY REGARDING A JOINT INDUSTRIAL SITE 

READINESS AND PLANNING GRANT BENEFITING SHERWOOD’S TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA  
 

WHEREAS, Metro has established a Construction Excise Tax (CET) which imposes an excise tax 
throughout the Metro region to help fund regional and local planning necessary to make land ready for 
development after inclusion in the Urban Growth Boundary; and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood each applied for separate Community Planning 
and Development Grants from Metro to conduct industrial site assessments and planning; and  
 
WHEREAS, Metro awarded Washington County and Sherwood the requested grants on the condition that 
they be combined and reduced the amount funded from $371,455 as requested to the funded amount of 
$255,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, Washington County and Sherwood have collaboratively created a combined scope of work and 
budget that can be accomplished with the funds available and generally achieves the scope originally 
conceived of for the two separate project proposals; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Sherwood and Washington County entered into a Memorandum of Understanding that 
assigned the primary responsibility and authority to administer the grant to the County while outlining the 
role, responsibility and financial contribution provided to the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, an IGA must be signed by the City, Washington County and Metro to allow the project to 
proceed and funds to be disbursed; and 
 
WHEREAS, an IGA has been developed that outlines each party’s responsibility and commitments. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign the IGA, attached as 

Exhibit 1. 
 
Section 2.    This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014.  
 
 
             
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
Attest:         
 
        
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   

16



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 1 of 12 17



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 2 of 12 18



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 3 of 12 19



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 4 of 12 20



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 5 of 12 21



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 6 of 12 22



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 7 of 12 23



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 8 of 12 24



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 9 of 12 25



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 10 of 12 26



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 11 of 12 27



Resolution 2014-038, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014,Page 12 of 12 28



Resolution 2014-039, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: New Business 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution 2014-039 Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal 

Year 2014-15 
 
 
Issue: 
Many funding sources require a Capital Improvement Projects Plan (CIP Plan) to be adopted 
before funds can be spent. Having a CIP Plan is precursor to the expenditure of System 
Development Charges and revenue from sources outside the City of Sherwood. This is why 
Financial Policy IV-4 requires that the City adopt a five year capital project plan annually. This staff 
report presents the FY15 CIP Plan and the adopting resolution. 
 
Background: 
This CIP Plan is only that: a plan. It is not a commitment nor does it obligate funds. It is a vision of 
projects that combines input from City Council, advisory committees and staff into one document. 
Annual revision is required to adjust the plan to changing priorities and circumstances. Projects in 
the plan for FY15 are as follows. 
 
Water Projects – Total Expense for FY14-15 is $140,179 
 
Water Master Plan Update:  The last water plan update was completed in August 2005. 
Completing this update will allow us to perform a comprehensive analysis of the City’s water 
distribution system to identify system deficiencies to determine future water distribution system 
supply requirements and to recommend water system facility improvements that correct the 
existing deficiencies and to provide for future system expansions. 
 
Sanitary Projects – Total Expense for FY14-15 is $400,402 
 
Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Sewer Capacity Upgrade - Phase 1: This project consists of 
replacing/upsizing approximately 3,011 linear feet of existing 8 and 10 inch diameter pipe with 12-
inch pipe.  The project is on the south side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road, from the intersection with 
Oregon street west to the railroad tracks and then southwest along those tracks. This upgrade is 
necessary to provide capacity for future growth and expansion of the northeast portion of 
Sherwood (Area 48).  
 
Sanitary Master Plan Update:  The existing Sanitary System Master Plan was adopted in July 
2007.  During the intervening 8 years the City has had significant growth in residential 
development.  The master plan had identified many growth related CIP projects which were 
constructed by development.  The remaining master plan projects relate to capacity improvements 
of major collector trunk lines, which are generally the responsibility of Clean Water Services 

29



Resolution 2014-039, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

(CWS).  Updating the sanitary master plan will provide the City with current system conditions, 
identify necessary upgrades within the City’s jurisdictional control, and confirm future development 
area impacts.  The update will also provide a review of City sanitary improvement system 
development charge (SDC) fee rates. 
 
Storm Water Projects – Total Expense for FY14-15 is $725,674 
 
Columbia Street Regional Storm Water Quality Facility:  This project is based on an agreement 
between the City and Clean Water Services (CWS) to construct a regional water quality facility as 
part of the Cannery PUD.  The project to date has purchased the necessary property along Main 
Street and performed a lot line adjustment in preparation for the design and construction phase.  
The design phase of this project is expected to commence in early FY13/14, with the construction 
phase being completed within FY14/15.  Future Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of bi-
yearly inspection of the treatment facility, and removal of invasive plant species and sediment 
removal as needed in meeting CWS/DEQ requirements for MS4 permitting. 
 
Storm Water Master Plan Update: The existing Stormwater Master Plan was adopted in June 
2007. During the intervening 8 years, the City has had significant growth in residential 
development.  The master plan had identified many growth related CIP projects which were 
constructed by development. The remaining master plan projects primarily relate to regional water 
quality facilities for treatment of stormwater runoff in undeveloped areas and untreated in-fill areas 
of the City. Updating the stormwater master plan will provide the City with current system 
conditions, identify necessary upgrades within the City’s jurisdictional control, and confirm future 
development area impacts. The update will also provide a review of City stormwater system 
development charge (SDC) fee rates. 
 
Street Projects – Total Expense for FY14-15 is $230,847 
 
Langer Farms Parkway North Construction:  This project was started in FY14 and will be 
completed in FY15.  The majority of the work is being done by the developer per the development 
agreement with some staff and consulting time for review. 
 

TSP SDC Analysis:  The TSP update will be completed during the summer of 2014; once the plan 
update is complete, an SDC analysis will need to be done to assure that SDC rates are appropriate 
for the projects identified in the plan. 
 
General Construction Projects – Total Expense for FY14-15 is $1,023,996 
 
Cedar Creek Trail: Design will be completed in FY14 and construction will begin in FY15. The City 
is receiving a $5 million MTIP grant from the Federal Government to fund the major portion of this 
project. Future maintenance costs for the completed trail will be the responsibility of the Public 
Works Department and would consist mostly of invasive plant control and wooden boardwalk 
maintenance. 
 
Field Lights at Edy Ridge and Sherwood Middle School: The city will be installing lights at the Edy 
Ridge and Sherwood Middle School campus’ to increase the use of the athletic fields. 

30



Resolution 2014-039, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Woodhaven Park Improvements Design: This project is to generate a design for the phase 2 
improvements at Woodhaven Park. 
 
Parks Master Plan Update: The existing Sherwood Parks and Recreation Master Plan was 
adopted in October 2006. During the intervening 8 years, the City has been witness to significant 
growth, along with significant recession in the housing market. The master plan had identified 
many growth related CIP projects which were listed as priorities to the quality of life in Sherwood. 
Due to the housing market recession, many of these projects have not been partially or fully 
advanced. In addition, the focus and ability of the community to fund the identified CIP projects has 
changed. Updating the Parks and Recreation Master Plan will provide the City with the direction 
the community wishes to advance towards, identify necessary upgrades within the City’s existing 
infrastructure, and confirm and plan for future development area impacts.  Included with the update 
a review of City Parks and Recreation (SDC) fee rates will be undertaken. 
 
Five Year Plan 
Attachment A to this memo includes all of the projects planned for the next five years and their 
proposed timing.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-039 adopting the Capital 
Improvement Plan for FY2014-15. 

31



DRAFT  

Resolution 2014-039 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-039 
 

ADOPTING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PLAN  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood Financial Policy IV-4 states that the City shall adopt a five-
year Capital Improvement Project Plan annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached summary of the FY2014-15 Capital Improvement Project Plan 
represents capital improvement planning based on the current circumstances and priorities of 
the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Capital Improvement Project Plan was the basis for projects included in the 
FY2014-15 Approved budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   That it hereby adopts the FY2014-15 Capital Improvement Projects Plan 

attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 
Section 2.   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
 
 
            
   Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

32



 

Resolution 2014-039, Attachment A – FY15 CIP 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 1  

FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
The chart below outlines the capital improvement plan for the next five years. Construction of 
projects planned for future years will be subject to funding. 
 

 

 

Transportation  Estimated Cost 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19
Langer Farms Parkway North Design 1,320,000         40,000       -             -             -              -              
TSP Implementation Plan and SDC Rate Analysis 125,000            125,000      
Krueger Elwert-Hwy 99W Intersection 4,500,000         -             150,000      350,000      -              4,000,000     
Oregon St/Tonquin Rd 8,000,000         -             -             500,000      7,000,000     500,000       
Pine Street Phase 2 1,850,000         -             -             -             -              1,850,000     

15,795,000$      165,000$    150,000$    850,000$    7,000,000$   6,350,000$   
Storm
Columbia Street Regional Water Quality Facility Const 750,000            575,000      -             -             -              -              
Storm System Master Plan Update 125,000            125,000      -             -             -              -              
Oregon St Regional Stormwater Facility 500,000            -             150,000      350,000      
Area 48 Coffee Lake Creek Sormwater Facility 500,000            -             -             125,000      375,000       -              
Area 48 Hedges Creek Stormwater Facility 1,050,000         -             -             -             250,000       800,000       

2,925,000$        700,000$    150,000$    475,000$    625,000$      800,000$      
Sanitary
Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Upgrade (TEASU) 1,385,370         250,000      -             -             -              -              
Sanitary Master Plan Update 150,000            125,000      -             -             -              -              
Tonquin Employment Area (TEASU) Ext. Phs 1 744,560            -             175,000      569,560      -              -              
Tonquin Employment Area (TEASU) Ext. Phs 2 683,497            -             -             175,000      508,497       -              
SW Sunset Blvd Rehab 168,800            -             -             168,800      -              -              
Old Town Laterals Rehab 40,000              -             -             -             40,000         -              
SW Orcutt Place Rehab 155,743            -             -             -             -              155,743       
SW Highland Dr Rehab 249,859            -             -             -             -              249,859       
SW Gleneagle Dr. Rehab 49,813              -             -             -             -              49,813         
SW Washington Dr Rehab 52,750              -             -             -             -              52,750         
SW Schamburg Dr to Division Rehab 388,298            -             -             -             -              388,298       

4,068,690$        375,000$    175,000$    913,360$    548,497$      896,463$      
Water  Estimated Cost 
Water MP & Model 170,000            140,000      -             -             -              -              
Surge & Clear Well 1,000,000         -             1,000,000   
Highway 99W Crossing 350,000            -             350,000      -             -              -              
Reservoir 535 2,330,000         -             80,000       500,000      200,000       -              
Treatment Plant Expansion 3,500,000         -             -             -             1,500,000     -              
Langer Subdivision 57,000              -             -             -             57,000         -              
Purchase 15 mgd from TVWD 3,000,000         -             -             -             -              1,500,000     

10,407,000$      140,000$    1,430,000$ 500,000$    1,757,000$   1,500,000$   
General Construction
Cedar Creek Trail - Design & Construction 865,000            200,000      -             -             -              -              
Woodhaven Improvements Design 125,000            75,000       -             -             -              -              
Parks Master Plan and SDC Update 100,000            100,000      -             -             -              -              
Field Lights at Edy Ridge & SMS 360,000            350,000      -             -             -              -              

1,450,000$        725,000$    -$           -$           -$             -$             
URA
Sherwood Community Center 7,026,933         4,000,000   -             -             -              -              

7,026,933$        4,000,000$ -$           -$           -$             -$             

City of Sherwood Five Year Capital Improvement Plan (FY15 Through FY19) 

33



 

Resolution 2014-040, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date:  June 17, 2014  
 

Agenda Item:  New business 
 

 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director  
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-040, Transferring Budget Expenditure 

Appropriations between Categories for Budget Year 2013-14 
 
 
Issue:  
Shall the City Council approve a budget transfer resolution for the Street Capital and 
General Funds? 
 
Background:   
The amount of staff time to work on the TSP update and Langer Farms Parkway North 
were not anticipated or budgeted for in the FY14 budget.  An appropriation transfer from 
capital outlay to personal services and materials and services is required to cover staff 
time for these two projects.  
 
The Administration Division of the General Fund incurred additional legal expenses 
related primarily to the Special Committee, Charter Review Committee, and internal 
investigations that were not contemplated when the budget was prepared. 
 
The Community Development Division of the General Fund incurred additional 
expenses for contracted plan reviews and for staff time related to Private Development 
activity. Both of these additional expenses are related to a large increase in 
development activity during the year. 
 
This resolution does not increase expenditure authorization in these funds; it only 
transfers spending authorization from one category to another. 
 
Recommendations:   
Staff respectfully requests City Council approval of Resolution 2014-040, transferring 
budget expenditure appropriations between categories for budget year 2013-14. 
 
  

34



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-040 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-040 
 

TRANSFERRING BUDGET EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS BETWEEN 
CATEGORIES FOR BUDGET YEAR 2013-14 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 294.463, Oregon Municipalities can transfer appropriation 
between existing categories within the same fund during the budget year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the following events have occurred: 
 
Street Capital Fund 

 Additional funding is needed in FY14 for the TSP update and Langer Farms 
Parkway North projects. 

 
General Fund 

 Administration Division: Additional appropriation is needed for legal expenses 
due to unforeseen issues such as, Charter Review Committee, Special 
Committee, and investigations. 

 Community Development Division: The contracted services for plan reviews are 
higher than anticipated due to a large increase in development activity. 
Additionally more staff time than was budgeted for the Engineering department 
has been spent on Private Development activities. 

 
WHEREAS, said changes will not alter the total appropriations in the altered funds;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Appropriations for the 2013-14 fiscal year are increased/(decreased) in the 
following amounts: 
 
Street Capital Fund Current Amount of Change Revised 
Personal Services  $54,600 $  12,400 $67,000 
Materials & Services 43,500 6,500 50,000 
Capital Outlay 316,000 (18,900) 297,100 
Revised Total Requirements $2,924,788 $             - $2,924,788 
 
 
 
 
 

35



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-040 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

General Fund Current Amount of Change Revised 
Administration 2,471,258 50,000 2,521,258 
Community Development 984,885 150,000 1,134,885 
Contingency 2,624,580 (200,000) 2,424,580 
Revised Total Requirements $9,837,284             $              - $9,837,284 
 
Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the Sherwood City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
  
 
           
  Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

36



 

Resolution 2014-041, Staff Report with Attachment (2 pgs) 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 

 
 
TO:   Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM:  Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 2014-041 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

Contract with Blackline, Inc. for the 2014 Slurry Seal Program 
 
 
Issue:  
In order for the City to maintain our public infrastructure and to perform preventative 
maintenance work to prolong the quality of our streets, shall the City Council authorize a 
contract for the 2014 Slurry Seal program? 
 
Background:  
The City of Sherwood contacted the City of Hillsboro to combine our efforts for Slurry 
Seal. The City of Hillsboro included language for Sherwood to use their RFP. The City of 
Hillsboro allowing us to use their RFP process enables the City of Sherwood to save time 
and money not having to go through the procurement process.  
 
The roads selected are prioritized in our Pavement Management System which was 
updated in January 2014. (See attached map to the staff report) 
 
Financial Impacts:  
The City will enter into a contract not to exceed $80,000 per the RFP. These funds are 
covered in the FY2014-15 street budget. Failure to adopt this contract will prevent 
Sherwood from moving forward with a Slurry Seal Program in FY2014-15.   
 
Recommendation:  
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-041 authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. for the 2014 Slurry Seal Program. 
 
 

 

37



SW
 C

ED
AR

 B
RO

OK
 W

AY

SW
 FI

SK
 TE

R

SW
 FL

ET
CH

ER
 TE

R

SW ORCHARD HILL LN

SW WEATHERFORD AVE

SW SANTA FE TER

SW WAGONTRAIN PL
SW BRIDGER LN

SW TRAILS END DR

SW EDY RD

SW PACIFIC HWY

SW
 E

LW
ER

T R
D

SW HANDLEY ST

SW ROY ROGERS RD

SW SHERWOOD BLVD

SW CENTURY DR

SW
 C

OP
PE

R 
TE

R

SW MEINECKE RD

SW
 LA

NG
ER

 D
R

SW
 R

OE
LL

IC
H 

AV
E

SW 12TH ST

SW
 B

OR
CH

ER
S 

DR

SW BALER WAY

SW
 H

OU
ST

ON
 D

R

SW
 LA

NG
ER

 FA
RM

S 
PK

W
Y

SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SW
 S

MI
TH

 AV
E

SW NELS DR
SW

 FI
SK

 TE
R

SW ROOSEVELT ST

SW LYNNLY WAY

SW KING RICHARD CT
SW

 M
AD

EIR
A T

ER

SW WAPATO ST

SW
 B

US
HO

NG
 TE

R

SW
 A

LD
RI

DG
E 

TE
R

SW ALEXANDER LN

SW
 S

ET
TL

EM
EN

T D
R

SW DEWEY DR

SW DAFFODIL ST

SW REDCLOVER LN

SW VINTNER LN

SW DAYLILY ST

SW SPRINGTOOTH LN

SW
 TH

RA
SH

ER
 W

AY

SW
 LE

E 
DR

SW GILLETTE LN

SW HARVESTER LN

SW STETSON ST

SW CEREGHINO LN

SW NURSERY WAY

SW FARMER WAY

SW FARWEST LN

SW
 S

ILO
 TE

R

SW 11TH CT

SW
 S

TE
IN

 TE
R

SW SEDGE LN
SW

 M
EA

DO
W

 TE
R

SW
 H

AI
L P

L

S l u r r y  S e a l  2 0 1 4S l u r r y  S e a l  2 0 1 4
±

Legend
City Line
Slurry Seal
Taxlots

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Wagon Trail Place
Trails End Drive Farwest Drive Santa Fe Terrace

Trails End Drive Edy Road Bridger Lane
Trails End Drive

Edy Road Culdesac

Farwest Drive

Bridger Lane Farwest Drive

Settlement Drive Nels Drive Bridger Lane
Settlement Drive Bridger Lane

Trumpeter Drive

Santa Fe Terrace
Weatherford Avenue

Santa Fe Terrace
Settlement Drive

Nels DriveEdy Road

Baler Way W.
Baler Way E.
Ferguson Terrace
Trails End Drive

Langer Farms Parkway

Settlement Drive
Trails End Drive
Santa Fe Terrace
Weatherford Avenue

Settlement Drive

Santa Fe Terrace

Meadow Terrace

Fisk Terrace

Farwest Lane

Settlement Drive

Handley Street

Meinecke Round-about
Handley Street
Trumpeter Drive
Baler Way W.
Baler Way E.

Cedar Brook Way
Cedar Brook Way

Aldridge Terrace
Handley Street
Dead End Barricade
Sherwood Boulevard

Road Name: From: To:
Fletcher Terrace
Fisk Terrace

Century Drive
Century Drive
Century Drive

Dead End
Orchard Hill Lane

Bushong Terrace
Bushong Terrace
Orchard Hill Lane
Orchard Hill Lane
List Terrace
Handley Street

Dead End
Orchard Hill Lane
Bushong Terrace
Fisk Terrace
Swanstrom Drive

           2014 Slurry Seal Program

Settlement Drive

Farwest Lane
Nels Drive
Nels Drive
Nels Drive

Century Drive
Century Drive
Bridger Lane

Ferguson Terrace

Elwert Road

Swanstrom Drive
Swanstrom Drive
Orchard Hill Lane
Swanstrom Drive

Resolution 2014-041, Attachment 1 
June 17, 2014, 

Resolution 2014-041, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 2 38



           2014 Slurry Seal Program

Settlement Drive

Farwest Lane
Nels Drive
Nels Drive
Nels Drive

Century Drive
Century Drive
Bridger Lane

Ferguson Terrace

Elwert Road

Swanstrom Drive
Swanstrom Drive
Orchard Hill Lane
Swanstrom Drive

Century Drive
Century Drive
Century Drive

Dead End
Orchard Hill Lane

Road Name: From: To:
Fletcher Terrace
Fisk Terrace
Bushong Terrace
Bushong Terrace
Orchard Hill Lane
Orchard Hill Lane
List Terrace
Handley Street
Cedar Brook Way

Dead End
Orchard Hill Lane
Bushong Terrace
Fisk Terrace
Swanstrom Drive
Meadow Terrace

Fisk Terrace

Farwest Lane

Settlement Drive

Handley Street

Meinecke Round-about
Handley Street
Trumpeterv Drive
Baler Way W.
Baler Way E.

Cedar Brook Way
Cedar Brook Way
Cedar Brook Way
Cedar Brook Way

Highway 99 W
Aldridge Terrace
Dead End-West Barricade
Dead End Barricade
End Roundabout

Nels DriveEdy Road

Baler Way W.
Baler Way E.
Ferguson Terrace
Trails End Drive

Round-about
Beg. of Roundabout
Handley Street
Dead End Barricade
Sherwood Boulevard
Trumpeterv Drive

Santa Fe Terrace
Weatherford Avenue

Santa Fe Terrace
Settlement Drive

Langer Farms Parkway

Settlement Drive
Trails End Drive
Santa Fe Terrace
Weatherford Avenue

Settlement Drive

Trails End Drive

Settlement Drive Nels Drive Bridger Lane
Settlement Drive Bridger Lane

Edy Road Culdesac

Farwest Drive

Bridger Lane Farwest Drive

Trailblazer Stagecoach Culdesac
Wagon Trail Place

Trails End Drive Farwest Drive Santa Fe Terrace
Trailblazer Edy Road Stagecoach

Trails End Drive Edy Road Bridger Lane
Trails End Drive

Edy Road Culdesac

Farwest Drive

Bridger Lane Farwest Drive

Wagon Trail Place

Settlement Drive Nels Drive Bridger Lane

Trails End Drive Farwest Drive Santa Fe Terrace

Trails End Drive Edy Road Bridger Lane
Trails End Drive

Settlement Drive Bridger Lane

Resolution 2014-041, Attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 2 39



DRAFT 
 

Resolution 2014-041 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-041 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
BLACKLINE, INC. FOR THE 2014 SLURRY SEAL PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the City has a responsibility to maintain the City’s infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sherwood partnered with the City of Hillsboro to include Sherwood’s 2014 
Slurry Seal program in their RFP for the same services; and 
 
WHEREAS, Blackline, Inc. is the lowest responsible bidder and the City will enter into a 
contract not to exceed $80,000.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with Blackline, Inc. 

for the 2014 Slurry Seal Program. 
 
Section 2.    This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014.  
 
 
             
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:         
 
 
       
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   

40



 

Resolution 2014-042, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 

TO:   Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM:  Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
Through: David Doughman, City Attorney and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution 2014-042 Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

with Musco Sports Lighting LLC for installation of Field Lights at Laurel 
Ridge Middle School and additional Lights at Sherwood Middle School 

 
 
Issue:  
Should the City install field lights at Laurel Ridge Middle School and additional lights at Sherwood 
Middle School? 
 
Background:  
City Council directed staff to look into field lights at Laurel Ridge Middle School football field that 
could also serve to light the baseball field too. In addition, it was requested that two additional 
lights be added at Sherwood Middle School that also covers a portion of Hopkins Elementary 
baseball complex. 
 
At that time there was no funding to move this project forward. The recent increase in 
development throughout Sherwood has created the SDC funds that are enabling us to move 
forward with these projects. 
 
The City’s current lighting and controls are through Musco Sports Lighting. The City looked at a 
few options: 

 Issuing an RFP  
 Design-Build 
 Intra-state agreement with the Association of Education Purchasing agencies 
 Intra-state agreement with King County Directors Association (“KCDA”). 

 
After thorough review of each option, the City submitted an application and was approved by the 
King County Board of Directors to use their price agreements. The KCDA allows members to use 
all price agreement that they have entered into with various vendors.   
 
This project has been approved by the Parks Advisory Board. The City held two (2) neighborhood 
meetings. In addition this project went through the formal process and was approved by the 
Hearings Officer on May 21, 2014. 
       
The addition of these lights benefit our community by allowing sports leagues and the City’s 
Recreation Manager to utilize these fields more frequently than they are currently able to be used. 

41



 

Resolution 2014-042, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

Financial Impacts:  
The contract with Musco Sports Lighting includes: 
 

 Construction and material for lights at both schools $302,330.00 
 Electrical engineering costs $4,850.00 
 Performance and payment bonds $2,836.62 
 Two (2) outlets (at the request of SD) to be installed at 

bottom of poles (will be reimbursed by SD) $1,820.00 
 $311,836.62 

 
In addition, staff is requesting 10% contingency ($31,184.00) for a total amount of $343,020.62. 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-042 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a contract with Musco Sports Lighting LLC for installation of Field Lights at 
Laurel Ridge Middle School and additional Lights at Sherwood Middle School. 
 

42



DRAFT 
 

Resolution 2014-042 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1  
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-042 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH MUSCO 
SPORTS LIGHTING LLC FOR INSTALLATION OF FIELD LIGHTS AT LAUREL 

RIDGE MIDDLE SCHOOL AND ADDITIONAL LIGHTS AT SHERWOOD MIDDLE 
SCHOOL 

 
WHEREAS, the installation of field lights at Laurel Ridge Middle School and Sherwood 
Middle School is listed in the FY2014-15 budget under General Construction Capital 
Projects; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Parks Advisory Board approved the installation of field lights at these 
two locations to enhance the use of the City’s sports fields; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff used an Intra-State Agreement with King County Directors Association 
(“KCDA”) in lieu of issuing a formal RFP process; and 
 
WHEREAS, Musco Sports Lighting LLC is an approved vendor with KCDA and the 
City’s current system is all Musco lights. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract with Musco Sports 

Lighting LLC for an amount not to exceed $311,836.62. Staff is requesting 
10% contingency in the of $31,184.00 for a total contract amount not to 
exceed $343,020.62  

 
Section 2.    This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014.  
 
 
             
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
Attest:         
 
 
__________________________    
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder   

43



Resolution 2014-043, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Linda Henderson Council President and Dave Grant City Councilor 
Through: Pam Beery, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-043, Approving the Terms of an Employment Agreement 

between Joseph Gall and the City of Sherwood 
 
 
Issue: 
Shall the City Council approve the terms of a new employment agreement between Joseph Gall 
and the City of Sherwood? 
 
Background: 
With the recent conclusion of the annual performance review of Joseph Gall, City Manager, by the 
Sherwood City Council, the only remaining action item was to draft a new employment agreement 
for the position.  In conjunction with this performance review, Council determined that the City 
Managers employment agreement was up to date and only minor modifications were required. 
 
The attached Resolution 2014-043 provides an updated employment agreement for Joseph Gall, 
City Manager for the City of Sherwood.   
 
Financial Impacts: 
The yearly salary in the Contract as currently proposed includes a 3% salary increase.  The 
language also allows for a COLA increase which has been determined to be 1.4% for FY14-15. 
 
The compensation and benefits outlined within the employment agreement will have been 
budgeted and will have little impact on the current General Fund administration budget. 
 
Recommendation: 
Adoption of Resolution 2014-043 by the City Council approving the terms of an employment 
agreement with Joseph Gall, City Manager. 
 
 

44



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-043 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (6 pages) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2014-043 

 
APPROVING AN AMENDED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE CITY MANAGER 

 
 

WHEREAS, City Manager Joseph Gall has been employed by the City of Sherwood since 2012 
under a 2-year agreement that was effective May 21, 2012 and expires June 30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council conducted an annual performance evaluation of the City Manager, 
and concluded that his employment agreement should be extended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council designated Council President Linda Henderson and Councilor 
Dave Grant to meet with the City Manager and review the employment agreement on behalf of 
the full Council; and 
 
WHEREAS,  following conclusion of the review process Council believes that the City 
Manager’s employment agreement should be amended in certain particulars. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby approves the amended employment 

agreement for City Manager Joseph Gall, attached as Exhibit A, which 
agreement extends the employment agreement term to expire on June 30, 2017, 
subject to its terms and effective July 1, 2014. 

 
Section 2.  This resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.   
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

45



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 1 of 6 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into effective, July 1, 2014, by and 

between the CITY OF SHERWOOD, OREGON (“CITY”), and JOSEPH P. GALL 

(“EMPLOYEE”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, CITY recognizes EMPLOYEE, as a Credentialed Member of the International City 

County Management Association (ICMA), has shown himself to have the education, training and 

experience necessary to be appointed as Sherwood’s City Manager and EMPLOYEE is willing 

to accept said appointment; and 

 

WHEREAS, CITY and EMPLOYEE desire a written agreement creating a professional and 

businesslike relationship serving as the basis for effective communication and to avoid 

misunderstanding; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein as well as for 

the other consideration described, CITY and EMPLOYEE mutually agree: 

 

 
SECTION I.  EMPLOYMENT, DUTIES AND AUTHORITY. 
 

The CITY has agreed to employ JOSEPH P. GALL as City Manager. EMPLOYEE agrees to 

accept said employment. 

 

The authority of EMPLOYEE, consistent with state law, the Sherwood City Charter and 

pertinent ordinances shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

administration and direction of City operations; 

 

Municipal Judge, City Recorder and City Attorney; 

 

appropriations pursuant to City policy and ordinance; 

 

 

responsive and courteous public services; 

ing toward achieving goals set by the City Council; and 

 

 

The Mayor and the other members of the City Council agree to the principle of noninterference 

in the administration as necessary for orderly and efficient implementation of Council policy. 

The Mayor and City Council agree to direct their concerns and communications relating to the 

City’s administration through the City Manager. EMPLOYEE agrees to respond promptly to all 

inquiries from the City Council whether made individually or collectively.  

 

 

46



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 2 of 6 

SECTION II.  TERM. 
 

A. This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2014, and, unless terminated consistent with the 

terms hereof, shall continue for a three (3) year term (i.e., until June 30, 2017). This 

Agreement may be renewed by the parties for such additional periods as may be agreed upon 

in writing and approved by Council resolution. 

 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the City 

Council to terminate services of EMPLOYEE at any time subject only to the provisions set 

forth in this Agreement. 

 

C. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of 

EMPLOYEE to resign at any time from his position subject only to the provisions set forth in 

this Agreement. 

 

D. EMPLOYEE agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of the CITY during the term of this 

Agreement. 

 

 

SECTION III.  SALARY, HOURS OF WORK, BENEFITS. 
 

A. Salary. Commencing July 1, 2014, and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement, the 

CITY agrees to pay EMPLOYEE One Hundred Twenty Two Thousand Seventy Five Dollars 

and 20/100’s ($122,075.20) as a yearly salary to be paid in installments at the same interval 

as CITY pays its other employees. EMPLOYEE shall also be entitled to receive a Cost of 

Living Adjustment (COLA) to his salary in the same percentage amount as may be given the 

CITY’s exempt employees. EMPLOYEE’S salary will be reviewed in conjunction with 

EMPLOYEE’s yearly performance evaluation. 

 

B. Hours of Work. It is recognized EMPLOYEE must devote a great deal of time outside 

normal office hours to business of the CITY; as such, EMPLOYEE may take up to forty (40) 

hours as Administrative Leave per Fiscal Year to be used at EMPLOYEE’s discretion during 

the term of this Agreement. Administrative Leave may not be accrued from year-to-year and 

shall have no cash value upon termination or resignation from the CITY’s employ. 

 

C. Paid Time Off (PTO). EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to the same PTO benefits as the CITY’s 

other exempt employees.  

 

D. Holiday Benefit. EMPLOYEE shall receive payment for all City observed holidays. 

 

E. Sick leave. EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to the same sick leave benefits as other exempt 

employees of the CITY. Sick leave shall have no cash value. 

 

F. Motor Vehicle Allowance.  EMPLOYEE shall be paid, no sooner than July 1, 2014, a 

monthly motor vehicle allowance of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for use of his private 

vehicle(s) on and for City purposes.  EMPLOYEE shall neither be entitled to nor seek 

47



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 3 of 6 

reimbursement for mileage for his private vehicle(s) for travel on and for City purposes 

within a fifty (50) mile radius of the City but may, at his option, seek mileage reimbursement 

for travel on City business beyond that 50 mile radius.     

 

G. Cellular Phone Allowance. EMPLOYEE shall be paid the monthly cellular phone allowance 

(currently Eighty Dollars ($80.00)) as is paid other CITY exempt employees. 

 

H. CITY shall pay, on behalf of EMPLOYEE, the premium cost for a term life insurance policy 

in the amount of Three Hundred Thousand and no/00 Dollars ($300,000.00).  

 

I. YMCA Allowance. Employee shall be paid a monthly YMCA allowance in the amount of 

$52.00  Employee shall demonstrate at the beginning of each fiscal year that they have a 

valid YMCA membership in order to receive this benefit. 

 

 

SECTION IV. TERMINATION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 
 

A. At-Will Termination Right. This Agreement may be terminated by either the CITY or 

EMPLOYEE for any reason whatsoever upon giving thirty (30) calendar days written notice 

to the other party, except as modified in subsection (G) of this Section. 

 

B. Employee Termination for Cause. EMPLOYEE’s employment with the CITY may be 

terminated immediately in the sole discretion of the CITY upon the occurrence of any of the 

following events: 

a. EMPLOYEE fails or refuses to comply with the written policies, standards and 

regulations of the CITY that are now in existence or are from time to time 

established; 

b. The CITY has substantial evidence to believe EMPLOYEE has committed fraud, 

misappropriated CITY funds, goods or services to either his own or some other 

private third party’s benefit and/or other acts of misconduct which the City Council 

believes, in its sole discretion, is or would be detrimental to the CITY and/or its 

interests; or 

c. EMPLOYEE fails to perform his duties as City Manager. 

 

C. Employee Not for Cause Termination. In the event EMPLOYEE is involuntarily terminated 

by CITY before expiration of this Agreement (albeit EMPLOYEE is willing and able to 

perform his duties as City Manager) for reasons other than those set out in subsection (B) of 

this Section, then in that event EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to (and CITY agrees to pay 

EMPLOYEE) liquidated damages consistent with the following schedule: 

 anytime during the period between July 1, 2014 to the end of the Agreement’s term, 

liquidated damages equal to six (6) months’ salary. 

Payment of the applicable amount of liquidated damages shall be made monthly, each 

payment being the value of one (1) month’s salary or portion thereof to which EMPLOYEE 

has accrued a right (assuming entitlement thereto consistent with the graduated schedule). 

The right to said payment shall cease if, during the period of the scheduled payments, 

EMPLOYEE accepts employment with another employer (including self-employment). 

48



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 4 of 6 

EMPLOYEE has an affirmative obligation to notify CITY upon acceptance of other 

employment. In the event EMPLOYEE fails to notify CITY of his employment, CITY shall 

have the right (but not the obligation) to seek recovery from EMPLOYEE of any and all 

amounts improperly received as well as recovery of any cost(s) or fee(s) (including attorney 

fees) CITY incurs in pursuit thereof. 

 

D. If the CITY unilaterally (i.e., without concurrence of EMPLOYEE) reduces the salary or 

other financial benefits of EMPLOYEE in greater percentage than an applicable across-the-

board reduction for all exempt employees of the CITY, then EMPLOYEE may deem this 

Agreement to be involuntarily terminated without cause and he shall thereby be entitled to 

liquated damages consistent with subsection (C) of this Section. 

 

E. If EMPLOYEE is terminated by CITY during the six (6) month period immediately 

following the official seating of one or more newly elected Council members (for reasons 

other than those set out above in subsection (B) of this Section), notwithstanding 

EMPLOYEE’s willingness and ability to perform his duties, EMPLOYEE may deem himself 

involuntarily terminated without cause and shall be entitled to liquidated damages consistent 

with subsection (C) of this Section. 

 

F. Termination (regardless of whether for cause or without cause) or voluntary resignation 

(except as limited by the terms of Section III(C) above relative to the non-cash vacation 

hours described therein) entitles EMPLOYEE to a lump sum payment equivalent to all 

accrued PTO benefits which payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the official 

date of termination or resignation. 

 

G. Notwithstanding the notice provision set out in subsection (A) of this Section, if 

EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns his position with the CITY before the expiration of this 

Agreement, EMPLOYEE shall give the CITY at least sixty (60) calendar days written notice 

in advance and EMPLOYEE shall be available to serve during this period. The City Council, 

however, shall have the discretion to decide whether EMPLOYEE shall continue in his 

position during the notice period. 

 

 
SECTION V. RETIREMENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE. 
 

A. Retirement. CITY agrees to contribute into the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 

on EMPLOYEE’s behalf an amount at least equal to that same percentage of salary 

contributed for the CITY’s other exempt employees. 

 

B. Health Insurance. If EMPLOYEE elects to participate in the CITY’S health insurance 

programs, CITY agrees to provide coverage and make required premium payments for 

EMPLOYEE and his dependents for comprehensive medical and dental coverage consistent 

with City policy for the CITY’s other exempt employees. 

 

 
SECTION VI. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EXPENSE. 

49



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 5 of 6 

A. To the extent funds are available and budgeted by Council, EMPLOYEE may participate, as 

he deems appropriate, in professional associations, short courses, seminars and conferences 

including, but not limited to, membership in the International City Management Association 

(ICMA) and the League of Oregon Cities (LOC). Major expenses such as out of town 

attendance at meetings requiring lodging and meals shall be reviewed and be approved in 

advance by the Council. Said expenses will be reimbursed consistent with City policy for the 

City’s other exempt employees. 

 

B. CITY recognizes that certain expenses may be incurred by EMPLOYEE on behalf of the 

CITY and agrees to reimburse or pay reasonably necessary expenses upon receipt of 

appropriate documentation. 

 

 

SECTION VII. PERFORMANCE REVIEW. 
 

A. The Mayor and other members of the City Council may periodically identify concerns they 

may have to EMPLOYEE either by informal discussions with EMPLOYEE or more 

formally. The City Council shall meet with EMPLOYEE at least once annually during the 

term of this Agreement, which first meeting shall occur not later than February 17, 2015, and 

thereafter not later than the second Council meeting in February  of each year for purposes of 

evaluating and assessing the performance of the EMPLOYEE.  

B.  To The criteria to be used for the evaluation shall examine EMPLOYEE’s exercise of 

authority granted or otherwise identified in Section I of this Agreement and will be consistent 

with direction provided by Council at Council’s annual strategic planning session. The 

evaluation of EMPLOYEE shall be in closed Executive Session but conducted consistent 

with Oregon’s Public Meetings Law. 

C.  In the event the CITY determines performance of EMPLOYEE is unsatisfactory or needs 

improvement in any area, the CITY (through the City Council) shall cause there to be 

produced a written description of the concern(s) which shall be in reasonable detail or with 

specific examples and be objective and positive in nature and delivered to EMPLOYEE in a 

timely fashion. 

 
 
SECTION VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 

A. Professional Liability. The CITY agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 

EMPLOYEE from any and all demands, claims, suits, actions and legal proceedings brought 

against EMPLOYEE in his individual capacity or in his official capacity as agent and 

employee of the CITY, consistent with the terms of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 

30.260 to 30.300). 

 

B. Nothing shall restrict the ability of the CITY and EMPLOYEE to amend or adjust the terms 

of this Agreement at any time.  However, no amendment or adjustment shall be valid unless 

in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the CITY and by EMPLOYEE. 

EMPLOYEE reserves the right to discuss the terms of this Agreement with the City Council 

50



CITY OF SHERWOOD / GALL 

Employment Agreement - Page 6 of 6 

as a whole in either closed Executive Session or open Regular Session as state law allows 

and as EMPLOYEE deems appropriate. 

 

C. Severability. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held to 

be unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion 

thereof, shall be deemed severable and shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

D. The rights and duties of CITY and EMPLOYEE shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 

E. Arbitration. In the event the parties have a dispute concerning the terms of this Agreement, 

the terms and conditions of the employment relationship or the violation of any federal, state 

or local law relating to the employment relationship and they have not otherwise resolved the 

matter through any attempted mediation, conciliation or other voluntary dispute resolution 

process they choose to use prior to the initiation of arbitration, then the dispute shall be 

resolved by binding arbitration in accordance with the then effective arbitration rules of (and 

by filing a claim with) Arbitration Service of Portland, Inc., and judgment upon the award 

rendered pursuant to such arbitration may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

Each party shall bear equally the expense of the arbitrator and all other expenses of 

conducting the arbitration. Each party shall bear its own expenses for witnesses, depositions 

and attorneys, if deemed necessary. 

 

F. Integration. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties and 

supersedes all prior written or oral discussions or agreements regarding the same subject. 

 

 

// 

// 

// 

// 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the CITY OF SHERWOOD, OREGON, has caused this Agreement 

to be signed and executed by its Mayor, Keith Mays, and JOSEPH P. GALL has signed and 

executed this Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year noted below each signature. 

 

 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

Bill Middleton     Joseph P. Gall 

Mayor                EMPLOYEE  

 

 

Dated:  ____________________, 2014 Dated:  ____________________, 2014 

 

 

51



 

Resolution 2014-044, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2, with attachment (30 pgs) 

Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing  
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2014-044 adoption of FY 2014-15 Fee Schedule Effective July 1, 

2014 
 
 
Issue: 
Should the City of Sherwood adopt a new fee schedule, effective July 1, 2014? 
 
Background: 
The City of Sherwood has annually reviewed all fees and updated, if necessary. Below are the 
proposed changes to the fee schedule, effective July 1, 2014. Attached to the staff report is the 
Fee Schedule with track changes.  
 
Section 3 Police 

 Alarm Permits - Currently the City requires citizens to register their alarm systems with 
the City.  This requirement was put in place to help manage false alarms.  Staff reviewed 
the number of false alarms and determined that this process is not needed.  A change to 
the Municipal Code to issue a Code Violation for false alarms will take the place of the 
registration process. 

 Police Report Video Tapes – This fee is being deleted because the city no longer uses 
video tapes. 

 Miscellaneous Police Fees – The fee per disc for copies of digital photographs/photo 
files is being increased to be consistent with the cost of other per disc fees in the City. 

 
Section 4 Court 

 Proof of valid license, insurance, and or tags – These fees are being deleted from 
the fee schedule due to legislative changes that give the discretion for reductions back to 
the Municipal Judges. The fees are no longer needed. 
 

Section 6 Utility Rates 

 Sanitary and Storm rates - are increasing 3% and 8% respectively due to a rate 
increase from Clean Water Services. Staff is not proposing any increase to the City of 
Sherwood surcharge rates. 
 

Section 7 System Development Charges (SDCs) 

 City Street SDC’s - are proposed to decrease 50% based on direction from Council at 
the May 6, 2014 Council meeting. 

 Clean Water Services is increasing the Sewer SDC 2%. 
 
Section 8 Engineering Charges for Services 

 In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation - is increasing from $10 to $20 per 
linear foot. This increase will cover the City’s cost of installing the fiber optic conduit in-
lieu of the developer performing the installation. 

52



 

Resolution 2014-044, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2, with attachment (30 pgs) 

Summary of Fee Schedule Changes for FY14-15 
Section Name of Fee Current Rate  Proposed Rate 

Section 3: Police   

A & B) Alarms Alarm Permit Fees and Alarm System Code Violation Fees Various Delete the fees 

C) Police Reports Video Tapes $30 per tape Delete the fee 

F) Misc. Police 
Fees 

Copies of digital photographs/photo files $20 per disc $25 per disc 

Section 4: Court   
Court Fees  No Operators License - provide proof of valid license $100 Delete the fee 

Driving While Suspended - provide proof of valid license $200  Delete the fee 
Expired Registration/Tags (expiration less than or equal to 
30 days) - provide proof of current registration $25 Delete the fee 

Expired Registration/Tags (expiration greater than 30 days) 
- provide proof of current registration $40 Delete the fee 

Failure to carry registration – provide proof of registration $25 Delete the fee 
Driving Uninsured – proof of insurance provided at or 
before the arraignment $100 Delete the fee 

Vehicle Compliance program – administrative fee $25 $35 
Section 6: Utility Charges for Service   
O) Sanitary 
Rates 

CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $20.97 $21.60 
CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.40 $1.44 
Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.77 $4.89 
Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.26 $0.28 

P) Storm Rates CWS regional storm water rate per ESU  $1.56 $1.69 
Sherwood storm water rate per ESU $12.21 $12.58 

Section 7: 
SDC’s 

All City Street SDC’s  50% Decrease 
CWS Regional Sewer Connection Charge $4,800 $4,900 

Section 8: Engineering    
C) Miscellaneous 
Fees 

In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $10 linear foot $20 linear foot 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-044 adopting the FY2014-
15 Fee Schedule, effective July 1, 2014. 

53



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 The City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Master Fees and Charges 

 
 
 

Exhibit A 

Resolution: 2014-011 

  
 Adopted: 2/18/146/17/14 

 Effective: 2/18/147/1/14 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Also available online at  

www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 30 54

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 2 of 30 

 

SECTION 1: GENERAL ........................................................................................................................... 4 

A) STAFF RATES: ............................................................................................................................................. 4 
B) BUSINESS LICENSE: ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
C) LIQUOR LICENSE: ........................................................................................................................................ 4 
D) FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ................................................................... 4 
E) PUBLIC RECORD FEES: ................................................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY ............................................................................................................................ 6 

A) GENERAL FEES: .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 3: POLICE ............................................................................................................................... 7 

(A) ALARM PERMIT FEES: ................................................................................................................................. 7 
(B) ALARM SYSTEM CODE VIOLATION FEES: ........................................................................................................ 7 
(C) POLICE REPORTS: ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
(D) VEHICLE IMPOUND: .................................................................................................................................... 7 
(E) PARKING VIOLATION FEES:........................................................................................................................... 7 
(F) MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ..................................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT ............................................................................................................ 8 

A) COURT FEES: .............................................................................................................................................. 8 
B) DOG FEES: ................................................................................................................................................. 8 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION ....................................................................................................... 9 

A) PLAYER FEES: ............................................................................................................................................. 9 
B) ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: ................................................................................................................... 9 
C) ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: ..................................................................................................................... 10 
D) PICNIC SHELTER: ....................................................................................................................................... 10 
E) AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: ........................................................................................................................... 10 
F) CANNERY SQUARE PLAZA – SPECIAL EVENTS: ............................................................................................... 10 
G) FIELD HOUSE FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 10 
H) SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ............................................................................................................................. 10 
I) FILM PERMIT ........................................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ....................................................................................... 11 

A) RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY RATES: .................................................................................................... 11 
B) COMMERCIAL RATES: ................................................................................................................................ 12 
C) FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ........................................................................................................................ 12 
D) HYDRANT RENTALS: .................................................................................................................................. 12 
E) ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE-ACTIVATION: .............................................................................................. 13 
F) ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: .................................................................................... 13 
G) OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ................................................................................................................... 13 
H) TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: .......................................................................... 13 
I) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: .................................................................................................. 14 
J) WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ........................................................................................ 14 
K) UN-AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ........................................................................................................... 14 
L) RE-INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): .................................................................... 14 
M) USAGE OF METER KEY ............................................................................................................................... 14 
N) WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES ....................................................................................................... 14 
O) SANITARY RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 14 
P) STORM RATES: ......................................................................................................................................... 15 
Q) STREET FEES: ........................................................................................................................................... 15 
R) SIDEWALK REPAIR ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: .................................................................................................. 15 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 30 55



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 3 of 30 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES................................................................................... 16 

A) WATER SDC: ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
B) SEWER SDC: ............................................................................................................................................ 16 
C) STORM SDC: ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
D) PARKS SDC: ............................................................................................................................................ 17 
E) STREET SDC: ........................................................................................................................................... 17 
F) CITY OF SHERWOOD STREET SDC: .............................................................................................................. 17 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ......................................................................... 2120 

A) PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: .................................................... 2120 
B) NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: .............................................. 2120 
C) MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ......................................................................................................................... 2120 
D) VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS): ............................................................................ 2120 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE .............................................................................. 2221 

A) ANNEXATIONS: .................................................................................................................................... 2221 
B) APPEALS: ............................................................................................................................................ 2221 
C) CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: .................................................................................................................. 2221 
D) LAND DIVISIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: ........................................................................................................... 2221 
E) MISCELLANEOUS ACTIONS: ................................................................................................................... 2221 
F) OTHER FEES: ....................................................................................................................................... 2221 
G) TREES: ............................................................................................................................................... 2322 
H) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): .................................................................................................. 2322 
I) REFUNDS: ........................................................................................................................................... 2322 
J) SIGNAGE: ........................................................................................................................................... 2322 
K) SITE PLAN REVIEW: .............................................................................................................................. 2322 
L) TEMPORARY USES: .............................................................................................................................. 2322 
M) TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: ............................................................................................................ 2423 
N)  VARIANCE: .......................................................................................................................................... 2423 
O) ZONE AMENDMENTS: .......................................................................................................................... 2423 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ........................................................................... 2524 

A. BUILDING PERMITS .............................................................................................................................. 2524 
B. DEMOLITION PERMITS .......................................................................................................................... 2625 
C. PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION – STRUCTURAL ONLY ...................................... 2625 
D. PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ................................................................................................. 2625 
E. PHASED PERMIT - PLAN REVIEW (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ......................................... 2625 
F. DEFERRED SUBMITTALS (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ..................................................... 2625 
G. RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ............................................................................................. 2625 
H. ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY ................................................. 2726 
I. MECHANICAL PERMITS - RESIDENTIAL .................................................................................................... 2726 
J. MECHANICAL PERMITS - COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................... 2827 
K. PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ............................................................... 2827 
L. PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 

AND REPAIRS .................................................................................................................................................. 2827 
M. PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ..................................................................................................... 2928 
N. MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................. 2928 
O. GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) .......................................................... 2928 
P. OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ....... 3029 
Q. REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ........................................... 3029 
R. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY  (ALL AS DETERMINED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) .......................................... 3029 
S. CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE ................................................................... 3029 

 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 3 of 30 56



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 4 of 30 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 

A) Staff Rates: 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 

 

1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

 200% of the hourly rate for the position at step 1.   

B) Business License: 
 

Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed under the 
provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

1. Business - Inside the City of Sherwood 
$75 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside the City of Sherwood 
$107.50 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

3. Temporary license  Fee is the same as a regular business license. 

4. Late fee for renewals $5 per month or portion of a month late. 

5. Violation of  provision Up to $250 per violation 

C) Liquor License: 
 

The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on applications for 
new, renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

1. Original application $100 

2. Change in ownership $75 

3. Change in location $75 

4. Change in privilege $75 

5. Renewal of license $35 

6. Temporary license $100 

 
D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 

D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 
1.) Electricity 

Portland General Electric 

3.5% of defined gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 92-951 Exp. 6/30/13 

2.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Frontier 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 2007-008  Exp. 8/21/15 

3.) Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas 

5% of gross revenue collected 

Ordinance No. 2006-016  Exp. 11/16/16 

4.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Comcast 

5% of gross revenue 

Resolution No. 2000-857  Exp. 1/31/15 

5.) Garbage/Solid Waste 

Pride Disposal 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 98-1049  Exp. 11/1/12 

 

 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 4 of 30 57



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 5 of 30 

 

D.2. Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 
 

Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in no case 
will be less than $0.00. 
 

1) License application fee $50  

2) 
Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005)  

Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 

3) 
Utility Operators Privilege Tax(as defined in SMC 12.16.050) Not Listed Above 

  Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 

 
E) Public Record Fees: 

1.)  Copies of Finance documents     

  Budget $40 per copy 

  Audit Reports $25  per copy 

2.)  Copies of planning documents     

  Community development plan $25 per copy 

  Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 

  Master plans  $25  per copy 

3.)  Copies of Maps     

  8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 

  8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 

  11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 

  Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 

  Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 

  Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

4.)  General Service Copies     

  Copying $.15  per single side 

  Copying $.25  per double side 

  24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 

5.)  Audio and video tape copies     

 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 
  Audio $25  each 

  Video $25   each 

  Data disk $25  each 

6.)  Document Research     

  Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     

  Plus the cost of copying     

7.)  Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 

8.)  Lien search fee $10  per lot 

9.)  NSF check charges $25  per occurrence 

10.)  Notary fee $10 per signature 

11.) Fees charged for the services of the City Attorney’s Office of the City. 

 
 Outside consultant fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Legal counsel fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Miscellaneous fees Actual cost plus 10% 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 5 of 30 58



SECTION 2: LIBRARY 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 6 of 30 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library Department activities of the City: 

 

A) General Fees: 
 

1. Damaged/lost  material   
based on extent/$5 

processing fee 

2. Overdue DVD/Blu-ray $1.00   per day  

3. All other materials $0.15   per day  

4. Lost cultural pass    varies  

5. Non-resident card  $100 annually 

6. Overdue cultural pass $10 daily 

7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 

8. Replacement library card $1.00 per card 

9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 

 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 6 of 30 59



SECTION 3: POLICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 7 of 30 

SECTION 3: POLICE 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Police Department activities of the City: 

 (A) Alarm Permit Fees: 
1. Every alarm user shall register their alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.020 

2. Initial alarm permit (Permit Waived if over 65 years of age) $100 

3. Annual renewal (Renewal waived if over 65 years of age) $25 

4 Failure to obtain an initial permit or renew within 90 days of invoice will result in an inactive permit 

(B) Alarm System Code Violation Fees: 
Any alarm system, as defined in SMC 8.08.070, that has a false alarm(s) within any calendar year shall be 
subject to the following fees or actions: 

1. First false alarm per calendar year No Fee per false alarm  

2. Second false alarm  $50 per false alarm  

3. Third false alarm $100 per false alarm 

4. Fourth false alarm  $200 per false alarm 

5. Fifth and subsequent false alarms  $500 per false alarm 

6. False Alarm – No Permit $500 Per false alarm 

(C) Police Reports: 
1. Copies of report $20 per report 

2. Audio tapes $25  per tape 

3. Video tapes $30  per tape 

(D) Vehicle Impound: 
Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes police 
officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or hazardously located. 

1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

 
(E) Parking Violation Fees: 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 

2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  

3. Double parking $20  

4. Blocking driveway $20 

5. Parking in bus zone $20 

6. Parking in loading zone $20 

7. Parking on wrong side of street $20 

8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20 

9. Parking over space line $20 

10. Parking over time limit $20 

(F) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 
1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $2025 per disc 

3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

Formatted Table

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 7 of 30 60



SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 8 of 30 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City: 

A) Court Fees: 
 

1.)    Failure to appear – arraignments $50  

2.)    Failure to appear – trials $150  

3.)    Failure to comply $20  

4.)    
Turned over to collection agency  

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

5.)   
Set-up fee for citation time payment plan 

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

6.)    Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $2535  

7.)    License reinstatement fee $50  

8.)    No Operators License 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $100  

9.)    Driving While Suspended 
 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of valid license $200  

10.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration less than or equal to 30 days) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration Vehicle Compliance 

11.) Expired Registration/Tags (expiration greater than 30 days ) 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of current registration $40  

12.) Failure to Carry Registration 

 
  Obtain and provide proof of registration Vehicle Compliance 

13.) Seatbelt Diversion Program $40  

14.) Traffic School Diversion Programs 
 

 
Class A $285  

 
Class B $155  

 
Class C $80  

 
Class D $45  

15.) Driving Uninsured  
 

 
Administrative Fee if proof of insurance is provided at or before the 

arraignment
$100  

16.) Suspension fee $70  

17.) Fireworks Diversion Program 

 
Firework Diversion Fee  $100  

B) Dog Fees: 
 

 Any person violating the provisions of SMC section 6.04 shall pay the following fees. 
1. Animal noise disturbance  $250 

2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property  $250 

Comment [g1]: Legislative changes giving 
discretion back to Judges – special fee’s that follow 

are no longer needed. 

Comment [g2]: Legislative changes 

Comment [g3]: Legislative changes 

Comment [g4]: Legislative changes 

Comment [g5]: Legislative changes 

Comment [g6]: Legislative changes 

Comment [g7]: Legislative changes 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 8 of 30 61



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 9 of 30 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 

 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 
 Sherwood youth  $15  $20 

 Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 

b. Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SYLC, SYTC, and SYFA 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm)  Peak (3pm – dark) 
 Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 

 Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

 Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 

 Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm) Peak (3pm – dark) 
 Commercial/for profit-Resident $65/hour $85/hour 

 Commercial/for profit-Non-resident $75/hour $100/hour 

 Non-profit-Resident $40/hour $65/hour 

 Non-profit-Non-Resident $45/hour $65/hour 

 Private reservation-Resident $50/hour  $65/hour  

 Private reservation-Non-Resident $65/hour  $80/hour  

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 
High School Stadium/Turf Resident Non Resident  

 Practice time - youth $20/hour $40/hour 

 Practice time - all others $50/hour $75/hour 

 Games – youth $25/game $50/game 

 Games - all others $60/game $80/game 

 Light fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 Open/close facility $30/hour (1 hr. min) $30/hour (1 hr. min) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court – Camp/Tournament $25/hour $35/hour 

 

Tournament fee  

 Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Non-resident $80/Hour 

 Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Light Fee $25/hour 

 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 
 Drop in gym programs $3/per person $6/per person 

 Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 

 Non-profit groups $30/hour $50/hour 

 Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 

 Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr Min) $30/Hour (1 hr Min) 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 9 of 30 62



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 10 of 30 

 

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 
 Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or $200/day 

When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 

 

F) Cannery Square Plaza – Special Events: 
 Open to the public-no sales, no entry fee $150/day 

 Open to the public-sales, donations, entry fees for event $250/day 

 Exclusive event-closed to the public $500/day 

 Sound System $75/day 

 Load in/Load out (if not completed in an 8 hr period) $20/hr 

A day is defined as an 8 hour period. Fees do not include staff or use of the sound system. 

  

G) Field House Fees:   

Team Fees   

 Adult team $450 plus a $50 late fee if not paid by the due date 

 Youth team $450 plus a $25 late fee if not paid by the due date 

Player Cards   

 Adult player cards $10 

 Youth player cards $7 

Rental Fees   

 Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $35/hour  

 Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

Open Play Fees  

 Pre-school play fees $3/per child 

   

 10 play punch card $25 

 Adult open play fees $4/per person 

Birthday Parties 

 Birthday party fees $110 

Party Room Rental 
 Party room rental fees $25/hour 

Concessions and Merchandise 

 Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

   

H) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 
 Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

 For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

   
I) Film Permit   

 Small productions (no street closures, staging, city services, or park closures) $250 per day 

 Large production (requires street closure, city services, staging, etc.) $1,000 per day 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 10 of 30 63



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 11 of 30 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
Water Utility Rates 
 
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 
 

Applicable to all residential, multi-family, and commercial customers receiving water service within the 

Sherwood city limits. 

 

A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 

unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 

example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the duplex. 

 

Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 

purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 

occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 

 

Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-

family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants, 

dedicated irrigation service, and service stations. 

A) Residential and Multi-Family Rates: 
 

Customer 
Class/Meter 

Size 
 

Base Charge 
($/Month)  

 Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
 

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
5/8 - 3/4"  $18.74  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.17  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $41.18  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $59.88  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $120.49  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $205.87  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $427.38  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $791.08  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,142.39  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate  
    $0.51  $0.79 

 
  

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 11 of 30 64



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 12 of 30 

 
B) Commercial Rates: 
 

Customer 
Class/Meter 

Size 
 

Base Charge 
($/Month)   

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
 

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
5/8 - 3/4"  $19.37  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.95  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $42.57  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $61.90  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $124.55  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $212.80  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $441.76  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $817.70  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,180.83  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate 

    $0.57  $0.57 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 

service for private fire protection: 

 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge  
 4" and under $31.89 

 6" $53.28 

 8" $75.66 

 10" $104.08 

 Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 
Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

 Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

 Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

 Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

 Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

 Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

 Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

 Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

 Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

 Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

 Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

 Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 12 of 30 65



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 13 of 30 

 
E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 

Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

 Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

 New account fee  $15 

 First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  

 Activation after office hours and weekends $60 

 Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control during office hours or 

after hours or weekends 
No Charge 

 Second call  $30 

 Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 

 All snowbird/vacant turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

 Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 

 After hours or weekends, an additional $50 

 Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 

 Broken promise turn off $60 

 Door hangers 
$10.00 per door 

hanger 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 
 Removal of meter $80 

 Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

 Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

 Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

 Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  $150 and meter pulled 

 Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

 Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 
 Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts and labor 

 Removal of meter during construction   $150 

 Loss of meter (replacement cost)   $190-$425 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of 

all commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service 

assemblies and fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are 

the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually be a State Certified 

Backflow Tester of their choice. 

  $100 

 Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

 Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and material 

 
H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 

 Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 

 Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 

 Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 13 of 30 66



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 14 of 30 

 
I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 

premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 

assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually 

be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

                               

$100 

 Service on and off for non-compliance of annual testing and reporting, see Section E.  

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 
5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 

1.5” $1,830 $4,280 

2” $3,050 $5,500 

3” $6,100 n/a 

4” $7,930 n/a 

Definitions: 
Drop-In 

Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex has 

installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City specifications. 

Dig-In 

Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend water 

service to the property.  Meter installation over 2” will be installed at a time and materials rate by 

city staff or city authorized contractors. 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 
 Un-authorized water hook up $150  (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 
 First re-inspection $50/each 

 Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 

 All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 

*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 
 Deposit refundable with key return $25 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 
 First notice of violation $100 

 Second notice of violation $300 

 Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 
The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $20.9721.60 

 CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.401.44 

 Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.774.89 

 Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.2728 

 Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

 Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

Comment [JB8]: Rate Increase per CWS 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 14 of 30 67



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 15 of 30 

 
P) Storm Rates: 

The monthly storm utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional storm water utility user rate per ESU    $1.561.69 

 Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU   $12.2158 

 Damage or Repair to Storm Utility 
actual time and 

material 

Q) Street Fees: 
Street Maintenance Fee  

 Single family residential $2/monthly per account 

 Multi Family $2 monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $2/monthly per ESU 

Street Light Fee  

 Single family residential $2.32/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $2.32/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.67/monthly per ESU 

Sidewalk Repairs Fee  

 Single family residential $0.52/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.52/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.16/monthly per ESU 

Safe Sidewalks (New Sidewalks) Fee  

 Single family residential $0.69/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.69/monthly per EDU 

R) Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program: 
 

The homeowner shall be responsible for: 

1.) Shaves (50% of total cost of the contractor’s invoice) 

2.) Full Panel Replacements (50% of the total cost of the work to be performed) 

 

Work may include any or all of the following: contractor’s cost to remove and replace the panel(s); arborists 

initial report of findings; tree removal; street tree permit fee.  

 

Payment arrangements will be made available to homeowners and must be paid within 12 months of the date of 

the first bill. Homeowner’s failure to pay their portion of the costs may result in a lien being placed on their 

property and all costs associated.

Comment [JB9]: Rate increase per CWS 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 15 of 30 68



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 16 of 30 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Systems Development Charges (SDC).  SDC’s are one-time fees 

charged to new development to help pay a portion of the costs associated with building  infrastructure to meet 

needs created by growth. 

A) Water SDC: 

Meter 
Size  

Reimbursement 
Charge  

Improvement  
Charge  

Administrative 
Charge Per 

Meter 

5/8-3/4" 
 

$0  
 

$6,725.68  
 $50.02 

1" 
 

$0  
 

$16,816.77  
 $50.02 

1-1/2" 
 

$0  
 

$33,633.54  
 $50.02 

2" 
 

$0  
 

$53,811.81  
 $50.02 

3" 
 

$0  
 

$117,713.93  
 $50.02 

4" 
 

$0  
 

$201,794.31  
 $50.02 

6" 
 

$0  
 

$420,405.41  
 $50.02 

8" 
 

$0  
 

$605,382.97  
 $50.02 

 

Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from  

5/8” – 3/4” to 1” when the sole purpose is a residential fire sprinkler system. 

 

 Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,200.50 

B) Sewer SDC: 
 

Use Type 
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement 

Charge  
Flow Count 

Single family residence $0.094  
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Two  family residence (duplex) $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home/ single lot $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home parks $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Multi-family residential $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Commercial $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Industrial $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Institutional uses $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

    CWS regional connection charge   (96% CWS, 4% City of Sherwood)

 

$4,8004,900 (Per dwelling 

unit or dwelling unit 

equivalent 

 
C) Storm SDC: 

Storm   Improvement Charge 
A.) Water quantity per ESU   $275 

B) Water quality per ESU   $225 

Regional Storm Drainage: - per area of impervious surface. One equivalent service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 

square feet. 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 16 of 30 69



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 17 of 30 

 City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface $0.046per square foot 

 
D) Parks SDC: 

Parks and Recreation  
Administration 

Fee  
Improvement 

Fee  Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $716.18  $6,952.60  $7,668.78 per dwelling unit 

Multi-family dwelling  $537.96  $5,216.94  $5,754.90 per dwelling unit 

Manufactured home  $967.10  $7,446.29  $8,413.39 per dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.64  $73.06  $79.70 per employee 

 

Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s  (Refundable if challenge is successful) $50 

E) Street SDC: 
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following 

 
 Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
 

Reference Washington County for fees - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

 
F) City of Sherwood Street SDC: 
Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 
Single family – detached 210 $3,011.941,506  dwelling unit 

Apartment 220 $2,346.681,173  dwelling unit 

Residential condominium/townhouse 230 $1,910.55955  dwelling unit 

Manufactured house  (In park) 240 $1,672.56836  dwelling unit 

Assisted living 254 $982.95491  bed 

Continuing care retirement 255 $793.67397  unit 

Recreation home 260 $1,030.55515  dwelling unit 

Recreational Transportation SDC    
City park 411 $779.28390  acre 

County park 412 $1,323.88662  acre 

Campground/RV park 416 $3,121.531,561  camp site 

Marina 420 $2,174.001,087  berth 

Golf course 430 $27,210.4513,605  hole 

Golf driving range 430 $6,678.083,339  tee 

Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 $19,484.119,742  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Bowling alley 437 $25,376.2712,688  lane 

Movie theater w/o matinee 443 $129.9865  screen 

Movie Theater with Matinee 444 $118,624.8059,312  screen 

Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 $76,644.6438,322  screen 

Casino/video poker/lottery 473 $75,304.1537,652  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Amusement/theme park 480 $40,472.5220,236  acre 

Soccer complex 488 $38,105.9219,053  field 

Racquet/tennis club 492 $20,674.0510,337  court 

Formatted Table

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 17 of 30 70

http://www.co.washington.or.us/


SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 18 of 30 

Health fitness club 492 $17,592.378,796  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Recreation/community center 495 $17,419.698,710  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

    

    

Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 
Military base 501 $903.25452  employee 

Elementary school (Public) 520 $190.3995  student 

Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 $228.03114  student 

High School (Public) 530 $595.53298  student 

Private School (K – 12) 536 $965.24483  Student 

Junior/Community College 540 $356.43178  employee 

University/College 550 $774.85387  student 

Church 560 $2,831.521,416  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00  student 

Library 590 $8,300.844,150  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Hospital 610 $6,959.243,480  bed 

Nursing home 620 $1,189.95595  bed 

Clinic 630 $17,652.148,826  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Commercial/Services SDC    
Hotel/Motel 310 $5,846.782,923  Room 

Building materials/lumber 812 $9,498.534,749  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Free standing discount Superstore w/groceries 813 $12,781.676,391  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Specialty retail center 814 $11,665.895,833  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Free standing discount center w/o groceries 815 $18,196.759,098  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Hardware/paint stores 816 $15,110.647,555  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Nursery/garden center 817 $9,303.714,652  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Shopping center 820 $7,813.793,907  
thousand square ft gross 

leasable area 

Factory outlet 823 $5,972.972,986  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

New car sales 841 $7,708.633,854  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Automobile parts sales 843 $14,603.677,302  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Tire superstore 849 $4,566.072,283  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Supermarket 850 $25,529.0312,765  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Convenience market (24hr) 851 $63,871.8231,936  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 $38,675.9819,338  vehicle fueling position 

Wholesale market 860 $151.6576  thousand square ft gross floor 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 18 of 30 71



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 19 of 30 

area 

Discount club 861 $14,314.767,157  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Home improvement superstore 862 $4,973.422,487  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Electronics superstore 863 $10,582.215,291  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Office supply superstore 867 $8,351.754,176  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru window 880 $18,028.509,014  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru window 881 $19,310.329,655  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Furniture store 860 $882.22441  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Video rental store 896 $70,568.7235,284  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Bank/savings – walk in 911 $56,884.9128,442  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Bank/savings – drive in 912 $57,255.7328,628  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 $23,074.9711,537  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

    
    
Commercial/Services SDC (continued) Code Fee Type 
High turnover-sit down restaurant 

(chain/standalone) 
932 $14,590.397,295  

thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 $96,929.0548,465  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Fast food restaurant (with drive-thru) 934 $65,225.5932,613  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Drinking place/bar 936 $10,040.925,020  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 $8,722.574,361  service stall 

Automobile care center 942 $8,750.254,375  
thousand square ft gross 

leasable area 

Gasoline/service station (no market/car wash) 944 $17,529.278,765  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with convenience 

market) 
945 $11,155.605,578  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with market and car 

wash) 
946 $10,088.525,044  vehicle fueling position 

Office SDC    

General office building 710 $4,499.652,250  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Corporate headquarters building 714 $3,266.541,633  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Single tenant office building 715 $5,460.462,730  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Medical/dental office building 720 $14,227.327,114  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Government office building 730 $26,282.8413,141  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

State Motor Vehicles Department 731 $97,666.2748,833  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 19 of 30 72



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 20 of 30 

US Post Office 732 $34,934.5717,467  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Office park 750 $4,750.922,375  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Research and development center 760 $3,556.551,778  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Business park 770 $4,943.532,472  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Port/Industrial    

Truck terminals 30 $3,638.461,819  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $1,102.50551  parking space 

Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $626.52313  parking space 

General light industrial 110 $2,576.921,288  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

General heavy industrial 120 $554.57277  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Industrial park 130 $2,570.281,285  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Manufacturing 140 $1,404.69702  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Warehouse 150 $1,852.99926  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Mini-warehouse 151 $897.72449  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

Utilities 170 $2,020.141,010  
thousand square ft gross floor 

area 

  

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 20 of 30 73



SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 21 of 30 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Engineering Division activities of the City. 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 

 Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs ($500 due at submittal with the balance, if any, payable at 

the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) Includes review of the following: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

 

 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs (payable at the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) 

Includes inspection of the following for which permits were obtained: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee Time and Materials 

 Inspection Fee Time and Materials 

 Television Line Service Time and Materials 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1)  Addressing Fee  

  Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 

  0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 

  11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $15 per suite 

  21 and up Suite Numbers  $10 per suite 

2)  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 

3)  Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, 

hardware, and labor to install) 
$250/per sign 

4)  Street Trees $200/per tree 

5)  

Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of 

projects prior to the submittal of a land use 

application, requiring more than 2 hours of staff 

time or on-call consultant services) 

Deposit of $500 

(Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including 

staff time, if an application is submitted these fees 

will be credited against the plan review fees) 

6)  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $1020 linear foot 

7)  Right of Way Permit  

 
 Performance bond on projects greater 

than or equal to $5,000 
125% of estimated costs 

 
 Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 
exceeds the aggregate project total) 

  Administration fee $150 per permit 

  Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, whichever is greater 

8)  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 

7) Design and construction standards $25 per CD 

8) As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 

9) As-Built Requests electronic media $25 per CD 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
 Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

         (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time)

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 21 of 30 74



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 22 of 30 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Planning Department activities of the City. 

A) Annexations: 
 Deposit $7,500 

  (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) 
 Applicant will sign an agreement with the City that the balance of all costs will be paid to the City 

within 30 days of the date in the final annexation invoice. 

B) Appeals: 
 Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b)  $250 

 Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional use permit without concurrent type III or IV application $4,145 

Conditional use permit with concurrent type III or IV application $2,072 

D) Land Divisions/Adjustments: 
 Lot line adjustment $743  

 Minor land partition $2,488   

 Expedited minor partition $550   

 (Added to the cost of the application) 
 Final plat processing (minor land partition) $550   

 Subdivision $6,222  plus$20 per lot 

 Expedited subdivision $2,205   

  (Added to the cost of the application) 
 Final plat processing (Subdivision) $1,102   

E) Miscellaneous Actions: 
 Consultant as needed actual costs 

F) Other Fees: 
 Community Development Code Plan Check 

(payable at time of building 
permit submittal 

1) Residential permits $105 

2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  

3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits $661  

                           (Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 
 Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 

 Detailed site analysis letter $150 

 Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  

 Non-conforming use modification $1,000 

 Modification to application in review $500 

(If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to adequately review the 
application) 

 Other land use action  

1) Administrative $276  

2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  

 Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1
st
 

 Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 22 of 30 75



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 23 of 30 

  

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 
 Pre-application conference $400 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $284 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $466 

 Home Occupation Review of initial application (Class A)  $50 

 Home Occupation Review of renewal application (Class A) $25 

G) Trees: 
 Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1

st
 

 Zone verification letter $50 

 Street Tree Removal Permit $25 - 1
st
 tree, $10 each additional tree 

 Removal of more than 6 trees or 10% on private property $107 

H) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary 

             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) $2,205 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final 
             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) See Site Plan Review Fee 

I) Refunds: 
 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 

 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 

 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 

J) Signage: 
 Permanent signs on private property $150 

      (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face)  (Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 
 Banner signs – Consecutive one month period $150 

 Temporary portable sign violation fines  

1) First offense No fine; collected and marked 

2) Second offense $50 per sign 

3) Third offense $100 per sign 

K) Site Plan Review: 
 Type III and IV  

(Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the first 
15,000 sq. ft.)(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 

$6,222  

 Final site plan review (Type III and IV)  (Due at the time of Building 
Permit Submittal) $661  

 Fast track site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

 Minor modification to approved Site Plan $276 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type II $1,010 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type III or IV $2,425 

 Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 

 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  
 fee applicable based on size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.  Fee is applicable for all uses  
 excluding Single-Family detached dwellings.) 
 
L) Temporary Uses: 

 Administrative $335 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 23 of 30 76



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 24 of 30 

 
M) Time Extension to Approval: 

 No hearing required $150 

N)  Variance: 
 Class A Variance $4,145 

 Adjustment  $50 

 Class B Variance $1,102 

 (Per lot and per standard to be varied) 

O) Zone Amendments: 
 Text amendment $5,330 

 Map amendment $5,330 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 24 of 30 77



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 25 of 30 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Building Department activities of the City. 

A. Building Permits 
Values are determined by the applicants total estimated value of the work which includes labor and materials, 
and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, without state-specific modifiers, as published by 
the International Code Council and in compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. Final building 
permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 
 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling Based on Total Valuation 

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000  

 
$60 for the first $500 (Plus $1.00 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up to 
and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 

 
$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to 
and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000  

 
$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000  
415.25 for the first $25,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up 
to and including $100,000) 

$100,001 and up 
$615.25 for the first $100,000 (Plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof over $100,000$100,001 and up) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 

School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 
 

2. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Based on Total Valuation 

 $1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000 
$60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof up 
to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 
$82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000 
$266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000 
$435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $100,00) 

$100,001 and up 
$685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof over $100,00) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 
School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

School CET Commercial Non- Residential $.52 per square foot maximum of $25,925 or current School 

District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 25 of 30 78



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 26 of 30 

 

3. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 

Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, 
storm and water lines, 12% state surcharge and the $30 Cabana fee (unless state rates are modified) In 
Compliance with OAR.918.050.0130  
 

 Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 

 Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 

 Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(F) 

 School CET $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

B. Demolition Permits 
 Residential  $192.12 

 Commercial $282.12 

C. Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation – Structural Only 
*Electrical permits are also required through Washington County 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system installation 

that comply with the prescriptive path described in the Oregon Solar 

Installation Specialty Code. 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical structural fee 

calculations and processes will apply. 
Typical Structural Fees will apply 

D. Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
 Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 

 Fire and life safety plan review fee (when required) 40% of building permit fee 

E. Phased Permit - Plan Review (When approved by the Building Official) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 
building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 
 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

F. Deferred Submittals (When approved by the Building Official) 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 
65% of the permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using  the value of the particular 
deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the project plan 
review fee based on the total project value. 
 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

 
G. Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 

2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 

3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 

7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 26 of 30 79



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 27 of 30 

H. Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County 
Contact Washington County Building Division (503) 846-3470 

I. Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 
construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 
equipment with a set minimum fee. 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  ** (or current state rate) 

1. Air Handling 

 Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 

 Air Handling Unit > 10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 

 Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

 

2. Boilers/Compressors 

 ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 

 >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 

 >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 

 >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 

 >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

 
3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 

 
4. Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 

 
5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner 

 Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 includes ductwork and vents 

 Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  (Suspended, wall or floor 
mounted) $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 

 
6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

 ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  

 > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 

 > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

 > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 

 >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 

 Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 

 Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 

 Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 

 Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 

 Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 

 Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

 Other   (see most current Oregon One and Two Family Dwelling Specialty Code) 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 27 of 30 80



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 28 of 30 

J. Mechanical Permits - Commercial 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit as applied to the 
following fee matrix 
 

 Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee ** (or Current state Rate) 
 Mechanical Permit Fee Based on total valuation 

$0 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$60 for the first $500 (plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up 
to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$172.50 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $100,000 
$322.50 for the first $10,000 (Plus$8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,042.50 for the first $100,000 (plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof over $100,000 

K. Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 
appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale.  
 

 One Bathroom $255 

 Two Bathrooms $315 

 Three Bathrooms $375 

 Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 

 Additional Fixture or Item $15 each 

 Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

L. Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 
Alterations and Repairs 

Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection $30 each 

  (Charged only when connections are not concurrent with new set-up and installation) 
1. Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 
 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 28 of 30 81



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 29 of 30 

 
M. Plumbing Permits – Commercial  
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee (when required) 

 State surcharge 12% of plumbing permit fee **(Or current State rate) 

 Minimum fee $60 

 New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

N. Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

 State surcharge 12% of Plumbing Permit Fee ** (or Current state Rate) 
 Plumbing Permit Fee Based on valuation 

 $0 to $500 $100 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$100 for the first $500 (plus $2 for each additional $100 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$190 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $50,000  
$340 for the first $10,000 (plus $9.50 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 
$720 for the first $50,000 (Plus $11 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,270 for the first 100,000 (plus $7 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000) 

 
O. Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 
inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 
 
Erosion Control Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  
Permit is based upon the total acreage of the site. 
 
For projects less than 5 acres: 

 Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control inspection fee  

 Erosion Control Inspection Fee Based on Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 

1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 
For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres: 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 29 of 30 82



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 30 of 30 

 
Grading Fees 
 

 Grading permit fee  Based on Cubic Yards 

   0 to 100  $60 minimum fee  

   101 to 1,000  $60 first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or fraction thereof) 
   1,001 to 10,000  $159 first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
   10,001 to 100,000  $294 first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
   100,001  +  $969 first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

 Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 
P. Other Inspections and Fees (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and 

Erosion) 
 Re-inspection fee (Minimum charge = 1 hour) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate 

 Inspections outside normal business hours 

(when approved by the Building Official) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = 2 hours)  

 Inspection for which no fee is specifically 

indicated 

$70 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = ½ hour)  

 Investigative fee for working without a permit $70 per hour to enforce the code, $70 minimum. 

 Additional plan review required 
$90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or 

revisions) (Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

 Re-stamp of lost, stolen or damaged plans $55 per plan set 

 Application/Permit extensions   $50 

(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval granted by 
the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been made in the original 
plans and specifications for such work) 

 Permit reinstatement fee 50% of amount required for a new permit or a percentage as determined by 

the Building Official based on the remaining inspections required. 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and approval 
granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications for 
such work.) 

Q. Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 
 Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit is still valid 

 Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan review was started  

R. Certificate of Occupancy  (All as determined by the Building Official) 
 Temporary residential $50 per request 

 Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

S. Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee 
 Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

 Dissimilar Use, or Change in Occupancy 

(Extensive Code Review 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review time, review 

time greater than 1 hour will be charged at the hourly rate of $90 

 

Resolution 2014-044, attachment to Staff Report 
June 17, 2014, Page 30 of 30 83



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-044 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 with Exhibit A (29 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-044 
 

ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF FEES AS AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY ZONING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE, ESTABLISHING FEES FOR MISCELLANEOUS CITY 

SERVICES AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Municipal Code authorizes certain administrative fees and charges to be 
established by Resolution of the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City performs and offers certain services, the cost of which are most reasonably 
borne by the recipient, as opposed to paying for said services from general City funds; and  
 
WHEREAS the City Manager has developed a set of administrative fees and charges for the 
Council and City to use when assessing general fees for permits, applications, and services, and 
recovering general costs of performing actions requiring oversight and administration by City staff; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is most appropriate and fiscally responsible that fees and 
charges for all services be set by the City Council, and at a level whereby reasonable costs are 
recovered; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has met the requirement for providing an opportunity for public comment prior 
to the adoption of this fee resolution as required by ORS 294.160. 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Adoption: The City of Sherwood Rates and Fees Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, is hereby approved and adopted, and supersedes all prior development fee and charges 
schedules and miscellaneous fee schedules. 
 
Section 2.  Effective Date:  This Resolution shall become effective July 1, 2014. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
Attest:         
 
        
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder   
 

84



Resolution 2014-044, Exhibit A 

June 17, 2014, (30 pgs)  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 The City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Master Fees and Charges 

 
 
 

Exhibit A 

Resolution: 2014-044 

  
 Adopted: 6/17/14 

 Effective: 7/1/14 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Also available online at  

www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

85

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 2 of 29 

 

SECTION 1: GENERAL ........................................................................................................................... 4 

A) STAFF RATES: ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
B) BUSINESS LICENSE: .............................................................................................................................. 4 
C) LIQUOR LICENSE: ................................................................................................................................. 4 
D) FRANCHISE FEES, PRIVILEGE TAXES, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED FEES ............................................................... 4 
E) PUBLIC RECORD FEES: .......................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY ............................................................................................................................ 6 

A) GENERAL FEES: ................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 3: POLICE ............................................................................................................................... 7 

(A) POLICE REPORTS: ................................................................................................................................ 7 
(B) VEHICLE IMPOUND: ............................................................................................................................. 7 
(C) PARKING VIOLATION FEES: .................................................................................................................... 7 
(D) MISCELLANEOUS POLICE FEES: ............................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT ............................................................................................................ 8 

A) COURT FEES: ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
B) DOG FEES: ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION ....................................................................................................... 9 

A) PLAYER FEES:...................................................................................................................................... 9 
B) ATHLETIC FIELD USER CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 9 
C) ROBIN HOOD THEATER SIGN: .............................................................................................................. 10 
D) PICNIC SHELTER: ............................................................................................................................... 10 
E) AMPHITHEATER RENTAL: .................................................................................................................... 10 
F) CANNERY SQUARE PLAZA – SPECIAL EVENTS:.......................................................................................... 10 
G) FIELD HOUSE FEES: ............................................................................................................................ 10 
H) SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT ...................................................................................................................... 10 
I) FILM PERMIT .................................................................................................................................... 10 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE ....................................................................................... 11 

A) RESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY RATES: ............................................................................................... 11 
B) COMMERCIAL RATES: ......................................................................................................................... 12 
C) FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE: ................................................................................................................. 12 
D) HYDRANT RENTALS: ........................................................................................................................... 12 
E) ACCOUNT ACTIVATION AND DE-ACTIVATION: ......................................................................................... 13 
F) ADDITIONAL CHARGES, IF NECESSARY, TO ENFORCE: ............................................................................... 13 
G) OTHER ADDITIONAL CHARGES: ............................................................................................................ 13 
H) TESTING WATER METERS AT CUSTOMER/OWNER’S REQUEST: ..................................................................... 13 
I) BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE TEST FEE: ............................................................................................ 14 
J) WATER SERVICE/METER INSTALLATION SERVICES: ................................................................................... 14 
K) UN-AUTHORIZED WATER HOOK UP: ..................................................................................................... 14 
L) RE-INSPECTION FEES (SANITARY, STREET, STORM AND WATER): ................................................................ 14 
M) USAGE OF METER KEY ........................................................................................................................ 14 
N) WATER USE RESTRICTION – PENALTIES.................................................................................................. 14 
O) SANITARY RATES: .............................................................................................................................. 14 
P) STORM RATES: ................................................................................................................................. 15 
Q) STREET FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 15 
R) SIDEWALK REPAIR ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: ............................................................................................. 15 

 

 

86



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 3 of 29 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES................................................................................... 16 

A) WATER SDC: ................................................................................................................................... 16 
B) SEWER SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 16 
C) STORM SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 16 
D) PARKS SDC: ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
E) STREET SDC: .................................................................................................................................... 17 
F) CITY OF SHERWOOD STREET SDC: ........................................................................................................ 17 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ............................................................................. 20 

A) PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ..................................................... 20 
B) NO PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT; SUBDIVISION PLAN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS: ................................................ 20 
C) MISCELLANEOUS FEES: ....................................................................................................................... 20 
D) VACATIONS (PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS): ............................................................................ 20 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE .................................................................................. 21 

A) ANNEXATIONS: ................................................................................................................................. 21 
B) APPEALS: ......................................................................................................................................... 21 
C) CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: ................................................................................................................. 21 
D) LAND DIVISIONS/ADJUSTMENTS: .......................................................................................................... 21 
E) MISCELLANEOUS ACTIONS: ................................................................................................................. 21 
F) OTHER FEES: .................................................................................................................................... 21 
G) TREES: ............................................................................................................................................ 22 
H) PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD): ................................................................................................. 22 
I) REFUNDS: ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
J) SIGNAGE: ......................................................................................................................................... 22 
K) SITE PLAN REVIEW:............................................................................................................................ 22 
L) TEMPORARY USES: ............................................................................................................................ 22 
M) TIME EXTENSION TO APPROVAL: .......................................................................................................... 23 
N)  VARIANCE: ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
O) ZONE AMENDMENTS: ........................................................................................................................ 23 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE ............................................................................... 24 

A. BUILDING PERMITS ............................................................................................................................ 24 
B. DEMOLITION PERMITS ........................................................................................................................ 25 
C. PRESCRIPTIVE SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM INSTALLATION – STRUCTURAL ONLY ........................................ 25 
D. PLAN REVIEW FEES – BUILDING PERMIT ................................................................................................ 25 
E. PHASED PERMIT - PLAN REVIEW (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ........................................... 25 
F. DEFERRED SUBMITTALS (WHEN APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ....................................................... 25 
G. RESIDENTIAL FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM FEES ............................................................................................. 25 
H. ELECTRICAL PERMITS – ISSUED AND INSPECTED BY WASHINGTON COUNTY ................................................... 26 
I. MECHANICAL PERMITS - RESIDENTIAL ................................................................................................... 26 
J. MECHANICAL PERMITS - COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................. 27 
K. PLUMBING PERMITS – NEW ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS ................................................................ 27 
L. PLUMBING PERMITS – ONE AND TWO FAMILY AND MANUFACTURED DWELLING FOR ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS 

AND REPAIRS ............................................................................................................................................... 27 
M. PLUMBING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL .................................................................................................... 28 
N. MEDICAL GAS PERMITS – COMMERCIAL ................................................................................................ 28 
O. GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL FEES (PRIVATE PROPERTY ONLY) ........................................................... 28 
P. OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING AND EROSION) ........... 29 
Q. REFUNDS (BUILDING PERMIT, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, GRADING/EROSION) ............................................. 29 
R. CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY  (ALL AS DETERMINED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL) ............................................ 29 
S. CHANGE OF USE/OCCUPANCY CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FEE .................................................................... 29 

 

87



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 4 of 29 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 

A) Staff Rates: 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the services of City Staff. 

 

1. For individuals listed on the salary schedule. 

 200% of the hourly rate for the position at step 1.   

B) Business License: 
 

Persons conducting business with the City of Sherwood and who are subject to being licensed under the 
provisions of sections 5.04 shall pay a business license fee. 

1. Business - Inside the City of Sherwood 
$75 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

2. Business - Outside the City of Sherwood 
$107.50 plus $6 per employee working more than 20 

hours per week. 

3. Temporary license  Fee is the same as a regular business license. 

4. Late fee for renewals $5 per month or portion of a month late. 

5. Violation of  provision Up to $250 per violation 

C) Liquor License: 
 

The Oregon Liquor Control Commission (OLCC) solicits the city’s recommendation on applications for 
new, renewed, or changed liquor licenses. (ORS 471.164- 471.168) 

1. Original application $100 

2. Change in ownership $75 

3. Change in location $75 

4. Change in privilege $75 

5. Renewal of license $35 

6. Temporary license $100 

 
D) Franchise Fees, Privilege Taxes, and Other Associated Fees 
 

D.1. Franchise Fees (as set by franchise agreements): 
1.) Electricity 

Portland General Electric 

3.5% of defined gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 92-951 Exp. 6/30/14 

2.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Frontier 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 2007-008  Exp. 8/21/15 

3.) Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas 

5% of gross revenue collected 

Ordinance No. 2006-016  Exp. 11/16/16 

4.) Cable and Broadband Services 

Comcast 

5% of gross revenue 

Resolution No. 2000-857  Exp. 1/31/15 

5.) Garbage/Solid Waste 

Pride Disposal 

5% of gross revenue 

Ordinance No. 98-1049  Exp. 11/1/23 

 

 

88



SECTION 1: GENERAL          

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 5 of 29 

 

D.2. Privilege Taxes and Associated Fees: 
 

Privilege tax payments shall be reduced by any franchise fee payments received by the City,  but in no case 
will be less than $0.00. 
 

1) License application fee $50  

2) 
Telecommunications Utilities (as defined in ORS 759.005)  

Privilege tax: 7% of gross revenues as defined in ORS 221.515. 

3) 
Utility Operators Privilege Tax(as defined in SMC 12.16.050) Not Listed Above 

  Privilege tax: 5% of gross revenues. 

 
E) Public Record Fees: 

1.)  Copies of Finance documents     

  Budget $40 per copy 

  Audit Reports $25  per copy 

2.)  Copies of planning documents     

  Community development plan $25 per copy 

  Local wetland inventory $25  per copy 

  Master plans  $25  per copy 

3.)  Copies of Maps     

  8 ½ x 11 black and white $3 per copy 

  8 ½ x 11 color $5 per copy 

  11 x 17 black and white $6 per copy 

  Small size color 11 x17 $10 per copy 

  Quarter section aerial $125  per copy 

  Full size color up to 36 x 48 $25 per copy 

4.)  General Service Copies     

  Copying $.15  per single side 

  Copying $.25  per double side 

  24 x 36 large format plotter $4  per sheet 

5.)  Audio and video tape copies     

 (City Council meeting tapes can be viewed onsite at no charge – contact City Recorder’s office) 
  Audio $25  each 

  Video $25   each 

  Data disk $25  each 

6.)  Document Research     

  Billed in 15 minute increments (see Section 1A)     

  Plus the cost of copying     

7.)  Faxing $2  plus $1 per page 

8.)  Lien search fee $10  per lot 

9.)  NSF check charges $25  per occurrence 

10.)  Notary fee $10 per signature 

11.) Fees charged for the services of the City Attorney’s Office of the City. 

 
 Outside consultant fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Legal counsel fees Actual cost plus 10% 

 
 Miscellaneous fees Actual cost plus 10% 

89



SECTION 2: LIBRARY 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 6 of 29 

SECTION 2: LIBRARY 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Library Department activities of the City: 

A) General Fees: 
 

1. Damaged/lost  material   
based on extent/$5 

processing fee 

2. Overdue DVD/Blu-ray $1.00   per day  

3. All other materials $0.15   per day  

4. Lost cultural pass    varies  

5. Non-resident card  $100 annually 

6. Overdue cultural pass $10 daily 

7. Internet printing $0.10 per page 

8. Replacement library card $1.00 per card 

9. General copies on the public copier $0.10 per page 

 

90



SECTION 3: POLICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 7 of 29 

SECTION 3: POLICE 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Police Department activities of the City: 

 (A) Police Reports: 
1. Copies of report $20 per report 

2. Audio tapes $25  per tape 

(B) Vehicle Impound: 
Whereas, state law and Sherwood municipal codes, as defined in SMC 8.04.060, that authorizes police 
officers to impound an abandoned vehicle or a vehicle that is disabled, discarded, or hazardously located. 

1. Police impounded vehicle fees $125 per vehicle 

 
(C) Parking Violation Fees: 

1. No parking (anytime) zone $20 

2. Obstructing streets or sidewalks $20  

3. Double parking $20  

4. Blocking driveway $20 

5. Parking in bus zone $20 

6. Parking in loading zone $20 

7. Parking on wrong side of street $20 

8. Parking along yellow curb or in crosswalk $20 

9. Parking over space line $20 

10. Parking over time limit $20 

(D) Miscellaneous Police Fees: 
1. Copies of photographs (12 exposure) $15 plus processing costs 

2. Copies of digital photographs/photo files $25 per disc 

3. Fingerprinting $25 per card 

91



SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 8 of 29 

SECTION 4: MUNICIPAL COURT 
 

The following fees shall be charged for the Municipal Court activities of the City: 

A) Court Fees: 
 

1.)    Failure to appear – arraignments $50  

2.)    Failure to appear – trials $150  

3.)    Failure to comply $20  

4.)    
Turned over to collection agency  

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

5.)   
Set-up fee for citation time payment plan 

25% of the amount owed 
(Not to exceed $250) 

6.)    Vehicle compliance program – administrative fee $35  

7.)    License reinstatement fee $50  

8.) Seatbelt Diversion Program $40  

9.) Traffic School Diversion Programs 
 

 
Class A $285  

 
Class B $155  

 
Class C $80  

 
Class D $45  

10.) Suspension fee $70  

11.) Fireworks Diversion Program 

 
Firework Diversion Fee  $100  

B) Dog Fees: 
 

 Any person violating the provisions of SMC section 6.04 shall pay the following fees. 
1. Animal noise disturbance  $250 

2. Animal waste on public or another’s private property  $250 

92



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 9 of 29 

SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 
 
The following fees shall be charged for the Parks & Recreation activities of the City: 

 

A) Player Fees: Resident Non-Resident 
 Sherwood youth  $15  $20 

 Adult leagues  $15  $20 

a) All fees are per player and per season 

b. Youth fees include SFPA, SJBO, SBO, SYSC, SVB, SYLC, SYTC, and SYFA 

 

B) Athletic Field User Charges:   

Natural Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm)  Peak (3pm – dark) 
 Group reservations-Non profit $25/hour $45/hour 

 Group reservations-For profit $35/hour $55/hour 

 Private reservations-resident $15/hour $20/hour 

 Private reservations-non-resident $20/hour $25/hour 

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

Artificial Turf Non-Peak (8am -3pm) Peak (3pm – dark) 
 Commercial/for profit-Resident $65/hour $85/hour 

 Commercial/for profit-Non-resident $75/hour $100/hour 

 Non-profit-Resident $40/hour $65/hour 

 Non-profit-Non-Resident $45/hour $65/hour 

 Private reservation-Resident $50/hour  $65/hour  

 Private reservation-Non-Resident $65/hour  $80/hour  

 Light Fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 
High School Stadium/Turf Resident Non Resident  

 Practice time - youth $20/hour $40/hour 

 Practice time - all others $50/hour $75/hour 

 Games – youth $25/game $50/game 

 Games - all others $60/game $80/game 

 Light fee $25/hour $25/hour 

 Open/close facility $30/hour (1 hr. min) $30/hour (1 hr. min) 

Snyder Park Tennis Court – Camp/Tournament $25/hour $35/hour 

 

Tournament fee  

 Resident Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Non-resident $80/Hour 

 Sherwood youth league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Sherwood adult league Covered under per player/per season league fee 

 Light Fee $25/hour 

 

Gym Fees Resident Non Resident 
 Drop in gym programs $3/per person $6/per person 

 Commercial – for profit $60/hour $80/hour 

 Non-profit groups $30/hour $50/hour 

 Private reservations $40/hour $60/hour 

 Opening/Closing of Facility $30/Hour (1 hr Min) $30/Hour (1 hr Min) 

93



SECTION 5: PARKS & RECREATION 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 10 of 29 

 

C) Robin Hood Theater Sign: $15/per day ($60 Minimum) 

D) Picnic Shelter: Resident Non Resident 
 Rentals $45/4 hour or $90 day $65/4hour or $135/day 

E) Amphitheater Rental: $75/4hour or $150/day $100/4hour or $200/day 

When reserving the Amphitheater you must also reserve the picnic shelter 

 

F) Cannery Square Plaza – Special Events: 
 Open to the public-no sales, no entry fee $150/day 

 Open to the public-sales, donations, entry fees for event $250/day 

 Exclusive event-closed to the public $500/day 

 Sound System $75/day 

 Load in/Load out (if not completed in an 8 hr period) $20/hr 

A day is defined as an 8 hour period. Fees do not include staff or use of the sound system. 

  

G) Field House Fees:   

Team Fees   

 Adult team $450 plus a $50 late fee if not paid by the due date 

 Youth team $450 plus a $25 late fee if not paid by the due date 

Player Cards   

 Adult player cards $10 

 Youth player cards $7 

Rental Fees   

 Day time fees (7 a.m. – 3 p.m.) $35/hour  

 Evening fees (3 p.m. – midnight) $75/hour  

Open Play Fees  

 Pre-school play fees $3/per child 

   

 10 play punch card $25 

 Adult open play fees $4/per person 

Birthday Parties 

 Birthday party fees $110 

Party Room Rental 
 Party room rental fees $25/hour 

Concessions and Merchandise 

 Concessions and Merchandise Varies 

   

H) Special Event Permit Resident  Non Resident 
 Non-Profit Fee $75 $125 

 For-Profit Fee $150 $200 

   
I) Film Permit   

 Small productions (no street closures, staging, city services, or park closures) $250 per day 

 Large production (requires street closure, city services, staging, etc.) $1,000 per day 

94



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 11 of 29 

SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
Water Utility Rates 
 
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY, AND COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICE 
 

Applicable to all residential, multi-family, and commercial customers receiving water service within the 

Sherwood city limits. 

 

A residential customer is defined as a customer whose meter service serves only one-single family dwelling 

unit.  All dwelling units served by individual meters shall be charged the residential rate for service.  For 

example, the residential rate shall apply where separate water meters provide service to each side of the duplex. 

 

Multi-family customers are defined as customers whose meter services more than one dwelling unit.  For the 

purposes of this rate resolution, dwelling unit shall be defined as any place of human habitation designed for 

occupancy based upon separate leases, rental agreements, or other written instruments. 

 

Commercial customers are defined as customers whose meter is for any use other than residential and Multi-

family.  Some examples of commercial uses include, but are not limited to: schools, hospitals, restaurants, 

dedicated irrigation service, and service stations. 

A) Residential and Multi-Family Rates: 
 

Customer 
Class/Meter 

Size 
 

Base Charge 
($/Month)  

 Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
 

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
5/8 - 3/4"  $18.74  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.17  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $41.18  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $59.88  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $120.49  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $205.87  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $427.38  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $791.08  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,142.39  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate  

    $0.51  $0.79 

 
  

95



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 12 of 29 

 
B) Commercial Rates: 
 

Customer 
Class/Meter 

Size 
 

Base Charge 
($/Month)   

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
 

Consumption 
Charge  

($/100 gallons) 
5/8 - 3/4"  $19.37  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1"  $23.95  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

1-1/2"  $42.57  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

2"  $61.90  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

3"  $124.55  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

4"  $212.80  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

6"  $441.76  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

8"  $817.70  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

10"  $1,180.83  First 21,000  Over 21,000 

   Consumption Rate 

    $0.57  $0.57 

C) Fire Protection Service: 
The following fees shall be charged for all applicable connections for automatic sprinklers, and fire hydrants 

service for private fire protection: 

 

Customer Class/Meter Size Base Charge  
 4" and under $31.89 

 6" $53.28 

 8" $75.66 

 10" $104.08 

 Water service connection in ROW Actual time and materials 

D) Hydrant Rentals: 
Fire hydrant permits - mandatory for fire hydrant use  

 Three month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $55 

 Six month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $80 

 Twelve month permit (plus water usage at current rate) $130 

 Penalty for unauthorized hydrant use $500 

 Penalty for using non-approved (un-inspected tank) $950 

 Failure to report water usage (per day for period not reported) $15 

 Hydrant meter - refundable deposit $745 

 Hydrant meter – daily rental (plus water usage at current rate) $20 

 Hydrant meter read – monthly reads $50 

 Hydrant meter setup – Initial setup of meter on hydrant $50 

 Flow testing of fire hydrants $160 

96



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 13 of 29 

 
E) Account Activation and De-Activation: 

Water Service on or off water at customer’s request  

 Deposit for application of service (Prior Collection Customers) $100 

 New account fee  $15 

 First call – during office hours, Monday-Friday, except snowbird turnoffs No Charge  

 Activation after office hours and weekends $60 

 Leaks or emergencies beyond customer control during office hours or 

after hours or weekends 
No Charge 

 Second call  $30 

 Non-leak or emergency turn offs after office hours or weekends $50 

 All snowbird/vacant turn offs $25 

Water Service off and on for non-payment/Non-Compliance  

 Turn on water during office hours, Monday through Friday  $60 

 After hours or weekends, an additional $50 

 Meter tampering and/or using water without authority $60 

 Broken promise turn off $60 

 Door hangers 
$10.00 per door 

hanger 

F) Additional Charges, If Necessary, To Enforce: 
 Removal of meter $80 

 Reinstallation of meter  No Charge  

 Installation or removal of locking device-first occurrence $50 

 Installation or removal of locking device-second occurrence $75 

 Installation or removal of locking device-third occurrence  $150 and meter pulled 

 Repair of breakage/damage to locking mechanism (curb stops, etc) parts and labor 

 Service off water at main or reinstating service parts and labor 

G) Other Additional Charges: 
 Decreasing or increasing size of meter parts and labor 

 Removal of meter during construction   $150 

 Loss of meter (replacement cost)   $190-$425 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of 

all commercial premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service 

assemblies and fire line services assemblies.  All subsequent tests are 

the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually be a State Certified 

Backflow Tester of their choice. 

  $100 

 Backflow assembly test/repair (Contract services) parts and labor 

 Damage or Repair to Water Utility actual time and material 

 
H) Testing water meters at customer/owner’s request: 

 Testing on premises (5/8”x 3/4”, ¾”, 1") $80 

 Removal of meter for testing (5/8”x  3/4”, 1”) $250 

 Testing of meters larger than 1” parts and labor 

97



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 14 of 29 

 
I) Backflow Prevention Device Test Fee: 

 Initial test fee per assembly – Sherwood will perform the initial test of all commercial 

premises assemblies, dedicated irrigation service assemblies and fire line services 

assemblies.  All subsequent tests are the responsibility of the owner, to be done annually 

be a State Certified Backflow Tester of their choice. 

                               

$100 

 Service on and off for non-compliance of annual testing and reporting, see Section E.  

J) Water Service/Meter Installation Services: 
Meter Size Drop-In Service Dig-In Service 
5/8” – ¾” $360 $2,095 

1” $730 $2,465 

1.5” $1,830 $4,280 

2” $3,050 $5,500 

3” $6,100 n/a 

4” $7,930 n/a 

Definitions: 
Drop-In 

Service 

An existing condition where developers of a residential subdivision or commercial complex has 

installed water service to each serviceable and buildable lot in accordance with City specifications. 

Dig-In 

Service 

Condition where the City or its contractor must physically tap into a mainline to extend water 

service to the property.  Meter installation over 2” will be installed at a time and materials rate by 

city staff or city authorized contractors. 

K) Un-Authorized Water Hook up: 
 Un-authorized water hook up $150  (Plus water use charges billed at current rate) 

L) Re-Inspection Fees (Sanitary, Street, Storm and Water): 
 First re-inspection $50/each 

 Re-inspection fee after the first $100/each 

 All subsequent re-inspection fees $150/each 

*Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Program – FOG*  

M) Usage of Meter Key 
 Deposit refundable with key return $25 

N) Water Use Restriction – Penalties 
 First notice of violation $100 

 Second notice of violation $300 

 Third notice of violation $500 

O) Sanitary Rates: 
The monthly sewer utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $21.60 

 CWS regional sewer utility usage rate per CCF $1.44 

 Sherwood sewer utility user base rate per EDU  $4.89 

 Sherwood sewer utility usage rate per CCF $0.28 

 Damage or Repair to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

 Illegal Discharge to Sewer Utility actual time and material 

98



SECTION 6: UTILITY CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 15 of 29 

 
P) Storm Rates: 

The monthly storm utility user charge for property within the City and served by Clean Water Services 

(CWS) of Washington County shall be established by CWS and adopted annually. 

 CWS regional storm water utility user rate per ESU    $1.69 

 Sherwood storm water utility user rate per ESU   $12.58 

 Damage or Repair to Storm Utility 
actual time and 

material 

Q) Street Fees: 
Street Maintenance Fee  

 Single family residential $2/monthly per account 

 Multi Family $2 monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $2/monthly per ESU 

Street Light Fee  

 Single family residential $2.32/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $2.32/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.67/monthly per ESU 

Sidewalk Repairs Fee  

 Single family residential $0.52/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.52/monthly per EDU 

 Non – residential/Commercial $0.16/monthly per ESU 

Safe Sidewalks (New Sidewalks) Fee  

 Single family residential $0.69/monthly per account 

 Multi-Family $0.69/monthly per EDU 

R) Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program: 
 

The homeowner shall be responsible for: 

1.) Shaves (50% of total cost of the contractor’s invoice) 

2.) Full Panel Replacements (50% of the total cost of the work to be performed) 

 

Work may include any or all of the following: contractor’s cost to remove and replace the panel(s); arborists 

initial report of findings; tree removal; street tree permit fee.  

 

Payment arrangements will be made available to homeowners and must be paid within 12 months of the date of 

the first bill. Homeowner’s failure to pay their portion of the costs may result in a lien being placed on their 

property and all costs associated.

99



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 16 of 29 

SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Systems Development Charges (SDC).  SDC’s are one-time fees 

charged to new development to help pay a portion of the costs associated with building  infrastructure to meet 

needs created by growth. 

A) Water SDC: 

Meter 
Size  

Reimbursement 
Charge  

Improvement  
Charge  

Administrative 
Charge Per 

Meter 

5/8-3/4" 
 

$0  
 

$6,725.68  
 $50.02 

1" 
 

$0  
 

$16,816.77  
 $50.02 

1-1/2" 
 

$0  
 

$33,633.54  
 $50.02 

2" 
 

$0  
 

$53,811.81  
 $50.02 

3" 
 

$0  
 

$117,713.93  
 $50.02 

4" 
 

$0  
 

$201,794.31  
 $50.02 

6" 
 

$0  
 

$420,405.41  
 $50.02 

8" 
 

$0  
 

$605,382.97  
 $50.02 

 

Exception: There is no System Development Charge (reimbursement of improvement fee) to upgrade from  

5/8” – 3/4” to 1” when the sole purpose is a residential fire sprinkler system. 

 

 Fire flow sprinkler buildings only $3,200.50 

B) Sewer SDC: 
 

Use Type 
Reimbursement 

Charge  
Improvement 

Charge  
Flow Count 

Single family residence $0.094  
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Two  family residence (duplex) $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home/ single lot $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

535 gallons 

Manufactured home parks $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Multi-family residential $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Commercial $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Industrial $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

Institutional uses $0.094 
 

$0.27  
 

based on Engineer estimate 

    CWS regional connection charge   (96% CWS, 4% City of Sherwood)

 

$4,900 (Per dwelling unit or 

dwelling unit equivalent 

 
C) Storm SDC: 

Storm   Improvement Charge 
A.) Water quantity per ESU   $275 

B) Water quality per ESU   $225 

Regional Storm Drainage: - per area of impervious surface. One equivalent service unit (ESU) equals 2,640 

square feet. 

 City storm drainage: per area of impervious surface $0.046per square foot 

100



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 17 of 29 

 
D) Parks SDC: 

Parks and Recreation  
Administration 

Fee  
Improvement 

Fee  Total Fee 

Single family dwelling  $716.18  $6,952.60  $7,668.78 per dwelling unit 

Multi-family dwelling  $537.96  $5,216.94  $5,754.90 per dwelling unit 

Manufactured home  $967.10  $7,446.29  $8,413.39 per dwelling unit 

Non – residential  $6.64  $73.06  $79.70 per employee 

 

Filing fee to challenge expenditures of Parks SDC’s  (Refundable if challenge is successful) $50 

E) Street SDC: 
The following charges are calculated by multiplying trip generation by the following 

 
 Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 
 

Reference Washington County for fees - http://www.co.washington.or.us/ 

 
F) City of Sherwood Street SDC: 
Residential Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 
Single family – detached 210 $1,506  dwelling unit 

Apartment 220 $1,173  dwelling unit 

Residential condominium/townhouse 230 $955  dwelling unit 

Manufactured house  (In park) 240 $836  dwelling unit 

Assisted living 254 $491  bed 

Continuing care retirement 255 $397  unit 

Recreation home 260 $515  dwelling unit 

Recreational Transportation SDC    
City park 411 $390  acre 

County park 412 $662  acre 

Campground/RV park 416 $1,561  camp site 

Marina 420 $1,087  berth 

Golf course 430 $13,605  hole 

Golf driving range 430 $3,339  tee 

Multipurpose recreation/arcade 435 $9,742  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bowling alley 437 $12,688  lane 

Movie theater w/o matinee 443 $65  screen 

Movie Theater with Matinee 444 $59,312  screen 

Multiplex movie theater (10+ screens) 445 $38,322  screen 

Casino/video poker/lottery 473 $37,652  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Amusement/theme park 480 $20,236 acre 

Soccer complex 488 $19,053  field 

Racquet/tennis club 492 $10,337  court 

Health fitness club 492 $8,796  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Recreation/community center 495 $8,710  thousand square ft gross floor area 

    

101

http://www.co.washington.or.us/


SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 18 of 29 

    

Institutional/Medical Transportation SDC Code Fee Type 
Military base 501 $452  employee 

Elementary school (Public) 520 $95  student 

Middle/Junior high School (Public) 522 $114  student 

High School (Public) 530 $298  student 

Private School (K – 12) 536 $483  Student 

Junior/Community College 540 $178  employee 

University/College 550 $387  student 

Church 560 $1,416  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Day care center/preschool 565 $0.00  student 

Library 590 $4,150  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hospital 610 $3,480  bed 

Nursing home 620 $595  bed 

Clinic 630 $8,826  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Commercial/Services SDC    
Hotel/Motel 310 $2,923  Room 

Building materials/lumber 812 $4,749  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount Superstore w/groceries 813 $6,391  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Specialty retail center 814 $5,833  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Free standing discount center w/o groceries 815 $9,098  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Hardware/paint stores 816 $7,555  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Nursery/garden center 817 $4,652  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Shopping center 820 $3,907  thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Factory outlet 823 $2,986  thousand square ft gross floor area 

New car sales 841 $3,854  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Automobile parts sales 843 $7,302  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Tire superstore 849 $2,283  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Supermarket 850 $12,765  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market (24hr) 851 $31,936  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Convenience market w/fuel Pump 853 $19,338  vehicle fueling position 

Wholesale market 860 $76  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Discount club 861 $7,157  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Home improvement superstore 862 $2,487  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Electronics superstore 863 $5,291  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office supply superstore 867 $4,176  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore w/o drive thru window 880 $9,014  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Pharmacy/drugstore with drive thru window 881 $9,655  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Furniture store 860 $441  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Video rental store 896 $35,284  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – walk in 911 $28,442  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Bank/savings – drive in 912 $28,628  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quality restaurant (not a chain) 931 $11,537  thousand square ft gross floor area 

    

102



SECTION 7: SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 19 of 29 

    
Commercial/Services SDC (continued) Code Fee Type 
High turnover-sit down restaurant 

(chain/standalone) 
932 $7,295  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (no drive- thru) 933 $48,465  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Fast food restaurant (with drive-thru) 934 $32,613  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Drinking place/bar 936 $5,020  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Quick lubrication vehicle Shop 941 $4,361  service stall 

Automobile care center 942 $4,375  thousand square ft gross leasable area 

Gasoline/service station (no market/car wash) 944 $8,765  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with convenience 

market) 
945 $5,578  vehicle fueling position 

Gasoline/service station (with market and car 

wash) 
946 $5,044  vehicle fueling position 

Office SDC    
General office building 710 $2,250  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Corporate headquarters building 714 $1,633  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Single tenant office building 715 $2,730  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Medical/dental office building 720 $7,114  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Government office building 730 $13,141  thousand square ft gross floor area 

State Motor Vehicles Department 731 $48,833  thousand square ft gross floor area 

US Post Office 732 $17,467  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Office park 750 $2,375  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Research and development center 760 $1,778  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Business park 770 $2,472  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Port/Industrial    
Truck terminals 30 $1,819  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Park and ride lot with bus service 90 $551  parking space 

Light rail transit station w/parking 93 $313  parking space 

General light industrial 110 $1,288  thousand square ft gross floor area 

General heavy industrial 120 $277  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Industrial park 130 $1,285  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Manufacturing 140 $702  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Warehouse 150 $926  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Mini-warehouse 151 $449  thousand square ft gross floor area 

Utilities 170 $1,010  thousand square ft gross floor area 

  

103



SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 20 of 29 

SECTION 8: ENGINEERING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Engineering Division activities of the City. 

A) Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 

 Plan Review – 4% of Construction Costs ($500 due at submittal with the balance, if any, payable at 

the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) Includes review of the following: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

 

 Inspections – 5% of Construction Costs (payable at the time the Compliance Agreement is signed) 

Includes inspection of the following for which permits were obtained: 

Water Street Grading 

Sewer Storm Erosion Control 

B) No Public Improvement; Subdivision Plan Reviews and Inspections: 
 Plan Review Fee Time and Materials 

 Inspection Fee Time and Materials 

 Television Line Service Time and Materials 

C) Miscellaneous Fees: 
1)  Addressing Fee  

  Single - five (5) digit address $65/lot 

  0 to 10 - Suite Numbers $25 per suite 

  11 to 20 -Suite Numbers $15 per suite 

  21 and up Suite Numbers  $10 per suite 

2)  Plans and Specifications for capital projects varies with project 

3)  Traffic and street signs (Includes post, sign, 

hardware, and labor to install) 
$250/per sign 

4)  Street Trees $200/per tree 

5)  

Pre-submittal Consultation (consultation of 

projects prior to the submittal of a land use 

application, requiring more than 2 hours of staff 

time or on-call consultant services) 

Deposit of $500 

(Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including 

staff time, if an application is submitted these fees 

will be credited against the plan review fees) 

6)  In-Lieu of Fee – Fiber Optic Conduit Installation $20 linear foot 

7)  Right of Way Permit  

 
 Performance bond on projects greater 

than or equal to $5,000 
125% of estimated costs 

 
 Maintenance bond - $1000 or 50% of project estimate, whichever is greater. 

(A single bond may be provided for multiple projects of the same person provided the bond 
exceeds the aggregate project total) 

  Administration fee $150 per permit 

  Inspection fee  $150 or 4% of project estimate, whichever is greater 

8)  Design and construction standards $50 on paper 

7) Design and construction standards $25 per CD 

8) As-Built Requests $25 per subdivision 

9) As-Built Requests electronic media $25 per CD 

D) Vacations (Public right-of-way and easements): 
 Deposit plus staff time (See Section 1) $4,000 

         (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time)

104



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 21 of 29 

SECTION 9:  PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Planning Department activities of the City. 

A) Annexations: 
 Deposit $7,500 

  (Applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time) 
 Applicant will sign an agreement with the City that the balance of all costs will be paid to the City 

within 30 days of the date in the final annexation invoice. 

B) Appeals: 
 Type I or II actions (ORS 227.175) 10 (b)  $250 

 Type III or IV actions 50% of original fee(s) 

C) Conditional Use Permit: 
Conditional use permit without concurrent type III or IV application $4,145 

Conditional use permit with concurrent type III or IV application $2,072 

D) Land Divisions/Adjustments: 
 Lot line adjustment $743  

 Minor land partition $2,488   

 Expedited minor partition $550   

 (Added to the cost of the application) 
 Final plat processing (minor land partition) $550   

 Subdivision $6,222  plus$20 per lot 

 Expedited subdivision $2,205   

  (Added to the cost of the application) 
 Final plat processing (Subdivision) $1,102   

E) Miscellaneous Actions: 
 Consultant as needed actual costs 

F) Other Fees: 
 Community Development Code Plan Check 

(payable at time of building 
permit submittal 

1) Residential permits $105 

2) ADUs Accessory Dwelling Units $105  

3) Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family Permits $661  

                           (Final Site Plan Review fee, if a final site plan review is not required this fee is not charged) 
 Design review team consultations/recommendations staff time (see section 1) 

 Detailed site analysis letter $150 

 Interpretive decisions by the Director $330  

 Non-conforming use modification $1,000 

 Modification to application in review $500 

(If modified after the application is deemed complete and the modification is needed to adequately review the 
application) 

 Other land use action  

1) Administrative $276  

2) Hearing required and/or use of Hearings Officer $2,425  

 Planning Re-inspection fee $60 each after 1
st
 

 Postponement/continuance hearings $300 

105



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 22 of 29 

  

(If applicant request is after notice has been published and/or staff report prepared) 
 Pre-application conference $400 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 2 $284 

 Publication/distribution of Notice Type 3 & 4 $466 

 Home Occupation Review of initial application (Class A)  $50 

 Home Occupation Review of renewal application (Class A) $25 

G) Trees: 
 Tree mitigation inspection $60 each after 1

st
 

 Zone verification letter $50 

 Street Tree Removal Permit $25 - 1
st
 tree, $10 each additional tree 

 Removal of more than 6 trees or 10% on private property $107 

H) Planned Unit Development (PUD): 
 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  Preliminary 

             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) $2,205 

 Planned Unit Development (PUD)  - Final 
             (Plus appropriate application fees (i.e. subdivisions, site plan, town-homes, etc.) See Site Plan Review Fee 

I) Refunds: 
 75% refund if application is withdrawn prior to 30 day completeness 

 50% refund if withdrawn prior to public notice 

 25% refund if withdrawn prior to staff report 

J) Signage: 
 Permanent signs on private property $150 

      (First 32 sq. ft. plus $1 each additional sq. ft, of sign face)  (Excludes Home Occupation Signage) 
 Banner signs – Consecutive one month period $150 

 Temporary portable sign violation fines  

1) First offense No fine; collected and marked 

2) Second offense $50 per sign 

3) Third offense $100 per sign 

K) Site Plan Review: 
 Type III and IV  

(Additional $100 for every 10,000 sq. ft. or portion thereof over the first 
15,000 sq. ft.)(Including Town-Homes, excluding projects in Old Town) 

$6,222  

 Final site plan review (Type III and IV)  (Due at the time of Building 
Permit Submittal) $661  

 Fast track site plan review (Type II) $2,025  

 Minor modification to approved Site Plan $276 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type II $1,010 

 Major modification to approved Site Plan, Type III or IV $2,425 

 Old Town overlay review $250 added to application 

 (All uses excluding Single-Family detached dwellings) (Application fee for Old Town projects is the application  
 fee applicable based on size of the project plus the Old Town Overlay review fee.  Fee is applicable for all uses  
 excluding Single-Family detached dwellings.) 
 
L) Temporary Uses: 

 Administrative $335 

106



SECTION 9: PLANNING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 23 of 29 

 
M) Time Extension to Approval: 

 No hearing required $150 

N)  Variance: 
 Class A Variance $4,145 

 Adjustment  $50 

 Class B Variance $1,102 

 (Per lot and per standard to be varied) 

O) Zone Amendments: 
 Text amendment $5,330 

 Map amendment $5,330 

107



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 24 of 29 

SECTION 10:  BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 
 
The following fees shall be assessed for the Building Department activities of the City. 

A. Building Permits 
Values are determined by the applicants total estimated value of the work which includes labor and materials, 
and/or are based on the most current Building Valuation Data, without state-specific modifiers, as published by 
the International Code Council and in compliance with OAR 918-050-0100 to 918-050-0110. Final building 
permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 
 

1. Single Family and Two-Family Dwelling Based on Total Valuation 

$1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000  

 
$60 for the first $500 (Plus $1.00 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up to 
and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 

 
$75 for the first $2,000 (Plus $8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up to 
and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000  

 
$259 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.25 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000  
415.25 for the first $25,000 (Plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, up 
to and including $100,000) 

$100,001 and up 
$615.25 for the first $100,000 (Plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof over $100,000$100,001 and up) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 

School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 
 

2. Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Based on Total Valuation 

 $1 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$501 to $2,000 
$60 for the first $500 ($1.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof up 
to and including $2,000) 

$2,001 to $25,000 
$82.50 for the first $2,000 ($8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $25,000) 

$25,001 to $50,000 
$266.50 for the first $25,000 (Plus $6.75 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000) 

$50,001 to $100,000 
$435.25 for the first $50,000 (plus $5 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $100,00) 

$100,001 and up 
$685.25 for the first $100,000 (plus $3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof over $100,00) 

 

The fees listed below are established by other jurisdictions and collected by the City of Sherwood. 
School CET Residential $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

School CET Commercial Non- Residential $.52 per square foot maximum of $25,925 or current School 

District CET rate 

State Surcharge 12% of Building Permit fee or current State Surcharge rate 

Metro CET 0.12% of the total value of the improvement when it exceeds $100,000 valuation 

or current Metro CET rate 

 

 

 

108



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 25 of 29 

 

3. Manufactured Dwelling Installation Permits 

Includes prescriptive foundation system, plumbing and crossover connections, 30 lineal feet of sanitary sewer, 
storm and water lines, 12% state surcharge and the $30 Cabana fee (unless state rates are modified) In 
Compliance with OAR.918.050.0130  
 

 Manufactured home set up and installation fee $322.66 

 Plan Review  $90/hour (Minimum Charge = 1/2/hour 

 Site Plan Review Residential Rate per Section 10.(F) 

 School CET $1.04 per square foot of dwelling or current School District CET rate 

B. Demolition Permits 
 Residential  $192.12 

 Commercial $282.12 

C. Prescriptive Solar Photovoltaic System Installation – Structural Only 
*Electrical permits are also required through Washington County 

Fees for installation of Solar Photovoltaic (PV) system installation 

that comply with the prescriptive path described in the Oregon Solar 

Installation Specialty Code. 

$122.79 

For Plans that do not meet the prescriptive path, typical structural fee 

calculations and processes will apply. 
Typical Structural Fees will apply 

D. Plan Review Fees – Building Permit 
 Plan review Fee 85% of building permit fee 

 Fire and life safety plan review fee (when required) 40% of building permit fee 

E. Phased Permit - Plan Review (When approved by the Building Official) 
The Plan review fee for a phased project is based on a minimum phasing fee, plus 10% of the total project 
building permit fee, not to exceed $1,500 for each phase pursuant to the authority of OAR 918-050-0160 
 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $100 Minimum Fee  

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $50 Minimum Fee  

F. Deferred Submittals (When approved by the Building Official) 
The fee for processing deferred submittals and reviewing deferred plan submittals shall be an amount equal to 
65% of the permit fee calculated according to OAR 918-050-0110(2) and (3) using  the value of the particular 
deferred portion or portions of the project, with a set minimum fee.  This fee is in addition to the project plan 
review fee based on the total project value. 
 

 Commercial, Industrial, Multi-Family $150 Minimum Fee 

 Residential and Manufactured Dwellings $75 Minimum Fees  

 
G. Residential Fire Sprinkler System Fees 
 Total Square Footage (including Garage) 

0 to 2000 $100 includes plan review 

2,001 to 3,600 $150 includes plan review 

3,601 to 7,200 $250 includes plan review 

7,201 and greater $300 includes plan review 

109



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 26 of 29 

H. Electrical Permits – Issued and Inspected by Washington County 
Contact Washington County Building Division (503) 846-3470 

I. Mechanical Permits - Residential 
Mechanical permits for Single Family Dwelling, Two-Family dwellings and Manufactured Dwellings for new 
construction, additions, alterations and repairs.  Fees are based on the number of appliances and related 
equipment with a set minimum fee. 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee  ** (or current state rate) 

1. Air Handling 

 Air Handling Unit ≤ 10,000 CFMs $14.63 includes ductwork 

 Air Handling Unit > 10,000 CFMs $24.68 includes ductwork 

 Air Conditioning Unit $19.50 Site Plan Required 

 

2. Boilers/Compressors 

 ≤100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50 includes ductwork 

 >100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 includes ductwork 

 >500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75 includes ductwork 

 >1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 includes ductwork 

 >1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 includes ductwork 

 
3. Fire/Smoke Dampers/Duct Smoke Detectors $14.65 

 
4. Heat Pump $19.50 Site plan required 

 
5. Install/Replace Furnace/Burner 

 Furnace ≤ 100,000 BTUs $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Furnace ≥ 100,000 BTUs $35.75 includes ductwork and vents 

 Install/Replace/Relocate Heaters  (Suspended, wall or floor 
mounted) $19.50 includes ductwork and vents 

 Vent for appliance other than furnace $9.75 includes ductwork 

 
6. Refrigeration Units (includes installation of controls) 

 ≤ 100,000 BTUs or 3 HP $19.50  

 > 100,000 (3HP) to ≤ 500,000 BTUs (15HP) $35.75 

 > 500,000 (15HP) to ≤ 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) $48.75  

 > 1,000,000 BTUs (30HP) ≤ 1,750,000 BTUs (50HP) $73.15 

 >  1,750,000 BTUs or 50HP $121.80 

 Appliance vent $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Dryer exhaust $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust fan with single duct $9.75 includes ductwork 

 Hoods $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Exhaust system apart from heating or air conditioning $14.65 includes ductwork 

 Fuel piping and distribution (up to four outlets) $6.50 

 Fuel piping and distribution (over four outlets) $1.65 per outlet 

 Insert, decorative fireplace or wood/pellet stoves $19.50 includes vent 

 Gas fired water heater $19.50 includes ductwork and vent 

 Install/relocate domestic type incinerator $24.35 

 Install/relocate commercial type incinerator $97.50 

 Other   (see most current Oregon One and Two Family Dwelling Specialty Code) 

110



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 27 of 29 

J. Mechanical Permits - Commercial 
Based on the total value of mechanical materials, equipment, installation, overhead and profit as applied to the 
following fee matrix 
 

 Plan review fee – Commercial 30% of Mechanical permit fee 

 State Surcharge 12% of Mechanical permit fee ** (or Current state Rate) 
 Mechanical Permit Fee Based on total valuation 

$0 to $500 $60 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$60 for the first $500 (plus $2.50 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, up 
to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$172.50 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, 
up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $100,000 
$322.50 for the first $10,000 (Plus$8 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,042.50 for the first $100,000 (plus $4 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof over $100,000 

K. Plumbing Permits – New one and Two Family Dwellings 
Includes one kitchen, 100 feet of sanitary sewer, storm and water lines, standard plumbing fixtures and 
appurtenances, and are based on the number of bathrooms, from one to three on a graduated scale. 
 

 One Bathroom $255 

 Two Bathrooms $315 

 Three Bathrooms $375 

 Additional Kitchen or Bathroom $155 each 

 Additional Fixture or Item $15 each 

 Additional 100 feet of each utility line $27.50 each 

L. Plumbing Permits – One and Two Family and Manufactured Dwelling for Additions, 
Alterations and Repairs 

Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

 Minimum Fee $60 

 New and/or Additional fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

 Manufactured Dwelling Utility Connection $30 each 

  (Charged only when connections are not concurrent with new set-up and installation) 
1. Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

2. Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

3. Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

 
 

111



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 28 of 29 

 
M. Plumbing Permits – Commercial  
Based on the number of fixtures, appurtenances and piping with a set minimum fee. 
 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of plumbing permit fee (when required) 

 State surcharge 12% of plumbing permit fee **(Or current State rate) 

 Minimum fee $60 

 New and/or additional fixture, item $15 each 

 Alteration of fixture, item or appurtenance $15 each 

Water Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Sanitary Sewer Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

Storm Sewer/Footing Lines 

 For the first 100 feet or fraction thereof $50 

 For each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $27.50 each 

N. Medical Gas Permits – Commercial 
Based on the total value of installation costs and system equipment as applied to the following fee matrix. 

 Plan Review Fee – Commercial 30% of Plumbing Permit Fee 

 State surcharge 12% of Plumbing Permit Fee ** (or Current state Rate) 
 Plumbing Permit Fee Based on valuation 

 $0 to $500 $100 minimum fee 

$500.01 to $5,000 
$100 for the first $500 (plus $2 for each additional $100 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $5,000) 

$5,000.01 to $10,000 
$190 for the first $5,000 (plus $3 for each additional $100 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $10,000) 

$10,000.01 to $50,000  
$340 for the first $10,000 (plus $9.50 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$50,000.01 to $100,000 
$720 for the first $50,000 (Plus $11 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000) 

$100,000.01 and up 
$1,270 for the first 100,000 (plus $7 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof over $100,000) 

 
O. Grading and Erosion Control Fees (Private Property Only) 
Permits issued by the City of Sherwood.  Grading is inspected by the Building Department and erosion control is 
inspected by Clean Water Services or the City of Sherwood. 
 
Erosion Control Fees 
Activities which require a grading and/or erosion control permit and are not included in a building permit.  
Permit is based upon the total acreage of the site. 
 
For projects less than 5 acres: 

 Erosion Control Plan Review Fee 65% of the erosion control inspection fee  

 Erosion Control Inspection Fee Based on Total Area 

0 to 1 Acre $200 

1 Acre and up $200 (plus $50 per acre or fraction thereof over 1 acre) 
For projects greater than or equal to 5 acres: 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C administration fee $150 per application 

 Clean Water Services 1200-C plan review fee $350 per application 

112



SECTION 10: BUILDING CHARGES FOR SERVICE 

Master Fees and Charges                           Page 29 of 29 

 
Grading Fees 
 

 Grading permit fee  Based on Cubic Yards 

   0 to 100  $60 minimum fee  

   101 to 1,000  $60 first 100 yards (plus $11 for each additional 100 yards or fraction thereof) 
   1,001 to 10,000  $159 first 1,000 yard (plus $15 for each additional 1,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
   10,001 to 100,000  $294 first 10,000 yards (plus $75 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 
   100,001  +  $969 first 100,000 (plus $36.50 for each additional 10,000 yards or fraction thereof) 

 Grading plan review fee 85% of the grading permit fee 

 
P. Other Inspections and Fees (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading and 

Erosion) 
 Re-inspection fee (Minimum charge = 1 hour) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate 

 Inspections outside normal business hours 

(when approved by the Building Official) 

$90 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = 2 hours)  

 Inspection for which no fee is specifically 

indicated 

$70 per hour plus 12% State surcharge or Current State 

Rate (Minimum charge = ½ hour)  

 Investigative fee for working without a permit $70 per hour to enforce the code, $70 minimum. 

 Additional plan review required 
$90 per hour or actual time (For changes, additions or 

revisions) (Minimum charge = ½ hour) 

 Re-stamp of lost, stolen or damaged plans $55 per plan set 

 Application/Permit extensions   $50 

(Renewal of an application or permit where an extension has been requested in writing, and approval granted by 
the Building Official, prior to the original expiration date, provided no changes have been made in the original 
plans and specifications for such work) 

 Permit reinstatement fee 50% of amount required for a new permit or a percentage as determined by 

the Building Official based on the remaining inspections required. 

(This fee is for reinstatement of a permit, where a reinstatement request has been made in writing, and approval 
granted by the Building Official, provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications for 
such work.) 

Q. Refunds (Building Permit, Mechanical, Plumbing, Grading/Erosion) 
 Permit refunds 75% of original permit Fee; Provided the permit is still valid 

 Plan review refunds 75% of original plan review fee provided no plan review was started  

R. Certificate of Occupancy  (All as determined by the Building Official) 
 Temporary residential $50 per request 

 Temporary commercial $300 maximum per request 

S. Change of Use/Occupancy Certificate Application Fee 
 Similar use (Minor code review) $60  

 Dissimilar Use, or Change in Occupancy 

(Extensive Code Review 

$125 minimum fee (Includes 1 hour code review time, review 

time greater than 1 hour will be charged at the hourly rate of $90 

 

113



Resolution 2014-045, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2014-045, Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State 

Revenues 
 
 
 
Issue: 
This is a resolution that informs the State of Oregon that the City of Sherwood is eligible for 
and elects to receive state revenues. 
 
Background: 
The State of Oregon shares certain revenue with municipalities that choose to accept it. 
The only qualification to receive these funds is to hold public hearings on the use of the 
money. The City held one hearing on May 14, 2014 during the Budget Committee meeting 
and will hold the other required hearing at this Council meeting. 
 
Financial Impacts: 
The FY15 General Fund budget includes a revenue line item of $178,000 for this revenue 
source.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-045 declaring the 
City’s election to receive state revenues.  
 
 

114



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-045 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

      
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-045 
 

DECLARING THE CITY OF SHERWOOD’S ELECTION TO  
RECEIVE STATE REVENUES 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 221.770, provides for Oregon municipalities to receive 
state revenues should they elect to via resolution or ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, said statute also requires the electing municipality to hold two public hearings on 
the municipality’s use of the funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2014, a public hearing on the use of state revenues was held by the 
City of Sherwood Budget Committee and on June 17, 2014, a public hearing was held by the 
City Council on the use of state revenues. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1:  Pursuant to ORS 221.770, to elect to receive state revenues for the Fiscal Year 

2013-2014. 
 
Section 2:   This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 

    
        ________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

115



Resolution 2014-046, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

 Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Julie Blums, Finance Director 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution 2014-046 adopting the FY2014-15 City of Sherwood Budget 
 
 
Issue: 
As the next step in the budget process, the Sherwood City Council needs to consider 
adoption of the FY2014-15 City of Sherwood Budget as approved by the Sherwood Budget 
Committee. 
 
Background: 
On May 14, 2014, the Sherwood Budget Committee received the budget message and 
heard public comment. On May 17, 2014, the Budget Committee approved the proposed 
budget with three changes, resulting in the Approved Budget for FY2014-15. The three 
changes were to add $5,000 to the Administration budget for the Robin Hood Festival, to 
put $350,000 in cash reserves for the General Fund Maintenance Reserve, and add 
$150,000 in debt service to the Telecom fund for the loan payment to the General Fund. 
Notice of the approved budget has been published in accordance with Oregon Local 
Budget Law. The final steps of the budget process are for City Council to hold a public 
hearing per ORS 294.453 and then adopt the FY2014-15 budget. The budget is available 
for review at the City Hall reception desk and in the Sherwood Public Library. A copy of the 
budget can also be found on the City’s website under the Finance Department section. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2014-046 adopting the 
FY14-15 City of Sherwood budget. 

116



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-046 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-046 
 

ADOPTING THE FY2014-15 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS, IMPOSING AND CATEGORIZING TAXES, AND AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER TO TAKE SUCH ACTION NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE 
ADOPTED BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee has reviewed and acted on the proposed City 
budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved and recommended a balanced 
budget to the City Council on May 17, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with State law, the Sherwood City Council has held a public 
hearing on the budget as approved and recommended by the Sherwood Budget Committee; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood Budget Committee approved the budget to be presented to the 
City Council for adoption; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the approved budget and carry out the 
programs identified in the budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1: Adoption of the FY2014-15 Budget.  The City Council of the City of Sherwood, 
Oregon hereby adopts the budget for FY2014-15 in the sum of $45,875,966, now on file at 
City Hall. 

117



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-046 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

Section 2: Making Appropriations.  The amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014 and for the purposes shown 
below are hereby appropriated as follows: 

 
  General Debt Street Street     
 General Construction Service Operations Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom 

          
Administration 2,643,302         
Comm. Development 1,382,749         
Public Safety 3,595,472         
Community Services 1,563,238         
PW Operations 2,037,484         
Enterprise Operations      5,167,109 755,340 1,669,386  
Enterprise Capital      140,179 400,402 725,674  
Personal Services  62,753  347,727 29,802    59,928 
Materials and Services  162,951  1,800,542 161,045    171,232 
Capital Outlay  749,759  40,000 40,000    40,000 
Debt Service  48,533 894,394      150,000 
Transfers Out     200,000     
Contingency 533,049 0 0 85,782 0 403,722 28,375 124,221 23,088 
Reserved for Future 
Years 2,300,447 683,170 0 935,773 3,512,243 7,257,109 3,169,966 1,728,849 51,172 
Total 14,055,741 1,707,166 894,394 3,209,824 3,943,090 12,968,120 4,354,083 4,248,130 495,420 

 
Total Budget for FY14-15     $45,875,966 

118



DRAFT 

Resolution 2014-046 
June 17, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 with one Exhibit (Budget Document) 

Section 3: Imposing and Categorizing Taxes.  The City Council of the City of 
Sherwood hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted budget at the 
City’s permanent rate of $3.2975 per thousand of assessed value for operations 
and in the amount of $894,394 for bonded debt; and that these taxes are hereby 
imposed for tax year 2014-15 upon the assessed value of all taxable property 
within the district. 
The City of Sherwood hereby categorizes the taxes as follows: 
 

 General Government Excluded from Limitation 
General Fund $3.2975 per $1,000  
Debt Service Fund  $     894,394 

 
Section 4: Filing. The Budget Officer shall certify to the County Clerk and 
County Assessor of Washington County and the Oregon State Department of 
Revenue the tax levy made by this resolution and shall file with them a copy of 
the budget as finally adopted. 
 
Section 5:  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
 
 
 _____________________ 
 Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

119



2011 - 2012 

www.sherwoodoregon.gov 

IT2012 - 2013 

 

2014-2015 

APPROVED 

BUDGET 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 117 120



i 

 

 

 
 

 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) presented a 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Sherwood, Oregon for its annual budget for 
the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013.   
 
In order to receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets 
program criteria as a policy document, as an operations guide as a financial plan, and as a 
communication device.   
 
This award is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current budget continues to conform 
to program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another 

award. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 117 121



City of Sherwood, Oregon 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

 
Approved Budget 

 
2014-2015 

ii 

 

 

 
 

Budget Committee 
 
 

City Council 
 
  Mayor        Bill Middleton 
  Council President      Linda Henderson  
  Council Member      Bill Butterfield 
  Council Member      Krisanna Clark  
  Council Member      Robyn Folsom 
  Council Member      Dave Grant 
  Council Member      Matt Langer 
 

Citizens 
 

  Chair        Timothy Carkin 
  Vice Chair       Lynette Waller 
  Citizen Member      Andrew McConnell 
  Citizen Member      Steve Munsterman 
  Citizen Member      Kimberly Rocha-Pearson 
  Citizen Member      Neil Shannon 
  Citizen Member      Brian Stecher 
 
 
  City Manager             Joe Gall 

Finance Director/Budget Officer    Julie Blums 
   
 

 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 3 of 117 122

http://www.ci.sherwood.or.us/


TABLE OF CONTENTS    

iii 

     

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY     

 About the City. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 

 Budget Message. . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

 Mission & Value Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . 10 

 Goals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11  

 Organization Chart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12  

FINANCIALS     

 Budget Analysis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13  

 Financial Conditions and Outlook. . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21 

 Financial Organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  22 

 Budget - in Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23 

 Budget - by Fund . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   24  

General Government Funds.  

 Property Tax Levies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 

 General Fund in total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 

 General Fund by Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 

 Administration Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31 

 Community Development Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41 

 Public Safety Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  50 

 Community Services Division . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 54 

 Public Works Division. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  60 

 Asset Depreciation Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 65 

 Debt Service Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66 

 General Construction. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  67 

 Street Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  68 

 Street Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .  70 

Enterprise Funds  

 Water Fund in Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  71 

 Water Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  72 

 Water Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . 75 

 Sanitary Fund in Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 76 

 Sanitary Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77 

 Sanitary Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  79 

 Storm Fund in Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  80 

 Storm Operations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  81 

 Storm Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .  83 

 Telecommunications. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 84 

APPENDICES     

 Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Year. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86  

 Personnel and Monthly Salary Schedules . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  87 

 Long Term Debt   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 89 

 Debt Margin and Transfers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 92  

 Budget Process. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  93  

 Financial Policies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  96  

 Glossary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  103  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 4 of 117 123



 

 

 

 
Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 5 of 117 124



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         ABOUT THE CITY 

 

 

 

About the City 
 
The City of Sherwood, incorporated in 1893, encompasses 4.31 square miles of land on the south edge 
of the Portland metropolitan area, in northwestern Oregon.  Other cities that are part of or near the 
metro area, such as Tigard, Tualatin, and Wilsonville, are used for comparisons in this budget where 
data is available. 
 

 
 
The City of Sherwood has all powers granted to municipal corporations by State statutes, including the 
power to issue debt, levy taxes on real property within its boundaries, and extend its corporate limits 
by annexation.   
 
The City provides a full range of services: police protection; library; construction and maintenance of 
streets, parks, and utility infrastructure; recreational activities and cultural events; current and long-
range planning; development review; and building permits and construction inspection.  Senior services 
are provided by a nonprofit organization, housed in the City-owned Senior Center. Certain services are 
provided by or in cooperation with regional organizations.  Fire protection is through Tualatin Valley 
Fire and Rescue, a separate regional entity. Sherwood owns and operates a water distribution system 
and, jointly with the City of Wilsonville, a water treatment plant. The City owns and operates the 
sanitary sewer and storm water collection facilities. Sanitary sewer treatment is by Clean Water 
Services, a regional authority. Electricity, Telephone service, and trash disposal are provided by private 
businesses.  Sherwood is part of School District 88J.  
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 6 of 117 125



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         ABOUT THE CITY 

 

 

 

Sherwood is governed by a City Council comprised of an elected Mayor and six Councilors.  The City 
Council exercises policy-making and legislative authority and is responsible for City legislation, adopting 
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Manager.  The Mayor serves a two year term.  
Councilors serve for four years, with three of the six Councilor’s terms expiring in each biennial 
election.  The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the day-to-day operations of the City. 
 
According to Portland State University’s Population Research Center the City’s population as of July 1, 
2013 was 18,575, and is predicted to increase by 200 people per year for the next several years.   
 

 
Roughly one third of Sherwood’s population is under the age of 18 and 50.3% of the population is 
female. Sherwood has an average of three people per household as compared to 2.5 in Oregon as a 
whole. 
 

 
 
 

14,190   14,940  
 16,115  16,365  16,420  16,640  

18,194  18,255  18,265  18,575  

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

City of Sherwood Population 

94% 

43% 

89% 

29% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

High School Graduates Bachelor's Degree of higher

Percentage of Population 

Sherwood Oregon

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 7 of 117 126



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         ABOUT THE CITY 

 

 

 

 
 
In December 2002, the Metropolitan Service District, the regional land use planning entity, added 
about 300 acres to the City's Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).  Planning for future land uses, civic 
services, and infrastructure improvements has begun. Annexation requires voter approval. 
 
Sherwood is in the Portland, Oregon – Vancouver, Washington metropolitan area.  The economy of the 
metro area is broad and well diversified.  According to the US Census data, Sherwood’s top three 
industries by the number of employees are retail, manufacturing, and food services/sales. 31.8% of the 
businesses in Sherwood are owned by women. 
 
City wide operating costs are budgeted to increase 17% in FY14-15. Population increased by 310 
people resulting in an increase in cost per capita for our citizens. 

 
Sherwood has an Urban Renewal Agency (URA) which undertakes activities and projects in the portion 
of the City designated as the Urban Renewal District.  Although the Sherwood City Council is the Board 
of Directors for the URA, the URA is a distinct municipal corporation and its budget is a separate 
document.  
 
The City’s fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30. 
 
Current information about services and projects can be found at www.sherwoodoregon.gov  

$313,900  

$82,257  

$246,100  

$50,036  
$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

owner-occupied housing units household income

2008-2012 Median Value 

Sherwood Oregon

$937 $975 $1,018 

$1,179 

$0

$300

$600

$900

$1,200

$1,500

$1,800

2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

Operating Expenditures per Capita 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 8 of 117 127



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 9 of 117 128



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

4 

 

Fiscal Year 2014-15 
City Manager’s Budget Message 
 
May 2, 2014 
 
The Honorable Mayor Bill Middleton 
Members of the Sherwood City Council 
Members of the Sherwood Budget Committee 
 
As City Manager for the City of Sherwood, it is my pleasure to present the proposed Fiscal Year 2014-
15 budget for the City of Sherwood.  This proposed budget is submitted as required by Chapter 294 of 
the Oregon Revised Statutes and Chapter VIII, Section 33.e.6 of the Sherwood Municipal Code.   As an 
important reminder to citizens reviewing this proposed budget, state budget law provides for three 
levels of review and scrutiny of this budget: the City Manager, the Budget Committee, and the City 
Council. At any step in this process, the reviewing body can alter the proposed budget if they believe it 
is in the best interests of the City of Sherwood.  We are excited to be able to maintain a fiscally 
responsible budget, while continuing to provide the quality of public services our citizens have come to 
enjoy and expect from the City.  
 
In January 2014, the League of Oregon Cities released their annual report called the “State of the 
Cities” in Oregon. The concluding paragraph of this report states that: 
 

Cities Slowly Recovering, but Challenges Remain 
 

The so-called Great Recession will have a lingering effect on city finances for years to come. Many 
cities cut or reduced important quality-of-life services and may not be able to add them back soon, if 
ever. And the backlog of deferred maintenance and delayed infrastructure projects promises to be 

more expensive than if undertaken on time. Add to this depleted reserve balances and cities have large 
holes to fill and little to fall back on. 

 
In sum, cities are emerging from the worst challenges of the Great Recession, but still facing many 

others. 
 
As we continue to recover from the depths of the most recent recession, the financial health of the City 
of Sherwood is in many cases, better off than many of our municipal neighbors in Oregon.  Our fund 
balance at the end of FY14-15 is projected to be at 28% of our operating revenue.  This is 8% higher 
than the Council’s conservative goal of 20%. The 8% difference will be used conservatively in future 
years on one-time expenditures and not for ongoing operations. Both commercial and residential 
development has experienced a strong rebound in the past year. Revenues have come in much higher 
than expected; however, this quick paced high growth is not sustainable in the long term. Therefore 
we are evaluating the known and potential development and estimating when they might happen.  
 
Oregon’s Short-Term Economic Forecast 
Sherwood is not an island unto itself and it is important to briefly discuss the general health of 
Oregon’s economy overall.  The latest state economic forecast states that: 
 
In Oregon, the economy has already experienced an acceleration in job growth in 2013. This was 
largely expected as the housing market and industry rebounded and the public sector cuts slowed 
across the state. As a result, more regions of the state began adding jobs. The question then becomes: 
Can the state expect a further increase in the rate of growth? 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 10 of 117 129



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

5 

 

The likely answer is yes. Early in recovery, the Portland metropolitan area was responsible for nearly all 
jobs gained statewide. This changed in 2013. Portland continued to add jobs at a steady and healthy 
rate; however other areas including Bend and Medford began adding jobs as well. In the past few 
months, Bend and Medford have slowed as the nationwide housing rebound stalled. These metros are 
among the most heavily influenced by an influx of migrants and housing activity, so as the broader 
housing rebound slowed, so too did Bend and Medford. Statewide growth did not decelerate along with 
these two areas however, since private sector job gains in the Salem area accelerated strongly to pick 
up the slack. All told, the 2013 acceleration in job growth was expected. However, not all regions of 
the state are on board yet. In particular, Eugene has further room for growth, as do many of the 
state’s more rural areas. Looking forward to 2014 and 2015, as growth prospects improve for the 
underlying economy, and with all of Oregon’s regions adding jobs, growth is likely to pick up a bit 
further, into the 40,000 jobs per year range, or an annual growth rate of 2.4 percent in 2015. Although 
the economy has improved in the past year, we continue to remain cautious about any significant 
improvement in Oregon’s economy. (Quarterly Oregon Economic Forecast; March 2014, Volume XXXIV, 
No. 1).   
 
Within our Sherwood community, signs of a strengthening economy are evident in a variety of key 
areas.  Development activity in the past year has been the highest in six years.  New homes and are 
being built, especially near the Ridges schools campus in northwestern Sherwood.  Commercial growth 
is centered around Langer Farms and Tualatin-Sherwood Roads.  Our community continues to receive 
national accolades for its strong quality of life, excellent schools, access to wonderful parks, and low 
crime rate.   
 

Budget Approach 
The approach I used in crafting this proposed budget did not significantly change from the previous 
year.  However, our financial position is stronger than anticipated a year ago with a beginning fund 
balance of $3.25 million; 12% higher than Councils goal. Upon the recommendation of the Council and 
Budget Committee, we used some of this 12% to fund one time expenditures that could not be 
accomplished in prior years due to stricter budget constraints. 
 
This proposed budget reflects the changing economic and political environment in which we operate 
and more importantly, anticipates that this environment will continue for the foreseeable future. Before 
describing them in detail, I want to enumerate the key principles used to develop this proposed 
budget.  
 
Continued Focus upon Core, Essential Services – As the management team tackled budget preparation 
this year, we continually asked ourselves whether the service or program under consideration could be 
categorized as a Core, Essential Service. Core, Essential Services include local government services 
such as public safety services (police and emergency management), utilities (water and sewer), and 
infrastructure (roads). 
 
Invest in Infrastructure Maintenance – As much as this budget is for one year, it was created with the 
idea that our normal operational costs do not exceed our normal operational revenue. We were able to 
incorporate the costs for infrastructure maintenance and fund all of the maintenance items that were 
identified in the new long-term Parks, Facilities, and Fleet/Equipment plans for FY14-15. That said, we 
were not able to put additional cash reserves away for future years in the General Fund.  Each year we 
will work towards increasing the amount that goes to current maintenance or to the cash reserves.  
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 11 of 117 130



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

6 

 

Aligns with City Financial Policies, especially in terms of using fund balance – The City Council has 
adopted financial policies to guide  management in making sound budgetary and financial decisions. 
Two key financial policies, strictly adhered to in this proposed budget, are:  
 
-  The City of Sherwood will identify sustainable revenue levels and, to the extent possible, current 

operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues. 
 
- One-time revenues will be used for one-time expenditures or as contributions to reserves and will 

not be used to pay for established services.  
 
This proposed budget continues the practice we have developed over the last four years of carefully 
considering the impact of today’s decisions on tomorrow’s budgets. Our Finance Director uses the word 
“sustainable” to describe this practice. In this context, “sustainable” means that recurring expenses 
must be less than recurring revenues. This budget meets this practice of sustainability.  
 

Budget Highlights  
The Budget as a Whole 
 
The proposed budget for FY2014-15 has a combined operating and capital expenditure budget totaling 
$24.9 million. This represents an increase of $763,000 or 3% from the current adopted FY2013-14 
Budget.  
 

 
 
The proposed budget funds a total workforce of 104 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) positions, an increase 
of 5% from the current workforce. The following is a summary of these personnel changes: 
 

 Addition of Associate Planner position in Community Development 
 Addition of Engineering Associate 1 position in Community Development 

 Addition of half time Building Permit Tech position in Community Development 
 Addition of two positions in Community Services for operating the new Sherwood Community 

Center 
 
Total Personal Services costs are budgeted to increase 4% between the current year budget and the 
proposed FY2014-15 budget. Key personnel services’ cost increases in this proposed budget are as 
follows:  
 

 Insurance costs are budgeted to increase by 10%. Half of this increase is due to a rate 
increase; the remainder is due to adding positions that will be eligible for coverage; resulting in 
an overall increase of $130,182 compared with the current fiscal year budget. 

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

FY10-11 Actual FY11-12 Actual FY12-13 Actual FY13-14 Budget FY14-15 Budget

Total City Expenditures FY11-15 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 12 of 117 131



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

7 

 

 PERS rates reduced after state legislation was passed mandating changes to the PERS plan. 
This resulted in an overall decrease of $212,180 from an average of 24% of salary to 19% of 
salary.  

 The City is currently in negotiations with the Sherwood Police Officers Association.   

 The proposed budget includes a 1.4% cost of living increase for all employees.  

 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund for the City and it is the fund that most citizens equate 
to primary city services and programs.  Our General Fund is split into five major divisions: 

 Administration 
 Police Services 
 Public Works 
 Community Development 
 Community Services 

 
The General Fund budget for FY2014-15 is 14% higher than the adopted FY2013-14 budget on a net 
expenditure basis.  
 

 
 
General Fund – Fund Balance  
The General Fund's beginning fund balance for FY2014-15 is budgeted at $3.2 million and the ending 
fund balance is budgeted at $2.8 million. The change in fund balance is broken down as follows: 
 

Operating Revenue   $10,807,970 
Operating Expense ($10,772,691) 
Net Normal Operations        $35,279 
Less One Time Expenses Net    ($444,554) 

Change in Fund Balance ($409,275) 

       
It is important to note two major aspects related to our fund balance: 
 

 Unlike many Oregon cities during the great recession, our fund balance has increased annually 
for the past seven years. 

 Our financial policies require an unrestricted fund balance of at least 10% of fund revenue with 
a goal of 20%.  Our beginning fund balance is at 32.5% which exceeds our financial goal. 

 
The primary reason for this success is strong financial management by the Department Directors and 
staff over the past five years.  This fact was reinforced in the City’s most recent Bond Rating analysis 

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY10-11 Actual FY11-12 Actual FY12-13 Actual FY13-14 Budget FY14-15 Budget

General Fund Expenditures FY11-15 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 13 of 117 132



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

8 

 

(September 2012). The rating company commented, “The A1 rating reflects….sound financial 
operations with a recently improved general fund balance…” 
 
The chart below outlines the General Fund ending fund balance and the percentage of ending fund 
balance to revenue and the 20% goal set by Council. 
 

 
 
Key Elements of the General Fund 
 
Personnel Services  
The Personnel Services budget for FY2014-15 is $8.1 million. This is 5% higher than the current 
FY2013-14 budget. It is important to note that Personal Services costs make up 72% of the General 
Fund budget. 
 
Materials and Services 
Materials and Services (M&S) expenses are those expenses incurred during the normal course of 
conducting the business of the City. Items included in this category are professional contract services, 
supplies, utilities, and property and liability insurance.  The total net M&S expenses (expenses after 
charging out some costs to the enterprise funds) for the proposed budget for the General Fund are 
$2.5 million, a 36% increase from the current fiscal year budget.  
 
Other Expenditure Categories 

 Capital Outlay is budgeted at $316,055 which is 209% more than the FY2013-14 budget.  
 Debt Service Payments are 0.8% more than the current FY2013-14 budget. 
 There are no transfers out of the General Fund for FY2014-15. 

 
Major Concerns 
 
While this was certainly a less difficult budgeting process than the previous five years due to our 
financial strength, there are some key concerns that need to be highlighted for the immediate short-
term horizon.   
 
The first is the sustainability of the new positions in Community Development.  Development activity 
continues to be stronger than projected, but there is certainly the expectation of an eventual cooling-
off as pent-up demand slows and developable land within our city continues to shrink.   

 25%  

 31%  

 31%  

 26%   27%  25%  
 23%  

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

$3.5

$4.0

FY11-12
Actual

FY12-13
Actual

FY13-14
Projected

FY14-15
Budget

FY15-16
Projected

FY16-17
Projected

FY17-18
Projected

Millions 

General Fund Five Year Ending Fund Balance Forecast 

EFB Projections Projected 20% Goal

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 14 of 117 133



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         BUDGET MESSAGE 

 

9 

 

The second concern relates to the possible need for additional resources within the Police Department.  
This was highlighted in last year’s budget process and the question still remains unanswered in this 
proposed budget.  This proposed budget does include funding to complete the outside staffing analysis 
to help City Council and Senior Management determine the proper level of police services for our 
growing community. 
 
The third concern is related to allocating cash reserves for future maintenance costs.  With the Budget 
Committee’s direction to only utilize up to $500,000 of the fund balance for one-time expenditures, we 
are able to complete the current list of maintenance projected identified in our new plans; however, we 
are not able to put additional cash into reserves for future years. 
 
General Government and Enterprise Funds 
In addition to the General Fund, the City of Sherwood provides basic city services using other funds. 
These other “Governmental Funds” track the use of revenues that have statutory or contractual 
restrictions placed on their use. The following is a snapshot of those funds.  
 
Street Operations and Street Capital Projects Funds 
These two Street Funds track the construction and maintenance of the transportation infrastructure. 
The Street Operations Fund is stable and using current resources to meet operating needs. The Street 
Capital Projects Fund relies on SDC’s, grants, loans, and intergovernmental revenues to fund projects 
and revenue in the fund is insufficient to complete the projects in the Transportation Master Plan. 
Major projects such as the Pine Street Phase II project have been delayed. 
 
General Construction Fund 
This fund is used to manage capital projects related to parks, the senior center, and other city facilities. 
The Fund has a variety of revenue sources, but with the exception of Parks System Development 
Charges, they are all generally connected directly with a project. The revenue generated for parks 
projects is insufficient to fund the projects on the Parks Master Plan list. The City Council prioritizes 
projects as funds become available.  
 
Enterprise Funds 
The Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Water, and Telecommunications Funds all rely on user fees paid by 
the users of the systems. All are financially sound. Staffing fluctuates between these funds as 
maintenance or engineering staff is needed on projects. 
 
Conclusion  
Sherwood is a financially sound organization. We rely on diverse revenue sources, and have equally 
diverse expenditure patterns and healthy fund balances. Our Senior Leadership and Staff do an 
outstanding job in handling their respective departmental budgets and expenditures and I applaud 
them for their efforts.  Our challenge remains the same - keep our priorities balanced in the face of 
rising costs and uncertain revenues. This proposed budget presents a spending plan for FY2014-15 
that reflects the priorities, policies and goals of the Sherwood City Council and the citizens it 
represents. I would like to acknowledge and thank all involved for their efforts in developing the 
budget and contributing to the process, especially Julie Blums, Finance Director and the Department 
Directors for their input and support.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Joseph P. Gall, ICMA-CM  

City Manager 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 15 of 117 134



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  MISSION AND VALUE STATEMENT 

10 

 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Sherwood will provide services and infrastructure to support the 
highest quality of life for our residents, businesses and visitors in a fiscally 

responsible manner. 

 

 

 

Values 
 

The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes: 
 

Quality Services 

Fiscal Responsibility 

Citizen Participation 

Community Pride 

Community Partnerships 

Community Livability 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 16 of 117 135



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY    GOALS 

11 

 

Goals 
 

 
Public Safety 

 
“The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of the community 

and its citizens.” 
 
 

Infrastructure 
 

“The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 
 

Livability 
 

“The City of Sherwood will provide opportunity for responsible community 
development and growth.” 

 
 

Resident Well Being 
 

“The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to encourage a 
balanced quality of life for its citizens.” 

 
 

Economic Development 
 

“The City of Sherwood will promote responsible economic development which 

benefits the community.” 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 17 of 117 136



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY                                                            ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

12 

 
City of Sherwood Organizational Chart  
 
 

 
Sherwood Citizens

18,575
 

 
Mayor and City Council

Bill Middleton, Mayor
Linda Henderson

Bill Butterfield
Krisanna Clark
Robyn Folsom
Dave Grant
Matt Langer

 

City Recorder
 Sylvia Murphy

Municipal Court 
Judge

 Jack Morris

City Attorney
 Beery, Elsner and 

Hammond

 
City Manager

 Joe Gall

 
Assistant City 

Manager
Tom Pessemier

 
Human Resources

 
Commissions, 

Boards and 
Committees

 

 Economic 
Development

 

 
  Citywide 

Administration 
and Support

 
Brad Crawford

IT/Sherwood 
Broadband

Julie Blums

Finance
Municipal Court

 Police
 Jeff Groth

Emergency 
Management
Patrol Section

Services Section

 
 Public Works 
Craig Sheldon

Utilities
Streets
Park 

Maintenance
Facilities

 Urban Renewal 
Agency

Community 
Development
 Julia Hajduk

 

Engineering
Building

Code Compliance
Planning

 
 Community 

Services 
Kristen Switzer

Library
Senior Center
Events and 
Recreation
Volunteer 

Management
Community 

Center

Executive 
Assistant

Tina Ouellette

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 18 of 117 137



 

 

 
 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 19 of 117 138



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

13 

Budget in Total 
 
This narrative walks through components of the Budget in Total.  The major sections are sources, uses, 
and Capital Project expenditures. 
 

Sources 
 

Budgeted sources, exclusive of transfers between funds, follow.  
 

       

 

Beg Fund 
Bal 

40% 

Taxes 
13% 

Franchise 
Fees 
4% 

Inter-
govmt 
13% 

Fees 
20% 

Infrastruc
ture 

charges 
6% 

Other 
4% 

Sources - All Funds 13-14 

Beg Fund 
Bal 

50% 

Taxes 
12% 

Franchise 
Fees 
4% 

Inter-
govmt 

7% 

Fees 
18% 

Infrastruct
ure 

charges 
5% 

Other 
4% 

Sources - All Funds 14-15 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Beg Fund Bal Taxes Franchise

Fees

Inter-govmt Fees Infrastructure

charges

Other

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Sources - All Funds 
2014-15 Compared to Prior Years 

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 20 of 117 139



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

14 

Beginning and Ending fund balance 
 
Beginning fund balance is equal to the prior year’s ending fund balance.  
 
Ending fund balance is the difference between total estimated sources and total estimated 
appropriations. Ending fund balance is budgeted in three categories: 
 

1. Operating Contingency is budgeted at 5% of operational revenue in the operating funds. 

Contingency funds can be spent once authorized by a supplemental budget or transfer 

appropriation. 

2. Un-appropriated ending fund balance cannot be spent except in an emergency created by civil 

disturbance or natural disaster. 

3. Reserved for future years are total sources less total expenses, contingency, and un-

appropriated ending balance. Reserved for future years funds can be spent once authorized by 

a supplemental budget. 

If the total of contingency, un-appropriated ending fund balance, and reserved for future years is less 
than beginning fund balance, funds in the beginning balance have been used as a source of resources 
(expenditures exceeded revenues).  If they are more than beginning fund balance, fund balance has 
been increased for use as a source in future years (revenues exceeded expenditures). 
 

Taxes and franchise fees 
 
Property taxes 
 
Property taxes are levied for two purposes.  The permanent rate levy for the City of Sherwood of 
$3.2975 per $1,000 of assessed value supports General Fund operations.  Property taxes for the Debt 
Service Fund are levied in the amount needed to pay principal and interest on voter approved general 
obligation bonds.   
 
The permanent rate levy was fixed by ballot initiatives in the 1990’s and cannot be increased by the 
City.  General Fund property tax revenue depends on assessed values, which are a function of 
increased development, the annual 3% statutory increment and the effect of the Sherwood Urban 
Renewal District.  Please refer to the Property Tax Description on pages 26 and 27 for a detailed 
explanation.    
 
Total FY14 assessed value in the City of Sherwood is $1,618,300,000. The following chart shows the 
assessed value trend:  

 

$1,372 $1,435 $1,479 $1,518 $1,546 $1,618 

$500

$750

$1,000

$1,250

$1,500

$1,750

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Assessed Value 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 21 of 117 140



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

15 

Assessed values are expected to continue growing at a similar rate for the foreseeable future as land is 
developed and areas within the Urban Growth Boundary are annexed.   
 
The permanent rate levy is divided between the City General Fund and the Sherwood Urban Renewal 
Agency.  Revenue for the General Fund, the URA, and the Debt Service Fund follow. 
 

 
Property taxes represent approximately 44% of General Fund revenue.   
 
Franchise fees/Privilege Taxes 
 
Fees are collected from utilities as compensation for use of the City’s rights of way.  These fees are 
based on utility revenue, so they generally increase with population growth.   

 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Budget 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Property Tax Revenue 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Urban Renewal Agency

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

$2,000

FY 10-11 Actual FY 11-12 Actual FY 12-13 Actual FY 13-14 Projected FY 14-15 Budget

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
 

Franchise Fees 

Telephone Natural gas Cable TV Waste disposal Electricity City utility

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 22 of 117 141



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

16 

Intergovernmental 
 

Intergovernmental revenue includes: 
 

 State distributions of shared revenue and vehicle fees. 
 County support to the library as part of the Washington County Cooperative Library Service. 
 Sherwood School District for shared services. 
 Clean Water Services for shared services. 
 Federal, State, and Local Government grants. 

 

Charges for services 
 
Charges for services include: 
 

 Building, Planning, and Engineering permits 

 Recreational fees 

 Utility fees 

 

Infrastructure development charges 
 
These are fees for private development plan review and inspection and system development charges 
(SDC’s) on new construction.  SDC’s are restricted to use for capital improvement projects that support 
capacity for growth.   

 
Fines, interest and other 

 
Other revenue includes fines for traffic infractions and other violations, library fines, and interest on our 
bank accounts. 
 
Sale of fixed assets 
 
There is no sale of fixed assets contemplated in the fiscal year 2014-15 budget. 
 
Issuance of long-term debt 
 
There is no debt issuances contemplated in the fiscal year 2014-15 budget.

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 23 of 117 142



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

17 

Uses 
Uses for all funds are: 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Ending 

fund 

balance 
41% 

Personal 

services 

23% 

Materials 

& 

services 
16% 

Capital 

outlay 

11% 

Other 

1% Debt 

service 

8% 

Budgeted Uses of All 
Funds 13-14 

Ending 

fund 
balance 

46% 

Personal 

services 

22% 

Materials 

& 

services 
21% 

Capital 

outlay 

5% 

Other 

0.4% 

Debt 

service 

6% 

Budgeted Uses of All 
Funds 14-15 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Ending fund

balance

Personal

services

Materials &

services

Capital outlay Debt service Other

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Uses - All Funds 2014-15 Compared to Prior Years 

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 24 of 117 143



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

18 

Personal Services 
 
Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 
 
The following compares City staffing to population growth. 

 
 
Positions added in this budget are detailed in the Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Years on page 86.  
Significant additions are: 
 

 1 Associate Planner – grant funded 
 1 Engineering Tech I 
 .5 Building Permit Tech 
 2 Staff for the Community Center 
 1 Maintenance Worker I to take over duties previously contracted out 

 
Wages 
The budget includes a 1.4% cost of living increase at July 1 for all employees.     
 
Benefits 
There is a slight decrease in benefit costs in FY12 due to a change in plan coverage. However, overall 
benefit costs continue to increase.  The average cost of benefits per employee follows: 

 
 
The major benefits are health insurance and PERS.  Employee insurance costs are budgeted to increase 
an average of 5% in 2014-15. 
 
The most recently adopted PERS rates for the City of Sherwood are: 
 16.01% for Tier 1 & Tier 2 covered employees 

 10.81% for OPSRP covered employees 

 13.54% for OPSRP Police covered employees 

 

5.4  5.3  
5.3  

5.3  
5.6  

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

2010-11 Actual 2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

FTEs per 1,000 Citizens 

$23,511 

$21,890 

$23,754 $24,564 $25,548 

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

2010-11 Actual 2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budgeted

Benefit Costs per FTE 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 25 of 117 144



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

19 

Materials and Services 
 
Materials and services for operations, by fund, are:  
 

 
 
The change in materials and services are mainly due to work related to the new Parks, Facilities, and 
Fleet/Equipment Replacement plans. 
 

Capital Outlay 
 
Capital project expenditures are discussed in the Capital Improvement Program section. Capital outlays 
are single purchases that are budgeted within the operational budgets of the city whose value exceeds 
$5,000. The significant FY15 capital outlay expenditures are: 
 

 Program Purchase  Cost  

Police Annual lease payments on four police vehicles       41,100  

Police Lease payment on two new police vehicles       20,000  

IT Hard drives for storage 10,000 

IT Phone Lease 17,764 

Finance New/Major Upgrade of Finance Software 125,000 

Parks Water Management System 25,000 

Parks Replace playground equipment at Stella Olsen 170,000 
Parks Replace zero turn mower 14,000 
Parks Replace 1 gator 7,500 
Parks Walk behind mower 7,000 

Facilities Outdoor lighting at the Senior Center 18,000 

Water Water infrastructure repairs     25,000  

Sanitary Sanitary infrastructure repairs 25,000 

Sanitary Vehicle replacement 20,000 

Storm Storm water infrastructure repairs 158,500 

Storm Equipment and vehicle replacements 76,500 

Streets Replace crack sealer 40,000 

Telecom Fiber construction & network equipment 40,000 
 

 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

General Water Sanitary Storm Street Telecom

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s
 

Materials and Services - Operations 

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 26 of 117 145



FINANCIALS     BUDGET ANALYSIS 

 

20 

Capital Project Expenditures 
 
A portion of the total city budget is for capital projects for building or improving the City infrastructure 
to handle growth.  The projects and their total costs are detailed in the Capital Projects section.  
Expenditures for capital projects may vary dramatically between years, depending on the particular 
projects in process.   
 

 
Debt Service  
 
The budgeted principal balance of outstanding debt is: $49,003,526 

 

 
 
Payment sources for all debt expected to be outstanding at June 30, 2014 are shown in the Debt 
Service Expenditures to Maturity schedule on pages 89-91.   

 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Operating vs. Capital Expenditure 

Operating Capital

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

2011-12 Actual 2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Projected 2014-15 Budget

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

Principle Balance of Outstanding Debt 

General Obligation Bonds City Loans City Loans for URA Projects

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 27 of 117 146



FINANCIALS                                                   FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK 

 

21 

Financial Condition and Outlook 
 
Sherwood’s Aa3 rating for General Obligation Debt was affirmed by Moody’s in September 2012 in 
anticipation of a new bond issue.  At the same time Moody affirmed the City’s Full Faith and Credit 
obligations at A1. No “outlook” was given (NOO). 
 
Fees and charges are reviewed annually.  Changes are proposed by staff, reviewed by the Budget 
Committee, and adopted by the City Council.  Fees are intended to recover the costs of services which 
can be specifically attributed to a particular user, as with fees for land use applications and building 
permits, or to make some contribution toward cost, such as fees for league use of ball fields.   

 
Operations Outlook 
 
Revenue and expenditures for the General Fund are stable; one-time revenue is invariably restricted to 
specific, limited-time expenditures.  However, as detailed in the Budget Message, routine expenditures 
continue to grow faster than revenue.  Identifying funding to cover the new maintenance plans is a 
challenge staff will be working on over the next year.  
 
The Water, Sanitary sewer, and Storm water funds are self-supporting with user charges for services 
for operating needs.   
 
Street Operations Fund relies on apportionment of vehicle and gasoline taxes and licenses from the 
state and county.  Combined with dedicated street and sidewalk utility fees this fund will support the 
planned maintenance for the City’s streets and sidewalks. 
   

Capital Project Outlook 
 
Water, Sanitary sewer, and Storm water funds collect system development charges for infrastructure 
expansion; the Water Fund also reserves a portion of user charges for capital construction and related 
debt service.  These sources are adequate to fund needs for the existing City service area.  
 
Area 54/55 is a 200 acre UGB expansion that has complex and costly infrastructure 
requirements.  Concept planning shows that public infrastructure will not entirely be funded by system 
development charges generated in the area.  Funding mechanisms to address the funding shortfall will 
need to be identified as development moves forward.   
 
Area 48 is a 300 acre UGB expansion that has complex and costly infrastructure requirements.  A 
portion of the expansion area will require a sanitary sewer lift station to provide service.  Funding 
needs and potential funding mechanisms for infrastructure will be addressed during the concept 
planning. 
 
The Street Capital Fund relies on County traffic improvement fees and City system development 
charges.  Capital needs identified in the TSP exceed the projected funding, requiring that future 
construction is carefully prioritized. 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 28 of 117 147



FINANCIALS                                                                         FINANCIAL ORGANIZATION 

 

22 

Financial Organization 
 
The City’s financial records are organized by fund: operating and capital, and divisions and departments.  
These views are explained below. 
 
Funds 
 
Funds are required by generally accepted accounting principles for local governments and by Oregon 
budget law.  The purpose of funds is to demonstrate compliance with legal restrictions on the use of 
resources. The nine funds, grouped by type are described below. 
 
General:  The General Fund is the main operating fund.  It includes all resources not accounted for in other 
funds.  General fund revenues can generally be used for any government purpose. 
 
Special revenue:  The Street Operations Fund is a special revenue fund, defined in Oregon budget law, 
which accumulates money from year to year to provide for the repair and maintenance of City streets. 
 
Debt service:  This fund accounts for property tax revenues levied for payment of general obligation 
bonds.   
 
Capital projects:  The General Construction Fund accounts for acquisition or construction of capital assets, 
other than those financed by Enterprise funds. It includes city buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational 
facilities, and trails. The Street Capital Fund accounts for the construction of City streets. 
 
Enterprise:  Enterprise funds are used for activities that are similar to business enterprises, where the 
intent is that costs be recovered primarily through user charges or where determination of net income or 
loss is useful for public policy.  The enterprise funds for Water, Sanitary, and Storm are divided into 
operations and capital departments to reflect budgetary responsibility 
 
Telecommunications:  Telecommunications supports the communication needs of the city, local businesses, 
school district, and residents. Services within this utility are primarily sold and managed through third party 
service providers. Telecommunications also support economic development within Sherwood and the 
surrounding area.  
 

Divisions and Departments 
 

The General Fund is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities.  
These are grouped into five divisions for purposes of appropriations. The divisions are: 

 Administration 
 Police Services 
 Public Works 
 Community Development 
 Community Services 

 
Operating and Capital 
 
The budget includes both operation and capital items. The operating budget encompasses recurring 
expenditures necessary for day-to-day operations. The capital budget is for construction of infrastructure 
and other long-lived fixed assets. The operating budget generally changes incrementally, as population and 
services increase. The capital budget is more erratic, depending on when loan funds are received and 
construction expenditures incurred.  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 29 of 117 148



FINANCIALS                                                                                          BUDGET IN TOTAL 

23 

 
Budget in Total 

 
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted
SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 22,277,014$   19,836,490$   16,467,428$   18,983,499$   23,030,625$    23,030,625$   23,030,625$   
Revenue

Taxes 5,174,081      5,231,867      5,308,550      5,494,100      5,697,630        5,697,630       -                    
Franchise Fees 1,574,434      1,580,367      1,788,500      1,607,015      1,798,000        1,798,000       -                    
Licenses and permits 72,451           72,411           72,500           74,450           61,800            61,800           -                    
Intergovernmental 5,337,915      2,645,451      5,114,614      4,693,307      3,144,520        3,144,520       -                    
Charges for services 7,489,197      8,310,735      8,115,633      8,671,319      8,401,298        8,401,298       -                    
Infrastructure development 342,417         1,193,238      2,507,700      3,312,467      2,092,920        2,092,920       -                    
Fines, interest and other 1,541,555      1,234,805      1,193,411      1,341,680      1,302,173        1,302,173       -                    
Total revenue 21,532,050     20,268,873     24,100,908     25,194,338     22,498,341      22,498,341     -                    

Other sources
Transfers in 1,286,800      433,728         205,000         145,600         200,000           200,000          -                    
Interfund loan payments 315,296         146,640         146,000         146,000         147,000           147,000          -                    
Total other sources 1,602,096      580,368         351,000         291,600         347,000           347,000          -                    

Total sources 45,411,161     40,685,731     40,919,336     44,469,437     45,875,966      45,875,966     23,030,625     
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 5,642,372      5,759,479      6,132,099      6,126,114      6,567,649        6,567,649       -                    
Payroll taxes 568,546         558,212         667,910         666,209         742,950           742,950          -                    
Benefits 2,092,621      2,236,538      2,686,650      2,399,439      2,630,582        2,630,582       -                    
Total personal services 8,303,539      8,554,229      9,486,659      9,191,762      9,941,181        9,941,181       -                    

Materials and services
Professional & technical 2,553,963      2,657,676      2,621,451      2,473,435      4,263,432        4,263,432       -                    
Facility and equipment 1,127,650      1,206,612      1,842,768      1,741,787      2,197,840        2,197,840       -                    
Other purchased services 969,226         1,151,164      1,253,636      1,351,075      1,479,444        1,479,444       -                    
Supplies 487,155         445,526         813,654         776,893         1,276,845        1,276,845       -                    
Community activities 12,249           22,661           28,275           32,625           35,815            40,815           -                    
Minor equipment 196,098         139,263         210,958         256,445         309,200           309,200          -                    
Other materials & services (63,347)          (99,902)          (87,486)          (87,401)          (102,901)          (102,901)         -                    
Total materials & services 5,282,995      5,523,000      6,683,256      6,544,859      9,459,675        9,464,675       -                    

Capital outlay
Land 1,604,556      -                    -                    -                    -                     -                    -                    
Infrastructure 5,378,030      3,877,859      3,459,939      1,583,384      1,684,206        1,684,206       -                    
Buildings 5,989             -                    -                    123,077         18,000            18,000           -                    
Other improvements -                    136,111         627,328         313,162         -                     -                    -                    
Vehicles 100,468         41,330           71,100           71,100           113,000           113,000          -                    
Furniture and equipment 346,373         149,536         462,809         256,257         547,764           547,764          -                    
Total capital outlay 7,435,416      4,204,836      4,621,176      2,346,980      2,362,970        2,362,970       -                    

Debt service
Principal 2,161,683      1,856,065      1,906,621      1,906,621      1,817,415        1,964,415       -                    
Interest 1,360,917      1,214,102      1,162,366      1,162,366      1,102,760        1,105,760       -                    
Total debt service 3,522,599      3,070,167      3,068,987      3,068,987      2,920,175        3,070,175       -                    

Total expenditures 24,544,549     21,352,232     23,860,078     21,152,588     24,684,001      24,839,001     -                    
Other uses

Transfers out 1,030,122      350,000         266,200         286,224         200,000           200,000          -                    
Ending Fund Balance 19,836,490     18,983,499     -                    -                    -                     -                    -                    
Contingency -                    -                    16,793,058     23,030,625     1,198,236        1,198,236       266,851         
Reserved for Future Years -                    -                    -                    -                    19,793,729      19,638,729     22,763,774     
Total uses 45,411,161     40,685,731     40,919,336     44,469,437     45,875,966      45,875,966     23,030,625     

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 30 of 117 149



FINANCIALS                                                                         BUDGET IN TOTAL BY FUND 

24 

 
Budget in Total by Fund 

General Debt Street
2014-15 General Construction Service Operations
Budget Fund Fund Fund Fund

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 23,030,625   3,247,771       1,228,391    8,464     1,509,192  
Revenue

Taxes 5,697,630     4,811,700       -              885,930  -            
Francise Fees 1,798,000     1,798,000       -              -         -            
Licenses and permits 61,800         61,800            -              -         -            
Intergovernmental 3,144,520     1,843,699       -              -         1,149,552  
Charges for services 8,401,298     778,341          12,000         -         542,880     
Infrastructure development 2,092,920     112,450          266,000       -         2,000        
Fines, interest and other 1,302,173     1,254,980       775             -         6,200        
Total revenue 22,498,341   10,660,970     278,775       885,930  1,700,632  

Other sources
Transfers in 200,000       -                 200,000       -         -            
Sale of fixed assets 147,000       147,000          -              -         -            
Total other sources 347,000       147,000          200,000       -         -            

Total sources 45,875,966   14,055,741     1,707,166    894,394  3,209,824  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 6,567,649     5,363,758       40,864         -         230,528     
Payroll taxes 742,950       595,815          4,146           -         29,529       
Benefits 2,630,582     2,138,778       17,743         -         87,670       
Total personal services 9,941,181     8,098,351       62,753         -         347,727     

Materials and services
Professional & technical 4,263,432     1,360,145       100,000       -         211,700     
Facility and equipment 2,197,840     758,760          -              -         1,316,380  
Other purchased services 1,479,444     808,221          50               -         29,374       
Supplies 1,276,845     336,345          -              -         65,500       
Community activities 40,815         40,815            -              -         -            
Minor equipment 309,200       257,050          -              -         4,500        
Other materials & services (102,901)      (1,044,286)      62,901         -         173,088     
Total materials & services 9,464,675     2,517,050       162,951       -         1,800,542  

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 1,684,206     195,000          499,759       -         -            
Buildings 18,000         18,000            -              -         -            
Vehicles 113,000       73,000            -              -         -            
Furniture and equipment 547,764       181,264          250,000       -         40,000       
Total capital outlay 2,362,970     467,264          749,759       -         40,000       

Debt service
Principal 1,964,415     122,430          42,570         780,000  -            
Interest 1,105,760     17,150            5,963           114,394  -            
Total debt service 3,070,175     139,580          48,533         894,394  -            

Total expenditures 24,839,001   11,222,245     1,023,996    894,394  2,188,269  
Other uses

Transfers out 200,000       -                 -              -         -            
Ending Fund Balance -              -                 -              -         -            

Contingency 1,198,236     533,049          -              -         85,782       
Reserved for Future Years 19,638,729   2,300,447       683,170       -         935,773     
Total uses 45,875,966   14,055,741     1,707,166    894,394  3,209,824  

 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 31 of 117 150



FINANCIALS                                                                         BUDGET IN TOTAL BY FUND 

25 

 
Budget in Total by Fund 

Street
Capital Water Sanitary Storm Telecom
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 2,999,090   8,179,668   3,218,004  2,606,387  33,660   
Revenue

Taxes -             -             -           -           -         
Francise Fees -             -             -           -           -         
Licenses and permits -             -             -           -           -         
Intergovernmental -             -             151,269    -           -         
Charges for services 50,000       4,386,317   571,500    1,598,800  461,460  
Infrastructure development 892,000      379,720      408,150    32,600      -         
Fines, interest and other 2,000         22,415        5,160        10,343      300        
Total revenue 944,000      4,788,452   1,136,079  1,641,743  461,760  

Other sources
Transfers in -             -             -           -           -         
Sale of fixed assets -             -             -           -           -         
Total other sources -             -             -           -           -         

Total sources 3,943,090   12,968,120  4,354,083  4,248,130  495,420  
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 20,311       392,826      190,982    288,266    40,114   
Payroll taxes 2,087         47,128        23,655      36,856      3,734     
Benefits 7,404         166,471      78,892      117,544    16,080   
Total personal services 29,802       606,425      293,529    442,666    59,928   

Materials and services
Professional & technical 135,000      1,386,937   225,750    833,900    10,000   
Facility and equipment -             60,600        19,200      25,000      17,900   
Other purchased services 98              359,358      90,379      124,532    67,432   
Supplies -             769,800      40,550      44,050      20,600   
Community activities -             -             -           -           -         
Minor equipment -             5,000          5,600        7,050        30,000   
Other materials & services 25,947       256,500      149,681    247,968    25,300   
Total materials & services 161,045      2,838,195   531,160    1,282,500  171,232  

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 40,000       25,000        311,053    593,394    20,000   
Buildings -             -             -           -           -         
Vehicles -             -             20,000      20,000      -         
Furniture and equipment -             -             -           56,500      20,000   
Total capital outlay 40,000       25,000        331,053    669,894    40,000   

Debt service
Principal -             872,415      -           -           147,000  
Interest -             965,253      -           -           3,000     
Total debt service -             1,837,668   -           -           150,000  

Total expenditures 230,847      5,307,288   1,155,742  2,395,060  421,160  
Other uses

Transfers out 200,000      -             -           -           -         
Ending Fund Balance -             -             -           -           -         

Contingency -             403,722      28,375      124,221    23,088   
Reserved for Future Years 3,512,243   7,257,110   3,169,966  1,728,849  51,172   
Total uses 3,943,090   12,968,120  4,354,083  4,248,130  495,420  

Enterprise Funds

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 32 of 117 151



 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 33 of 117 152



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 

 

26 

General Fund 
 
The General Fund is the main operating fund.  It includes all resources not accounted for in other 
funds.  General fund revenues can generally be used for any government purpose.  The General Fund 
is split into departments which reflect city programs and managerial responsibilities.  These are 
grouped into five divisions for purposes of appropriations.   
 
The divisions are:  

  Administration 
 Police Services 
 Public Works 
 Community Development 
 Community Services 

 
Property Tax Levies 
 
There are three types of property tax levies in Oregon.  The permanent rate levy funds general city 
operations.  The debt service levy is used for principal and interest payments on general obligation 
bonds approved by the voters.  Local option levies, which Sherwood currently does not have, are voter-
approved, time-limited levies for specified purposes.     
 
The Washington County Department of Assessment and Taxation determines assessed values and 
collects taxes.  Property is assessed January 1 for the fiscal year beginning July 1.  Taxes are due 
beginning November 15, and discounts are allowed for taxes paid in full by November 15.   
 
Assessed Value 
 
Each local government’s tax rate was determined by the state in 1997.  Sherwood’s permanent rate is 
$3.2975 per $1,000 of assessed value.   No action of the city can increase the permanent tax rate. 
 
Ballot Measure 50, implemented in the 1997-98 tax year, limits assessed value to the lower of 
Maximum Assessed Value (MAV) or Real Market Value (RMV).  Maximum Assessed Value increases by 
3% annually.   
 
There are exceptions to the 3% annual increase.  Maximum Assessed Value may increase by more than 
3% if: 

 There is new construction or improvements 
 The property is partitioned or subdivided 
 Rezoning occurs and the property is used consistent with rezoning 

 
The assessed value of real property exceeded one billion dollars in 2005-06. 
 
Limits and Compression 
 
The total tax on a given piece of property is limited as follows: 

 General Government:  $10 per $1,000 of Real Market Value 
 Schools: $5 per $1,000 of Real Market Value 
 Unlimited debt service:  levies to pay bonds for capital construction projects are not subject to 

limitation.   
 
If the total tax bill exceeds the limits, taxes are reduced in a process called compression.   
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 34 of 117 153



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 

 

27 

In 2013-14, Sherwood property owners paid property taxes as follows: 

 
 
Effect of the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal District is a geographic area within the City of Sherwood, defined in the Urban 
Renewal Plan.  The purpose of the district is to eliminate blight and create an environment in which the 
private sector may develop uses consistent with the goals of the Urban Renewal Plan.  The District 
borrows money to fund infrastructure and other improvements, receives property taxes calculated on 
the increased assessed values, and uses the taxes to pay debt service on the borrowings. 
The URA began operations in 2001-02.  The assessed value in the district was determined at that date 
and became the frozen base.  In subsequent years, the incremental assessed value is the difference 
between the assessed value in the district and the frozen base.  Each year, the URA receives property 
tax attributable to the incremental assessed value; the city general fund receives property tax 
attributable to the city’s assessed value less the URA incremental value. 
 
Property tax for the URA is a portion of the permanent rate levy for the city and each overlapping tax 
district, not an addition to it.  The amount of tax for the URA is determined by the incremental 
assessed value in the Urban Renewal District, but the tax is collected by dividing the city’s (and each 
taxing entity’s) permanent rate levy.  Thus, tax for the URA appears on each tax bill in Sherwood, not 
just those in the URD.  Absent the URA, the tax would go to the City and other taxing districts -- but 
without urban renewal efforts and expenditures, the assessed values presumably would not have 
increased.   
 
The URD will cease to exist after it has incurred and repaid the maximum indebtedness specified in the 
plan, $ 45,133,469.   
 

Unlimited debt 
service 
26% 

Washington Cnty 
13% 

TVFR 
8% 

City of Sherwood 
15% 

Port of Portland 

Metro 

URD-Sherwood 
10% 

ESD-NW Regional 

Portland Comm. 
College 

1% 

School Dist - 
Sherwood 

22% 

2013-14 Tax Levy Catagories 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 35 of 117 154



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 

 

28 

2013-14 Tax  
 
A Sherwood homeowner with an assessed value of $300,000 would have paid $5,714 in property taxes, 
as follows: 

 
 
The City of Sherwood’s portion of unlimited debt service is $165.39; the remainder is for other 
jurisdictions such as Tualatin Valley Fire, Sherwood School Dist., and Washington County. 
 
Property Tax Levies 
 

General Fund

Estimated Taxable assessed value (exclusive of URA incremental 

assessed value) 1,413,849,727$     

Multiplied by the permanent rate 0.0032975

Levy 4,662,169             

Less amount uncollectable in the year levied (232,391)              

General Fund property taxes to balance the budget 4,429,778$           

Debt Service Fund

Levy 932,930$              

Less amount uncollectable in the year levied (47,000)                

Debt Service Fund property taxes to balance the budget 885,930$              

 

$1,474 

$744 

$465 

$864 

$18 $50 

$722 

$40 $74 

$1,261 

$0

$300

$600

$900

$1,200

$1,500

$1,800
U

n
lim

it
e

d
 d

eb
t

se
rv

ic
e

W
as

h
in

gt
o

n
 C

n
ty

TV
FR

C
it

y 
o

f 
Sh

e
rw

o
o

d

P
o

rt
 o

f 
P

o
rt

la
n

d

M
e

tr
o

U
R

D
 -

 S
h

e
rw

o
o

d

ES
D

 -
 N

W
 R

e
gi

o
n

al

P
o

rt
la

n
d

 C
o

m
m

.
C

o
lle

ge

Sc
h

o
o

l D
is

t 
-

Sh
e

rw
o

o
d

General Government Unlimited Debt Service Schools 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 36 of 117 155



GENERAL GOVERNMENT       GENERAL FUND 

 

29 

General Fund in Total 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 2,172,887$  2,500,483$  2,623,551$  2,964,868$  3,247,771$     3,247,771$  3,247,771$  
Revenue

Taxes 4,286,081   4,381,867   4,416,550   4,602,100   4,811,700       4,811,700   -                 
Franchise Fees 1,574,434   1,580,367   1,788,500   1,607,015   1,798,000       1,798,000   -                 
Licenses and permits 72,451        72,411        72,500        74,450        61,800            61,800        -                 
Intergovernmental 1,546,551   1,455,609   1,506,718   1,509,197   1,843,699       1,843,699   -                 
Charges for services 591,056      779,918      675,898      923,081      778,341          778,341      -                 
Infrastructure development 17,279        150,799      127,700      285,000      112,450          112,450      -                 
Fines, interest and other 1,417,739   1,093,591   1,104,447   1,189,787   1,254,980       1,254,980   -                 
Total revenue 9,505,591   9,514,562   9,692,313   10,190,630  10,660,970     10,660,970  -                 

Other sources
Transfers in 57,017        -                 -                 -                 -                    -                 -                 
Interfund loan payments 315,296      146,640      146,000      146,000      147,000          147,000      -                 
Total other sources 372,313      146,640      146,000      146,000      147,000          147,000      -                 

Total sources 12,050,791  12,161,685  12,461,864  13,301,498  14,055,741     14,055,741  3,247,771   
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 4,608,168   4,681,813   4,952,525   5,047,883   5,363,758       5,363,758   -                 
Payroll taxes 454,442      450,568      532,481      537,315      595,815          595,815      -                 
Benefits 1,692,072   1,793,241   2,167,888   1,954,249   2,138,778       2,138,778   -                 
Total personal services 6,754,682   6,925,622   7,652,894   7,539,447   8,098,351       8,098,351   -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 1,013,685   907,881      999,201      1,153,935   1,360,145       1,360,145   -                 
Facility and equipment 716,507      740,304      730,354      672,172      758,760          758,760      -                 
Other purchased services 477,166      535,220      587,025      681,509      808,221          808,221      -                 
Supplies 317,926      287,854      313,182      288,353      336,345          336,345      -                 
Community activities 12,249        22,648        28,275        32,625        35,815            40,815        -                 
Minor equipment 155,990      112,869      161,200      198,515      257,050          257,050      -                 
Other materials & services (837,381)     (928,259)     (974,403)     (853,411)     (1,044,286)      (1,044,286)  -                 
Total materials & services 1,856,142   1,678,517   1,844,834   2,173,698   2,512,050       2,517,050   -                 

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 106,047      43,684        60,000        30,000        195,000          195,000      -                 
Buildings 5,989          -                 -                 -                 18,000            18,000        -                 
Vehicles 100,468      41,330        41,100        41,100        73,000            73,000        -                 
Furniture and equipment 327,433      67,222        50,109        61,109        181,264          181,264      -                 
Total capital outlay 539,938      152,236      151,209      132,209      467,264          467,264      -                 

Debt service
Principal 164,272      111,300      115,010      115,010      122,430          122,430      -                 
Interest 35,273        29,142        23,337        23,337        17,150            17,150        -                 
Total debt service 199,546      140,442      138,347      138,347      139,580          139,580      -                 

Total expenditures 9,350,308   8,896,817   9,787,284   9,983,701   11,217,245     11,222,245  -                 
Other uses

Transfers out 200,000      300,000      50,000        70,026        -                    -                 -                 
Ending Fund Balance 2,500,483   2,964,868   -                 -                 -                    -                 -                 
Contingency -                 -                 2,477,563   3,107,771   533,049          533,049      -                 
Reserved for Future Years - PEG -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    90,000        90,000        
Reserved for Future Years - Maint. -                 -                 147,017      140,000      -                    350,000      350,000      
Reserved for Future Years -                 -                 -                 -                 2,305,447       1,860,447   2,807,771   

Total uses 12,050,791  12,161,685  12,461,864  13,301,498  14,055,741     14,055,741  3,247,771   

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 37 of 117 156



GENERAL GOVERNMENT       GENERAL FUND 

 

30 

General Fund in Total by Division 
 

Community Public Community Public Works General Fund 2014-15
Administration Development Safety Services Operations Reserve Budget

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 3,107,771        -                   -                 -                 -                    140,000         3,247,771$ 
Revenue

Taxes 4,811,700        -               -              -             -                -                4,811,700   
Francise Fees 1,798,000        -               -              -             -                -                1,798,000   
Licenses and permits 1,800              60,000          -              -             -                -                61,800       
Intergovernmental 482,500           283,846        70,280        759,573      247,500         -                1,843,699   
Charges for services 57,000            489,281        6,000          220,560      5,500             -                778,341      
Infrastructure development charges -                  112,450        -              -             -                -                112,450      
Fines, interest and other 859,580           2,500            1,500          163,400      18,000           210,000         1,254,980   
Total revenue 8,010,580        948,077        77,780        1,143,533   271,000         210,000         10,660,970 

Other sources
Interfund loan payment 147,000           -               -              -             -                -                147,000      
Total other sources 147,000           -               -              -             -                -                147,000      

Total sources 11,265,351      948,077        77,780        1,143,533   271,000         350,000         14,055,741 
USES

Expenditures
Personal services
Salaries and wages 1,163,218        771,060        1,995,122    815,317      619,041         -                5,363,758   
Payroll taxes 106,428           73,918          262,530       75,957        76,982           -                595,815      
Benefits 467,444           309,562        813,576       288,819      259,377         -                2,138,778   
Total personal services 1,737,090        1,154,540     3,071,228    1,180,093   955,400         -                8,098,351   

Materials and services
Professional & technical services 471,650           363,300        259,900       89,720        175,575         -                1,360,145   
Facility and equipment 225,200           -               63,000        4,600          465,960         -                758,760      
Other purchased services 566,628           56,125          94,094        53,325        38,049           -                808,221      
Supplies 12,250            7,095            43,250        143,850      129,900         -                336,345      
Community activities 18,040            75                3,000          16,400        3,300             -                40,815       
Minor equipment 166,000           -               -              75,250        15,800           -                257,050      
Other materials and services (845,900)          (198,386)       -              -             -                -                (1,044,286)  
Total materials and services 613,868           228,209        463,244       383,145      828,584         -                2,517,050   

Capital outlay
Infrastructure -                  -               -              -             195,000         -                195,000      
Buildings -                  -               -              -             18,000           -                18,000       
Vehicles -                  -               61,000        -             12,000           -                73,000       
Furniture and equipment 152,764           -               -              -             28,500           -                181,264      
Total capital outlay 152,764           -               61,000        -             253,500         -                467,264      

Debt service
Principal 122,430           -               -              -             -                -                122,430      
Interest 17,150            -               -              -             -                -                17,150       
Total debt service 139,580           -               -              -             -                -                139,580      

Total expenditures 2,643,302        1,382,749     3,595,472    1,563,238   2,037,484       -                    11,222,245 
Other uses
Ending Fund Balance -                  -               -              -             -                -                -             
Contingency 533,049           -               -              -             -                -                533,049      
Reserved for Future Years - PEG 90,000            -               -              -             -                -                90,000       
Reserved for Future Years - Maint. -                  -               -              -             -                350,000         350,000      
Reserved for Future Years 1,860,447        -               -              -             -                -                1,860,447   
Total uses 5,126,798        1,382,749     3,595,472    1,563,238   2,037,484       350,000         14,055,741 
Net sources (uses) 6,138,553$      (434,672)$     (3,517,692)$ (419,705)$   (1,766,484)$    -$                  -$              

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 38 of 117 157



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 

 

31 

Administration Division 
 
Administration provides leadership and support for all City functions including the City Council.  
Administration includes the City Council, City Recorder, City Manager, Assistant City Manager, 
Information Technology, Human Resources, Finance and Municipal Court. 
 

All general government revenue such as taxes and franchise fees are posted to the Administration. 
 

 
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget
Revenue

Taxes 4,286,081    4,381,867    4,416,550   4,602,100   4,811,700       
Franchise Fees 1,574,434    1,580,367    1,788,500   1,607,015   1,798,000       
Licenses and Permits 60,626        59,436        61,500        62,950        1,800             
Intergovernmental 474,382       468,939       474,000      488,500      482,500          
Charges for Services 44,551        43,736        43,300        44,661        57,000            
Other Revenue 1,346,832    995,447       1,048,347   990,178      859,580          
Transfers in & Other Sources 372,313       146,640       146,000      146,000      147,000          
Total revenue 8,159,219    7,676,431    7,978,197   7,941,404   8,157,580       

Expenditures
Personal services 1,654,075    1,586,997    1,790,739   1,703,791   1,737,090       
Materials and services 575,290       398,075       442,063      696,530      613,868          
Capital outlay 153,417       52,046        50,109        61,109        152,764          
Debt service 138,451       140,442       138,347      138,347      139,580          
Transfers out & Other Sources 200,000       300,000       50,000        70,026        -                    

Total expenditures 2,721,234    2,477,560    2,471,258   2,669,803   2,643,302       

Net revenue (expenditures) 5,437,985    5,198,871    5,506,939   5,271,601   5,514,278       

FTE 17.4 15.6 16.4 17.5 16.4
 

General Fund Reserves 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

Beginning Fund Balance -              -              -             -             140,000          
Revenue

Other Revenue
Financial Software -              -              -             100,000      (100,000)         
Community Center -              -              -             40,000        (40,000)           
FY15 Maintenance Contribution -              -              -             -                195,807          
Additional FY15 Contribution -              -              -             -                154,193          

Total revenue -                 -                 -                 140,000      350,000          
Total expenditures -                 -                 -                 -                -                    

Reserved for Future Years -                 -                 -                 140,000      350,000          

 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 39 of 117 158



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ADMINISTRATION 

 

32 

City Manager 
 
City Manager provides leadership, coordination and management for the City and is responsible for 
establishing general administrative policies that govern the operations of the city.  The City Manager, 
along with the Assistant City Manager and with input from his Senior Management team, also supports 
and assists the Mayor and City Councilor’s in their roles as policy makers by providing accurate and 
timely information and appropriate policy alternatives.  The City Manager as an appointed officer by the 
City Council also works closely with the other three appointed officers, the City Attorney, City Recorder 
and Municipal Court Judge.  These appointed, contract employees also provide oversight for contracts, 
budget development, official records, legislative activities, public information and municipal elections. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 

 
 Received approval and adopted budget by City Council for 2013-2014 budget. 
 Began Construction of Sherwood Community Center Building 
 Completion of New Turf Field at Snyder Park 
 Completion of Downtown Streetscapes Project, Phase 2 (Railroad Street, Washington Street) 

 Review of the Sherwood Charter by Charter Review Committee 
 
2014-15 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 

Oversee all divisions and departments in their efforts to meet the City’s goals. 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 40 of 117 159



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

33 

City Council and Recorder 
 
The seven-member City Council is composed of an elected Mayor and six elected Councilors.  The 
Council members serve a four year term and the Mayor serves two years. The City Council is the 
legislative branch of our local government which is responsible for setting policies.  This is 
accomplished through the adoption of ordinances and resolutions.  City Council meets in regular 
monthly meetings.  In addition Council work sessions are held to study upcoming issues. The City 
Recorder is responsible for the management of City records and provides administrative support to the 
Council.  
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 City Recorder continues to populate City website with City Council meeting records 
 City Recorder received Master Municipal Clerks Certification in August 2013 from the 

International Institute of Municipal Clerks and continues with professional development and 
education 

 The City Recorder trains for and holds the position of City Liaison Officer on City’s Emergency 
Management Team 

 City Council recognized approximately 139 Sherwood High School students for Academic and 
Athletic Achievements and recognized 22 Eagle Scouts in 2012-13 

 City Recorder supported Boy Scouts of America in earning Merit Badges by providing tours of 
government facilities and educating on government practices 

 Hosted Sister City of Edogawa Japan and coordinated visit of 20 students 
 Coordinated City Council recognition of local organizations and community members 

 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood, City Recorder supports all City departments in achieving the Goals of the City 
by supporting the values identified as important by City leaders. 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services & Fiscal Responsibility 
 
Strategies: 
 
 Develop and Implement a Records Management program 

 
Activities: 

 Provide staff training on records management, writing legislation and Code 
amendments, keep staff apprised of Oregon Administrative Rules and Retention 
Schedules 

 Prepare records for Records Archive Room, creating electronic records, review 
retention dates, support staff in preparing records for destruction and abiding by 
Oregon Administrative Rules 

 Manage Requests for Records, responded to and fulfill 100+ Request for Records, 
and continues to work towards streamlining efficiencies 

 Record documents with local government agencies 
 Responsible for maintaining the Sherwood Municipal Code and managing the public 

link via the City website, streamlining efficiencies 
 

Performance Measures: 
 Conducted Records Management Day at all City Facilities 

 Coordinated and oversee amendments to the Municipal Code 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 41 of 117 160



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

34 

City Council and Recorder 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services & Citizen Participation 
 
Strategies: 

 
Provide support to the City Council and Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors. 

 
Activities: 

 Prepare Council & URA Board agenda’s and meeting materials 
 Prepare and post public notices 
 Prepare legislation for adoption and catalog records 
 Transcribe meeting minutes 
 Ensure meeting records are complete and accurate 
 Manage all correspondences of elected officials 
 Serve as contact person for elected officials 
 Coordinate Council participation in community events, parades and festivals 
 Coordinate annual student achievement awards 
 Coordinate monthly Boy Scout and Girl Scout achievement awards 

 Produce and manage City Council/City Recorder annual budget 
 

Performance Measures: 

 Coordinated monthly City Council meetings and URA Board meetings as needed, 
prepare materials and transcribe meeting minutes 

 Prepare approximately 95 pieces of legislation for City Council & URA Board 
 Awarded 139 Academic & Athletic Achievement Certificates in 2013 
 Awarded 22 Eagle Scout Award Certificates in 2013 

 
Serve as the City Elections Official 

 
Activities: 

 Coordinate and oversee City elections,  
 Abide by Oregon Election Laws, stay apprised of new regulations  
 Ensure proper public noticing 
 Canvass election results and record with County Elections Office 

 
Performance Measure: 

 Oversaw 2013 election processes; Annexation Ballot Measure, Initiative Petition and 

3 Recall Petitions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 42 of 117 161



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

35 

Information Technologies 
 
The Information Technologies department provides technical support, troubleshooting and 
maintenance of computer hardware and software used by the city.  The department operates and 
maintains the network, servers, phone systems, Sherwood Broadband, and Sherwood public access 
channel.  This department also manages software licensing, assists departments in improving service 
through effective use of technology and provides training to staff. 
 
2013-2014 Accomplishments 
  

 Upgraded and expanded the city’s Virtualization and Storage infrastructure, increasing 
performance and capacity. 

 Migrated the city’s website to a new software version and configuration, increasing the ease of 
use and online services. 

 Worked closely with the Sherwood School District to launch a proof of concept video production 
class utilizing City resources. 

 Completed major upgrades to the city’s email and authentication systems 
 Enhanced our alerting and monitoring through closer integration with our various systems and 

networks, resulting in more proactive responses.  

 Implemented the offsite storage component of our data backup plan, increasing the overall 
protection of City data. 

 Implemented a Mobile Device Management solution allowing the IT department to administer 
and set policies for mobile devices used by staff. 
 
 

2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Information Technology Department supports all the technical needs of the 
employees of Sherwood along with support to the Sherwood Broadband utility and its customers. 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 
 
Strategies: 

 
Continue IT Service Management improvements 

 
Activities: 

 Develop automated workflows for common IT processes 
 Continue building upon end user documentation and training opportunities 
 Build upon the current IT knowledge management system 

 Continue the development of IT policies and standards  

 
Performance Measure: 

 Help Desk satisfaction rate 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Community Pride 
 
Strategies: 

 
Enhance the community information presented on the website and cable access channel 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 43 of 117 162



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

36 

Information Technologies 
 
 Activities: 

 Continue to enhance the city’s website through electronic services (shelter 
reservation, license renew, etc.) 

 Increase staff usage of the website through additional trainings and usability 
improvements 

 Work with Sherwood School District on developing a program for students to submit 
content to the cable channel and assist in cable channel operations 

 Integrate Social Media into the city’s website and develop a policy for its use 

 
Performance Measure: 

 Visitors to the city’s website and average time spent on the site 
 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Fiscal Responsibility 
 
Strategies: 

 
Continue current server and storage consolidation efforts 
 

Activities: 
 Continue migrating city servers and storage to a consolidated infrastructure 
 Formalize a disaster recovery plan that is based off the new consolidated 

infrastructure and backup software 

 Continue testing recoverability from the cities disaster recovery site 

 
Performance Measure: 

 Server consolidation ratio and percentage of servers virtualized. 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

FY 10-11 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 13-14 Projected FY 14-15 Budget

Number of Systems Supported per IT FTE 

Servers Applications Computers

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 44 of 117 163



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

37 

Human Resources & Risk Management  
 
The Human Resource Department provides personnel support for all City employees.  This department 
also includes recruitment, training and development, benefit and compensation, and salary 
classifications and is responsible for managing and updating The City of Sherwood Employee Manual 
and Employee Policies.  Manages two union contracts and leads employee advocacy.  Risk 
Management is responsible for managing the policies and processing claims for workers’ compensation, 
property, auto and equipment and liability insurance.  This department also reviews and manages the 
City’s benefit package to insure the best possible rates and protection for employees at a reasonable 
rate.   
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Retain, recruit and train a top quality work force 
 Manage all lines of insurance coverage for the City  
 Lead in Employee Advocacy 
 Managed Union Contracts 

 Obtained Risk Management Certification 
 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Human Resource Department goals are the Values identified as important by 
City leaders. 
 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Fiscal Responsibility 
  
Strategies: 

 
Develop and Implement a fiscally responsible Risk Management Plan 

 
Activities: 

 Create and implement Risk Management Tools. 
 Promote a safe work environment by providing proper training and ergonomic work 

place for employees. 

 Manage Workers’ Compensation Claims and promote an “Early Return to Work” plan. 
 Provide employee safety training for improved on the job safety. 

 
Performance Measures: 

 100% of all workers comp claims will participate in an “early return to work” plan. 
 All divisions are represented on the City of Sherwood safety committee. 

 Be proactive regarding Risk Management activities for all City Departments. 
 

Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop and Implement Employee Training 
 

 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 45 of 117 164



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

38 

Human Resources & Risk Management  

 
Activities: 

 Create an On-Line Employee Orientation and Training Tool 
 Organize on-site training for employees and management 
 Attend Risk Management, Employee Relations and Policy Training Seminars to keep 

up to date on Human Resource laws and trends 

 Work with Managers/Supervisors and Directors to motivate and further train 
employees on all aspects of the job functions, team work, customer service and time 
management.  Adding additional training topics throughout the year as needed 

 
Performance Measures: 

 Implementation of employee online training program. 
 Conduct quarterly training for employees 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.15 

6.62 

7.24 
7.36 

5.5

6

6.5

7

7.5

2011 2012 2013 2014

Average Years of Service per Employee 

23% 

25% 

26% 

27% 

22%

24%

26%

28%

2011 2012 2013 2014

% of Employees over 10 Years of Service 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 46 of 117 165



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

39 

Finance 
 
The Finance department provides financial information, oversight and management.  Finance is 
responsible for the annual budget, annual audit, debt management, payroll, cash management, and 
accounts payable. Municipal Court is part of the Finance Department, and is responsible for processing 
all citations and violations issued by the Sherwood Police Department.   
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Received the GFOA Budget Award for the Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget document 
 Received the GFOA Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for FY11-12 
 Prepared Consolidated Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2012-13 audit and submitted it to 

GFOA for national recognition. 
 Maintained the City’s Aa3 General Obligation debt rating and A1 Full Faith and Credit debt 

rating. 
 Managed finances as to increase the General Fund balance for the fifth consecutive year. 
 Reorganized the Finance Department to better utilize staff and increase efficiencies and 

productivity 

 The Finance Director received her Oregon Municipal Finance Officer Certification 
 

 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
The City of Sherwood Finance Department supports all other departments in achieving the Goals of the 
City by Supporting the Values identified as important by City leaders. 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Fiscal Responsibility 
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop and implement a fiscally responsible budget 
 
 Activities: 

 Budget preparation and monitoring 
 Process receipts, purchasing, payments and deposits 

 
 Performance Measures: 

 Receive the GFOA Budget Award 
 Process all cash receipts within 48 hours of receipt 
 All vendors are paid within 30 days of receipt of invoices 

 
Comply with State Auditing Guidelines 

 
 Activities: 

 Prepare work papers and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 
 Performance Measure: 

 Meet all statutory requirements and deadlines for preparing and publishing the 
CAFR 

 Receive the GFOA Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 47 of 117 166



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                  ADMINISTRATION 
 

40 

Finance 
 

Update and maintain the City’s Payroll System 
 

 Activities: 

 Review and process time sheets 
 Process all Federal and State Tax Reporting 
 Update and Maintain PERS reporting requirements 

 
 Performance Measure: 

 All employees are paid on time and all statutory requirements are met. 
 
Develop and Implement City Financing and Investment portfolios 

 
 Activities 

 Monitor Bank and LGIP accounts 
 Develop and implement financing arrangements for City projects 

 
 Performance Measure: 

 A funding plan will be identified for all City projects prior to the projects start 
dates 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 
 
Strategies: 
 

Develop and Maintain Customer Oriented Court Administration 
 
 Activities: 

 Import and track citations 
 Process arraignment and trial sessions 
 Assure compliance with Oregon Statutes and Administrative Rules 

 
 Performance Measures: 

 All phone calls are responded to within 24 hours 
 Mail correspondence is responded to within 5 days of receipt  

(With staffing and work load fluctuations, we have not met these standards) 
 

 
 

0

4,000

8,000

12,000

FY 10-11
Actual

FY 11-12
Actual

FY 12-13
Actual

FY 13-14
Projected

FY 14-15
Budget

Court Violations Processed  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 48 of 117 167



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                                                    COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

41 

Community Development Division 
 
To provide overall management and administrative support for the City’s Community Development 
Division.  This division includes planning, engineering, and building.  Community Development strives 
to provide efficient, consistent, and seamless private and public development services. 
 
 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

Budget
Revenue

Licenses and Permits -               -               -                 -                60,000         
Intergovernmental 3,075        28,237       3,200          12,396        283,846       
Charges for Services 295,842     481,848     385,598      628,087      489,281       
Infrastructure & Development fees 17,279       150,799     127,700      285,000      112,450       
Other Revenue -               -               -                 -                2,500          
Total revenue 316,196     660,884     516,498      925,483      948,077       

Expenditures
Personal services 776,917     879,003     920,976      967,129      1,154,540    
Materials and services (8,373)       (844)          63,909        169,399      228,209       

Total expenditures 768,544     878,160     984,885      1,136,528   1,382,749    

Net revenue (expenditures) (452,348)    (217,276)    (468,387)     (211,045)     (434,672)      

FTE 8.6            8.6            9.0             10.0           12.1             
 
 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 49 of 117 168



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

42 

 
Community Development Division  

 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 

 
The City of Sherwood Community Development Department provides quality current and long range 
planning, building, and engineering services to support the infrastructure, livability, well-being and 
economic development of the community. 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Fiscal Responsibility 
 
Strategies: 
 

Ensure that staff is efficient and effective in providing the highest high level of customer service 
and development review. 

 
Activities: 

 Track time spent on activities including customer service 
 Monitor time spent by staff on projects 
 

Performance Measures 
 Timecards are completely filled out and reviewed by manager 
 Track average time taken to process review 

 
Value:  The City of Sherwood Values and Promotes Quality Services 

 
Strategies: 
 

Provide excellent customer services for citizens, developers, and other customers at City Hall 
 

Activities: 

 Assist customers with applicable forms and applications 
 Provide prompt response to phone calls, e-mails and in-person inquiries 
 Attend trainings as necessary and appropriate to ensure continued knowledge in 

the field 
 Provide over the counter assistance whenever possible  

 Process applications and permits in a timely manner 
 Refine public involvement process to be more clear and inclusive 
 Implement a customer satisfaction survey 

 
Performance Measure 

 100% of all Type III and IV applications have first public hearing within 6-8 
weeks 

 100% of all Type II applications have decision issued within 8 weeks 
 100% of all Type 1 permits processed within 2 weeks 
 Track customer service contacts made 
 Track and resolve all issues in a database format. 
 Average Engineering turn-around on first review of public improvement plans is 4 

weeks; average turn around on subsequent review is 2 weeks 

 Average Building department turn-around on first review of building plans is 2 
weeks; average turn around on subsequent review is 2 weeks 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 50 of 117 169



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

43 

 
Community Development Division  

 
Provide efficient processes for developers. 
 

Activities: 
 Prepare forms, applications and instructions as necessary 
 Maintain and provide current City Codes and Standards in a user friendly format 
 Assure compliance with adopted current Statewide and Regional codes and 

Standards 

 Explore opportunities for increased efficiencies through use of technology 
 Evaluate existing processes and explore opportunities to create efficiencies  

 
Performance Measure 

 Keep stock of forms and applications available in the lobby at all times. 
 Adopt current Statewide and Regional codes when required 
 Monitor average time taken to process reviews 

 
Goal:  Public Safety:   “The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of the 
community and its citizens.”  

 
Strategies: 

 
Require projects to follow up to date Codes and Standards to ensure public safety 
 

Activities: 

 Maintain and provide current City Codes and Standards 
 Assure compliance with adopted current City, Statewide and Regional Codes and 

Standards through land use and plan review and inspection. 

 Design projects to comply with all Codes, Standards and Applicable Permits 
 

Performance Measure 
 Adopt current Statewide and Regional codes when required 
 

Respond to inquiries and requests from public for traffic control changes. 

 
Activities: 

 Respond to initial inquiries and requests in a timely fashion and document 
citizens’ concerns and request. 

 Review and research citizen inquiries and requests using current standards, 
practices, and policies. 

 Inform citizens of outcome of reviews in a timely fashion. 
 

Performance Measure 

 Respond to all inquiries with the Public Works and Public Safety Divisions 
 Track all requests with issues database 

 
Goal:  Infrastructure:   “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for 
its citizens to live, work and play.”  
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 51 of 117 170



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

44 

 

Community Development Division  

 
Strategies: 
 

Develop Capital Improvement Programs to ensure infrastructure is available for citizens and 
development 

 
Activities: 

 Prepare Capital Improvement Plans 
 Prepare and Update Master plans 
 Provide recommendations for financial plans to ensure funds are available to 

create and maintain infrastructure  
 
Performance Measure 

 Include Capital improvement plan items in current budget 
 Update all Master plans according to schedule outlined in plan or earlier as 

necessary.  
 Update methodologies for system development charges and fees. 

 
Design and Construct Capital Projects in a timely manner to allow orderly development 

 
Activities: 

 Community Center Construction management 
 Columbia Street Regional Stormwater Facility 
 Tonquin Employment Land sanitary upgrade 
 Street Maintenance Projects 

 
Goal:  Livability:   “The City of Sherwood will provide opportunity for responsible 
community development and growth.”  

 
Strategies: 

Develop and implement plans for undeveloped areas in the Urban Growth Boundary for 
implementation and for areas of potential re-development 

 
Activities: 

 Annexation of Tonquin Industrial Area 
 99W corridor plan 
 Concept planning for urban reserve areas adjacent to Sherwood 

 Update the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
 

Performance Measure 

 Successfully annex areas into the City of Sherwood 
 Develop plans for adoption by Council  

 
Work with Regional Partners to develop consistent plans that will benefit  
Sherwood and the surrounding communities 

 
Activities: 

 SW Corridor Planning 
 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Review 

 TSP update 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 52 of 117 171



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

45 

 
Community Development Division  

 
 Tonquin Trail/Cedar Creek Trail 
 Monitor and participate in regional discussions regarding urban growth boundary 

decisions 

 
Performance Measure 

 Plans adopted are coordinated and consistent with regional partner’s plans 

 
Review existing development code to ensure development continues to reflect community 
values 

 
Activities: 

 Old Town Standards 
 Density clarification for PUD, multi-family and mixed use 
 PUD process and standards 
 Comprehensive housekeeping code update 
 

Performance Measure 

 Hold meetings with Planning Commission Council and Public. 
 Adopt ordinances that address issues as approved by Council. 
 

Goal:  Resident Well Being:   “The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services 
to encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens”  

 
Strategies: 
 

Work with Regional Partners to provide amenities consistent with the Transportation and Park 
Master Plans 

 
Activities: 

 Apply for applicable funds for street, bike and pedestrian facilities 
 Cedar Creek Trail design and construction 
 Coordinate with Washington County on their transportation system update 

 Coordinate and engage with Metro on the Regional Transportation Plan update 
 Work with Tri-Met on local transit service enhancement 

 
Performance Measure 

 These projects will span multiple years.  Make consistent progress. 
 

Goal:  Economic Development:   “The City of Sherwood will promote responsible economic 
development which benefits the community.”  

 
Strategies: 

 
Provide Infrastructure for City owned lands to stimulate economic development 

 
Activities: 

 Tannery Site Acquisition and Development 
 Annexation of Tonquin Employment lands 

  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 53 of 117 172



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

46 

 
Planning 
 
The Planning Department plays an integral role in shaping the long term character of the City 
through the development and implementation of the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan and other 
long range planning documents.  The plans are intended to protect the personal, 
environmental, and economic health of the community, and have been instrumental in helping 
make Sherwood Money magazine’s 5th most livable city in the United States. The Planning 
Department currently consists of the Planning Manager, a Senior Planner, a Department 
Program Coordinator, and the City Hall Receptionist.  
  
Current planning is responsible for permitting and development review, and implements the 
City's development regulations that govern land use, site development, land divisions, parking, 
landscaping, signage, and environmental resource protection. Planners meet with citizens, 
business owners, developers, and decision makers to assist in facilitating quality development.  
 
Long-range planning activities include maintaining, updating, and implementing the 
Comprehensive Plan and other planning documents which help to guide the design and 
function of Sherwood’s built and natural environments. Planners also help to implement new 
planning programs intended to address state, federal, and local issues facing the future of the 
City. Planners also monitor and coordinate on issues of countywide and regional significance.   
This year’s budget reflects the continuation of the above technical services along with specific 
projects. 
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

  Processed the majority of land use applications within 6-8 weeks 

 Finalized intergovernmental agreements and selected consultants for the Cedar Creek 
Trail. 

 Participated in the Southwest Corridor Planning process. 
 Review of the Sherwood Community Center  
 Provided the Planning Commission with additional training opportunities and 

publications 

 Competed for and received two grants for future planning of the Tonquin 
Employment Area and preliminary planning for the Urban Reserve Areas west of 
Sherwood. 

 Assisted Engineering in updating the Transportation System Plan.  

 Updated the Buildable Lands Inventory for the Metro growth report and school district 
 Implemented a new citizen participation forum which included facilitation by the 

Planning Commissioners 

 Involved the public through a series of open houses and online survey 
 Coordination and participation with regional partners on issues of regional and local 

importance. 

 Completed the Town Center Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 54 of 117 173



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

47 

 

Planning 
 
Land Use Applications Processed 
 

Type 2 applications are staff level decisions made by the Senior Planner and Planning 
Manager.  Generally these are straight forward, smaller in size, and require no discretion in 
making the decision. They do require public and agency notice. Type 2 applications include minor 
land partitions, small subdivisions on up to 10-lots.  
 
Type 3 applications require a public hearing and decision by a Hearings Officer, and include such 
reviews as Conditional Use permits, Site Plan Reviews on projects between 15,001 and 40,000 
square feet, and subdivisions that create between 11-50 lots.   
 
Type 4 applications require a public hearing and decision by the Planning Commission, and 
include Site Plan Review on projects over 40,000 square feet, subdivisions over 50 lots, and class 
A variances.  
 
Type 5 applications require a legislative decision made by the City Council after a public 
hearing and after the Planning Commission has conducted a public hearing and made a 
recommendation to the City Council. Type 5 reviews include Annexations, Plan Map 
Amendments, Plan Text Amendments, and Planned unit Developments.  
 
 

 
  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

FY 10-11 Actual FY 11-12 Actual FY 12-13 Actual FY 13-14 Projected FY 14-15 Budget

Land Use Applications Processed 

Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 Type 5

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 55 of 117 174



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

48 

 
Building 
 
The Building Department’s responsibilities are to review and approve plans, issue permits, and perform 
inspections for new construction in compliance with the State of Oregon’s building, plumbing, 
mechanical, solar, manufactured dwelling, and energy codes.  The Department assists the public and 
professionals with information relevant to the City’s building and development codes. Staff works with 
local jurisdictions, agencies and builders in order to improve the construction standards in the city and 
ensure the public’s health and safety.  
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 As a team we have worked closely with NW Natural Gas in converting the BMC Lumber site 
into their new regional offices and training facility. 

 Completed required plan review/inspections and issued occupancy approvals for 17 new 
single family dwellings (January 2013 through January 2014).  

 Inter-departmentally coordinated submission, review, inspections, and occupancy approval 
for the two Cannery Square apartment buildings, a total of 101 new dwelling units. 

 Review, permitting, inspections, and occupancy approval for The Springs Memory Care 
facility.  

 Review, permitting, and inspections for Sentinel R/V storage facility.  
 Review, permitting, and inspections for U-Haul storage facility.  
 We have continued to provide excellent, knowledgeable customer service to people planning 

any type of addition, remodel, or new construction in Sherwood.   

 We have continued to educate the public concerning permit requirements and the benefits 
permits provide in protecting their property, health and safety. 

 As a group have participated in City wide emergency management training and exercises. 
 

FTE per year to process permits and inspections 

FY 11-12 Actual FY 12-13 Actual FY 13-14 Projected FY 14-15 Budget 

2.25 1.97 2.52 3.31 

 
 

 
 
 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

FY 10-11 Actual FY 11-12 Actual FY 12-13 Actual FY 13-14
Projected

FY14-15 Budget

Building Permits and Inspections 

Permits Inspections

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 56 of 117 175



GENERAL GOVERNMENT   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

49 

 
Engineering 
 
The Engineering Department plans, designs, and oversees construction of the City’s Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP’s), which include streets, storm water systems, sanitary sewer systems, 
water systems, and park facilities.  The Department is also responsible for review and approval of all 
private development projects that include installation of public infrastructure as part of the 
development.  The Department conducts inspection on the construction of public infrastructure projects 
to ensure that these facilities meet the City’s standards for materials and installation.  The Department 
issues right-of-way permits for all work performed within the public right-of-way, and oversee erosion 
and sediment runoff control on any construction activity within the City.  The Department also provides 
estimates and final SDC fee assessments on private development projects. 
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Coordinated completion of the Sherwood Community Center design and now overseeing the 
construction of the facility. 

 Initiated and progressed the City Transportation System Plan update through the public and 
inter-jurisdictional agency review and comment process.  Project is funded through an ODOT 
Transportation Growth Management (TGM) Grant. 

 Completed in-house design and currently managing construction of the Tonquin Employment 
Area Sanitary Sewer Upgrade. 

 Coordinated with developer for the construction of Langer Farms Parkway north between 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Hwy 99W. 

 Coordinated with developers on several large private development projects, including the 
Sentinel Storage Annex site development, Rychlick Farms Subdivision development, the Wal-Mart 
store site development, the Cannery Residences complex development, and the Daybreak 
Subdivision site development. 

 Coordinated with Washington County and other agencies regarding transportation issues. 
 Provided review and approval for several smaller private development projects within the City. 
 Responded to citizen concerns regarding several traffic and pedestrian issues throughout the 

City.  Coordinated with City Police Department and Public Works to provide remedies. 
 

 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

To
ta

l H
o

u
rs

 

Engineering Department Utilization 

FY 10/11 Actual FY 11/12 Actual FY 12/13 Actual FY 13/14 Projected FY 14/15 Budget

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 57 of 117 176



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              POLICE SERVICES 

 

50 

Police Services Division 
 
Our Mission Statement 
 
The Sherwood Police Department is dedicated to providing professional law enforcement services and 
preserving the quality of life for its citizens and community. 
 
Our Vision 
 
The Sherwood Police Department is a highly respected law enforcement agency. We strive to be 
technically superior, highly trained and constantly evolving.  We work to remain an agency of 
destination for law enforcement professionals. We seek to remain flexible while keeping ahead of 
growth; always providing the highest level of service to our community. 
 
Our Organizational Values 
 
Integrity: We are upright in action and resolute in our conviction. 
Professionalism: We exude character; demonstrate competence & proficiency and value training. 
Accountability: We are responsible, self-disciplined and transparent. 
Reliability: We are vigilant, responsive and steadfast. 
Courage: We demonstrate strength in the face of danger or uncertainty. 
Compassion: We are understanding, human and kind. 

 

 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

Budget
Revenue

Licenses and Permits 11,825       12,975       11,000        11,500        -                 
Intergovernmental 259,451     74,721       69,000        48,150        70,280        
Charges for Services 6,227        7,344        6,000          6,700         6,000          
Other Revenue 2,650        36,263       2,500          1,500         1,500          
Total revenue 280,154     131,303     88,500        67,850        77,780        

Expenditures
Personal services 2,701,994  2,728,948  3,039,688   2,987,552   3,071,228   
Materials and services 439,982     447,262     441,589      437,069      463,244      
Capital outlay 266,980     56,506       41,100        41,100        61,000        

Total expenditures 3,408,956  3,232,717  3,522,377   3,465,721   3,595,472   

Net revenue (expenditures) (3,128,802) (3,101,414) (3,433,877)  (3,397,871)  (3,517,692)  

FTE 26.3          25.6          25.3           25.2           25.6            

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 58 of 117 177



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              POLICE SERVICES 

 

51 

Police Services Division 
 

Our Purpose 
 
The Sherwood Police Department is a publicly funded municipal government agency whose primary 
purpose is to serve the community. We have tremendous responsibility and are given unique trust; as 
such, it is imperative that we remain open and transparent, hold ourselves accountable and abide by 
the following standards: 
 

 Adherence to the highest level of professionalism and integrity 

 Abide by Industry Best Practices 

 Apply sound business management principles, and 

 Operate as a value based organization 

 

As a public agency, we exist for the community and believe in the philosophy that the police are the 
public and the public are the police. We believe that law enforcement is a fundamental and critical 
service to the community and must be maintained as a priority. 
 
Our Strategic Objectives (SO): 
 

1. Safety: Doing everything we can to keep the community safe and out of harm’s way. 

2. Quality of Life: Working to make our community a place people enjoy. 

3. Professionalism: Being responsible, honest and accountable. 

4. Sustainability: Maintain diverse and productive levels of service over time. 

5. Relationships: Cultivating partnerships with the community, other organizations and peers. 

6. Transparency: Operate in a manner that is easy for the community to see what we do and why.  

7. Progressive: Adapting, evolving and changing; staying up to date with ideas, technology and 

strategies. 

 
2013 Accomplishments (Based on calendar year) 
 

 Conducted over 6,000 “extra patrols” in the city 
 Handled over 2,000 traffic complaints & directed traffic patrols 
 Hosted 4 free Child Safety Seat Clinics 
 Participated and/or assisted in at least 16 community events 
 Followed up 1,964 patrol investigations 

 Maintained 2012 violent crime rate of .60 violent crimes per 1,000 population, compared to 
average of 1.77 for liked sized cities in Oregon 

 Maintained 2012 property crime rate of 13.35 property crimes per 1,000 population, compared 
to average of 30.48 for liked sized cities in Oregon 

 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  Resident Well Being: The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to 
encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens. 
 
Goal:  Public Safety: The City of Sherwood will provide for the safety and security of the 
community and its citizens. 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 59 of 117 178



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              POLICE SERVICES 

 

52 

Police Services Division 
 

Activities: 

 Strengthen existing patrol schedule/staffing to: 

 Maintain an acceptable level of safety for citizens and officers (SO #1) 

 Provide sustainable scheduling for 2 officer minimum and handle impacts such as 

officer illness, injury, FMLA, military service & other leaves (SO #1 & 4) 

 Enhance support for special events (SO #2 & 5) 

 Provide staffing to free up SRO and traffic officer to focus on assigned duties (SO 

#2, 4 & 5) 

 Maintain officer initiated activities while responding to increased public demand 

calls for service (SO #1, 2, 4 & 5) 

 Continue to enhance our response to domestic violence (SO #1-5 & 7) 

 Enhance policing of trails and open spaces (SO #1, 2, 3 & 7) 

 
Activities: 

 Strengthen non-sworn administrative support staffing to: 

 Provide enhanced data entry capabilities to allow for 1-week turnaround on all 

police reports (SO #3, 4 & 7) 

 Provide assistance with transition to new records management system PPDS-

RegJIN (SO #3, 4 & 7) 

 Provide assistance with training logistics (SO #1, 3, & 7) 

 Provide program support for new and/or desired programs like police reserves 

and enhanced volunteers, community academy, National Night Out and reports 

(SO #2, 5 & 6) 

 Manage and maintain department accreditation status by submitting annual 

reports and facilitating an on-site evaluation every three (3) years (SO #2, 3, 4, 

6 & 7) 

 
Activities: 

 Enhance investigative resources/staffing to: 

 Address illicit and prescription drug activity and complaints in cooperation with 

county resources (SO #1, 2, 4 & 5) 

 Provide investigative resources to crimes such as business fraud & 

embezzlement, metal thefts, organized retail thefts, stolen cars, domestic 

violence, residential and commercial burglaries (SO #2, 3, 4 & 7) 

 Allow for enhanced response to child exploitation cases (SO #1-4 & 7) 

 Hire appropriate staff and meet the ongoing demands of the Accreditation 

process, by completing all required reporting and preparing for the onsite 

evaluation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 60 of 117 179



GENERAL GOVERNMENT              POLICE SERVICES 

 

53 

Police Services Division 
 

 
*FTE numbers were based on published City of Sherwood budget documents, and population numbers are based on PSU 
population estimates. 
 
 

 
Source PSWeb2 

26 
25 25.5 25 

26 

28.5 

26 26 26 
24.5 25 

1.8 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

03-04 04-05 05-06 06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14

Budgeted FTE & Officer per Capita Ratio 

FTE Budgeted Ofc./Population Ratio

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Officer Initiated vs. Public Demand Calls for Service 

Officer Initiated Public Demand

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 61 of 117 180



GENERAL GOVERNMENT     COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

54 

Community Services Division 
 
The Community Services Department encompasses Library services, the Sherwood Old Town Field 
House operations, the Cultural Arts Community Center volunteer services, field and gym scheduling, 
and the coordinating and planning of various events. As part of the Washington County Cooperative 
Library Services (WCCLS), the Sherwood Library provides access to resources from all 12 County 
libraries as well as regional, national, and international sources. The Sherwood Old Town Field House is 
an indoor soccer facility that offers soccer leagues, facility rentals and field time for a variety of sports 
and activities. The Cultural Arts Community Center will open in January 2015 and feature a 350 seat 
theater/multi-purpose space and two classrooms. 

 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

Budget
Revenue

Intergovernmental 709,456    722,834    740,518      741,151      759,573      
Charges for Services 238,745    240,770    235,800      238,383      220,560      
Other Revenue 39,398      39,089      39,000        37,509        163,400      
Total revenue 987,600    1,002,692 1,015,318   1,017,043   1,143,533   

Expenditures
Personal services 950,657    982,386    1,032,672   1,015,490   1,180,093   
Materials and services 212,094    199,428    221,379      216,587      383,145      
Capital outlay 13,370      -              -                 -                -                
Debt service 30,547      -              -                 -                -                

Total expenditures 1,206,668 1,181,814 1,254,051   1,232,077   1,563,238   

Net revenue (expenditures) (219,069)   (179,122)   (238,733)     (215,034)     (419,705)     

FTE 13.2         13.4         13.2           13.7           14.8            

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 62 of 117 181



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

55 

Library 
 
The Sherwood Library strives to meet the community’s informational, educational, cultural and 
recreational needs through appropriate and useful resources and programs and equitable service 
policies and access.  The Library makes every effort to operate in the most effective and efficient 
manner possible and continuously seeks to improve and expand services which promote the use of the 
library, encourage an informed citizenry, and respond to community needs. As a member of 
Washington County Cooperative Library Services, the Sherwood Library provides access to materials 
from all WCCLS member libraries as well as regional, national, and international sources. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 
 Continued strong trend in registration of new cardholders (over 1,270 new patrons during 2013). 
 Successful grant applications with the Oregon State Library and the Cultural Coalition of Washington 

County.  
• Volunteer program continues to allow staff greater opportunity to develop and offer additional 

programs and services (2,161 hours of volunteer support in 2013). 
• Increased number and variety of programs offered for children, teens and adults.  
• Quality services delivered by an educated, experienced and dedicated staff.  
• Supportive and engaged advocates in the Library Advisory Board and Friends of the Library.   
 
 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  Resident Well Being: The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to 

encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens. 

 
Strategies: 
 
 Provide quality Library Services 
 
  Activities: 

 Provide a diverse collection of materials and resources 
 Maintain circulation, add new patron card holders and strengthen collection size 
 Develop a stable funding strategy for Library Services 
 Maximize use of volunteers in the Library 
 Offer new and innovative programming opportunities  

 
  Performance Measures: 

 Provide 60 hours of library service a week 
 Utilize 2,500 hours of volunteer time   

 Serve 1,500 local children through the Summer Reading Program 
 
Strategies: 
 

Provide excellent customer service  
 
  Activities: 

 Maintain a knowledgeable and trained staff 
 Assist customers with information and referrals 

  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 63 of 117 182



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

56 

Library 
 
  Performance Measures: 

 Provide regular training opportunities for staff 
 Respond to virtual queries within 48 hours 

 
 
 Provide an opportunity for citizens to partake in cultural and community events and 
 activities 
 
  Activities: 

 Partner with the local groups such as the Friends of the Sherwood Library to 
provide opportunities and events  

  
  Performance Measures: 

 Provide twelve programs annually through local partnerships  
 
 
 

 
 

 

0.40 0.40 0.40 

0.56 
0.65 

0.58 

0.75 
0.83 

0.72 

FY 2010-11 FY2011-12 FY2012-13

FTE per 1,000 Population Served 

Sherwood Tigard Tualatin

47.89 
51.92 49 

82.46 
93.41 

81.12 

55.22 

65.13 
61.05 

FY 2010-11 FY2011-12 FY2012-13

Total Library Operating Expenditures Per Capita 

Sherwood Tigard Tualatin

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 64 of 117 183



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

57 

Field House 
 
The Sherwood Old Town Field House opened in 2004 and offers a large indoor arena featuring state-
of-the-art "AstroPlay" turf. The City of Sherwood built the Field House to help serve the recreation 
needs of its community. The Field House hosts a wide array of activities including include soccer, 
football, softball, and lacrosse. The Field House is also available for private rentals, birthday parties, 
pre-school play and sports clinics. 
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 22,000 people served 
 Rented the field for 60 hours of baseball and softball clinics. 
 Started the women’s league back up and put the men’s league back to Friday.  
 Offered 3 mornings each week of preschool play during the school year 
 Installed Plexiglas over the score board to enhance protection. 

 
 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  Resident Well Being: The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to 
encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens. 
 
Strategies: 
 

Provide quality recreation opportunities for the citizen of Sherwood 
 
Activities: 

 Operate the Old Town Field House 
 Offer league play for youth and adults 
 Rent the facility to groups for private rentals and birthday parties 

 
Performance Measures: 

 Serve 22,000 people  
 Increase Youth leagues 3% 
 Try to fill all open hours between 4:00 pm and midnight 
 Provide excellent customer service to those that visit the Field House 

 
Provide excellent customer service to those that visit the Field House 

 
Activities: 

 Maintain a knowledgeable and trained staff 
 Assist customers with information and referrals 
 Have a deep cleaning of the Field House done once a year. 

 
Performance Measures: 

 Respond to all customer service calls within 24 hours 
 Provide 8 hours of training to full-time staff 

 

 
  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 65 of 117 184



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

58 

Recreation and Event Services 
 
The Community Services Department is responsible for planning and implementing recreation and 
cultural activities, volunteer services, and coordinating events such as Music on the Green and acting 
as a liaison to the Senior Center and other community groups.   
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Coordinated volunteer program. Volunteers contributed a total of 4,399 hours, equivalent to 
2.11 FTE (includes Police Chaplain hours) 

 Coordinated and offered 7 weeks of Music on the Green concerts at Stella Olsen Park to 
approximately 1,200 people each week 

 Coordinated annual Veterans Day Ceremony  
 Coordinated ground breaking event for the Cultural Arts Community Center 
 Managed, developed and implement city-wide special events including the Community 

Services Fair, Missoula Children’s Theatre and Pix on the Plaza 
 Processed and issued 32 Special Event Permit applications, 70 monument requests, and 50 

reader board requests 

 Completed Senior Center Lobby & Restroom renovation 
 Acted as liaison to community groups such as the Saturday Market, Historical Society, the 

Friends of the Senior Center, Loaves and Fishes and the Robin Hood Festival Association  

 Secured presenting sponsor for Music on the Green 
 Coordinated various Eagle Scout projects, Adopt a Road Clean-Ups and Trashapalooza  
 Coordinated practice and game space for 11 different sport leagues (over 300 teams) 
 

2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal: Resident Well Being: The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to 
encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens. 
 
Strategies: 

 
Provide an opportunity for citizens to partake in recreation, cultural and community events and 
activities 
 

Activities: 

 Coordinate the Music on the Green summer concert series 

 Coordinate Movies in the Park  
 Partner with the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission, Sherwood Foundation for the 

Arts, Robin Hood Festival Association, Sherwood Historical Society to provide 
opportunities and events such as Missoula Children’s Theatre and the Robin Hood 
Festival 

 Schedule all the gyms and fields 
 Expand Volunteer program and increase opportunities for citizens to volunteer  

 
Performance Measures: 

 Provide 3,200 hours of volunteer work 
 Raise $12,000 in sponsorship for Music on the Green 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 66 of 117 185



GENERAL GOVERNMENT    COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

59 

Cultural Arts Community Center 
 
The Cultural Arts Community Center will include a 350 seat theater/multi-purpose space and two 
classrooms and serve as a home for multiple artistic disciplines to work, perform, exhibit, and gather. 
The mission of the Cultural Arts Community Center is to Inspire, educate, and enrich the Sherwood 
community through diverse activities that enhance the quality of life. 

 
2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values, Activities, and Performance Measures 

 
Goal: Resident Well Being: The City of Sherwood will facilitate the provision of services to 
encourage a balanced quality of life for its citizens. 
 
Strategies: 

 
Provide an opportunity for citizens to partake in recreation, cultural and community events and 
activities 
 

Activities: 

 Hire a center manager to advertise, promote and program the facility 
 Develop policies and procedures for the facility 
 Develop a website  
 Implement registration and ticketing software 
 Coordinate a grand opening event 

 Partner with local artist and organizations to offer a variety of classes programs and 
shows 

 Write and prepare grants to help support programs and operations 
 

Performance Measures: 

 Offer 20 classes/programs 

 Raise $5,000 in grants and donations to help support the facility 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 67 of 117 186



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                   PUBLIC WORKS 

 

60 

Public Works 
 
The Public Works Division is responsible for operation and maintenance activities of the City’s 
infrastructure. Maintenance includes: water, sewer, storm, streets, parks, sport fields, facilities and 
fleet. 
 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget

Budget
Revenue

Intergovernmental 100,187     160,878     220,000      219,000      247,500        
Charges for Services 5,690        6,220        5,200          5,250         5,500           
Other Revenue 28,859       22,793       14,600        20,600        18,000          
Total revenue 134,736     189,892     239,800      244,850      271,000        

Expenditures
Personal services 671,039     748,287     868,819      865,485      955,400        
Materials and services 637,149     634,595     675,894      654,113      828,584        
Capital outlay 106,171     43,684       60,000        30,000        253,500        
Debt service 30,547       -               -                 -                -                  

Total expenditures 1,444,906  1,426,566  1,604,713   1,549,598   2,037,484     

Net revenue (expenditures) (1,310,170) (1,236,674) (1,364,913)  (1,304,748)  (1,766,484)    

FTE 9.9            10.9 12.9           12.5           13.6  
 

 
 

  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 68 of 117 187



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                   PUBLIC WORKS 

 

61 

Public Works Administration 
 

The Administration Division is responsible to provide leadership and management in the support of the 
strategic plans, objectives, values and goals. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Provided training to all Public Works employees for continued growth opportunities. 

 Responded to all emergency after-hour calls. 

 Prepare and oversee implementation of each division budget. 

 Continue to work with regional partners (solid waste, emergency management, debris removal, 

water, wastewater, storm, streets and fleet). 

 Continue to improve asset data information and track work order performance through 

maintenance management system. 

 Successfully upgraded billing and maintenance management system. 

2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 
Activities 

 Asset Management Accountability. Maintain accurate accounting records of all work 

activities and track labor, equipment and material expenditures for each activity or project 

as pertains to all assets. 

 Provide staff support and resources to enable each division to meet goals. 

 Prepare and oversee implementation of each division’s budget. 

 Support and oversee the city-wide geographic information system (GIS). 

 Continue participation of city-wide emergency management training plan and participate at 

county level. 

 Provide management and administrative support to the public works department for water 

distribution, wastewater collection, street maintenance, stormwater maintenance, parks, 

fleet, facility and utility billing.   

 Continue to work at state and regional levels for Public Works related partnerships. 

 Provide emergency on-call assistance for public works.  

 Provide educational outreach for our citizens of Sherwood on water conservation and other 

programs (leaf program, recycling, paving program) or concerns to the city relative to public 

works. 

Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Number of data features and system assets maintained in 

the maintenance management system and GIS 42,379 49,047 50,855 

 Overall system asset data match between maintenance 
management system and GIS n/a n/a 99% 

 Number of customer service requests 19,276 20,477 19,379 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 69 of 117 188



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                   PUBLIC WORKS 

 

62 

Fleet, Equipment, and Facilities 
 
The Fleet Maintenance Department of Public Works maintains and repairs city vehicles and equipment 
with an emphasis on safety, cost effectiveness and dependability. The Facilities Department is 
responsible for environmental health, safety, operations, maintenance, and repair of all city facilities. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Completed annual requirements for reporting to State 

 Purchased 100% of budgeted equipment 

 Completed annual requirements for reporting to State 

 Completed set up and take down for Kids Reading, City Council, Planning Commission, Court 

and other Library events 184 times last year 

 Completed weekly inspections of all city facilities 

 Completed inspections of all contracted work 

 Continue to improve asset data, work cost data information and track work orders through our 

maintenance management system. 

2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 
 

Activities 
 Fleet (equipment, vehicles) is replaced when it is determined by its age, condition, 

operations and maintenance cost, and depreciation, which is no longer economical to keep. 

This is referred to the life expectancy of the equipment. 

 Maintain vehicles and equipment to support city-wide departments.   

 Purchase vehicles and equipment. 

 
Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Number of scheduled vehicle maintenance work orders 148 148 138 

 Total number of equipment work orders 250 209 256 

 Total number of vehicle work orders 399 414 419 

 Maximum percentage of fleet vehicles that are out of service 

at any given time (Goal: 5% or less) - - 5% 

 

  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 70 of 117 189



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                   PUBLIC WORKS 

 

63 

Fleet, Equipment, and Facilities 
 
Activities 

 Ensure city-owned facilities are maintained in accordance to city, state and federal 

regulations. 

 Continue to improve “cost per building” data collection and reporting tools using our 

maintenance management collection system. 

 Respond to work order requests form city and staff. 

 Provide room set up for meetings, seminars, training sessions, and classes in city facilities. 

 Monitor HVAC systems at city facilities. 

 Perform bi-annual maintenance and service of HVAC and electrical systems. 

 Contract services for janitorial for all city facilities. 

 Annual testing and servicing of fire sprinkler systems. 

 Annual testing and maintenance of emergency lights and exit lights. 

 Monthly inspection and annual servicing of portable fire extinguishers located in all facilities. 

 Number of service requests processed monthly. 

 Number of work order accomplished per month. 

 Inspect contractual work. 

Performance Measures 
 Will inspect city facilities weekly and will perform maintenance as needed. (Goal: 100%) 

 Service Requests to be completed within 48 hours (Goal: 95%). 

 

 
 
  

Public Works,  
34,380  

City Hall,  26,000  

Police Station,  
17,300  

Community Center,  
15,734  

Senior Center,  
7,225  

Square Footage of Buildings Maintained by 
Public Works 

* The Community 
Center will be open 
winter of 2014/15. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 71 of 117 190



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                   PUBLIC WORKS 

 

64 

Parks 
 
The Parks Department maintains the parks, trail systems, School District property, athletic fields and 
open spaces. 

 
2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Completed weekly playground inspections. 

 Completed trash pickup three times a week during peak usage. 

 Maintained 8,116 irrigation heads this past year. 

 Completed striping and prep of athletic fields for schools and leagues. 

 Completed 127 park reservations this past year. 

 Provided 7-day/week staffing coverage during peak season. 

 Worked with independent contractors to ensure contract agreements are followed and work 

progresses smoothly 

 Completed weekly mowing for parks and athletic fields for 37 weeks out of the year. 

 Maintained 2 water features. 

 GPS all of the City’s Irrigation Systems. 

2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 
 

Activities 
 Maintain all city park areas and facility grounds in a safe, clean, attractive and affordable 

manner by using responsible and efficient procedures 

 Work with independent contractors to ensure contract agreements are followed and that 

work progresses smoothly 

 Managing the City’s irrigation system through a computerized software program (Calsense) 

that maximizes water efficiency 

 Maintain and repair artificial turf 

 Provide park reservations 

 Maintain trail systems 

 Maintain School District property according to the IGA 

 Maintain Sports Fields according to the IGA 

Performance Measures 

 Inspect all city owned playgrounds to for compliance with ATSM Standards 
This measure was met 100% of the time for 2011, 2012, and 2013 

 Mow all city parks and sports fields at least 35 weeks a year 
This measure was met 100% of the time for 2011, 2012, and 2013 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 72 of 117 191



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      ASSET DEPRECIATION 

 

65 

Asset Depreciation Fund 
 
The Asset Depreciation Fund was closed in Fiscal Year 2011-12. The fund is shown here for historical 
purposes only. 

 
 

 

2011-12
Actual

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 220,857$ 
Revenue

Fines, interest and other 160         
Total sources 221,017   

USES
Other uses

Transfers out 221,017   
Total Uses 221,017   
Ending Fund Balance -             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 73 of 117 192



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                    DEBT SERVICE 

 

66 

Debt Service 
 
The Debt Service fund accounts for property tax revenues levied for payment of general obligation 
bonds.  Payment of long-term debt other than general obligation bonds is accounted for in the funds 
responsible for paying the debt. 

 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 47,382$    49,241$    6,615$        8,432$        8,464$        8,464$      8,464$      
Revenue

Taxes 888,000    850,000    892,000      892,000      885,930      885,930    -               
Fines, interest and other 1,756       1,816       -                 -                -                 -               -               
Total revenue 889,756    851,816    892,000      892,000      885,930      885,930    -               

Total sources 937,138    901,057    898,615      900,432      894,394      894,394    8,464        
USES

Debt service
Principal - 2004 A&B refunding 505,000    525,000    540,000      540,000      560,000      560,000    -               
Principal - 2011 Police Ref GO 200,000    210,000    215,000      215,000      220,000      220,000    -               
Interest - 2004 A&B refunding 114,238    97,825      81,418        81,418        63,194        63,194      -               
Interest - 2011 Police Ref GO 68,659      59,800      55,550        55,550        51,200        51,200      -               
Total debt service 887,897    892,625    891,968      891,968      894,394      894,394    -               
Total expenditures 887,897    892,625    891,968      891,968      894,394      894,394    -               

Other uses
Ending Fund Balance 49,241      8,432       -                 -                -                 -               -               

Reserved for Future Years -              -              6,647          8,464         -                 -               -               
Total uses 937,138    901,057    898,615      900,432      894,394      894,394    -               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 74 of 117 193



GENERAL GOVERNMENT       GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 

 

67 

FY14-15 General Construction Capital Projects 
 
The General Construction Fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of capital assets that are 
not financed by Enterprise Funds; including city buildings, parks, sports fields, recreational facilities and 
trails. 
 
Cedar Creek Trail: Design will be completed in FY13 and construction will begin in FY14. The city is 
receiving a $5 million MTIP grant from the Federal Government to fund the major portion of this 
project.  Future maintenance costs for the completed trail will be the responsibility of the Public Works 
Department and would consist mostly of invasive plant control and wooden boardwalk maintenance. 
 
Field Lights at Edy Ridge and Sherwood Middle School: The city will be installing lights at the 
Edy Ridge and Sherwood Middle School campus’ to extend the use of the fields. 
 
Woodhaven Park Phase II Design: Design will be completed in FY15 for the phase II portion of 
Woodhaven Park. Construction will be budgeted in future years. 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 317,520$      585,763$      874,644$      722,727$      1,228,391$    1,228,391$    1,228,391$     

Revenue

Intergovernmental 154              73,941          -                  179,600        -                  -                  -                    

Charges for services -                  -                  -                  -                  12,000          12,000          -                    

Infrastructure development 88,634          194,482        614,000        795,015        266,000        266,000        -                    

Fines, interest and other 27,595          33,245          27,514          75,314          775              775              -                    

Total revenue 116,383        301,668        641,514        1,049,929     278,775        278,775        -                    

Other sources

Transfers in 200,000        339,426        205,000        145,600        200,000        200,000        -                    

Total other sources 200,000        339,426        205,000        145,600        200,000        200,000        -                    

Total sources 633,903      1,226,856   1,721,158   1,918,256   1,707,166   1,707,166   1,228,391     

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages -                  20,405          31,864          20,902          40,864          40,864          -                    

Payroll taxes -                  1,678           3,105           2,020           4,146            4,146            -                    

Benefits -                  8,761           12,524          8,154           17,743          17,743          -                    

Total personal services -                  30,844          47,493          31,076          62,753          62,753          -                    

Materials and services

Professional & technical -                  3,222           -                  -                  100,000        100,000        -                    

Other purchased services -                  1,050           72                70                50                50                -                    

Minor equipment -                  555              -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    

Other materials & services -                  31,566          22,147          22,016          62,901          62,901          -                    

Total materials & services -                  36,393          22,219          22,086          162,951        162,951        -                    

Capital outlay

Infrastructure -                  251,949        85,288          22,412          499,759        499,759        -                    

Buildings -                  -                  -                  123,077        -                  -                  -                    

Other improvements -                  136,111        627,328        313,162        -                  -                  -                    

Furniture and equipment -                  -                  351,500        129,948        250,000        250,000        -                    

Total capital outlay -                  388,060        1,064,116     588,599        749,759        749,759        -                    

Debt service

Principal 36,120          38,700          39,990          39,990          42,570          42,570          -                    

Interest 12,021          10,133          8,114           8,114           5,963            5,963            -                    

Total debt service 48,141          48,833          48,104          48,104          48,533          48,533          -                    

Total expenditures 48,141          504,130        1,181,932     689,865        1,023,996     1,023,996     -                    

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 585,763        722,727        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  539,226        1,228,391     683,170        683,170        1,228,391       

Total uses 633,903      1,226,856   1,721,158   1,918,256   1,707,166   1,707,166   1,228,391     

FTE -               0.2               0.4               0.3               0.6                0.6                0.6                 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 75 of 117 194



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      STREET OPERATIONS 

 

68 

Street Operations  
 

The Street Department is responsible for the repair and maintenance of over 50 miles of transportation 
system which includes paved streets, sidewalks, signals, street lights, signs and markings. 

  
2013-14 Accomplishments 

 Responded to all storm events. 
 Replaced 175 Street Name Signs.  
 Paved 12th Street, Murdock (from Upper Roy to Sunset) and Wild Rose.  
 Responded to four (4) storm events. 
 Completed 73,745 feet of crack sealing and 48,387 square yards of slurry seal. 
 Completed landscape right-of-way maintenance. 
 Completed inspection of all contract work. 
 Continued the Sidewalk program. Worked with property owners to complete 349 sidewalk 

deficiencies. 

 Continued Tree Trimming program. 
 

2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 

 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 
Activities  

 Installation and maintenance of street and traffic signs. 
 Installation and maintenance of guardrails and barricades. 
 Grading and maintenance of rock roads and road shoulders. 
 Installation and maintenance of street markings. 
 Installation and maintenance of traffic control devices. 
 Inspection of street lights (quarterly). 
 Tree trimming and streetlight clearance.  
 Snow and ice management. 
 Pavement Management and street restoration. Includes street condition rating (every three 

years), preservation, crack sealing and patching. 

 Right of Way Maintenance. Includes sidewalk repairs, vegetation and barricade 
maintenance. 

 

 
Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 “Street Name” sign conversion per regulatory 

requirements (Goal: 25% per year) 
- 22% 25% 

 Restriping of all center lanes (22 center lane miles) of 

streets per year (Goal: 100% per year) 
100% 100% 100% 

 Overall pavement condition index (PCI) of city street 

system (Goal: 80% per year)    (Streets re-rated in 2013) 
75% 75% 79% 

 

 

 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 76 of 117 195



GENERAL GOVERNMENT      STREET OPERATIONS 

 

69 

Street Operations Budget 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 458,650$         987,889$      1,159,311$ 1,284,920$ 1,400,192$ 1,400,192$ 1,400,192$ 

Revenue

Intergovernmental 1,063,840     1,064,631   1,079,439   1,162,700   1,149,552   1,149,552   -                

Charges for services 497,770        568,587      540,253      574,788      542,880      542,880      -                

Infrastructure development 408              2,917         1,500         20,000       2,000         2,000         -                

Fines, interest and other 3,480           6,325         6,272         (102,728)    21,200        21,200       -                

Total revenue 1,565,499     1,642,460   1,627,464   1,654,760   1,715,632   1,715,632   -                

Other sources

Transfers in 29,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total other sources 29,000         -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total sources 2,053,149   2,630,349 2,786,775 2,939,680 3,115,824 3,115,824 1,400,192 

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 161,781        196,675      204,162      212,821      230,528      230,528      -                

Payroll taxes 21,750         16,651       27,836       26,783       29,529        29,529       -                

Benefits 64,642         84,438       90,708       87,757       87,670        87,670       -                

Total personal services 248,173        297,763      322,706      327,361      347,727      347,727      -                

Materials and services

Professional & technical 13,884         111,739      88,850       92,500       211,700      211,700      -                

Facility and equipment 279,620        332,152      366,214      885,900      1,316,380   1,316,380   -                

Other purchased services 2,403           12,678       25,628       22,876       29,374        29,374       -                

Supplies 39,148         48,059       65,472       57,000       65,500        65,500       -                

Minor equipment 703              7,485         4,300         5,500         4,500         4,500         -                

Other materials & services 112,680        144,206      132,392      141,351      173,088      173,088      -                

Total materials & services 448,438        656,319      682,856      1,205,127   1,800,542   1,800,542   -                

Capital outlay

Infrastructure 310,470        391,348      -                -                -                -                -                

Furniture and equipment -                  -                7,000         7,000         40,000        40,000       -                

Total capital outlay 310,470        391,348      7,000         7,000         40,000        40,000       -                

Debt service

Principal 57,516         -                -                -                -                -                -                

Interest 662              -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total debt service 58,178         -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total expenditures 1,065,260     1,345,430   1,012,562   1,539,488   2,188,269   2,188,269   -                

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 987,889        1,284,920   -                -                -                -                -                

Contingency -                  -                1,774,213   1,400,192   85,782        85,782       -                

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                -                -                841,773      841,773      1,400,192   

Total uses 2,053,149   2,630,349 2,786,775 2,939,680 3,115,824 3,115,824 1,400,192 

FTE 3.3               3.8             3.9             3.9             4.2              
 
Street Operations Reserve 
 

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance -$                -$                -$            -$              109,000$    109,000$  109,000$    

Revenue

Fines, interest and other -             -             -              109,000      (15,000)      (15,000)    -                

Total revenue -             -             -              109,000      (15,000)      (15,000)    -                

Total sources -         -         -         109,000    94,000      94,000    109,000    

USES

Total expenditures -             -             -              -                -                -              -                

Ending Fund Balance -             -             -              -                -                -              -                

Reserved for Future Years -             -             -              109,000      94,000        94,000     109,000     

Total uses -             -             -             109,000    94,000      94,000    109,000    

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 77 of 117 196



GENERAL GOVERNMENT                 STREET CAPITAL 

70 

FY13-14 Street Capital Projects 
 
Langer Farms Parkway North Construction:  Tualatin Sherwood Road to Highway 99W: This 
project constructs Langer Farms Parkway from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to Highway 99W at the 
existing intersection to Home Depot, approximately 2,350 linear feet. This project is to provide access 
and growth opportunities to the properties that lay along its alignment.  The road is being designated 
as a collector street and will conform to the TSP street standards.  The project is funded and being 
constructed under a development agreement with the Langer Site Development.  Once construction is 
completed, it is anticipated that maintenance will be performed by Public Works and that this work will 
be minimal and consist mostly of cleaning of the stormwater catch basins, street sweeping, and leaf 
disposal.   
 
TSP SDC Analysis:  Once the TSP update is completed and SDC methodology update will need to be 
completed to assure that SDC’s assessed will be adequate to fund the projects in the TSP. 
 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 4,225,014$   2,335,297$   1,342,522$   2,195,410$   2,999,090$   2,999,090$   2,999,090$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 2,388,549    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Charges for services 41,983         53,110         50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         -                  
Infrastructure development 127,211       318,002       1,526,000    1,363,402    892,000       892,000        -                  
Fines, interest and other 21,811         16,922         6,266           10,177         2,000           2,000           -                  
Total revenue 2,579,554    388,034       1,582,266    1,423,579    944,000       944,000        -                  

Other sources
Transfers in 609,105       50,000         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Total other sources 609,105       50,000         -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total sources 7,413,673    2,773,331    2,924,788    3,618,989    3,943,090    3,943,090     2,999,090     
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 136,785       63,023         54,252         37,344         20,311         20,311         -                  
Payroll taxes 12,253         5,258           73               3,758           2,087           2,087           -                  
Benefits 55,065         22,845         275             13,461         7,404           7,404           -                  
Total personal services 204,102       91,126         54,600         54,563         29,802         29,802         -                  

Materials and services
Professional & technical 36,775         9,100           -                  -                  135,000       135,000        -                  
Other purchased services 237             300             10               158             98               98                -                  
Other materials & services 146,974       79,609         43,490         43,713         25,947         25,947         -                  
Total materials & services 183,985       89,009         43,500         43,871         161,045       161,045        -                  

Capital outlay
Land 1,352,669    -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Infrastructure 3,337,620    397,786       316,000       305,267       40,000         40,000         -                  
Total capital outlay 4,690,289    397,786       316,000       305,267       40,000         40,000         -                  

Debt service
Total debt service -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total expenditures 5,078,376    577,921       414,100       403,701       230,847       230,847        -                  
Other uses

Transfers out -                  -                  216,200       216,198       200,000       200,000        -                  
Ending Fund Balance 2,335,297$   2,195,410$   -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  2,294,488    2,999,090    3,512,243    3,512,243     2,999,090     
Total uses 7,413,673    2,773,331    2,924,788    3,618,989    3,943,090    3,943,090     2,999,090     

FTE 2.5              0.9              0.01            0.5              0.24            0.24             0.24              

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 78 of 117 197



 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 79 of 117 198



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                       WATER FUND 

 

71 

Water Fund 

The Water fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the water utility. The Capital department is responsible for 
construction of water infrastructure. 
 
Water Fund Budget in Total 

 
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 9,512,904$    8,676,393$    5,495,329$    6,320,588$    8,179,668$    8,179,668$    8,179,668$    

Revenue

Intergovernmental -                   -                   2,000,000      1,400,000      -                   -                   -                   

Charges for services 4,105,712      4,511,739      4,363,792      4,573,600      4,386,317      4,386,317      -                   

Infrastructure development 89,518           453,232         163,000         460,000         379,720         379,720         -                   

Fines, interest and other 44,428           49,978           30,000           34,000           22,415           22,415           -                   

Total revenue 4,239,659      5,014,949      6,556,792      6,467,600      4,788,452      4,788,452      -                   

Other sources

Transfers in 25,000           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total other sources 25,000           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total sources 13,777,563  13,691,342  12,052,121  12,788,188  12,968,120  12,968,120  8,179,668    

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 363,184         392,658         370,488         373,545         392,826         392,826         -                   

Payroll taxes 38,167           40,131           41,810           43,500           47,128           47,128           -                   

Benefits 151,449         169,046         181,154         162,572         166,471         166,471         -                   

Total personal services 552,801         601,835         593,452         579,617         606,425         606,425         -                   

Materials and services

Professional & technical 1,282,733      1,451,969      1,280,700      1,023,000      1,386,937      1,386,937      -                   

Facility and equipment 65,025           53,362           94,000           87,065           60,600           60,600           -                   

Other purchased services 337,464         401,428         354,537         360,743         359,358         359,358         -                   

Supplies 92,485           87,276           392,000         387,500         769,800         769,800         -                   

Minor equipment 12,999           1,706            21,008           16,300           5,000            5,000            -                   

Other materials & services 254,465         281,718         284,609         241,227         256,500         256,500         -                   

Total materials & services 2,045,170      2,277,459      2,426,854      2,115,835      2,838,195      2,838,195      -                   

Capital outlay

Infrastructure 719,401         2,603,193      620,531         60,000           25,000           25,000           -                   

Vehicles -                   -                   10,000           10,000           -                   -                   -                   

Furniture and equipment -                   -                   2,500            2,500            -                   -                   -                   

Total capital outlay 719,401         2,603,193      633,031         72,500           25,000           25,000           -                   

Debt service -                   

Principal 485,578         824,425         850,621         850,621         872,415         872,415         -                   

Interest 1,118,221      1,013,843      989,947         989,947         965,253         965,253         -                   

Total debt service 1,603,798      1,838,268      1,840,568      1,840,568      1,837,668      1,837,668      -                   

Total expenditures 4,921,170      7,320,754      5,493,905      4,608,520      5,307,288      5,307,288      -                   

Other uses

Transfers out 180,000         50,000           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Ending Fund Balance 8,676,393      6,320,588      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Contingency -                   -                   6,358,216      8,079,668      403,722         403,722         204,421         

Reserved for Future Years - Ops -                   -                   -                   -                   2,503,618      2,503,618      3,883,992      

Reserved for Future Years - Res -                   -                   200,000         100,000         130,000         130,000         100,000         

Reserved for Future Years - Cap -                   -                   -                   -                   4,623,491      4,623,491      3,991,255      

Total uses 13,777,563  13,691,342  12,052,121  12,788,188  12,968,120  12,968,120  8,179,668    

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 80 of 117 199



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                       WATER FUND 

 

72 

Water Operations 

 
The Water Operation Department’s primary responsibility is to repair, maintain and expand the water 
system while providing a high quality, dependable water supply to its customers. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Completed Consumer Confidence Report on annual basis. 

 Completed monthly meter reading. 

 Completed over 300 water samples. 

 Coordinated and managed the testing of 2,638 backflow devices. 

 Began Installation of Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) System 

 Awarded Outstanding Performer by Oregon Health Authority 

2013-14 2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 
 

Activities 

 Prepare and electronically distribute the Consumer Confidence Report. 
 Perform water quality sampling throughout the City to ensure compliance with federal Safe 

Drinking Water Act, Drinking Water Rules, and Regulators.  Results are reported monthly for 
microbiological samples and chlorine residuals. Operate and repair over 80 miles of water 
mains ranging in size from 48” to 2”, 2,708 valves, 729 fire hydrants, and 5,802 meters, 3 
reservoirs, 4 wells, and 2 pump stations that deliver water to customers at all times.   

 Maintain a flushing program 

 Operate a valve survey and exercise program. 
 Coordinate and manage cross-connection program. 
 Target water conservation measures to reduce peak water demand. 
 Primary responsibility for all utility locates that relate to water, sanitary, storm and 

broadband. 

 Conduct Water Use Surveys for commercial and industrial customers. 
 Continuation of AMI installation 

 

Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Number of bacteriological samples measured against the 

percentage of water samples taken that meet or exceed  

water quality standards as set by USEPA (Goal: 100%) 100% 100% 100% 

 Percentage of backflow assemblies that comply with annual 

testing requirements (Goal: 95%) 70.23% 99.96% 95% 

 Peak daily demand (mgd) 3.85 3.83 3.9 

 Percentage of fire hydrants maintained (Goal: 50%) 34% 56% 61% 

 Percentage of 2” and  larger meters tested (Goal: 100% 

annually) n/a n/a 80% 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 81 of 117 200



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                       WATER FUND 

 

73 

Utility Billing 
 

The Utility Billing Division is responsible for customer account maintenance for approximately 5600 
customer accounts and manages all water, sanitary sewer, stormwater, street maintenance fee and 
various other utility billings and collections. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 

 Successfully kept customers informed of CWS rate changes. 

 Increased online bill-pay activity. 

 Completed city-wide contact clean-up project. 

 Continued to work with non-paying customers 

 Weekly bills going out on time  

 Successful upgrades to system 

2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 

Activities 
 Continued audit of outgoing bills for accuracy. 

 Improvements to delinquency process. 

 Monthly maintenance of contact clean-up against Washington County data 

 Verifying accounts, credits, refunds and rebates 

 Respond to Title companies Lien requests 

 Daily verification of adjustments 

 Manage Sidewalk billing 

 Continue to refine and improve efficiency for time and cost savings 

 Provide programs for residential leaks and bulk water purchases 

 Provide customer service for a variety of divisions within Public Works 

 Educate customers on water conservation tools and practices 

 
Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Total number of Service Request Calls/ 

Correspondence responded to 14,657 15,173 13,948 

 Number of utility bills sent to customers 57,164 66,578 67,824 

 Registered online users 402 2,116 2,385 

 Number of paperless accounts n/a 947 1,276 

 Number of customers on auto pay n/a 770 1,070 

 Number of delinquency notices issued to customers 41,474 38,851 40,397 

 Total revenue collected through online system n/a $2,551,268 $3,190,788 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 82 of 117 201



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                       WATER FUND 

 

74 

 

Water Operations Budget 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 3,880,754$     4,584,184$     4,193,405$  4,100,333$  4,088,413$   4,088,413$     4,088,413$   

Revenue

Charges for services 4,105,712     4,161,739     4,363,792    4,573,600    3,986,317     3,986,317      -                  

Infrastructure development 11,965         22,650         3,000          40,000        9,720           9,720             -                  

Fines, interest and other 20,408         25,015         15,000        (77,000)       (10,000)        (10,000)          -                  

Total revenue 4,138,084     4,209,404     4,381,792    4,536,600    3,986,037     3,986,037      -                  

Other sources

Transfers in 25,000         -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Total other sources 25,000         -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Total sources 8,043,839   8,793,588   8,575,197  8,636,933  8,074,450   8,074,450     4,088,413   

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 343,066        389,901        358,971      373,545       380,830       380,830         -                  

Payroll taxes 36,545         39,905         40,809        43,500        45,957         45,957           -                  

Benefits 143,282        167,913        175,995      162,572       161,994       161,994         -                  

Total personal services 522,893        597,718        575,775      579,617       588,781       588,781         -                  

Materials and services

Professional & technical 712,607        1,421,123     1,280,700    1,023,000    1,271,950     1,271,950      -                  

Facility and equipment 65,025         53,362         94,000        87,065        60,600         60,600           -                  

Other purchased services 336,823        401,278        354,489      360,743       359,310       359,310         -                  

Supplies 91,257         87,276         392,000      387,500       769,800       769,800         -                  

Minor equipment 12,999         1,706           21,008        16,300        5,000           5,000             -                  

Other materials & services 240,580        280,075        277,621      241,227       249,000       249,000         -                  

Total materials & services 1,459,291     2,244,819     2,419,818    2,115,835    2,715,660     2,715,660      -                  

Capital outlay

Infrastructure (126,328)      12,450         25,000        -                 25,000         25,000           -                  

Vehicles -                  -                  10,000        10,000        -                  -                    -                  

Furniture and equipment -                  -                  2,500          2,500          -                  -                    -                  

Total capital outlay (126,328)      12,450         37,500        12,500        25,000         25,000           -                  

Debt service

Principal 485,578        824,425        850,621      850,621       872,415       872,415         -                  

Interest 1,118,221     1,013,843     989,947      989,947       965,253       965,253         -                  

Total debt service 1,603,798     1,838,268     1,840,568    1,840,568    1,837,668     1,837,668      -                  

Total expenditures 3,459,655     4,693,256     4,873,661    4,548,520    5,167,109     5,167,109      -                  

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 4,584,184     4,100,333     -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Contingency -                  -                  3,701,536    4,088,413    403,722       403,722         204,421       

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  -                 -                 2,503,618     2,503,618      3,883,992    

Total uses 8,043,839   8,793,588   8,575,197  8,636,933  8,074,450   8,074,450     4,088,413   

FTE 6.9           7.3           6.3          6.6          6.5           6.5            6.5           

 
Water Operations Reserve 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance -$                      -$                      -$               -$               100,000$      100,000$       100,000$     

Revenue

Fines, interest and other -                  -                  -                 100,000       30,000         30,000           -                  

Total revenue -                  -                  -                 100,000       30,000         30,000           -                  

Total sources -              -              -             100,000     130,000      130,000        100,000      

USES

Total expenditures -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Ending Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  -                 100,000       130,000       130,000         100,000       

Total uses -                  -                  -                 100,000     130,000      130,000        100,000      

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 83 of 117 202



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                       WATER FUND 

 

75 

 

FY14-15 Water Capital Projects/Budget 
 

Water Master Plan Update: Contract awarded to Murray, Smith and Associates, Inc. in FY2013-14.  
Master Plan is expected to be complete in the fall of 2014.  
 

 
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted
SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 5,632,150$   4,092,209$   1,301,924$   2,220,255$   3,991,255$     3,991,255$  3,991,255$  
Revenue

Intergovernmental -                  -                  2,000,000    1,400,000    -                    -                 -                 
Charges for services -                  350,000       -                  -                  400,000         400,000       -                 
Infrastructure development 77,554         430,582       160,000       420,000       370,000         370,000       -                 
Fines, interest and other 24,021         24,963         15,000         11,000         2,415             2,415          -                 
Total revenue 101,574       805,545       2,175,000    1,831,000    772,415         772,415       -                 

Other sources

Total sources 5,733,724    4,897,754    3,476,924    4,051,255    4,763,670      4,763,670    3,991,255    
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 20,118         2,758           11,517         -                  11,996           11,996         -                 
Payroll taxes 1,622           226             1,001           -                  1,171             1,171          -                 
Benefits 8,167           1,133           5,159           -                  4,477             4,477          -                 
Total personal services 29,907         4,116           17,677         -                  17,644           17,644         -                 

Materials and services
Professional & technical 570,126       30,846         -                  -                  114,987         114,987       -                 
Other purchased services 641             150             48               -                  48                 48               -                 
Supplies 1,228           -                  -                  -                  -                    -                 -                 
Other materials & services 13,885         1,643           6,988           -                  7,500             7,500          -                 
Total materials & services 585,880       32,639         7,036           -                  122,535         122,535       -                 

Capital outlay
Infrastructure 845,728       2,590,743    595,531       60,000         -                    -                 -                 
Total capital outlay 845,728       2,590,743    595,531       60,000         -                    -                 -                 

Debt service
Total debt service -                  -                  -                  -                  -                    -                 -                 

Total expenditures 1,461,515    2,627,499    620,244       60,000         140,179         140,179       -                 
Other uses

Transfers out 180,000       50,000         -                  -                  -                    -                 -                 
Ending Fund Balance 4,092,209    2,220,255    -                  -                  -                    -                 -                 
Reserved fo future years -                  -                  2,856,680    3,991,255    4,623,491      4,623,491    3,991,255    
Total uses 5,733,724    4,897,754    3,476,924    4,051,255    4,763,670      4,763,670    3,991,255    

FTE 0.3          0.1          0.2          -          0.2            0.2          0.2           
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 84 of 117 203



ENTERPRISE FUNDS           SANITARY FUND  

 

76 

 

Sanitary Fund 

The Sanitary fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the sanitary utility. The Capital department is responsible for 
construction of sanitary infrastructure. 
 
Sanitary Fund Budget in Total 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 4,051,252$  3,374,283$  3,401,711$  3,474,815$  3,218,004$  3,218,004$  3,218,004$  

Revenue

Intergovernmental 338,821       51,269        528,457       441,810       151,269       151,269       -                 

Charges for services 523,271       554,285       554,000       577,850       571,500       571,500       -                 

Infrastructure development 6,020          38,704        42,000        232,050       408,150       408,150       -                 

Fines, interest and other 16,263        24,052        9,848          15,800        5,160          5,160          -                 

Total revenue 884,375       668,309       1,134,305    1,267,510    1,136,079    1,136,079    -                 

Other sources

Transfers in 50,000        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total other sources 50,000        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total sources 4,985,628  4,042,592  4,536,016  4,742,325  4,354,083  4,354,083  3,218,004  

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 164,536       167,810       190,060       174,701       190,982       190,982       -                 

Payroll taxes 18,036        17,734        22,697        21,389        23,655         23,655        -                 

Benefits 60,041        67,980        86,597        71,171        78,892         78,892        -                 

Total personal services 242,613       253,525       299,354       267,261       293,529       293,529       -                 

Materials and services

Professional & technical 38,128        37,882        58,500        50,500        225,750       225,750       -                 

Facility and equipment 7,867          17,104        20,300        20,000        19,200         19,200        -                 

Other purchased services 33,423        43,187        86,939        81,633        90,379         90,379        -                 

Supplies 14,106        11,600        13,800        13,540        40,550         40,550        -                 

Minor equipment 5,089          3,230          3,850          5,530          5,600          5,600          -                 

Other materials & services 133,814       137,639       147,243       136,210       149,681       149,681       -                 

Total materials & services 232,428       250,642       330,632       307,413       531,160       531,160       -                 

Capital outlay

Land 11,975        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Infrastructure 869,948       22,454        1,128,071    927,947       311,053       311,053       -                 

Vehicles -                 -                 10,000        10,000        20,000         20,000        -                 

Furniture and equipment -                 41,157        11,700        11,700        -                 -                 -                 

Total capital outlay 881,923       63,611        1,149,771    949,647       331,053       331,053       -                 

Debt service -                 

Principal 54,641        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Interest 635             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total debt service 55,276        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total expenditures 1,412,240    567,777       1,779,757    1,524,321    1,155,742    1,155,742    -                 

Other uses

Transfers out 199,105       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Ending Fund Balance 3,374,283    3,474,815    -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 -                 2,561,259    3,088,004    28,375         28,375        -                 

Reserved for Future Years - Ops -                 -                 -                 -                 87,197         87,197        303,412       

Reserved for Future Years - Res -                 -                 195,000       130,000       140,000       140,000       130,000       

Reserved for Future Years - Cap -                 -                 -                 -                 2,942,769    2,942,769    2,784,592    

Total uses 4,985,628  4,042,592  4,536,016  4,742,325  4,354,083  4,354,083  3,218,004  

 
 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 85 of 117 204



ENTERPRISE FUNDS           SANITARY FUND  

 

77 

 

Sanitary Operations   
 
The Sanitary Division manages and operates over 62 miles of pipe ranging in size from 21”-6” in the 
wastewater collection system in the city limits of Sherwood. The sanitary Sewer division maintains and 
operates a safe and reliable wastewater collection system that protects public health, protects the 
environment, and meets or exceeds all regulatory standards. 
 

2013-14 Accomplishments 
 Cleaned 79,440 feet of sanitary main lines. 
 Videoed 50,000 feet of sanitary main lines. 
 Completed brushing and posting program. 
 Completed annual inspections at City businesses to ensure FOG compliance. 
 Provide semi-annual cleaning of sanitary sewer mainlines which are inherent to FOG from our 

Food Establishments. 

 Performed Audit of Semi-Annual Grease Line 

 
2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 
 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its 
citizens to live, work and play.” 
 

Activities 

 Ensure compliance with the City of Sherwood’s maintenance standards which are adopted 
by Clean Water Services. This work section provides all warranty video inspection of all main 
line construction projects (private and capital). 

 Television inspection program provides updated information on needed sanitary main line 
repairs and replacements (on 7 year cycle). 

 Sanitary pipe lines are on a 4 year cleaning cycle to prevent blockages that could cause 
overflows. 

 Root cutting is performed annually to prevent blockages. 
 Fat Oil and Grease Program.  Provide inspections to ensure compliance with City ordinance 

to minimize maintenance costs. 

 Promote education of the Fat, Oils and Grease program (FOG) to minimize FOG from 
entering our public sanitary collection system. 

 
Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Total feet of sanitary lines  314,543 313,569 331,600 

 Percentage of sanitary lines video inspected (Goal: 12.5% 

annually) 21.3% 22% 26.5% 

 Percentage of lines cleaned annual (Goal: 25% annually) 51.5% 36% 38% 

 Number of overflows or backups (Goal: 0) 1* 1** 1* 

 Percentage of businesses inspected and in compliance with 

city’s FOG Program (Goal: 100%) 20% 75% 75% 

 Percentage of manholes inspected annually (Goal: 50%) 4% 83% 68% 

*Capital Project – Contractor error / **Contractor damaged sewer line 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 86 of 117 205



ENTERPRISE FUNDS           SANITARY FUND  

 

78 

 

Sanitary Operations Budget 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 108,791$   285,083$   400,308$     379,502$     303,412$   303,412$ 303,412$ 

Revenue

Charges for services 523,271    554,225    554,000      577,850       571,500     571,500   -             

Infrastructure development 254          2,859       1,500          20,000        2,500        2,500      -             

Fines, interest and other 4,044       6,299       3,000          (126,000)     (6,500)       (6,500)     -             

Total revenue 527,569    563,383    558,500      471,850       567,500     567,500   -             

Other sources

Transfers in 50,000      -              -                 -                 -               -             -             

Total other sources 50,000      -              -                 -                 -               -             -             

Total sources 686,361  848,466  958,808     851,352     870,912   870,912 303,412 

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 108,942    147,864    149,594      150,231       162,066     162,066   -             

Payroll taxes 13,488      16,105      18,754        18,978        20,691       20,691     -             

Benefits 42,281      59,245      67,131        60,651        65,947       65,947     -             

Total personal services 164,711    223,214    235,479      229,860       248,704     248,704   -             

Materials and services

Professional & technical 7,332       22,646      58,500        50,500        75,750       75,750     -             

Facility and equipment 7,867       17,104      20,300        20,000        19,200       19,200     -             

Other purchased services 33,305      41,345      86,893        81,604        90,336       90,336     -             

Supplies 14,106      11,600      13,800        13,540        40,550       40,550     -             

Minor equipment 5,089       3,230       3,850          5,530          5,600        5,600      -             

Other materials & services 75,387      108,668    93,092        100,206       105,200     105,200   -             

Total materials & services 143,086    204,593    276,435      271,380       336,636     336,636   -             

Capital outlay

Infrastructure 38,206      -              25,000        25,000        150,000     150,000   -             

Vehicles -              -              10,000        10,000        20,000       20,000     -             

Furniture and equipment -              41,157      11,700        11,700        -               -             -             

Total capital outlay 38,206      41,157      46,700        46,700        170,000     170,000   -             

Debt service

Principal 54,641      -              -                 -                 -               -             -             

Interest 635          -              -                 -                 -               -             -             

Total debt service 55,276      -              -                 -                 -               -             -             

Total expenditures 401,278    468,964    558,614      547,940       755,340     755,340   -             

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 285,083    379,502    -                 -                 -               -             -             

Contingency -              -              400,194      303,412       28,375       28,375     -             

Reserved for Future Years -              -              -                 -                 87,197       87,197     303,412  

Total uses 686,361  848,466  958,808     851,352     870,912   870,912 303,412 

FTE 2.2        2.9        2.8          2.7          2.9         2.9       2.9        

 

Sanitary Operations Reserve 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance -$                      -$                      -$               -$               130,000$      130,000$       130,000$     

Revenue

Fines, interest and other -                  -                  -                 130,000       10,000         10,000           -                  

Total revenue -                  -                  -                 130,000       10,000         10,000           -                  

Total sources -              -              -             130,000     140,000      140,000        130,000      

USES

Total expenditures -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Ending Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  -                 130,000       140,000       140,000         130,000       

Total uses -                  -                  -                 130,000     140,000      140,000        130,000      

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 87 of 117 206



ENTERPRISE FUNDS           SANITARY FUND  

 

79 

 

FY14-15 Sanitary Capital Projects/Budget 
  

Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Upgrade: This project consists of replacing/upsizing 
approximately 3,011 linear feet of existing 8 and 10 inch diameter pipe with 12-inch pipe.  The project 
is on the south side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road, from the intersection with Oregon street west to the 
railroad tracks and then southwest along those tracks. This upgrade is necessary to provide capacity 
for future growth and expansion of the northeast portion of Sherwood (Area 48). Funding will come 
from existing City sanitary sewer SDC funds. Future Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of bi-
yearly inspection of the conveyance system and cleaning as needed on a five to ten year cycle.  
 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES
Beginning fund balance 3,942,461$   3,089,200$   3,001,403$   3,095,313$   2,784,592$      2,784,592$   2,784,592$   
Revenue

Intergovernmental 338,821       51,269         528,457       441,810       151,269           151,269       -                  
Charges for services -                 60               -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  
Infrastructure development 5,766          35,845         40,500         212,050       405,650           405,650       -                  
Fines, interest and other 12,219        17,752         6,848           11,800         1,660              1,660           -                  
Total revenue 356,806       104,926       575,805       665,660       558,579           558,579       -                  

Other sources

Total sources 4,299,267    3,194,126    3,577,208    3,760,973    3,343,171        3,343,171    2,784,592    
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 55,594         19,947         40,466         24,470         28,916            28,916         -                  
Payroll taxes 4,548           1,629           3,943           2,411           2,964              2,964           -                  
Benefits 17,760         8,735           19,466         10,520         12,945            12,945         -                  
Total personal services 77,902         30,311         63,875         37,401         44,825            44,825         -                  

Materials and services
Professional & technical 30,796         15,236         -                  -                  150,000           150,000       -                  
Other purchased services 118             1,841           46               29               43                   43               -                  
Other materials & services 58,427         28,971         54,151         36,004         44,481            44,481         -                  
Total materials & services 89,342         46,049         54,197         36,033         194,524           194,524       -                  

Capital outlay
Land 11,975         -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  
Infrastructure 831,742       22,454         1,103,071    902,947       161,053           161,053       -                  
Total capital outlay 843,717       22,454         1,103,071    902,947       161,053           161,053       -                  

Debt service
Total debt service -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  

Total expenditures 1,010,961    98,814         1,221,143    976,381       400,402           400,402       -                  
Other uses

Transfers out 199,105       -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  
Ending Fund Balance 3,089,200    3,095,313    -                  -                  -                     -                  -                  
Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  2,356,065    2,784,592    2,942,769        2,942,769    2,784,592    
Total uses 4,299,267    3,194,126    3,577,208    3,760,973    3,343,171        3,343,171    2,784,592    

FTE 1.0          0.3          0.6          0.4          0.5             0.5          0.5           

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 88 of 117 207



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                         STORM CAPITAL 

80 

 

 
Storm Fund 

The Storm fund consists of two departments, operations and capital. The operations department is 
responsible for ongoing maintenance of the stormwater utility. The Capital department is responsible 
for construction of stormwater infrastructure. 
 
Storm Fund Budget in Total 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 1,083,858$  1,285,864$  1,557,395$  1,948,537$  2,606,387$  2,606,387$  2,606,387$  

Revenue

Charges for services 1,418,566    1,525,022    1,535,690    1,608,000    1,598,800    1,598,800    -                 

Infrastructure development 13,346        35,102        33,500        157,000       32,600         32,600        -                 

Fines, interest and other 7,738          8,707          8,814          9,980          10,343         10,343        -                 

Total revenue 1,439,650    1,568,831    1,578,004    1,774,980    1,641,743    1,641,743    -                 

Other sources

Transfers in 316,678       44,302        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total other sources 316,678       44,302        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total sources 2,840,186  2,898,997  3,135,399  3,723,517  4,248,130  4,248,130  2,606,387  

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 201,328       226,309       300,875       229,720       288,266       288,266       -                 

Payroll taxes 23,334        25,262        37,438        28,795        36,856         36,856        -                 

Benefits 66,940        87,431        133,792       89,241        117,544       117,544       -                 

Total personal services 291,602       339,001       472,105       347,756       442,666       442,666       -                 

Materials and services

Professional & technical 150,248       132,340       189,200       143,500       833,900       833,900       -                 

Facility and equipment 23,480        21,426        28,000        25,000        25,000         25,000        -                 

Other purchased services 77,043        89,581        109,137       113,618       124,532       124,532       -                 

Supplies 23,151        10,737        24,200        23,000        44,050         44,050        -                 

Community activities -                 13               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Minor equipment 7,929          2,638          5,600          9,600          7,050          7,050          -                 

Other materials & services 121,946       146,122       237,212       162,898       247,968       247,968       -                 

Total materials & services 403,796       402,857       593,349       477,616       1,282,500    1,282,500    -                 

Capital outlay

Land 239,912       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Infrastructure 34,543        167,445       1,250,049    237,758       593,394       593,394       -                 

Vehicles -                 -                 10,000        10,000        20,000         20,000        -                 

Furniture and equipment -                 41,157        40,000        44,000        56,500         56,500        -                 

Total capital outlay 274,456       208,601       1,300,049    291,758       669,894       669,894       -                 

Debt service -                 

Principal 343,259       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Interest 11,208        -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total debt service 354,467       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Total expenditures 1,324,322    950,460       2,365,503    1,117,130    2,395,060    2,395,060    -                 

Other uses

Transfers out 230,000       -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Ending Fund Balance 1,285,864    1,948,537    -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Contingency -                 -                 634,896       2,471,387    124,221       124,221       62,431        

Reserved for Future Years - Ops -                 -                 -                 -                 690,810       690,810       1,186,186    

Reserved for Future Years - Res -                 -                 135,000       135,000       103,500       103,500       135,000       

Reserved for Future Years - Cap -                 -                 -                 -                 934,539       934,539       1,222,770    

Total uses 2,840,186  2,898,997  3,135,399  3,723,517  4,248,130  4,248,130  2,606,387  

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 89 of 117 208



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                         STORM CAPITAL 

81 

 

 

Storm Operations 

 
The Stormwater Department provides a safe and reliable storm water system and implements 
watershed protection and restoration actions that consistently promote surface water quality and 
stream health. 
 
2013-14 Accomplishments 

 Cleaned 58,908 feet of storm water main lines. 
 Cleaned/inspected 1,946 catch basins.  
 Cleaned 79 water quality manholes semi-annually. 
 Treated 1,641 catch basins for prevention of West Nile Virus. 
 Completed leaf curbside pickup for all public city streets and held 3 leaf drop dates at public 

works facility. Collected 960 yards of leaves and collected 60 lbs. of canned food.  
 Planted 3,150 trees in compliance with Healthy Streams program. 
 Completed monthly street sweeping. 

 
2014-15 Goals, Values, Strategies, Activities, and Performance Measures 

 
Goal:  “The City of Sherwood will provide and maintain infrastructure for its citizens to 
live, work and play.” 

 
Activities 

 Comply with City of Sherwood maintenance standards which are adopted by CWS. 
 Television inspection program is on an 8 year cycle and provides updated information on 

needed storm main line repairs and replacements. 

 Clean water quality manholes twice yearly and catch basins yearly.   
 Maintain maintenance program of water quality facilities and storm water filters. 
 West Nile Virus Program consists of sampling, treatment, and monitoring. 
 The storm pipe lines are on a 6 year cleaning cycle to prevent blockages that could cause 

flooding. 

 Leaf Program prevents street flooding and helps minimize maintenance costs. 
 Monthly street sweeping. 
 Healthy Streams plan consists of tree planting in accordance with Clean Water Services 

Healthy Streams programs. 
 

Performance Measures 2011 2012 2013 

 Total feet of storm lines * 327,703 326,235 325,115 

 Percentage of system videoed (Goal: 12.5% annually) 28% 15.4% 18.6% 

 Percentage of stormlines cleaned (Goal: 16% annually) 28% 34.4% 12.8% 

 Total number of sumpted catch basins   1595 1665 1641 

 Percentage of catch basins cleaned (Goal: 100% annually) 97% 101.2% 99% 

 Number of WQFs rehabilitated/enhanced (Goal:2  annually) 0 2 3 

 Number of private WQFs Inspected (Goal: 25% annually) 25% 80% 100% 

 Number of public WQFs functional (Goal: 100%) n/a 62% 73% 

* Stormlines decreased due to mapping updates and removal of private lines 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 90 of 117 209



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                         STORM CAPITAL 

82 

 

 
Storm Operations Budget 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 523,593$      469,037$      423,118$     693,747$     1,248,617$ 1,248,617$ 1,248,617$ 

Revenue

Charges for services 942,919      1,125,022   1,535,690    1,608,000    1,198,800   1,198,800   -                

Infrastructure development 5,404         2,832         1,500          20,000        2,500         2,500         -                

Fines, interest and other 4,590         2,828         2,000          (131,000)     34,500        34,500       -                

Total revenue 952,913      1,130,681   1,539,190    1,497,000    1,235,800   1,235,800   -                

Other sources

Transfers in 60,000       -                -                 -                 -                -                -                

Total other sources 60,000       -                -                 -                 -                -                -                

Total sources 1,536,506

 1,599,718

 1,962,308  2,190,747  2,484,417

 2,484,417

 1,248,617

 

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 198,821      221,572      257,202      219,431       242,506      242,506      -                

Payroll taxes 23,127       24,871       33,176        27,801        32,170        32,170       -                

Benefits 66,029       85,604       115,072      85,493        97,309        97,309       -                

Total personal services 287,977      332,046      405,450      332,725       371,985      371,985      -                

Materials and services

Professional & technical 144,118      103,074      189,200      143,500       683,900      683,900      -                

Facility and equipment 18,056       21,426       28,000        25,000        25,000        25,000       -                

Other purchased services 76,974       88,652       109,091      113,611       124,474      124,474      -                

Supplies 23,151       10,737       24,200        23,000        44,050        44,050       -                

Community activities -                13              -                 -                 -                -                -                

Minor equipment 7,929         2,638         5,600          9,600          7,050         7,050         -                

Other materials & services 119,120      138,784      181,962      148,694       177,927      177,927      -                

Total materials & services 389,348      365,324      538,053      463,405       1,062,401   1,062,401  

 -                

Capital outlay

Infrastructure 35,677       167,445      622,000      92,000        158,500      158,500      -                

Vehicles -                -                10,000        10,000        20,000        20,000       -                

Furniture and equipment -                41,157       40,000        44,000        56,500        56,500       -                

Total capital outlay 35,677       208,601      672,000      146,000       235,000      235,000      -                

Debt service

Principal 343,259      -                -                 -                 -                -                -                

Interest 11,208       -                -                 -                 -                -                -                

Total debt service 354,467      -                -                 -                 -                -                -                

Total expenditures 1,067,469   905,971      1,615,503    942,130       1,669,386   1,669,386   -                

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 469,037      693,747      -                 -                 -                -                -                

Contingency -                -                346,805      1,248,617    124,221      124,221      62,431       

Reserved for Future Years -                -                -                 -                 690,810      690,810      1,186,186   

Total uses 1,536,506 1,599,718 1,962,308  2,190,747  2,484,417 2,484,417 1,248,617 

FTE 4.2         4.4         4.9          4.2          4.4         4.4         4.4          
 
Storm Operations Reserve 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance -$                      -$                      -$               -$               135,000$      135,000$       135,000$     

Revenue

Fines, interest and other -                  -                  -                 135,000       (31,500)        (31,500)          -                  

Total revenue -                  -                  -                 135,000       (31,500)        (31,500)          -                  

Total sources -              -              -             135,000     103,500      103,500        135,000      

USES

Total expenditures -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Ending Fund Balance -                  -                  -                 -                 -                  -                    -                  

Reserved for Future Years -                  -                  -                 135,000       103,500       103,500         135,000       

Total uses -                  -                  -                 135,000     103,500      103,500        135,000      

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 91 of 117 210



ENTERPRISE FUNDS                                         STORM CAPITAL 

83 

 

 
FY14-15 Storm Capital Projects 

 
Columbia Street Regional Storm Water Quality Facility:  This project is based on an agreement 
between the City and CWS to construct a regional water quality facility as part of the Cannery PUD.  
The project to date has purchased the necessary property along Main Street and performed a lot line 
adjustment in preparation for the design and construction phase.  The design phase of this project is 
expected to commence in early FY13/14, with the construction phase being completed within FY14/15.  
Future Public Works maintenance will consist mostly of bi-yearly inspection of the treatment facility, 
and removal of invasive plant species and sediment removal as needed in meeting CWS/DEQ 
requirements for MS4 permitting. 
 

 
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted
SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 560,265$    816,827$    1,134,277$   1,254,790$   1,222,770$      1,222,770$     1,222,770$   
Revenue

Charges for services 475,647     400,000     -                  -                  400,000           400,000          -                  
Infrastructure development 7,943        32,270       32,000         137,000       30,100            30,100           -                  
Fines, interest and other 3,147        5,879         6,814           5,980           7,343              7,343             -                  
Total revenue 486,737     438,150     38,814         142,980       437,443           437,443          -                  

Other sources
Transfers in 256,678     44,302       -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  
Total other sources 256,678     44,302       -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  

Total sources 1,303,680   1,299,279   1,173,091    1,397,770    1,660,213        1,660,213       1,222,770     
USES

Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries and wages 2,507        4,737         43,673         10,289         45,760            45,760           -                  
Payroll taxes 207           391            4,262           994             4,686              4,686             -                  
Benefits 912           1,828         18,720         3,748           20,235            20,235           -                  
Total personal services 3,626         6,956         66,655         15,031         70,681            70,681           -                  

Materials and services
Professional & technical 6,131        29,267       -                  -                  150,000           150,000          -                  
Facility and equipment 5,424        -                -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  
Other purchased services 68             929            46               7                 58                   58                  -                  
Other materials & services 2,826        7,338         55,250         14,204         70,041            70,041           -                  
Total materials & services 14,449       37,533       55,296         14,211         220,099           220,099          -                  

Capital outlay
Land 239,912     -                -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  
Infrastructure (1,134)       -                628,049       145,758       434,894           434,894          -                  
Total capital outlay 238,779     -                628,049       145,758       434,894           434,894          -                  

Debt service
Total debt service -                -                -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  

Total expenditures 256,853     44,489       750,000       175,000       725,674           725,674          -                  
Other uses

Transfers out 230,000     -                -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  
Ending Fund Balance 816,827     1,254,790   -                  -                  -                     -                    -                  
Reserved for Future Years -                -                423,091       1,222,770    934,539           934,539          1,222,770     
Total uses 1,303,680   1,299,279   1,173,091    1,397,770    1,660,213        1,660,213       1,222,770     

FTE 0.04       0.07       0.61        0.14        0.69           0.69          0.69          

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 92 of 117 211



FINANCIALS     TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

 

84 

 

Telecommunications 
 
Telecommunications supports the communication needs of the city, local businesses, school district, 
and residents. Services within this utility are primarily sold and managed through third party service 
providers. Currently there are over 60 sites within this network and over 100 miles of fiber optic cable. 
Telecommunications also support economic development within Sherwood and the surrounding area. 
 
2013-2014 Accomplishments 
  

 Added several new customers, increasing revenue by nearly 90k 
 Re-Architected portions of the network to better support the needs of our partner service 

providers. 

 Replaced several pieces of ageing equipment with newer used equipment at a substantial 
cost savings. 

 Fully implemented our Network Redundancy plan and began providing services on it. 
 Helped a business locate to Sherwood by providing them broadband services.   Availability of 

fast, reliable and inexpensive broadband services was the determining factor for them 
moving to Sherwood. 

 Assisted in the development of the city’s Broadband Strategic Plan. 
 

2014-2015 Goals, Strategies, Values and Activities 
 
Goal: Economic Development:  The City of Sherwood will promote responsible economic 
development which benefits the community. 
 
Strategies: 

 
Continue to promote Sherwood Broadband to the Sherwood business community 

 
Activities: 

 Continue to involve third party Internet Service Providers 

 Integrate Sherwood Broadband into applicable Economic Development activities 

 
Performance Measures 

 The number of new customers added each year 

 

0

50

100

FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 Projected FY14-15 Budget

Sites Served by the Sherwood Broadband 
Utility 

Public Sites Private Sites

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 93 of 117 212



FINANCIALS     TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

 

85 

 

Telecommunications Budget 
 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Actual Actual Budget Projected Proposed Approved Adopted

SOURCES

Beginning fund balance 186,690$   41,278$     6,351$        63,204$       33,660$     33,660$        33,660$      

Revenue

Charges for services 310,838     318,075     396,000       364,000       461,460     461,460        -                

Fines, interest and other 585           169           250             350             300           300              -                

Total revenue 311,423     318,244     396,250       364,350       461,760     461,760        -                

Other sources

Total sources 498,114   359,522   402,601     427,554     495,420   495,420      33,660      

USES

Expenditures

Personal services

Salaries and wages 6,591        10,785      27,873        29,198         40,114       40,114          -                

Payroll taxes 563           930           2,470          2,649          3,734        3,734            -                

Benefits 2,411        2,797        13,712        12,834         16,080       16,080          -                

Total personal services 9,565        14,512      44,055        44,681         59,928       59,928          -                

Materials and services

Professional & technical 18,510      3,544        5,000          10,000         10,000       10,000          -                

Facility and equipment 35,151      42,263      63,900        51,650         17,900       17,900          -                

Other purchased services 41,490      67,721      90,288        90,468         67,432       67,432          -                

Supplies 339           -               5,000          7,500          20,600       20,600          -                

Minor equipment 13,389      10,781      15,000        21,000         30,000       30,000          -                

Other materials & services 4,156        7,498        19,824        18,595         25,300       25,300          -                

Total materials & services 113,035     131,806     199,012       199,213       171,232     171,232        -                

Capital outlay

Infrastructure -               -               -                 -                 20,000       20,000          -                

Furniture and equipment 18,940      -               -                 -                 20,000       20,000          -                

Total capital outlay 18,940      -               -                 -                 40,000       40,000          -                

Debt service

Principal 315,296     146,640     146,000       146,000       -               147,000        -                

Interest -               3,360        4,000          4,000          -               3,000            -                

Total debt service 315,296     150,000     150,000       150,000       -               150,000        -                

Total expenditures 456,836     296,318     393,067       393,894       271,160     421,160        -                

Other uses

Ending Fund Balance 41,278      63,204      -                 -                 -               -                  -                

Contingency -               -               9,534          33,660         23,088       23,088          -                

Reserved for Future Years -               -               -                 -                 201,172     51,172          33,660        

Total uses 498,114   359,522   402,601     427,554     495,420   495,420      33,660      

FTE 0.1            0.1            0.3              0.4              0.5            0.5           0.5          
 

 
 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 94 of 117 213



 

 

 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 95 of 117 214



APPENDICES                                       PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

86 

Personnel FTE Comparison to Prior Year 

 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Actual Actual Actual Projected Budget

Administration 15.9        17.4       15.6       17.5        16.35       

Community Development 9.6         8.6         8.6         10.0        12.08       

Public Safety 25.6        26.3       25.6       25.2        25.59       

Community Services 13.3        13.2       13.4       13.7        14.75       

Public Works Operations 10.4        9.9         10.9       12.5        13.59       

General Fund Total 74.8        75.4       74.0       78.8        82.36       

Water Operations 8.1         6.9         7.3         6.6          6.49        

Water Capital 0.4         0.33       0.05       -          0.15        

Water Fund Total 8.5         7.2         7.3         6.6          6.64        

Sanitary Operations 2.2         2.2         2.9         2.7          2.87        

Sanitary Capital 1.2         1.0         0.3         0.4          0.45        

Sanitary Fund Total 3.4         3.1         3.3         3.1          3.32        

Storm Operations 4.0         4.2         4.4         4.2          4.41        

Storm Capital 0.04        0.04       0.07       0.14        0.69        

Storm Fund Total 4.0         4.3         4.5         4.4          5.10        

Street Operations 3.0         3.3         3.8         3.9          4.20        

Street Capital 2.2         2.5         0.9         0.5          0.24        

General Construction 0.4         -         0.2         0.3          0.60        

Telecom 0.2         0.1         0.1         0.4          0.46        

URA Operations 1.0         0.8         0.5         0.3          0.21        

URA Capital 0.2         0.4         0.9         0.7          0.93        

Total 98          97          96          99           104         

Administration

Receptionist (1.0)         

Community Development

Receptionist 1.0          

Associate Planner - Funded by Grant funds 1.0          

Engineering Tech 1 1.0          

Building Permit Tech 0.5          

Community Services

Community Center Staff 2.0          

Public Works

Maintenance Worker I 1.0          

5.5          

Changes to personnel for FY 2014-15

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 96 of 117 215



APPENDICES                                       PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

87 

Management/Supervisory/Confidential (Effective July 1, 2014) 
 

 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 

Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Admin Asst III - Confidential A1 19.46 24.91 3,373 4,317 

Payroll Finance Tech A2 21.41 27.4 3,710 4,749 

Program/Project Supervisor II B 23.55 30.14 4,081 5,224 

Program Project Manager I  
PW Operations Supervisor 
Program Analyst 
Supervising Librarian 
Recreation Supervisor 
Human Resource Analyst 

C 25.89 33.14 4,487 5,744 

PW Operations Supervisor II 
Engineering Associate II 
System Administrator 
Senior IT Analyst 

D 28.23 36.13 4,893 6,263 

Civil Engineer 
Police Sgt (non-exempt) 
Planning Manager 
Utility Manager 
Senior Network Engineer 

E 30.77 39.39 5,334 6,828 

Building Official 
Library Manager 

F 33.23 42.53 5,760 7,373 

Police Captain G 35.88 45.93 6,220 7,962 

City Engineer H 37.86 48.47 6,563 8,401 

IT Director 
Community Develop Director 
Finance Director 
Public Works Director  
Community Services Director 

I 41.08 52.59 7,121 9,116 

Police Chief 
Assistant City Manager 

J 43.96 56.28 7,620 9.755 

City Manager 
City Recorder 
Municipal Judge 

Contract 
Employees 

    

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 97 of 117 216



APPENDICES                                      PERSONNEL AND MONTHLY SALARY SCHEDULE 

 

88 

AFSCME Represented (Effective July 1, 2014) 
 
  

 

SPOA Represented (Effective July 1, 2014)  
 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 

Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Police Officer 1 25.4 32.52 4,403 5,637 

 Group Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum 

Position Range Hourly Hourly Monthly Monthly 

Library Page I 
Recreational Assistant 

1 11.24 14.39 1,949 2,495 

Library Page II 2 13.15 16.83 2,279 2,918 

Library Asst. I 
Admin Asst. I 
Recreation Specialist 

3 15.13 19.37 2,622 3,357 

Admin Asst II 
Library Asst II 
Maintenance Worker I 

4 17.09 21.87 2,962 3,791 

Maintenance Worker II 
Billing Tech 
Admin Asst. III 
Engineering Tech I 
Court Clerk I 

5 18.97 24.29 3,288 4,209 

Finance Tech 
Code Compliance 
Evidence Tech 
Department/Program Coordinator 
Maintenance Worker III 
Permit Specialist 
Public Works Tech 
Mechanic 
Events & Volunteer Coordinator 
Engineering Tech II 

6 20.87 26.71 3,617 4,630 

Librarian 
Maintenance Worker Lead 
Accountant 
Court Administrator 
Assistant Planner 

7 22.74 29.11 3,941 5,045 

Associate Planner 
Engineering Associate I 
Inspector I 

8 24.79 31.74 4,297 5,501 

Inspector II 9 26.78 34.27 4,641 5,941 

Senior Planner 10 28.65 36.68 4,967 6,358 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 98 of 117 217



APPENDICES    LONG TERM DEBT 

 

89 

Description of Long-Term Debt 
 
All debt with repayment terms in excess of one year is shown on the following schedule.  The City does 
not intend to issue any new debt in FY14-15.    
 
The debt is in two sections.  The first section is City debt independent of the URA.  This includes 
general obligation bonds and loans paid from City resources.  The second section is City loans for 
Urban Renewal Agency projects.  There are intergovernmental agreements for the URA to reimburse 
the City for debt service on these loans.  For all debt to outside parties, “debt service expenditures to 
maturity” represents principal and interest payments, both of which appear as expenditures in the 
budget.  
 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

Total Debt to 

Outside Parties

2004 A&B 

Refunding

2011 Police 

Facility 

Refunding 

Original Amount  $      63,695,000  $    6,045,000  $   2,305,000 
Balance at 6/30/14         49,003,526       1,745,000       1,680,000 

Payment Source

Paying Fund

Year Ending June 30

2015           5,155,415 623,194        271,200        

2016           5,162,743 628,594        270,625        

2017           5,149,803 622,500        268,800        

2018           4,349,514 -                  271,750        

2019           4,344,113 -                  269,475        

2020           4,345,973 -                  270,700        

2021           4,353,182 -                  270,300        

2022           3,959,455 -                  -                  

2023           3,917,375 -                  -                  

2024           3,914,695 -                  -                  

2025           3,520,384 -                  -                  

2026           3,527,741 -                  -                  

2027           3,526,550 -                  -                  

2028           3,044,654 -                  -                  

2029           3,038,883 -                  -                  

2030           3,041,088 -                  -                  

2031           2,056,839 -                  -                  

2032           1,627,000 -                  -                  

2033           1,628,750 -                  -                  

2034           1,628,500 -                  -                  

2035             981,250 -                  -                  

2036             981,750 -                  -                  

2037                     -   -                  -                  

2038                     -   -                  -                  

73,255,654$      1,874,288$    1,892,850$    

 Debt Service 

General Obligation Bonds

 Property taxes 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 99 of 117 218



APPENDICES    LONG TERM DEBT 

 

90 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

2008 SDW 

Water Reservoir

2009 SDW 

Water 

Pipeline

2011 Bonds 

for Water

Total City 

Debt 

Exclusive of 

URA

Original Amount  $     1,461,740  $  508,260  $         6,000,000  $6,000,000  $   14,165,000  $   36,485,000 
Balance at 6/30/14           382,130      132,870            5,109,652    5,356,162       13,385,000  $   27,790,814 

Payment Source  Rent of Building  Parks SDC's Water Rates Water Rates  Water Rates     

Paying Fund  General 

 General 

Construction Water Water  Water 

Year Ending June 30

2015 139,580          48,533      424,079              434,870     978,719          2,920,175       

2016 136,714          47,537      424,079              434,870     980,719          2,923,138       

2017 137,033          47,647      424,079              434,870     977,519          2,912,448       

2018 -                   -              424,079              434,870     980,069          2,110,768       

2019 -                   -              424,079              434,870     977,169          2,105,593       

2020 -                   -              424,079              434,870     979,569          2,109,218       

2021 -                   -              424,079              434,870     981,169          2,110,418       

2022 -                   -              424,079              434,870     981,969          1,840,918       

2023 -                   -              424,079              434,870     981,969          1,840,918       

2024 -                   -              424,079              434,870     980,719          1,839,668       

2025 -                   -              424,079              434,870     978,719          1,837,668       

2026 -                   -              424,079              434,870     980,919          1,839,868       

2027 -                   -              424,079              434,870     981,375          1,840,324       

2028 -                   -              424,079              434,870     980,025          1,838,974       

2029 -                   -              424,079              434,870     976,806          1,835,755       

2030 -                   -              424,079              434,870     977,494          1,836,443       

2031 -                   -              -                       425,845     980,994          1,406,839       

2032 -                   -              -                       -               977,000          977,000          

2033 -                   -              -                       -               978,750          978,750          

2034 -                   -              -                       -               978,500          978,500          

2035 -                   -              -                       -               981,250          981,250          

2036 -                   -              -                       -               981,750          981,750          

2037 -                   -              -                       -               -                   -                   

2038 -                   -              -                       -               -                   -                   

413,327$        143,717$   6,785,264$         7,383,765$ 21,553,169$    40,046,380$    

2001 YMCA

City Loans

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 100 of 117 219



APPENDICES    LONG TERM DEBT 

 

91 

Debt Service Expenditures to Maturity 

 

City Loans for Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency Projects

2006 

Downtown 

Streets

2010 Streets 

& Cannery

2010 

Cannery

2012 City 

Hall/Street 

Refinancing

Total Debt on 

behalf of URA

Original Amount  $ 6,400,000  $   7,065,000  $    8,500,000  $ 5,245,000  $   27,210,000 
Balance at 6/30/14     4,748,824       6,115,000       5,898,888     4,450,000 21,212,712 

Payment Source

Paying Fund

Year Ending June 30

2015 482,619      553,865 650,000 548,756      2,235,240 

2016 483,219      555,605 650,000 550,781      2,239,605 

2017 483,419      551,580 650,000 552,356      2,237,355 

2018 483,220      552,045 650,000 553,481      2,238,746 

2019 482,619      551,745 650,000 554,156      2,238,520 

2020 481,619      555,680 650,000 549,456      2,236,755 

2021 484,863      553,595 650,000 554,306      2,242,764 

2022 482,263      555,768 650,000 430,506      2,118,537 

2023 484,088      553,563 650,000 388,806      2,076,457 

2024 485,276      550,660 650,000 389,091      2,075,027 

2025 480,656      552,060 650,000 -               1,682,716 

2026 485,343      552,530 650,000 -               1,687,873 

2027 484,156      552,070 650,000 -               1,686,226 

2028 -               555,680 650,000 -               1,205,680 

2029 -               553,128 650,000 -               1,203,128 

2030 -               554,645 650,000 -               1,204,645 

2031 -               -                  650,000 -               650,000 

2032 -               -                  650,000 -               650,000 

2033 -               -                  650,000         -               650,000 

2034 -               -                  650,000         -               650,000 

2035 -               -                  -                  -                                -   

2036 -               -                  -                  -                                -   

2037 -               -                  -                  -                                -   

2038 -               -                  -                  -                                -   

6,283,360$  8,854,219$    13,000,000$   5,071,695$  28,137,579$   

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 101 of 117 220



APPENDICES                                                                  DEBT MARGIN AND TRANSFERS 

 

92 

Debt Margin 

Total assessed value on January 1 2014: 1,413,849,727$ 

Debt limitation: 3% of total assessed value 42,415,492       

Debt outstanding at June 30, 2014:

General obligation bonds outstanding 3,425,000$    

Less amount avaialble for repayment of general obligation bonds (8,464)          

Net debt outstanding that is subject to limitation 3,416,536         

Amount of general obligation bonds that could be issued 38,998,956       

 

Transfers 

Transfer From: Transfer To:

Fund General Construction

1 Street Capital 200,000                    

Total 200,000$                  

Purpose:

1 Transfer funds from Street Capital to General 

Construction for Cedar Creek Trail.
 

 

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 102 of 117 221



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 

 

93 

City of Sherwood Budget Process  
 
The strategic planning process begins anew each October as the City Manager and Management Team 
meet to identify assumptions for the long term and update department objectives for the next five 
years.   
 
The objective throughout the budgeting process is to strive to achieve the City’s mission, values, and 
goals.   
 
The mission statement is:  “The City of Sherwood will provide services and infrastructure to support the 
highest quality of life for our residents, businesses, and visitors in a fiscally responsible manner.” "   
 
Work on the annual budget begins in December, when forecasts for revenues and expenditures for the 
General Fund and Enterprise Funds are updated. The Capital Improvement Plan is updated for the next 
five years. 
 
In January the City Council has planning meetings to decide Council goals, priorities, and policies. 
 
After the Council planning meetings, any necessary modifications are made to the departmental 
objectives articulated earlier.   
 
The Oregon State Department of Revenue has broken down the budget process into nine steps.  They 
are as follows: 
 

1. Appoint Budget Officer - Every local government is required to have a Budget Officer, either 
appointed by the governing body or designated in its charter. 

 
2. Prepare a Proposed Budget – The Budget Officer is responsible for the preparing of the 

proposed budget presentation to the Budget Committee. 
 

3. Budget Officer publishes notices – Upon completion of the budget a “Notice of Budget 
Committee Meeting” is published in a newspaper not less than five or more than 30 days 
before the meeting, and the notice must be posted prominently on the City’s website for at 
least the 10 days before the meeting. 

 
4. Budget Committee Meets – The Budget Officer presents the budget message and the 

proposed budget document to the Budget Committee for further review. 
 

5. Committee Approves the Budget – When the Budget Committee is satisfied that the proposed 
budget will meet the needs of the citizens of Sherwood they will forward this to the City 
Council for adoption. 

 
6. Notice of Hearing and Financial Summary – After the budget is approved, a budget hearing 

must be held.  The Budget Officer must publish a “Notice of Budget Hearing” in a newspaper 
not less than five or more than 30 days before the scheduled hearing or by mail or hand 
delivery not less than 10 days before the hearing.   

 
7. Budget Hearing held – The budget hearing must be held by the governing body on the date 

specified on the public notice and must allow for public testimony. 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 103 of 117 222



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 

 

94 

8. Adopted Budget, Make Appropriations, Levy Taxes – The governing body may make changes 
in the approved budget before or after it is adopted, but no later than the beginning of the 
fiscal year to which the budget relates.  However, there are limitations to these changes. 

 
a. Taxes may not be increased beyond the amount approved by the budget committee. 
b. Estimated expenditures in a fund may not be increased by more than $5,000 or 10 

percent, whichever is greater. 
 

9. Budget filed and Levy Certified to Assessor – The final step in the budget cycle is to certify 
any necessary property tax levy. 

 

Budget Calendar 
 
Event Lead 

Person/Group 
Date 

Proposed budget to the Budget Committee Budget Officer May 2 

1st Budget Committee meeting with public comment Budget Committee May 14 

2nd Budget Committee meeting with public comment 
and budget approval 

Budget Committee May 17 

3rd Budget Committee meeting if needed for budget 
approval 

Budget Committee May 21 

Public hearing and adoption of the approved budget City Council June 17 

Adopted budget available Budget Officer July 7 

 
Budget Changes after Adoption 
 
By Oregon law, all City funds must be appropriated.  Appropriations, the legal authority to spend, are 
by division in the General, Water, Sanitary, Storm, and Street Funds and by type (e.g. materials and 
services) for all other funds.   
 
Appropriations may be changed during the fiscal year, within the limitations imposed by budget law.  
City staff monitors actual events and recommends changes as needed.  The City Council makes 
changes by resolution.  Changes are categorized as resolution transfers or supplemental budgets.   
 
A resolution transfer decreases an existing appropriation and increases another by the same amount.  
A typical example is to reduce contingency and increase materials and services.  The second type of 
change, a supplemental budget, typically creates a new appropriation, funded by increased revenues.  
Supplemental budgets are used for occurrences or conditions which were not known at the time the 
budget was prepared which require a change in financial planning.  Supplemental budgets require a 
public hearing; resolution transfers do not.  Directors and managers may amend their budgets for 
individual accounts without Council approval so long as appropriations at the legal level of control are 
not changed.   
 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
Consistent with Oregon budget law, the City budgets current financial resources on a modified accrual 
basis in all funds.  The budget shows sources and uses of resources; that is, increases and decreases in 
the amount available to spend.  Ending fund balance represents spendable resources available for the 
subsequent budget year.  This differs from the accounting used by businesses.  Businesses measure 
net income, on an accrual basis.  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 104 of 117 223



APPENDICES         BUDGET PROCESS 

 

95 

 
As a practical matter, the essential differences between governmental and business accounting are the 
treatment of long-term debt and capital assets:  

 
 When the City borrows money, it records the debt proceeds as a source of resources.  Principal 

payments are recorded as a use.  In a business, the debt would not appear in the budget; it 
would be recorded as a liability, and principal payments would reduce the liability.   

 When the City buys a vehicle, building, or other capital asset, the cost is a use of resources.  
Depreciation is not recorded.  In a business, the purchase would not appear in the budget; it 
would be recorded as an asset.  Depreciation expense would be budgeted and recorded over 
the useful life of the asset. 

 
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for governments require that the enterprise funds be 
accounted for in the same way as businesses.  Consequently, actual results for the enterprise funds are 
shown on both the budgetary (current financial resources and modified accrual) and GAAP basis 
(economic resources and accrual) in the City’s annual financial report.  
 

2013-14Budget and 2013-14 Projected  
 
As required by Oregon budget law, the 2013-14 budget columns shows the adopted budget after 
changes made by the City Council during the year.  The 2013-14 projected columns show the latest 
forecast of activity through June 30, 2014.   
 

Fund Balance and Contingency 
 
Fund balance represents available spendable resources, at the beginning or end of the fiscal year.  
Oregon budget law provides that the difference between sources and uses for the year be budgeted as 
un-appropriated ending fund balance, contingency, or reserved for future years.  The City budgets 5% 
of the excesses in the operating funds as contingency and the remainder as reserved for future years.  
 
  

 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 105 of 117 224



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

96 

Financial Policies 

 
Purpose 
In order to carry out the mission of the City of Sherwood and support the City's values, this set of 
financial policies has been created by the City of Sherwood. 
 
The purpose of these financial policies is to provide a cohesive long term approach to financial 
management of the City of Sherwood. These policies establish a means for guiding today's financial 
decisions in order to achieve the mission of the City of Sherwood in a manner that reflects the City's 
values. 
 
Goal 
The goal of these policies is to provide the financial stability needed to navigate through economic 
changes, adjust to changes in the service requirements of the community and respond to other 
changes as they affect the City's residents. 
 
Responsibilities 
 

1. Stewardship: The City of Sherwood is a steward of public funds. These funds are entrusted to 
the City through the payment of taxes, fees, and fund transfers from other governments. The 
City of Sherwood is responsible for using all funds efficiently and effectively and for the 
purposes for which they were intended.  
 

2. Asset Protection: The assets of the City of Sherwood exist in a variety of forms. All these 
assets must be protected through an effective accounting and internal control System. The 
System must track assets and document the costs of acquisition, maintenance, and 
replacement. 

 
3. Legal Conformance: The City of Sherwood is subject to federal, state, and local statutes and 

rules regarding purchasing, entering into debt, budgeting, accounting, and auditing: regulations 
that govern virtually all financial transactions. The City also voluntarily enters into contracts 
which include significant financial and operational covenants. The City of Sherwood is 
responsible for conforming to laws, rules, and covenants to which it is subject. 
 

4. Standards: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) set polices and guidelines for public sector accounting and 
financial reporting. The City of Sherwood is responsible for adhering to the requirements of 
these organizations and for seeking guidance from policies, standards and best practices set 
forth by these organizations. 
 

5. Authority: The Sherwood City Council is the sole authority for deleting, modifying, or adding to 
these policies. Every two years the Council shall engage the Budget Committee to review and 
update these policies' 
 

 
Policy I. Funds 
 

1. The City of Sherwood will maintain an orderly and logical fund structure that provides 
stakeholders with ready access to financial information 

2. The City of Sherwood will conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the 
Government Finance Officers Association’s best practices for establishing and maintaining funds. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 106 of 117 225



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

97 

3. The City of Sherwood will establish and maintain those funds required by law and sound 
financial administration. Acknowledging that unnecessary funds result in inflexibility, complexity, 
and inefficient financial administration, only the minimum number of funds consistent with legal 
and operating requirements will be established.  

4. The criteria for establishing a new fund are variable, but include triggers such as; 

a. Inauguration of a new dedicated revenue stream and a concurrent service. 
b. The need for increased clarity of financial information. 
c. The establishment of a new enterprise. 
d. Covenants embodied in financing agreements. 
e. Changes in state law or financial management/accounting standards 

 
5. Only the Sherwood City Council has the authority to create or delete funds. The Council shall 

create or delete funds by resolution.  

 
Policy II Budgeting 
 

1. The City of Sherwood budget process shall consist of activities that encompass the 
development, implementation, and evaluation of a plan for the provision of services and capital 
assets. 

2. The purpose of the budget process is to help decision makers make informed choices about the 
provision of services and capital assets and to promote stakeholder participation in the process.  

3. The City of Sherwood budget process shall: 

a. Incorporate a long term perspective (minimum three fiscal years) 
b. Establish linkages to broad organizational goals 
c. Focus budget decisions on results and outcomes 
d. Involve and promote effective communication with stakeholders 

 
4. All budgetary procedures will conform to existing state and local regulations. Oregon budget law 

requires each local government to prepare a balanced budget and Oregon Administrative Rules 
state:  

a. The budget must be constructed in such a manner that the total resources in a fund 
equal the total of expenditures and requirements for that fund, and  

b. The total of all resources of the municipality must equal the total of all expenditures and 
all requirements for the municipality.  

 
5. A cost allocation plan will be developed and incorporated into the City of Sherwood budget. The 

cost allocation plan will be the basis for distribution of general government and internal service 
costs to other funds, divisions, and capital projects.  

6. The Sherwood City Council shall adopt the budget at the fund, departmental or program level 
(as appropriate to each fund) as a total dollar amount for all appropriations except contingency, 
unappropriated ending fund balance and reserves, which shall be stated separately.  

7. Interfund Transfers shall be kept to a minimum. Interfund loans shall be documented in a 
resolution that cites the terms of the loan. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 107 of 117 226



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

98 

8. As part of the annual budget process the City of Sherwood will maintain a three year revenue 
and expenditure forecast. This forecast will be created using an objective, analytical process 
incorporating applicable projections from the State of Oregon’s latest Economic Forecast and 
conservative assumptions where State developed data is not available. Revenues will be 
estimated realistically and prudently using best practices as defined by the Government Finance 
Officers Association. Revenues shall be forecasted conservatively. 

9. Oregon budget law provides a means to adjust the budget for emergency expenditures or 
unforeseen circumstances. All resolutions adjusting the budget will be prepared by the Finance 
department for City Council approval to ensure compliance with budget laws.  

10. Prior to submittal to City Council, the Budget Officer will convene the Budget Committee to 
review supplemental budget resolutions. If time does not allow for this action, Budget 
Committee members shall be informed of the City Council’s action on the resolution promptly.  

11. A mid-year review process will be conducted by the City Manager and Finance Director in order 
to make any necessary adjustments to the adopted budget.  

12. In the City’s effort to strive for excellence, the City of Sherwood will make every effort to obtain 
the Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation from the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA).  

13. Reports comparing actual to budgeted expenditures will be prepared quarterly by the Finance 
Department and distributed to the City Council, City Manager and Department Directors.   

 
Policy III Revenue  

 
1. City of Sherwood revenues are either unrestricted or dedicated. Unrestricted revenues can be 

used for any purpose. Dedicated revenues are restricted in the ways they can be used by 
federal or state regulations, contractual obligations, or by City Council action. The City of 
Sherwood will adhere to the restrictions applied to dedicated revenues. 

2. The City of Sherwood will maintain a diversified revenue stream that is managed strategically to 
mitigate the impact of short term fluctuations in any revenue source. 

3. The City of Sherwood will identify sustainable revenue levels and, to the extent possible, 
current operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues.  

4. One-time revenues will be used for one-time expenditures or as contributions to reserves and 
will not be used to pay for established services.  

5. The City of Sherwood will not respond to long-term revenue shortfalls with deficit financing and 
borrowing to support established services. Expenses will be reduced and/or revenues will be 
increased to conform to the long-term revenue forecasts  

6. During the budget process, the Sherwood City Council will identify those programs which are to 
be supported in whole by cost recovery and ensure that revenue collections reflect the cost of 
providing associated services by adjusting fees accordingly. 

7. The City of Sherwood will charge fees for services where such an approach is permissible, and 
where a limited and specific group of beneficiaries who can pay such charges is identifiable. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 108 of 117 227



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

99 

8. New or expanded unrestricted revenue streams should first be applied to support existing 
programs. When existing programs are adequately funded, such revenue may be used as 
contributions to reserves or to fund new or expanded programs. 

 
Policy IV Expenditures 
 
Controls 
 

1. By resolutions, the City Council will establish a purchasing policy that conforms to state 
statutory requirements for purchasing and contracting and invests the City Manager with 
purchasing and contracting authority. 

2. By Budget and Supplemental Budget Resolutions, the City Council shall establish and limit 
expenditure appropriations by statutory categories. The City Manager shall be responsible for 
limiting expenditures to those appropriation levels.  

Specific Expenditures 
 

1. Personal Services. Pursuant to the City Charter, the City Manager or designee is responsible 
for the management of employee staffing and compensation. The City Manager or designee 
shall negotiate salaries and benefits for represented employee groups in conformance with the 
Oregon Public Employees Collective Bargaining Act and the Employee Relations Board decisions 
and arbitration decisions that emanate from the Act.  

2. Capital Improvement Impacts. Whenever Capital Improvement expenditures will result in 
increases to future operating expenses or asset replacement contributions, estimates of those 
impacts shall be incorporated into the long term financial plan. 

3. Capital Outlay. By resolution the City Council shall define the characteristics of a capital asset 
by specifying the minimum purchase price and minimum term of service. The City will provide 
for adequate maintenance of Capital Assets.  The City will make annual contributions to the 
Asset Depreciation Fund to ensure that monies will be available as needed to replace Capital 
Assets. 

4. Capital Improvement Plan. The City Manager or designee will prepare a five-year Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) annually and submit it to the City Council for approval via resolution.  

 
Policy V. Revenue Constraints and Fund Balance  
 
Nature of Constraints 

The City of Sherwood will maintain the following categories of revenue constraints in conformance with 
GASB 54. Fund Balances shall be accounted for on the basis of these categories.  

1. Non-spendable.  Assets that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained 
intact.  

2. Restricted. Cash that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by third parties or by 
statutes. Only the constraining party can lift constraints on Restricted funds. 

3. Committed.  Cash that can be used only as directed by formal action of City Council. Council 
action may be in the form of a motion or resolution. Only the City Council can lift constraints on 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 109 of 117 228



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

100 

committed funds. Such a change must be made using the same action that established the 
constraint. 

4. Assigned. Cash the City intends to use for specific purposes. The City Council delegates the 
authority to create this constraint to the City Manager. In addition, for all funds except the 
general fund, all cash not in one of the Non-spendable, Restricted, or Committed categories, or 
specifically assigned under this category will, by default be assigned to this category. 

5. Unassigned. General Fund cash that is not otherwise categorized fund balance is the residual 
classification for the general fund and includes all amounts not contained in the other 
classifications. 

Other Considerations 
 

1. Stabilization. The purpose of stabilization arrangements is to provide a revenue source to 
maintain service delivery during periods of diminished revenues. The City may choose to create 
stabilization arrangements either by creating new funds or dedicating revenues within existing 
funds. Stabilization arranges will be created by the City Council and the authorizing legislation 
shall include the policies on funding and accessing the arrangement. 

 
2. Order of Use. If multiple categories of fund balance are applicable to an expenditure, the City 

shall access funds in the following order: Restricted, Committed, Assigned, Unassigned.  
 

3. Purpose of Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue funds are general government funds 
created to track the use of dedicated revenues. The City legislation creating a special revenue 
fund will specify which specific revenues and other resources are authorized to be reported in 
the fund.  

 

4. Fund Balance.  Unrestricted fund balance is the sum of Committed, Assigned and 
Unassigned fund balance in any individual fund. In the General Fund, the City will 

maintain an Unrestricted fund balance of at least ten percent of fund revenue and 
will strive to increase that amount by 1.5% annually to a goal of 20%.   

 
Policy VI. Continuing Disclosure  

Continuing Disclosure In General 

Issuers of municipal securities and entities working on their behalf disclose material 

information to the marketplace such as annual financial information and material event 
notices. In December 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission directed the 

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board to establish a continuing disclosure service of the 
MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) system effective July 1, 2009. The 
continuing disclosure service of EMMA collects continuing disclosure documents from the 

issuer community and makes them available to the public for free through EMMA. 

In conformance with the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” entered into by the City of 
Sherwood in bond issuances, the City shall comply with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act).  As noted above, these disclosures generally are 
divided between submissions made to update financial or operating information about the 
issuer and notices that disclose the occurrence of specific events that may have an impact 

on the bonds. These disclosures are described below.  

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 110 of 117 229



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

101 

Rule 15c2-12 Disclosures 

Rule 15c2-12 rule requires, for most new offerings of municipal securities, that the 
following types of information be provided to the MSRB’s EMMA system:  

1. Financial or operational information  

a. Annual financial information concerning issuers or other obligated persons, or 

other financial information and operating data provided by issuers or other 

obligated persons  

b. Audited financial statements for issuers or other obligated persons, if available 

 
2. Event Notices 

a. Principal and interest payment delinquencies 

b. Non-payment related defaults, if material 

c. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 

d. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 

e. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 

f. Adverse tax opinions, Internal Revenue Service (IRS) notices or material 

events affecting the tax status of the security 

g. Modifications to rights of security holders, if material 

h. Bond calls, if material 

i. Tender offers 

j. Defeasances, release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of 

the securities, if material 

k. Rating changes 

l. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event; 

m. Merger, consolidation, or acquisition, if material; and appointment of a 

successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee, if material 

n. Notices of failures to provide annual financial information on or before the date 

specified in the written agreement 

 

City Responsibility 

 
The Finance Director shall be responsible for adhering to the City’s Continuing Disclosure 

Obligations. 

 
Debt  
 
Operating loans 
The City will borrow only to finance capital assets.  The City will not borrow for operating purposes. 
 
Debt 
No bonds will mature more than 20 years from the date of issuance.  No debt will be issued with a life 
exceeding the estimated useful life of the capital assets being financed.  The City will limit bonded debt 
to 3% or less of total assessed value, as required by ORS 287.004.  Repayment sources are identified 
for every debt prior to issuance.   
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 111 of 117 230



APPENDICES    FINANCIAL POLICIES 

 

102 

Cash and Investments 
 
Cash balances are insured and collateralized.  Cash in excess of immediate needs is invested in the 
Oregon State Treasury’s Local Government Investment Pool.     
 

Capital Assets 
 
The capital asset inventory is updated annually.  Capital asset purchases – items other than those 
constructed as part of the CIP -- are incorporated in the long-term financial forecasts. 
 

Accounting Structure 
 
The account structure, cost accounting processes, and internal controls are documented.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 112 of 117 231



APPENDICES     GLOSSARY 

103 

Activity - A task, general or specific, undertaken to accomplish objectives, operate programs, 
or complete projects. 
 
Adopted Budget - The final budget appropriations approved by the City Council, which 
becomes the budget of the City. 
 
AFSCME - American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees.  One of the union 
organizations representing the bargaining employees of the City. 
 
Accrual basis - A method of timing in the recognition of transactions and events.  Please see 
Modified accrual basis for the alternative method.  Accrual basis records revenue when earned 
and expenses as soon as a liability is incurred. 
 
Approved Budget – The budget recommended by the Budget Committee for adoption by the 
City Council. 
 
Appropriation - Authorization to spend a specific amount of money.  The City Council gives 
appropriation authority by adopting the budget. 
 
Assessed value - The value set on real and personal property as a basis for imposing taxes.  
Assessed values are determined by Washington County.   
 
Budget – A plan of financial operation embodying an estimate of proposed expenditures for a 
given purpose and/or period.  The budget is the financial plan of the City’s allocations of the 
resources to provide services, and to accomplish the City’s objectives. 
 
Budget Calendar – The schedule of key dates, or events which a government follows in the 
preparation and adoption of the budget. 
 
Budget Committee - A committee required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305) 
which must recommend a budget and approve the maximum tax levy. 
 
Budget Message – A written explanation of the budget and the City’s financial priorities 
presented to the Budget Committee by the City Manager which is required by Oregon Local 
Budget Law, ORS 294. 
 
Budget Officer - The Finance Director or other person appointed by the City Council to 
prepare the proposed budget.  This designation is required by Oregon Local Budget Law (ORS 
294.305) 
  
CAFR - The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the audited report of the City’s finances 
for the fiscal year. 
 
Capital Lease - Lease of a capital asset.  The lease may or may not result in the City’s 
ownership of the item at the end of the lease term. 
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 113 of 117 232



APPENDICES     GLOSSARY 

104 

Capital Assets - Items which have a useful life of two or more years and a cost of $5,000 or 
more. These include land, infrastructure, buildings, improvements other than buildings, 
vehicles, and certain furniture and equipment. 
 
Capital Budget - The budget for capital projects, as opposed to operations.   
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - A schedule of planned capital projects and their costs, 
for three or more years. 
 
Capital Outlay - Expenditures for capital assets.  Includes all purchased capital assets.  
Expenditures for constructed capital projects appear in capital outlay, materials and services, 
and reimbursements, depending on the nature of the expenditure. 
 
Capital Projects – Projects which purchase or construct capital assets.  Typically a capital 
project encompasses a purchase of land and/or the construction of a building or facility.    
 
COLA - Cost of living.  A COLA increases all salaries at all classes and steps by the same 
percentage. 
 
Contingency – An amount appropriated in anticipation that some operating expenditures will 
become necessary which cannot be foreseen and planned in the budget.     
 
CWS - Clean Water Services, the regional sewer treatment entity.  CWS is a County Service 
District, defined by ORS 451. The City of Sherwood owns and operates sewer and storm water 
pumping and transmission facilities; CWS receives and treats the wastewater.   
 
Debt Service - Principal and interest payments on long-term debt.  
 
Division - An organizational unit with a distinct budget. 
 
Depreciation - Expensing the cost of a capital asset over its useful life. 
 
Department – Units within a division consisting of one or more. 
 
Enterprise Funds - A fund that accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises.  They are usually self-supporting.  The City’s 
enterprise funds are the Water, Sanitary, Storm, and Telecommunications funds.   
 
Fiscal Year - The twelve month period to which the operating budget applies.  The City’s fiscal 
year is July 1 through June 30. 
 
Franchise Fee – Fees charged to utilities for the use of public right-of-way. 
 
FTE - Full-Time Equivalent position.  A part-time position converted to the decimal equivalent of 
a full-time position based on 2,080 hours per year. 
 
Fund - A fiscal and accounting entity, segregating resources for the purpose of carrying on 
specific activities in accordance with legal restrictions. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 114 of 117 233



APPENDICES     GLOSSARY 

105 

Fund Balance - The amount of available, spendable, financial resources in any given fund at a 
specified date. 
 
GASB - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the body that defines generally 
accepted accounting principles for governments. 
 
General Fund – The City’s primary operating fund.  There are no restrictions as to the purpose 
in which the revenues in this fund can be used. 
 
General Obligation Bond (G. O. Bond) – A government pledge of full faith and credit to the 
repayment of the bonds issued by the government.  They are usually issued to pay for general 
capital improvements. 
 
GFOA – Government Finance Officers Association. 
 
GIS - Geographic information system, a computerized mapping program. 
 
Goal – A statement of direction, purpose or intent based on the needs of the community, 
generally to be completed in a specified amount of time. 
 
Grant – A donation or contribution by one government unit or organization to another.  This is 
usually made to aid a specified purpose. 
 
Infrastructure - Infrastructure are assets that are immovable and of value only to the City.  It 
includes roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and 
water and sewer systems.   
 
Interfund Transfer - A loan made by one fund to another and authorized by the City Council. 
 
Levy - The amount of property tax certified by the City Council.   
 
Materials and Services – Expendable items purchased for delivery of services.  This includes 
supplies, repairs, maintenance and replacement parts that are not of capital nature. 
 
Mission – Defines the primary purpose of the City.  
 
Modified Accrual - A method of timing in the recognition of transactions and events.  Please 
see Accrual basis for the alternative method.  Modified accrual basis records revenue when 
earned, if they are collectible within the period or soon enough afterwards to be used to pay 
liabilities of the period.  Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred except that debt 
service payments and other specific accrued liabilities are recognized only when payment is 
due. 
 
Objective - What we want to accomplish.  City-wide objectives are longer term than one year, 
cross departments, and/or are comprehensive in scope.   
 
Operating Budget - Sources and uses necessary for day-to-day operations.    
 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 115 of 117 234



APPENDICES     GLOSSARY 

106 

Ordinance – A formal legislative enactment by the governing body of a municipality.  If it is 
not in conflict with any higher form of law, such as a state statute or constitutional provision, it 
as the full force and effect of law within the boundaries of the municipality to which it applies.  
 
ORS - Oregon Revised Statutes, laws of the State of Oregon. 
 
PEG - Public, Educational and Governmental Access Channel designations for cable television.  
Certain franchise fee revenue from cable providers is restricted to the costs of providing such 
access. 
 
Performance Measure – Data collected to determine how effective or efficient a program is 
in achieving its objectives. 
 
PERS - Public Employees Retirement System.  A State of Oregon defined benefit pension plan 
to which both employees and employer contribute. 
 
Personal Services - Expenditures for payroll, payroll taxes, and employee benefits. 
 
Phase - A segment of a project, typically defined by a set of related activities or a given period 
of time. 
 
Program - A definable function.  Programs may be ongoing or time limited, within or across 
departments, and relate to single or multiple objectives.  Also refers to a cluster of related 
departments, such as the Community Development program. 
 
Project - Projects are distinct, with a definable result, process, and beginning and end.  
Projects are capital or operating.   
 
Property Tax Levy – Based upon the assessed value of property and is used as the source of 
monies to pay general obligation debts and to support the general fund. 
 
PSU - Portland State University.  The University prepares populations estimates each July 1 for 
all Oregon Municipalities.  
 
Reserved for Future Expenditures – An amount budgeted, but not appropriated, that is not 
anticipated to be spent in the fiscal year, but rather carried forward into future fiscal years. 
 
Resolution – An action by the governing body which requires less formality and has a lower 
legal status than an ordinance. 
 
Restricted Revenue - Revenue that may be expended only in accordance with limitations 
imposed by State statute, City Ordinances or Resolutions, or other legal restriction. 
 
Revenue – The gross receipts and receivables that the City receives such as: tax payments, 
licenses, fines and forfeitures, grants and interest income.   
 
Revenue Bonds – Bonds issued pledging future revenues.  Usually water, sewer, or storm 
drainage charges, to make debt service payments. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 116 of 117 235



APPENDICES     GLOSSARY 

107 

System Development Charges (SDC) - Fees charged upon issuance of building permits to 
offset the cost of infrastructure improvements that are or will be required to provide capacity to 
serve the development.  SDC’s are charged for parks, water, sanitary, storm, and streets.   
Sources - Financial resources that are or will be available for expenditure during the fiscal 
year. 
 
SPOA - Sherwood Police Officers’ Association union. 
 
Supplemental Budget – Appropriations established to meet the needs not anticipated at the 
time the budget was adopted.   
 
Transfers - Amounts moved from one fund to finance activities in another fund, with no 
requirement of repayment.   
 
TRNWR - Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge.  The Refuge lies in and outside the 
northwest edge of Sherwood.   
 
TSP - Transportation System Plan.  A long-range plan for transportation needs and facilities. 
 
TVWD - Tualatin Valley Water District, a regional water supplier.  TVWD contracted to operate 
Sherwood’s water utility in October 2000.  The contract is for 5 years, with renewal options. 
 
UGB - Urban Growth Boundary.  A statewide land use designation that limits the geographic 
spread of certain types of development. 
 
Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance – An amount set aside in the budget to be used as a 
cash carryover to the next year’s budget; providing the local government with operating cash 
until tax money is received in November. 
 
Unrestricted Revenue - Revenue that may be used for any legitimate City purpose.  Please 
refer to “restricted revenue”. 
 
URA - The City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency.  The Agency is a municipal corporation 
distinct from the City.  The Sherwood City Council serves as the Board of Directors for the URA, 
and its' budget may be obtained from the City of Sherwood. 
 
URD - The urban renewal district, the geographic area encompassed by the City of Sherwood 
Urban Renewal Agency.   
 
User Charges - A fee charged for services to a person who directly benefits from the service.   
 
Uses - The ways in which financial resources will be used during the fiscal year.  
 
WCCLS - Washington County Cooperative Library Services.  This regional entity receives 
property taxes from each city in the consortium.  The money is used to fund county-wide 
services such as the circulation software and interlibrary loan.  A portion is returned to each city 
based on a formula that includes circulation, open hours, and other service-related measure. 

Resolution 2014-046, Exhibit A 
June 17, 2014, Page 117 of 117 236



Ordianance 2014-012, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: June 17, 2014 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Brad Kilby, Planning Manager and Bob Galati, City Engineer 
Through:  Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director and Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City 

Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2014-012 Adoption of the 2014 Transportation System Plan (TSP)  
 
 
Issue: 
Should Council adopt Ordinance 2014-012 approving the updates to the City of Sherwood 
Transportation System Plan? 
 
Background: 
The City received a grant from the State of Oregon to update the City’s 2005 Transportation 
System Plan (TSP) to address community needs and regional requirements. The TSP provides a 
framework for the long-term vision of Sherwood’s transportation system and includes strategies 
and planned improvement projects for a variety of travel modes (pedestrian, bike, auto, and 
transit). In addition to addressing local needs, the proposal includes updating the plan so that it is 
consistent with state and regional policies, such as the Oregon Transportation Planning Rule 
(TPR), Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Metro’s Regional Transportation Functional 
Plan (RTFP), and in a manner that complements other local plans, such as the Washington County 
TSP. The TSP update was developed with a significant amount of public input outlined on page six 
(6) of the Planning Commission recommendation. Highlights of the proposed amendments to adopt 
and implement the TSP update include: 
 

 Eliminating the Capacity Allocation Program and removing implementation language within 
the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code; 

 Modification of code language associated with the preparation and review of Traffic Impact 
Analyses; 

 Modifying language with Chapter 6 (Transportation) of the Comprehensive Plan in support 
of multi-modal transportation alternatives;  

 Identification of short, medium, and long term transportation projects based on projected 
revenue; and 

 A map amendment to remove a trip cap that was applied under City Ordinance 2008-003 
(Pfeiffer Property). We believe that the trip cap is no longer necessary given that the 
appropriate modeling has been completed through the update process and new proposed 
Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) requirements will help protect the function of Highway 99W.  

 
 
 

237



Ordianance 2014-012, Staff Report 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

Financial Impacts: 
The TSP update was funded through a TGM grant amount based on total project cost of 
$156,624.00. Per the TGM grant requirements, the City match is 14.51% ($22,724.00) of the total 
project cost. The City has met the TGM match requirements. Costs for staff time associated with 
completing the hearings, issuing the decision, preparing final documents, and closing the project 
out will be completed within the existing budget.   
 
Recommendation: 
Staff respectfully requests that the Council hold a public hearing and adopt Ordinance 2014-012, 
An Ordinance that amends the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, the Sherwood Zoning and 
Community Development Code, and the Sherwood Transportation System Plan. 
 
 

238



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2014-012 
June 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibits 1, PC Recommendation (8 pgs), Attachment A (12 pgs), Attachment B (30 pgs),   Attachment C 
(31 pgs), Attachment D (11 pgs), Attachment E, TSP Draft Volume 1 (74pgs),  Attachment F, TSP Draft Volume 2 (340 pgs),   
Attachment G (6 pgs),   Attachment H (24 pgs), Attachment I (2 pgs),  Attachment J (4 pgs),  and Exhibit 2, Transportation 
Street Functional Classification Map (1 pg)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2014-012 

 
AMENDING CHAPTER 6 OF THE SHERWOOD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (PART 2), AMENDING 
THE TRANSPORTATION STREET FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION MAP, ADOPTING A NEW 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN, ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE 2000-1104 ESTABLISHING THE CAPACITY ALLOCATION PROGRAM (CAP) 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood (City) Transportation System Plan (TSP) that was adopted in 2006 
by Ordinance 2005-006 has become outdated and an updated Transportation System Plan is needed 
to meet requirements of the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012), Regional 
Transportation Plan policies, Metro Urban Growth Management Functional Plan standards, and to 
manage development expected in the next twenty years; and 

WHEREAS, the City application (File No. PA 14-01) proposes amending Chapter 6 of the Sherwood 
Comprehensive Plan (Part 2) and the Transportation Street Functional Classification Map, and 
adopting a new TSP in order to update the public facility element for planned transportation facilities 
to be consistent with recent and projected growth; and 

WHEREAS, the City applied for and obtained a State Transportation Growth Management (TGM) 
grant for updating the existing TSP; and 

WHEREAS, the Sherwood Planning Commission held public work sessions on December 12, 2013 
and February 13, 2014, and conducted a public hearing  on May 27, 2014, at which time the 
Commission approved a recommendation that the City Council approve PA 14-01; and 

WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed plan map and 
text amendment on June 17, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development and Zoning Code Sections 16.080.010 through 16.080.030 
set forth the approval criteria for a Comprehensive Plan Map and Text amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed whether to continue the Capacity Allocation Program 
(CAP) in light of the TSP amendments and the City Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual 
and recommended that the CAP be discontinued; and 

WHEREAS, by repealing the CAP the City Council intends that any condition or requirement in an 
earlier land use decision or City ordinance shall no longer be effective and the property relieved of 
compliance with the condition or requirement 

       

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
Section 1 - Planning Commission Review & Public Hearings: File No. PA 14-01 amending the 
Transportation Street Functional Classification Map and Chapter 6 of the Comprehensive Plan (Part 
2), and proposing a new Transportation System Plan (Volumes 1 and 2) as a technical appendix to 
the Comprehensive Plan (Part 2), was subject to full and proper review, including public hearings 
before the Planning Commission on May 27, 2014, and the City Council on June 17, 2014. 

239



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2014-012 
June 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibits 1, PC Recommendation (8 pgs), Attachment A (12 pgs), Attachment B (30 pgs),   Attachment C 
(31 pgs), Attachment D (11 pgs), Attachment E, TSP Draft Volume 1 (74pgs),  Attachment F, TSP Draft Volume 2 (340 pgs),   
Attachment G (6 pgs),   Attachment H (24 pgs), Attachment I (2 pgs),  Attachment J (4 pgs),  and Exhibit 2, Transportation 
Street Functional Classification Map (1 pg)   

Section 2. – Findings:  That after full and due consideration of the application, the evidence and 
testimony in the record, and the proposed findings, the Council finds that the proposed plan map and 
text amendments and TSP comply with the applicable criteria as described in Exhibit 1 (Planning 
Commission Recommendation to City Council with Exhibits A-J) to this Ordinance. 

Section 3 – Decision:  The Transportation Street Functional Classification Map Amendment, the 
Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments and TSP in File No. PA 14-01 are hereby APPROVED as 
described in Exhibit 1, and such amendments constitute changes to Chapter 6, Volume II of the 
Comprehensive Plan and applicable sections of Volume III (Sherwood Zoning and Community 
Development Code) of the Comprehensive Plan (Attachments B and C to Exhibit 1), Transportation 
Street Functional Classification Map (Exhibit 2), and Transportation System Plan, Volumes 1 and 2, 
dated May 2014 (Attachments E and F to Exhibit 1), as attached to this Ordinance. 

Section 4 – Repeal of the Capacity Allocation Program (CAP):  Ordinance 2000-1104, 
establishing the Capacity Allocation Program, is repealed and any condition or requirements in a prior 
land use decision or City ordinance that implements or relies on the CAP shall not have any force or 
effect. 

Section 5 – Manager Authorized:  The Planning Manager is hereby directed to take such action as 
may be necessary to document this amendment. 

Section 6 – Effective Date:  This Ordinance becomes effective 30 days from the date of its adoption 
by the City Council. 

 
Duly passed by the City Council this 17th day of June 2014. 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
           AYE NAY 

Clark  ____ ____ 
Langer  ____ ____ 
Butterfield ____ ____ 
Folsom ____ ____ 
Grant  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Middleton ____ ____ 

240



Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 8 241



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 2 of 8 

 
 

Notice was also posted in 5 public locations around town and on the web site on May 6, 
2014. Notice of the June 17th City Council Hearing was indicated as a tentative date in the 
Planning Commission notices. Once the agenda for the June 17th hearing was approved 
(May 29, 2014) notice of was posted in 5 public locations around town and on the web site.  
Notice of the June 17th hearing was also published in the June 5th and 12th editions of the 
Times. 

 
I. Review Criteria:  

The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80.030 of the 
Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC).  In addition, the 
amendment must be consistent with Goals 1, 2 and 12 of the Statewide Planning Goals and 
Chapter 6 of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

J. Background: 
The TSP went through its last major update in 2005.  Since that time, there have been eight 
amendments; four for concept plan areas, one amendment to change the functional 
classification of Columbia Street (related to Cannery project) from a collector to a local 
street, one amendment to identify the future classification and designation of SW Cedar 
Brook Way, one amendment to identify and classify a future extension of SW Baler Way, 
and one amendment to identify and classify a future extension of SW Langer Farms 
Parkway north of Highway 99W.   
 
Sherwood has grown significantly and experienced numerous changes since the current 
Sherwood TSP was adopted in 2005. The updated TSP is intended to address these 
changes as well plan for conditions and needs over a 20-year planning horizon. The 
update, funded through a state Transportation and Growth Management grant, will bring the 
current TSP into compliance with the latest requirements of the Oregon Transportation 
Planning Rule (TPR), Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), and Metro’s Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP). At the outset of the project, it was determined that 
the following key questions would be addressed through the process: 
 
 How is the transportation system today? (Existing conditions)  
 What needs are present today and in the future? (Needs assessment)  
 How do we address the needs? (Project options)  
 What changes to our TSP and implementation documents are needed to address local 

needs and regional requirements?  
 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

At the hearing, the Planning Commission considered testimony from 4 citizens in person, and one piece of 
written testimony.  The unapproved minutes of that meeting are attached to this recommendation as Exhibit G, 
and the written testimony is attached as Exhibit H.  It should be noted that there have been several other 
opportunities for public involvement throughout the past six months including two Planning Commission work 
sessions, two public open houses, and three meetings with the Citizens Advisory Committee. In addition, the 
City has maintained a project website with monthly updates in both English and Spanish. The draft version of 
the Transportation System Plan has been made available to the public since late March 2014.  Comments that 
were received through any of the events listed above have been incorporated into the draft version of the TSP.  
Community Comment Cards collected during the process have been compiled and are attached as Exhibit A. 
The comments have been considered and, where the comment could be incorporated with good reasoning, 
they were. 
 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 8 242



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 3 of 8 

 
 

 
III. AGENCY/DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 
The City requested comments from affected agencies.  The following information briefly summarizes those 
comments: 
 

 The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) provided an e-mail from Anne 
Debbaut, dated March 13, 2014 indicating that the DLCD transportation staff did not have any 
concerns at this time, and appreciate the City’s efforts to develop a multi-modal approach to identifying 
transportation solutions.  

 Metro, the Oregon Department of Transportation, Washington County Transportation and Land Use, 
The City of Tigard, the City of Wilsonville, and the City of Tualatin have all been partners in the review 
and preparation of the Transportation System Plan.  To date, no comments were received from these 
jurisdictional partners, aside from their input on the Technical Advisory Committee.   

 
Clean Water Services, Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R), Kinder Morgan, Pride Disposal, Bonneville 
Power Administration, The Sherwood Building Department, Portland General Electric, Northwest Natural Gas, 
and Raindrops to Refuge were provided the opportunity to comment on this application but did not provide 
written or verbal comments. 
 
 
IV.   APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT CODE CRITERA 
 
16.80.030 – Review Criteria 
A. Text Amendment 
An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon a need for such an 
amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an amendment shall be consistent 
with the intent of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions of the 
Plan, the Transportation System Plan and this Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and 
regulations, including this Section. 

 
The last Transportation System Plan update for Sherwood occurred in 2005.  The 2014 update became a 
priority for the City to address growing transportation needs. This update was funded through an Oregon 
Department of Transportation -Transportation and Growth Management grant.  In addition to addressing local 
needs, the plan is intended to be consistent with state and regional policies, such as the Oregon 
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) , Metro’s Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP), and the Washington County TSP. 
 
Key items that were studied through this process were the existing conditions, an assessment of the 
community’s transportation needs to the year 2035, and identification of projects needed to address those 
transportation needs. The specific amendments proposed through the proposed language would amend the 
goals and policies of Chapter 6 in Volume II of the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendments to the 
goals and policies reflect direction provided by regulations such as the RTFP, establish a policy basis for 
implementing the recommended projects and standards in the updated TSP, and incorporate policies and 
strategies from planning work adopted since the 2005 TSP, in particular the Town Center Plan. Those 
amended goals and policies are included in Exhibit B of this report.  
 
The proposed amendments also affect Volume III of the Comprehensive Plan, which is the Development 
Code. The changes to the language within the Development Code are to Section 16.10 Definitions, 16.80 Plan 
Amendments; 16.90 Site Planning; 16.94 Off-Street Parking, and 16.106 Transportation Facilities.  All of the 
amendments proposed within these sections are intended to implement the changes to the goals and policies 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 3 of 8 243



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 4 of 8 

 
 

of Volume II, to comply with regional and state (TPR and RTFP) provisions related to the Development Code, 
to assist in implementing the improvements recommended in the updated TSP, and to provide consistency in 
references and standards between the TSP, the Engineering Design Manual, and the Development Code. The 
proposed Code amendments are included in Exhibit C of this report.  
 
FINDING: The proposed amendments are needed to address the City’s transportation needs based on 
forecasted growth in the region, and to be consistent with state and regional policies. Findings of compliance 
with the RTFP and TPR are provided in the TSP, Volume II, Section H (Exhibit F). 
 
B. Map Amendment 
An amendment to the City Zoning Map may be granted, provided that the proposal satisfies all 
applicable requirements of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, the Transportation System 
Plan and this Code, and that: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 
and the Transportation System Plan. 

2. There is an existing and demonstrable need for the particular uses and zoning proposed, taking 
into account the importance of such uses to the economy of the City, the existing market 
demand for any goods or services which such uses will provide, the presence or absence and 
location of other such uses or similar uses in the area, and the general public good. 

3. The proposed amendment is timely, considering the pattern of development in the area, 
surrounding land uses, any changes which may have occurred in the neighborhood or 
community to warrant the proposed amendment, and the availability of utilities and services to 
serve all potential uses in the proposed zoning district. 

4. Other lands in the City already zoned for the proposed uses are either unavailable or unsuitable 
for immediate development due to location, size or other factors. 

 
The proposed map amendment would affect the zoning map as it applies to WCTM 2S130D, tax lot 001200 
also addressed as 21305 SW Pacific Highway.  In 2008, the zoning of the property was changed from Medium 
Density Residential Low to Retail Commercial (Ord. 2008-003) with a finding that stated that the rezone would 
not be consistent with the TPR without a condition that would limit development on the site to no more than 
460 vehicular trips per day until the City’s Plan was amended consistent with Statewide Planning Goals to 
provide otherwise. The modeling that was completed with the proposed amendment to the TSP considered 
traffic that could be generated by developing this property as zoned Retail Commercial, and identifies 
mitigation measures within the project list to offset potential impacts of redevelopment of the property under 
that designation.   
 
FINDING:  Provisions of B2 and B4 above are not applicable to the request. Provisions B1 and B3, are 
addressed through the adoption of the proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.  Considering this 
premise, the proposed map amendment would be consistent with the goals and policies of the applicable 
plans and is timely considering the future provision of transportation services that would be constructed with 
any future development allowed under the Retail Commercial Zoning designation. As discussed above the 
proposed amendment is consistent with the TSP and comprehensive plan elements. Ordinance 2008-003 is 
attached as Exhibit D to this report. Proposed TSP Volumes I and II include the background data and project 
list to support the request.  See Exhibits E and F to this report.   
 
C. Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 
1.   Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. Proposals 
shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, in accordance 
with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a development application includes a 
proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use regulations. 
 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 4 of 8 244



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 5 of 8 

 
 

2.   "Significant" means that the transportation facility would change the functional classification of an 
existing or planned transportation facility, change the standards implementing a functional 
classification, allow types of land use, allow types or levels of land use that would result in levels of 
travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of a transportation facility, or 
would reduce the level of service of the facility below the minimum level identified on the 
Transportation System Plan. 
 
3.   Per OAR 660-12-0060, Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use regulations 
which significantly affect a transportation facility shall assure that allowed land uses are consistent 
with the function, capacity, and level of service of the facility identified in the Transportation System 
Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of the following: 

a. Limiting allowed uses to be consistent with the planned function of the 
transportation facility.   

b. Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, improved, 
or new transportation facilities are adequate to support the proposed land 
uses.   

c. Altering land use designations, densities or design requirements to reduce 
demand for automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes. 

 
The TPR requires that the City inventory the existing system, identify deficiencies that would negatively affect 
state facilities, and identify alternatives to address those deficiencies. The proposed amendments to the TSP, 
the Comprehensive Plan, and the Development Code are intended to maintain or improve the safety, mobility, 
and accessibility of the overall transportation system based on forecasted growth and traffic patterns. For 
these reasons noted, this amendment is consistent with the TPR. 
 
The City sent notice of the proposed updated TSP and associated amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
and Development Code to the State Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD), the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Washington County. Since the notice was sent, revisions to the 
proposed updated TSP have been made to classify Brookman Road as an arterial and to identifyies 
Brookman Road and the adjacent Concept Plan area as an area for further refinement.  Through the City's 
TSP update process and the concurrent County TSP update, the City has coordinated with Washington 
County and will continue to coordinate with the County for future planning efforts regarding the function and 
classification of Brookman Road and the surrounding road network. 
 
FINDING: As noted above, the proposed amendments would change the transportation system in a manner 
that improves the existing transportation system plan through identified mitigation measures. These measures 
address identified existing and future transportation system needs through the TSP horizon (year 2035). The 
Plan indicates that the identified mitigation projects would improve the overall transportation system and 
reports that system measures would meet or make progress towards regional targets for safety, congestion, 
freight delay, motor vehicle travel per capita, and non-single occupant vehicle (SOV) use. These benefits 
demonstrated by these measures indicate that the transportation system would be improved through this 
amendment. 
 
 
V. APPLICABLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES 
 
B. GOALS, POLICIES, AND STRATEGIES 
Goal 1: Provide a supportive transportation network to the land use plan that provides opportunities 
for transportation choices and the use of alternative modes serving all neighborhoods and 
businesses. 
 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 5 of 8 245



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 6 of 8 

 
 

Goal 2: Develop a transportation system that is consistent with the City’s adopted comprehensive land 
use plan and with the adopted plans of state, local, and regional jurisdictions. 
 
Goal 3: Establish a clear and objective set of transportation design and development regulations that 
addresses all elements of the city transportation system and that promote access to and utilization of 
a multi-modal transportation system. 
 
Goal 4: Develop complementary infrastructure for bicycles and pedestrian facilities to provide a 
diverse range of transportation choices for city residents. 
 
Goal 5: Provide reliable convenient transit service to Sherwood residents and businesses as well as 
special transit options for the city’s elderly and disabled residents. 
 
Goal 6: Provide a convenient and safe transportation network within and between the Sherwood Old 
Town (Town Center) and Six Corners area that enables mixed use development and provides multi-
modal access to area businesses and residents. 
 
Goal 7: Ensure that efficient and effective freight transportation infrastructure is developed and 
maintained to support local and regional economic expansion and diversification consistent with City 
economic plans and policies. 
 
Goal 8: The Sherwood City’s transportation network will be managed in a manner that ensures the 
plan is implemented in a timely fashion and is kept up to date with respect to local and regional 
priorities. 
 
FINDING: The existing goals will remain intact. The proposed amendments to Chapter 6 of the 
Comprehensive Plan reflect the findings and recommendations of the updated TSP. The proposed 
amendments are intended to provide a supportive policy basis for the updated TSP that is based on the City’s 
forecasted needs into the next 20 years.  The development of a comprehensive TSP that reflects the 
Comprehensive Plan, including special area plans that were created between this revision and 2005, as well 
as any applicable state, local, and regional regulations. The proposed amendments would be implemented 
through the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code, which provides clear and objective 
standards to achieve the desired results called for in the TSP. Finally, the proposed amendments remove 
conflicts within the existing TSP and all applicable state, local, and regional transportation planning 
documents. See Exhibit B, Draft Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies, for the specific language 
amendments being proposed. 
 
 

VI. APPLICABLE STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS 
 
Goal 1 (Citizen Involvement) 
 

FINDING:  Staff utilized the public notice requirements of the Code to notify the public of this proposed 
plan amendment.  The City’s public notice requirements have been found to comply with Goal 1 and, 
therefore, this proposal meets Goal 1.  In addition, the City hosted an open house prior to beginning 
the formal plan amendment process to get input and feedback on potential amendments and held a 
work session with the Planning Commission on June 26, 2012 for further discussion.  At the work 
session, the Planning Commission allowed the public to speak on the potential amendments prior to 
providing staff with feedback on proceeding with the public notice for the amendment. 

 
Goal 2 (Land Use Planning) 
 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 6 of 8 246



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 7 of 8 

 
 

FINDING:  The proposed amendments, as demonstrated in this report were subject to a robust citizen 
outreach program, and the proposed amendments are being processed in compliance with the local, 
regional and state requirements. There have been several opportunities for public involvement 
throughout the past six months including two Planning Commission work sessions, two public open 
houses, and three meetings with a citizens advisory committee. In addition, the City has maintained a 
project website with monthly updates in both English and Spanish. The draft version of the 
Transportation System Plan has been made available to the public since late March.  Public comments 
that were received through any of the events listed above have been considered and incorporated into 
the draft version of the TSP, and approval of the proposed amendments are subject to further public 
review including hearings before both the Planning Commission and the City Council.  

 
Goal 3 (Agricultural Lands) 
Goal 4 (Forest Lands) 
Goal 5 (Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas and Open Spaces) 
Goal 6 (Air, Water and Land Resources Quality) 
Goal 7 (Areas Subject to Natural Hazards) 
Goal 8 (Recreational Needs) 

FINDING:  The Statewide Planning Goals 3-8 do not specifically apply to the proposed plan 
amendments. Arguably, the proposed amendments will improve upon the intent of these goals, by 
providing a more orderly and efficient transportation system.  In any event, there is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal is in conflict with these goals.  

 
Goal 9 (Economic Development) 
 FINDING: The TSP and its implementation help to support local and regional economic development 

goals and plans by the provision of efficient and predictable transportation routes. In addition, it 
ensures orderly and efficient access to planned commercial and employment uses throughout the City.  

   
Goal 10 (Housing) 
 FINDING: The TSP was developed to account for future residential trips. The implementation of the 

TSP benefits all of the citizens of Sherwood by ensuring that jobs, services, and residences are 
accessible through a coordinated transportation system.  Further, the TSP identifies needed 
improvements within the project list to assist the community in prioritizing where and how existing and 
future development is to be served by the transportation system.   

   
Goal 11 (Public Facilities and Services) 

FINDING: The transportation system is inherently one of the community’s primary public facilities.  The 
TSP documents existing conditions and future needs for the transportation system within the City, and 
allows proposed improvements and implementation measures to be tailored to meet those future 
needs. The TSP, the revised Comprehensive goals and policies, and the implementation measures all 
assist the City in complying with state and regional rules for the orderly and efficient provision of 
transportation facilities and services for the community and region.  
 

Goal 12 (Transportation) 
As discussed throughout this report, and the supporting documents, the proposed amendments are 
being proposed to ensure consistency with the TPR, which implements Goal 12. The TPR requires that 
the City inventory the existing system, identify deficiencies that would negatively affect state facilities, 
and identify alternatives to address those deficiencies. Section OAR 660-12-0045 of the TPR relates to 
implementation of the TSP through land use and development regulations. Amendments to the 
Development Code that are proposed to comply with Section 660-12-0045 are presented in Exhibit C. 
 
FINDING:  The proposed amendments to the TSP, the Comprehensive Plan, and the Development 
Code are designed to maintain or improve the safety, mobility, and accessibility of the overall 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 7 of 8 247



 

 

PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan  Page 8 of 8 

 
 

transportation system based on forecasted growth and traffic patterns. For these reasons noted, this 
amendment is consistent with the TPR. Specific findings of Development Code compliance with TPR 
Section 660-12-0045 are provided in the TSP, Volume II, Section H (Exhibit F). 
 

Goal 13 (Energy Conservation) 
Goal 14 (Urbanization) 
Goal 15 (Willamette River Greenway) 
Goal 16 (Estuarine Resources) 
Goal 17 (Coastal Shorelands) 
Goal 18 (Beaches and Dunes) 
Goal 19 (Ocean Resources) 

 
FINDING:  The Statewide Planning Goals 13-19 do not specifically apply to these proposed plan 
amendment; nor do the proposed amendments conflict with the stated goals. 

 
 
VII. RECOMMENDATION 
 
After considering the materials, public testimony, and the findings in the staff report, the Planning 
Commission recommends APPROVAL of PA 14-01 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
with the edits identified in Exhibit I to this report. 
 

VIII. ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Public Comments 
i. Open House #1 Summary 
ii. Open House #2 Summary  
iii. Open House #2 comment cards received 
iv. March 10th e-mail from Brent Ahrend, P.E. – RE: Pfeiffer Property/Sherwood 

Blvd. 
v. March 28th letter from Brent Ahrend, P.E. – RE: Pfeiffer Property 
vi. April 16th letter from Brent Ahrend, P.E. – RE: Pfeiffer Property 
vii. April 8th Work Session Meeting Minutes with the Planning Commission 

B. Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies – Comprehensive Plan Chapter 6 (Also 

found  in Section G of Volume II of the proposed TSP) 
C. Draft Proposed Implementation Language (May 14th Revision) (Also found  in Section G 

of Volume II of the proposed TSP) 
D. Ordinance 2008-003 – An Ordinance Amending the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 

Map to Redesignate a Parcel From Medium Density Residential Low to Retail 
Commercial 

E. Volume I Draft Sherwood Transportation Plan 
F. Volume II Draft Sherwood Transportation Plan (Appendix) 
G. Proposed Street Design Cross Sections for all streets in Sherwood 
H. Unapproved Minutes from the May 27th Planning Commission Hearing 
I. Written testimony received from Wade Anderson, dated May 27, 2014 
J. Planning Commission Proposed Edits to the Final Draft of the TSP 

 
 

 
End of Report 

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 8 of 8 248



ATTACMENT A

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 1 of 84 249



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 2 of 84 250



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 3 of 84 251



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 4 of 84 252



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 5 of 84 253



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 6 of 84 254



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 7 of 84 255



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 8 of 84 256



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 9 of 84 257



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 10 of 84 258



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 11 of 84 259



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 12 of 84 260



ATTACHEMENT B

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 13 of 84 261



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 14 of 84 262



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 15 of 84 263



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 16 of 84 264



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 17 of 84 265



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 18 of 84 266



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 19 of 84 267



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 20 of 84 268



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 21 of 84 269



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 22 of 84 270



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 23 of 84 271



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 24 of 84 272



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 25 of 84 273



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 26 of 84 274



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 27 of 84 275



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 28 of 84 276



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 29 of 84 277



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 30 of 84 278



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 31 of 84 279



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 32 of 84 280



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 33 of 84 281



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 34 of 84 282



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 35 of 84 283



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 36 of 84 284



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 37 of 84 285



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 38 of 84 286



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 39 of 84 287



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 40 of 84 288



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 41 of 84 289



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 42 of 84 290



ATTACHMENT C

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 43 of 84 291



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 44 of 84 292



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 45 of 84 293



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 46 of 84 294



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 47 of 84 295



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 48 of 84 296



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 49 of 84 297



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 50 of 84 298



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 51 of 84 299



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 52 of 84 300



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 53 of 84 301



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 54 of 84 302



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 55 of 84 303



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 56 of 84 304



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 57 of 84 305



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 58 of 84 306



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 59 of 84 307



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 60 of 84 308



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 61 of 84 309



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 62 of 84 310



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 63 of 84 311



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 64 of 84 312



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 65 of 84 313



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 66 of 84 314



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 67 of 84 315



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 68 of 84 316



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 69 of 84 317



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 70 of 84 318



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 71 of 84 319



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 72 of 84 320



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 73 of 84 321



ATTACHMENT D

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 74 of 84 322



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 75 of 84 323



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 76 of 84 324



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 77 of 84 325



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 78 of 84 326



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 79 of 84 327



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 80 of 84 328



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 81 of 84 329



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 82 of 84 330



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 83 of 84 331



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment A-D to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2104, Page 84 of 84 332



i     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (03-14-14 DRAFT): PREFACE 

 

 

  

333

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


i     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): PREFACE 

Project Team 

 City of Sherwood 

  Julia Hajduk 

  Bob Galati 

  Brad Kilby 

 ODOT                                   

  Ross Kevlin 

                  

 DKS Associates 

  Chris Maciejewski 

  Garth Appanaitis 

  Ben Fuller 

 Angelo Planning 
 Group 

  Darci Rudzinski 

  Shayna Rehberg 

 

          

 

Acknowledgements 

The 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan was 

a collaborative process among various public 

agencies, key stakeholders and the community. 

Input, assistance and outreach by the following 

helped make the Plan possible: 

 Citizen Advisory Team 

 Technical Advisory Team 

A special acknowledgement goes out to all the 

Sherwood residents, business owners, and visitors 

who attended community meetings or submitted 

comments. Your input helped make this Plan 

possible. 

 

  

 

 

 

This project is partially funded by a grant from the 

Transportation and Growth Management (TGM) 

Program, a joint program of the Oregon Department 

of Transportation and the Oregon Department of 

Land Conservation and Development. This TGM 

grant is financed, in part, by federal Moving Ahead 

for Progress in the 21st Century (“MAP-21”), local 

government, and the State of Oregon funds. 

The contents of this document do not necessarily 

reflect views or policies of the State of Oregon.

  

334

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/


PREFACE: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     ii 

Table of Contents 

How to use this Document v 

Section 1: The Context 3 

Section 2: The Process 7 

Section 3: The Vision 11 

Section 4: The Trends 17 

Section 5: The Investments 25 

Section 6: The Funding  29 

Section 7: The Plan 33 

Section 8: The Standards 47 

Section 9: The Outcome 63 

 

Appendix (Volume 2) 

Section A. Plan and Policy Summary Report (DKS, 2013) 
 

Section B. Existing Conditions Technical Report (DKS, 2013) 
 

Section C. Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report (DKS, 2014) 
 

Section D. Project Options Technical Report (DKS, 2014) 
 

Section E. Aspirational Project List 
 

Section F. Traffic Calming Toolbox 
 

Section G. Policy Code and Implementation 
 

Section H. Compliance Checklists 
 

Section I. Title VI Requirements 
 

Section J. Traffic Counts  

Section K. Glossary  

335



iii     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): PREFACE 

Figures 

Figure 1: Historical Population Growth in Sherwood 3 

Figure 2: TSP Update Process 7 

Figure 3: Transportation Solutions Identification Process 11 

Figure 4: Reflecting our Vision in the Plan 12 

Figure 5: Major Growth Areas  18 

Figure 6: 2035 Motor Vehicle Conditions 21 

Figure 7: Breakdown of Projects and Expenses in the Plan 26 

Figure 8: Evaluation of the Fundable Plans 30 

Figure 9: Breakdown of Projects in the Conservatively Fundable Plan 34 

Figure 10: Breakdown of Projects in the Projected Fundable Plan 35 

Figure 11: Motor Vehicle Projects  41 

Figure 12: Pedestrian Projects 42 

Figure 13: Biking Projects  43 

Figure 14: Transit System and Potential Enhancements 44 

Figure 15: Functional Classification Matrix 47 

Figure 16: Street Functional Classification  51 

Figure 17: Local Street Connectivity  54 

Figure 18: Through Truck Routes  58 

Figure 19: 2035 Non-SOV Share  66 

 

Tables 

Table 1: The Fundable Transportation System 36 

Table 2: Functional Classification Changes 50 

  

336



PREFACE: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     iv 

Acronyms 

Note: Definitions for these and other key terms are provided in the Appendix (Volume II) Section K 

CAC: Community Advisory Committee 

CAP: Capacity Allocation Program 

HCT: High Capacity Transit 

LOS: Level of Service 

MSTIP: Major Streets Transportation Improvement Program 

ODOT: Oregon Department of Transportation 

RTFP: Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 

SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 

TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 

TDM: Transportation Demand Management 

TGM: Transportation Growth and Management  

TIA: Traffic Impact Analysis 

TSM: Transportation System Management 

TSMO: Transportation System Management and Operations 

TSP: Transportation System Plan 

TVFR: Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

UGB: Urban Growth Boundary 

V/C: Volume-to Capacity 

VHD: Vehicle-Hours of Delay 

VMT: Vehicle-Miles Travelled  

337



v     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): PREFACE 

How to use this Document 

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) serves the 

following general purposes: 

 Identifies general vision and strategies 

 Identifies future improvements  

 Provides an overview of standards.  

Project List 

The prioritized project list identifies improvements 

that the City is anticipated to pursue through year 

2035 given the projected revenue. The inclusion of 

projects does not commit the City to funding or 

constructing these projects. Rather, the list is a guide 

for determining how the City of Sherwood is generally 

assumed to allocate its funding towards transportation 

investments. New development, the likelihood for 

atypical funding opportunities, and the potential for 

unforeseen circumstances, may shift identified 

transportation improvement priority.  

The project list includes conceptual street alignments 

at a system planning-level. Before construction of any 

of the projects can begin, more detailed surveys will 

need to be undertaken to identify hydrological, 

topographical, or other geological constraints that 

could hinder the alignment of the planned streets.  

Transportation Standards 

The standards documented in the TSP are for guiding 

new improvements to the transportation system and 

for identifying deficiencies in the current system. 

These apply city facilities; facilities owned by other 

jurisdictions will have their own standards to follow.  

Street Cross-Sections: New streets shall meet the 

design requirements in Sherwood’s Engineering Design 

and Standard Details Manual1 per the functional class in 

                                                 

1 Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual, July 1, 2009. 

the TSP. In constrained situations, a design exception 

may be allowed through a variance procedure. 

Access Spacing: New street connections shall meet the 

access spacing standards in the TSP. In constrained 

situations, a design exception may be allowed through 

a variance procedure. Generally, existing facilities are 

not required to be modified to meet these standards. 

However, if a site redevelops, or a street is upgraded, 

access to the site may be subject to redesign to achieve 

or work towards achieving access spacing standards. 

Traffic Calming: After determining the need for traffic 

calming along a facility, the appropriate technique 

shall be determined using engineering judgment by 

the Sherwood Public Works department. A toolbox of 

potential traffic calming techniques and their typical 

application is provided in Volume 2 of the TSP. 

Local Connectivity: Figure 17 indicates the general 

location where new local streets could potentially be 

installed, and is not a comprehensive map of all 

potential future local connections. Connections shown 

on the figure do not necessarily topographic, 

environmental or manmade constraints. All future 

local connections must go through City review—

whether or not the connection is shown on the 

figure—to determine the appropriate location.  

Mobility Targets: For all Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 

studies conducted in Sherwood, the TIA shall evaluate 

its impact on the transportation system using the 

mobility targets in the TSP. Additional requirements 

are provided in the City’s Development Code.  

Truck Routes: If an improvement is proposed along a 

truck route shown on Figure 18, it must comply with 

the special design standards for truck routes set by the 

facility owner. Reductions to vehicle-carrying capacity 

are not often allowed along truck routes.

338



vi     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): PREFACE 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

339



2     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE CONTEXT 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

340



THE CONTEXT: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     3 

THE CONTEXT

The City of Sherwood lies in southwest Washington 

County, only fourteen miles from downtown Portland. 

The lush landscape led to the establishment of the 

farming community in the late 1800’s, and agriculture 

and manufacturing have dominated the economy of 

Sherwood until recent decades.  

Sherwood is now roughly four square miles, and 

home to approximately 18,575 residents.2 The city has 

a downtown grid (Old Town) where the town was 

originally platted around the Portland and Willamette 

Valley Railway. Beyond the historic downtown, the 

city has commercial retail areas, manufacturing and 

industrial parks, as well as suburban neighborhoods 

mixed with green space, recreational trails, and is 

adjacent to the Tualatin River National Wildlife 

Refuge. 

The City of Sherwood has grown rapidly since 1990, as 

shown in Figure 1, from a population of 3,093 to 18,194 

                                                 

2 2013 Portland State Population Research Center 

population projection. 

in 2010.3 The population is younger and wealthier on 

average than typical residents of Washington County 

or Oregon. The average household size is 2.8 persons 

compared to 2.5 statewide, and 20% of Sherwood 

residents are under 10 years old compared to less than 

14% for Washington County and 13% statewide. The 

prevalence of young families translates to specific 

transportation needs to serve children who are likely 

to walk or bike to get around.  

  

                                                 

3 United States Census Bureau. 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010

S
h

e
rw

o
o

d
's

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Year 

Figure 1: Historical Population Growth in Sherwood 

341



4     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE CONTEXT 

While the growth in population has been 

accommodated through increases in housing, it has 

created a housing and jobs imbalance in the 

community. Currently, with the higher than average 

income levels, 70% of employed residents commute 

outside of the city for work to seek higher wage jobs. 

To help remedy this, a concept plan for a 300 acre 

“employment land” area to the east of the city 

(Tonquin Employment Area) has been adopted to 

guide development. In addition, there are 70 acres of 

smaller, vacant parcels throughout the city that are 

available for non-residential development. These 

planned areas may have capacity needs for moving 

freight, or multimodal needs for accessing smaller 

sites in town. 

The Challenge 

Sherwood, like many jurisdictions, faces the challenge 

of accommodating population and employment 

growth while maintaining acceptable service levels on 

its transportation network. With major regional 

facilities (e.g., Highway 99W, Tualatin-Sherwood 

Road) dividing the city, trying to meet acceptable 

levels of service for motor vehicles is likely to come at 

a cost to other modes—therefore, achieving a 

balanced, multi-modal transportation system through 

a series of system improvements is difficult. 

Furthermore, the City must balance its investments to 

ensure that the existing and future transportation 

system adequately serves all members of the 

community and is well maintained.  

The Transportation System 
Plan 

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) is intended to 

prepare for and accommodate the future growth 

through year 2035 in the most efficient manner 

possible. Without the big picture that the TSP 

provides, maintaining acceptable transportation 

network performance could not be achieved in an 

efficient manner. This Plan updates Sherwood’s 

original TSP, which was adopted in the year 2005 for a 

horizon year of 2020.  

What is a TSP? 

The TSP provides a long term guide for city 

transportation investments by incorporating the vision 

of the community into an equitable and efficient 

transportation system. 

The plan evaluates the current transportation system 

and outlines strategies and projects that are important 

to protecting and enhancing the quality of life in 

Sherwood through 2035. The TSP also provides a 

foundation from which to evaluate and determine 

what improvements could or should be required as 

part of private development projects. Plan elements 

can be implemented by the City, private developers, 

and state or federal agencies. 

A TSP is required by the State of Oregon to help 

integrate the City’s transportation investment plans 

into the statewide transportation system. The plan 

balances the needs of walking, bicycling, driving, 

transit and freight into an equitable and efficient 

transportation system. 

342



THE PROCESS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     5 

 

 

 

 

343



6     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PROCESS 

(This page left intentionally blank) 

  

344



THE PROCESS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     7 

THE PROCESS 
The Sherwood TSP Update was a collaborative process 

among various public agencies, key stakeholders and 

the community. Throughout this project, the project 

team took time to understand multiple points of view, 

obtain fresh ideas and resources, and encourage 

participation from the community. 

Project staff conducted technical group meetings 

(referred to as the TAC), hosted citizen advisory group 

meetings (referred to as the CAC), held meetings with 

decision makers, and conversed informally with 

members of the community. 

The process (shown in Figure 2) was broken into four 

manageable pieces: 

 Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 Existing Conditions Technical Report 

 Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools 

Technical Report 

 Project Options Technical Report 

Each report was posted to the project website (which 

presented an email address for the public to submit 

comments and concerns) and presented at an open 

house, giving residents an opportunity to provide 

feedback and keep up-to-date with the project.  

The project team then revised the draft reports based 

on feedback received from the TAC, CAC, decision 

makers, and the public. The revised documents were 

reposted to the TSP website. Material from these 

reports was ultimately used to create the Draft TSP. 

Subsequent public hearings with the Planning 

Commission and City Council on the Draft TSP 

ultimately led to adoption of the 2014 Sherwood 

Transportation System Plan.  

  

April 2014 

Final TSP 

City 

adoption of 

Final TSP 

December 2013 February 2014 

Draft TSP 

Review the 

transportation system 

to identify current 

conditions and 

problems, and 

determine future needs 

through 2035 

Identify and evaluate 

solutions and projects 

for the identified needs 

of the transportation 

system through 2035 

The solutions and 

projects that best meet 

the project goals, 

objectives and 

evaluation criteria 

were incorporated into 

a Draft TSP 

Project Options 

Summarize 

planning 

documents, policies, 

and regulations 

applicable to the 

TSP Update 

Transportation 

Conditions 

TAC #1 & #2 

CAC #1 & #2 

Open House #1 
  

Review of Plans 

And Policies 

TAC #3 

CAC #3 

Open House #2 
  

Public 

Hearings 

October 2013 

Figure 2: TSP Update Process 
 

TAC #4 

CAC #4 
  

345



8     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PROCESS 

 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

346



THE VISION: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     9 

   

 

 

347



 

10     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE VISION 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

348



THE VISION: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     11 

THE VISION 
In the past, a typical response to congestion 

from communities in the region was to 

expand streets to add additional travel lanes. 

This practice created significant barriers to 

walking and biking and detracted from the 

livability, health, safety, and fiscal wellbeing 

of the community. 

Sherwood’s approach to developing the TSP 

placed more value on investments in smaller 

cost-effective solutions for the transportation 

system rather than larger, more costly 

solutions. Consistent with statewide 

planning policies and the Metro Regional 

Transportation Functional Plan, the 

approach emphasized a multi-modal 

network-wide approach to identifying 

transportation system solutions. As shown 

in Figure 3, this approach followed a five-

step process that considered solutions from 

top to bottom until a viable solution was 

identified. This enables more cost-effective 

solutions to improve transportation system 

operations and will help to encourage 

multiple travel options, increase street connectivity, 

and promote a more sustainable transportation 

system.  

  

Figure 3: Transportation Solutions Identification Process 

Manage 

• Manage the performance of congested locations with 
strategies that reduce traffic conflicts, increase safety, and 
encourage more efficient usage of the transportation 
system.  

Reduce 

• Reduce the driving demand at congested locations by 
improving walking, biking and transit options. 

Revisit 

• Revisit land uses and congestion thresholds to encourage 
shorter driving trips or modified travel decisions.   

Extend 

• Extend streets to create parallel routes that will reduce the 
driving demand on the congested facility.  

Expand 

• Expand existing streets or intersections to increase the 
driving capacity of the facility.  

349



12     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE VISION 

How do we reflect 
Sherwood’s Vision in the 
Plan? 

Sherwood’s Comprehensive Plan (Chapter 6 Section B) 

includes eight transportation goals with several 

strategies to achieve each goal. As shown in Figure 4, 

these strategies were grouped and condensed into 

evaluation criteria that project stakeholders felt to be 

most important to the community to measure how 

well the transportation solutions addressed 

Sherwood’s existing goals. The following strategies for 

each goal4 were applied as project evaluation criteria: 

Goal 1: Provide a supportive transportation 

network to the land use plan that provides 

opportunities for transportation choices and 

the use of alternative modes serving all 

neighborhoods and businesses 

Circulation: Improves mobility through 

separation of local and through traffic 

Goal 2: Develop a transportation system that is 

consistent with the City’s adopted 

comprehensive land use plan and with the 

adopted plans of state, local, and regional 

jurisdictions 

Compatibility: Compatible with other 

jurisdiction’s plans and policies (including 

adjacent cities, counties, Metro, or ODOT) 

Agency Standards: Consistent with the 

standards of the city, region, and state as a whole 

 

                                                 

4 Note that minor wording amendments to the 

transportation goals are being made through the TSP 

update. However, these amendments will not change the 

overall intent of the goals and have no resulting impact 

on the evaluation criteria that were used.  

 

 

 

Goal 3: Establish a clear and objective set of 

transportation design and development 

regulations that addresses all elements of the 

city transportation system and that promote 

access to and utilization of a multi-modal 

transportation system 

Land Development Standards: Promotes 

standardized processes for developers to access 

and accommodate transportation impacts from 

development 

  

Transportation Goals 

Policy Feedback by 
Project Stakeholders  

Evaluation Criteria 

Transportation 
System Investments 

Figure 4: Reflecting our  

Vision in the Plan 

350



THE VISION: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     13 

Goal 4: Develop complementary infrastructure 

for bicycles and pedestrian facilities to provide 

a diverse range of transportation choices for 

city residents 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities: Adds bikeway 

and walkways that fill in system gaps, improve 

system connectivity, and are accessible to all 

users 

Goal 5: Provide reliable convenient transit 

service to Sherwood residents and businesses 

as well as special transit options for the city’s 

elderly and disabled residents 

Expands Transit Service: Adds hours, additional 

routes, stops, or special ride services 

Transit Supportive Infrastructure: Improves 

transit supportive infrastructure and facilities 

Goal 6: Provide a convenient and safe 

transportation network within and between the 

Sherwood Old Town (Town Center) and Six 

Corners area that enables mixed use 

development and provides multi-modal access 

to area businesses and residents 

Design Standards: Develops or refines special 

standards to facilitate pedestrian and transit 

friendly development in Old Town and Six 

Corners 

Corridor Connectivity: Improves connectivity 

through acquisitions and dedications to achieve 

better street spacing and enhance off-street trail 

system 

 

 

 

Goal 7: Ensure that efficient and effective 

freight transportation infrastructure is 

developed and maintained to support local and 

regional economic expansion and 

diversification consistent with City economic 

plans and policies 

Freight Mobility: Invests in infrastructure and 

services needed to meet current and future 

demand 

Freight Access: Regulates and improves access, 

including loading and transfer facilities 

Goal 8: The Sherwood transportation network 

will be managed in a manner that ensures the 

plan is implemented in a timely fashion and is 

kept up to date with respect to local and 

regional priorities 

Funding: Leverages local, regional, state, federal, 

or private funds 

 

  

351



14     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE VISION 

(This page left intentionally blank)   

352



 

15     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE VISION 

  

353



16     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE TRENDS 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

354



THE TRENDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     17 

THE TRENDS 
The current travel conditions were reviewed and 

future growth and travel trends were forecasted 

through the year 2035 to determine what investments 

are needed for Sherwood’s transportation system. For 

this assessment of needs, it was assumed that only the 

transportation projects with committed funding 

would be built and that no further investments would 

be made in order to prioritize and plan projects that 

are not currently funded. The following sections 

explain where growth is expected, how the 

transportation system will perform, and where 

solutions will be needed. 

Snapshot of Sherwood in 
2035 

Today, the 

Sherwood area 

(both land 

within the 

existing city 

limits as well as 

outlying rural 

area) is home to 

7,500 

households and 

accounts for 

over 8,800 jobs. 

Based on 

Metro’s regional growth projections5 for the Sherwood 

area, between now and year 2035 employment is 

expected to increase nearly 5.0 percent a year, slightly 

outpacing household growth over the same period (4.5 

                                                 

5 Metro 2035 Gamma land use forecasts. 

percent). By 2035, based on regional growth forecasts, 

the Sherwood area (including the urban reserves) is 

expected to be home to almost 16,000 households and 

over 19,800 jobs, a 113 and 124 percent increase 

respectively from 2010.6 With more people and more 

jobs in Sherwood, the transportation network will face 

increased demands. 

More People, More Jobs 

As shown in Figure 5, much of the population and 

employment growth is expected to occur around the 

undeveloped edges of Sherwood.  

Employment growth is expected to be highest in the 

following areas: 

 The Tonquin Employment Area, including 

the area bound by Tualatin-Sherwood Road 

to the north, Oregon Street to the South, 

Langer Farms Parkway to the west, and the 

124th Avenue alignment to the east  

 North of Tualatin-Sherwood Road between 

Highway 99W and Cipole Road  

 The urban reserves west of the city  

 The areas adjacent to Brookman Road  

 The areas adjacent to Tonquin Road 

 The area bound by Highway 99W, Elwert 

Road, and Edy Road 

Old Town Sherwood is also expected to see moderate 

employment growth.   

                                                 

6 Analysis is based on Metro Gamma land use forecasts 

for zones in and around Sherwood. 

355



PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

350 Households
550 Jobs

150 Households
350 Jobs

1400 Jobs

2300 Jobs

550 Jobs

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Areas expected to grow at least 
100 jobs or 100 households by 2035

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

1500 Households
600 Jobs

4850 Households
950 Jobs

Figure 5
Major Growth Areas

# Projected growth from 2010 to 2035

* Growth is based on data and assumptions
 from Metro for Sherwood and surrounding areas. 

Railroad

Town 
Center City Limit

Parcel

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

Urban Reserves
Urban Growth Boundary

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary
Park

356



THE TRENDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     19 

By the year 2035, household growth is expected to be 

highest in the following areas: 

 The urban reserves west of the city 

 The areas adjacent to Brookman Road  

Old Town Sherwood and the area bound by Highway 

99W-Elwert Road-Edy Road are also expected to see 

moderate household growth.  

More Driving 

The projected growth in housing and employment is 

likely to lead to increased activity and person-trips in 

Sherwood. Even with enhancements to pedestrian and 

bicycle opportunities, and an increase in jobs near 

residential areas, and progress towards non-driving 

trips, there is projected to be an increase of 

approximately 65% weekday peak hour vehicle trips 

in the Sherwood area by 2035. Along with this growth, 

the total vehicle distance travelled in Sherwood is 

projected to increase, even though the distance 

travelled per person (average distance) is projected to 

decrease7. This increased overall vehicle travel will 

place additional strain on Sherwood’s streets.  

More Congestion 

More travel means more congestion. Evening peak 

hour motor vehicle trips beginning or ending in 

Sherwood are expected to increase by 63 percent 

through 2035. Through travel, or trips that do not 

begin or end in Sherwood, is also expected to increase 

through 2035 and is generally representative of 

growth in the region, including surrounding cities 

                                                 

7 The projected increase in vehicle trips (65%) is less than 

the projected increase in land use (approximately 115% 

and 125% growth in households and jobs, respectively). 

As a result, the average distance travelled per person is 

projected to decrease. Section 9 (The Outcome) includes 

additional information. 

such as Tualatin and Newberg. Figure 6 indicates the 

general amount of traffic projected to use streets in the 

Sherwood area (based on the width of the color) and 

the general level of congestion (noted by warmer 

colors). The following road segments were identified 

as locations that are projected to be congested during 

evening peak hour conditions and may require 

additional capacity improvements or management 

strategies by the year 2035: 

 Highway 99W north of SW Tualatin-

Sherwood Road 

 SW Roy Rogers Road west of Highway 99W 

 SW Tualatin Sherwood Road east of 

Highway 99W 

 SW Edy Road west of Highway 99W 

 Highway 99W south of SW Edy Road 

 SW Oregon Street east of SW Murdock Road 

 SW Sunset Boulevard between SW Pinehurst 

Drive and SW Murdock Road 

 SW Langer Farms Parkway south of SW 

Century Drive 

 

  

357



20     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE TRENDS 

More Walking, Biking, and Transit 
Use 

Old Town and other areas of the Town Center (an area 

defined as south of Highway 99W and Tualatin-

Sherwood Road, east of Cedar Creek, and west of 

Langer Farms Parkway) continue to develop in ways 

that will support multimodal activity. Amenities such 

as Cannery Square and the Cedar Creek Trail will 

attract activity and the amount of pedestrian, bicycle, 

and transit use in the area is expected to grow. 

The future needs for walking, biking, and transit in 

Sherwood were determined by reviewing major 

growth areas of the city and evaluating how they were 

served by existing facilities. In addition, the areas of 

the city in close proximity to key destinations (such as 

schools, transit stops, and shopping) with potential to 

attract significant walking and biking trips and areas 

with existing deficiencies were identified and 

reviewed to determine prioritized walking, biking, or 

transit investments. 

Key routes with bike and/or pedestrian deficiencies 

include:

 

 12th Street 

 Borchers Drive 

 Highway 99W 

 Langer Drive 

 Main Street 

 Oregon Street 

 Pine Street 

 Sherwood Boulevard 

 Sunset Boulevard 

 Washington Street 

Key transit deficiencies in Sherwood include: 

 Limited regional connections 

 Lack of a local circulation route 

 Limited transit stop amenities 

 Incomplete pedestrian and bicycle 

connections to transit stops  

358



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 6
2035 Motor Vehicle Conditions

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Parcel
Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Legend
Intersection Volume-to-
Capacity Ratio

Link Volume-to- 
Capacity Ratio

v/c <= 0.85
v/c <= 1.0
v/c <= 1.1
v/c > 1.1

v/c <= 0.8
v/c <= 0.9
v/c <= 1.0
v/c <= 1.1
v/c > 1.1

359



22     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE TRENDS 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

360



THE TRENDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     23 

 

  

  

 

361



24     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE INVESTMENTS 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

362



THE INVESTMENTS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     25 

THE INVESTMENTS 
The Sherwood approach to developing 

transportation solutions placed more value on 

investments in smaller cost-effective solutions for 

the transportation system rather than larger, more 

costly ones as the City and regional partners will 

have a limited amount of funding to spend on these 

solutions through 2035. The approach helped to 

encourage multiple travel options, increase street 

connectivity and promote a more sustainable 

transportation system. 

Taking the network approach to transportation 

system improvements, the projects in this plan—

listed in Table A1 of Volume 2, Section E—are 

grouped into several modal categories. The 

following categories list the number of projects and 

their costs (which are in 2013 dollar amounts, and 

are the City’s estimated share of the total cost) for 

each mode: 

 Motor vehicle projects to improve 

connectivity, safety, and mobility 

throughout the city. Sherwood identified 

36 projects to improve driving conditions 

and will cost the City an estimated $87.8 

million to complete. 

 Pedestrian projects for sidewalk infill, 

local and regional trails, and shared-use 

paths to provide seamless connections for 

pedestrians throughout the city. Sherwood 

identified 51 sidewalk projects that will 

cost the City an estimated $15.9 million to 

complete. 

 Biking projects including an integrated 

network of bicycle lanes, marked on-street 

routes, and shared-use paths to facilitate 

convenient travel citywide. Sherwood 

identified 19 biking projects that will cost 

the City an estimated $6.7 million to 

complete. 

 Transit projects to provide wider 

coverage, more frequent service, and more 

better amenities. A total of 6 transit 

projects were identified that will cost the 

City an estimated $1.2 million to complete. 

  

363



26     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE INVESTMENTS 

Overall, Sherwood identified 112 transportation 

solutions, totaling an estimated $350 million worth 

of investments—$112 million of which is assumed to 

be city funded. The remainder is the assumed share 

for the county and state for projects not on city 

owned facilities. As shown in Figure 7, only about 32 

percent of the improvements in the Plan are motor 

vehicle projects, yet these projects account for nearly 

78 percent of the total future project expenses in the 

Plan.  

 

 

 

  

Motor 
Vehicle 

78% 

Pedestrian 
15% 

Biking 
6% 

Transit 
1% 

Motor 

Vehicle 

32% 

Pedestrian 

46% 

Biking 

17% 

Transit 

5% 

Figure 7: Breakdown of Projects and Expenses in the Plan 

Projects Expenses in the TSP by Mode Projects in the TSP by Mode 

364



THE INVESTMENTS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (03-20-14 DRAFT)     |     27 

  

 

 

365



28     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE FUNDING 

(This page left intentionally blank) 

366



THE FUNDING: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     29 

THE FUNDING 
With an estimated $112 million worth of 

transportation solutions identified to potentially be 

funded by the City, Sherwood must make 

investment decisions to develop a set of 

transportation improvements that are reasonably 

likely be funded to meet identified needs through 

2035. As summarized in the Existing Conditions 

Technical Report (Section B in the Volume 2), it is 

estimated that Sherwood would have approximately 

$11.3 million to spend on capital improvement 

projects through 2035 based on historical growth 

that has occurred over the last several years. 

However, assuming the level of growth related to 

urbanization of surrounding areas through 2035, 

Sherwood’s available funds for transportation 

projects would grow to approximately $60 million. 

Therefore, both the $11.3 million funding estimate 

(referred to as “conservative funding”) and the $60 

million funding estimate (referred to as “projected 

funding”) will be considered as funding scenarios. 

  

367



30     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE FUNDING 

Funding Shortfall 

Over $87 million worth of motor vehicle projects, 

nearly $23 million worth of pedestrian, bicycle, and 

shared-use path and trail improvements, and about 

$1 million worth of transit projects were identified 

for city funding, totaling approximately $111.6 

million.  

Unless additional funds are developed, Sherwood 

will be short as much as $100 million to fund desired 

transportation projects if growth in the city 

continues as it has over the last few years. If the level 

of growth in the area is consistent with the regional 

land use growth projections, the City would be short 

nearly $52 million to fund transportation projects. 

However, the funding estimates do not consider 

developer contributions that would likely apply to a 

handful of investments shown in the TSP—

therefore, the funding gap is likely to be less than 

$52 million, yet significant nonetheless. 

As shown in Figure 8, approximately 22 percent of 

the motor vehicle projects, 21 percent of the 

pedestrian and bicycle projects, and 33 percent of 

the transit projects could be funded under the 

conservative funding estimate of $11.3 million. 

Under the projected funding estimate of $60 million, 

approximately 61 percent of the motor vehicle 

projects, 56 percent of the pedestrian and bicycle 

projects, and 67 percent of the transit projects could 

be funded. 

In addition to Sherwood’s funding shortfall, state 

and county funding limitations may further 

constrain the degree of transportation investments 

made in the city. Even though Sherwood may 

dedicate a match to support funding an investment 

along a state or county facility, it is not guaranteed 

that the county or state could provide the remaining 

match to complete the investment.   

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

$11.3M $60M

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
E

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 

Funding Scenario 

Motor Vehicle

Pedestrian & Bicycle

Transit

Figure 8: Evaluation of the Fundable Plans 
 

368



31     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (03-20-14 DRAFT): THE FUNDING 

 

 

 

 

369



32     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PLAN 

(This page left intentionally blank) 

370



THE PLAN: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     33 

THE PLAN 
As detailed in the Funding section, the City is 

projected to have up to $60 million to cover the $112 

million in project costs. Clearly, most of the 

transportation solutions identified for the city are 

not reasonably likely to be funded through 2035. For 

this reason, the transportation solutions were 

grouped into three categories based on the timing of 

anticipated implementation: 

 The Conservatively Fundable Plan 

 The Projected Fundable Plan 

 The Aspirational Plan 

The highest priority projects that fall within the 

$11.3 million scenario were included in the 

Conservatively Fundable Plan, the highest priority 

projects that fall within the $60 million scenario 

were included in the Projected Fundable Plan, and 

the complete projects list—regardless of expected 

funding—is referred to as the Aspirational Plan.  

Determining the 
Investments that made the 
Fundable Plans 

The complete list of transportation projects 

(documented in Section E of Volume 2) were 

prioritized based on a three-tier evaluation process, 

which included: 

 Tier 1: Screening for Needs—Projects 

previously identified in plans prior to the 

update (e.g., prior transportation plans, 

concept plans, etc.) were screened to 

determine if they addressed a specific 

need identified in the TSP update process. 

Projects that were previously identified 

but did not directly address a given need 

were given a “long-term phasing status 

(regardless of Tier 2 and Tier 3 evaluation). 

Additional projects were developed to 

address the needs that were not otherwise 

addressed with previously identified 

projects.  

 Tier 2: Primary Evaluation Criteria—

Evaluation criteria were applied to projects 

across all modes based on consistency 

with Sherwood’s transportation goals. 

These criteria provided a means to 

evaluate very different projects using the 

broad criteria that was applied to all 

project types.  

 Tier 3: Secondary Criteria—In order to 

further differentiate projects that received 

the same primary evaluation score within 

a given mode, sets of secondary criteria 

were applied. These criteria were different 

for each mode and were only used to 

compare projects relative to other projects 

of the same mode. The criteria were: 

● Pedestrian/Bicycle—Project location 

and proximity to schools and other 

activity generators. 

● Motor Vehicle—Hierarchy of projects 

based on regional strategies 

(intersection improvements are 

highest priority and major corridor 

widening is lowest priority). 

Incorporating the funding scenarios with the 

prioritized list of projects, the solutions were 

371



34     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PLAN 

grouped into the fundable plans. Each 

transportation solution was then assigned a time 

frame for the expected investment need, based on a 

project’s contribution to achieving the transportation 

goals of Sherwood.  

Conservatively Fundable 
Plan 

The Conservatively Fundable Plan identifies the 

highest priority transportation solutions that are 

anticipated to be funded by 2035, based on historical 

funding data. Transportation solutions within the 

Conservatively Fundable Plan were recommended 

as short-term investments. 

Over $11 million worth of investments are included 

in the Conservatively Fundable Plan. As shown in 

Figure 9, about 32 percent of these investments are 

motor vehicle improvements, 36 percent are 

pedestrian improvements, 24 percent are biking 

improvements, and about 8 percent of these 

investments are transit improvements. 

The Conservatively Fundable transportation 

solutions are highlighted in red in Table 1 and 

illustrated in Figures 11 to 14. The projects 

numbered on Figures 11 to 14 correspond with 

the project numbers in Table 1. The project 

numbers are denoted as follows: 

 Driving (“D”) 

 Pedestrian (“P”) 

 Biking (“B”) 

 Transit (“T”) 

Planning level cost estimates for the projects can 

be found in Table A1 of the TSP Volume 2, 

Section E.  

  

Motor 
Vehicle 

32% 

Pedestrian 
36% 

Biking 
24% 

Transit 
8% 

Figure 9: Breakdown of Projects in the 

Conservatively Fundable Plan 
 

372



THE PLAN: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     35 

Projected Fundable Plan 

The Projected Fundable Plan identifies additional 

high priority transportation solutions that 

reasonably could be funded by 2035, assuming the 

same level of growth related to urbanization of 

surrounding areas. Transportation solutions 

within the Projected Fundable Plan that were not 

included in the Conservatively Fundable Plan 

were recommended as medium-term 

investments. 

Nearly $60 million worth of investments are 

included in the Projected Fundable Plan. As 

shown in Figure 10, about 34 percent of these 

investments are motor vehicle improvements, 38 

percent are pedestrian improvements, 22 percent 

are biking improvements, and about 6 percent of 

these investments are transit improvements. 

The Projected Fundable transportation solutions are 

also listed in Table 1 and illustrated in Figures 11 to 

14. Planning level cost estimates for the projects can 

be found in Table A1 of the TSP Volume 2, Section E. 

  

Motor 
Vehicle 

34% 

Pedestrian 
38% 

Biking 
22% 

Transit 
6% 

Figure 10: Breakdown of Projects in the 

Projected Fundable Plan 

373



36     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PLAN 

Table 1: The Fundable Transportation System 

Project 

# 
Project Name Project Details Priority 

Projects with Committed Funding 

D13 

Tualatin-Sherwood 

Improvements – Phase 

1 

Widen Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road between Borchers Drive 

and Baler Way to five lanes. Includes intersection modifications at Highway 

99W, the Sherwood Market Center, and at Baler Way. 

(Funded 

Through 

MSTIP) 

D19 124th Avenue Extension 
Extend 124th Avenue as an arterial from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to 

Tonquin Road. 

(Funded 

Through 

MSTIP) 

D22 

Kruger/Elwert 

Intersection Safety 

Improvement 

Realign Elwert Road to provide more storage at Highway 99W, and realign 

the Kruger Road intersection to the Cedarbrook extension as a single lane 

roundabout. 

(Funded 

Through 

MSTIP) 

P13 
Ice Age Tonquin Trail 

Segment 8 

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 8 improvements from immediately north 

of Park Street to immediately south of Highway 99W. 

(Funded 

through Metro 

regional flex 

funds) 

Motor Vehicle Projects (See Figure 11) 

D3 

Oregon Street 

Intersection 

Improvements at 

Murdock and Tonquin 

Install a roundabout at the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection with 

dual westbound through lanes and a single eastbound through/right lane. 

Consider creating a "Dumbbell Roundabout" with the Oregon/Murdock 

roundabout by disallowing the west circulating lane at Oregon/Tonquin and 

disallowing the east circulating lane at Oregon/Murdock. Add a second 

westbound approach lane to the Murdock Road Oregon Street roundabout 

for separated westbound left and westbound through lanes. Keep three 

lanes on the bridge structure. 

Short-Term 

D4 
Elwert Road 

Improvements 

Upgrade Elwert Road (from Highway 99W to Edy Road) to a three lane 

arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. This project may be phased with D30 

for design and construction purposes. 

Medium-Term 

D6 
Edy Road 

Improvements 

Upgrade Edy Road (from Borchers Drive to City Limits) to a three lane 

collector with bike lanes and sidewalks. 
Medium-Term 

D7 
Ladd Hill Road 

Improvements 

Upgrade Ladd Hill Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the Urban Growth 

Boundary) to a three arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. 
Medium-Term 

D8 
Oregon Street 

Improvements 

Upgrade Oregon Street (from Murdock Road to the railroad crossing) to a 

three lane collector with sidewalks on south side and a shared-use path on 

the north side (part of the Ice Age Tonquin Trail). 

Medium-Term 

D12 
Extension of Langer 

Farms Parkway at 99W 
Extend Langer Farms Parkway from 99W west as a collector road. Medium-Term 

D14 

Highway 

99W/Brookman Traffic 

Signal and Realignment 

Realign Brookman Road to intersect with Highway 99W approximately 1/4 

mile north of its existing intersection; This alignment would provide future 

separation from the Southern Arterial connection at Highway 99W and 

would improve safety and driver expectancy for the intersection on the 

highway by moving it within the urbanized context (within future 

urbanized area of Brookman Concept Plan area). This improvement includes 

a traffic signal at the realigned intersection with a westbound left and 

southbound right turn lane, and a grade separated railroad crossing. All 

traffic signals on the state highway system would need to be approved by 

the state traffic engineer and design coordination with ODOT would be 

Medium-Term 

374



THE PLAN: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     37 

Project 

# 
Project Name Project Details Priority 

needed to ensure that the improvements were done in a manner that would 

improve driver expectancy and safety. 

D15 
Sunset Boulevard 

Improvements 

Upgrade Sunset Boulevard (from Aldergrove Avenue to Eucalyptus 

Terrace) to a three lane arterial with sidewalks and bike lanes. Address 

vertical crest sight distance issues near Pine Street. 

Medium-Term 

D16 

Edy/Highway 99W 

Intersection 

Improvements 

Restripe the westbound Sherwood Boulevard approach to have a single left 

turn lane, a single through lane, and a single right turn lane. Eliminate the 

split phase timing for the side streets, and maintain the existing green time 

on Highway 99W for the northbound and southbound through movements. 

Add the missing crosswalk to the south approach. Consider implementing 

P3 alongside this project. 

Short-Term 

D17 

Meinecke/Highway 

99W Intersection 

Improvements 

Change the eastbound and westbound left turn phasing on Meinecke Road 

from permitted to permitted/protected and maintaining the existing green 

time on Highway 99W for the northbound and southbound through 

movements. Consider implementing P3 alongside this project. 

Medium-Term 

D18 
Langer Drive 

Improvements 

Construct improvements to Langer Drive between Baler Way and Sherwood 

Boulevard that are consistent with the Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major 

improvements include: buffered bike lanes, on-street parking, wider 

sidewalks, narrower travel lanes, removal of the center turn lane, and 

landscaping. 

Short-Term 

D24 

Sherwood Boulevard 

Intersection 

Modifications 

Remove the Sherwood Boulevard/Langer Drive traffic signal (allow right-in, 

right-out, and left-in movements only), and install a traffic signal at the 

Sherwood Boulevard/Century Drive intersection (add eastbound and 

westbound left turn lanes). 

Short-Term 

D25 
Sunset/Pine 

Improvements 

Restripe Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound and westbound 

left turn lanes. 
Medium-Term 

D27 
Baker Road 

Improvements 

Upgrade Baker Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the urban growth 

boundary) to a two lane arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. 
Medium-Term 

D30 
Elwert/Edy 

Roundabout 

Install a single lane roundabout at the Elwert Road/Edy Road intersection. 

This project may be phased with D4 for design and construction purposes. 
Medium-Term 

D31 
Highway 99W/Sunset 

Improvements 

Add westbound and eastbound left turn lanes at Highway 99W/Sunset 

Boulevard with protective-permissive phasing. Consider implementing D22 

and P3 alongside this project. 

Short-Term 

D33 
Sunset/Murdock Turn 

Lanes 

Add a southbound right turn lane and a northbound left turn lane at the 

Sunset Boulevard/Murdock Road intersection. 
Medium-Term 

D34 

Brookman/Middleton 

Traffic Control 

Enhancements 

Move the stop signs to the north and south approaches, and add a 

southbound left turn lane at the Brookman Road/Middleton Road 

intersection. 

Medium-Term 

D35 
Area 59 Neighborhood 

Route 

Build a neighborhood roadway, connecting Elwert Road and Copper 

Terrace as identified in the Area 59 concept plan. 
Medium-Term 

Pedestrian Projects (See Figure 12) 

P1 
Handley Street 

Sidewalk Infill 

Construct sidewalk along the north side of Handley Street from Elwert Road 

to the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 250 feet east of Elwert 

Road.  

Medium-Term 

P2 
Highway 99W Sidewalk 

Infill 

Construct sidewalks along both sides of Highway 99W between the north 

Urban Growth Boundary and the south Urban Growth Boundary. 
Medium-Term 

375



38     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PLAN 

Project 

# 
Project Name Project Details Priority 

P3 
Highway 99W 

Crosswalks 

Add missing crosswalks at existing traffic signal locations on Highway 99W 

between Edy Road and Sunset Boulevard. The crosswalk enhancements 

may be phased individually with their corresponding intersection 

improvements (D16, D17, D31). 

Medium-Term 

P4 

Ice Age Tonquin 

Trail/Highway 99W 

Connection 

Construct a shared use path that connects the proposed Cedar 

Creek/Tonquin Trail to Highway 99W. 
Medium-Term 

P5 

10th Street 

Neighborhood 

Greenway 

Add sidewalks and shared lane markings to 10th Street and Gleneagle Drive 

from Sherwood Boulevard to the planned Cedar Creek/Ice Age Tonquin 

Trail connection. 

Medium-Term 

P6 
Sherwood Boulevard 

Improvements 

Construct improvements to Sherwood Boulevard between Langer Drive and 

3rd Street that are consistent with the Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major 

improvements include: a shared-use path on the east side, wider sidewalks 

on the west side, narrower travel lanes, and landscaping. 

Short-Term 

P12 
Ice Age Tonquin Trail 

Segment 7 

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 7 improvements from immediately west 

of the Tonquin/Oregon Street intersection to immediately north of Park 

Street. 

Short-Term 

P14 
Ice Age Tonquin Trail 

Segment 9 

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 9 improvements from immediately south 

of Highway 99W to Roy Rogers Road (including Roy Rogers intersection). 
Short-Term 

P16 
Ice Age Tonquin Trail 

Segment 11 

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 11 improvements from immediately east 

of the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection to immediately west of 

Cipole Road. 

Medium-Term 

P18 
Cipole Road Sidewalk 

Infill 

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Cipole Road from approximately 

1,250 feet north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road to the existing sidewalk 

terminus approximately 450 feet north. 

Medium-Term 

P19 
12th Street Sidewalk 

Infill 

Construct sidewalk along the south side of 12th Street from Highway 99W 

to Sherwood Boulevard. 
Short-Term 

P20 
Division Street 

Sidewalk Infill 

Construct sidewalk along both sides of Division Street from Main Street to 

Cuthill Place. 
Medium-Term 

P21 
Meinecke Road 

Sidewalk Infill 

Construct sidewalk along the north side of Meinecke Road from Lee Drive 

to the existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately 400 feet). 
Medium-Term 

P22 
Pine Street Sidewalk 

Infill Segment 1 

Construct sidewalk along the west side of Pine Street from Willamette Street 

to Columbia Street. 
Short-Term 

P23 
Pine Street Sidewalk 

Infill Segment 2 

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Pine Street from Division Street to 

Sunset Boulevard, and fill the sidewalk gap along the west side of Pine 

Street just north of Sunset Boulevard. 

Short-Term 

P26 
Highway 99W Grade 

Separated Crossing 

Build a grade-separated crossing of Highway 99W for pedestrians and 

bicyclists, providing a direct connection for the Ice Age Tonquin Trail east 

and west of the highway. 

Medium-Term 

P30 

Sunset Boulevard/St 

Charles Way Crossing 

Improvements 

Install marked crosswalks at the Sunset Boulevard/St Charles Way 

intersection. 
Medium-Term 

P31 

Sunset 

Boulevard/Redfern 

Drive Crossing 

Improvements 

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset Boulevard/Redfern Drive 

intersection. 
Medium-Term 

376



THE PLAN: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     39 

Project 

# 
Project Name Project Details Priority 

P32 

Sunset 

Boulevard/Galewood 

Drive Crossing 

Improvements 

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset Boulevard/Galewood 

Drive intersection. 
Medium-Term 

P44 
Oregon Street Sidewalk 

Infill 

Construct sidewalk along the south side of Oregon Street between Hall 

Street and Orland Street. 
Medium-Term 

P45 

Murdock Road 

Sidewalk Infill Segment 

1 

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from Willamette 

Street to Oregon Street. 
Medium-Term 

P48 

Downtown Streetscapes 

Master Plan Phases 1 

and 2 (Old Town Core) 

Complete Phase 1 (Old Town Core) and Phase 2 (Cannery Arterials) of the 

Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan. 
Medium-Term 

P49 

Downtown Streetscapes 

Master Plan Phase 3 

(Old Town Secondary 

Streets) 

Complete Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary Streets) of the Downtown 

Streetscapes Master Plan. 
Short-Term 

P50 

Downtown Streetscapes 

Master Plan Phase 4 

(Old Town Residential 

Neighborhoods) 

Complete Phase 4 (Old Town Residential Neighborhoods) of the Downtown 

Streetscapes Master Plan. 
Short-Term 

Biking Projects (See Figure 13) 

B1 
Murdock Shared-Use 

Path 

Build a shared-use path along the west side of Murdock Road from Oregon 

Street to Upper Roy Street. 
Medium-Term 

B2 Meinecke Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on Meinecke Road from Marshall Street to 3rd Street. Short-Term 

B5 
Main Street Shared 

Lane Markings 

Add shared lane markings to Main Street between 1st Street and Sherwood 

Boulevard. 
Medium-Term 

B6 
Pine Street Shared Lane 

Markings 

Add shared lane markings to Pine Street between 3rd Street and Sherwood 

Boulevard. 
Medium-Term 

B7 Borchers Bike Lanes Build bike lanes on Borchers Road between Edy Road and Roy Rogers Road. Short-Term 

B8 
3rd Street Shared Lane 

Markings 

Add shared lane markings on 3rd Street from Washington Street to 

Sherwood Boulevard. 
Medium-Term 

B9 
1st Street Shared Lane 

Markings 
Add shared lane markings on 1st Street from Main Street to Pine Street. Medium-Term 

B10 
Century Drive Shared-

Use Path 

Widen the sidewalk on the south/east side of Century Drive between 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road and the existing terminus to provide a shared-use 

path 

Short-Term 

B12 
Old Highway 99W 

Shared-Use Path 

Widen the sidewalk along the west side of Old Highway 99W between 

Timbrel Lane and Crooked River Lane to provide a shared-use path 
Medium-Term 

B13 

Old Highway 99W 

Improvements Segment 

2 

Upgrade Old Highway 99W (from Crooked River Lane to Brookman Road) 

to a two lane collector with a shared use path on the west side and 

sidewalks on the east side. 

Short-Term 

B16 Baler Way Bike Lanes 
Rebuild Baler Way to a collector between Century Drive and Tualatin-

Sherwood Road to include bike lanes. 
Short-Term 

B17 12th Street Bike Lanes 
Add bike lanes on 12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood 

Boulevard. 
Short-Term 

377



40     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE PLAN 

Project 

# 
Project Name Project Details Priority 

B18 
Washington Street 

Shared Lane Markings 

Add shared lane markings on Washington Street between 3rd Street and 1st 

Street. 
Medium-Term 

B19 
Sunset Boulevard Bike 

Lanes 

Add bike lanes on Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove Avenue and 

Murdock Road 
Medium-Term 

Transit Projects (See Figure 14) 

T1 

Provide Transit 

Amenities at Major 

Transit Stops 

Provide Transit Amenities at Major Transit Stops. Medium-Term 

T2 

Improve Pedestrian 

Connections to Transit 

Facilities 

Improve Pedestrian Connections to Transit Facilities. Short-Term 

T3 
Increase Density 

Adjacent to Transit 
Increase Density Adjacent to Transit. Short-Term 

T6 
Support Regional 

Service to Tualatin 
Support potential transit connections to Tualatin Medium-Term 

Full project list (including aspiration projects) can be found in Volume 2, Section E 

Projects may be constructed through private development 

Aspirational Plan 

The projects within the fundable plans will 

significantly improve Sherwood’s transportation 

system. If the City is able to implement a majority of 

the Projected Fundable Plan, nearly two decades 

from now Sherwood residents will have access to a 

safer, more balanced multimodal transportation 

network. 

The Aspirational Plan identifies those transportation 

solutions that are not reasonably expected to be 

funded by 2035, but many of which are critically 

important to the transportation system. Some of the 

projects will require funding and resources beyond 

what is available in the time frame of this plan. 

Others are contingent upon redevelopment that 

makes it possible to create currently missing 

infrastructure, such as street connections.  

The Aspirational Plan solutions are illustrated in 

Figures 11 to 14 and summarized in the TSP Volume 

2, Section E. The Aspiration Transportation Plan 

includes about $112 million worth of investments. 

Planning level cost estimates for the projects can be 

found in Table A1 of the TSP Volume 2, Section E. 

Transportation solutions within the Aspirational 

Plan, but not in a fundable plan, were recommended 

as long-term investments. 

  

378



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 11
Motor Vehicle Projects

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

D1

D5

D10

D2

D23

D26

D32

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

D29

D20
D11

D28

D11

D11

Conservatively Fundable
Transportation Project
Projected Fundable
Transportation Project
Aspirational Project

Legend
Transportation System 
Plan Project Group

D21

Arterial Improvement
Collector Improvement
Proposed Arterial
Proposed Collector
Proposed Neighborhood/Local

Intersection Improvement!

D9

D31

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

D3

D3

D13

D16
D18

D24
D24

D22

D19

D7

D12

D6

D30

D35

D4 D17
D8

D27

D33D25D15

D34
D14

X#

X#

X#

379



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 12
Pedestrian Projects

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

DRAFT 02/06/14

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

P7

P8
P9

P10

P24 P25
P27

P46

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

P35

P29

P28P33

P34

P11

P15

P17

P38

P37P36

P39

P40 P41

P42

P43

Proposed Sidewalk
Proposed Shared-Use Path
Proposed Trail

Existing Sidewalk
Existing Shared-Use Path
Existing Trail

Proposed Crossing Improvement!

Conservatively Fundable
Transportation Project
Projected Fundable
Transportation Project

X# Aspirational Project

Legend
Transportation System 
Plan Project Group

P47

X#

X#

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

P14

P19

P13 P6
P12

P22

P23

P18

P4 P3
P26

P5
P21P3

P2

P1

P44
P45

P20

P16

P30P31P32

P3

380



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 13
Biking Projects

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

B4
B14

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

B3

B11

Transportation System 
Plan Project Group

Conservatively Fundable
Transportation Project
Projected Fundable
Transportation Project

X# Aspirational Project

Proposed Bike Lane
Proposed Shared-Use Path
Proposed Shared Street

Existing Bike Lane
Existing Shared-Use Path
Existing Trail

Proposed Neighborhood Greenway
Proposed Trail

B15

X#

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

B2

B17 B10B16

B7

B13

X#

B12

B5 B6

B8

B19

B1B18

B9

381



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

Æü

Æü

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 14
Transit System and Potential 
Enhancements

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

Legend

Existing TriMet Stop!(

Existing YCTA Stop!(

Æü Park and Ride

Existing Yamhill County Transit Area (YCTA) Route
Potential Local Enhancements (See note, subject to change)

Existing TriMet Route

Potential Regional Service Enhancements (See note, subject to change)

Existing Major TriMet Stop!(

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE
Note: The Sherwood Town Center Plan identified future corridors for
potential high capacity transit (HCT) connections to the Sherwood Town
Center. Current regional transit planning efforts for the Southwest Corridor
Plan do not identify HCT connections to Sherwood. However, it is 
possible that HCT to Sherwood could be provided beyond the horizon of
this plan.

Note: Transit projects  in this TSP include enhancement to local and
regional transit service to be identified through a refinement plan.
While specific transit service enhancement locations have not been
identified, for the purposes of providing information for other
planning efforts, this map indicates corridors that could be selected for
future enhancements through further planning studies. This
information is subject to change pending future planning efforts.

382



THE PLAN: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     45 

 

 

 

 

383



46     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

(This page left intentionally blank) 

384



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     47 

THE STANDARDS 
The standards are intended to ensure that future 

development in Sherwood is consistent with the 

City’s vision for its transportation system. 

Functional Classification 
for Sherwood Streets  

Roadway design typically focuses on the safety and 

flow of motor vehicle traffic. However some streets 

have other functions that might take precedent over 

vehicle mobility, such as ensuring sidewalks or bike 

facilities are available for vulnerable users like 

children or the elderly.  

While the functional 

classification system is 

designed to serve 

transportation needs within 

the community, sometimes 

competing priorities can have 

opposing effects. For example, 

as access increases, the facility 

design dictates slower speeds, 

narrower travelways, and 

non-exclusive facilities. The 

goal of selecting functional 

classes for particular 

roadways is to provide a 

suitable balance between 

competing objectives, which 

are depicted in Figure 15. 

Figure 15 shows that as street classes progress from 

local to collector to arterial to freeway (top left 

corner to bottom right corner) the following occur: 

 Mobility Increases 

 Integration of Pedestrian and Bicycles 

Decreases 

 Access Decreases  

 Facility Design Standards Increase  

  

Figure 15: Functional Classification Matrix 

385



48     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

The City of Sherwood links functional class to road 

design standards, and this has enabled the City to 

construct uniform high-quality improvements that 

were much needed to support recent growth. 

However, the City also recognized that relying on 

this system has limitations. Functional classification 

has commonly been mistaken as a determinate for 

traffic volume, road size, urban design land use and 

various other features which collectively are the 

elements of a roadway but do not represent 

function. These factors can be outcomes of function, 

but do not define the function.  

 

Functional Classification 
Designations 

The types of roadways designated in Sherwood are 

described below. 

Principal Arterials are typically freeways and state 

highways that are access controlled and provide the 

highest level of connectivity. These routes connect 

over the longest distance (sometimes miles long) 

and are less frequent than other arterials or 

collectors. These highways generally span several 

jurisdictions and often have statewide importance 

(as defined in the State Highway Classification 

System). In Sherwood, Highway 99W is the only 

route designated as a Statewide Highway. 

Arterial streets serve to interconnect and support 

the principal arterial highway system. These streets 

link major commercial, residential, industrial and 

institutional areas. Arterial streets are typically 

spaced about one mile apart to assure accessibility 

and reduce the incidence of traffic using collectors or 

local streets for through traffic in lieu of a well place 

arterial route. Arterials are typically multiple miles 

in length and many connect to cities surrounding 

Sherwood.  

Collector streets provide both access and circulation 

within and between residential and commercial/ 

industrial areas. Collectors differ from arterials in 

that they provide more of a citywide circulation 

function, do not require as extensive control of 

access (compared to arterials), and penetrate 

residential neighborhoods, distributing trips from 

the neighborhood and local street system. Collectors 

are typically greater than 0.5 to 1.0 miles in length.  

Neighborhood routes are usually long relative to 

local streets and provide connectivity to collectors or 

arterials. Because neighborhood routes have greater 

connectivity, they general have more traffic than 

local streets and are used by residents in the area to 

get into and out of the neighborhood, but do not 

serve citywide/ large area circulation. Traffic from 

cul-de-sacs and other local streets may drain onto 

neighborhood routes to gain access to collectors or 

arterials. Because traffic needs are greater than a 

local street, certain measures should be considered 

386



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     49 

to retain neighborhood character and livability of 

these routes.  

Neighborhood traffic management measures are 

often appropriate (including devices such as speed 

humps, traffic circles and other devices). However, it 

should not be construed that neighborhood routes 

automatically get speed humps or any other 

measures. While these routes have special needs, 

neighborhood traffic management is only one means 

of retaining neighborhood character and vitality.  

Local streets have the sole function of providing 

access to immediate adjacent land. Service to 

“through traffic movement” on local streets is 

deliberately discouraged by design.  

Characteristics of Streets for each 
Functional Classification 

The design characteristics of streets in Sherwood 

were developed to meet the function and demand 

for each facility type. Because the actual design of a 

roadway can vary from segment to segment due to 

adjacent land uses and demands, the objective was 

to define a system that allows standardization of key 

characteristics to provide consistency, but also to 

provide criteria for application that provides some 

flexibility, while meeting standards. 

Under some conditions a variance to the adopted 

street cross-section may be requested from the City 

Engineer. Typical conditions that may warrant 

consideration of a variance include—but are not 

limited to—the following: 

 Infill sites 

 Innovative designs (such as shared streets 

known as “woonerfs”) 

 Severe topographic constraints 

 Existing developments and/or buildings 

that make it extremely difficult or 

impossible to meet the design standards 

The street cross sections for each facility type in the 

city can be found in the City’s Engineering Design and 

Standard Details Manual8. Streets under ODOT 

control (Highway 99W) are subject to the design 

criteria in the Oregon Highway Plan and Highway 

Design Manual. Streets under Washington County’s 

control are subject to County design standards. 

  

                                                 

8 Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual, 

Adopted July 1, 2009. 

387



50     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

Functional Classification Changes 

 Figure 16 shows the street functional classification 

system in the city, including the proposed functional 

classification of roadway extensions. Streets where 

the functional classification has changed with the 

adoption of the 2014 TSP are listed in Table 2. 

 

  

Table 2: Functional Classification Changes 

Street 
Existing 

Class 

Revised 

Class 
Comment 

Gerda 

Lane 
Collector Local 

The future Herman 

Road extension will 

replace Gerda 

Lane/Galbreath 

Drive as the collector 

facility in the area 

Galbreath 

Drive 
Collector Local 

The future Herman 

Road extension will 

replace Gerda 

Lane/Galbreath 

Drive as the collector 

facility in the area 

Herman 

Road 
Local Collector 

Herman Road will be 

rebuilt as a collector 

and extended west as 

part of the I-5 to 99W 

Connector project 

Baler Way 

(between 

Langer 

Drive and 

Century 

Drive) 

Local Collector 

Removal of the 

signal at Sherwood 

Boulevard/Langer 

Drive will shift 

demand to Century 

Drive and Baler Way 

Brookman 

Road 

(Ladd Hill 

to Hwy 

99W) 

Collector Arterial 

Brookman Road and 

the Concept Plan 

area have been 

identified as areas for 

future refinement. 

Refer to Section 9 

(The Outcome) for 

additional 

information 

388



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 16
Street Functional Classification

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Principal Arterial
Arterial
Collector
Neighborhood
Local8

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Proposed Arterial
Proposed Collector

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

*

* A potential OR 99W access point connecting to the Cedarbrook Way extension
as a collector is located within this area. The location must be at least 990 feet 
away from both Sunset Boulevard and Meinecke Road, and will be based on
transportation design standards.

Proposed Neighborhood
Proposed Local

389



52     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

Access Spacing Standards  

Access Management is a broad set of techniques that 

balance the need to provide efficient, safe and timely 

travel with the ability to allow access to the 

individual destination. ODOT and Washington 

County have clear access management policies and 

the supporting documentation to ensure that the 

highway system is managed as wisely as possible 

for the traveling public.  

Access management is the control or limitation of 

access on arterial and collector facilities to preserve 

their functional capacity. Several access 

management strategies that have been developed in 

prior plans are noted below to improve access and 

mobility in Sherwood: 

 Provide left turn lanes where warranted 

for access onto cross streets 

 Work with land use development 

applications to consolidate driveways 

where feasible 

 Meet ODOT and Washington County 

access requirements on arterials and 

collectors under their jurisdiction 

 For streets under the City’s control, 

implement the spacing standards 

established in the City Code9 

Sherwood’s minimum access spacing standards on 

locally owned streets are designated in the City 

Code10 (which takes precedence) and are listed in the 

TSP for reference purposes only: 

 Local streets – 10 feet from the point of 

curvature or 25 feet if no radius exists 

                                                 

9 Sherwood Municipal Code, Section 16.106.040.M.2. 

10 Ibid. 

 Neighborhood routes – 50 feet 

 Collectors – 100 feet 

 Arterials – 600 feet 

Access management is not easy to implement and 

requires long institutional memory of the impacts of 

short access spacing – increased collisions, reduced 

capacity, poor sight distance and greater pedestrian 

exposure to vehicle conflicts. Many of the pre-

existing driveways that do not meet access spacing 

requirements were put in when traffic volumes were 

substantially lower and no access spacing criteria 

were mandated. With higher traffic volume in the 

future, the need for access control on all arterial 

roadways is critical—the outcome of not managing 

access properly is inefficient roadways with poor 

mobility, which leads to building additional wider 

roadways to compensate for the mobility 

inefficiency. 

Traffic Calming  

Traffic calming refers to street design techniques 

used to create safer, slower residential and mixed-

use streets to mitigate the impacts of motor vehicle 

traffic volume and speed in neighborhoods and 

business districts where a greater balance between 

safety and mobility is needed. Traffic calming seeks 

to influence driver behavior through physical and 

psychological means, resulting in lower vehicle 

speeds or through-traffic volumes. Physical traffic 

calming techniques include:  

 Narrowing the street by providing curb 

extensions or bulbouts, or mid-block 

pedestrian refuge islands  

 Deflecting the vehicle path vertically by 

installing speed humps, speed tables, or 

raised intersections  

390



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     53 

 Deflecting the vehicle path horizontally 

with chicanes, roundabouts, and traffic 

circles 

Narrowing travel lanes and providing visual cues 

such as placing buildings, street trees, on-street 

parking, and landscaping next to the street also 

create a sense of enclosure that prompts drivers to 

reduce vehicle speeds. 

Determining the appropriate traffic calming 

technique will require careful thought as well as 

coordination with the Tualatin Valley Fire and 

Rescue (TVFR) as each situation is unique and there 

is no standard solution. Section F in Volume 2 of the 

TSP provides a complete list of traffic calming 

techniques and their applicability to assist in the 

decision-making process. 

Local Street Connectivity  

The aggregate effect of local street design impacts 

the effectiveness of the regional system when local 

travel is restricted by a lack of connecting routes, 

and local trips are forced onto the regional 

network11. Therefore, streets should be designed to 

keep through motor vehicle trips on arterial streets 

and provide local trips with alternative routes. Street 

system connectivity is critical because roadway 

networks provide the backbone for bicycle and 

pedestrian travel in the region. Metro’s local street 

connectivity principal encourages communities to 

develop a connected network of local streets to 

provide a high level of access, comfort, and 

convenience for bicyclists and walkers that travel to 

and among centers.  

A local connectivity plan for Sherwood is shown in 

Figure 17. It specifies the general location where 

new local streets could potentially be installed as 

nearby areas are developed or as the opportunity 

arises. The conceptual locations shown consider 

block length and access spacing requirements but do 

not necessarily reflect develop-ability due to 

topographic, environmental or manmade 

constraints. Locations identified are conceptual and 

must still go through City review to determine the 

appropriate location for a local street connection in 

the vicinity. The purpose of the 

plan is to ensure that new 

developments accommodate 

circulation between adjacent 

neighborhoods to improve 

connectivity for all modes of 

transportation.   

                                                 

11 Metro 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, Local 

Street Network Concept. 

391



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

EE

E E
EE

E

E

E

E

E E

E
E

E

E

E E

EE

E
E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E
E E

EEEEE EEE EE
E

EEE

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

EE
E

E

E

E
E

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 17
Local Street Connectivity

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Conceptual Street Connection

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

Proposed Roadway

E

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

392



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     55 

Mobility Targets 

Establishing new mobility targets for intersections in 

Sherwood will help encourage a sustainable 

transportation system by providing a metric to 

assess the impacts of new development on the 

existing transportation system. Two mobility targets 

that are commonly used by agencies include level of 

service (LOS) or volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratios. 

 LOS – A “report card” rating (grade A 

through F) based on the average vehicle 

delay 

 V/C – A ratio of how much available use 

or “how much of the pipe” is being used 

for a roadway or intersection. Values 

range from 0 to 1.0 in actual conditions but 

are sometimes expressed over 1.0 for 

projected conditions (where traffic 

demand or the amount that wants to use 

the system exceeds what can really fit in 

the system) 

Metro does not permit agencies to adopt mobility 

targets that are less restrictive (lower level of service 

or volume to capacity ratio) than the regional targets 

on facilities where the regional targets apply. In 

addition, facilities that are under the jurisdiction of 

ODOT or Washington County have precedence over 

the city target. However, for remaining 

transportation facilities in Sherwood under the 

City’s jurisdiction, the local city targets apply.  

The mobility targets are to be applied based on 

facility type and location in the following manner 

and precedence: 

 Regional—For all streets designated on the 

Arterial and Throughway Network in the 

Metro Regional Transportation Plan12, 

intersections should comply with the 

mobility targets included in the Regional 

Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP)13.  

● All streets within the Sherwood Town 

Center boundary (1.1 v/c in the 

highest p.m. peak hour and 0.99 v/c in 

the second hour). 

● All streets not in the Town Center, but 

on the Arterial and Throughway 

Network (0.99 v/c in both the highest 

and second hour in the p.m. peak 

hour). These streets include Tualatin-

Sherwood Road, Roy Rogers Road, 

Tonquin Road, Sunset Boulevard, 

Murdock Road, Oregon Street (east of 

Murdock Road), Elwert Road, Main 

Street, and Ladd Hill Road. 

                                                 

12 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, Metro, June 2010. 

13 Regional Transportation Functional Plan, Chapter 

3.08, Metro, Effective August 2010. 

393



56     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

 Other Agency—For county-owned streets 

not on the Arterial and Throughway 

Network and not within the Town Center, 

intersections should comply with the 

Washington County TSP14 (0.99 v/c in the 

highest hour in the p.m. peak and 0.90 in 

the second hour). Most county facilities are 

on the Arterial and Throughway Network, 

however. ODOT controlled streets 

(Highway 99W) outside the Town Center 

should meet the appropriate mobility 

target designated in the Oregon Highway 

Plan15 (currently 0.99 v/c for Highway 99W 

outside the Town Center in both the 

highest and second hour in the p.m. peak). 

 For city-owned streets not on the Arterial 

and Throughway Network and not within 

the Town Center, intersections should 

comply with Sherwood’s target. The city 

target for signalized, all way stop (AWSC), 

or roundabout intersections is level of 

service D or a volume to capacity ratio 

equal to or less than 0.85. The target for 

unsignalized two way stop control 

(TWSC) intersections is level of service E 

or a volume to capacity ratio equal to or 

less than 0.90. Mobility should be 

evaluated by methods approved by the 

City Engineering Department (e.g., 

Highway Capacity Manual). These 

measures shall be assessed and reported 

for the critical movement for TWSC, for 

each approach for roundabouts, and for an 

overall intersection basis for AWSC and 

signalized intersections. For all 

intersections, level of service performance 

                                                 

14 Washington County 2020 Transportation System 

Plan, Washington County, November 2003. 

15 1999 Oregon Highway Plan, OHP Policy 1F 

Revision, ODOT, Adopted December 2011. 

would first be assessed and if it is not met 

the v/c target would be considered. 

Information for both measures should be 

provided with traffic studies for the 

consideration of City staff review.  

 

Truck Routes  

Truck routes are designated in Sherwood to ensure 

trucks can efficiently travel through and access 

major destinations in the city. Efficient truck 

movement plays a vital role in the economical 

movement of raw materials and finished products. 

The designation of through truck routes provides for 

this efficient movement, while maintaining 

neighborhood livability, public safety, and 

minimizing maintenance costs of the roadway 

system.  

Truck routes should provide mobility for freight 

movement and therefor are generally located on 

facilities that are classified as mobility-focused 

corridors (collectors and arterials). These facilities 

394



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     57 

typically include design elements (such as managed 

access and sufficient lane width) to accommodate 

trucks. Such design elements, as well as signing to 

identify these routes, will help maintain freight 

movement and keep through trucks off of the local 

street system. 

Washington County identifies through truck routes 

in the Sherwood area as Highway 99W and 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road-Roy Rogers Road, as 

shown in Figure 18. In addition, ODOT has several 

designations for Highway 99W (a Statewide facility) 

related to mobility and goods movement, including: 

 National Highway System  

 National Network  

 Freight Route  

 Reduction Review Route 

These designations can limit reductions to vehicle-

carrying capacity and (under the Reduction Review 

Route designation) subjects proposed reductions to 

review (ORS 366.215). 

Washington County is currently in the process of 

updating their TSP, which is proposing the 124th 

Avenue extension as a truck route. This route would 

connect Tualatin-Sherwood Road with Tonquin 

Road and Grahams Ferry Road. 

Transportation System 
Management & Operations 

Transportation System Management and Operations 

(TSMO) is a set of integrated transportation 

solutions for improving the performance of existing 

transportation infrastructure through a combination 

of system and demand management strategies and 

programs. The Sherwood TSMO plan incorporates 

planned improvements and strategies detailed in the 

Metro Regional TSMO Plan16. 

Transportation System 
Management 

Transportation System Management (TSM) focuses 

on low cost strategies to enhance operational 

performance of the transportation system. Measures 

that can optimize performance of the transportation 

system include signal improvements, intersection 

channelization, access management (noted in prior 

section), rapid incident response, and programs that 

smooth transit operation. The most significant 

measure that can provide tangible benefits to the 

public is traffic signal system improvements since 

these directly address intersection bottleneck 

locations. 

In developing a set of improvements for Sherwood’s 

motor vehicle system, the TSP took a TSM approach, 

prioritizing low cost improvements that provide 

significant operational and safety benefits. These 

projects include traffic signal modifications, traffic 

control enhancements, or additional turn lanes. 

  

                                                 

16 2010 – 2020 Regional Transportation System 

Management and Operations Plan, Metro, June 2010. 

395



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 18
Through Truck Routes

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Through Truck Route

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Proposed Through Truck Route

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary 396



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     59 

Transportation Demand 
Management 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 

solutions encourage travelers to choose alternatives 

to driving alone in their car by providing services, 

incentives, supportive infrastructure and awareness 

of travel options. These strategies improve the 

performance of the existing system by having fewer 

vehicles on the roadway system. 

State and regional policy both call for encouraging 

and promoting transportation demand 

management. The policy of this plan calls for the 

City to support TDM. Unlike the motor vehicle, 

pedestrian, and biking projects, implementation of 

this policy does not require capital infrastructure. 

The TDM plan for Sherwood consists of: 

 Support efforts by Washington County, 

Metro and ODOT to develop productive 

TDM measures that reduce commuter 

vehicle miles and peak hour trips. The City 

currently requires preferential carpool 

parking for new development with at least 

twenty employees. 

 Encourage the development of high speed 

communication in all parts of the city (e.g., 

fiber optic). The objective would be to 

allow employers and residents the 

maximum opportunity to rely upon other 

systems for conducting business and 

activities than the transportation system 

during peak periods. Fiber optic 

broadband is currently provided through 

much of the city. 

 Encourage developments that effectively 

mix land uses to reduce vehicle trips. 

These plans may include development of 

linkages (particularly non-auto) that 

support greater use of alternative modes. 

Mixed land use projects have 

demonstrated the ability to reduce vehicle 

trips by capturing internal trips between 

land use types, encouraging walk/bike 

trips and producing shorter vehicle trips.

397



60     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE STANDARDS 

(This page left intentionally blank)

398



THE STANDARDS: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     61 

 

 

 

399



62     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE OUTCOME 

(This page left intentionally blank)

  

400



THE OUTCOME: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     63 

THE OUTCOME 
The Sherwood TSP employs a performance based 

approach, focusing on measurable outcomes of 

investments to the transportation system. The 

approach allows the City to measure the degree to 

which its investments support regional and city-

wide priorities. In this manner, the City is able to 

track how its investment decisions impact a set of 

performance objectives through 2035. While the 

performance objectives do not represent the 

complete picture, they do offer a baseline against 

which to assess how the policies, investments, and 

planning decisions made in this plan may affect the 

future.  

Tracking Performance of 
Transportation System 
Investments 

The Metro 2035 Regional Transportation Plan 

(RTP)17 identifies performance targets for the 

Portland Metropolitan region to work towards a 

multi-modal transportation system that meets the 

goals and objectives of the regional plan. These 

measures focus on “high level” area-wide trends 

based on overall strategies, rather than focusing on 

minute details of specific locations (such as an 

individual property or intersection). The intent of 

these measures is to determine if local agency 

planning efforts are consistent with making progress 

towards the overall regional strategies related to 

transportation and the region’s vision for the future. 

The performance measures include: 

                                                 

17 2035 Regional Transportation Plan, Metro, June 2010. 

Economy 

 Safety: Reduce fatalities and serious 

injuries by 50 percent. 

 Congestion: Reduce vehicle hours of delay 

(VHD) per person by 10 percent, and work 

towards meeting intersection mobility 

targets. 

 Freight Reliability: Reduce delay for truck 

trips by 10 percent. 

Environment 

 Travel: Reduce the vehicle miles traveled 

(VMT) per person by 10 percent. 

 Active Transportation: Work towards 

achieving the non-single occupant vehicle 

(SOV) mode share targets.  

401



64     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE OUTCOME 

Putting the Plan to the 
Test 

To understand how the investment decisions of the 

TSP (the projected funding of $60 million worth of 

projects), improve the performance of the 

transportation network in Sherwood, the plan’s 

transportation system improvements were 

evaluated against the performance measures to 

determine long-term trends through 2035. The 

results of the individual measures are presented in 

the following sections.  

Overall, Sherwood meets or is making progress 

towards meeting each of the performance 

requirements of the RTFP and is therefore 

consistent with regional planning requirements 

and the RTFP. 

Collision Severity is Expected to 
Remain Low 

Over the past five years of available collision data 

(between 2008 and 2012), there have been zero 

fatalities and ten serious injury-collisions within the 

city, averaging two serious injury-collisions a year. 

This equates to 1.5% of the collisions involving a 

serious injury. With investments in improved street 

crossings, multimodal facilities, and improvements 

to high collision locations, the severity of collisions 

in the city is expected to remain low.  

Progress is expected to be made 
towards Mitigating Future 
Congestion 

Regional strategies that focus on low-cost 

improvements to better manage existing 

transportation infrastructure will allow a better 

return on investment for capital expenses. The 

transportation system management and operations 

projects (which include intersection traffic control 

and intersection lane geometry) have relatively 

lower impact and lower cost than corridor widening 

projects, yet can provide efficiency benefits by 

targeting system bottlenecks (which typically are 

located at intersections).  

Vehicle Hours of Delay (VHD): The RTP objective 

envisions decreasing delay by approximately ten 

percent through 2035 (measured from an existing 

year point of 440 VHD in the evening peak hour). 

However, without transportation improvements 

beyond those that already have committed funding, 

the future trend for delay along Sherwood streets 

during the evening peak hour is expected to 

increase. The VHD is projected to triple (1,420 VHD) 

by year 2035 without additional investments to the 

transportation system, which is largely due to the 

rapid growth expected in the Sherwood area, 

including the urban reserves.  

With the $60 million worth of planned 

transportation investments, the total VHD during 

the evening peak hour would decrease to 1,250 

VHD. This reduction would not meet the overall 

target due to funding limitations, however it would 

present progress towards the targets and an 

improvement over the conditions that would exist 

without the planned projects. 

Intersection Mobility: Following a similar trend to 

the overall system VHD, intersection mobility 

would make progress towards improvement for 

year 2035 conditions with the additional 

investments. The motor vehicle project list focused 

on improving system efficiency through TSMO 

projects, which include intersection traffic control 

and lane channelization at several locations. 

Intersections that would require additional 

improvements beyond the projected $60 funding 

402



THE OUTCOME: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     65 

package are primarily located along Roy Rogers 

Road and Tualatin Sherwood Road, where 

intersection management options would be 

exhausted and additional corridor widening would 

be needed. 

Progress is Expected to be made 
Towards Reducing Freight Delay 

Like the overall system VHD, progress for reducing 

delay along freight routes is projected to occur with 

the projected $60 million funding package. Total 

delay (VHD) in year 2035 along the freight corridors 

(Highway 99W, Roy Rogers Road, and Tualatin-

Sherwood Road) is projected to decrease from 870 

VHD with only the committed investments to 780 

VHD (a 10% reduction) with the projected funding 

package. While this is an increase from present 

levels (estimated at 240 VHD), this represents 

improved progress towards meeting the target. In 

addition, widening the Tualatin-Sherwood Road 

and Roy Rogers Road arterial corridors to five lanes 

would make significant strides in reducing freight 

delay in Sherwood. 

Motor Vehicle Travel is Expected to 
Outperform the Travel Target 

While the overall distance traveled by vehicles is 

projected to increase in the future along with future 

population and employment growth, the average 

motor vehicle distance traveled per person in 

Sherwood is projected to decrease from 1.4 vehicle 

miles traveled (VMT) / capita to 1.3 VMT/capita in 

year 2035. This decrease represents a reduction of 

seven percent, which nearly meets the ten percent 

target. In general, this decrease is consistent with 

Metro’s goals related to reducing reliance on the 

motor vehicle. 

A Reduction in Single Occupant 
Vehicle Travel is expected 

Figure 19 summarizes the level of non-SOV mode 

share estimated for 2035 in comparison to the modal 

targets set in Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan 

(RTP). These non-SOV targets are aggregated by 

design type groupings and colored in Figure 19 as 

orange (45-55% target) and yellow (40-45% target). 

For each area, the 2035 non-SOV share is listed. The 

2035 non-SOV share for each zone 

is also colored to indicate the 

highest target that is satisfied 

(orange for 45-55% target, and 

yellow for 40-45% target). Based on 

the model data, it appears that the 

targets are typically achieved for 

the western areas but not met for 

areas east of Langer Farms 

Parkway. As these areas develop, a 

continued focus on multimodal 

amenities and availability of travel 

options may further reduce the 

reliance on SOV. 

403



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PAC
IFIC

EDY

SUNSET

ELW
ER

T

BA
KERBROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

MA
IN

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

OL
D H

IGH
WA

Y 9
9W

LAD
D H

ILL

WASHINGTON
TIMBREL

BA
LERSHERWOOD

ASH

Figure 19
2035 Non-SOV Share

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Town Center Boundary

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

Legend

LAN
GE

R F
AR

MS

MU
RD

OC
K

PINE

GALBREATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPOLE

Metro Gamma Model Transportation
Analysis Zones (TAZ)

Non-SOV Mode ShareTarget
45-55% Target

Non-SOV Mode Share by TAZ

 Meets 45-55% Target##%
 Meets 40-45% Target##%
 Does Not Meet 40% Target##%

55%

55%

54%

56%

53%

54%

60%

54%

55%

54%

52%

48%

37%

35%

40-45% Target

404



THE OUTCOME: 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT)     |     67 

Areas for further 
Refinement 

In addition to the investment decisions of the 2014 

Sherwood TSP, several areas have been identified 

through the TSP Update process that will need to be 

explored through 2035 and beyond. These items 

have been identified as requiring more attention and 

detail beyond the scope of a local TSP effort and/or 

the greater involvement and coordination with other 

stakeholders or agencies 

Function and Design of Brookman 
Road and Concept Plan Area 
Update 

Brookman Road is a rural corridor that sits on the 

southern edge of the Urban Growth Boundary 

(UGB). Through the Brookman Addition Concept 

Plan, it was identified that the road was needed to 

provide access to areas south of Sunset Road. The I-5 

to 99W Connector project had conceptually 

identified the “Southern Arterial” as the primary 

east-west mobility route through the area, with an 

alignment along or just south of Brookman Road. 

Since the time of those planning efforts, additional 

planning efforts in the Basalt Creek area have 

refined the eastern portion of the “Southern 

Arterial”. To establish additional clarity about the 

western portion of the facility, a coordinated 

multiagency effort is needed to determine the future 

function and general capacity and design needs for 

Brookman Road and the Southern Arterial. These 

efforts will help ensure that appropriate right of way 

can be reserved as the area is urbanized while 

providing accessibility to future development.  

In the interim, to provide for future flexibility, 

Brookman Road has been designated as an arterial 

with 5-lanes of right-of-way needed. It is recognized 

that changing the role and function of Brookman 

Road would require modifications to the Brookman 

Addition Concept Plan to determine how future 

development would occur. During the interim, 

while refinement planning has not yet completed, 

access spacing and other requirements will need to 

be evaluated on a case by case basis at the time of 

any development application. The long-term intent 

is to reevaluate the Brookman Addition Concept 

Plan in the context of the Urban Reserve designation 

to the south. The evaluation would consider the 

refinement of both the location Southern Arterial, 

and a local collector level roadway to provide access 

to the area. As the issues for the Southern Arterial 

are resolved (including the long-term alignment) 

appropriate changes to these interim designations 

should be considered. 

Highway 99W Cross-Sections 

The cross section for Highway 99W through 

Sherwood currently identifies sidewalks and bike 

lanes for the extent of the highway. Additional 

refinement to the planned location, width, and 

elements that comprise the multimodal components 

would help to address pedestrian and bicycle needs 

through the area. This process would potentially 

identify segments where it may be advantageous to 

provide multimodal facilities with more of a barrier 

from the highway and would include collaboration 

with ODOT.  

Transit Service Enhancements 

Sherwood’s location at the edge of the Portland 

Metropolitan area limits the current availability of 

transit service as a travel options. Limited route 

coverage and long headways between buses both 

challenges ridership. As further development occurs 

in the Town Center and other areas urbanize, the 

need for improving transit connectivity within the 

405



68     |     2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (05-15-14 DRAFT): THE OUTCOME 

city for residents will increase. Placeholder projects 

have been identified to provide regional connections 

to Tualatin, and to provide local transit service to 

enhance regional service.  

While it has been determined that High Capacity 

Transit (HCT) will not be provided from Portland to 

Sherwood through the current Southwest Corridor 

planning process, it is possible that HCT to 

Sherwood may be reconsidered in the long term. 

Parking Management Plan 

The City should pursue implementation of the 

parking management plan for the Sherwood Town 

Center as the opportunity arises. This will help 

ensure that development within the Town Center 

aligns with the objectives of the TSP and region as a 

whole. 

Geological Hazards 

All proposed street extensions included in this plan 

are shown with conceptual alignments. These 

conceptual street alignments represent a planning-

level illustration that street connectivity 

enhancements are needed in these areas. Before 

construction of any of the projects can begin, more 

detailed surveys will need to be undertaken to 

identify hydrological, topographical, or other 

geological constraints that could hinder the 

alignment of the planned streets. Final street 

alignments will be identified after these surveys 

have been completed. 

Bypass Route Support 

The City may consider additional policies to support 

and explore future options for potential bypass 

routes that would remove regional through trips 

from Sherwood. These policies could include 

continued support and development of previous 

regional efforts (including I-5 to 99W Connector 

projects such as the Southern Arterial and northern 

arterial components including the extension of 

Herman Road from Cipole Road to Langer Farms 

Parkway) as well as participation in future 

endeavors such as Washington County’s Westside 

Solution Study. Due to the regional nature of bypass 

routes, multi-agency coordination would be needed 

and it is not anticipated that this effort would be led 

by Sherwood.  

406



407



Project Team 
 City of Sherwood 
Julia Hajduk
Bob Galati
Brad Kilby

 ODOT
Ross Kevlin

 

 DKS Associates 
Chris Maciejewski
Garth Appanaitis
Ben Fuller

 Angelo Planning 
 Group 
Darci Rudzinski
Shayna Rehberg

          

Acknowledgements 
The 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan was
a collaborative process among various public
agencies, key stakeholders and the community.
Input, assistance and outreach by the following
helped make the Plan possible:

Citizen Advisory Team

Technical Advisory Team

A special acknowledgement goes out to all the
Sherwood residents, business owners, and visitors
who attended community meetings or submitted
comments. Your input helped make this Plan
possible.

This project is partially funded by a grant from the
Transportation and Growth Management (TGM)
Program, a joint program of the Oregon Department
of Transportation and the Oregon Department of
Land Conservation and Development. This TGM
grant is financed, in part, by federal Moving Ahead
for Progress in the 21st Century (“MAP 21”), local
government, and the State of Oregon funds.

The contents of this document do not necessarily
reflect views or policies of the State of Oregon.

408



Contents
Section A. Plan and Policy Summary Report (DKS, 2013)

Section B. Existing Conditions Technical Report (DKS, 2013)

Section C.Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report (DKS, 2014)

Section D. Project Options Technical Report (DKS, 2014)

Section E. Aspirational Project List

Section F. Traffic Calming Toolbox

Section G. Policy Code and Implementation

Section H. Compliance Checklists

Section I. Title VI Requirements

Section J. Traffic Counts

Section K. Glossary

409



(This page left intentionally blank)

410



411



(This page left intentionally blank)

 

412



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Transportation System Planning in Oregon | Page 1 

 

This report summarizes the planning documents, policies, and regulations that are applicable to the 
City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan (TSP) update (see Appendix A for a complete list). The 
City’s current TSP will serve as the foundation for the update process, upon which new information 
obtained from system analysis and stakeholder input will be applied to address changing 
transportation needs through the year 2035. Policies and requirements reviewed here will guide 
the TSP update; new strategies for addressing transportation needs and TSP recommendations will 
need to be coordinated with, and in some cases comply with, the plans, policies, and regulations 
described herein. 

Transportation System Planning in Oregon 
The Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP)1 establishes goals, policies, strategies and initiatives that 
address the core challenges and opportunities facing transportation in Oregon. These are further 
refined in the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP) and implemented through the adopted targets and 
standards in this plan.2  In addition, TSPs for cities within metropolitan planning organizations 
(MPOs) must also comply with the regional transportation plan, which is adopted to meet specific 
Federal requirements.  

Transportation System Planning in Oregon is required by state law as one of the 19 statewide 
planning goals3 (Goal 12- Transportation). The Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), OAR 660-0124, 
defines how to implement State Planning Goal 12. Specifically, the TPR requires:  

● The state to prepare a TSP, referred to as the Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP);  

● Metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) to prepare a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
that is consistent with the OTP (the Metro RTP5 applies to the City of Sherwood); and  

● Counties and cities to prepare local TSPs that are consistent with the OTP and RTP.  

The TPR directs TSPs to integrate comprehensive plan land use with transportation needs and to 
promote systems that serve statewide, regional and local transportation needs. These 
requirements aim to improve community livability by encouraging land use patterns and 
transportation systems that make it more convenient for people to walk, bicycle, use transit and 
drive less to meet their daily needs. An evaluation of how the existing TSP and implementing code 
language meet requirements of the TPR and specific recommendations for changes will be included 
in the Needs, Opportunities, Constrains and Tools Report.  

                                                           
1 Oregon Transportation Plan:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/ortransplanupdate.shtml 
2 Oregon Highway Plan:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/orhwyplan.shtml 
3 Statewide Planning Goals:  http://www.oregon.gov/LCD/goals.shtml 
4 Transportation Planning Rule:  http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS_600/OAR_660/660_012.html 
5 Metro Regional Transportation Plan:  http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=25038 

413



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Why does the City of Sherwood need an Updated TSP? | Page 2 

 

Why does the City of Sherwood need an Updated TSP? 
The City's current TSP was adopted in 2005. Since then, new requirements have been made in the 
OTP, OHP and Metro RTP.  Several regional planning efforts have also taken place since the TSP was 
adopted, and several Sherwood plans have also been updated or completed, including the Parks 
Master Plan, the Town Center Plan and concept plans for areas brought into the Urban Growth 
Boundary. The last 10+ years of regulatory, land use and transportation system changes will be 
considered in this TSP update. 

ODOT’s Transportation System Plan Guidelines6 direct TSP 
updates to address recent policy and regulatory changes, and 
calls out changes to the OTP, OHP, TPR, and federal changes 
implemented into the RTP. Since adoption of the 2005 City of 
Sherwood TSP, the OTP was updated (2006) to emphasize 
maintaining assets in place, optimizing existing system 
performance through technology and better system integration, 
creating sustainable funding, and investing in strategic capacity 
enhancements.  Policy 1F (Mobility Standards) of the OHP was 
amended in 2011 to recognize and emphasize opportunities for 
developing alternative mobility targets where such a tool better 
identifies transportation needs and solutions and better 
balances state and local community needs and objectives.  OHP 
Goal 3, Access Management, and its associated policies and 
standards were also modified in 2011, with text changes 
touching on balancing local economic development and state 
mobility needs, jurisdictional transfer agreements, and medians.   

Metro’s Regional Transportation Functional Plan7 (RTFP) 
directs how the City of Sherwood should implement the RTP 
through the TSP and land use regulations.  The RTFP codifies 
existing and new requirements that local plans must comply 
with to be consistent with the RTP. If a TSP is consistent with the 
RTFP, Metro will find it to be consistent with the RTP. 

The RTFP provides guidance on several areas including 
transportation design for various modal facilities, system plans, 
regional parking management plans and amendments to 
comprehensive plans. The following directives specifically pertain to updating local TSPs: 

                                                           
6 ODOT Transportation System Plan Guidelines:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/pages/plans.aspx 
7 Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan: 
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=274 

Oregon Transportation 
Plan (OTP) 

Oregon Highway Plan 
(OHP) 

Metro Regional 
Transportation Plan 

(RTP) 

Metro Regional 
Transportation 

Functional Plan (RTFP) 

Local Transportation 
System Plans (TSP) 

414



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Why does the City of Sherwood need an Updated TSP? | Page 3 

 

● Include regional and state transportation needs identified in the 2035 RTP along with local 
needs 

● Local needs must be consistent with RTP in terms of land use, system maps and non-SOV modal 
targets (portion of trips that are not “drive alone” in a single occupant vehicle) 

● When developing solutions, local jurisdictions shall consider a variety of strategies, in the 
following order: 

● TSMO (Transportation System Management Operations) 
● Transit, bicycle and pedestrian improvements 
● Traffic calming 
● Land use strategies in OAR 660-012-0035(2)8 
● Connectivity, including pedestrian and bicycle facilities 
● Motor vehicle capacity improvements 

● Local jurisdictions can propose regional projects as part of RTP process 

● Local jurisdictions can propose alternate performance and mobility standards, however, 
changes must be consistent with regional and statewide planning goals 

● Local parking regulations shall be consistent with the RTFP 

                                                           
8 As part of the TSP update effort, general strategies that have the potential to impact land use designations, 
densities, and design standards will be considered to meet local and regional transportation needs.  

415



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Defined? | Page 4 

 

How is the Transportation System Defined? 
The following sections summarize the state highway classifications and regional land use 
designations for areas in the City of Sherwood. This information ultimately determines the adopted 
standards and regulations that apply to state highways in the city. 

ODOT State Highway Classifications  

OHP Policy 1A (State Highway Classification System) categorizes state highways for planning and 
management decisions. In Sherwood, OR 99W (Highway 99W) is classified as a Statewide Highway, 
National Highway System (NHS), National Network, Freight Route, and Reduction Review Route. It 
is intended to provide mobility, safe and efficient, high-speed, continuous-flow operation, and 
connections between and within cities and regions in the state, including connections to larger 
urban areas and areas that are not directly served by Interstate Highways. The designations can 
limit reductions to vehicle-carrying capacity and (under the Reduction Review Route designation) 
subjects proposed reductions to review. 

State Highway Freight System: OHP Policy 1C addresses the need to balance the movement of 
goods and services with other uses.  It states that the timeliness of freight movements should be 
considered when developing and implementing plans and projects on freight routes.  OR 99W is a 
classified Freight Route and Truck Route. 

Updates to the TSP will support the existing OR 99W state classifications and will enhance the 
ability of the highway to serve in their defined functions.  

Metro Land Use Designations  

Metro’s 2040 Growth Concept9 in the RTP applies land use designations to the Portland region. The 
2040 Growth Concept is the region’s long range plan for managing growth by integrating land use 
and transportation. The concept concentrates mixed use and higher density development in areas 
of the region designated as “Centers,” “Station Communities,” and “Main Streets.” The 2040 
Growth Concept land uses are arranged in a hierarchy, with the primary and secondary land uses, 
referred to as 2040 Target Areas, as the focus of RTP investments. The hierarchy also serves as a 
framework for prioritizing RTP investments. 

Primary land uses in Sherwood include: 

● Tualatin-Sherwood Industrial Area10 

                                                           
9 Metro 2040 Growth Concept: http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=29882 
10 This area is shown on Metro’s 2040 Growth Concept Map along the SW Tualatin-=Sherwood Road corridor. 

416



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Defined? | Page 5 

 

Secondary land uses in Sherwood include: 

● The Sherwood Town Center.11 

● The “Main Streets” along SW Pine Street and SW 1st Street in Old Town. 

● The “Barbur Boulevard/Highway 99W/I 5 Corridor,” generally running down Highway 99W 
from the northeast, turning south down Sherwood Boulevard to Old Town, and then moving 
back to the northeast along Railroad Street and turning east on Oregon.12   

● “Employment Land,” generally located west of Langer Farms Parkway and north of Tualatin-
Sherwood Road, as well as an area along Highway 99W west of Cedar Brook Way. 

The remaining areas of Sherwood are designated as Neighborhood land uses. These areas have the 
lowest priority for RTP investments.  

Figure 1: Excerpt of the 2040 Metro Growth Concept Map, Land Use in the City of 
Sherwood, OR 

 

                                                           
11 As noted later in this document, the Sherwood Town Center designation and accompanying plan is 
currently being considered for local adoption. 

12 Note that this corridor designation generally follows the Southwest Corridor Plan study area, reviewed later 
in this document. 

417



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Managed? | Page 6 

 

How is the Transportation System Managed? 
State Highway Mobility Targets: OHP Policy 1F sets mobility targets for ensuring a reliable and 
acceptable level of mobility on the highway system.  The following targets are applicable to OR 
99W in Sherwood (pursuant to Policy 1F, Table 7).  These targets relate to the “peak first hour” 
(hour of the day with the most traffic) as well as the “peak second hour” (hour with the second 
most traffic during the day): 

● In the designated Town Center the mobility target indicates that the highway should operate at 
or below a volume to capacity (v/c) ratio of 1.1 during the peak first hour, and 0.99 during the 
peak second hour.  

● Outside of the Town Center, the target for OR 99W is to operate at or below a volume to 
capacity (v/c) ratio of 0.99 during the peak first and second hours.  

City and County Mobility Standards: The City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan (TSP)13 
identifies level of service (LOS) as the primary indicator of performance, measured by letter grade 
(ranging from A through F), similar to a report card rating.   The City identifies LOS D as the 
minimum performance standard for both signalized and unsignalized intersections under the city’s 
jurisdiction. In addition, the Roadway Element of the Washington County TSP sets target and 
acceptable performance measures (based on volume-to-capacity or V/C ratios) for different 
locations following Metro’s 2040 Design Types.  The V/C ratio performance measures range from 
0.9 to 0.99 depending on location and first/second peak hour of congestion. These standards are 
applied for signalized and unsignalized intersections on roadways under county jurisdiction.  

Access Management on State Highways: The Oregon Access Management Rule14 (OAR 734-051) 
attempts to balance the safety and mobility needs of travelers along state highways with the access 
and economic development needs of property and business owners. ODOT’s rule sets guidelines for 
managing access to the state’s highway facilities in order to maintain highway function, operations, 
safety, and the preservation of public investment consistent with the policies of the OHP. Access 
management rules allow ODOT to control the issuing of permits for access to state highways, state 
highway rights of way and other properties under the State’s jurisdiction 

In addition, the ability to close existing approaches, set spacing standards and establish a formal 
appeals process in relation to access issues is identified. These rules enable the State to set policy 
and direct location and spacing of intersections and approaches on state highways, ensuring the 

                                                           
13 Sherwood TSP, p. 3-22, Adopted March 2005. 
14 Access Management Rule: 
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS_700/OAR_734/734_051.html 

418



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Managed? | Page 7 

 

relevance of the functional classification system and preserving the efficient operation of state 
routes.15  

OHP Policy 3A sets access spacing standards for driveways and approaches to the state highway 
system.16  The standards are based on state highway classification and posted speed.  

Access Management on Local Roadways: The adopted City of Sherwood TSP identifies minimum 
intersection and driveway spacing standards for public roadways under the city’s jurisdiction.17  
Washington County also provides minimum access spacing requirements for County facilities.18 
Access spacing guidelines for both jurisdictions are shown in Table 1.  

Table 1: City of Sherwood and Washington County Intersection Spacing Standards 

Street Facility Maximum Spacing of 
Roadways and 

Driveways

Minimum Spacing of 
Roadways and Driveways

City of Sherwood,  [Washington County]   

Arterial 1,000 feet 600 [600]* feet 

Collector 400 feet 100 [100] feet 

All roads Require an access report stating that the driveway/ 
roadway is safe as designed meeting adequate stacking, 
sight distance and deceleration requirements as set by 
ODOT, Washington County and AASHTO. 

Note: * Direct access to County arterials shall be from collector or other arterial streets. 
 

                                                           
15 Amendments to OAR 734-051 were adopted in early 2012 based on passage of Senate Bill 1024 and Senate 
Bill 264 in the 2010 and 2011 Oregon Legislature respectively. The amendments were intended to allow more 
consideration for economic development when developing and implementing access management rules, and 
involved changes to how ODOT deals with approach road spacing, highway improvements requirements with 
development, and traffic impact analyses requirements for approach road permits.  Senate Bill 408, which 
passed in the 2013 legislative session and becomes effective January 1, 2014, is expected to result in further 
rulemaking. This bill provides new requirements for development of facility plans and directs ODOT to 
develop an access management strategy for each highway modernization or improvement project.   

16 ODOT Access Management Standards (Appendix C): 
http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/orhwyplan.shtml 
17 2005 City of Sherwood TSP, Table 8-12: Access Spacing Standards for City Street Facilities 

18 Article V: Public Facilities and Services, 501 Public Facilities and Service Requirements. 

419



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Managed? | Page 8 

 

RTP Performance targets: The Metro RTP established new performance targets (see Table 2) for 
safety, congestion, freight reliability, climate change, active transportation, sidewalk/trail/transit 
infrastructure, clean air, travel, affordability, and access to daily needs. The performance targets 
are regional goals that the updated City of Sherwood TSP should work toward achieving.  

Table 2: 2035 RTP Performance Targets 

Objective Target by 2035 

Safety 
Reduce serious injuries and fatalities in all modes of travel by 50% (vs. 
2005) 

Congestion* Reduce vehicle hours of delay (VHD) by 10% per person (vs. 2005) 

Freight reliability Reduce VHD per truck trip by 10% (vs. 2005) 

Climate change Reduce transportation greenhouse gas emissions by 40% (vs. 1990) 

Active 
transportation 

Triple walking, biking and transit mode share (vs. 2005) 

Basic infrastructure Increase by 50% access times to sidewalks, trails and transit (vs. 2005) 

Clean air Ensure 0% population exposure to at-risk levels of pollution19 

Travel Reduce vehicle miles traveled per person by 10% (vs. 2005)  

Affordability 
Reduce average household combined cost of housing and transportation 
by 25% (vs. 2000) 

Access to daily 
needs 

Increase by 50% the number of essential destinations within 30 minutes by 
bike, transit for low-income, minority, disabled pop. (vs. 2005) 

                                                           
19 The region is expected to meet the target for carbon monoxide and ozone (VOC and NOX) exposure from 
transportation sources. Carbon monoxide is estimated at 836,484 lbs/day, 29% below the regional motor 
vehicle emissions budget for 2035; Hydrocarbons (VOC) is estimated at 17 tons/day, 58% below the regional 
motor vehicle emissions budget for 2035. A regional standard for air toxics is under development. For more 
information see RTP Table 2.3 and Metro’s 2010 Air Quality Conformity 
Determination http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=6502. 

420



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Managed? | Page 9 

 

* Interim volume-to-capacity ratio (v/c) measures still apply 

In addition to supporting the performance targets, the TSP will need to incorporate transportation 
system management and operations (TSMO) into planning. The following RTP policies provide the 
foundation for TSMO in the region: 

● Use advanced technologies, pricing strategies and other tools to actively manage the 
transportation system 

● Provide comprehensive real-time traveler information to people and businesses 

● Improve incident detection and clearance times on the region’s transit, arterial and throughway 
networks 

● Implement incentives and programs to increase awareness of travel options and incent change 

RTP Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) Target: The RTP also established regional mode share 
targets that are intended to be goals for cities and counties to work toward as they implement the 
2040 Growth Concept at the local level. Increases in walking, bicycling, ridesharing and transit 
mode shares will be used to demonstrate compliance with per capita travel reductions required by 
the state Transportation Planning Rule. The following modal targets apply to RTP land uses in 
Sherwood: 

● Town Centers and Corridors: Non-SOV (non-drive alone) modal target of 45 to 55 percent 

● Industrial areas, Employment areas and Neighborhoods: Non-drive alone modal target of 40 to 
45 percent 

As required by the RTP and the TPR, jurisdictions within the Metro region must adopt policies and 
actions that encourage a shift towards non-SOV modes. The Metro Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle 
(SOV) Target Actions Study summarizes the required non-SOV strategy requirements for local 
jurisdictions to implement: 

● Adopt 2040 modal targets in TSP policies 

● Adopt street connectivity plans and implementing ordinances 

● Adopt maximum parking ratios to implement the parking requirements of Title 2 of the Urban 
Growth Management Functional Plan 

● Adopt transit strategies, including planning for adequate transit facilities and service; 
pedestrian facility planning and infrastructure that support transit use; location and design of 
buildings in transit zones that encourages transit use; and adoption of a transit system map, 
consistent with Metro requirements. 

421



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
How is the Transportation System Managed? | Page 10 

 

The following measures are additional strategies to be considered in the City of Sherwood TSP 
update:20 

● Continue to require transportation-efficient development through efforts to meet density and 
other land use targets in centers and corridors as part of compliance with Metro’s RTFP and 
related requirements. 

● Construct bicycle and pedestrian improvements, consistent with state, federal and local 
government requirements. Local governments and Metro should prioritize improvements that 
enhance connectivity of the bicycle and pedestrian system and access to transit. 

● Continue to support TriMet and other transit agencies in providing frequent, reliable and 
comprehensive transit service, and local implementation of pedestrian and bicycle 
infrastructure to improve access to transit. Credit local jurisdictions with efforts to support 
transit agencies in these efforts. 

● Support and encourage efforts to implement employer-based transportation demand 
management (TDM) strategies that reduce reliance on single occupant motor vehicles. 
Coordinate with employers even in areas where the formation of transportation management 
associations (TMAs) that have organized TDM plans is not required. 

● Encourage and assist in implementing parking cash-out programs or other techniques to 
eliminate employer subsidies for parking. Consider requiring local governments to eliminate 
free employee parking and provide informational materials and technical assistance to 
employers interested in implementing such programs. 

● Support and coordinate Safe Routes to School programs and projects. Local jurisdictions and 
Metro should support and help coordinate these efforts through project funding and technical 
assistance. 

Major Improvements: OHP Policy 1G requires maintaining performance and improving safety by 
improving efficiency and management before adding capacity.  The intent of policy 1G and Action 
1G.2 is to ensure that major improvement projects to state highway facilities have been through a 
planning process that involves coordination between state, regional, and local stakeholders and the 
public, and that there is substantial support for the proposed improvement. 

Off-System Improvements: OHP Policy 2B establishes ODOT’s interest in improvements on local 
roads that maintain or improve safety and mobility performance on state roadways, and supports 
local jurisdictions in adopting land use and access management policies. The TSP development will 
consider existing and future land use patterns, access management, and implementation measures.  

                                                           
20 From Metro’s 2005 non-SOV Target Actions Study, Evaluation of Potential Measures for Achieving Modal 
Targets. 

422



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 11 

 

Traffic Safety: OHP Policy 2F identifies the need for projects in the state to improve safety for all 
users of the state highway system through engineering, education, enforcement, and emergency 
services. One component of the TSP is to identify existing crash patterns and rates and to develop 
strategies to address safety issues.  Proposed improvements will aim to reduce the vehicle crash 
potential and/or improve bicycle and pedestrian safety by providing upgraded facilities that meet 
current standards. 

Alternative Passenger Modes: OHP Policy 4B, Action 4B.4 requires that highway projects 
encourage the use of alternative passenger modes to reduce local trips. The TSP will develop ways 
to support and increase the use of alternative passenger modes to reduce trips on highways and 
other facilities.  This will include improvement to bicycle and pedestrian facilities and consideration 
of transit movement along roadways. 

Improvements on State Highways: The Highway Design Manual21 (HDM) provides uniform 
standards and procedures for ODOT and is in general agreement with the 2001 American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) A Policy on Geometric Design 
of Highways and Streets. Some key areas where guidance is provided are the location and design of 
new construction, major reconstruction, and resurfacing, restoration or rehabilitation (3R) projects. 
The HDM should be used for all projects on OR 99W to determine design requirements, including 
the maximum allowable volume to capacity ratios for use in the design of highway projects. 

Other Background Information for the TSP Update 
The following sections summarize additional background information or guidance documents that 
will be used in updating the City of Sherwood TSP.  

Projects to be considered in Future Transportation Analysis 

Several of the documents reviewed identified transportation improvement projects that will be 
considered in future transportation analysis in Sherwood. The projects are listed below, under the 
documents in which they are found, and include: 

2010-2013 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program22  (STIP) projects: 

● Pavement preservation on OR-99W from Tualatin River Bridge to Sunset Boulevard. 

● Traffic Signal Modernization on OR-99W from milepost 14.66 to 19.92. 

● Cedar Creek/Tonquin Trail: Roy Rodgers Road, Bicycle trail construction to better accommodate 
pedestrian access. 

                                                           
21 ODOT Highway Design Manual: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/ENGSERVICES/hwy_manuals.shtml 
22 ODOT STIP: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/STIP/ 

423



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 12 

 

● Traffic operation improvements: Upgrade traffic signal systems and install video detection 
system on various Highways.  

Metro RTP: Needed improvements were identified along Metro Mobility Corridor #20, Tigard to 
Sherwood and Sherwood to Newberg.  Investment strategies prioritize the following: 

Near-term (1-4 years) 

System and demand management along mobility corridor and parallel facilities for all 
modes of travel  

Address arterial connectivity and crossings  

Complete mobility corridor refinement plan. 

Complete alternatives analysis for high capacity transit (HCT) corridor.  High capacity 
transit, as defined by Metro is “any form of public transit that has an exclusive right of way, 
a non-exclusive right of way or a possible combination of both. High capacity transit 
vehicles make fewer stops, travel at higher speeds, have more frequent service and carry 
more people than local service transit such as typical bus lines. High capacity transit 
includes options such as light rail, commuter rail and bus rapid transit.”23 

Complete land use planning of HCT corridor as part of HCT System Expansion Policy. 

Complete gaps and make crossing improvements in the sidewalk and bike network. 

Implement the Tigard OR 99W Corridor Improvement and Management Plan. 

Medium-term (5-10 years) 

Complete gaps in the arterial network. 

Intersection improvements, consistent with refinement plan. 

Coordinate TSM/TDM strategies. 

Implement the Tigard OR 99W Corridor Improvement and Management Plan. 

Long-term (10-25 years) 

Implement the Tigard OR 99W Corridor Improvement and Management Plan. 

TriMet Transit Investment Plan24 (TIP):  Sherwood is served by TriMet bus lines 93 (local service 
between Sherwood and Tigard via OR 99W) and 94 (weekday service between Sherwood and 

                                                           
23 Defining high capacity transit, http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=28462  

24 TriMet Transit Improvement Plan: http://trimet.org/tip/index.htm 

424



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 13 

 

Tigard and express service between Tigard and Portland City Center).25 TriMet’s Transit Investment 
Priorities (TIP) program is the organization’s roadmap for investments in bus and rail service, capital 
projects and customer information, as well as financial stability and partnerships over the next five 
years. Over the long term, TIP priorities are to:  

1. Build the Total Transit System - Safe, secure trips on frequent, reliable and convenient 
service, easy access to transit, amenities at stops and stations, and clear customer 
information. 

2. Expand high-capacity transit - Invest in MAX Light Rail, Commuter Rail, Bus Rapid Transit  
and Streetcar service along key corridors to connect Regional Centers. 

3. Expand Frequent Service - Add to TriMet’s network of bus lines that run every 15 minutes 
or better, every day. 

4. Improve local service - Work with local jurisdictions to improve transit service in specific 
local areas. 

Once existing Frequent Service lines have been restored to a basic level of 15-minute or better 
service seven days a week, TriMet will work toward expanding the number of bus lines that are 
included in Frequent Service and extending service on current lines. The extension of Line 12 – 
Barbur/Sandy from Durham Rd to Sherwood is a Tier 3 Priority for Frequent Service expansion, 
based upon criteria of ridership productivity, transit/pedestrian friendly streets, density of transit-
dependent population, RTP designation, relationship to existing or proposed high-capacity transit, 
land use connectivity, and transportation demand management.  

Tualatin-Sherwood Road Improvements: Tualatin-Sherwood Road between Adams Avenue and 
Borchers Drive currently experiences heavy traffic congestion, primarily during peak travel hours. In 
addition, this section of roadway intersects with OR 99W which is also heavily traveled. The 
Tualatin-Sherwood (Adams to Borchers) project26 funded by Washington County through Major 
Streets Transportation Improvement Program (MSTIP) proposes to make needed enhancements to 
this section of roadway in order to improve traffic circulation in the area, address safety for all 
modes of transportation and accommodate existing and future capacity needs. 

                                                           
25 TriMet service changes became effective September 1, 2013. New Line 93-Tigard/Sherwood runs between 
Sherwood and the Tigard Transit Center. It serves all stops and run weekdays and weekends. Line 94-Highway 
99W/Sherwood runs weekdays between Sherwood and downtown Portland from approximately 5:45 a.m. to 
7:30 p.m. The line no longer serves Tigard Transit Center and does not run weekends. 
http://trimet.org/alerts/service-change/index.htm 

26 Washington County link: http://www.co.washington.or.us/LUT/TransportationProjects/tualatin-sherwood-
adams-to-borchers.cfm 

425



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 14 

 

In addition to the planned road improvements through the MSTIP project, the county also has plans 
to implement the second phase of an Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) upgrade on Tualatin-
Sherwood Road.  ITS helps improve traffic flow by adapting traffic signals in real time as traffic 
conditions change.  Phase 1 upgraded the signals between Teton Avenue and Interstate 5 in 2011.  
Phase 2 would upgrade the signals between Teton Avenue and Highway 99W beginning in 2013. 

Sherwood Capital Improvement Plan: Sherwood’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes 
planned improvements based on current needs and priorities of the City.  The CIP includes planned 
allocation of funds for projects through year 2018 in transportation, storm, sanitary, water, and 
general construction.  Construction of projects in future years is subject to funding.  The following 
transportation projects and year of planned budget allocation are currently included in the CIP:  

Cedar Brook Way Analysis (2013/2014) 

Adams Avenue North Construction (2013/2014) 

Kruger-Elwert/Hwy 99W Design and Construction (2014/2015, 2015/2016) 

Oregon St/Tonquin Rd (2016/2017) 

Pine St Phase 2 (2014/2015) 

Sherwood Town Center Plan: The draft Town Center Plan, once adopted, will update the 
comprehensive plan and established a vision and implementing strategies for growth and 
improvement in an area designated as the city’s Town Center. The plan includes recommendations 
for “complete streets” along Langer Drive and Sherwood Boulevard, as well as specific 
improvements to the bicycle and pedestrian system.27 The plan also has updated policies and 
strategies pertaining to parking and transit.  

The recommended bicycle and pedestrian improvements are shown on Map 2 of the Town Center 
Plan and include:  

General bicycle/pedestrian improvements throughout central Old Town Sherwood (#1) 

Neighborhood Greenway improvements on Gleneagle Drive and 10th Street (#11) 

Shared use path on east side of Sherwood Blvd. between Langer Drive and Old Town (#12) 

Shared use path connecting Langer Dr. and Trumpeter Dr. (#13) 

                                                           
27 http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/sherwoodtowncenter/page/sherwood-town-center-plan 

426



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 15 

 

Neighborhood Greenway improvements on Holland Lane  (#16) 

Neighborhood Greenway improvements on Baler Way (#17) 

Shared use path on north side of Hopkins Elementary School (#18) 

Shared use path on east side of Hopkins Elementary School (#20) 

Shared use path on east side of Sherwood Middle School (#21) 

Neighborhood Greenway improvements on Oregon Street (#22) 

The Town Center Plan lays out policies and strategies to guide future planning and development 
within the town center. Town center goals, policies, and strategies will be incorporated into the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

Policy 8 of the Town Center Plan reads: “The City will balance the need for vehicular mobility within 
and adjacent to the Town Center with the other transportation and land use goals and priorities 
identified in the Town Center Plan.” Strategies relevant to this policy include:  

Through the TSP update, examine changes to the City’s OR 99W Capacity Allocation 
Program (CAP) to ensure that it doesn’t restrict future growth that supports and 
implements the Town Center vision and recommendations. (Strategy 8.1) 

Through the TSP update, identify strategic road capacity improvement projects to address 
congestion within and adjacent to the Town Center. Necessary transportation 
improvements will be analyzed and evaluated for how they support a vibrant walkable 
Town Center. (Strategy 8.2) 

Through the TSP update, establish transportation mobility targets for new development 
within and adjacent to the Town Center that are appropriate for a Town Center context and 
capture the community’s priorities. (Strategy 8.3) 

The City will work with the County, ODOT, and local stakeholders to enhance vehicular and 
pedestrian access from the Town Center to developments adjacent to the Town Center. 
(Strategy 8.4) 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan (2013): A three pronged network of trails will eventually connect 
Tualatin, Sherwood and Wilsonville. One section has been completed within Metro’s Graham Oaks 
Nature Park in Clackamas County. The northern prong of the trail connects with the Westside Trail 
at a proposed ped/bike bridge over the Tualatin River near King City. The western prong passes 
through the City of Sherwood as the Cedar Creek Trail.  

427



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 16 

 

The Trail Master Plan identifies a conceptual alignment alternative, trail type, and recommended 
improvements and opportunities across several jurisdictions. Recommended improvements and 
opportunities within the City of Sherwood can be found on Tile Maps 7-13 in the plan; selected 
items are listed below with reference numbers: 

Trail alignment could follow existing unimproved roadway; final alignment to be 
determined in coordination with Sherwood’s Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan 
(which includes a future east-west road in this area) (7D) 
Widen sidewalk on Oregon Street’s south side between Tonquin Road and Murdock Road 
to accommodate trail (8B) 
Widen sidewalk on SW and southeast (SE) sides of roundabout to accommodate trail (8C) 
City of Sherwood to coordinate shared roadway treatments on Railroad Street (including 
wayfinding) (8L) 
City of Sherwood to conduct further analysis to determine specific trail alignment in this 
area; trail design to be based on guidance provided in the Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan 
specific to the Cedar Creek corridor (9E) 
Proposed trail/wildlife undercrossing of Pacific Highway/Oregon 99W (subject to ODOT 
approval) (9G) 
Potential to create future trail/wildlife undercrossing of Edy Road (10D) 
Potential motorist sight distance issues on horizontal curve of Roy Rogers Road; 
signalization proposed to provide protected bicyclist/pedestrian crossings (10E) 
Widen existing sidewalk on east side of Roy Rogers Road to accommodate trail (vegetation 
removal necessary) (11A) 
Widen existing bridge over Chicken Creek to accommodate trail, or construct cantilevered 
bridge or independent structure immediately east of Roy Rogers Road; retaining walls/bank 
stabilization necessary immediately north and south of creek crossing (11B) 
Trail alignment to follow Oregon Street’s east side between Tonquin Road and Tualatin-
Sherwood Road; alignment to be sited immediately east of power line corridor (vegetation 
removal necessary in several locations); property easements/acquisitions could occur as 
part of Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan implementation. (12A) 
Use existing signalized intersection of Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Oregon Street; 
potential need to relocate existing signal poles and utility boxes on intersection’s SE and 
northeast (NE) corners to accommodate trail (12E) 
Tualatin’s Transportation System Plan proposes widening Cipole Road to three vehicle 
travel lanes, plus bike lanes and sidewalks; trail alignment to follow Cipole Road’s west side 
between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Pacific Highway/OR 99W; trail should be constructed 
in lieu of a sidewalk on the roadway’s west side (13A) 

428



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 17 

 

Vegetation removal and utility pole/mailbox relocation necessary in several locations to 
accommodate future Cipole Road widening and trail development between Tualatin-
Sherwood Road and Herman Road (13B) 
Use existing at-grade railroad/roadway crossing at Cipole Rd; upgrade crossing treatments 
on roadway’s west side (in tandem with future roadway widening) to accommodate trail 
(13D) 

The Trail Master Plan also describes design guidelines for shared use paths, shared use paths 
adjacent to roadways, on street facilities, trail-roadway intersections, grade separated crossings, 
and special design requirements such as Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) requirements for 
trails within powerline corridors, Westside Express Service (WES) commuter rail, trail features and 
signage, educational elements, and environmentally sensitive construction. The following table 
describes plan actions for which Sherwood is responsible. 

Table 3: Tonquin Ice Age Trail Plan Actions 

Segment Responsibility Funding Operation/ 
Maintenance 

Issues Actions Responsibility 
for Actions 

Immediately 
west of Tonquin 
Road/OregonSt
reet intersection 
to immediately 
north of Park 
Street (Old 
Town 
Sherwood) 

Sherwood To be 
determined in 
coordination 
with Metro 
and ODOT. 

Sherwood Sherwood will work with 
Metro and ODOT to 
determine if 2014-15 
Regional Flex Funds 
award for Cedar Creek 
trail will include design and 
construction of this 
segment. Need to acquire 
easement/land for trail 
from 2 land owners. 

Refine cost 
estimates for 
Cedar Creek trail 
project to see if 
the award amount 
will cover 
proposed 
improvements. 
Sherwood and 
Metro to 
determine 
acquisition 
strategy. 

Sherwood, Metro, 

ODOT 

Immediately 
north of Park 
Street to 
immediately 
south of Hwy 99 

Sherwood Design and 
construct.  

Sherwood None Sherwood will 
design and 
construct by 2016 

Sherwood with 
involvement of 
Metro and 
partners as 
needed. 

Immediately 
south of 
Highway 99 to 
Roy Rogers 
Road, including 
Roy Rogers 

Sherwood To be 
determined in 
coordination 
with Metro 
and ODOT. 

Sherwood Sherwood to work with 
Metro and ODOT to 
determine scope of work 
for this segment pursuant 
to 2014-15 Regional Flex 
Funds award for Cedar 
Creek trail. Hwy 99 

Public 
involvement 
needed to 
determine 
alignment in this 
area. Sherwood 
may need to 

Sherwood 

Sherwood, ODOT 

Sherwood, ODOT 
with support of 
Metro and 

429



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 18 

 

Segment Responsibility Funding Operation/ 
Maintenance 

Issues Actions Responsibility 
for Actions 

intersection) undercrossing not 
included in 2014-15 
Regional Flex Funds 
award. 

acquire land for 
trail. Sherwood 
will apply in 2012 
for ODOT/ STIP 
Enhance funds to 
design/construct 
Hwy 99 
undercrossing. 

partners. 

Roy Rogers 
Road north to 
Tualatin River 
National Wildlife 
Refuge 
trailhead 

Sherwood or 
Washington 
County 

None Sherwood may 
consider role in 
owning/building/o
perating and 
maintaining once 
the Cedar Creek 
portion of the trail 
is built. 

Segment is in 
unincorporated 
Washington County, no 
obvious trail provider. 
Need to acquire land from 
one land owner. 

Sherwood and 
Washington 
County determine 
ownership and 
O&M agreements. 

 

Sherwood, 
Washington 
County 

Immediately 
east of Tonquin 
Road/Oregon 
Street 
intersection to 
immediately 
north of 
Tualatin-
Sherwood 
Road. 

Sherwood None Sherwood Funding not identified for 
design/construction. Need 
to acquire land from 8 land 
owners between Tonquin 
Rd. and Oregon St. 

Sherwood to 
identify funding 
strategy Include 
trail in Sherwood’s 
TSP update. 
Update trail 
description in 
Metro’s 2035 
RTP, including the 
Financially 
Constrained list. 
Sherwood to 
acquire trail. 

City of Sherwood 

 

Immediately 
north of 
Tualatin-
Sherwood Road 
to immediately 
west of Cipole 
Road 

Sherwood None Sherwood Trail is recommended on 
north side of road in Right 
of Way. Funding not 
identified for 
design/construction 

Include trail in 
Sherwood and 
Washington 
County TSP 
updates. Update 
trail description in 
Metro’s 2035 
RTP, including the 
Financially 
Constrained list. 
Sherwood to 
identify funding 
strategy 

Sherwood, 
Tualatin, 
Washington 
County, Metro 

430



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 19 

 

 

Approved Ordinances:  Since its adoption, the TSP has been amended by ordinance several times 
by City Council.  Amendments have included modifications to support adopted concept plans for 
urban growth boundary (UGB) expansion areas and reclassification of local roadways to support 
development. The following is a brief summary of land use amendments and the associated 
adopted transportation system changes that will need to be incorporated into the plan 
development (and alternatives analysis) in the updated TSP document. 

Area 59.28  Area 59, bordered on Elwert and Edy Road, is an area that was designated by 
Metro and brought into the Sherwood UGB in 2002. City Council adopted a concept plan in 
April 2006. In January 2007, the Council adopted amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
to implement the concept plan, including amendments to TSP Figure 8-1 Functional Class.  
Classifications of Elwert and Handley (Arterial and Collector, respectively), are consistent 
with the Council amendments, but proposed local roadways are not reflected in the current 
TSP’s.   

Brookman Road Concept Plan.29 Brought into the UGB in 2002, the city adopted the 
Brookman Road Concept Plan in 2009. The project identified future land uses and public 
facilities, including parks and open space, civic uses, and transportation corridors. In order 
to implement the plan, amendments to the comprehensive plan, zoning code, and public 
facility plans are needed. The Brookman area will remain in unincorporated Washington 
County until voter-approved annexation brings it into the city.  

Adams Avenue North Concept Plan.30  Metro also added this 33 acres north of Tualatin-
Sherwood Road Metro as part of the 2002 regional UGB expansion. Metro’s primary 
purpose was to allow for development of a road connection (Adams Avenue) between OR 
99W and SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road. The North Adams Area was annexed in November 
2009 and is zoned primarily Light Industrial with a portion of the area along 99W-zoned 
Office Commercial. The City's 2005 Transportation System Plan (TSP) identifies a new 
collector street through portions of land identified in the Metro Ordinance. The TSP 
identifies this project as “Adams Avenue, Tualatin-Sherwood Road to Home Depot” (Table 
8-11, City Street Projects, ID 2). This portion of Adams Avenue will complete a direct 
connection between OR 99W and Old Town, an area where significant urban renewal 
investment has occurred and is planned. 

                                                           
28 http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/page/area-59 

29 http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/page/brookman-road-concept-plan 

30 http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/page/adams-avenue-north-concept-plan 

431



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 20 

 

Sherwood Cannery Square.31 The Cannery Planned Unit Development (PUD) is located at 
the site of the former cannery in Old Town near the railroad tracks. The PUD proposal 
included a TSP amendment to change the classification of Columbia Street from a collector 
to a local street, an action City council approved in 2010. The proposal includes a mixed-use 
development with up to 10 construction phases and includes construction of new streets, 
public plaza, retail, office and residential. Public streets will be constructed prior to 
construction of development phases.  While some improvements associated with the 
project have already been completed, the following transportation projects related to the 
site (that are not yet completed) have the potential to impact traffic circulation in the Old 
Town area:   

Construct improvements to improve the operations of Pine Street/1st Street to 
meet City performance standards and mitigate queuing impacts at the Pine Street 
railroad crossing. This shall be accomplished by implementing a modified 
circulation for the downtown streets that includes: 

o Install a diverter for south-westbound on 1st Street at Ash Street or Oak 
Street to require vehicles travelling towards Pine Street to divert to 2nd 
Street. 

o Remove one side of on-street parking Ash Street-2nd Street or Oak Street-
2nd Street to provide two 12-foot travel lanes from the diverter to Pine 
Street. Convert to one-way traffic flow approaching Pine Street for this 
segment. 

o Install an all-way stop at Pine Street/2nd Street. Stripe the south-
westbound approach of 2nd Street to have a left turn lane and a shared 
through/right-turn lane. 

o Install traffic calming measures on 2nd Street southwest of Pine Street to 
manage the impact of the added traffic. 

•  

Tonquin Employment Area.  The Tonquin Employment Area was brought into the UGB in 
2002 and the City adopted a concept plan in 2010 that amended the Comprehensive Plan, 
Community Development Code, and TSP.  Amendments to the TSP include a proposed east-
west collector, the extension of SW Blake Street (as proposed in the Southwest Tualatin 
Concept Plan) through the area and connecting to Oregon Street.  The proposed extension 
of SW 124th Avenue south was adopted as a proposed Arterial.  

                                                           
31 http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/cannery-pud 

432



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 21 

 

Cedar Brook Way.  In 2012 the functional classification of SW Cedar Brook Way was 
changed from a local to a collector road connecting SW Elwert Road to SW Handley Street. 
The TSP amendment also identified one connection to SW Pacific Hwy along the extension, 
the location of which was to be determined at a later date. 

Actions or Strategies to be considered in Updating the TSP 

Several of the regional and local documents reviewed for this project identified transportation 
actions or strategies that will be considered in updated the City of Sherwood TSP.  Relevant actions 
or strategies are summarized below. 

Metro State of Safety Report (2012):  It is the Portland Metro region’s adopted goal to reduce the 
number of pedestrians, bicyclists, and automobile occupants killed or seriously injured on the 
region’s roadways by 50% by 2035, compared to a 2005 baseline. The State of Safety report 
indicates that Sherwood has a lower rate of injury crashes and fatal crashes than the region, and is 
ranked 24th in the region for serious crashes per million residents (Tables 4-5 and Figure 1).  

Table 4: Number of Automobile Crashes32 

Jurisdiction Annual 
Crashes 

Fatal 
Crashes 

(per 
capita) 

Injury A Injury B Injury C All Injury Fatal/Incapac 
(per capita) 

Sherwood 111 0.3 1 14 30 45 1.3 

METRO 18263 NA 481 1907 5174 7562 532 

 

Table 5: Crashes per million residents33 

Jurisdiction Population All 
injury 
(per 

million) 

Fatal/incapac. 
(per million) 

Ped. 
Injury 

Crashes 
(per 

Million) 

Ped 
Fatal/Incapac. 
(per million) 

Bike 
Injury 

Crashes 

Bike 
Fatal/
Incap 

Sherwood 18,207 2453 73 54.9 18.3 91.5 0.0 

METRO 1,481,118 5106 359 190.6 40.7 230.9 27.2 

                                                           
32 Crash rates were determined per capita.  See p. 15 of the 2012 Metro State of Safety Report, 
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=42790, under “Related Documents.  

33 2012 Metro State of Safety Report, pp. 16, 42, 63  

433



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 22 

 

 

Figure 1: Serious Crash Rate by City34 

 

Section 10 – Findings and Strategies states:  

Arterial roadways comprise 59% of the region’s serious crashes, 67% of the serious 
pedestrian crashes, and 52% of the serious bike crashes, while accounting for 40% of 
vehicle travel.  
Arterials have the highest serious crash rate per road mile and per VMT. 

The safety report lists high-level strategies for implementation, several of which are relevant to this 
TSP update, including: 

Policies that reduce the need to drive, and therefore limit vehicle-miles travelled 
Strategies to reduce the prevalence of speeding and aggressive driving on surface streets 
Revisions to state, regional, and local mobility standards to consider safety as equally 
important, at a minimum, as vehicular capacity 
A focus on crosswalk and intersection lighting where pedestrian activity is expected 
Policies to improve the quality and frequency of pedestrian crossings on arterials and multi-
lane roadways 
A focus on safe cycling facilities and routes, particularly in areas where serious crashes are 
occurring 

Draft Regional Active Transportation Plan (August 2013): The need for a regional Active 
Transportation Plan (ATP) was identified as a follow up activity in the 2035 RTP.  A regional 
Stakeholder Advisory Committee composed of staff from cities and counties and advocacy groups 
has been working to develop a strategy to complete and expand regional pedestrian and bicycle 
networks, including way to integrate non-motorized networks with transit and increase 

                                                           
34 2012 Metro State of Safety Report, p. 16 

434



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 23 

 

competitiveness for active transportation-related funding. The Ice Age Tonquin Trail and Western 
Trail and are shown as Regional Bicycle Parkways and Regional Pedestrian Parkways on the 
recommended Regional Bicycle Network and Regional Pedestrian Network.35  While this document 
will remain a draft until it is proposed for adoption as a component of the RTP in July 2014, the TSP 
update will take into consideration design guidelines, policies and implementation actions related 
to trails and proposed improvements in Sherwood, where transportation system alternatives 
impact these facilities.  

Southwest Corridor Plan: The Southwest Corridor Plan addresses the Barbur Boulevard/Highway 
99W/I-5 corridor between Portland and Sherwood Town Center (see Figure 2.) The plan is being 
developed through a partnership of the cities of King City, Portland, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, 
Clackamas and Multnomah counties, ODOT, TriMet, and Metro. The intent of this project is to let 
the local plans and aspirations help shape and inform ultimate improvements so that all potential 
projects and ideas are screened through a local lens.  

A brief overview of the project is summarized below: 

2009 – The Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPAC) and the Metro 
Council designated the corridor as the next regional priority for high capacity transit (HCT) 
expansion.  Based on existing traffic and transit counts, the Southwest Corridor shows the 
greatest ridership projections for potential HCT corridors in the region.   

December 2010 – Metro received a $2 million grant from the Federal Transit 
Administration to analyze alternatives for improving transit in the corridor.  

Spring 2012 – Metro completed a public involvement process  to determine a vision and 
goals for the Southwest Corridor Plan. The outcomes of this process include: 1) bus rapid 
transit, light rail, roadway expansions/new roadways, rapid streetcar, and increasing local 
bus capacity are all transportation alternatives that must be included in the analysis. 2) 
Opportunities to expand the bicycle network and improve pedestrian mobility will also be 
studied. 

July 2013 – The Southwest Corridor Plan Steering Committee recommended transit 
alternatives for further study along with a set of potential roadway, bicycle, pedestrian, 
parks, trails and natural area investments that support land use, transportation and 
community-building goals in the corridor as part of the Southwest Corridor Shared 
Investment Strategy. 

                                                           
35 http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=39005 

435



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 24 

 

As part of the Shared Investment strategy, the transit recommendation directs TriMet to work with 
Southwest corridor jurisdictions and stakeholders to develop the Southwest Service Enhancement 
Plan.  Plan implementation is intended to provide transit service that connects key Southwest 
corridor locations quickly and reliably to one another and to a potential high capacity transit line.  
Locations for future transit improvements include downtown Sherwood; however, the Steering 
Committee removed a high capacity transit (HCT) connection between Tigard and Sherwood on 
Highway 99W from further consideration to avoid impacts to auto and freight movement as well as 
to commercial 

Recommended Roadway and Active Transportation projects in Sherwood are listed below and 
include the project reference number, which are keyed to maps in the Steering Committee 
Recommendation:36  

Arrow Street (Herman Road) - Build 3 lanes with sidewalks and bike lanes. Construct new 
road to collector standards (Project 1062). Build new 3 lane roadway with stream crossing 
and with bike lanes and sidewalks from Langer Farms Parkway Phase 2 to Gerda 
Lane/Galbreath Drive. 

Town Center Signal & Intersection Improvements (Downtown Sherwood) – Project 1068)- 
Improve intersection at Edy & Borchers; remove traffic signal at Baler/Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road; on Sherwood Boulevard remove traffic signal at Langer and disallow left turns from 
Langer to Sherwood, and add traffic signal at Century Drive. 

Tualatin-Sherwood Rd. (Langer Parkway to Teton Ave.) - Widening to 5 lanes with ped./bike 
(Project 1154). Widen from 3 to 5 lanes with bike lanes and sidewalks from Langer Parkway 
to Teton Avenue. 

Oregon-Tonquin Intersection & Street Improvements (Project 5020). Intersection 
improvements (consider roundabout) on Oregon at Tonquin Road; sidewalks and bike 
access through the intersection. 

99W Sherwood TC Bicycle/Ped. Bridges (Project 6042). Ped/bike under/overcrossings of 
99W at Sunset, Meinecke, Edy. Listed as a Regional Bicycle Parkway in the Regional Active 
Transportation Plan (5/9/13). 

Tonquin Trail (Project 9003). Construct multi-use trail with some on-street segments 
connecting multiple communities in Washington and Clackamas County.  Listed as a 

                                                           
36 See Steering Committee Recommendation “Attachment A,”  
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/index.cfm/go/by.web/id=35309  

436



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 25 

 

Regional Bicycle Parkway and Regional Pedestrian Parkway in the Regional Active 
Transportation Plan (5/9/13). 

Westside Trial Segments (Project 9029). Tail opportunities within easements of BPA and 
PGE for connectivity. Listed as a Regional Bicycle Parkway and Regional Pedestrian Parkway 
in the Regional Active Transportation Plan (5/9/13). 

Note that the bicycle/pedestrian and trail projects are only considered a priority where HCT is 
extended to the City of Sherwood.  Widening Tualatin-Sherwood Road (Project 1154) is considered 
“critical” in this scenario, but less so if HCT does not extend to Sherwood.    

With the first phase of the plan is completed, next steps will include implementation of the shared 
investment strategy and identifying projects to be packaged with the HCT alternative(s) for 
consideration in a Draft Environmental Impact Statement. 

I-5 to 99W Connector Project: The I-5 to 99W Connector Project37 is intended to develop long-term 
solutions to improving mobility between I-5 and OR 99W and is a collaboration between ODOT, 
Metro, Washington County, and other affected agencies and jurisdictions. 

The project identified a number of improvements to support access to 2040 land uses, address 
existing deficiencies and serve increased travel demand. One primary function of this route is to 
connect the Washington Regional Center to the cities of Tigard, Tualatin and Sherwood, as well as 
to provide access to the Tualatin/Sherwood Industrial Area and Tualatin National Wildlife Refuge. 
The corridor provides short-line heavy rail access the region from the Willamette Valley and 
connects agricultural areas to the interstate highway system in this region, while serving as a 
secondary gateway to the region.  

The study recommended a variety of transportation investments to improve the area’s road, 
transit, bicycle, pedestrian and trail networks and to distribute traffic across a network of three 
arterials so that no single route would function as a defacto “connector.” The Metro 2035 RTP 
places additional conditions on the Three Arterial Corridors Alternative recommendation and 
implementation.  A map of Alternative 7 is provided in Figure 2.   

                                                           
37 http://www.i5to99w.org/ 

437



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 26 

 

Figure 2. I-5 to 99W Connector Alternative 7 (2009) 

 

Alternative 7 is based on arterial development in a set of three northern, central, and southern 
arterial corridors.  The central arterial projects are focused in Sherwood, although a proposed 
northern arterial project and area-wide projects affect Sherwood as well. 

As noted in the figure, alignments are not yet final.  The Alternative 7 recommendations that are 
relevant to Sherwood include the projects below. Cost estimates provided are conceptual costs in 
2008 dollars. 

Northern Arterial Project 

SW Herman Road – Construct a 3-lane extension between Tualatin Road and OR 99W; $30 
million.38 

Central Arterial Projects 

                                                           
38 Since the completion of the I-5 to 99W Connector Project and Alternative 7 recommendations, the City of 
Tualatin has taken actions that impact the implementation of the project recommendations.  These actions 
include removing the Tualatin River bridge (a component of the northern arterial) from urban renewal 
funding project list.  In addition, Tualatin recently updated the City’s TSP and removed most of the northern 
arterial components from the TSP.  While improvements to the northern arterial corridor (Tualatin Road and 
Herman Road) are still included in the City’s TSP, the outcome for the “northern arterial” as a package of 
improvements to improve east-west mobility is unknown. 

438



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 27 

 

Tualatin–Sherwood Road – Widen to 5 lanes from OR 99W to SW 124th Avenue; $25 
million. 

Tualatin–Sherwood Road – Widen to 5 lanes from SW 124th Avenue to Teton Avenue; $20 
million. 

Roy Rogers Road – Widen to 5 lanes between Borchers Road and OR 99W; $5 million. 

Other Projects 

TSM / TDM – Regional trail system, bike lanes, sidewalks, and bus stops; $30 million. 

Commuter Rail – Rail extension to Sherwood; $40 million. 

SW 124th Avenue – Extend 4-5 lane roadway between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and the 
Southern Arterial; $70 million. 

The 2010-2013 STIP includes programmed funding for planning work related to the project.  The 
2035 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) includes the following components related to the I-5 99W 
Connector, including those denoted in the financially-constrained (FC) project list: 

RTP 11179 (FC) – I-5 to 99W Replacement Projects – Construct improvements consistent 
with recommendations from I-5/99W Connector process  

RTP 10598 – I-5/99W Southern Arterial Right of Way – Purchase right-of-way when all 
project conditions are met: including integration with land use plans for UGB expansion 
areas and Urban Reserves, Conducting the I-5 South Corridor Refinement Plan, including 
Mobility Corridors39 2, 3, and 20 and resolution of access between I-5 and southern arterial 
with no negative impacts to I-5 and I-205 beyond the forecasted No-Build condition, 
addressing National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)40 compliance to determine the 
preferred alignment and addressing any conditions associated with land use goal exception 
for southern arterial. 

                                                           
39 Metro has defined 24 “mobility corridors” that connect regional areas.  These corridors include the 
following linkages: Corridor 2 (Portland Central City to Tualatin), Corridor 3 (Tualatin to Wilsonville), and 
Corridor 20 (Tualatin to Sherwood and Sherwood to Newberg). 

40 For some large scale projects, agencies are required to prepared documentation known as an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) through a formalized process that demonstrates compliance with 
NEPA by showing that environmental values are integrated into the decision making process along with 
reasonable alternatives. 

439



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 28 

 

RTP 11339 I-5/99W Southern Arterial Improvements – Construct the initial 2-3 lane arterial 
phase of the Southern Arterial from OR99W to the SW 124th Ave. Extension when all 
project conditions are met: including integration with land use plans for UGB expansion 
areas and Urban Reserves, Conducting the I-5 South Corridor Refinement Plan, including 
Mobility Corridors 2, 3, and 20 and resolution of access between I-5 and southern arterial 
with no negative impacts to I-5 and I-205 beyond the forecasted No-Build condition, 
addressing NEPA to determine the preferred alignment and addressing any conditions 
associated with land use goal exception for southern arterial. 

RTP 11340 – I-5/99W Southern Arterial Improvements – Expand to 4-5 lanes to serve 
growth in the area after improvements to Tualatin-Sherwood Rd. and an improved 
connection from SW Tualatin Rd. to the I-5/Lower Boones Ferry Rd. Interchange and when 
all project conditions are met: including integration with land use plans for UGB expansion 
areas and Urban Reserves, Conducting the I-5 South Corridor Refinement Plan, including 
Mobility Corridors 2, 3, and 20 and resolution of access between I-5 and southern arterial 
with no negative impacts to I-5 and I-205 beyond the forecasted No-Build condition, 
addressing NEPA to determine the preferred alignment and addressing any conditions 
associated with land use goal exception for southern arterial.  

RTP 11342 – I-5/99W Connector Southern Arterial/I-5 Interface –Connect the Southern 
Arterial to I-5 or other surface arterials in the vicinity of the N. Wilsonville interchange 
when all project conditions are met: including integration with land use plans for UGB 
expansion areas and Urban Reserves, Conducting the I-5 South Corridor Refinement Plan, 
including Mobility Corridors 2, 3, and 20 and resolution of access between I-5 and southern 
arterial with no negative impacts to I-5 and I-205 beyond the forecasted No-Build 
condition, addressing NEPA to determine the preferred alignment and addressing any 
conditions associated with land use goal exception for southern arterial. 

City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan (1991): The City of Sherwood originally adopted the 
Comprehensive Plan II in 1991. Elements of the Plan have been periodically updated, including the 
last update in 2009. Given the original adoption date, note that some data, findings, policies, and 
strategies in the Plan are outdated. The purpose of the Plan is to guide the physical growth and 
development of the community consistent with City policy goals and State Goals and Guidelines. 
The Plan is intended to articulate the City of Sherwood's perception of what it is, what it seeks to be 
and how it will achieve its desired future.  Its aim is to preserve what is essential to its identity, 
develop what it needs to be economically and environmentally healthy and meet the needs of the 
people who contribute to its community life and make use of its land use resources. 

Chapter 6, Transportation, provides goals, policies, and strategies relevant to the City’s 
transportation system. The TSP update will need to combine transportation analysis with the 
application of the goals, objectives and policies described in this chapter.  

440



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 29 

 

The goals and policies described in this chapter are nearly identical from the 2005 Transportation 
System Plan, with the following exceptions:  

TSP Goal 1 Policy 5 is omitted from the comprehensive plan Policy 5 (“The City shall work 
cooperatively with the Port of Portland and local governments in the region to ensure 
sufficient air and marine passenger access for Sherwood residents.”) 

Comprehensive Plan Goal 3, Policy 10 is not part of the Transportation System Plan (“The 
City of Sherwood will establish a set of guidelines and standards for traffic calming 
measures to retrofit existing streets and as part of land use review.”) 

Comprehensive Plan policies will need to be made consistent with modified and new transportation 
policies developed as part of the TSP update. 

Sherwood Zoning and Development Code: The Zoning and Development Code (“code”) 
implements the City’s Comprehensive Plan by establishing zoning designations and use and other 
development regulations for the zones, as well as regulations and procedures for land division and 
application review. The following highlights code sections that address transportation-related 
requirements.  

Access Management 

Subsection .040.M of Chapter 16.106 (Transportation Facilities) addresses access management, and 
establishes required minimum spacing between driveways and intersections for local roads, 
neighborhood routes and collectors (25 feet, 50 feet, and 100 feet respectively). The subsection 
also refers to the Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual for street standards.41 Minimum 
and maximum roadway and driveway spacing standards for city arterials and collectors are 
provided in the 2005 TSP. 

Performance Standards and Targets 

As referred to earlier in this report, the 2005 TSP and Roadway Element of the Washington County 
TSP establish level-of-service standards for both signalized and unsignalized intersections under 
their jurisdiction. This report also addresses regional performance targets from the RTP and RTFP 
regarding issues such as safety, congestion, freight reliability, and active transportation that will be 
integrated into the updated TSP. 

                                                           
41 The purpose of the city’s Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual is to set standards for the 
construction of new public improvements and for the reconstruction of existing facilities to upgrade existing 
infrastructure. These standards are primarily geared towards construction design; however, where 
applicable, this engineering document will need to be consistent with, and implement, the standards that are 
proposed in the updated TSP, as well as those reflected in development code requirements.  

441



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 30 

 

These standards and targets do not need to “live” in the code, but to ensure compliance with 
performance standard requirements a traffic impact analyses (TIA) requirement should be 
established in the code. Existing code sections 16.90.030.D and 16.106.040 include general TIA 
requirements for development proposals based on the type of proposed development, whether 
they are subject to site plan review, and their projected average daily vehicle trips (ADT). 

Coordinated Review and Conditions of Approval 

Written notice of Type II, III, IV, and V quasi-judicial and legislative actions is sent to Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT), Metro, applicable transit service providers, and other 
affected or potentially affected agencies (Section 16.72.020.C). Also, pre-application conferences 
established in existing code (Section 16.70.010) are an opportunity to coordinate with other 
transportation facility and service providers. 

General approval criteria for development applications grant authority to the Hearing Authority and 
Appeal Authority to approve the application with conditions (Section 16.72.010.C.1). 

Plan and Land Use Regulation Amendments 

The TPR seeks to protect transportation facilities by requiring consistency of land use with the 
function, capacity, and performance standards of transportation facilities. Existing Sherwood code 
provisions regarding approval criteria for plan amendments address TPR compliance, although the 
provisions do not necessarily reflect more recent TPR amendments (Section 16.80.030.C). 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Access, Circulation, and Amenities 

Requirements for on-site pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular circulation are established in existing 
code (Chapter 16.96). Standards for residential and non-residential development require that a 
private pathway/sidewalk system extend throughout the site that connects existing development, 
building entrances, adjacent development, future phases of development, public rights-of-way, 
open space, and parking and storage areas.  

Bicycle parking is required for uses including multi-family housing, office and most other 
commercial uses, institutional uses, and park-and-ride facilities (Section 16.94.020.C). The 
provisions address location and design of bicycle parking, and allow for long-term parking but do 
not require it. 

Transportation Demand Management 

Existing off-street parking regulations allow for shared parking, blended parking rates, on-street 
parking credits, preferential carpool/vanpool parking, residential parking districts, and reduced 
parking requirements in environmentally sensitive areas (Section 16.94.010). 

On-site pathway/sidewalk systems addressed in Chapter 16.96 require the system to connect to 
transit facilities within 500 feet of the site. This is reinforced by language in the transportation 

442



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 31 

 

facilities section that requires site connections to transit streets, as designated in the TSP, and 
either provision of or allowance for transit amenities and/or easements (Section 16.106.040.J). 
Commercial, multi-family, institutional, and mixed-use development must be oriented to existing 
and planned transit facilities and be built with no or minimal setbacks according to underlying 
zoning and site plan provisions (Section 16.90.030.D.7). 

Transportation System Design and Connectivity 

Street design guidelines are provided in a transportation facilities section of existing code (Section 
16.106.010). The narrowest street is a 28-foot local street, which is also shown in a cross-section in 
the 2005 TSP.  

Street spacing is an element of network connectivity; currently, street collector spacing is 
addressed in the Engineering Design and Standard Details manual and 2005 TSP, as discussed 
above. Existing code (Section 16.106.30) establishes maximum block lengths of 530 feet for new 
streets, except for arterials, which have a maximum block length requirement of 1,800 feet. Where 
full street crossings occur at distances of more 1,200 feet, bicycle and pedestrian crossings must be 
provided at an average of 530 feet. Section 16.106.30 also requires consistency with a local 
connectivity plan established in the 2005 TSP.    
 
Code requirements will need to be consistent with the recommendations of the updated TSP. An 
evaluation of the code and an assessment of how regulatory provisions meet the state TPR and 
regional RTFP will be included in the Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Report. 

Sherwood Parks Master Plan (2006): The Sherwood Parks and Recreation Master Plan involves a 
comprehensive review of the existing inventory of land, recreation facilities, and recreation 
opportunities; development of a mission statement; development of a strategic set of goals, 
objectives, and actions for the next twenty years; survey of the needs of residents; identification of 
land for future parks and open space acquisition, preservation, or conservation; development of 
conceptual designs for parks; provision of a capital improvement schedule, and review of existing 
finance strategies; and development of recommendations to fund improvements. 

High priority recommendations include:  

Preservation of natural areas, particularly the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge, as 
new development occurs to preserve and connection of such areas with the fabric of the 
community 

The creation of new trails wherever the opportunity arises, and provision of ten new 
walking loops.  

The Plan also notes the following acquisitions and developments of Pedestrian & Bike Paths: 

from Edy Road south along Cedar Creek 

443



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Other Background Information for the TSP Update | Page 32 

 

from the Senior Center to Stella Olsen Park 

Cedar Creek Trail and Land in the UGB expansion area. 

The updated pedestrian and bicycle elements of the TSP will need need to be consistent with path 
and trail acquisitions and the recommendations of the Parks Master Plan. 

Sherwood Urban Renewal Plan (Adopted 2000, updated through 2012): The Sherwood Urban 
Renewal Plan aims to eliminate blighting influences found in the Renewal Area and to implement 
the goals and objectives of the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan and the Vision for Old Town-2000. 
The boundary of the Renewal Area includes Old Town, Six Corners, and a portion of Sherwood High 
School.  

Transportation improvements eligible for urban renewal funding may include streetscape 
enhancements, existing roadways reconstruction, new streets construction, and pedestrian and 
bicycle access improvements. Aesthetic improvements on the N. Sherwood Boulevard corridor 
connecting Old Town and Six Corners, creating vehicular and pedestrian linkages between Highway 
99 and the Old Town area, and improving access to Stella Olson Park are mentioned specifically. 
Parking improvements called for in the plan include construction of public parking to support Old 
Town businesses and activities, and provision of separate areas for employee parking so close-in 
parking can be available for customers. 

444



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Appendix A: Applicable Plan and Policies | Page 33 

 

Appendix A: Applicable Plan and Policies  
The following plans and policies were reviewed for the City of Sherwood TSP Update: 

State of Oregon 

● Transportation System Planning Guidelines 

● Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0010) 

● Oregon Statewide Planning Goals 

● Oregon Access Management Rule (OAR 734-051) 

● Oregon Transportation Plan 

● Oregon Highway Plan 

● ODOT Highway Design Manual 

● 2010-2013 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 

Metro/Regional Plans 

● Metro 2035 Regional Transportation Plan 

● Metro 2035 Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

● Metro 2040 Growth Concept  

● Metro Non-Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) Target Actions Study 

● Metro State of Safety Report 

● Regional Active Transportation Plan (August 2013 draft) 

● Southwest Corridor Plan 

● I-5 – 99W Connector Study 

● Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan 

City of Sherwood 

● 2005 City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan (and amendments) 

● City of Sherwood Capital Improvement Plan 

● City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan 

● City of Sherwood Zoning and Development Code 

● City Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual 

● City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Plan 

● Sherwood Town Center Plan 

● Sherwood Parks Master Plan 

● Sherwood Capital Improvement Plan 

445



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Plan and Policy Summary Report 

 

 

11/20/13 
Appendix A: Applicable Plan and Policies | Page 34 

 

Washington County 

● Washington County Transportation System Plan 

TriMet 

● TriMet Transit Investment Plan 

446



447



(This page left intentionally blank)

448



449



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 1
Study Area and Zoning

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

City Limit

Parcel

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB)

Legend

General Commercial

General Industrial

High Density Residential

High Density Residential PUD

Institutional and Public

Low Density Residential

Low Density Residential PUD

Light Industrial

Light Industrial PUD

Medium Density Residential High

Medium Density Residential Low

Medium Density Residentila Low PUD

Neighborhood Commercial

Office Commercial

Office Commercial PUD

Open Space

Retail Commercial

Retail Commercial PUD

Urban Growth Area

Unannexed Area

Very Low Density Residential

Very Low Density Residential PUD8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Tonquin 
Employment Area

Brookman Area

Zoning

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

Old Town Sherwood Overlay

DRAFT 10/16/13

450



Æü

Æü

!P

!P

!P

!P

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
W

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(

H

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

n

Y

k
k

k
k

k

k

k

k

k

k

G

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 2
Key Activity Generators

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

City Limit

Trail

Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary
k Medical Office

YMCA

Senior Center
H Library

!( Bus Stop

W City Hall

Shopping Center

!P Public Parking Lot
Æü Park and Ride Lot Y

S8
Railroad

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

DRAFT 11/1/13

Æü

!P

S

W

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(

H

n

PINE

1ST

M
AIN

OREGON

Inset

Old Town

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

G

n School

451



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Street System | Page 4 

Functional Classification 

Sherwood has five functional classes for streets: 

Principal Arterials are access controlled highways that span several jurisdictions and provide a 
high level of mobility. They generally have four or more travel lanes, bicycle lanes (or shoulders), 
and limited access (preferably connecting primarily with arterials). 

Arterials serve as the major roadways within Sherwood and link major commercial, residential, 
industrial and institutional areas. Many of these roadways also extend beyond Sherwood and 
connect to other nearby cities. Limited access is a key feature of arterials to ensure increased 
mobility through town. 

Collectors have the primary role of facilitating circulation within Sherwood by funneling traffic 
from residential, commercial, and industrial areas to the arterial street network. They do not 
require as extensive control of access (compared to arterials). 

Neighborhood Routes are the primary roadways used to access residential neighborhoods. They 
serve a similar function as collector roadways but are designed to feel more like a neighborhood 
street. 

Local Streets have the sole function of providing access to immediate adjacent land. Service to 
“through traffic movement” on local streets is deliberately discouraged by design. 

Figure 3 shows the functional classifications of Sherwood’s roadways. The primary regional roadway 
providing mobility to residents and connecting the City of Sherwood with the surrounding area is 
Highway 99W, which is classified as a Principal Arterial. Highway 99W runs northeast-southwest through 
the northern half of the City and connects to the Portland Metropolitan Area to the northeast and 
Newberg, McMinnville, and other areas of Yamhill County to the southwest. Through Sherwood, 
Highway 99W has limited access, including five signalized intersections, which serve as the primary 
crossing locations between land uses on either side of the highway. There are only a few other accesses 
with local roads and private driveways, and these are all limited to right-in/right-out movements except 
Bookman Road. 

The other major roadways within Sherwood (classified as Arterials) are the primary mobility routes that 
provide regional connections through Sherwood.  These arterials include Tualatin-Sherwood Road 
(connecting to Tualatin), Roy Rogers Road (connecting to Beaverton), Oregon Street, Murdock Road, 
Sherwood Boulevard, Main Street, Sunset Boulevard, and Elwert Road. 

  

452



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 3
Street Functional Classification

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Principal Arterial

Arterial

Collector

Neighborhood

Local8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

DRAFT 10/16/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

453



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Street System | Page 6 

System Connectivity 

The Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) 
requires that each city incorporate street connectivity 
guidelines into local TSPs. The image at right shows the 
recommended spacing for arterial streets (approximately one-
mile) and collector streets (approximately half-mile). There is 
allowance for deviations to this spacing based on the presence 
of significant barriers, such as topography, rail lines, freeways, 
existing development, and the presence of natural areas.1 The 
roadway network spacing guidelines were recommended to 
support walking, biking, and access to transit, as well as 
improved connectivity to reduce demand on the arterial 
roadway system. 

Based on these street connectivity guidelines, Sherwood 
currently has the following system connectivity characteristics 
in its arterial and collector network.  Specific gaps (as numbered) are shown in Figure 3A. 

East-West Roadways (South of Highway 99W): Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Sunset Boulevard 
are the two east-west arterials in Sherwood south of Highway 99W. They are spaced 
approximately 1¼ miles apart, which only slightly exceeds the desired one-mile arterial spacing 
guideline. Oregon Street and Meinecke Road are collectors that provide east-west connectivity 
located approximately midway between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Sunset Boulevard 
(approximately ½ mile from each arterial). Brookman Road, a collector, also is located 
approximately ½ mile south of Sunset Boulevard. 

North-South Roadways (South  of Highway 99W): Sherwood Boulevard – Main Street and 
Oregon Street-Murdock Road are the primary north-south arterials on the southern side of 
Highway 99W. Highway 99W also accommodates north-south travel. In general, these roadways 
are spaced between ¾ and 1 ¼ miles apart, which is generally consistent with the one-mile 
arterial spacing guideline. Langer Farms Parkway, a collector, provides north-south travel 
between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Oregon Street and is located approximately ½ to ¾ mile 
from the adjacent arterial facilities.  South of Oregon Street, Pine Street is the collector between 
Main Street and Murdock Road.  However, west of Main Street the collector gaps are larger, 
including: 

o There is no collector (gap 1) that links Meinecke Road and Sunset Boulevard.  This area 
is constrained by established residential neighborhoods, the rail line, and the creek.  
Dewey Drive and Pinehurst Drive serve as neighborhood routes to the west. 

                                                 
1 Metro’s Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP), Title 1 section 3.08.110(C) 

454



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Street System | Page 7 

o South of Sunset Boulevard, there is a gap of approximately 1 ¼ miles (gap 2) east to 
Ladd Hill Road to Old Highway 99W and Timbrel Lane. While Pinehurst Drive (a 
neighborhood route) extends south of Sunset Boulevard, it ends in a residential 
neighborhood that backs against the rail line. 

North of Highway 99W: The two arterials north of Highway 99W, Roy Rogers Road and Elwert 
Road, are spaced approximately ½ miles apart to the north and 1 ½ miles apart near Highway 
99W due to the curvature in Roy Rogers Road. Between the two arterials, Edy Road and Handley 
Street provide east-west connectivity.  However, north-south collector connectivity is limited.  

o There is a north-south collector gap of nearly a mile (gap 3) between Borchers Drive and 
Elwert Road north of Edy Road. While a neighborhood route is located along Houston 
Drive and Lynnly Way, area to the west is somewhat constrained by the creek.  

o There is a north-south gap of approximately a mile south of Edy Road (gap 4). The 
neighborhood route of Bedstraw Terrace-Ladyfern Drive-Roellich Avenue is located in 
the general area that would meet the collector spacing guidelines.  However, these 
roads are fronted by residential development that has direct access to the facility and 
would restrict the mobility function of a collector.  

Figure 3A: Arterial and Collector Gaps in System Connectivity  

 

1 

2 

4 

3 

455



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Street System | Page 8 

Roadway Characteristics 

Figure 4 shows the speed limits on Sherwood’s roadways and the traffic control used for the City’s 
intersections. Most of the roadways have 25 mile per hour (mph) speed limits, with some of the arterial 
roadways having higher speeds of 35, 45, or 55 mph. The majority of the City’s traffic signals are also on 
the arterial roadways, while roundabouts are located at various intersections around town. Old Town 
Sherwood has a large concentration of the City’s all-way stops, and there are also a number of all-way 
stops on Sunset Boulevard. 

  

456



P

P

P

P

P

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
! B!!

!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

&-S&-S
&-S

&-S

&-S

&-S&-S
&-S &-S

&-S

&-S

&-S

&-S

&-S
&-S &-S
&-S
&-S&-S

&-S
&-S

&-S &-S

B!!
!

")53

")53

")53

")53

")53

")04

")53

")53

")54

")54

")55

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 4
Roadway Characteristics

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Posted Speed Limit")XX)

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

City Limit

Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary&-S
B!!
! Signalized Intersection

All Way Stop Intersection

P Roundabout Intersection

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

Trail

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

DRAFT 10/16/13

457



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Pedestrian Facilities | Page 10 

Pedestrian Facilities 
Figure 5 shows the existing pedestrian facilities in Sherwood. Sidewalk connectivity is provided on a 
majority of the arterials, collectors, and local roadways including Tualatin-Sherwood Road and 
Sherwood Boulevard. In addition, connectivity and pedestrian linkages are relatively good for parks and 
schools. Roadways lacking sidewalk connectivity in key locations include the following: 

Highway 99W has significant gaps in sidewalk connectivity, especially a large portion south of 
Sherwood Boulevard that does not have sidewalks on either side of the highway. 

Edy Road along most of its length between Highway 99W and Elwert Road lacks sidewalks on at 
least one side of the road. 

Division Street along most of its length between Main Street and Mansfield Street lacks 
sidewalks on at least one side of the road. 

Oregon Street along most of its length between Langer Farms Parkway and Murdock Road lacks 
sidewalks on both sides of the road; however, the northern side of the road has undeveloped 
land. 

12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood Boulevard lacks sidewalks on the south side of 
the street. 

Glen Eagle Neighborhood lacks sidewalks along all streets (12th Street, Gleneagle Drive, Glenco 
Court, 11th Court, and 10th Street), including those that front homes. 

Currently, trail facilities along 
Oregon St, Langer Farms 
Parkway and Century Drive 
connect Old Town to Tualatin 
Sherwood Road and Langer 
Park. In addition, the City of 
Sherwood is in the process of 
planning and constructing 
portions of the Cedar Creek 
Trail, which will connect to the 
regional Ice Age Tonquin Trail. 
The intended alignment of this 
trail will follow Oregon Street 
through Old Town and run 
along Cedar Creek to the north. 
In the short term, the nearest 
crossing of Highway 99W will 
be at Meinecke Road, but a grade-separated crossing of Highway 99W may be considered as a long-term 

Sherwood’s streets have a mix of pedestrian facilities that 
include sidewalks and meandering paths. 

458



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Pedestrian Facilities | Page 11 

solution. This trail will serve as an important bicycle and pedestrian connection between land uses on 
the northwest side of Highway 99W and Old Town, as well as the other neighborhoods adjacent to the 
trail’s alignment. It will also provide regional connectivity to the cities of Tualatin and Wilsonville to the 
east. 

The railroad right-of-way is not a legal pedestrian use corridor.  While pedestrian use is illegal, the 
railroad, which is rarely active, is sometimes used as a trail from southern/central neighborhoods to the 
high school, Stella Olsen Park, and Old Town.  The illegal use by some pedestrians, indicates the desire 
for travel between these areas of the City. The railroad corridor will not be included in system 
connectivity analysis for pedestrians. However, the desire for travel between these key areas 
(southern/central neighborhoods and central/northern attractions) will be considered. 

Street crossings are another important feature of Sherwood’s pedestrian system. While controlled 
pedestrian crossings are provided at all major signalized intersections, there are some roadways where 
major intersections are spaced far apart, which results in crossing barriers for pedestrians. This is the 
case with Highway 99W, which only has five crossing locations in the three-mile section through town, 
with particularly long spacing on the 3/4-mile stretch between Sunset Boulevard and Meinecke Road. 

The Highway 99W crossings are located at signals, and each signal only allows pedestrian crossings on 
one leg of Highway 99W (with the other crossing being closed). In addition, the west crosswalk on 
Sherwood Boulevard at the intersection of Langer Drive is also closed. These closures can increase the 
crossing movements required by pedestrians to reach their destination. In some cases, a pedestrian may 
be required to cross three legs on an intersection rather than the desired (closed) leg. This increases the 
travel time for pedestrians as well as potential conflicts with motor vehicles.  

Another major feature impeding pedestrian mobility is the large area of developed land without public 
rights of way through the properties between Old Town and the residential area to the north. While this 
area contains schools, a church, and other uses, it does not provide dedicated pedestrian connections 
between Sherwood Boulevard and Langer Farms Parkway. There are also major gaps in the undeveloped 
areas of Sherwood. One area with an existing pedestrian gap includes the undeveloped land between 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and the section of Oregon Street west of Murdock Road.  

  

459



B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
! B!!

!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
!

B!!
! B!!

!

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!!

!

!

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 5
Existing Pedestrian Facilities

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Sidewalk

Signalized Intersection

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Activity Generator

!!
!

B!!
!

Signalized Pedestrian Crossing

Pedestrian Refuge Island

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

DRAFT 11/1/13

460



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Bicycle Facilities | Page 13 

Bicycle Facilities 
Figure 6 shows the existing bicycle facility inventory in Sherwood. Besides Highway 99W and Tualatin-
Sherwood Road, most of the roadways do not provide bike lanes, although the majority of the 
residential road vehicle volumes and speed may be low enough (typically under 3,000 vehicles per day 
and 25 miles an hour) to be safe for bicycle travel. While the need for types of bicycle treatment vary by 
system context, typically roads with speeds lower than 25 miles an hour are appropriate for shared 
lanes, sharrows or bike boulevards.  The current barriers to pedestrian travel (e.g., Highway 99W 
crossing opportunities, lack of connectivity north of Old Town, etc.) also affect bicyclists.  The Tualatin-
Sherwood Road bike lanes have been modified with an additional stripe to create “buffered bike lanes” 
that serve to create space and dedicated separation between bicyclists and motor vehicles. 

Off-street path systems can serve 
both pedestrians and bicyclists and 
are typically preferred to on-street 
facilities. At the moment, 
Sherwood has existing trail 
facilities along Langer Farms 
Parkway, Century Drive, and 
Sunset Boulevard. Future trails are 
planned both within Sherwood and 
connecting to the southeast. The 
proposed Ice Age Tonquin Trail will 
connect Old Town to Highway 99W 
as well as Tonquin Road, the City of 
Tualatin, the City of Wilsonville, 
and the Willamette River to the 
east. This new trail will provide 
opportunities for bicycle users and 
pedestrians to make long distance 
commutes or recreational travel to 
nearby communities.  

  

The bicycle lanes on Tualatin-Sherwood Road were restriped 
to create “buffered bike lanes” that serve to create space 
and dedicated separation between bicyclists and motor 
vehicles. 

461



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 6
Existing Bicycle Facilities

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Bike Lane/Shoulder

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Activity Generator

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

DRAFT 11/1/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

462



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transit Facilities | Page 15 

Transit Facilities 
Transit service is provided by the Tri-County Metropolitan District of Oregon (TriMet) and the Yamhill 
County Transit Area District (YCTA). TriMet provides service and connections within the Portland Metro 
region (such as to Tigard, Beaverton, Portland, etc.), while YCTA connects Sherwood to Yamhill County 
and Tigard. Figure 7 shows the bus routes and bus stops of each transit service provider. In addition, the 
Metro RTP identifies the TriMet stop located at Railroad Street and Washington Street in Old Town 
Sherwood as a major transit stop. TriMet also provides park-and-ride lots at two of its stops in 
Sherwood; these include Old Town Sherwood on Railroad Avenue and off of Tualatin-Sherwood Road at 
the Regal Cinemas parking lot. 

TriMet Lines 93 and 94 connect Old Town Sherwood to Highway 99W and run to/from the north. The 
focus of the service is to connect Sherwood with Tigard, Downtown Portland, and the greater Portland 
Metropolitan Area. Line 93 runs from Old Town Sherwood (Railroad Street/Washington Street) to the 
Tigard Transit Center. It operates seven days a week and runs approximately every 30-45 minutes or less 
during the weekdays from 4:30 AM to 11:30 PM. During the weekends, Line 93 runs approximately the 
same schedule as the weekdays. The typical travel time on this route between Old Town Sherwood and 
the Tigard Transit Center is 20-25 minutes.  

Line 94 is an Express bus that runs between Old Town Sherwood 
and Downtown Portland. It only operates on weekdays, with 
short headways during the peak commuting hours (in the peak 
direction only) and longer headways during the off-peak hours. 
In the northbound direction (to Downtown Portland) the bus 
runs from about 5:45 AM to 8 AM with service every 15 minutes 
or less. Then, from 8 AM to 5:15 PM it provides service every 45 
minutes. In the southbound direction (to Sherwood) the bus 
runs from 7:30 AM to 2 PM every 45 minutes. Then, from 2:00 
PM to 7:00 PM the bus provides service every 15 minutes or 
less. During peak hours, the typical travel time from Downtown 
Portland to Old Town Sherwood is approximately one hour. 

In addition to the two TriMet bus lines, the YCTA operates three 
bus lines; Routes 44, 45x (Express), and 46S (Saturday). These 
bus lines all travel between McMinnville and Tigard, with stops 
at the various cities along the corridor, including Sherwood. The only stop in Sherwood is located on SW 
Langer Drive near Shari’s. Route 44 runs from about 6:00 AM to 7:00 PM, with service every hour during 
peak times and every two hours during off-peak times. Line 45X operates only two trips every weekday, 
one at 7:00 AM in the southbound direction and one at 5:45 PM in the northbound direction, which 
serves those traveling from residences in Sherwood to Yamhill County (potentially for employment) 
during the typical commute times. 

Some bus stops in Sherwood 
include amenities such as 
benches and shelters. 

463



Æü

Æü

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(!(!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 7
Existing Transit Facilities

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

Route 93, 94
Bus Stop!(

TriMet Bus Service

Yamhill County Transit Area Bus Service
Route 44, 45X, 46S
Bus Stop!(

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles
Æü Park and Ride

Activity 
Generator

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

DRAFT 11/1/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

Major Transit Stop!(

464



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Freight Routes | Page 17 

Freight Routes 
Efficient truck movement plays a vital role in the economical movements of raw materials and finished 
products. The designation of through truck routes provides for this efficient movement while at the 
same time maintaining neighborhood livability, public safety, and minimizing maintenance costs of the 
roadway system. The Washington County TSP identifies through truck routes in the Sherwood areas as 
Highway 99W and Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road, which are shown in Figure 8. In addition, 
Highway 99W (a Statewide facility) has several designations related to mobility and goods movements, 
including National Highway System, National Network, Freight Route, and Reduction Review Route.2  
These designations can limit reductions to vehicle-carrying capacity and (under the Reduction Review 
Route designation) subjects proposed reductions to review. 

Other Modes 
There are four other transportation modes often considered for transportation systems: rail, pipeline, 
air, and water. Sherwood does not have any designated airports/heliports or navigable waterways. 
However, it does have rail and pipeline facilities, which are shown in Figure 9. 

The rail line in Sherwood is operated by Portland & Western (P&W), a sister company of Willamette & 
Pacific (W&P) Railroad and a subsidiary of Genesee & Wyoming Incorporated. The line runs northeast-
southwest through Sherwood and generally parallels Highway 99W between McMinnville and Tigard.  
The majority of rail crossings in the Sherwood area are gated, with the exceptions being at-grade 
(ungated) crossings at Brookman Road and Middleton Road (both located outside the City but within the 
UGB).  Further south of Sherwood, the rail has a grade-separated crossing of Highway 99W. 

Northwest Natural operates several high-pressure pipelines that serve Sherwood. These lines run along 
Elwert Road, Cipole Road, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and Oregon Street. In addition, Kinder Morgan 
operates a petroleum gas line (gasoline and diesel) that runs from the Port of Portland to Eugene 
through the eastern part of Sherwood. 

Both BPA and PGE transmission lines are located in Sherwood and generally run northwest from 
Tonquin Road near Tualatin.  These lines cross existing roadways, including Oregon Street south of 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Tualatin-Sherwood Road east of Langer Farms Parkway.  The lines  
constrain future roadway network layout and connections.  The lines run through the Tonquin 
Employment Area and were considered during the concept planning process. 

  

                                                 
2 1999 Oregon Highway Plan, The Oregon Department of Transportation, May 1999. 

465



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 8
Existing Through Truck Routes

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Existing Through Truck Route

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

DRAFT 10/16/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

466



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

^

&

&

G

G
G

G

G

G

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 9
Other Existing Modes

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Portland & Western Rail Line

NW Natural Pipeline

Kinder-Morgan Pipeline

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Grade Separated Rail Crossing

Gated Rail Crossing

Stop Controlled Rail Crossing

G

^

&

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

DRAFT 10/16/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

467



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Safety Analysis | Page 20 

Safety Analysis 
A safety analysis of roadways within Sherwood was performed using recent collision data. In addition, 
the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Washington County both have Safety Priority 
Index Systems (SPIS) that rank locations by collision frequency and severity that were reviewed for the 
Sherwood area. 

Collision Data  

Collision data from the past five calendar years (2008 through 2012) was obtained from ODOT and 
reviewed to identify the location and characteristics of all collisions involving pedestrians or bicyclists. In 
addition, the data was reviewed for any fatal collisions, but none occurred within Sherwood during this 
time period. Other auto-auto collisions were separately analyzed for higher incident locations (next 
section). Figure 10 shows the locations of the pedestrian and bicycle collisions in Sherwood between 
2008 and 2012. There were 10 pedestrian-related collisions and 11 bicycle-related collisions. A 
significant cluster of both types of collisions occurred in the vicinity of the Highway 99W/Sherwood 
Boulevard intersection.  Other general locations including pedestrians or bicycles included the Old Town 
and area along Sunset Boulevard. 

Washington County SPIS 

Washington County’s Safety Priority Index System (SPIS) prioritizes which intersections are in the 
greatest need of safety improvements based on three years of collision data. The County’s current SPIS 
list includes collisions that occurred between 2007 and 2009. The SPIS prioritization is derived from 
factors such as the number of collisions, the type of collisions, the collision severity, and traffic volumes. 
The collision data only includes those collisions reported to the Oregon Department of Transportation. 
In addition, the County SPIS list only includes intersections that have at least one county controlled 
approach and where three or more crashes (or one or more severe injury or fatal crash) occurred at the 
intersection over the three year period. Sherwood has five intersections on the most recent County SPIS 
list. Table 1 lists each intersection along with the number of collisions by severity.  These locations were 
further examined in the Collision Trend Analysis section. 

Table 1: Washington County SPIS Rankings in Sherwood (2007-2009) 

Ranking Street Cross Street Total 
Collisions

Fatal 
Collisions

Injury 
Collisions

29 Highway 99W Tualatin-Sherwood 
Rd/Roy Rogers Rd 

42 0 21 

40 Elwert Rd/ 
Sunset Blvd 

Highway 99W 25 0 11 

63 Oregon St Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 27 0 12 

73 Cipole Rd Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 25 0 11 

87 Gerda Ln Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 10 0 6 

468



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Safety Analysis | Page 21 

ODOT SPIS 

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) also uses a SPIS to identify which state highway 
sections experience the greatest number and highest severity of collisions. ODOT updates its SPIS list 
annually based on the most recent three years of collision data. ODOT’s most recent SPIS list is from 
2012 (calculated using crash data from based on 2009-2011). The 2012 SPIS list identifies the following 
segments of Highway 99W in Sherwood as being in the top 10% (or higher) locations in the state: 

MP 14.91 to MP 15.09 (Tualatin-Sherwood Road intersection) is a top 5% SPIS location. 

MP 16.61 to MP 16.73 (Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard intersection) is a top 5% SPIS location 

MP 15.92 to MP 16.01 (Meinecke Road intersection) is a top 10% SPIS location. 

The first two locations identified on the ODOT SPIS list were also identified on the Washington County 
SPIS list. The Highway 99W/Meinecke Road intersection does not include any County roads and so 
would not have been evaluated by Washington County. 

Collision Trend Analysis 

Collision trends were analyzed for the six locations identified as ODOT and/or Washington County SPIS 
locations using ODOT collision records from the past five calendar years (2008 through 2012). Table 2 
lists the collision breakdown by type for each of the locations, which all occurred at signalized 
intersections.  

Table 2: Collision Summary of ODOT and Washington County SPIS Locations (2008 to 2012) 

Intersection Total
By Severity By Type

Injury PDO* Rear-
End

Turn 
Mvmt

Fixed 
Object

Side-
swipe Angle Bike/ 

Ped Other

Hwy 99W/Roy Rogers Rd/ 
Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 

81 42 39 56 10 2 6 4 0 3 

Tualatin-Sherwood 
Rd/Cipole Rd 

62 36 26 59 1 0 1 0 0 1 

Hwy 99W/Elwert 
Rd/Sunset Blvd 

58 33 25 48 6 2 0 2 0 0 

Tualatin-Sherwood 
Rd/Oregon St 

47 23 24 33 10 2 1 0 0 1 

Tualatin-Sherwood 
Rd/Gerda Ln 

44 30 14 37 3 2 0 0 0 2 

Hwy 99W/Meinecke Rd 38 20 18 21 8 6 1 2 0 0 

TOTAL COLLISIONS 330 184 146 254 38 14 9 8 0 7 

Percent of Total 100% 56% 44% 77% 11% 4% 3% 3% 0% 2% 

*Note: PDO – Property Damage Only 

469



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Safety Analysis | Page 22 

Approximately half of the collisions resulted in injuries at most locations. The exception is the Tualatin-
Sherwood Road/Gerda Lane, where more than two-thirds of the collisions resulted in injuries. At all of 
the intersections, the large majority of collisions were rear-ends, which is common at signalized 
intersections on high speed/high volume facilities. 

A closer review of the six intersections indicated that the major cause of collisions, which primarily 
applied to the rear-end collisions, was “following too close” (190 collisions or 60%). Other causes 
included “careless” (29 collisions or 9%), “too fast for conditions” (28 collisions or 8%), and “other 
improper driving” (25 collisions or 7%).  A summary of each location follows. 

Highway 99W/Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road: The majority of the collisions 
occurred along Highway 99W in either direction and varied in distance from the intersection.  
This pattern of rear-end collisions is common at signalized intersections on high speed/high 
volume facilities. In addition, there were a number of collisions on the side street approaches as 
well. Eight of the ten turning movement collisions occurred on Tualatin-Sherwood Road and 
involved vehicles turning right to travel north-eastbound on Highway 99W. This indicates a 
pattern that could be attributed to the yield condition and geometry of the right turn 
movement.  Vehicles starting to turn on the yield movement and then suddenly stopping before 
entering the highway may cause the following vehicle (that is anticipating that the first vehicle 
will enter the highway) to collide. The geometry and traffic control for this movement is subject 
to change with the Washington County improvements that are currently under design.  The 
congestion-related collision patterns at this location (rear-end and misjudged gap-entry) may 
increase along with future traffic growth. 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Cipole Road: Nearly all of the collisions occurred on Tualatin-
Sherwood Road and slightly more occurred in the eastbound direction (34 collisions) versus the 
westbound direction (26 collisions). In addition, almost one-third (19 of 62 collisions) involved 
more than two vehicles, which is a very high proportion of collisions and may indicate sudden 
breaking, possibly due to unanticipated stopping.  The rear-end collision pattern is related to 
congestion and may be due to the mix of the rural nature of the area with urban levels of 
congestion.  While these crashes may increase in the future along with traffic growth, the 
pattern also may decrease as the area becomes more urbanized and developed. 

Highway 99W/Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard: Nearly all of the collisions occurred along 
Highway 99W, with nearly two-thirds occurring in the southbound direction. The collisions 
varied in distance from the intersection, and the horizontal and vertical curvature in Highway 
99W may be a contributing factor.  The rural nature of this location may also contribute to 
driver expectancy issues related to drivers being unprepared to stop. The congestion related 
collision patterns on Highway 99W could increase along with future traffic growth.  However, 
the crash frequency could decrease as the area becomes more urbanized and drivers anticipate 
congestion and stopping on the highway.   

470



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Safety Analysis | Page 23 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Oregon Street: Compared with the other SPIS intersections, this 
intersection had proportionally more turning movement collisions (21%), and half of the turning 
collisions (five of ten collisions) involved a vehicle making the westbound left turn from Tualatin-
Sherwood Road onto Oregon Street with most of these occurring during the PM peak hour (four 
of five collisions). This pattern is likely related to congestion and could be a result of a number of 
related issues including drivers near the end of queue following other vehicles beyond the 
protected green indication.  In addition, the traffic signal at this location was modified in June 
2008 to allow “permitted” (flashing yellow) left turn movements that require the turning vehicle 
yield to oncoming traffic.  Misjudgment of the oncoming vehicle speeds may have contributed 
to turning movement collisions at this location.  Additional growth and traffic volume is likely to 
increase these congestion-related collision patterns. 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Gerda Lane: Similar to the Cipole Road intersection, nearly all of the 
collisions occurred on Tualatin-Sherwood Road. However, the directionality of collisions was 
reversed and the majority occurred in the westbound direction (27 collisions) instead of the 
eastbound direction (16 collisions). Just over half of these collisions (14 of 27 collisions) occurred 
during the midday or p.m. peak periods (11 a.m. to 1 p.m. or 4 p.m. to 6 p.m.), likely due to 
higher traffic volumes.  A traffic signal was installed at this intersection in late December 2010. 
Two of the turning movement collisions (which are typically more dangerous) occurred before 
the signal was installed.  The third incident, while classified as a turn movement, occurred after 
the signal was installed and was related to a bus following a vehicle too closely and hitting it 
while it yielded to a pedestrian in the crosswalk.  Therefore, no traditional turn movement 
collisions (typically made with a vehicle going straight and hitting a conflicting left turning 
vehicle) occurred after the signal was installed.  As is generally typical for other locations, the 
rate of rear-end collisions at this location increased following the installation of the traffic signal. 
Only 8 of the 44 collisions occurred during 2008 through 2010, while 36 occurred in the two 
years (2011 and 2012) following the traffic signal installation. This high incidence of rear-end 
collisions is likely to increase with future traffic growth along Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 

Highway 99W/Meinecke Road: Nearly all of the collisions occurred along Highway 99W and 
varied in distance from the intersection. Slightly more occurred in the southbound direction (16 
of the 27 collisions on Highway 99W).  This patterns of rear-end collisions is similar to the trend 
present at the other SPIS locations.  However, this location also includes a higher portion of turn 
movement collisions.  Half of the turn movement collisions involved multiple vehicles making a 
northbound right from Meinecke onto Highway 99W.  These incidents may be related to overly-
aggressive drivers similar to the pattern at Highway 99W/Tualatin-Sherwood Road. The third 
observation present at this location is related to the higher number of fixed object collisions that 
involve vehicles driving into the ditch.  This pattern may be related to drivers misjudging the 
separated medians at each leg of the intersection, which has a greater separation than other 
intersections.   

  

471



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

GG
GGGG

GG

GG

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 10
Collision Map

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Pedestrian-Related Collision (2008-2012)

Bicycle-Related Collision (2008-2012)

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

Safety Priority Index System (SPIS) 
ODOT Top 5% Site (2012)

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

Safety Priority Index System (SPIS) 
ODOT Top 10% Site (2012)

GG
Safety Priority Index System (SPIS) 
Washington County Site (2007-2009)

City Limit

Trail Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Railroad

DRAFT 10/16/13

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

472



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 25 

Transportation Funding 
The City of Sherwood utilizes a number of revenue sources to fund the construction, operation, and 
maintenance of its transportation system. While transportation funding is commonly viewed as a user 
fee system (where system users pay for infrastructure through motor vehicle fees such as gas tax, 
registration fees, or transit fares), much of what the public views as new construction is commonly 
funded (partially or fully) through property tax levies, traffic impact fees, and required improvements by 
land development. In addition, a great share of motor vehicle user fees is used for road maintenance, 
operation, and preservation of the system rather than construction of new system capacity.  Sherwood’s 
budget over the last five year period was reviewed to estimate the amount of transportation revenue 
and expenses that are likely to occur on an annual basis. 

Table 3 lists the yearly funding sources Sherwood is expected to have available to meet its 
transportation system needs. It also lists the City’s ongoing transportation-related operational and 
maintenance expenses. The $1,982,000 yearly revenue is expected to exceed the $1,467,000 of ongoing 
yearly expenses by $515,000. This amount would be available for capital improvement projects and 
would provide a total of approximately $11.3 million through year 2035. However, additional 
construction may be facilitated through project-specific grants, intergovernmental contributions, or 
other means. Following the table, general descriptions of the City’s funding sources and expenses are 
provided. In addition, potential new transportation system funding sources are identified and discussed. 

Table 3: Sherwood’s Yearly Transportation System Funding and Expenditures 

Revenue and Expenditure Sources Annual Amount Use or Restrictions

Revenue   

State Apportionment of Vehicle Taxes $995,000 Road-related expenditures 

Washington County Gas Tax Allocation $66,000 Road-related expenditures 

Street Maintenance Fee $261,000 Street maintenance only 

Street Light Fee $201,000 Street lights only 

City and County SDC and TDT Charges $250,000* Capacity improvements only 

Misc. Revenue (Operations) $10,000  

Misc. Revenue (Capital Improvements) $65,000  

Sidewalk Fee Temporary Only a 5-year program 

Developer Exactions Varies Frontage or off-site 
improvements based on traffic 

impacts 

Urban Renewal District________________ ____Varies Approved projects within URD 
boundaries 

Total Revenue $1,982,000  

Expenses (Non-Capital)   

473



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 26 

Revenue and Expenditure Sources Annual Amount Use or Restrictions

Administrative Services / Personnel $787,000 Paid with tax allotments 

Street Lighting (Electricity) $180,000 Paid by Street Light Fee 

Street/Landscape Repair and Maintenance ___$500,000 Paid by Street Maintenance 
Fee 

Total Expenses $1,467,000  

Funds Available for Capital Improvements $515,000  

Note: * SDC Estimate to be refined based on future growth assumptions. 
 

Current Funding Sources and Expenditures 

The City of Sherwood uses multiple funding sources to pay for the construction, operation, and 
maintenance of its transportation infrastructure and services. Two key financial policies that guide its 
funding choices3 are: (1) the City of Sherwood will identify sustainable revenue levels and, to the extent 
possible, current operations will be funded by current sustainable revenues and (2) one-time revenues 
will be used for one-time expenditures or as contributions to reserves and will not be used to pay for 
established services. In general, the City observes the following practices: 

Improvements driven by new development are principally paid for using transportation system 
development charges (SDCs) and developer contributions. 

Improvements made to reduce blight and attract development within the City’s urban renewal 
district (URD) are paid for by the district.  Approved projects within the URD boundaries expire 
in year 2021. 

Other improvements undertaken by the City are paid for using a combination of various city 
funds depending on project components (e.g., streets, sidewalks, lighting, stormwater, etc.), 
some of which are paid for using a utility fee. 

Pedestrian and bicycle facilities are constructed as part of roadway projects or paid for as park 
improvements. 

Staff time (i.e., planning, engineering, and other administration) and supply costs are charged to 
the Streets Operating Fund for time spent working on transportation-related tasks and projects. 

State Apportionment of Vehicle Taxes 

The State of Oregon Highway Trust Fund collects various taxes and fees on fuel, vehicle licenses, and 
permits. A portion is paid to cities annually on a per capita basis. By statute, the money may be used for 
any road-related purpose. Sherwood uses it for street operating needs. Gas taxes are the primary 
revenue source for the Oregon Highway Trust Fund and are collected as a fixed amount per gallon of 

                                                 
3 2013-2014 Adopted Budget, City of Sherwood 

474



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 27 

gasoline served. Because there is no adjustment for inflation, the buying power of these funds has 
decreased over time; however, in 2010 the state legislature voted to raise the tax from 24 cents to 30 
cents per gallon, which has boosted recent revenues.  The State of Oregon has also considered and 
tested other means of collecting fees based on total miles traveled within the State, rather than on a 
per-gallon basis. 

Washington County Gas Tax Allocation 

A portion of the Washington County gas tax is distributed to cities. Sherwood uses its funds to help 
cover its transportation system operating expenses. 

Street Maintenance Fee 

The City of Sherwood charges a street maintenance fee to residential and commercial customers on 
their monthly utility bills. These funds go directly towards regular road repairs (i.e. patching, signage, 
stripe painting), exercises for longevity (i.e. crack and slurry sealing), and reconditioning (i.e. replacing 
an entire street). Residential customers are charged a monthly fee of $2.00 per household, while 
commercial customers are charged $2.00 per equivalent surface unit (ESU) per month. 

Street Light Fee 

The City of Sherwood charges a street light fee to residential and commercial customers on their 
monthly utility bills. While Portland General Electric (PGE) performs the work on the lights, the City 
budgets for routine and irregular maintenance for safety. Residential customers are charged a monthly 
fee of $2.32 per household, while commercial customers are charge $0.67 per equivalent surface unit 
(ESU) per month. 

Sidewalk Fees 

The City of Sherwood currently has two different sidewalk fees that it charges residential and 
commercial customers on their monthly utility bills. However, both of these fees are part of five-year 
programs. The first is a “Safe Sidewalks Fee” that is being used to build new sidewalks, especially in the 
high foot-traffic areas around schools. The “Sidewalk Repair Fee” provides funds to assist homeowners 
in repairing cracked and broken sidewalks in front of their homes to reduce tripping hazards. These fees 
were started in Fiscal Year 2012/2013.  Since the five-year program is not expected to extend through 
the TSP horizon year of 2035, these revenues were not included in the average annual revenue for 
projecting total funds in 2035. 

Washington County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) 

The County Transportation Development Tax (TDT) is a tax on new development, approved by voters in 
2008 to replace the previous tax, known as the Traffic Impact Fee (TIF). The tax is currently being phased 
in and has one more step increase. The TDT was approved by voters as a tax and as such is not limited 
by existing state statute in terms of how it is calculated or applied, though it does generally conform to 
statutory SDC requirements.  

475



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 28 

The Washington County TDT is levied on all new development based upon the amount of traffic added 
by the development and can only pay for new infrastructure needed to serve growth. TDT monies 
collected for development within incorporated cities are distributed back to those cities for their use on 
street projects in the community. There are limitations to the type of street projects that can be funded 
by TDT monies, and all projects must be approved by the Washington County Coordinating Committee, 
which consists of City and County elected officials representing each community.  In order to obtain 
credit for the County’s TDT, a project that is being constructed must appear on the County’s TDT CIP list 
and must be built above Sherwood’s minimum facility standard.  The credit is only applicable for the 
cost portion above Sherwood’s minimum facility standard. 

Sherwood System Development Charges (SDCs) 

The City’s system development charges (SDCs) are assessed on all new residential and commercial 
construction within the city. These funds can only be used to construct capacity-related transportation 
improvements or provide a capital recovery element to compensate for existing capacity paid for by 
current users. The City of Sherwood currently charges $3,011.94 per single-family dwelling unit, which 
corresponds with one PM peak hour trip. The fee amount changes for other land use types, and the 
basis for the deriving the fee was the amount of traffic generated by those uses. In order to get credits 
for the City’s SDC fee, an improvement must be to a collector roadway or higher classification and also 
appear on the City’s CIP list.4  Because of Washington County’s TDT, which is remitted to the City when 
development occurs in city limits, the City’s SDC fees are reduced appropriately to avoid double charging 
developers. 

Miscellaneous Revenue 

The City of Sherwood receives revenue from minor sources, such as project inspections, interest 
earnings, and other sales and services. 

State/Regional Grants and Program Funds 

The City of Sherwood applies for various grant opportunities to fund transportation projects.  The City 
was recently awarded $5 million from Metro for the Cedar Creek Trail through the regional flexible 
funds program.  While the various programs and grants are generally very competitive, they can provide 
valuable resources and opportunities.  Some of these potential grant or program opportunities include 
Regional Flexible Funds, Enhance and Fix-It, and the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). 

Developer Exactions 

Exactions are improvements constructed by developers as conditions of development. Developers are 
generally required to mitigate traffic impacts, which may include frontage improvements and, in some 
cases, offsite improvements depending upon their level of traffic generation and the impact to the 
transportation system. 

                                                 
4 Memorandum: Clarification of Credits Available for Road Construction, Sherwood Community Development 
Department, September 11, 2012.  

476



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 29 

Urban Renewal District 

Sherwood’s Urban Renewal District (URD), authorized in ORS 457, is a tax-funded district within the city 
that was formed in 2000 following an extensive public process. The URD is funded with the incremental 
increases in property taxes that result from construction of applicable improvements. This type of tax 
increment financing has been used in Oregon since 1960. Uses of the funding include, but are not 
limited to, transportation projects. Total projected transportation funding over the life of the district is 
$17.5 million. Approximately $16.5 million of the tax increment financing is assumed in selected street 
improvement projects identified in the URD and TSP. 

Limitations of the District are geographic in nature with the URD covering about 15% of Sherwood. 
Because of the funding mechanism and its resulting cash flow over time, the City has made use of debt 
capacity in order to construct needed facilities. 

New Funding Sources and Opportunities 

The City of Sherwood may consider additional funding sources to ensure it has sufficient funds to 
construct needed transportation improvements. Transportation program funding options range from 
local taxes, assessments, and charges to state and federal appropriations, grants, and loans. All of these 
resources can be constrained based on a variety of factors, including the willingness of local leadership 
and the electorate to burden citizens and businesses, the availability of local funds to be dedicated or 
diverted to transportation issues from other competing City programs, and the availability and 
competitiveness of state and federal funds. Nonetheless, it is important for the City to consider all of its 
options and understand where its power may exist to provide and enhance funding for its 
transportation system. 

The following funding sources have been used by other cities to fund the capital and maintenance 
aspects of their transportation programs. There may be means to begin to or further utilize these 
sources, as described below, to address Sherwood’s transportation needs: 

General Fund Revenues: At the discretion of the City Council, the City can allocate General Fund 
revenues to pay for its Transportation program. (General Fund revenues primarily include 
property, use taxes, and any other miscellaneous taxes and fees imposed by the City.) This 
allocation is completed as a part of the City’s annual budget process, but the funding potential 
of this approach is constrained by competing community priorities set by the City Council. 
General Fund resources can fund any aspect of the program, from capital improvements to 
operations, maintenance, and administration. Additional revenues available from this source to 
fund new aspects of the Transportation program are only available to the extent that either 
General Fund revenues are increased or City Council directs and diverts funding from other City 
programs.  

Voter-Approved Local Gas Tax: Communities such as Sandy, Woodburn, and Tillamook have 
adopted local gas taxes by public vote. In Sandy, the tax is 1 cent per gallon, paid to the City 

477



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 30 

monthly by distributors of fuel. The process for presenting such a tax to voters will need to be 
consistent with Oregon State law as well as the laws of the City of Sherwood. 

Local Improvement District Assessment Revenue: Subject to voter approval, the City may set 
up Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) to fund specific capital improvement projects within 
defined geographic areas, or zones of benefit. LIDs impose assessments on properties within its 
boundaries. LIDs may not fund ongoing maintenance costs. They require separate accounting, 
and the assessments collected may only be spent on capital projects within the geographic area. 
A vote by citizens representing 33% of the assessment can terminate a LID and overturn the 
planned projects so projects and costs of a LID must meet with broad approval of those within 
the boundaries of the LID. 

Direct Appropriations: The City can seek direct appropriations from the State Legislature and / 
or U.S. Congress for transportation capital improvements. There may be projects identified in 
the Plan for which the City may want to pursue these special, one-time appropriations.  

Special Assessments: A variety of special assessments are available in Oregon to defray costs of 
sidewalks, curbs, gutters, street lighting, parking and CBD or commercial zone transportation 
improvements. These assessments would likely fall within the Measure 50 limitations. A regional 
example would be the Westside LRT where the local share of funding was voter approved as an 
addition to property tax. 

Employment Taxes: TriMet collects a tax for transit operations in the Portland region through 
payroll and self employment taxes. Approximately $145 million are collected annually in the 
Portland region for transit. 

Also, while not direct funding sources, debt financing can be used to mitigate the immediate impacts of 
significant capital improvement projects and spread costs over the useful life of a project. Though 
interest costs are incurred, the use of debt financing can serve not only as a practical means of funding 
major improvements, but is also viewed as an equitable funding strategy, spreading the burden of 
repayment over existing and future customers who will benefit from the projects. The obvious caution in 
relying on debt service is that a funding source must still be identified to fulfill annual repayment 
obligations.  

Voter-Approved General Obligation Bond Proceeds: Subject to voter approval, the City can 
issue General Obligation (G.O.) bonds to debt finance capital improvement projects. G.O. bonds 
are backed by the increased taxing authority of the City, and the annual principal and interest 
repayment is funded through a new, voter-approved assessment on property city-wide (a 
property tax increase). Depending on the critical nature of any projects identified in the 
Transportation Plan, and the willingness of the electorate to accept increased taxation for 
transportation improvements, voter-approved G.O. bonds may be a feasible funding option for 
specific projects. Proceeds may not be used for ongoing maintenance. 

478



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Existing Conditions Technical Report  

 

 

11/1/13 
Transportation Funding | Page 31 

Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are debt instruments secured by rate revenue. In order for the 
City to issue revenue bonds for transportation projects, it would need to identify a stable source 
of ongoing rate funding. Interest costs for revenue bonds are slightly higher than for general 
obligation bonds, due to the perceived stability offered by the “full faith and credit” of a 
jurisdiction. 

479



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

480



8 | 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (03 20 14 DRAFT): THE PROCESS 481



(This page left intentionally blank)

482



483



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

WASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

350 Households
550 Jobs

150 Households
350 Jobs

1400 Jobs

2300 Jobs

550 Jobs

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Areas expected to grow at least 
100 jobs or 100 households by 2035

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

1500 Households
600 Jobs

4850 Households
950 Jobs

DRAFT 11/13/13Figure 1
Major Growth Areas

# Projected growth from 2010 to 2035

* Growth is based on data and assumptions
 from Metro for Sherwood and surrounding areas. 

Trail

Railroad

Town 
Center City Limit

Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

484



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 3 

 
Figure 1B: Regional Residential Growth Areas (color intensity denotes growth intensity)1 

In addition to growth within Sherwood’s city limits or within the existing UGB, regional growth 
projections include urbanization in urban reserve areas (URA) that are currently located outside the 
UGB.  These are areas set aside for future growth as the region expands. As a larger regional growth 
supply is needed in the future, the UGB will be expanded to include these areas. Figure 1B indicates that 
significant household growth is projected along the western edges of the UGB near Sherwood, 
Beaverton, and Hillsboro in areas that are currently designated as urban reserves. 
                                                 

1 Source: Metro, MetroScope Jurisdiction Reviewed TAZ Gamma Forecast, DRAFT. (Disclaimer: This map is for 
research purposes only and does not reflect policy decisions by any jurisdictional authority.) Growth color is 
illustrative and is based on model zone boundaries and does not indicate growth for a specific parcel. 

485



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 4 

System Needs and Measures 

System measures provide an overall assessment of Sherwood’s future transportation system relative to 
existing conditions.  Table 2 provides an overview of system measures that can be used to evaluate 
Sherwood’s progress towards regional goals.  As listed in Table 2, while the overall distance travelled by 
vehicles is projected to increase in the future, the average motor vehicle distance traveled per person is 
projected to decrease.  This decrease is consistent with Metro’s goals related to reducing reliance on the 
motor vehicle. The amount of delay in the system (including freight corridors) is anticipated to triple (an 
increase of 200%+) through 2035 without additional improvements to the system. 

Table 2: System Performance Measures (PM Peak Hour) 
Measure Year 2010 Year 2035 Change 
Total Vehicle Miles Travelled 
(VMT) 

34,100 vmt 55,600 vmt 21,500 vmt (+63%) 

VMT per capita 1.4 vmt/capita 1.3 vmt/capita -0.1 (-7%) 
Vehicle Hours of delay (VHD) 440 1,420 980 (+223%) 
VHD on Freight Corridors* 240 870 630 (+263%) 
Note: *Freight corridors include OR 99W, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and Roy Rogers Road. 

Metro also sets regional targets for the amount of trips that are made by means other than someone 
driving alone or a “single occupant vehicle” (SOV).  These regional targets are set for the portion of non-
SOV travel (trips made by pedestrian, bike, transit, carpool, etc.) based on the target land use density 
(the 2040 design type). The targets are structured so that more dense areas have a higher share of non-
SOV trips.   Each design type and non-SOV target is as follows: 

Portland Central City (60-70%) 

Regional Centers, Town Centers, Main Streets, Station Communities, Corridors, Passenger 
Intermodal Facilities (45-55%) 

Industrial Areas, Freight Intermodal Facilities, Employment Areas, Inner Neighborhoods, Outer 
Neighborhoods (40-45%) 

The travel model provides estimates of the various modes of travel that can be generally assessed at the 
transportation analysis zone (TAZ) level. Figure 2 summarizes the level of non-SOV mode share 
estimated for 2035 using the regional travel demand model in comparison to the modal targets set in 
Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). These non-SOV targets are aggregated by design type 
groupings (as listed above) and colored in Figure 2 as orange (45-55% target) and yellow (40-45% 
target). For each TAZ, the 2035 non-SOV share is listed. The 2035 non-SOV share for each TAZ is also 
colored to indicate the highest target that is satisfied (orange for 45-55% target, and yellow for 40-45% 
target). Note that TAZ boundaries, which are the basis for the non-SOV share data, do not directly align 
with the 2040 design type boundaries (this is not critical).  Based on the model data, it appears that the 
targets are typically achieved for the western areas but not met for areas east of Langer Farms Parkway. 

486



54%
56%

54%
54%

60%

55%

55%

55%

54%

56%

52%

48%
53%

53%

55%

48%

49%

35%

37%

Figure 2
2035 Non-SOV Share

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

City Limit

Trail

Parcel

Park

Urban Growth Boundary
Metro Gamma Model Transportation
Analysis Zones (TAZ)

Non-SOV Mode ShareTarget

45-55% Target 40-45% Target
Non-SOV Mode Share by TAZ

 Meets 45-55% Target##%
 Meets 40-45% Target##%
 Does Not Meet 40% Target##%

Road

Town Center Boundary

487



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 6 

Pedestrian System 

While Sherwood’s pedestrian network is generally well-developed, sidewalk connectivity gaps are 
present in key locations throughout the city, including within the Town Center, which has density and 
uses that support pedestrian activity. An assessment of gap locations prioritized the locations based on 
proximity to activity generators (such as schools, libraries, medical offices, parks, etc.). Figure 3 presents 
sidewalk gaps along the major street network (arterials and collectors), and indicates the preliminary 
prioritization based on density of activity generators.  Solutions to address these gaps (including 
amenities on parallel facilities) will be explored during the next stage of the planning process. 

Existing Needs 

The Existing Conditions Technical Report identified the following key gaps in sidewalk connectivity: 
Highway 99W has significant gaps in sidewalk connectivity, especially a large portion south of 
Sherwood Boulevard that does not have sidewalks on either side of 99W. Several key sidewalk 
gaps on Highway 99W fall within high priority areas. These key gaps are adjacent to several 
shopping areas and medical offices. The highway also creates a barrier that is hard to cross 

Oregon Street along most of its length between Langer Farms Parkway and Murdock Road lacks 
sidewalks on both sides of the road; however, the northern side of the road has undeveloped 
land. These sidewalk gaps, however, are in low priority areas since they are further away from 
the activity generators. Some gaps may be filled by funded Cedar Creek Trail improvements. 

Edy Road along most of its length between Highway 99W and Elwert Road lacks sidewalks on at 
least one side of the road. Several key sidewalk gaps along Edy Road fall within high priority 
areas due to the high concentration of medical offices and elementary/middle schools. 

12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood Boulevard lacks sidewalks on the south side of 
the street. These sidewalk gaps fall within high priority areas as it serves shopping centers, 
medical offices, and the major transit route through the city. 

Division Street along most of its length between Main Street and Mansfield Street lacks 
sidewalks on at least one side of the road. As a neighborhood facility, its gaps are not shown in 
Figure 2. However, it falls within a high priority area due to its proximity to Old Town. 

Gleneagle Neighborhood lacks sidewalks along all streets (12th Street, Gleneagle Drive, Glenco 
Court, 11th Court, and 10th Street), including those that front homes. This network of local roads 
falls within high priority areas due to their proximity to the major transit route through the city, 
medical offices, shopping centers, and schools. 

Other high priority gap locations include: 
Meinecke Road lacks sidewalk along the north side of the street east of Lee Drive for 
approximately 400 feet. This route is a major connection serving Old Town, which is dense with 
activity generators. 

The appendix includes a complete prioritized list of sidewalk gaps on collector and arterial facilities. 

488



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!

!!!!!!!

!!

!!!!

!!!

!

!!!!
!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!

!!!

!!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

H
ER

S

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 3
Key Pedestrian Facility Gaps

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

DRAFT 11/13/13

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

High Priority 

Low Priority

City Limit

Urban Growth Boundary

! Activity Generator

Sidewalk Gap along Arterial or Collector

Town Center Boundary 489



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 8 

Street crossings are another important feature of Sherwood’s pedestrian system. While controlled 
pedestrian crossings are provided at all major signalized intersections, there are some roadways where 
major intersections are spaced far apart, which results in crossing barriers for pedestrians. Highway 99W 
only has five crossing locations in the three-mile section through town, with particularly long spacing on 
the 3/4-mile stretch between Sunset Boulevard and Meinecke Road. Another pedestrian crossing gap 
located along a major roadway is located on Sunset Boulevard between Pinehurst Drive and St Charles 
Way. 

The Highway 99W crossings are located at signals, and each signal only allows pedestrian crossings on 
one leg of Highway 99W (with the other crossing being closed). In addition, the west crosswalk on 
Sherwood Boulevard at the intersection of Langer Drive is also closed. In some cases these closures may 
have been made to address traffic operation needs to improve the flow of traffic by removing conflicting 
pedestrian movements. However, these closures are a tradeoff that can increase the crossing 
movements required by pedestrians to reach their destination. In some cases, a pedestrian may be 
required to cross three legs on an intersection rather than the desired (closed) leg. This increases the 
travel time for pedestrians as well as potential conflicts with motor vehicles.  

Another major feature impeding pedestrian mobility is the large area of developed land without public 
rights of way through the properties between Old Town and the residential area to the north. While this 
area contains schools, a church, and other uses, it does not provide dedicated pedestrian connections 
between Sherwood Boulevard and Langer Farms Parkway. 

There are also existing gaps in regional connectivity between Sherwood and neighboring communities. 
To address this issue, coordination will be required with Washington County and neighboring 
communities to develop regional trail connections. The Ice Age Tonquin Trail is an example of a regional 
facility that will provide regional connections between Sherwood, Tualatin, and Wilsonville.  

Future Needs 

As Sherwood grows, demand on the pedestrian system and the need to connect the city will also grow. 
Gaps in the sidewalk network within significant growth areas include: Brookman Road, Elwert Road, 
Oregon Street, and Tonquin Road. While pedestrian demand along these facilities is low today, they will 
become more critical routes by 2035. Several major arterials along the fringes of the city (e.g., Murdock 
Road, Oregon Street, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, Elwert Road) are expected to serve large growth areas by 
2035, and will pose as major barriers to pedestrians without well-spaced pedestrian crossings. As these 
areas develop, enhanced pedestrian crossings will be needed along these facilities. Finally, increased 
activity within the Town Center will continue to highlight the need for pedestrian and bicycle 
improvements to enhance options for multimodal travel. 

  

490



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 9 

Bicycle System 

With the exception of Highway 99W and Tualatin-Sherwood Road, most roadways do not provide bike 
lanes. An assessment of bicycle lane gaps on major roads and their proximity to activity generators was 
conducted. Figure 4 shows bike lane gaps along major roads (arterials and collector facilities), and 
indicates a preliminary prioritization based on density of activity generators. Several of these prominent 
locations are within the Town Center area, which is shown as having high potential for bicycle need due 
to the proximity to a number of activity generators. 

Existing Needs 

There are several key roadway segments without bicycle facilities that are located in high bicycle 
demand areas. These priority gap locations (which may not include the entire street length) include: 

Edy Road from Houston Drive to Elwert Road (near medical offices and schools) 

Borchers Drive from Edy Road to Roy Rodgers Road (near medical offices and shopping) 

Roy Rodgers Road from Highway 99W to Borchers Drive (near a concentration of medical 
offices, and near a shopping center) 

Langer Drive from Baler Road to the northbound Highway 99W right-in-right-out access (along 
the major transit route through the city, and near shopping centers and medical offices) 

Baler Road from Tualatin Sherwood Road to Langer Drive (along the major transit route through 
the city, and near shopping centers and medical offices) 

12th Street from Highway 99W to Sherwood Boulevard (near the major transit route through the 
city, shopping centers, and medical offices) 

Sherwood Boulevard from 12th Street to 3rd Street 
(along the major transit route and near medical 
offices, schools, and the senior center) 

Pine Street from 3rd Street to Sunset Boulevard 
(near Old Town) 

Meinecke Road-Washington Street from Lee 
Drive to 1st Street (near Old Town) 

Main Street from 1st Street to Sunset Boulevard 
(near Old Town) 

Oregon Street from Langer Farms Parkway to Murdock Road (near Old Town and schools) 

There are also gaps in regional connectivity. To address this issue, coordination will be required with 
Washington County and neighboring communities to develop regional trail connections. The Ice Age 
Tonquin Trail is an example of a regional facility that will provide regional connections between 
Sherwood, Tualatin, and Wilsonville.  

Bike gap along Sherwood Boulevard near 
Clyde Hopkins Elementary School 

491



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!

!!!!!!!

!!

!!!!

!!!

!

!!!!
!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!

!!!

!!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

H
ER

S

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 4
Key Bicycle Facility Gaps

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

Bike Facility Gap along Arterial or Collector

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

DRAFT 11/13/13

LA
N

GE
R 

FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

High Priority 

Low Priority

City Limit

Urban Growth Boundary

! Activity Generator

Town Center Boundary 492



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 11 

Future Needs 

Many identified growth areas are absent of adequate bicycle facilities. As motor vehicle volumes 
increase and bicycle demand grows, there will be a greater need to separate bicycles from the travel 
lane. Bicycle gaps in key growth areas include: Brookman Road, Old Highway 99W, Handley Street, 
Galbreath Drive, Tonquin Road, Elwert Road, Edy Road, and Pine Street. 

Transit System 

Transit service in Sherwood is provided by the Tri-County Metropolitan District of Oregon (TriMet) and 
the Yamhill County Transit Area (YCTA). TriMet provides service and connections within the Portland 
Metro region, while YCTA connects Sherwood to Yamhill County and Tigard. The following sections 
discuss the existing needs of the transit system and the projected needs of the transit system as the city 
grows through 2035.  

Existing Needs 

Transit stop amenities: Only some of the bus stops in Sherwood offer benches and shelters.2 
Provision of passenger amenities at bus stops creates a more pleasant and attractive 
environment for bus riders and may encourage people to use the transit system.  

Sidewalk connections to transit stops: In general, Sherwood’s sidewalk network is well built, 
especially near transit stops. However, filling gaps and expanding the existing sidewalk network 
near transit stops will make the transit system more attractive to potential users.  

YCTA service: YCTA bus routes currently stop at SW Langer Drive near Shari’s. While demand 
may not facilitate expanding service within Sherwood, YCTA could consider implementing stops 
at the existing park and ride lots. While extending service to the major transit stop in Old Town 
Sherwood would increase travel times along the existing bus routes, it would provide a more 
manageable transit option for Sherwood residents and employees traveling to and from Yamhill 
County.  

Development a transit center: The Old Town 
Sherwood transit stop along SW Railroad Street is 
identified as a major transit stop. This stop could 
act as a major transit center for TriMet and YCTA 
routes, as well as a potential local circulation 
route. While this stop provides shelter, seating, 
signage, and trash amenities, there is still 
potential for further streetscape and amenity 
improvements (e.g., bicycle parking, sidewalk 

                                                 
2 Sherwood is at the edge of the Metro area which dictates that passengers are generally getting off in the 
southbound direction and thus the stops generally do not have shelters.  The northbound locations are more 
likely to have shelters since boardings are more common. 

Old Town major transit stop 

493



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 12 

infill, pedestrian crossing enhancements). It is important to note right-of-way at this transit stop 
is constrained by the railroad just to the south. 

Local transit circulation: There is a need for a local Sherwood circulation route or expanded 
service as a large population of residents live outside a comfortable walking distance to existing 
transit. This route could connect residents to major trip attractors, especially TriMet and YCTA 
transit stops. 

 Future Needs 

Transit service in future growth areas: As shown in Figure 1, the Sherwood region will continue 
to grow internally as well as outside of the city limits. As these areas grow, so will demand for 
transit. Sherwood’s public transit system should be proactively planned to meet the needs of 
the growing city. This includes expanding sidewalk connectivity, improving existing amenities, 
developing new transit stops, improving frequency, and expanding operational hours in these 
growth areas.  

Motor Vehicle System 

The motor vehicle street system was reviewed to identify major street (collector and arterial) gaps in the 
street grid network as well as future year 2035 capacity needs. 

Connectivity Gaps 

Four collector gaps within the city were previously identified in the Existing Conditions Technical Report. 
These gaps were determined by comparing existing street spacing to the Metro Regional Transportation 
Functional Plan (RTFP) recommended spacing for arterial and collector streets. It was determined that 
arterial spacing in Sherwood is acceptable. Collector gaps in the city include: 

1. Meinecke Road to Sunset Boulevard between Highway 99W and Main Street 

2. Sunset Boulevard to Brookman Road between Old Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road 

3. Roy Rodgers Road to Edy Road between Borchers Drive and Elwert Road 

4. Edy Road to Handley Street between Highway 99W and Elwert Road 

These locations are mapped and described in further detail in the Opportunities and Constraints section. 

Mobility Needs 

A travel demand model was used to estimate future year 2035 conditions on the roadway system.  The 
model was based on Washington County’s latest 2035 Gamma model with additional refinements and 
detail (all public roads, lane turn lanes, and intersection control) to capture estimated future circulation 
patterns and congestion.  The model was applied as a screening tool to identify potential locations that 
may require additional operational or capacity improvements. The model assumed the following 
changes to the transportation system because of investments already committed or reasonably likely to 
be committed: 

494



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 13 

Improvements consistent with Washington County’s Tualatin-Sherwood Road project between 
Borchers Drive and Langer Farms Parkway (road cross section, intersection control, etc.) 

Improvements consistent with the developer agreement for Langer PUD (extension of Langer 
Farms Parkway from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to Highway 99W, Century Drive connection, traffic 
signal at Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Langer Farms Parkway). 

Major transportation elements of Tonquin Employment Area (new east-west collector with 
roundabout at Oregon Street and traffic signal at 124th Avenue) 

Major transportation elements of Brookman Area (traffic signal at Brookman Road and 99W) 

Traffic signal at Scholls-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers intersection. 

Even with the above transportation system improvements, the additional growth on the transportation 
system through year 2035 would increase congestion at many locations. Figure 5 and Figure 6 show the 
general operational performance for all roadway segments and intersections using level of service (LOS) 
and volume-to-capacity (V/C) performance measures.  LOS is similar to a report card rating to indicate 
general level of condition based on average delay.  The V/C ratio indicates the portion of overall capacity 
or “how full” a road or intersection is operating.  On both figures, segments and intersections shown in 
green are those that will operate relatively well, while those in warmer colors (up to dark red) indicate 
increasing levels of congestion 

Figure 5 indicates the general amount of traffic projected to use streets in the Sherwood area (based on 
the width of the color) and the general level of congestion (noted by warmer colors). The following road 
segments were identified as locations that are projected to be congested during evening peak hour 
conditions and may require additional capacity improvements by year 2035.  Locations along freight 
corridors are designated with *. 

OR 99W north of SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd* 
SW Roy Rogers Rd West of OR 99W* 
SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd east of OR 99W* 
SW Edy Rd west of OR 99W 
OR 99W south of SW Edy Rd* 
SW Oregon St east of SW Murdock Rd 
SW Sunset Blvd between SW Pinehurst Dr and SW Murdock Rd 
SW Langer Farms Pkwy south of SW Century Dr 

Many of the intersections expected to experience higher delays by 2035 are along these roadway 
segments. These intersection locations are mapped in Figure 5 (based on v/c ratio) and Figure 6 (based 
on LOS).  Many of these locations have high overall traffic volumes (such as traffic signals along Highway 
99W) or are unsignalized locations where side streets have delay waiting to make a turn (such as along 
Sunset Boulevard). For a complete list of flagged intersections that may require additional capacity 
improvements by 2035, refer to the appendix. 

495



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 14 

Figure 5: Year 2035 Projected Congestion Locations (V/C) 
 

  

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Rd

 

Ro
y 

Ro
ge

rs
 R

d 

Su
ns

et
 B

lv
d 

Elwert Rd 

496



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 15 

Figure 6: Year 2035 Projected Congestion Locations (LOS) 

 

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Rd

 

Ro
y 

Ro
ge

rs
 R

d 

Su
ns

et
 B

lv
d 

Elwert Rd 

497



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 16 

Freight Needs 

The motor vehicle capacity analysis conducted with the travel demand model was also summarized for 
freight corridors (OR 99W, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and Roy Rogers Road).  These corridors are major 
facilities that serve freight as well as high volumes of non-freight traffic.  Due to the high level of traffic 
on these corridors, they account for the majority of the existing congestion (delay) in the system. The 
existing delay on these corridors is approximately 55 percent of the system total.  In 2035, the amount 
of delay on these corridors is projected to grow to 60 percent of the total.  A number of roadway 
segments and intersections identified as capacity constraints are located along the freight corridors.  
Capacity constraints at these locations will need to be addressed in order to ensure the mobility of 
freight through the system. 

Safety Needs 

The following locations were identified as having safety needs based on a review of collision data. 

Road segments along Highway 99W 

o MP 14.91 to MP 15.09 (Tualatin-Sherwood Road intersection) 

o MP 16.61 to MP 16.73 (Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard intersection)  

o MP 15.92 to MP 16.01 (Meinecke Road intersection)  

Intersections 

o Highway 99W/Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road:  

The majority of the collisions occurred along Highway 99W in either direction 
and varied in distance from the intersection.  This pattern of rear-end collisions 
is common at signalized intersections on high speed/high volume facilities.  

There were a number of collisions on the side street approaches as well. Eight of 
the ten turning movement collisions occurred on Tualatin-Sherwood Road and 
involved vehicles turning right to travel north-eastbound on Highway 99W. This 
indicates a pattern that could be attributed to the yield condition and geometry 
of the right turn movement.  Vehicles starting to turn on the yield movement 
and then suddenly stopping before entering the highway may cause the 
following vehicle (that is anticipating that the first vehicle will enter the 
highway) to collide. The geometry and traffic control for this movement is 
subject to change with the Washington County improvements that are currently 
under design.  The congestion-related collision patterns at this location (rear-
end and misjudged gap-entry) may increase along with future traffic growth. 

o Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Cipole Road:  

Nearly all of the collisions occurred on Tualatin-Sherwood Road and slightly 
more occurred in the eastbound direction (34 collisions) versus the westbound 

498



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 17 

direction (26 collisions). In addition, almost one-third (19 of 62 collisions) 
involved more than two vehicles, which is a very high proportion of collisions 
and may indicate sudden breaking, possibly due to unanticipated stopping.  The 
rear-end collision pattern is related to congestion and may be due to the mix of 
the rural nature of the area with urban levels of congestion.  While these 
crashes may increase in the future along with traffic growth, the pattern also 
may decrease as the area becomes more urbanized and developed. 

o Highway 99W/Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard:  

Nearly all of the collisions occurred along Highway 99W, with nearly two-thirds 
occurring in the southbound direction. The collisions varied in distance from the 
intersection, and the horizontal and vertical curvature in Highway 99W may be a 
contributing factor.  The rural nature of this location may also contribute to 
driver expectancy issues related to drivers being unprepared to stop. The 
congestion related collision patterns on Highway 99W could increase along with 
future traffic growth.  However, the crash frequency could decrease as the area 
becomes more urbanized and drivers anticipate congestion and stopping on the 
highway. 

Sherwood Police Department indicated that there are many near collisions for 
traffic crossing the highway.  This is related to the shared lanes and traffic 
quickly maneuvering around vehicles that are stopped while yielding to on-
coming traffic.  These vehicles are obscured to the oncoming left turn vehicles. 

o Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Oregon Street:  

Compared with the other SPIS intersections, this intersection had proportionally 
more turning movement collisions (21%), and half of the turning collisions (five 
of ten collisions) involved a vehicle making the westbound left turn from 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road onto Oregon Street with most of these occurring 
during the PM peak hour (four of five collisions). This pattern is likely related to 
congestion and could be a result of a number of related issues including drivers 
near the end of queue following other vehicles beyond the protected green 
indication.  In addition, the traffic signal at this location was modified in June 
2008 to allow “permitted” (flashing yellow) left turn movements that require 
the turning vehicle yield to oncoming traffic.  Misjudgment of the oncoming 
vehicle speeds may have contributed to turning movement collisions at this 
location.  Additional growth and traffic volume is likely to increase these 
congestion-related collision patterns. 

o Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Gerda Lane:  

Similar to the Cipole Road intersection, nearly all of the collisions occurred on 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road. However, the directionality of collisions was reversed 

499



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Multi-Modal Transportation System Needs | Page 18 

and the majority occurred in the westbound direction (27 collisions) instead of 
the eastbound direction (16 collisions). Just over half of these collisions (14 of 27 
collisions) occurred during the midday or p.m. peak periods (11 a.m. to 1 p.m. or 
4 p.m. to 6 p.m.), likely due to higher traffic volumes.  A traffic signal was 
installed at this intersection in late December 2010. Two of the turning 
movement collisions (which are typically more dangerous) occurred before the 
signal was installed.  The third incident, while classified as a turn movement, 
occurred after the signal was installed and was related to a bus following a 
vehicle too closely and hitting it while it yielded to a pedestrian in the crosswalk.  
Therefore, no traditional turn movement collisions (typically made with a 
vehicle going straight and hitting a conflicting left turning vehicle) occurred after 
the signal was installed.   

As is generally typical for other locations, the rate of rear-end collisions at this 
location increased following the installation of the traffic signal. Only 8 of the 44 
collisions occurred during 2008 through 2010, while 36 occurred in the two 
years (2011 and 2012) following the traffic signal installation. This high 
incidence of rear-end collisions is likely to increase with future traffic growth 
along Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 

o Highway 99W/Meinecke Road:  

Nearly all of the collisions occurred along Highway 99W and varied in distance 
from the intersection. Slightly more occurred in the southbound direction (16 of 
the 27 collisions on Highway 99W).  This patterns of rear-end collisions is similar 
to the trend present at the other SPIS locations.   

This location also includes a higher portion of turn movement collisions.  Half of 
the turn movement collisions involved multiple vehicles making a northbound 
right from Meinecke onto Highway 99W.  These incidents may be related to 
overly-aggressive drivers similar to the pattern at Highway 99W/Tualatin-
Sherwood Road. The third observation present at this location is related to the 
higher number of fixed object collisions that involve vehicles driving into the 
ditch.  This pattern may be related to drivers misjudging the separated medians 
at each leg of the intersection, which has a greater separation than other 
intersections.   

 
  

500



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 19 

The Tools to Address Identified Needs 
A variety of potential improvements to address the needs of the transportation system through 2035 
are displayed in Table 3. These potential solutions are organized by improving walking, improving biking, 
improving transit, and improving driving in Sherwood.  

Table 3: Potential Tools to Address the Needs of the Transportation System 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Crosswalks 
High-visibility markings, often consisting of a "zebra" 
striping pattern, can be effective at locations with high 
pedestrian crossing volumes, near schools, and/or areas 
where motorist awareness of pedestrian crossings may be 
poor. 

 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Pedestrian Refuge Islands 
Refuge islands allow pedestrians to cross one segment of 
the street to a relatively safe location out of the travel 
lanes, and then continue across the next segment in a 
separate gap in traffic. Refuge islands are most appropriate 
at midblock crossings where right-of-way allows for 
adequate space between opposing travel lanes. 

 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Sidewalks and Sidewalk Infill 
Good sidewalks are continuous, accessible to everyone, 
provide adequate travel width and feel safe. Sidewalks can 
provide social spaces for people to interact and contribute 
to quality of place. Completing sidewalk gaps improves the 
connectivity of the pedestrian network. Sidewalk gap infill 
should be prioritized in higher demand areas. Sidewalk 
infill can often be addressed as frontage improvements 
when land develops or redevelops.   

 

501



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 20 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
w

al
ki

ng
 

Curb Extensions 
Curb extensions reduce the pedestrian crossing distance 
and improve motorists' visibility of pedestrians waiting to 
cross the street. Curb extensions can also serve as good 
locations for bike parking, benches, public art, and other 
streetscape features. Curb extensions are most 
appropriate where travel lanes are excessively wide, or 
where on-street parking is provided. 

 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) 
The RRFB is designed to encourage greater motorist 
compliance at crosswalks. The RRFB is a rectangular 
shaped lightbar with two high intensity LED lightheads that 
flash in a wig-wag flickering pattern. The lights are installed 
below the pedestrian crosswalk sign (located on each side 
of the road near the crosswalk button) and are activated 
when a pedestrian pushes the crosswalk button. RRFB’s 
are most applicable at midblock locations when 
pedestrians must cross multi-lane roadways, near schools, 
at locations with pedestrian safety issues, and at locations 
where pedestrian visibility is restricted. 

 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Streetscape Improvements 
Streetscape improvements are features that enhance the 
pedestrian experience. These include public art, pocket 
parks, ornamental lighting, gateway features and street 
furniture. Many of these improvements can easily 
integrate environmentally- friendly “green” elements. 
Potential streetscape improvements are often constrained 
by available right-of-way, and do not directly address the 
connectivity or gap needs. Streetscape improvements can 
typically be provided along facilities where sidewalks are 
greater than six feet in width, or where roadways are 
excessively wide.  

 

502



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 21 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
w

al
ki

ng
 

Pedestrian Countdown Signals 
Countdown signals display the number of seconds 
remaining for a pedestrian to complete a crossing, 
enabling users to make their own judgment whether to 
cross or wait based on their speed and comfort. The 
allotted time can be adjusted to accommodate slower 
pedestrians, such as seniors or children. 

 

w
al

ki
ng

 

Curb Ramp Retrofits 
Retrofitting ADA-compliant curb ramps to existing 
sidewalks greatly improves mobility and accessibility for 
mobility-impaired users. Curb ramps also improve the 
walking environment for pedestrians with strollers, 
delivery carts, and other "wheel" devices. 

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Bike Lanes 
Designated exclusively for bicycle travel, bike lanes are 
separated from vehicle travel lanes with striping and also 
include pavement stencils. Bike lanes are typically 
recommended along arterials and collectors, especially for 
roadways with high vehicle volumes and speeds. Right-of-
way often constrains quick installation of bike lanes and 
can often lead to tradeoffs with parking availability.  

bi
ki

ng
 

Bike Box 
A bike box is a designated area at the head of a traffic lane 
at a signalized intersection that provides bicyclists with a 
safe and visible way to get ahead of stopped traffic during 
the red signal phase. When a bike box is present, vehicles 
are prohibited from turning right during a red phase. Bike 
boxes may not be appropriate at signalized intersections 
with existing or expected congestion issues.  

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Bike Box for Left-turns at Signalized Intersections 
A bike box for left turns (otherwise known as a 
Copenhagen Left) allows bicyclists to make left-turns at 
intersections without having to veer across traffic. A 
bicyclist turns left by traveling through the intersection in 
the direction they are heading, and then waiting in the 
designated left-turn box before proceeding across the 
street on a green light. These are most appropriate for 
multi-lane roadways, especially those with high vehicles 
volumes and speeds. 

 

503



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 22 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
bi

ki
ng

 

Share the Road Signage 
‘Share the Road’ signage can be used to raise awareness 
and legitimize the presence of bicycles on the roadways. 
This signage is applicable to roadways where bike lanes are 
not necessarily appropriate (e.g., roadways with low 
vehicle volumes and speeds). ‘Share the Road’ signage can 
be used to supplement shared lane markings. 

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Shared Lane Marking 
Shared-lane markings or “sharrows” are designed to 
inform motorists to expect cyclists to be in the middle of 
the travel lane, and to inform cyclists that they should be 
in the travel lane and away from parked cars. An uphill bike 
lane and downhill shared lane markings can be used on 
hilly routes that do not have room to accommodate bike 
lanes in both directions. Shared lane markings should not 
be used on facilities where vehicle speeds are significantly 
greater than bicyclist speeds. Roads with under 3,000 
vehicles per day and speeds under 25 miles per hour are 
typically best suited for shared lane markings. 

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Bicycle Boulevard/Neighborhood Greenway 
Traffic calming can be used to optimize neighborhood 
streets for bicycle and pedestrian travel. Intersection 
improvements can be made to assist bicyclists at difficult 
roadway crossings. A roadway should only be converted to 
a bicycle boulevard where it is appropriate to discourage 
through-motor vehicle traffic. Bicycle boulevards work well 
when a parallel route is available to motorists.   

 

Bi
ki

ng
/w

al
ki

ng
 

Shared-use paths 
Shared-use paths can provide a desirable facility 
particularly for novice riders, recreational trips, and cyclists 
of all skill levels preferring separation from traffic. Facilities 
may be constructed adjacent to roads, through parks, or 
along linear corridors such as active or abandoned railroad 
lines or waterways. Shared-use paths are a useful tool 
when both bicycle and pedestrian gaps are present, 
especially when right-of-way is constrained along one side 
of the roadway. When right-of-way is constrained, shared-
use paths may provide a less impactful solution to 
providing full pedestrian and bicycle facilities than a typical 
cross-section with bike lanes and sidewalks. 

 

504



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 23 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
bi

ki
ng

 

Wayfinding Signage and Pavement Markings 
Directional signage indicating locations of destinations and 
travel time/distance to those destinations increases users’ 
comfort and accessibility to the pedestrian and bicycle 
systems. Pavement markings can be used on bicycle 
boulevards, which are low-traffic bike routes without bike 
lanes. Wayfinding signage also helps direct bicyclists to 
routes with comfortable bicycle facilities.  

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Colored Bike Lanes 
Colored bike lanes are used in areas where automobiles 
and bicycles cross paths and it is not clear who has the 
right-of-way. Colored bike lanes and accompanying signs 
assign priority to the bicyclist. Due to required 
maintenance of repainting the bike lane, colored bike lanes 
are not typically a system-wide solution.  

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Bicycle Detection at Signalized Intersections 
Bicycle-activated loop detectors are installed within the 
roadway to allow the presence of a bicycle to trigger a 
change in the traffic signal.  Detectors that are sensitive 
enough to detect bicycles should have pavement markings 
to instruct cyclists how to activate them. Bicycle detection 
is most effective at locations with significant bicycle 
activity and where traffic signal phases are often skipped 
due to low motor vehicle traffic. 
 

 

bi
ki

ng
 

Bicycle Parking 
Short-term parking: parking meant to accommodate 
visitors, customers and others expected to depart within 
two hours; requires approved standard rack, appropriate 
location and placement, and weather protection. 
 
Long-term parking: parking meant to accommodate 
employees, students, residents, commuters, and others 
expected to park more than two hours. This parking should 
be provided in a secure, weather-protected manner and 
location. 
 
Bicycle parking is typically most appropriate at bus stops, 
schools, parks, major commercial or employment 
locations, and other trip attractors.  

 
 
 

 

505



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 24 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
tr

an
si

t 
Transit Stop Enhancements 
Provision of passenger amenities at bus stops creates a 
more pleasant and attractive environment for bus riders 
and may encourage people to use the transit system.  
Common amenities include: shelters, benches, trash cans, 
and bus route information. 
 
Shelters should be placed at least 2 feet from the curb 
when facing away from the street and at least 4 feet away 
when facing toward it.  The adjacent sidewalk must still 
have a 5-foot clear passage.  Orientation of the shelter 
should consider prevailing winter winds.  

tr
an

si
t 

Construct Bus Pullouts 
Bus pullouts allow transit vehicles to pick up and drop off 
passengers in an area outside the traveled way and are 
generally provided on high-volume and/or high-speed 
roadways.  They are frequently constructed at bus stops 
with a high number of passenger boardings such as large 
shopping centers and office buildings. 
 
By removing stopped buses from travel lanes, delay to 
traffic is considerably reduced and safety is enhanced by 
removing an obstruction from the traveled way.  They also 
help better define bus stop locations, can be used for bus 
layovers, and create a more relaxed environment for 
loading and unloading. Available right-of-way often 
constrains the ability to provide a bus pullout. 

 

tr
an

si
t 

Move Bus Stops to Far Side of Signalized Intersections 
On multi-lane streets or streets with wide shoulders where 
motor vehicles may pass uncontrolled around a stopped 
bus, bus stops located on the far side of intersections are 
preferred to provide needed sight distance.  At signalized 
intersections, bus stops may be located on either the near 
side or far side of the intersection.  However, in locations 
where bus pullouts are desired, far-side stops should be 
used.   
 
In general, far-side bus stops are desired because they 
reduce conflicts with right turning vehicles, encourage 
pedestrians to cross behind the bus, minimize the area 
needed for curbside bus zones, make it easier for buses to 
reenter traffic at signalized intersections, and have fewer 
impacts on roadway capacity.  However, far-side stops also 
require passengers to access the bus further from the 
crosswalks, may interfere with right turns from the side 
street, and where pullouts are not used, can result in 
blockages of an intersection. 

 

506



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 25 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
dr

iv
in

g 
Construct Turn Lanes to separate Turning Vehicles from 
Through Traffic 
The provision of turn lanes (left or right) removes slowing 
or stopped vehicles attempting to turn off of a roadway 
from faster moving through traffic.  This not only provides 
significant safety benefits, but also enhances system 
capacity.    

dr
iv

in
g 

Modernization to meet Design Standards 
The modernization of a roadway generally refers to 
upgrading elements to meet current design standards and 
capacity needs.  Outdated roadway designs may not be 
serving present day demands due to insufficient number 
and width of lanes, poor geometry, or failure to 
accommodate a particular mode of travel (e.g., no bike 
lanes).   

 

dr
iv

in
g 

Modify Intersection Approach Geometry 
When the configuration of through and turn lanes at 
intersection approaches does not properly reflect the 
demand for these movements, the right of way at 
signalized intersections cannot be efficiently utilized.  Also, 
poor alignment of opposing lanes or mismatched left turn 
treatments often require signal phasing that may not be 
the most effective option for maximizing through capacity.  
By reconfiguring the number and type of lanes 
approaching a signalized intersection, significant 
improvements in capacity may be achieved.  

 

dr
iv

in
g 

Signal Timing Enhancements 
The assignment of right of way to competing movements 
at an intersection plays a critical role in the overall capacity 
of that intersection and the roadway itself.  Old signal 
timing plans may not be appropriately serving current 
demands or may not be designed to accommodate 
fluctuating demands throughout the day or week.  Also, 
timing plans can be created based on specific priorities, 
such as giving preference to the mainline during peak 
travel periods.  In some situations, signal timing may be 
adequate, but adjacent signals are not equipped to 
communicate with each other or are too close together to 
coordinate properly. Signal timing enhancements can be a 
quick and cheap solution to reducing congestion at 
signalized intersections. 

 

507



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 26 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
dr

iv
in

g 
Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) 
Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) come in many 
forms and have numerous applications.  In general, they 
include any number of ways of collecting and conveying 
information regarding roadway operations to agency staff 
managing the facility or to motorists.  This can allow both 
operators and motorists to make informed decisions based 
on real-time information, leading to quicker responses to 
incidents, diversion away from congestion, and increased 
efficiencies in roadway operation.  

dr
iv

in
g 

Restriction of Left Turns at Traffic Signals 
Because left turn and through movements are often 
competing for limited right of way, the removal of left 
turns from an intersection, either completely or during a 
specific time of day, can significantly improve through 
traffic capacity.  If left turns are restricted, a practical 
alternative route should be available. While removing left 
turns at signalized intersections can improve conditions at 
the respective intersection, it could have detrimental 
effects to the transportation system as a whole and may 
“move the problem”. 

 

dr
iv

in
g 

Restrict Turning Movements at Approaches 
The number of conflict points on a roadway introduced by 
a particular approach can be significantly reduced by 
restricting turn movements, such as allowing only right-in 
and right-out movements, allowing only right-in 
movements, or prohibiting only left-out movements (as 
shown in graphic).  This treatment is most appropriate for 
developments with several accesses or where left turns 
out of the access are difficult due to high conflicting 
volumes. Restricting turning movements can also present 
the opportunity to install non-traversable medians. 

 

dr
iv

in
g 

Construct Non-traversable Medians 
The construction of non-traversable medians is a means of 
reducing the number of conflict points introduced on a 
roadway by approaches.  Non-traversable medians can be 
simple concrete islands or barriers or can be constructed 
to include landscaping or other decorated treatments.  
Stamping colored concrete with a brick or rock pattern is a 
simple median treatment that may be more aesthetically 
pleasing that plain concrete. They can also be used to 
accommodate pedestrian refuges or can have breaks 
allowing for limited or full turning movements.  

508



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
The Tools to Address Identified Needs | Page 27 

MODE TOOL EXAMPLE 
dr

iv
in

g 
Provide Alternate Access through Improved Local Street 
Connectivity 
Reasonable alternate access can be provided where it does 
not currently exist by constructing new roadways adjacent 
to properties that abut a high volume roadway.  Such 
roadways can take the form of frontage roads, backage 
roads, or can simply be new collector or local streets.   

dr
iv

in
g 

Move Approaches to Lower Volume Facilities 
This treatment is often a good option for properties 
fronting high volume streets (such as Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road) that also have frontage along lower volume road.  
However, where existing site circulation or building 
locations create a dependency for the pre-existing access, 
the ability to change site access may require total or partial 
site redevelopment.  Also, before access is reestablished to 
a side street, it should be confirmed that there would be 
adequate separation between the new driveway and the 
intersection with the high volume roadway to avoid 
turning conflicts or frequent obstruction by vehicle queues.  

dr
iv

in
g 

Consolidate Multiple Approaches to Single Properties 
A common method of reducing approach density is to 
eliminate multiple approaches to a single property where 
feasible.  This can be done where it has been determined 
that the property can adequately be served with fewer 
approaches than it currently maintains.  However, where 
existing site circulation or building locations create a 
dependency for the pre-existing roadway access, the ability 
to change site access may require total or partial site 
redevelopment.  

dr
iv

in
g 

Create Shared Approaches to Properties using Easements 
or under Common Ownership 
Sharing an approach to a roadway is a means of 
consolidating approaches while providing direct access to 
properties that might not otherwise have it.  This tool is 
most advantageous when applied between two landlocked 
properties that have no other means of reasonable access 
than to a high volume roadway.  Such properties would 
typically be provided their own approach.  However, when 
a shared approach can be arranged, the end result is only 
one approach to the roadway rather than two.   

 

dr
iv

in
g 

Intersection or Roadway Capacity Enhancements 
Capacity improvements at intersections (adding turn lanes 
or changing traffic control) are considered system 
management measures and are generally preferred over 
widening an entire corridor. Roadway widening 
improvements should only be considered if all other 
strategies have been explored and considered insufficient 
(see the Evaluation Criteria section). 

 

509



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Opportunities and Constraints | Page 28 

Opportunities and Constraints  
This section identifies the opportunities and constraints of transportation system gaps previously 
identified in this memorandum. These items will be considered as solutions are identified and assessed 
during the next phase of the planning process. Due to the limitations in local and regional transportation 
funding opportunities, issues related to project cost can become significant obstacles.  As projects are 
identified and prioritized, general considerations for project cost can impact project feasibility. 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Gaps 

For each of the identified existing and high priority pedestrian and bicycle gaps, opportunities and 
constraints are discussed at a high-level.  

Highway 99W Sidewalks: With at least 180 feet of right-of-way and existing pavement widths 
around 140 feet, there is ample space to build a complete sidewalk network along Highway 
99W. 

Oregon Street Sidewalks: West of Murdock Road, a sidewalk gap exists along a strip of 
residences between Hall Street and Orland Street—there are no significant constraints regarding 
infill at this location. East of Murdock Road, a long sidewalk gap exists along the east side of 
Oregon Street—sidewalks could be built at this location as the adjacent properties develop. 

Edy Road Sidewalks: Several sidewalk gaps exist along Edy Road. Infill may be possible with 
minimal right-of-way impacts. Just east of Settlement Drive, a guardrail lines the south side of 
the street—sidewalk infill at this location may be difficult.  

12th Street Sidewalks: While residences line the sidewalk gap along the south side of 12th Street, 
available right-of-way appears to extends south past the roadway. Therefore, there is potential 
for building sidewalk south of the roadway. There is also an opportunity to reduce the motor 
vehicle width of the roadway to provide additional space for sidewalk if necessary, as the two-
lane facility is at least 35 feet wide with parking allowed on the south side only.  

Meinecke Road Sidewalks: While the gap of sidewalk along Meinecke Road is located near 
wetland, sidewalk infill may be possible without impact to the wetland.  However, design 
opportunities may be constrained by the wetland proximity. 

Division Street Sidewalks: Many sidewalk gaps exist along Division Street. While street and 
right-of-way widths change frequently, providing continuous pedestrian facilities is likely 
possible. It is important to note that while sidewalk infill would likely be built within right-of-
way, it would be built across the frontage of many residential properties in the area. 

Glen Eagle Neighborhood Sidewalks: Building a sidewalk network in the Glen Eagle 
neighborhood would require building sidewalk along the frontage of residences in the area. In 
some locations these improvements may be achieved within existing right-of-way. Lower impact 
options could include building sidewalk on only one side of the street, or building sidewalk over 
existing pavement (effectively removing on-street parking). 

510



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Opportunities and Constraints | Page 29 

 
Edy Road Bike Facilities: Several gaps in bicycle facilities existing along Edy Road, especially on 
the south side. To provide adequate separated facilities for bicycles, the roadway would need to 
be widened. Widening the roadway for bikes, and filling sidewalk gaps may be difficult within 
existing right-of-way. Also, just east of Settlement Drive, a guardrail lines the south side of the 
street, which would make roadway widening difficult at this location, especially considering 
adjacent wetland areas. No adjacent parallel facilities exist that could provide alternative 
facilities for bikes. 

Borchers Drive Bike Facilities: Borchers Drive is a relatively wide facility that may be able to 
accommodate bike lanes through striping. There is a short pinch-point near Daffodil Street that 
would need to be widened along the east side, which could be addressed as the adjacent 
property is developed.  

Roy Rodgers Road Bike Facilities: The Tualatin Sherwood Road (SW Borchers Drive to SW 
Adams Avenue) project is currently being designed. It is likely that buffered bike lanes will soon 
be constructed through this bike gap as a continuation of the buffered bike lanes located to the 
east on Tualatin-Sherwood Road.  

Langer Drive Bike Facilities: Langer Drive is not wide enough to accommodate bicycle facilities, 
unless the center turn lane is removed. There is potential to widen the roadway to 
accommodate bike lanes. However, this would require removing and rebuilding sidewalks and 
landscaping, which is currently in good condition. The Sherwood Town Center Plan3 
recommends reallocating the center turn lane to provide for buffered bike lanes or a cycle track.  

Baler Road Bike Facilities: There may be enough right-of-way to widen this short section of 
roadway (approximately 240 feet) to accommodate bike lanes. However, bike lanes may not be 
appropriate in the northbound direction as the majority of northbound travelers turns left or 
right at the Tualatin-Sherwood Road intersection. There is also potential to remove the 
southbound left turn refuge to provide a southbound bike lane. The Sherwood Town Center 
Plan proposes accommodating bike lanes along Baler Road from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to 
Century Drive. 

12th Street Bike Facilities: 12th Street is a two-lane facility with on-street parking along the south 
side. There is potential for reducing the motor vehicle with of the roadway to accommodate 
bike lanes, which may result in a loss of on-street parking. However, the need for pedestrian 
facilities along the south side of the street may restrict the potential to widen the roadway for 
bike lanes. The Sherwood Town Center Plan identifies that this facility is planned to 
accommodate bike lanes. 

Sherwood Boulevard Bike Facilities: Dieting the road to provide bicycle facilities would 
requirement removal of the center turn lane. This is an unfavorable option as the center turn 

                                                 
3 Sherwood Town Center Plan, City of Sherwood, June 2013. 

511



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Opportunities and Constraints | Page 30 

lane provides refuge for motorists turning left into the numerous accesses along the facility, and 
allows for the pedestrian refuge islands at the two midblock school crossings. The Sherwood 
Town Center Plan recommends replacing the sidewalk on the east side with a wider shared-use 
path to accommodate bicyclists. 

Pine Street Bike Facilities: In Old Town Sherwood, Pine Street is a two-lane facility with on-
street parking along both sides of the street. Widening the roadway would impact buildings, 
especially City Hall. Bicycles can either be accommodated through shared street signing and/or 
pavement marking. The traffic speed and volumes in Old Town are likely to remain within 
thresholds for shared lane bikeways. 

South of Old Town Sherwood, Pine Street is a narrow two-lane facility. To accommodate bike 
lanes, the roadway would need to be widened. It may be possible to widen the roadway within 
available right-of-way. It is important to note that widening the roadway would cut into the 
frontage of the residential corridor. The Sherwood Town Center Plan identifies that this facility is 
planned to be a shared roadway. 

Meinecke Road-Washington Street Bike Facilities: West of Old Town Sherwood, the cross-
section of Meinecke Road-Washington Street has significant variation. North of the bridge, the 
roadway narrows to two-lanes. It may be possible to widen the roadway to include bike lanes 
and sidewalks while staying within existing right-of-way. At the bridge, separated bicycle 
facilities cannot be provided. South of the bridge, the roadway is wide enough to stripe bike 
lanes. However, this would require prohibiting on-street parking, thus removing a handful of 
parking spaces near the Woodhaven Community Church. The Sherwood Town Center Plan 
identifies that this facility is planned to accommodate bike lanes.  

Within Old Town Sherwood, the only opportunity to provide separate bicycle facilities would 
involve removal of on-street parking. The preferred option here is likely to sign/stripe the 
roadway as a shared facility. The traffic speed and volumes in Old Town are likely to remain 
within thresholds for shared lane bikeways. 

Main Street Bike Facilities: There is not available right-of-way to widen the cross-section to 
include bike lanes along Main Street. While this narrow 24-foot roadway cannot provide for bike 
lanes, separated sidewalks line the corridor. A likely unfavorable option would be to remove the 
landscape buffer between the roadway and sidewalks, and dedicate the space for bike lanes. 
Given this constraint, the facility may continue to be a shared roadway, where bicyclists have 
the option to ride along the sidewalk. The Sherwood Town Center Plan identifies that this facility 
is planned to be a shared roadway.  

Oregon Street Bike Facilities: The south side of Oregon Street is lined with residences, and the 
north side is bordered by a rail line and undeveloped property. The rail line and developed 
properties may constrain the potential for widening the roadway to include bike lanes. With the 
need for sidewalk along the south side of the street, extending the shared-use path that ends at 

512



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Opportunities and Constraints | Page 31 

Langer Farms Parkway is a potential solution, and is identified in the Sherwood Town Center 
Plan as a planned improvement. 

Street Network (Collector Facility) Gaps 

Opportunities and constraints for each of the collector roadway gaps are discussed in the following 
section. The connectivity gaps are shown in Figure 7 and summarized in Table 4 

Figure 7: Arterial and Collector Gaps in System Connectivity  

 

These locations, as mapped in Figure 7, have the following opportunities and constraints: 

1. North-South gap - Meinecke Road to Sunset Boulevard (between Highway 99W and Main 
Street): This area is heavily constrained by established residential neighborhoods, in addition to 
the rail line and the creek. Building a new collector facility through this area is infeasible. 
Pinehurst Drive and Dewey Drive are neighborhood routes that provide north-south 
connectivity in the area. However, due to the number of residences and driveways along these 
routes, upgrading the streets to a collector classification may not be optimal for a mobility 
function. 

2. North-South gap - Sunset Boulevard to Brookman Road (between Old Highway 99W and Ladd 
Hill Road): This area is also constrained by established residential neighborhoods and the rail 

1 

2 

4 

3 

513



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Opportunities and Constraints | Page 32 

line. Pinehurst Drive presents an ideal conceptual alignment for a collector in this area. 
However, it is lined with residences and driveways. In addition, to continue Pinehurst Drive 
south, it would require acquiring two residences at the south terminus.  This combination of 
constraints make this gap difficult to address. 

3. North-South gap - Roy Rodgers Road to Edy Road (between Borchers Drive and Elwert Road): 
While the Houston Drive and Lynnly Way facilities provide a north-south neighborhood route in 
the area, there is potential to create a more direct collector route just to the west. A new 
collector through this area may impact a small number of properties, though rail and 
environmental constraints do not appear to exist. 

4. North-South gap - Edy Road to Handley Street (between Highway 99W and Elwert Road): The 
Bedstraw Terrace-Ladyfern Drive-Roellich Avenue neighborhood route fits the ideal collector 
spacing. However, this route is lined with residences and driveways the entire length, and is 
kinked by two three-leg intersections. Therefore, upgrading this route to a collector facility is 
not ideal as mobility would be significantly restricted. There are no opportunities for parallel 
routes due to wetland constraints to the east and existing development (e.g., established 
residences, Laurel Ridge Middle School) constraints to the west of the neighborhood route.  

 
Table 4: Summary of Connectivity Gap Opportunities and Constraints 

Location 

Constraints Opportunities 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 

Ra
il 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

U
nd

ev
el

op
ed

 
RO

W
 (F

ut
ur

e 
Co

nn
ec

tio
n)

 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

1) Meinecke Road to Sunset Boulevard 
between Highway 99W and Main Street X X X  X 

2) Sunset Boulevard to Brookman Road 
between Old Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road 

 X X X X 

3) Roy Rodgers Road to Edy Road between 
Borchers Drive and Elwert Road 

  X X  

4) Edy Road to Handley Street between 
Highway 99W and Elwert Road X  X  X 

 
 

 

  

514



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Evaluation Criteria | Page 33 

Evaluation Criteria 
When determining the prioritization and inclusion of projects in the Sherwood TSP Update, proposed 
projects will be evaluated based on the Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) hierarchy 
of strategies. As outlined in section 3.08.022, the hierarchy of strategies is as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As shown in the above hierarchy, TSMO projects will be prioritized above all other projects, and motor 
vehicle capacity improvement projects will be considered last. 

Potential evaluation criteria were developed based on the content of Sherwood’s transportation goals 
and policies.  These potential criteria, listed in Table 5, may be implemented on a qualitative and 
quantitative basis to determine how potential transportation improvements align with local objectives. 

  

1. Transportation System 
Management and Operations 

(TSMO) strategies 

2. Transit, bicycle, and 
pedestrian system 

improvements 

3. Traffic-calming designs and 
devices 

4. Land use strategies  

5. Connectivity improvements  

6. Motor vehicle capacity 
improvements 

This includes Transportation Demand Management (TDM), safety, 
operational, and access management improvements. 

These land use strategies—set forth in the Oregon Administrative 
Rules (OAR), section 660-012-0035 (2)—are designed to reduce 
trip distances and to promote walking, biking, and transit use. 

Connectivity improvements to provide parallel routes, which 
include pedestrian and bicycle facilities. This includes connectivity 
improvements for roadways of all functional classifications. 

These improvements will only be considered if it is determined 
that other strategies are not appropriate or cannot adequately 
address identified transportation needs. 

Improving safety (or perceived safety) for bicyclists and 
pedestrians through traffic calming techniques may increase non-
motorized travel. 

Improving connectivity and providing better amenities for 
pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit users presents motorists with 
an attractive alternative to driving. 

515



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Evaluation Criteria | Page 34 

Table 5: Potential Evaluation Criteria for Project Analysis 
Policy Measure Evaluation Score 

Goal 1. Provide a transportation network supportive to land use plans and alternative modes 

Circulation 
Improves mobility through separation of local 
and through traffic 

+1 Increases separation of through and local trips on 
differentiated facilities 

0 No change 

-1 Further mixes local and through traffic on same 
facilities  

Hierarchy 
Classifies and improves roadways according to 
designation and accompanying design standards 

+1 Adds roadway improvement consistent with roadway 
intent/purpose 

0 No change 

-1 Doesn’t follow hierarchy and accompanying design 
standards 

Encourages non-auto modes of travel 
Adds bikeway, walkways, trails, transit facilities 
or other projects to encourage alternative modes 
of travel 

+1 Encourages non-auto trips 

0 No change 

-1 Discourages non-auto trips 

Pollution Impact 
Minimizes transportation related pollution to air 
and water 

+1 Minimizes impacts to  air or water quality 

0 Has  average environmental impact 

-1 Has greater environmental impact than alternatives  

Demand Management 
Invests in demand management strategies 

+1 Reduces demand for single occupant trips 

0 Has no impact 

-1 Increases SOV demand on network 

Goal 2. Develop a transportation system consistent with adopted local, state and regional plans 

Compatibility 
Compatible with other jurisdiction’s plans and 
policies, (including adjacent cities, counties, 
Metro or ODOT). 

+1 Compatible with other plans and contributes to their 
implementation 

0 Compatible with other plans, but does not necessarily 
contribute to their implementation 

-1 Not compatible with other plans 

Agency Standards 
Consistent with the standards of the City, Region, 
and State as a whole. 

+1 Consistent with all standards 

0 May require some deviations to standards, but likely to 
be approved 

-1 Inconsistent with standards and not expected that 
deviations would be approved 

Modal Targets 
Contributes to the establishment of, and 
achievement toward meeting non-single 
occupant modal targets for all design types 
established in 2040 Growth Concept 

+1 Contributes to meeting modal targets 

0 No impact on mode share 

-1 Negative impact on meeting modal targets 

516



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Evaluation Criteria | Page 35 

Policy Measure Evaluation Score 

Goal 3. Establish design and development regulations to promote multi-modal transportation 

Land Development Standards 
Promotes standardized processes for developers 
to assess and accommodate transportation 
impacts from development 
 

+1 Creates or abides by standardized development 
procedures 

0 No impact on development processes  

-1 Avoids standardizing procedures 

Roadway Design Standards 
Promotes standardized cross-sections that 
ensure sufficient right of way for bikeway and 
pedestrian movements. 

+1 Promotes standardized cross-sections  that 
accommodate all modes 

0 Has no effect on roadway design 

-1 Does not meet design standards for applicable modes 

Access Management Standards 
Promotes standardized property access and 
spacing standards for all roadway classifications  

+1 Creates or applies access and spacing standards  

0 Has no impact on access and spacing  

-1 Does not meet or apply standards to access and 
spacing 

Traffic Calming Measures 
Promotes standards and guidelines that 
encourage traffic calming and pedestrian friendly 
environments  

+1 Promotes or builds traffic calming measures 

0  Has no effect on traffic calming initiatives  

-1 Undermines pedestrian friendly environment 

Goal 4. Develop bicycle & pedestrian infrastructure to provide residents more options 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities 
Adds bikeway and walkways that fill in system 
gaps, improve system connectivity, and are 
accessible to all users. 

+1 Improves pedestrian or bicycle connectivity or 
accessibility 

0 No change 

-1 Reduces connectivity or accessibility 

Connections to Regional Trails 
Supports connections to regional pedestrian and 
bicycle trails, particularly to recreation areas 

+1 Connectivity to regional trails 

0 Has no impact on connectivity to regional trails 

-1 Negative impact on connectivity to regional trails  

Access for All 
Eliminate physical and architectural barriers from 
public spaces that limit disabled and elderly 
access 

+1 Improves accessibility to public spaces 

0 No change 

-1 Negative affect on accessibility  

517



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Evaluation Criteria | Page 36 

Policy Measure Evaluation Score 

Goal 5. Provide reliable, convenient transit service and special options to residents and businesses  

Expands Transit Service 
Adds service hours, additional routes, stops, or 
special ride services. 

+1 Improves/ increases transit service 

0 No change 

-1 Negative impact on transit services 

Transit Supportive Infrastructure 
Improves transit supportive infrastructure and 
facilities 

+1 Improves transit infrastructure 

0 No change 

-1 Negatively impacts transit infrastructure 

Future Needs 
Supports preservation and development of 
future right of way (ROW) to support commuter 
rail services 

+1 Preserves future ROW 

0 No change 

-1 Endangers ROW preservation 

Goal 6. Provide safe and convenient connections within and between Old Town and the Six Corners Area 

Design Standards  
Develops or refines special standards to facilitate 
pedestrian and transit friendly development in 
Old Town and Six Corners  

+1 Contributes to pedestrian & transit friendly 
environment in Old Town/ Six Corners Area  

0 No change 

-1 Has adverse effect on pedestrian or transit 
environment in Old Town/ Six Corners Area 

Corridor Connectivity 
Improves connectivity through acquisitions and 
dedications to achieve better street spacing and 
enhance off-street trail system 

+1 Improves roadway connectivity 

0 No change 

-1 Negative impact on roadway connectivity 

Goal 7. Develop and maintain freight infrastructure to support local and regional economic expansion and 
diversification goals 

Freight Mobility 
Invests in infrastructure and services needed to 
meet current and future demand  

+1 Improves freight mobility 

0 No change 

-1 Degrades freight mobility 

Freight Access 
Regulates and improves access, including loading 
and transfer facilities  

+1 Improves freight access 

0 No change 

-1 Degrades freight mobility 

518



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Evaluation Criteria | Page 37 

Policy Measure Evaluation Score 

Intermodal Connectivity 
Partners with local, regional and state entities to 
support intermodal facilities for seamless freight 
transfer. 

+1 Promotes intermodal freight connections 

0 Has  no effect on intermodal freight  

-1 Degrades intermodal freight connections 

Goal 8. Manage the system to ensure timely implementation and updates to comply with evolving local and 
regional priorities 

Funding 
Leverages local, regional, state, federal or private 
funds. 

+1 Funding sources and partnerships available 

0 Feasible costs, but no identified funding 

-1 High costs and no identified funding 

Project Compatibility 
Project  or policy is listed on Capital 
Improvement Plan, or other approved planning 
document 

+1 Project identified in other approved plans 

0 Project previously identified, but not approved in plan  

-1 Project doesn’t exist in other planning documents 

    

  

519



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Plan and Policy Compliance | Page 38 

Plan and Policy Compliance 
Sherwood’s TSP and land use regulations were evaluated for compliance with state and regional 
requirements identified in the Plan and Policy Summary Report.  Specifically, the evaluation focused on 
compliance with the State’s Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro’s Regional Transportation 
Functional Plan (RTFP). In conducting this evaluation, we reviewed the following documents: 

2005 TSP; 

City of Sherwood Title 16, Zoning and Community Development Code (“development code” 
or “code”); and  

City of Sherwood Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual (“engineering manual”), 
Sections 120 (Street Design), 210 (Street Design), 420 (Shared-Use Paths), 430 (On-Street 
Facilities), and 440 (Bicycle Parking Standards). 

The findings and recommendations are intended as starting points in identifying and discussing specific 
amendments that may be necessary to implement the recommendations of the updated TSP, as well as 
to meet regional and state requirements.  The full set of requirements and additional findings about 
how the requirements are addressed through the existing plans and policies are provided in the 
appendix. 

Summary of Recommendations 

A detailed review of how the City’s TSP update will comply with the RTFP and an evaluation of adopted 
development code and engineering standards for compliance with the RTFP and the TPR have been 
conducted.  The following tables highlight issues identified in this detailed evaluation that will need to 
be discussed and addressed as part of the TSP update: 

Table 6: Issues Related to TSP Elements 

Table 7: Issues Related to the Development Code 

Table 8: Issues Related to Policy 

Table 9: Issues Related to the Engineering Manual. 

Note that the numbering in these tables does not indicate importance, but is provided for reference and 
to aid in future discussions.  RTFP and TPR citations also are provided for reference. 

  

520



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Plan and Policy Compliance | Page 39 

Table 6: Issues Related to TSP Elements 

 Notes/Recommendations for Updating the TSP TPR or RTFP Reference 

TSP-1 Identify bike and pedestrian improvements needed to 
connect to transit stops, considering the proximity of 
transit stops to activity generators and the available 
facilities that connect them. 

RTFP Section 3.08.120A 
Transit System Design 

TSP-2 Re-inventory and reevaluate the City’s transit network, 
using Chapter 7 (Transit) of the current TSP as a starting 
point. Reprioritize the prior projects and identify new 
projects as necessary, with particular emphasis on 
connecting and integrating all travel modes. 

RTFP Section 3.08.120B.1 
Transit System Design 

TSP-3 Evaluate the City’s collector and arterial grid system and 
identify system gaps and deficiencies, including regional 
needs consistent with the RTP. 

RTFP Section 3.08.210 
Transportation Needs 

TSP-4 Address the needs of youth, seniors, people with 
disabilities, and environmental justice populations through 
ADA compliant design standards and transit service 
improvements. 

RTFP Section 3.08.210 
Transportation Needs 

TSP-5 Evaluate prioritized list of RTFP strategies and their 
anticipated effect on the transportation system (see list in 
RTFP). Provide list of recommended strategies and projects, 
with preference given to those strategies at the top of the 
list. Include documentation and analysis of all 
recommendations and coordinate with Washington County, 
Metro, TriMet, and/or ODOT for projects on the City 
outskirts and for larger projects serving regional needs. 

RTFP Section 3.08.220 
Transportation Solutions 

 

Table 7: Issues Related to the Development Code 

 Recommendations for Updating the Development Code  TPR or RTFP Reference  

DC-1 Identify and update all references to the TSP in the code.  

DC-2 Ensure that code requirements in Chapter 16.96 (On-site 
Circulation) and Chapter 16.106 (Transportation Facilities) 
related to access spacing/management and design of 
streets, bikeways, sidewalks, and accessways/paths are 
consistent with the standards established in the updated 
TSP. 

TPR Section -0045(2)(a)  
Access Control 

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 
On-site Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Circulation and Connections 

TPR Section -0045(7) 
Minimizing Roadway Width 

RTFP Section 3.08.110B 

521



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Plan and Policy Compliance | Page 40 

 Recommendations for Updating the Development Code  TPR or RTFP Reference  

Street System Design for 
Pedestrian and Bicycle Access 

DC-3 Define or update the following terms and ensure 
consistency between the TSP, code, and engineering 
manual: accessway, multi-use path, and shared-use path.   

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 
On-site Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Circulation and Connections 

RTFP Sections 3.08.110B & E 
Street System Design 

DC-4 Consider whether providing additional guidance in Code 
Sections 16.90.030.D and 16.106.040, and/or a new 
section, regarding the preparation of TIAs is desired. 

TPR Section -0045(2)(b) 
Standards to Protect Roadways 

DC-5 Given TPR requirements for coordinated review, consider 
whether inviting transportation facility and service 
providers to pre-application conferences would be helpful 
to the review process and thus would be language to 
include in the code (Section 16.70.010). 

TPR Section -0045(2)(d) 
Coordinated Review of Land 
Use Decisions 

DC-6 Consider providing more guidance about the 
meaning/definition of “preferential” carpool and vanpool 
parking spaces in parking provisions in Section 
16.94.010.E.3.a. 

TPR  Section -0045(4)(d)  
Employee Parking  

DC-7 Consider code changes if there are TDM program 
elements developed for the updated TSP that lend 
themselves to implementation in code.  

TPR Section -0045(5)(b) 
Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) Programs 

DC-8 Consider addressing structured parking in Chapter 16.94, 
including exemptions from maximum parking space 
standards.  

TPR Section -0045(5)(d)  
Parking Management 

DC-9 [Administrative amendments note: Address editorial 
changes in the footnotes for the parking standards table in 
Section 16.94.020.]  

TPR Section -0045(5)(d) 
Parking Management 

DC-10 Consider the feasibility of allowing a local street cross-
section of 20-28 feet and under what conditions.  

TPR Section -0045(7) 
Minimizing Roadway Width 

DC-11 Consider modifying the code provisions for plan and land 
use regulation amendments in Section 16.80.030.C 
(Transportation Rule Consistency) to make simpler 
reference to Section -0060 in order to capture all of its 
requirements and allowances related to reviewing plan 
and land use regulation amendments. 

TPR Section -0060 

Plan and Land Use Regulations 
Amendments 

DC-12 Variances – Provide a variance process in Chapter 16.84 
(Variances and Adjustments) and/or Chapter 16.94 (Off-

RTFP Section 3.08.410 

522



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Plan and Policy Compliance | Page 41 

 Recommendations for Updating the Development Code  TPR or RTFP Reference  
Street Parking and Loading) that allows maximum parking 
standards to be exceeded.  

Parking Management 

DC-13 Major driveways – Define major driveways in the code for 
mixed-use and residential developments, and add 
requirements in Chapter 16.90 (Site Planning) and Chapter 
16.128 (Land Division Design Standards) to align major 
driveways with existing and/or planned streets. 

DC-14 On-street loading – Add on-street loading provisions in 
“appropriate locations” such as downtown.  These new 
provisions would include specific conditions for when on-
street loading would be permitted. 

DC-15 Bicycle parking – Require, rather than allow, long-term 
(protected and secured) parking in Section 16.94.020.C.  

DC-16 Consider whether having a hierarchy of management to 
capacity strategies (RTFP Section 3.08.220A) would be 
effective as part of traffic impact analysis and legislative 
decision conditions of approval.  

RTFP Sections 3.08.510 A & 
B 

Comprehensive Plan and TSP 
Amendments 

 
Table 8: Issues Related to Policy 

 Recommendations for Updating Policy TPR or RTFP Reference 

P-1 As noted in Table 5, the City has considered transportation 
solutions in 3.08.220A as part of the TSP update process. 

RTFP Sections 3.08.510 A & 
B 

Comprehensive Plan and TSP 
Amendments 

P-2 Ensure that the policy and strategies related to parking 
from the Town Center Plan are integrated and consistent 
with updated policies in the TSP.  

 RTFP Section 3.08.410I 
Parking Management 

 

Table 9: Issues Related to the Engineering Standards 

 Recommendations for Updating the Engineering Manual TPR or RTFP Reference 

EM-1 Ensure that code requirements in Sections 120 (Street 
Design), 210 (Street Design), 420 (Shared-Use Paths), 430 
(On-Street Facilities), and 440 (Bicycle Parking Standards) 
related to access spacing/management and design of 
streets, bikeways, sidewalks, and accessways/paths are 
consistent with the standards established in the updated 
TSP. 

TPR Section -0045(2)(a) 
Access Control 

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 
On-site Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Circulation and Connections 

TPR Section -0045(7) 

523



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Report  

 

 

1/30/14 
Plan and Policy Compliance | Page 42 

 Recommendations for Updating the Engineering Manual TPR or RTFP Reference 
Minimizing Roadway Width 

RTFP Section 3.08.110B 
Street System Design  

EM-2 Define or update the following terms and ensure 
consistency between the TSP, code, and engineering 
manual: accessway, multi-use path, and shared-use path.   

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 
On-site Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Circulation and Connections 

EM-3 Amend the cul-de-sac standards in Section 210.7 to be 
consistent with and implement the standards of the 
updated TSP and code.  

RTFP Section 3.08.110E 
Street System Design 

EM-4 Ensure that the engineering manual (Section 440) is 
consistent with the code (Section 16.94.020.C) regarding 
bicycle parking requirements. 

RTFP Section 3.08.410 
Parking Management 

 

524



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Appendix  

 

 

11/13/13 
Page 1 

TECHNICAL APPENDIX          
NEEDS, OPPORTUNITIES, CONSTRAINTS AND TOOLS  

Pedestrian System Gaps Priority List  
This list categorizes pedestrian system gaps along arterials and collector roadways into high, medium, 
and low priority gaps. These gaps are grouped based on their proximity to activity generators within a ½ 
mile walking distance, as shown in Figure 3.  

High Priority Gaps 

Highway 99W (west side only) between Roy Rogers Road and the existing sidewalk terminus to 
the north (approximately 600 feet north of Roy Rogers Road). 

Highway 99W between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Meinecke Road. This includes 
discontinuous gaps along both sides of the highway. 

12th Street (south side only) between Highway 99W to Sherwood Boulevard. 

Meinecke Road (north side only) between Lee Drive and the existing sidewalk terminus to the 
east (approximately 400 feet east of Lee Drive). 

Edy Road (both sides) between Borchers Drive and Trailblazer Place.  

Division Street pedestrian gaps are not shown in Figure 3 as it is a neighborhood collector. 
However, it was highlighted in the Existing Conditions Technical Report as a major gap, and falls 
within a high pedestrian demand area. 

Gleneagle neighborhood pedestrian gaps are not shown in Figure 3 as they are local roads. 
However, they were highlighted in the Existing Conditions Technical Report as major gaps, and 
fall within a high pedestrian demand area. 

Medium Priority Gaps 

Highway 99W (both sides) between Meinecke Road and Sunset Boulevard.  

Edy Road (both sides) between Trailblazer Place and Elwert Road. 

Elwert Road (both sides) between Highway 99W and Edy Road. 

Handley Street (north side only) between Elwert Road and existing sidewalk terminus to the east 
(approximately 250 feet east of Elwert Road). 

Timbrel Lane (north side only) between Old Highway 99W and Middleton Road. This includes 
two short sidewalk gaps.  

525



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Appendix  

 

 

11/13/13 
Page 2 

Old Highway 99W (both sides) from Brookman Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the north 
(approximately 1,800 feet north of Brookman Road). 

Sunset Boulevard (north side only) from Eucalyptus Terrace to St Charles Way. 

Ladd Hill Road (west side only) from Willow Drive to Brookman Road. 

Baker Road (east side only) from Sunset Boulevard to Lavon Lane. 

Murdock Road (west side) from Willamette Street to existing sidewalk terminus to the north 
(approximately 130 feet north of Willamette Street). 

Murdock Road (east side only) from Willamette Street to Upper Roy Street. 

Murdock Road (east side only) from Upper Roy Street to Sunset Boulevard. While the pedestrian 
facilities on the west side act as a shared-use path, there will likely be demand for pedestrian 
facilities along the east side as the area develops. 

Low Priority Gaps 

Highway 99W (both sides) south of Sunset Boulevard. 

Edy Road (both sides) west of Elwert Road. 

Elwert Road (both sides) north of Edy Road. 

Ladd Hill Road (both sides) south of Brookman Road. 

Brookman Road (both sides) between Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road. 

Baker Road (both sides) south of Lavon Lane. 

Murdock Road (east side only) from Oregon Street to Willamette Street. 

Oregon Street (south side) from Hall Street to Orland Street. 

Oregon Street (north side) from Murdock Road to Langer Farms Parkway.  

Oregon Street (south side) from Murdock Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the east 
(approximately 2,700 feet east of Murdock Road). 

Tonquin Road (both sides) south of Oregon Street. 

Cipole Road (west side) from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the north 
(approximately 1,250 feet north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road). 

Cipole Road (east side) from existing terminus (approximately 1,250 feet north of Tualatin-
Sherwood Road) to the north for approximately 450 feet.  

 

526



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Appendix  

 

 

11/13/13 
Page 3 

Bicycle System Gaps Priority List 
This list categorizes bicycle system gaps along arterials and collector roadways as high, medium, and low 
priority gaps. These gaps are grouped based on their proximity to activity generators within a mile biking 
distance, as shown in Figure 4.  

High Priority Gaps 

Roy Rogers Road between Highway 99W and Borchers Drive. 

Borchers Drive between Roy Rogers Road and Edy Road. 

Langer Drive between Baler Way and the Highway 99W northbound access. 

Baler Drive between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Langer Drive. 

12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood Boulevard. 

Sherwood Boulevard between 12th Street and 3rd Street. 

Pine Street between 3rd Street and Sunset Boulevard. 

Meinecke Road-Washington Street between Lee Drive and 1st Street. 

3rd Street between Washington Street and Sherwood Boulevard 

1st Street between Main Street and Pine Street. 

Century Drive between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and existing terminus. 

Oregon Street between Murdock Road and Langer Farms Parkway. 

Sunset Boulevard between Greengate Drive and Cinnamon Hill Place. 

Ladd Hill Road between Sunset Boulevard and Brookman Road. 

Home Depot access road between Highway 99W and existing terminus. 

Edy Road between Cherry Orchards Street and Trailblazer Place. 

Edy Road between Wagontrain Place and Elwert Road. 

Medium Priority Gaps 

Ladd Hill Road between Brookman Road and Oberst Lane. 

Brookman Road between Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road. 

Timbrel Lane between Sunset Boulevard and Old Highway 99W. 

Old Highway 99W between Timbrel Lane and Brookman Road. 

Handley Street between Brook Way and Elwert Road. 

Murdock Road between Oregon Street and Sunset Boulevard. 

527



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Appendix  

 

 

11/13/13 
Page 4 

Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove Avenue and Murdock Road. 

Galbreath Drive between Gerda Lane and city limits. 

Gerda Lane between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Galbreath Drive. 

Baker Road between Sunset Boulevard and McConnell Road. 

Elwert Road between Highway 99W and Edy Road. 

Low Priority Gaps 

Tonquin Road south of Oregon Street. 

Cipole Road north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 

Ladd Hill Road south of Oberst Lane. 

Edy Road west of Elwert Road. 

Elwert Road north of Edy Road. 

  

528



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools Technical Appendix  

 

 

11/13/13 
Page 5 

Intersections with Potentially High Levels of Congestion  
The following intersections are expected to experience higher levels of congestion by 2035. These 
intersections are indicated by warmer colors in Figure 5 and Figure 6. Intersections with an asterisk 
denote the intersection to be along a freight corridor. 

Highway 99W and Home Depot access 
road/Langer Farms Parkway (extension)* 
Highway 99W and Tualatin Sherwood 
Road* 
Highway 99W and Edy Road/Sherwood 
Boulevard* 
Highway 99W and Sunset Boulevard* 
Highway 99W and Brookman Road* 
Highway 99W and Red* 
Highway 99W and future road (south of 
Red)* 
Highway 99W and 12th St* 
Highway 99W and Cedar Brook Way* 
Highway 99W and Meinecke Road* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Baler Way* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Langer Farms 
Parkway* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Olds Place* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Gerda Lane* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Langer 
Drive* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Wildrose 
Place* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Cipole Road* 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road and 124th 
Avenue* 
Roy Rogers Road and Cedarview Way* 
Roy Rogers Road and Lynnly Way* 
Roy Rogers Road and Lavender Place* 
Cipole Road and Herman Road 
Herman Road and 129th Avenue 
124th Avenue and Myslony Street 
124th and Cipole Road (extension) 
Langer Drive and Langer Drive 

Langer Drive and Baler Way 
Elwert Road and Conzelmann Road 
Elwert Road and Edy Road 
Elwert Road and Handley Street 
Elwert Road and Haide Road 
Elwert Road and Sunset Boulevard 
Edy Road and Bedstraw Terrace 
Edy Road and Houston Drive 
Edy Road and Madeira Terrace 
Edy Road and Borchers Drive 
Sherwood Boulevard and 12th Street 
Sherwood Boulevard and Gleneagle Drive 
Langer Farms Parkway and Whetstone 
Way 
Oregon Street and Murdock Road 
Oregon Street and Tonquin Road 
Oregon Street and Lincoln Street 
Murdock Road and Willamette Street 
Pine Street and 2nd Street 
Sunset Boulevard and Woodhaven Drive 
Sunset Boulevard and Timbrel Lane 
Sunset Boulevard and Richen Park Terrace 
Sunset Boulevard and Greengate Place 
Sunset Boulevard and Redfern Place 
Sunset Boulevard and Myrica Court 
Sunset Boulevard and Main Street 
Sunset Boulevard and Cinnamon Hills Place 
Sunset Boulevard and Pine Street 
Sunset Boulevard and Aldergrove Avenue 
Sunset Boulevard and Brittany Place 
Sunset Boulevard and Murdock Road 
Ladd Hill Road and Brookman Road 
Brookman Road and Middleton Road 

  

529



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

530



531



(This page left intentionally blank)

532



533



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Developing a List of Potential Projects | Page 2 

Improvements to Mobility 
o Motor vehicle projects were grouped by project type based on the regional strategies 

included in the Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) hierarchy. Some of these 
groups were not analyzed directly since they would require analysis outside the scope of 
the TSP update. The groups that were assessed, and corresponding RTFP level, include: 

Group 1 – TSMO Projects (RTFP Level 1) 

Group 2 – Connectivity Projects (RTFP Level 5) 

Group 3 – Widening Projects (RTFP Level 6) 

Prioritization of Potential Projects 
o An initial prioritization was performed based on potential revenue streams and the 

project evaluation. This prioritization has not yet been fully vetted by the TSP review 
committees and the public and is subject to change. 

 

Developing a List of Potential Projects  
Transportation projects that have been previously identified but have not been constructed were 
reviewed to determine how they address the needs identified in the Needs, Opportunities, Constraints 
and Tools Technical Report (a summary of these needs appears in the Appendix). While not all of these 
previously planned projects satisfy the specific needs that were identified through the TSP update, many 
of these projects do complement the goals and policies of the Sherwood TSP. Therefore, these projects 
were carried forward for consideration with this TSP update since they could address other needs that 
were not directly assessed through this update. Projects from the following plans were used to identify 
the initial project list: 

Sherwood TSP 

Metro RTP 

Ice Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan 

Sherwood Town Center Plan 

Concept Plans (Brookman Addition, Tonquin Employment Area, Adams Avenue North) 

Where needs are unsatisfied by previously planned projects, new solutions were developed. In some 
cases, multiple alternative solutions are presented to meet a need. A complete list of potential projects 
is provided in the Appendix and displayed in Figures 1 through 3.  

  

534



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

D1

D4

D5

D6

D7

D8

D10

D15

D18

D27

D2

D3

D16

D17

D23

D24
D24

D26

D30

D3

D32

D33

D34

D14

D22

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

D29

D19

D20

D31

D25

D11

D28

D11

D11

D21

LA
N

G
ER

 FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

D13

D9

D12

D35

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

Parcel

Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit

Urban Growth Boundary

X#

Arterial Improvement
Collector Improvement

Proposed Arterial

Transportation System Plan Project #

Proposed Collector
Proposed Neighborhood/Local

Intersection Improvement!

Figure 1
Motor Vehicle Projects

DRAFT 04/10/14

535



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

!

!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

P2

P5

P6

P7

P8

P9

P10

P19

P20

P21

P22

P23

P24 P25

P27

P44

P45

P46

P18

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

P35 P30

P29

P28
P33

P34

P11

P12
P13

P14

P15

P16

P17

P38

P37
P36

P39

P40

P31

P41

P42

P43

P32

P4

P3

P3

P3

P26

P1

Figure 2
Pedestrian Projects

DRAFT 04/10/14

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

Parcel

Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit

Urban Growth Boundary

X#

Proposed Sidewalk
Proposed Shared-Use Path
Proposed Trail

Existing Sidewalk
Existing Shared-Use Path
Existing Trail

Transportation System Plan Project #

Proposed Crossing Improvement!

LA
N

G
ER

 FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

536



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

HE
RS

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
IL

L

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

8
0 0.25 0.5

Miles

B2

B4

B5

B9

B8

B10

B12

B14

B16

B18

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

B3

B1

B6

B11

B13

B19

B17

B7

B15

Figure 3
Biking Projects

DRAFT 04/10/14

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend

Parcel

Park

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit

Urban Growth Boundary

X#

Proposed Bike Lane
Proposed Shared-Use Path

Proposed Shared Street

Existing Bike Lane

Existing Shared-Use Path

Existing Trail Transportation System 
Plan Project #

Proposed Neighborhood Greenway

Proposed Trail

537



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 6 

Initial Project Evaluation 
The identified projects were evaluated with evaluation criteria to provide a relative comparison across 
all modes of travel. This evaluation provides an initial prioritization of projects to determine funding 
priorities for the City through year 2035.  

Evaluation Criteria 

Sherwood’s Comprehensive Plan includes eight transportation goals with several objectives and 
strategies to achieve the goals. These strategies were grouped and condensed into draft evaluation 
criteria to measure how well transportation projects addressed Sherwood’s goals. Feedback received 
from the TSP Citizen Advisory Committee was used to focus on specific measures that represented the 
community.  Through this process, the final evaluation criteria were developed by taking the top one or 
two performance metrics for each transportation goal. In cases that more than one strategy was 
identified for a goal, each strategy was given half of the score so that all eight of the goals remained 
equally weighted.  

Table 1 lists the evaluation criteria used to assess potential projects.  The full scoring of projects is 
included in the Appendix. 

Table 1: Evaluation Criteria for Project Analysis 
Policy Measure Evaluation Score 

Goal 1: Provide a transportation network supportive to land use plans and alternative modes. 
Circulation 
Improves mobility through 
separation of local and through 
traffic 

+1 Increases separation of through and local trips on differentiated 
facilities 

0 No change 
-1 Further mixes local and through traffic on same facilities  

Goal 2: Develop a transportation system consistent with adopted local, state and regional plans 
Compatibility 
Compatible with other 
jurisdiction’s plans and policies, 
(including adjacent cities, 
counties, Metro or ODOT) 

+1/2 Compatible with other plans and contributes to their implementation 

0 Compatible with other plans, but does not contribute to 
implementation 

-1/2 Not compatible with other plans 

Agency Standards 
Consistent with the standards of 
the City, Region, and State as a 
whole 

+1/2 Consistent with all standards 
0 May require some deviations to standards, but likely to be approved 

-1/2 Inconsistent with standards and not expected that deviations 
would be approved 

Goal 3: Establish design and development regulations to promote multi-modal transportation 
Land Development Standards 
Promotes standardized 
processes for developers to 
assess and accommodate 
transportation impacts from 
development 

+1 Creates or abides by standardized development procedures 
0 No impact on development processes 
-1 Avoids standardizing procedures 

Goal 4: Develop bicycle & pedestrian infrastructure to provide residents more options  
Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities  
Adds bikeway and walkways that 

+1 Improves pedestrian or bicycle connectivity or accessibility 
0 No change 

538



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 7 

fill in system gaps, improve 
system connectivity, and are 
accessible to all users 

-1 Reduces connectivity or accessibility 

Goal 5: Provide reliable, convenient transit service and special options to residents and businesses 
Expands Transit Service 
Adds service hours, additional 
routes, stops or special ride 
services 

+1/2 Improves/ increases transit service 
0 No change 

-1 Negatively impact on transit services 

Transit Supportive 
Infrastructure 
Improves transit supportive 
infrastructure and facilities 

+1/2 Improves transit infrastructure 
0 No change 

-1/2 Negatively impacts transit infrastructure 

Goal 6: Provide safe and convenient connections within and between Old Town and the Six Corners Area 
Designs Standards 
Develops or refines special 
standards to facilitate pedestrian 
and transit friendly development 
in Old Town and Six Corners 

+1/2 Contributes to pedestrian & transit friendly environment in Old Town/ 
Six Corners Area 

0 No Change 

-1/2 Has adverse effect on pedestrian or transit environment in Old Town/ 
Six Corners Are 

Corridor Connectivity 
Improves connectivity through 
acquisitions and dedications to 
achieve better street spacing and 
enhance off-street trail system 

+1/2 Improves roadway connectivity 
0 No change 

-1/2 Negative impact on roadway connectivity 

Goal 7: Develop and maintain freight infrastructure to support local and regional economic expansion and 
diversification goals 
Freight Mobility 
Invests in infrastructure and 
services needed to meet current 
and future demand 

+1/2 Improves freight mobility 
0 No change 

-1/2 Degrades freight mobility  

Freight Access 
Regulates and improves access, 
including loading and transfer 
facilities  

+1/2 Improves freight access 
0 No change 

-1/2 Degrades freight mobility  

Goal 8: Manage the system to ensure timely implementation and updates to comply with evolving local and 
regional priorities 
Funding 
Leverages local, regional, state, 
federal or private funds 

+1 Funding sources and partnerships available 
0 Feasible costs, but no identified funding 
-1 High costs and no identified funding 

 

  

539



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 8 

The evaluation criteria listed in Table 1 represent the primary basis for evaluating projects across all 
modes.  A secondary set of criteria were applied to provide a basis for sub-prioritize projects that 
received the same evaluation score.  These criteria were based on the following items: 

Pedestrian/Bicycle – Project location and proximity to activity generators (as previously 
mapped). 

Motor Vehicle – Hierarchy of projects based on regional strategies (intersection improvements 
are highest priority and major corridor widening is lowers priority). 

Assessment of Alternative Projects 

There are several transportation needs that were identified where multiple options are available. This 
section lists the alternative projects that could be carried forward to the TSP project list and describes 
the advantages and disadvantages for each option. In addition, the evaluation score is listed for each 
alternative and the most favorable alternative is highlighted by a dashed box—note that the highest 
scoring alternative is not necessarily the recommended improvement as there are context factors to 
consider that might not be captured in the evaluation criteria. 

Note that this section only addresses locations where multiple options have been identified. The 
Appendix includes the full set of projects (which are mapped in Figures 1, 2 and 3). 
 

Reader Notes 

A summary of project advantages and disadvantages was provided in cases where multiple 
options have been identified to address a particular transportation need. This summary is 
provided in the blue boxes on the following pages. 

A dashed line appears around the project options that initially appear to be most favorable 
for addressing a given transportation need.  This is primarily based on the evaluation 
criteria but may consider other factors. Note that this is only the initial assessment and that 
the project evaluation has not been fully vetted by TSP review committees and the public. 

Transportation needs that have only a single identified fix are not described in additional 
detail (i.e., they do not appear in the blue boxes on the following pages). However, these 
projects are included in the overall project list (see Appendix). 

 

540



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 9 

Motor Vehicle Project Alternatives 
 

Need: Traffic control enhancement at Oregon Street/Tonquin Road. 

D3.A: Install a traffic signal 

Advantages: A traffic signal at this location will have a smaller footprint and will likely 
have a lower cost than a roundabout as a roundabout would likely require additional 
right-of-way 
Disadvantages: Queues from the signal could potentially back into the Murdock 
roundabout, which could impact safety and mobility 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

D3.B: Install a single lane roundabout with dual westbound through lanes 

Advantages: Roundabouts typically experience 25% less crashes than signalized and 
unsignalized intersections1; queuing issues likely less than queuing issues related to a 
signal. The hybrid configuration would allow both intersections (Tonquin/Oregon and 
Murdock/Oregon) to operate well and meet mobility standards. This option would 
continue to offer a full accessibility of movements, unlike a combined “dumbbell” 
configuration. The additional westbound lane could fit within the existing roadway 
width. 
Disadvantages: Roundabouts have large footprints, and the area is constrained by 
wetlands—it may be difficult to fit a roundabout within the available space. The existing 
roundabout at Oregon/Murdock would need to be reconfigured in order for the 
westbound lane configuration to fit. 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

D3.C: Install a “dumbbell” (elongated oval) roundabout with combined with the existing 
roundabout at Murdock. The combined configuration would require that a vehicle would pass 
through both intersections to make a left turn movement.  

Advantages: Roundabouts typically experience 25% less crashes than signalized and 
unsignalized intersections2; this solution would fully mitigate the queuing issue between 
intersections since the space between the roundabouts two intersections would be part 
of the roundabout circulation. 
Disadvantages: It may be difficult to fit a roundabout within the available space, travel 
distances would be increased, and delays would likely be greater than two individual 
roundabouts due to more circulating vehicles 
Evaluation Score: 1.5 

 
  

                                                 
1 CMF Clearinghouse, www.cmfclearinghouse.org. 
2 Ibid. 

541



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 10 

Need: Roadway improvements along Brookman Road. 

D5.A: Rebuild Brookman Road as a three lane collector facility 

Advantages: Provides a balance of mobility and access to Brookman Concept area, 
which in turn provides relief to Sunset Boulevard from future urban growth. 
Disadvantages: N/A 
Evaluation Score: 2.5  

D5.B: Rebuild Brookman Road as a five lane arterial 

Advantages: Further increases east-west mobility for through traffic 
Disadvantages: Would inhibit access to the Brookman Concept Area and is not 
consistent with findings and recommendations of the Concept Plan or the I-5 to 99W 
Connector Project.  The I-5 to 99W Connector project proposed a new, separate access-
restricted facility to serve as a regional corridor and provide mobility for traffic between 
99W and I-5. Concept planning for the Brookman area identified Brookman Road to 
serve the function of providing access to the area for future urban development. 
Limiting access to future development in Brookman area would force traffic to the north 
and further burden Sunset Boulevard. 
Evaluation Score: 1.5 

Need: Traffic control enhancement at Sherwood Boulevard/Century Drive. 

D24.A: Install a traffic signal 

Advantages: A traffic signal at this location will have a smaller footprint and will likely 
have a lower cost than a roundabout as a roundabout would likely require acquiring 
additional right-of-way  

 Disadvantages: High side street delay 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

D24.B: Install a roundabout 

Advantages: Roundabouts typically experience 25% less crashes than signalized and 
unsignalized intersections3; could provide for gateway treatments for the Town Center; 
provides U-turn opportunities for traffic leaving businesses west of Sherwood Boulevard 
Disadvantages: Roundabouts have large footprints and could require acquiring 
additional right-of-way; the property on the southwest corner may be significantly 
impacted 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

  

                                                 
3 Ibid. 

542



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 11 

Need: Traffic control enhancement at Edy Road/Borchers Drive. 

D23.A: Install a traffic signal 

Advantages: A traffic signal at this location will have a smaller footprint and will likely 
have a lower cost than a roundabout as a roundabout would likely require acquiring 
additional right-of-way; a signal could coordinate with the Highway 99W/Edy Road 
signal, which would require coordination with ODOT 
Disadvantages: Potential for queuing to back up to the Highway 99W/Edy Road 
intersection due to limited space, which has the potential to impact both safety and 
mobility 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

D23.B: Install a roundabout 

Advantages: Roundabouts typically experience 25% less crashes than signalized and 
unsignalized intersections4; high turn volumes from Borchers could be served without 
having to wait for a green signal if no conflicting volumes are present 
Disadvantages: There is potential for queuing from the Highway99W/Edy Road 
intersection to back up to the intersection, which can gridlock a roundabout and poses a 
safety concern if a queued vehicle is stopped in the roundabout due to sight issues; 
roundabout have large footprints and could require acquiring additional right-of-way; 
through movements on Edy Road may experience more delay due to high turn volumes 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

 D23.C: Prohibit left turn movements from Borchers and install a roundabout west on Edy Road 

Advantages: Mitigates safety issues related to potential vehicle queue stacking between 
adjacent Highway 99W/Edy Road intersection that could existing with either a traffic 
signal or roundabout treatment; provides opportunity for a new roundabout to the west 
that could be used for U-turns and potential future connections to Roy Rogers Road 
and/or access for future development along 99W frontage to avoid need for highway 
access.  
Disadvantages: Increases travel distance by removing left turn movements from 
Borchers Drive, may cause some traffic to shift to other routes. This alternative would 
need to provide internal access from medical offices to new roundabout at west since 
left turns from Borchers would be removed.  Adjacent roundabout project would not be 
well-suited to existing roadway network and may be difficult to place without a roadway 
extension to the north or development access to the south.  
Evaluation Score: 3.05 

 
  

                                                 
4 Ibid. 
5 While this project does not score as highly as the other two options, it provides additional safety benefits. 

543



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 12 

Need: Traffic control enhancement at Elwert Road/Edy Road. 

D30.A: Install a traffic signal 

Advantages: A traffic signal would have a smaller footprint than a roundabout and 
would best fit in the constrained space 
Disadvantages: Opportunities for additional turn lanes at the traffic signal are limited 
due to constrained right of way; the signal would need to be signed well to alert drivers 
with advanced warning. 
Evaluation Score: 1.5 

D30.B: Install a roundabout 

Advantages: Roundabouts typically experience 25% less crashes than signalized and 
unsignalized intersections6; delay will likely be less than as a signalized intersection.  
Disadvantages: Roundabouts have large footprints and could require acquiring 
additional right-of-way; while adjacent properties are undeveloped, the adjacent creek 
and wetlands would make widening for a roundabout difficult 
Evaluation Score: 2.5 

Need: Traffic control enhancement at Brookman Road/Highway 99W. 

D14.A: Install a traffic signal 

Advantages: Provides access to future growth areas; provides relief to Sunset Boulevard; 
may increase safety at Sunset due to improving expectancy for traffic as the urban 
fringe is shifted south 
Disadvantages: Increases the potential for rear-end incidents on Highway 99W due to 
signal located on the urban fringe 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

D14.B: Install a traffic signal and realign Brookman Road to the north to be located in urban area 

Advantages: Consistent with Brookman Concept Plan and provides spacing for potential 
I-5 to 99W connection to south. Provides access to future growth areas; provides relief 
to Sunset Boulevard; may increase safety at Sunset due to improving expectancy for 
traffic as the urban fringe is shifted south. Realigning the road to the north would 
provide urban context and move it away from the southern fringe, providing a safety 
benefit due to driver expectancy. 
Disadvantages: May impact future connections north/west of 99W (Chapman Road) as 
urban growth areas urbanize. 
Evaluation Score: 5.0 

 

  
                                                 

6 Ibid. 

544



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 13 

Bicycle Project Alternatives 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Murdock Road between Oregon Street and the Urban Growth Boundary. 

B1.A: Widen the roadway to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Provides bicycle facilities on both sides of the roadway; cross-section would 
fit within existing right-of-way 

 Disadvantages: Requires extensive roadway widening 
 Evaluation Score: 2.0 

B1.B: Build a shared-use path between Oregon Street and Upper Roy Street 

Advantages: Connects the existing shared-use path south of Upper Roy Street to the 
proposed path on Oregon Street, and has fewer impacts 
Disadvantages: Replaces existing sidewalk and therefore provides little benefit to 
pedestrians; northbound bicyclists may be inclined to ride in the two-lane roadway 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Timbrel Lane between Sunset Boulevard and Old Highway 99W. 

B11.A: Widen the roadway to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is separated from the 
motor vehicle space 
Disadvantages: Requires widening the roadway, which would require obtaining an 
additional 4 feet of right-of-way 
Evaluation Score: 2.0 

B11.B: Provide shared lane markings 

Advantages: Low cost solution, and is located along a low volume and low speed 
roadway in a school zone for an elementary school 
Disadvantages: Bicyclists must share the roadway with vehicles and it does not meet the 
standard design for collector roadways 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

  

545



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 14 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Century Drive between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and its existing terminus. 

B10.A: Widen the roadway to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Provides an alternative route to riding along an arterial, meets collector 
standards, and provides dedicated space for bicyclists 
Disadvantages: Requires widening the newly built facility; would require obtaining an 
additional 12 feet of right-of-way 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

B10.B: Direct bicyclists to use Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Langer Farms Parkway instead of 
Century Drive east of Langer Farms Parkway 

Advantages: Low cost solution 
Disadvantages: Bicyclists must travel on an arterial for a longer distance, bike facilities 
would not be available for bicyclists using this segment of Century Drive, and it does not 
meet the standard design for collector roadways 
Evaluation Score: 1.0 

B10.C: Add shared lane markings 

Advantages: Low cost solution 
Disadvantages: This facility could become a higher volume facility as an alternative route 
to Tualatin-Sherwood Road; this facility is also adjacent to commercial land uses 
Evaluation Score: 1.5 

B10.D: Continue the Century Drive path along this segment by widening sidewalk on the 
north/west side 

Advantages: Provides a continuous path from Sherwood Boulevard to Tualatin-
Sherwood Road 
Disadvantages: Eastbound bicyclists may be inclined to ride in the roadway; would 
require obtaining additional right-of-way to widen sidewalk 
Evaluation Score: 4.5 

 

 

  

546



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 15 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Old Highway 99W between Timbrel Lane and Crooked River Lane. 

B12.A: Remove on-street parking to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Low cost solution, and provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is 
separated from the motor vehicle space 
Disadvantages: Requires removing parking on the east side of the roadway, which may 
be critical for school and resident parking 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

B12.B: Provide shared lane markings 

Advantages: Low cost solution and is located in a low speed facility in a school zone for 
an elementary school 
Disadvantages: Bicyclists must share the roadway with vehicles; it does not meet the 
standard design for collector roadways, and bicyclists would be forced back into the 
roadway if the segment from Brookman Road to Crooked River Lane is widened to 
provide bike lanes 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

B12.C: Widen the roadway to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is separated from the 
motor vehicle space, and maintains parking 
Disadvantages: Requires widening the roadway, which would require obtaining an 
additional 3 feet of right-of-way from the east side of the roadway, and is the highest 
cost option 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

B12.D: Widen the sidewalk along the west side to provide a shared-use path 

Advantages: Does not impact the physical roadway space, parking, or private properties  
Disadvantages: Does not provide bike facilities on the east side of the roadway; the path 
could be heavily populated with young children during drop-off and pick-up times 
Evaluation Score: 2.5 

 

  

547



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 16 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Handley Street between Cedar Brook Way and Elwert Road. 

B14.A: Remove curb extensions and chokers to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is separated from the 
motor vehicle space 
Disadvantages: Requires removing chokers and curb extensions, which calm traffic 
speeds along this 25mph facility; removal of curb extensions increase pedestrian 
crossing distance and reduce visibility of pedestrians; it would also remove on-street 
parking, which is minimal 
Evaluation Score: 1.0 

B14.B: Provide shared lane markings 

Advantages: Low cost solution, is a low speed facility (25 mph), and space is available 
between curb extensions for bicyclists to move out of the motor vehicle way  
Disadvantages: Bicyclists must share the roadway with vehicles, and it does not meet 
the standard design for collector roadways 
Evaluation Score: 2.0 

Need: Bicycle facilities on Baler Way between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Century Drive. 

B16.A: Rebuild Baler Way between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and Century Drive to provide bike 
lanes (Sherwood Town Center project) 

Advantages: Provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is separated from the 
motor vehicle space, and provides a continuous treatment between Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road and Century Drive 
Disadvantages: Requires removing on-street parking and curb extensions along the local 
road segment between Langer Drive and Century Drive; removal of curb extensions 
increase pedestrian crossing distance and reduce pedestrian visibility 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

B16.B: Add neighborhood greenway improvements between Century Drive and Langer Drive, 
and rebuild Baler Way between Langer Drive and Tualatin-Sherwood road to provide bike lanes 

Advantages: Lower cost solution, and maintains on-street parking, and provides a more 
appropriate treatment to the local segment of Baler Way, and ties into the planned 
neighborhood greenway improvements on Baler Way south of Century Drive 
Disadvantages: Bicyclists must share the roadway with vehicles between Baler Way and 
Langer Drive; however, this segment is a 25mph local road 
Evaluation Score: 4.0 

  

548



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 17 

 
Need: Bicycle facilities on Galbreath Drive/Gerda Lane between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and City 
Limits. 

B15.A: Remove on-street parking on Galbreath Drive and widen Gerda Lane to provide bike 
lanes 

Advantages: Lower cost solution than widening Galbreath Drive, and provides dedicated 
space for bicycle travel that is separated from the motor vehicle space 
Disadvantages: Requires removing parking on both sides of Galbreath Drive, which is 
currently used as overflow parking for adjacent businesses 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

B15.B: Widen Galbreath Drive and Gerda Lane to provide bike lanes and to maintain parking on 
Galbreath Drive 

Advantages: Provides dedicated space for bicycle travel that is separated from the 
motor vehicle space, and maintains parking on Galbreath Drive 
Disadvantages: High cost, and bicycle demand along this facility is likely low; widening 
may impact site circulation and on-site parking; would require obtaining an additional 6 
feet of right-of-way 
Evaluation Score: 3.0 

B15.C: Direct bikes to use the future Herman Road extension instead of Galbreath Drive and 
Gerda Lane 

Advantages: Bicyclists using Galbreath can potentially take refuge from motor vehicles 
in the on-street parking space when not occupied 
Disadvantages: Bike facilities would not be available for bicyclists using this corridor, 
travel distance for rerouted bicyclists may increase, and it does not meet the standard 
design for collector roadways; this is also contingent on the Herman Road extension, 
which is not a guaranteed project and the location of its western terminus is currently 
undecided 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

  

549



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Initial Project Evaluation | Page 18 

Pedestrian Project Alternatives 
 

Need: Pedestrian crossing across Tualatin-Sherwood Road at Rock Creek Trail. 

P34.A: Install a marked crosswalk with pedestrian refuge islands 

Advantages: Low cost project; provides pedestrians refuge crossing a five lane arterial 
Disadvantages: Refuge may conflict with motorists turning left onto Century Drive 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

P34.B: Install a marked crosswalk with pedestrian refuge islands and Rectangular Rapid Flashing 
Beacons (RRFBs) 

Advantages: Provides pedestrians refuge crossing a five lane arterial, and alerts 
oncoming motorists of crossing pedestrians 
Disadvantages: Higher cost; refuge may conflict with motorists turning left onto Century 
Drive 
Evaluation Score: 3.5 

  

550



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 19 

Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood 
Motor vehicle projects were evaluated to address system mobility needs that have been identified in 
Sherwood.  Projects that match identified needs were grouped into three system alternatives (based on 
similar project types) and were analyzed at both a system-level and location-specific perspective to 
determine: 

Would the project address the identified mobility need? (Individual Need) 

Would the group of projects provide an overall system benefit? (System Measures) 

The following sections describe how the projects were grouped into system alternatives and the results 
of the mobility analysis. Previously identified projects that do not address any of the identified needs are 
still included in the overall project list but were not included in this analysis. 

Motor Vehicle System Alternatives 

The evaluation process was based on Metro’s Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) requirements that 
local TSPs consider lower cost and impact intersection 
enhancement projects before assessing major projects 
related to corridor widening.  This general order for 
considering six different types of projects is summarized 
in Figure 4. 

Motor vehicle projects that had been identified to 
address Sherwood’s mobility needs were grouped into 
three categories based on the RTFP project hierarchy: 
Transportation System Management and Operations 
(TSMO) projects (Group 1), connectivity projects (Group 
2), and widening projects (Group 3). Group 1 projects are 
lower-cost improvements at the intersection level, and 
will be prioritized before Group 2 and Group 3 projects. 
Group 2 projects will be prioritized over Group 3 projects 
as new connections not only reduce vehicle demand on 
existing facilities, but they also improve connectivity for 
pedestrian and bicycle modes. Group 2 projects will only 
include collector and arterial connections. 

  

Figure 4: RTFP Project Hierarchy 

1. Transportation System Management & 
Operation (TSMO) strategies 

2. Transit, bicycle, and pedestrian system 
improvements 

3. Traffic calming designs and devices 

4. Land use strategies 

5. Connectivity improvements that include 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities 

6. Motor vehicle capacity improvements 

551



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 20 

Group1: TSMO Projects 

D3: Install a roundabout at Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection with dual westbound 
through lanes and a single eastbound through/right lane. Add a second westbound approach 
lane to the Murdock Road/Oregon Street roundabout for separated westbound left and 
westbound through lanes. Keep three lanes on the bridge structure. 
D16: At the Highway 99W/Edy Road intersection, restripe the east approach to have exclusive 
left, through, and right turn lanes, and change the eastbound left and westbound left turn 
phasing to protective-permissive phasing. 
D17: Change the eastbound left and westbound left turn phasing to protective-permissive 
phasing at the Highway 99W/Meinecke Road intersection. 
D22: Realign Elwert Road to provide more storage at Highway 99W and realign the Kruger Road 
intersection to the Cedarbrook extension as a single lane roundabout.  
D23: Add traffic control enhancements to the Edy Road/Borchers Drive intersection. Model 
assumes D23.A: install a traffic signal. 
D24: Remove the signal at the Sherwood Boulevard/Langer Drive intersection. Change the 
intersection to a two-way stop-control intersection with right-in, right-out, left-in movements 
allowed. Add traffic control enhancements to the Sherwood Boulevard/Century Drive 
intersection. Model assumes D24.A: add a traffic signal and add eastbound left and westbound 
left turn lanes. 
D28: Install a single lane roundabout at the Sunset Boulevard/Timbrel Lane intersection. 
D30: Add traffic control enhancements to the Elwert Road/Edy Road intersection. Model 
assumes D30.A: install a traffic signal with an added westbound right turn lane (all other 
approaches are single lane approaches). 
D32: Add a southbound right turn lane at the Ladd Hill Road/Brookman Road intersection. 
D33: Add a southbound right turn lane and a northbound left turn lane at the Murdock 
Road/Sunset Boulevard intersection. 
D34: Move the existing stops signs at the Brookman Road/Middleton Road intersection to the 
north and south approaches, and add a southbound left turn lane. 
D14: Install a signal at the realigned Highway 99W/Brookman Road intersection, and add a 
westbound left and southbound right turn lane. 
D31: Add westbound and eastbound left turn lanes at Highway 99W/Sunset Boulevard with 
protective-permissive phasing. 
D25: Restripe Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound and westbound left turn lanes. 

Group 2: Connectivity Projects 

D29: Build a new collector connection between Edy Road and Roy Rogers Road.  

Group 3: Widening Projects 

D1: Widen Tualatin-Sherwood Road to five lanes from Langer Farms Parkway to 124th Avenue 

552



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 21 

Mobility Improvements – Local Evaluation 

The travel demand model developed for the TSP was used to estimate future year 2035 system mobility 
for each alternative.  The model was based on Washington County’s latest 2035 Gamma model with 
additional refinements and detail (all public roads, lane turn lanes, and intersection control) to capture 
estimated future circulation patterns and congestion.  The figures on the following pages show the 
mobility conditions7 for each of the three groups that were analyzed. Key findings include: 

Group 1 (TSMO Projects) [Figure 5] – The majority of motor vehicle capacity needs would be 
met with the addition of these projects, which generally include intersection control or 
additional turn lanes. Locations that would not meet standards include: 

o Edy/Elwert – With the addition of a traffic signal or roundabout this intersection would 
operate near capacity. Additional turn lanes for a traffic signal would be beneficial, 
however may not fit within the available right of way. 

o 99W/Sunset – With the additional turn lanes (that would require the reconfiguration of 
the Kruger/Elwert intersection) this intersection would continue to operate just over 
capacity during the PM peak hour. 

o Roy Rogers and Tualatin-Sherwood corridor - The high amount of future traffic 
projected on the corridor indicates the need for future widening to five lanes. 

o Sunset corridor – High traffic volumes on Sunset Road would lead to higher side street 
delay at intersections east of Main Street, which are primarily low volume approaches. 

Group 2 (Connectivity Projects) [Figure 6] – The north-south collector connection between Roy 
Rogers Road and Edy Road would provide limited additional benefit to Roy Rogers Road. 
However this project would have the potential to reduce neighborhood cut-through traffic. 

Group 3 (Widening Projects) [Figure 7] – This group of projects included major corridor 
widening to increase throughput. 

o Tualatin-Sherwood Road - Widening to Tualatin-Sherwood Road (east of Langer Farms 
Parkway) to five lanes would provide the needed capacity for this corridor.  This 
widening has been identified in Washington County’s TSP and Metro’s RTP. 

o Roy Rogers Road – The high amount of traffic projected on the corridor indicates the 
need for future widening to five lanes. This widening has not been previously identified 
in plans but may be explored through Washington County’s current TSP update. 

                                                 
7 Mobility needs were measured using volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratios rather than level of service (LOS) to 
focus on system mobility and filter out locations that may experience high side street delay but serve low traffic 
volumes. 

553



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 22 

Figure 5: Year 2035 PM Peak Hour Projected Congestion Locations (V/C) – Group 1 (TSMO) 

 

  

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Rd

 

Ro
y 

Ro
ge

rs
 R

d 

Su
ns

et
 B

lv
d 

Elwert Rd 

554



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 23 

Figure 6: Year 2035 PM Peak Hour Projected Congestion Locations (V/C) – Group 2 (Connectivity) 
 

 

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Rd

 

Ro
y 

Ro
ge

rs
 R

d 

Su
ns

et
 B

lv
d 

Elwert Rd 

555



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 24 

Figure 7: Year 2035 PM Peak Hour Projected Congestion Locations (V/C) – Group 3 (Widening) 

 

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Rd

 

Ro
y 

Ro
ge

rs
 R

d 

Su
ns

et
 B

lv
d 

Elwert Rd 

556



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Improvements to Mobility in Sherwood | Page 25 

Mobility Improvements – System Evaluation 

A system planning-level evaluation of the transportation conditions for each of the three year 2035 
alternative scenarios was conducted using the travel demand model. The alternatives were evaluated 
during the p.m. peak hour based on the following system measures of effectiveness (MOE’s): 

Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT), VMT per capita -   VMT is the total vehicle miles of travel 
associated with the study-area trips (vehicle trips beginning and/or ending in the study area) on 
roadways within the Metro region boundary. The VMT per person living in the study area is 
estimated by traffic volumes from the travel demand model and the 2035 population estimates 
provided by Metro.  

Vehicle Hours of Delay (VHD), VHD on Freight Corridors – VHD is the difference between the 
total vehicle travel time under congested conditions and free-flow conditions. The study-area 
VHD is a measure of the overall congestion in the study area. The freight corridors include Roy 
Rogers Road, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and Hwy 99W. 

The MOE’s collectively can generally be considered as a rough proxy for several other measures such as 
fuel use and greenhouse-gas emissions. One of the primary goals of the transportation improvements is 
to positively impact the above MOE’s. The p.m. peak hour MOE’s for the base year and each of the 
future alternatives are listed in Table 2. Key observations for these system measures include: 

VMT would reduce due to mobility improvements and vehicles travelling on more direct routes. 
However, the overall VMT reduction (even with Group 3) would be less than one percent. 

VHD would improve under each group of alternatives, particularly with improvements to 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road. These improvements would significantly reduce freight delay along 
the corridor. 

Table 2: System Performance Measures (PM Peak Hour)   

Measure Year 2010 
Year 2035 
(Baseline) 

Group 1: 
TSMO 

Group 2: 
Connectivity 

Group 3: 
Widening 

Total Vehicle Miles 
Travelled (VMT) 

34,100 vmt 55,600 vmt 55,550 vmt 55,500 vmt 55,350 vmt 

VMT per capita 
1.4 

vmt/capita 
1.3 

vmt/capita 
1.3 

vmt/capita 
1.3 

vmt/capita 
1.3 

vmt/capita 
Vehicle Hours of delay 
(VHD) 

440 1,420 1,360 1,360 1,130 

VHD on Freight Corridors* 240 870 960 950 780 
Note: *Freight corridors include OR 99W, Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and Roy Rogers Road. 

 

 

557



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 26 

Prioritization of Potential Projects 
The previous sections summarized how the full project list was developed and evaluated. The following 
section describes the process that was used to determine the initial prioritization of the project list.  

Developing the Prioritized List of Projects 

The list of potential projects was prioritized to identify which projects could likely be funded through 
2035 based on transportation funding assumptions and the project prioritization process. 

Transportation Funding 

Sherwood must make investment decisions to develop a set of transportation improvements that could 
reasonably be funded to best meet identified transportation needs through 2035. As summarized in the 
Existing Conditions Technical Report, it is estimated that Sherwood would have approximately $11.3 
million to spend on capital improvement projects through 2035 based on historical growth that has 
occurred over the last several years.  However, assuming the level of growth related to urbanization of 
surrounding areas through 2035 (which in turn leads to additional trips and triggers transportation 
needs), Sherwood’s available funds for transportation projects would grow to approximately $60 
million. These potential funding levels were both considered in the development of the project lists and 
the prioritization process. 

Prioritization Process 

The prioritized project list was developed based on a three-tier evaluation process, which included: 

Tier 1: Screening for Needs – Previously identified projects were screened to determine if they 
addressed a specific need identified in the TSP update. Additional projects were developed to 
address the needs that were not otherwise addressed with previously identified projects. 
Projects that were previously identified but did not directly address a given need were given a 
“low” priority (regardless of the Tier 2 and Tier 3 evaluation). 

Tier 2: Primary Evaluation Criteria – Evaluation criteria were applied to projects across all 
modes based on consistency with Sherwood’s transportation goals. These criteria provided a 
means to evaluate very different projects using the broad criteria that was applied to all project 
types. 

Tier 3: Secondary Criteria – In order to further differentiate projects that received the same 
primary evaluations score within a given mode, sets of secondary criteria were applied.  These 
criteria were different for each mode and were only used to compare projects relative to other 
projects of the same mode.  These criteria were: 

o Pedestrian/Bicycle – Project location and proximity to schools and other activity 
generators (previously mapped). 

558



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 27 

o Motor Vehicle – Hierarchy of projects based on regional strategies (intersection 
improvements are highest priority and major corridor widening is lowers priority). 

Through application of the above criteria and consideration for the City’s transportation budget 
available for capital improvements, the following general prioritization groups were identified. 

Short-term priority – The highest scoring projects (based on evaluation criteria) that fall within 
Sherwood’s anticipated transportation budget for capital improvements through 2035. 
assuming an historical revenue stream of $11 million 

Medium-term priority – Projects that would require funding beyond the historical revenue 
stream of $11 million, but that are anticipated to be achievable through the projected revenue 
stream of $60 million. 

Long-term priority – Projects that address an identified transportation need but exceed the 
anticipated available funding, and projects that were previously identified that do not directly 
address one of the identified needs. 

Short-term Priority Projects 

Projects that are currently identified as short-term priority (those assumed likely to be funded through 
2035) are listed in Table 3 (total funds of approximately $11 million)  These project groups were 
identified based on initial assumptions about approximate project costs. However, the project lists will 
be further refined as project costs are developed. The full prioritized project list is located in the 
Appendix. The Short-term priority project list includes: 

Bicycle Projects (6)  

Motor vehicle projects (8)  

Pedestrian Projects (9)  

Transit Projects (2) 

Medium-term Priority Projects 

The additional Group 2 medium-term priority projects (assuming a revenue stream of $60 million) are 
listed in Table 4. While there are many projects that are not expected to be funded through 2035, 
improvements to Sherwood’s revenue stream, project-specific grants, and intergovernmental 
contributions can help Sherwood build additional projects. The initial prioritization of the project list is 
likely to be refined as additional information is provided about unique elements of project needs and 
constraints that were not captured in the overall system analysis.  Additionally, assumptions about 
project costs and potential funding sources can affect the overall project list.  

  

559



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 28 

Table 3: Preliminary Short-term Priority (Conservatively Funded) Project List 

Project # Project Name Project Description 

Bicycle Projects 

B2 Meinecke Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on Meinecke Road from Marshall Street to 3rd 
Street. 

B7 Borchers Bike Lanes Build bike lanes on Borchers Road between Edy Road and Roy 
Rogers Road. 

B10 Century Drive Shared-Use Path 
Widen the sidewalk on the south/east side of Century Drive 
between Tualatin-Sherwood Road and the existing terminus 
to provide a shared-use path 

B13 Old Highway 99W Improvements 
Segment 2 

Upgrade Old Highway 99W (from Crooked River Lane to 
Brookman Road) to a two lane collector with a shared use 
path on the west side and sidewalks on the east side. 

B16 Baler Way Bike Lanes Rebuild Baler Way to a collector between Century Drive and 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road to include bike lanes. 

B17 12th Street Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on 12th Street between Highway 99W and 
Sherwood Boulevard. 

Motor Vehicle Projects 

D3 
Oregon Intersections 

Improvements at Murdock and 
Tonquin 

Install a roundabout at the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street 
intersection with dual westbound through lanes and a single 
eastbound through/right lane. Consider creating a "Dumbbell 
Roundabout" with the Oregon/Murdock roundabout by 
disallowing the west circulating lane at Oregon/Tonquin and 
disallowing the east circulating lane at Oregon/Murdock. Add 
a second westbound approach lane to the Murdock Road 
Oregon Street roundabout for separated westbound left and 
westbound through lanes. Keep three lanes on the bridge 
structure. 

D13 Tualatin-Sherwood Improvements 
– Phase 1 

Widen Tualatin-Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road between 
Borchers Drive and Baler Way to five lanes. Includes 
intersection modifications at OR 99W, the Sherwood Market 
Center, and at Baler Way. 

D16 Edy/Highway 99W Intersection 
Improvements 

Restripe the westbound Sherwood Boulevard approach to 
have a single left turn lane, a single through lane, and a single 
right turn lane. Eliminate the split phase timing for the side 
streets, and maintain the existing green time on OR 99W for 
the northbound and southbound through movements. Add 
the missing crosswalk to the south approach. Consider 
implementing P3 alongside this project. 

D18 Langer Drive Improvements 

Construct improvements to Langer Drive between Baler Way 
and Sherwood Boulevard that are consistent with the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major improvements include: 
buffered bike lanes, on-street parking, wider sidewalks, 
narrower travel lanes, removal of the center turn lane, and 
landscaping. 
 

D19 124th Avenue Extension Extend 124th Avenue as an arterial from Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road to Tonquin Road. 

560



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 29 

Project # Project Name Project Description 

D22 Kruger/Elwert Intersection Safety 
Improvement 

Realign Elwert Road to provide more storage at Highway 99W, 
and realign the Kruger Road intersection to the Cedarbrook 
extension as a single lane roundabout. Consider implementing 
D31 with this project. 

D24 Sherwood Boulevard Intersection 
Modifications 

Remove the Sherwood Boulevard/Langer Drive traffic signal 
(allow right-in, right-out, and left-in movements only), and 
install a traffic signal at the Sherwood Boulevard/Century 
Drive intersection (add eastbound and westbound left turn 
lanes). 

D31 Highway 99W/Sunset 
Improvements 

Add westbound and eastbound left turn lanes at Highway 
99W/Sunset Boulevard with protective-permissive phasing. 
Consider implementing D22 and P3 alongside this project. 

Pedestrian Projects 

P6 Sherwood Boulevard 
Improvements 

Construct improvements to Sherwood Boulevard between 
Langer Drive and 3rd Street that are consistent with the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major improvements include: a 
shared-use path on the east side, wider sidewalks on the west 
side, narrower travel lanes, and landscaping. 

P12 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 7 
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 7 improvements from 
immediately west of the Tonquin/Oregon Street intersection 
to immediately north of Park Street. 

P13 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 8 improvements from 
immediately north of Park Street to immediately south of 
Highway 99W. 

P14 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 9 
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 9 improvements from 
immediately south of Highway 99W to Roy Rogers Road 
(including Roy Rogers intersection). 

P19 12th Street Sidewalk Infill Construct sidewalk along the south side of 12th Street from 
Highway 99W to Sherwood Boulevard. 

P22 Pine Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 
1 

Construct sidewalk along the west side of Pine Street from 
Willamette Street to Columbia Street. 

P23 Pine Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 
2 

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Pine Street from 
Division Street to Sunset Boulevard, and fill the sidewalk gap 
along the west side of Pine Street just north of Sunset 
Boulevard. 

P48 
Downtown Streetscapes Master 

Plan Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary 
Streets) 

Complete Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary Streets) of the 
Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan. 

P49 
Downtown Streetscapes Master 

Plan Phase 4 (Old Town Residential 
Neighborhoods) 

 
Complete Phase 4 (Old Town Residential Neighborhoods) of 
the Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan. 
 

Transit Projects 

T2 Improve Pedestrian Connections to 
Transit Facilities Improve Pedestrian Connections to Transit Facilities. 

T3 Increase Density Adjacent to 
Transit Increase Density Adjacent to Transit. 

561



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 30 

Table 4: Preliminary Medium-Term (Projected Funded) Project List 

Project # Project Name Project Description 

Bicycle Projects (plus Short-Term) 

B1 Murdock Shared-Use Path Build a shared-use path along the west side of Murdock Road 
from Oregon Street to Upper Roy Street. 

B5 Main Street Shared Lane Markings Add shared lane markings to Main Street between 1st Street 
and Sherwood Boulevard. 

B6 Pine Street Shared Lane Markings Add shared lane markings to Pine Street between 3rd Street 
and Sherwood Boulevard. 

B8 3rd Street Shared Lane Markings Add shared lane markings on 3rd Street from Washington 
Street to Sherwood Boulevard. 

B9 1st Street Shared Lane Markings Add shared lane markings on 1st Street from Main Street to 
Pine Street. 

B12 Old Highway 99W Shared-Use Path 
Widen the sidewalk along the west side of Old Highway 99W 
between Timbrel Lane and Crooked River Lane to provide a 
shared-use path 

B18 Washington Street Shared Lane 
Markings 

Add shared lane markings on Washington Street between 3rd 
Street and 1st Street. 

B19 Sunset Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove 
Avenue and Murdock Road 

Motor Vehicle Projects (plus Short-Term) 

D4 Elwert Road Improvements 

Upgrade Elwert Road (from Highway 99W to Edy Road) to a 
three lane arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. This project 
may be phased with D30 for design and construction 
purposes. 

D6 Edy Road Improvements Upgrade Edy Road (from Borchers Drive to City Limits) to a 
three lane collector with bike lanes and sidewalks. 

D7 Ladd Hill Road Improvements 
Upgrade Ladd Hill Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the Urban 
Growth Boundary) to a three arterial with bike lanes and 
sidewalks. 

D8 Oregon Street Improvements 

Upgrade Oregon Street (from Murdock Road to the railroad 
crossing) to a three lane collector with sidewalks on south side 
and a shared-use path on the north side (part of the Ice Age 
Tonquin Trail). 

D12 Extension of Langer Farms Parkway 
at 99W 

Extend Langer Farms Parkway from 99W west as a collector 
road. 

D14 Highway 99W/Brookman Traffic 
Signal and Realignment 

Realign Brookman Road to intersect with Highway 99W 
approximately 1/4 mile north of its existing intersection; this 
improvement includes a traffic signal at the realigned 
intersection with a westbound left and southbound right turn 
lane, and a grade separated railroad crossing. 

D15 Sunset Boulevard Improvements 

Upgrade Sunset Boulevard (from Aldergrove Avenue to 
Eucalyptus Terrace) to a three lane arterial with sidewalks and 
bike lanes. Address vertical crest sight distance issues near 
Pine Street. 

562



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 31 

Project # Project Name Project Description 

D17 Meinecke/Highway 99W 
Intersection Improvements 

Change the eastbound and westbound left turn phasing on 
Meinecke Road from permitted to permitted/protected and 
maintaining the existing green time on OR 99W for the 
northbound and southbound through movements. Consider 
implementing P3 alongside this project. 

D25 Sunset/Pine Improvements Restripe Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound 
and westbound left turn lanes. 

D27 Baker Road Improvements 
Upgrade Baker Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the urban 
growth boundary) to a two lane arterial with bike lanes and 
sidewalks. 

D30 Elwert/Edy Roundabout 
Install a single lane roundabout at the Elwert Road/Edy Road 
intersection. This project may be phased with D4 for design 
and construction purposes. 

D33 Sunset/Murdock Turn Lanes Add a southbound right turn lane and a northbound left turn 
lane at the Sunset Boulevard/Murdock Road intersection. 

D34 Brookman/Middleton Traffic 
Control Enhancements 

Move the stop signs to the north and south approaches, and 
add a southbound left turn lane at the Brookman 
Road/Middleton Road intersection. 

D35 Area 59 Neighborhood Route Build a neighborhood roadway, connecting Elwert Road and 
Copper Terrace as identified in the Area 59 concept plan. 

Pedestrian Projects (plus Short-Term) 

P1 Handley Street Sidewalk Infill 
Construct sidewalk along the north side of Handley Street 
from Elwert Road to the existing sidewalk terminus 
approximately 250 feet east of Elwert Road.  

P2 Highway 99W Sidewalk Infill 
Construct sidewalks along both sides of Highway 99W 
between the north Urban Growth Boundary and the south 
Urban Growth Boundary. 

P3 Highway 99W Crosswalks 

Add missing crosswalks at existing traffic signal locations on 
Highway 99W between Edy Road and Sunset Boulevard. The 
crosswalk enhancements may be phased individually with 
their corresponding intersection improvements (D16, D17, 
D31). 

P4 Ice Age Tonquin Trail/Highway 99W 
Connection 

Construct a shared use path that connects the proposed Cedar 
Creek/Tonquin Trail to Highway 99W. 

P5 10th Street Neighborhood 
Greenway 

Add sidewalks and shared lane markings to 10th Street and 
Gleneagle Drive from Sherwood Boulevard to the planned 
Cedar Creek/Tonquin Trail connection. 

P16 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 11 
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 11 improvements from 
immediately east of the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street 
intersection to immediately west of Cipole Road. 

P18 Cipole Road Sidewalk Infill 
Construct sidewalk along the east side of Cipole Road from 
approximately 1,250 feet north of Tualatin-Sherwood Road to 
the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 450 feet north. 

P20 Division Street Sidewalk Infill Construct sidewalk along both sides of Division Street from 
Main Street to Cuthill Place. 

563



Sherwood Transportation System Plan 
Project Options Technical Report  

 

 

FINAL 04/11/14 
Prioritization of Potential Projects | Page 32 

Project # Project Name Project Description 

P21 Meinecke Road Sidewalk Infill 
Construct sidewalk along the north side of Meinecke Road 
from Lee Drive to the existing sidewalk terminus to the east 
(approximately 400 feet). 

P26 Highway 99W Grade Separated 
Crossing 

Build a grade-separated crossing of Highway 99W for 
pedestrians and bicyclists, providing a direct connection for 
the Ice Age Tonquin Trail east and west of the highway. 

P30 Sunset Boulevard/St Charles Way 
Crossing Improvements 

Install marked crosswalks at the Sunset Boulevard/St Charles 
Way intersection. 

P31 Sunset Boulevard/Redfern Drive 
Crossing Improvements 

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset 
Boulevard/Redfern Drive intersection. 

P32 Sunset Boulevard/Galewood Drive 
Crossing Improvements 

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset 
Boulevard/Galewood Drive intersection. 

P44 Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill Construct sidewalk along the south side of Oregon Street 
between Hall Street and Orland Street. 

P45 Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill 
Segment 1 

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from 
Willamette Street to Oregon Street. 

P47 
Downtown Streetscapes Master 
Plan Phases 1 and 2 (Old Town 

Core) 

Complete Phase 1 (Old Town Core) and Phase 2 (Cannery 
Arterials) of the Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan. 

Transit Projects (plus Short-Term) 

T1 Provide Transit Amenities at Major 
Transit Stops Provide Transit Amenities at Major Transit Stops. 

T5 Provide Local Service Provide local service to enhanced regional service. 
 

564



Need # Needs

1
Highway 99W (west side only) between Roy Rogers Road and the existing sidewalk terminus to the north (approximately 600 feet north
of Roy Rogers Road).

2 Highway 99W between Tualatin Sherwood Road and Meinecke Road. This includes discontinuous gaps along both sides of the highway.

3 12th Street (south side only) between Highway 99W to Sherwood Boulevard.

4
Meinecke Road (north side only) between Lee Drive and the existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately 400 feet east of Lee
Drive).

5 Edy Road (both sides) between Borchers Drive and Trailblazer Place.
6 Pine Street (west side only) from Willamette Street to Columbia Street.

7
While Division Street is a neighborhood collector, it was highlighted in the Existing Conditions Technical Report as a major gap, and falls
within a high pedestrian demand area.

8
While Gleneagle neighborhood pedestrian gaps are along local roads, they were highlighted in the Existing Conditions Technical Report
as major gaps, and fall within a high pedestrian demand area.

9 Highway 99W (both sides) between Meinecke Road and Sunset Boulevard.
10 Edy Road (both sides) between Trailblazer Place and Elwert Road.
11 Elwert Road (both sides) between Highway 99W and Edy Road.

12
Handley Street (north side only) between Elwert Road and existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately 250 feet east of Elwert
Road).

13 Timbrel Lane (north side only) between Old Highway 99W and Middleton Road. This includes two short sidewalk gaps.

14
Old Highway 99W (both sides) from Brookman Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the north (approximately 1,800 feet north of
Brookman Road).

15 Sunset Boulevard (north side only) from Eucalyptus Terrace to St Charles Way.
16 Ladd Hill Road (west side only) from Willow Drive to Brookman Road.
17 Baker Road (east side only) from Sunset Boulevard to Lavon Lane.

18
Murdock Road (west side) from Willamette Street to existing sidewalk terminus to the north (approximately 130 feet north of
Willamette Street).

19 Murdock Road (east side only) from Willamette Street to Upper Roy Street.

20
Murdock Road (east side only) from Upper Roy Street to Sunset Boulevard. While the pedestrian facilities on the west side act as a
shared use path, there will likely be demand for pedestrian facilities along the east side as the area develops.

21 Pine Street (east side) from Division Street to Sunset Boulevard, and Pine Street (west side) just north of Sunset Boulevard.

22 Highway 99W (both sides) south of Sunset Boulevard.
23 Edy Road (both sides) west of Elwert Road.
24 Elwert Road (both sides) north of Edy Road.
25 Ladd Hill Road (both sides) south of Brookman Road.
26 Brookman Road (both sides) between Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road.
27 Baker Road (both sides) south of Lavon Lane.
28 Murdock Road (east side only) from Oregon Street to Willamette Street.
29 Oregon Street (south side) from Hall Street to Orland Street.
30 Oregon Street (north side) from Murdock Road to Langer Farms Parkway.

31
Oregon Street (south side) from Murdock Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately 2,700 feet east of Murdock
Road).

32 Tonquin Road (both sides) south of Oregon Street.

33
Cipole Road (west side) from Tualatin Sherwood Road to existing sidewalk terminus to the north (approximately 1,250 feet north of
Tualatin Sherwood Road).

34
Cipole Road (east side) from existing terminus (approximately 1,250 feet north of Tualatin Sherwood Road) to the north for
approximately 450 feet.

35 Crossings along Highway 99W
36 Crossings along Sunset Boulevard between Pinehurst Drive and St Charles Way
37 Pedestrian connection between Old Town and residential area to the north
38 Regional Pedestrian Connections

39 Roy Rogers Road between Highway 99W and Borchers Drive.
40 Borchers Drive between Roy Rogers Road and Edy Road.
41 Langer Drive between Baler Way and the Highway 99W northbound access.
42 Baler Way between Tualatin Sherwood Road and Langer Drive.
43 12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood Boulevard.
44 Sherwood Boulevard between 12th Street and 3rd Street.
45 Pine Street between 3rd Street and Sunset Boulevard.
46 Meinecke Road Washington Street between Lee Drive and 1st Street.
47 3rd Street between Washington Street and Sherwood Boulevard
48 1st Street between Main Street and Pine Street.
49 Century Drive between Tualatin Sherwood Road and existing terminus.
50 Oregon Street between Murdock Road and Langer Farms Parkway.
51 Sunset Boulevard between Greengate Drive and Cinnamon Hill Place.
52 Main Street between 1st Street and Sunset Boulevard
53 Ladd Hill Road between Sunset Boulevard and Brookman Road.
54 Home Depot access road between Highway 99W and existing terminus.
55 Edy Road between Cherry Orchards Street and Trailblazer Place.
56 Edy Road between Wagontrain Place and Elwert Road.

57 Ladd Hill Road between Brookman Road and Oberst Lane.
58 Brookman Road between Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road.

Needs List

Pedestrian Needs (High Priority Gaps)

Pedestrian Needs (Medium Priority Gaps)

Pedestrian Needs (Low Priority Gaps)

Bicyle Needs (Medium Priority Gaps)

Pedestrian Needs (Connectivity)

Bicyle Needs (High Priority Gaps)

565



59 Timbrel Lane between Sunset Boulevard and Old Highway 99W.
60 Old Highway 99W between Timbrel Lane and Brookman Road.
61 Handley Street between Cedar Brook Way and Elwert Road.
62 Murdock Road between Oregon Street and Sunset Boulevard.
63 Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove Avenue and Murdock Road.
64 Galbreath Drive between Gerda Lane and city limits.
65 Gerda Lane between Tualatin Sherwood Road and Galbreath Drive.
66 Baker Road between Sunset Boulevard and McConnell Road.
67 Elwert Road between Highway 99W and Edy Road.

68 Tonquin Road south of Oregon Street.
69 Cipole Road north of Tualatin Sherwood Road.
70 Ladd Hill Road south of Oberst Lane.
71 Edy Road west of Elwert Road.
72 Elwert Road north of Edy Road.

73 Provide full range of amenities at bus stops, including shelters, seating, route signage, and trash amenities.
74 Sidewalk connections to transit stops.
75 Improve YCTA accessibility.
76 A Sherwood Transit Center.
77 Local transit circulation.

78 Collector Gap: Meinecke Road to Sunset Boulevard between Highway 99W and Main Street.
79 Collector Gap: Sunset Boulevard to Brookman Road between Old Highway 99W and Ladd Hill Road.
80 Collector Gap: Roy Rodgers Road to Edy Road between Borchers Drive and Elwert Road.
81 Collector Gap: Edy Road to Handley Street between Highway 99W and Elwert Road.

82 OR 99W north of SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd*
83 SW Roy Rogers Rd West of OR 99W*
84 SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd east of OR 99W*
85 SW Edy Rd west of OR 99W
86 OR 99W south of SW Edy Rd*
87 SW Oregon St east of SW Murdock Rd
88 SW Sunset Blvd between SW Pinehurst Dr and SW Murdock Rd
89 SW Langer Farms Pkwy south of SW Century Dr

90 Highway 99W and Home Depot access road/Langer Farms Parkway (extension)*
91 Highway 99W and Tualatin Sherwood Road*
92 Highway 99W and Edy Road/Sherwood Boulevard*
93 Highway 99W and Sunset Boulevard*
94 Highway 99W and Brookman Road*
95 Highway 99W and Red*
96 Highway 99W and future road (south of Red)*
97 Highway 99W and 12th St*
98 Highway 99W and Cedar Brook Way*
99 Highway 99W and Meinecke Road*

100 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Baler Way*
101 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Langer Farms Parkway*
102 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Olds Place*
103 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Gerda Lane*
104 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Langer Drive*
105 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Wildrose Place*
106 Tualatin Sherwood Road and Cipole Road*
107 Tualatin Sherwood Road and 124th Avenue*
108 Roy Rogers Road and Cedarview Way*
109 Roy Rogers Road and Lynnly Way*
110 Roy Rogers Road and Lavender Place*
111 Cipole Road and Herman Road
112 Herman Road and 129th Avenue
113 124th Avenue and Myslony Street
114 124th and Cipole Road (extension)
115 Langer Drive and Langer Drive
116 Langer Drive and Baler Way
117 Elwert Road and Conzelmann Road
118 Elwert Road and Edy Road
119 Elwert Road and Handley Street
120 Elwert Road and Haide Road
121 Elwert Road and Sunset Boulevard
122 Edy Road and Bedstraw Terrace
123 Edy Road and Houston Drive
124 Edy Road and Madeira Terrace
125 Edy Road and Borchers Drive
126 Sherwood Boulevard and 12th Street
127 Sherwood Boulevard and Gleneagle Drive
128 Langer Farms Parkway and Whetstone Way
129 Oregon Street and Murdock Road

Bicyle Needs (Low Priority Gaps)

Transit Needs

Motor Vehicle Needs (Connectivity)

Motor Vehicle Needs (Corridor Mobility)

Motor Vehicle Needs (Intersection Operations)

566



130 Oregon Street and Tonquin Road
131 Oregon Street and Lincoln Street
132 Murdock Road and Willamette Street
133 Pine Street and 2nd Street
134 Sunset Boulevard and Woodhaven Drive
135 Sunset Boulevard and Timbrel Lane
136 Sunset Boulevard and Richen Park Terrace
137 Sunset Boulevard and Greengate Place
138 Sunset Boulevard and Redfern Place
139 Sunset Boulevard and Myrica Court
140 Sunset Boulevard and Main Street
141 Sunset Boulevard and Cinnamon Hills Place
142 Sunset Boulevard and Pine Street
143 Sunset Boulevard and Aldergrove Avenue
144 Sunset Boulevard and Brittany Place
145 Sunset Boulevard and Murdock Road
146 Ladd Hill Road and Brookman Road
147 Brookman Road and Middleton Road

148 MP 14.91 to MP 15.09 (Tualatin Sherwood Road intersection)
149 MP 16.61 to MP 16.73 (Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard intersection)
150 MP 15.92 to MP 16.01 (Meinecke Road intersection)

151 Highway 99W/Tualatin Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road
152 Tualatin Sherwood Road/Cipole Road
153 Highway 99W/Elwert Road/Sunset Boulevard
154 Tualatin Sherwood Road/Oregon Street
155 Tualatin Sherwood Road/Gerda Lane
156 Highway 99W/Meinecke Road

Safety Needs (Intersections)

Safety Needs (Road Segments)

567



Sherwood TSP Update Initial Project List DRAFT 04/10/14

Legend
Financially Constrained Group 1 ($11 million through 2035)
Financially Constrained Group 2 ($60 million through 2035)

Project # Project Name Primary Mode Project Start Point Project End Point Project Details
Evaluation

Score
Need Reference #

D1
Tualatin Sherwood Road
Improvements Phase 2

Roads/bridges
Langer Farms

Parkway
Teton Avenue

Widen Tualatin Sherwood Road (from Langer Farms Parkway to
Teton Avenue) to five lanes with bike lanes and sidewalks.

2.5 102 107

D2
Tonquin Road Safety

Improvements
Roads/bridges Grahams Ferry Road Oregon Street

Widen Tonquin Road (from Grahams Ferry Road to Oregon Street) to
provide shoulders.

2.5 32, 68

D3
Oregon Intersections

Improvements at Murdock and
Tonquin

Roads/bridges
Oregon

Street/Tonquin
Road

Oregon
Street/Murdock

Road

Install a roundabout at the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection
with dual westbound through lanes and a single eastbound
through/right lane. Consider creating a "Dumbbell Roundabout" with
the Oregon/Murdock roundabout by disallowing the west circulating
lane at Oregon/Tonquin and disallowing the east circulating lane at
Oregon/Murdock. Add a second westbound approach lane to the
Murdock Road Oregon Street roundabout for separated westbound
left and westbound through lanes. Keep three lanes on the bridge
structure.

3.5 129, 130

D4 Elwert Road Improvements Roads/bridges Highway 99W Edy Road
Upgrade Elwert Road (from Highway 99W to Edy Road) to a three
lane arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. This project may be
phased with D30 for design and construction purposes.

3.5 11, 119, 120, 121

D5
Brookman Road Improvements

(Three Lane Collector)
Roads/bridges Highway 99W Middleton Road

Implement Brookman Road Concept Plan improvements to
Brookman Road from Highway 99W to Middleton Road. Major
improvements include: rebuild road to a three lane collector facility,
and a shared use path along the north side. The Concept Plan
identifies Brookman Road as a collector with the intended function of
also providing access to neighborhoods to the north. In addition,
reserve right of way for the potential widening to five lanes in the
event that further refinements to the I 5/99W Connector Plan
identify Brookman Road as the Southern Arterial to serve as the
primary route for east west mobility.

1.5 58, 146, 147, 94

D6 Edy Road Improvements Roads/bridges Borchers Drive City Limits
Upgrade Edy Road (from Borchers Drive to City Limits) to a three lane
collector with bike lanes and sidewalks.

4.0
5, 10, 55, 56, 122,
123, 124

D7 Ladd Hill Road Improvements Roads/bridges Sunset Boulevard
Urban Growth

Boundary
Upgrade Ladd Hill Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the Urban Growth
Boundary) to a three arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks.

3.5 53, 57, 146

D8 Oregon Street Improvements Roads/bridges Murdock Road Railroad Crossing
Upgrade Oregon Street (from Murdock Road to the railroad crossing)
to a three lane collector with sidewalks on south side and a shared
use path on the north side (part of the Ice Age Tonquin Trail).

3.0 28, 29, 49, 130

D9 Baler to Herman Connection Roads/bridges
Baler Way/Tualatin

Sherwood Road

Herman
Road/Langer

Farms Parkway

Build a collector roadway, connecting Baler Way at Tualatin
Sherwood Road to the future terminus of the Herman Road at Langer
Farms Parkway.

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

D10
Cedar Brook Way Extension

Segment 1
Roads/bridges Meinecke Road Existing Terminus

Extend Cedar Brook Way from its existing terminus to Meinecke Road
as a two lane local road.

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

D11
Cedar Brook Way Extension

Segment 2
Roads/bridges Handley Street Highway 99W

Extend Cedar Brook Way from its existing terminus at Handley Street
south to Elwert Road as a two lane collector road.

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

D12
Extension of Langer Farms

Parkway at 99W
Roads/bridges Highway 99W Extend Langer Farms Parkway from 99W west as a collector road. 2.5

None (previously
planned project)

D13
Tualatin Sherwood

Improvements – Phase 1
Roads/bridges Borchers Drive Baler Way

Widen Tualatin Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road between Borchers
Drive and Baler Way to five lanes. Includes intersection modifications
at OR 99W, the Sherwood Market Center, and at Baler Way.

None (previously
planned project)

D14
Highway 99W/Brookman Traffic

Signal and Realignment
Roads/bridges Highway 99W Middleton Road

Realign Brookman Road to intersect with Highway 99W
approximately 1/4 mile north of its existing intersection; this
improvement includes a traffic signal at the realigned intersection
with a westbound left and southbound right turn lane, and a grade
separated railroad crossing.

5.0 94

D15 Sunset Boulevard Improvements Roads/bridges Aldergrove Avenue Eucalyptus Terrace
Upgrade Sunset Boulevard (from Aldergrove Avenue to Eucalyptus
Terrace) to a three lane arterial with sidewalks and bike lanes.
Address vertical crest sight distance issues near Pine Street.

3.5 15, 51, 139 143

D16
Edy/Highway 99W Intersection

Improvements
Roads/bridges

Edy Road/Highway
99W

Restripe the westbound Sherwood Boulevard approach to have a
single left turn lane, a single through lane, and a single right turn
lane. Eliminate the split phase timing for the side streets, and
maintain the existing green time on OR 99W for the northbound and
southbound through movements. Add the missing crosswalk to the
south approach. Consider implementing P3 alongside this project.

5.5 92

D17
Meinecke/Highway 99W

Intersection Improvements
Roads/bridges

Meinecke
Road/Highway 99W

Change the eastbound and westbound left turn phasing on Meinecke
Road from permitted to permitted/protected and maintaining the
existing green time on OR 99W for the northbound and southbound
through movements. Consider implementing P3 alongside this
project.

2.5 99

D18 Langer Drive Improvements Roads/bridges Baler Way
Sherwood
Boulevard

Construct improvements to Langer Drive between Baler Way and
Sherwood Boulevard that are consistent with the Sherwood Town
Center Plan. Major improvements include: buffered bike lanes, on
street parking, wider sidewalks, narrower travel lanes, removal of the
center turn lane, and landscaping.

4.5 41

D19 124th Avenue Extension Roads/bridges
Tualatin Sherwood

Road
Tonquin Road

Extend 124th Avenue as an arterial from Tualatin Sherwood Road to
Tonquin Road.

1.0
None (previously
planned project)

D20
Tonquin Employment Area East

West Collector
Roads/bridges Oregon Street

124th Avenue
Extension

Build an east west collector facility between Oregon Street and the
124th Avenue extension in the Tonquin Employment Area;
improvement includes a roundabout at the Oregon Street
intersection.

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

D21 Herman Road Extension Roads/bridges Cipole Road
Highway 99W or

Langer Farms
Parkway

Extend Herman Road from its existing terminus at Cipole Road west
to either Highway 99W or Langer Farms Parkway as a two to three
lane collector facility.

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

D22
Kruger/Elwert Intersection Safety

Improvement
Roads/bridges

Kruger Road/Elwert
Road

Realign Elwert Road to provide more storage at Highway 99W, and
realign the Kruger Road intersection to the Cedarbrook extension as a
single lane roundabout. Consider implementing D31 with this project.

2.5 153

D23
Edy/Borchers Right In/Right Out

and Eastbound Lefts
Roads/bridges

Edy Road/Borchers
Drive

Convert the Edy Road/Borchers Drive intersection to only allow right
in/right out and eastbound left in; build a roundabout on Edy Road
to the west at the south property's existing driveway.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

D24
Sherwood Boulevard Intersection

Modifications
Roads/bridges

Sherwood
Boulevard/ Langer

Drive

Sherwood
Boulevard/

Century Drive

Remove the Sherwood Boulevard/Langer Drive traffic signal (allow
right in, right out, and left in movements only), and install a traffic
signal at the Sherwood Boulevard/Century Drive intersection (add
eastbound and westbound left turn lanes).

4.0 126

D25 Sunset/Pine Improvements Roads/bridges
Sunset Boulevard/

Pine Street
Restripe Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound and
westbound left turn lanes.

2.5 142

Project List

568



D26
Sunset/Main Traffic Control

Enhancement
Roads/bridges

Sunset
Boulevard/Main

Street

Install a traffic signal at the Sunset Boulevard/Main Street
intersection

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

D27 Baker Road Improvements Roads/bridges Sunset Boulevard
Urban Growth

Boundary
Upgrade Baker Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the urban growth
boundary) to a two lane arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks.

3.0 17, 66

D28
Sunset/Timbrel Traffic Control

Enhancement
Roads/bridges

Sunset Boulevard/
Timbrel Lane

Install a single lane roundabout at the Sunset Boulevard/Timbrel
Lane intersection.

2.5 135

D29
Edy to Roy Rogers Collector

Roadway
Roads/bridges Edy Road Roy Rogers Road

Build a collector roadway from Edy Road to Roy Rogers Road,
between Cedarview Way and Lynnly Way.

2.5 80

D30 Elwert/Edy Roundabout Roads/bridges
Elwert Road/Edy

Road

Install a single lane roundabout at the Elwert Road/Edy Road
intersection. This project may be phased with D4 for design and
construction purposes.

2.5 118

D31
Highway 99W/Sunset

Improvements
Roads/bridges

Highway
99W/Sunset
Boulevard

Add westbound and eastbound left turn lanes at Highway
99W/Sunset Boulevard with protective permissive phasing. Consider
implementing D22 and P3 alongside this project.

3.0 93

D32
Ladd Hill/Brookman

Improvements
Roads/bridges

Ladd Hill
Road/Brookman

Road

Add a southbound right turn lane at the Ladd Hill Road/Brookman
Road intersection.

2.0 146

D33 Sunset/Murdock Turn Lanes Roads/bridges
Sunset Boulevard/

Murdock Road
Add a southbound right turn lane and a northbound left turn lane at
the Sunset Boulevard/Murdock Road intersection.

2.5 145

D34
Brookman/Middleton Traffic

Control Enhancements
Roads/bridges

Brookman
Road/Middleton

Road

Move the stop signs to the north and south approaches, and add a
southbound left turn lane at the Brookman Road/Middleton Road
intersection.

2.5 147

D35 Area 59 Neighborhood Route Roads/bridges Elwert Road Copper Terrace
Build a neighborhood roadway, connecting Elwert Road and Copper
Terrace as identified in the Area 59 concept plan.

4.5
None (previously
planned project)

P1 Handley Street Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Elwert Road
Existing Sidewalk
Terminus to the

East

Construct sidewalk along the north side of Handley Street from
Elwert Road to the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 250 feet
east of Elwert Road.

2.0 12

P2 Highway 99W Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian
North Urban Growth

Boundary
South Urban

Growth Boundary

Construct sidewalks along both sides of Highway 99W between the
north Urban Growth Boundary and the south Urban Growth
Boundary.

2.5 1, 2, 9, 22

P3 Highway 99W Crosswalks Pedestrian Edy Road Sunset Boulevard

Add missing crosswalks at existing traffic signal locations on Highway
99W between Edy Road and Sunset Boulevard. The crosswalk
enhancements may be phased individually with their corresponding
intersection improvements (D16, D17, D31).

3.5 35

P4
Ice Age Tonquin Trail/Highway

99W Connection
Pedestrian Highway 99W Tonquin Trail

Construct a shared use path that connects the proposed Cedar
Creek/Tonquin Trail to Highway 99W.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P5
10th Street Neighborhood

Greenway
Pedestrian

Sherwood
Boulevard

Cedar
Creek/Tonquin

Trail Connection

Add sidewalks and shared lane markings to 10th Street and Gleneagle
Drive from Sherwood Boulevard to the planned Cedar Creek/Tonquin
Trail connection.

2.0 8

P6
Sherwood Boulevard

Improvements
Pedestrian Langer Drive 3rd Street

Construct improvements to Sherwood Boulevard between Langer
Drive and 3rd Street that are consistent with the Sherwood Town
Center Plan. Major improvements include: a shared use path on the
east side, wider sidewalks on the west side, narrower travel lanes,
and landscaping.

4.5 44

P7
Langer to Trumpeter Shared Use

Path
Pedestrian Langer Drive Trumpeter Drive

Construct a shared use path connecting Langer Drive and Trumpeter
Drive.

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P8
Hopkins Elementary School North

Shared Use Path
Pedestrian

Sherwood
Boulevard

Trail south of Baler
Way

Construct a shared use path on the north side of Hopkins Elementary
School, connecting Sherwood Boulevard to the existing trail south of
Baler Way.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P9
Hopkins Elementary School East

Shared Use Path
Pedestrian

Trail at the
northeast baseball

field

St Francis south
access road

Construct a shared use path on the east side of Hopkins Elementary
School, connecting the existing trail south of Baler Way to the St
Francis south access road.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P10
Sherwood Middle School Shared

Use Path
Pedestrian

Roundabout at the
Oregon Street/Ash
Street intersection

Hopkins
Elementary School

East Shared Use
Path

Construct a shared use path on the east side of Sherwood Middle
School, connecting the Hopkins Elementary School East Shared Use
Path to the roundabout at the Oregon Street/Ash Street intersection.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P11 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 6 Regional Trail
Tonquin

Road/Morgan Road

Tonquin
Road/Oregon

Street

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 6 improvements from immediately
west of the Tonquin Road/Morgan Road intersection to the Tonquin
Road/Oregon Street intersection.

3.5 32, 68

P12 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 7 Regional Trail
Tonquin

Road/Oregon Street
Park Street

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 7 improvements from immediately
west of the Tonquin/Oregon Street intersection to immediately north
of Park Street.

4.0 30

P13 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 8 Regional Trail Park Street Highway 99W
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 8 improvements from immediately
north of Park Street to immediately south of Highway 99W.

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P14 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 9 Regional Trail Highway 99W Roy Rogers Road
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 9 improvements from immediately
south of Highway 99W to Roy Rogers Road (including Roy Rogers
intersection).

4.0 35

P15 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 10 Regional Trail Roy Rogers Road
Tualatin River

National Wildlife
Refuge Trailhead

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 10 improvements from Roy Rogers
Road north to Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge trailhead.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P16 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 11 Regional Trail
Tonquin

Road/Oregon Street
Cipole Road

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 11 improvements from
immediately east of the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection to
immediately west of Cipole Road.

3.0 31

P17 Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment 12 Regional Trail Cipole Road Highway 99W
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 12 improvements from
immediately west of Cipole Road to immediately north of Highway
99W.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P18 Cipole Road Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian

Approximately
1,250 feet north of
Tualatin Sherwood

Road

Existing Sidewalk
Terminus to the

North

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Cipole Road from
approximately 1,250 feet north of Tualatin Sherwood Road to the
existing sidewalk terminus approximately 450 feet north.

2.0 34

P19 12th Street Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Highway 99W
Sherwood
Boulevard

Construct sidewalk along the south side of 12th Street from Highway
99W to Sherwood Boulevard.

3.0 3

P20 Division Street Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Main Street Cuthill Place
Construct sidewalk along both sides of Division Street from Main
Street to Cuthill Place.

2.5 7

P21 Meinecke Road Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Lee Drive
Existing Sidewalk
Terminus to the

East

Construct sidewalk along the north side of Meinecke Road from Lee
Drive to the existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately
400 feet).

2.5 4

P22
Pine Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 1
Pedestrian Willamette Street Columbia Street

Construct sidewalk along the west side of Pine Street from
Willamette Street to Columbia Street.

3.0 6

P23
Pine Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 2
Pedestrian Division Street Sunset Boulevard

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Pine Street from Division
Street to Sunset Boulevard, and fill the sidewalk gap along the west
side of Pine Street just north of Sunset Boulevard.

4.0 21

P24
Willamette Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 1
Pedestrian Division Street Upper Roy Street

Construct sidewalk along the south side of Willamette Street from
Division Street to Upper Roy Street.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P25
Willamette Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 2
Pedestrian Cochran Drive Murdock Road

Fill the sidewalk gap along the north side of Willamette Street from
Cochran Drive to Murdock Road.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P26
Highway 99W Grade Separated

Crossing
Pedestrian Edy Road Sunset Boulevard

Build a grade separated crossing of Highway 99W for pedestrians and
bicyclists, providing a direct connection for the Ice Age Tonquin Trail
east and west of the highway.

3.0 35

569



P27 Washington Street Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Division Street Tualatin Street
Construct sidewalk along both sides of Washington Street from
Division Street to Tualatin Street.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P28
Pine Street/Division Street

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Pine Street/Division
Street

Install marked crosswalks at the Pine Street/Division Street
intersection.

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P29
Pine Street/Sunset Boulevard

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Pine Street/Sunset
Boulevard

Install marked crosswalks at the Pine Street/Sunset Boulevard
intersection.

2.5
None (previously
planned project)

P30
Sunset Boulevard/St Charles Way

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Sunset Boulevard/St
Charles Way

Install marked crosswalks at the Sunset Boulevard/St Charles Way
intersection.

2.5 36

P31
Sunset Boulevard/Redfern Drive

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Sunset
Boulevard/Redfern

Drive

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset
Boulevard/Redfern Drive intersection.

2.5 36

P32
Sunset Boulevard/Galewood
Drive Crossing Improvements

Pedestrian
Sunset

Boulevard/Galewoo
d Drive

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset
Boulevard/Galewood Drive intersection.

3.0 36

P33
Cedar Creek Trail/Railroad Tracks

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Cedar Creek
Trail/Railroad Tracks

Install a controlled crossing across the railroad tracks at the Cedar
Creek Trail.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P34
Rock Creek Trail/Tualatin
Sherwood Road Protected

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Rock Creek
Trail/Tualatin

Sherwood Road

Install a marked crossing across Tualatin Sherwood Road at the Rock
Creek Trail with pedestrian refuge islands and Rectangular Rapid
Flashing Beacons.

3.5
None (previously
planned project)

P35
Sunset Boulevard/Existing Trail

Crossing Improvements
Pedestrian

Sunset
Boulevard/Existing

Trail

Install a marked crossing across Sunset Boulevard at the existing trail
just west of Heatherwood Lane.

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P36 Local Off Street Trail Segment 1 Pedestrian Seely Lane
Highway

99W/Home Depot
Access

Construct an off street trail from the existing trail on Seely Lane to
the Highway 99W/Home Depot Access intersection (approximately
4,100 feet).

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P37 Local Off Street Trail Segment 2 Pedestrian
Highway

99W/Home Depot
Access

Tualatin Sherwood
Road

Construct an off street trail from the Highway 99W/Home Depot
Access intersection to Tualatin Sherwood Road, approximately 150
feet east of the Century Drive intersection (approximately 4,800
feet).

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P38 Local Off Street Trail Segment 3 Pedestrian
Tualatin Sherwood

Road

Oregon
Street/Tonquin

Road

Construct an off street trail from Tualatin Sherwood Road,
approximately 150 feet east of the Century Drive intersection, to the
Oregon Street/Tonquin Road intersection (approximately 2,800 feet).

4.0
None (previously
planned project)

P39 Local Off Street Trail Segment 4 Pedestrian Highway 99W Woodhaven Drive
Construct an off street trail from Highway 99W to Woodhaven Drive,
approximately 150 feet west of Dewey Drive (approximately 1,000
feet).

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P40 Local Off Street Trail Segment 5 Pedestrian Stellar Drive Trail Sunset Boulevard

Construct an off street trail from the Stellar Drive trail to Sunset
Boulevard at the Galewood Drive pedestrian access, and on off street
trail connecting the Richen Park Terrace pedestrian access to
Pinehurst Drive along the back of Woodhaven City Park
(approximately 1,600 feet).

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P41 Local Off Street Trail Segment 6 Pedestrian Sunset Boulevard
Saint Charles Way

Trail

Construct an off street trail from Sunset Boulevard, just west of
Redfern Place, to the Saint Charles Way trail (approximately 1,500
feet).

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

P42 Local Off Street Trail Segment 7 Pedestrian
Saint Charles Way

Trail
Villa Road

Construct an off street trail from the north end of the Saint Charles
Way trail to Villa Road at the existing trail head (approximately 1,200
feet).

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P43 Local Off Street Trail Segment 9 Pedestrian Sunset Boulevard Inkster Drive
Construct an off street trail from Sunset Boulevard to Inkster Drive
(approximately 3,500 feet).

3.0
None (previously
planned project)

P44 Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill Pedestrian Hall Street Orland Street
Construct sidewalk along the south side of Oregon Street between
Hall Street and Orland Street.

2.5 29

P45
Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill

Segment 1
Pedestrian Willamette Street Oregon Street

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from
Willamette Street to Oregon Street.

2.0 18, 28

P46
Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill

Segment 2
Pedestrian Sunset Boulevard

Existing Sidewalk
Terminus to the

North

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from Sunset
Boulevard to the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 600 feet
north of Upper Roy Street.

2.0 20

P47
Downtown Streetscapes Master
Plan Phases 1 and 2 (Old Town

Core)
Pedestrian

Downtown
Sherwood

Complete Phase 1 (Old Town Core) and Phase 2 (Cannery Arterials) of
the Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5
None (previously
planned project)

P48
Downtown Streetscapes Master

Plan Phase 3 (Old Town
Secondary Streets)

Pedestrian
Downtown
Sherwood

Complete Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary Streets) of the Downtown
Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5
None (previously
planned project)

P49
Downtown Streetscapes Master

Plan Phase 4 (Old Town
Residential Neighborhoods)

Pedestrian
Downtown
Sherwood

Complete Phase 4 (Old Town Residential Neighborhoods) of the
Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5
None (previously
planned project)

P50
Downtown Streetscapes Master

Plan Phase 6 (Railroad Siding
Relocation)

Pedestrian
Downtown
Sherwood

Complete Phase 6 (Railroad Siding Relocation) of the Downtown
Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5
None (previously
planned project)

B1 Murdock Shared Use Path Bike Oregon Street Upper Roy Street
Build a shared use path along the west side of Murdock Road from
Oregon Street to Upper Roy Street.

3.0 62

B2 Meinecke Bike Lanes Bike Marshall Street 1st Street Add bike lanes on Meinecke Road from Marshall Street to 3rd Street. 4.0 46

B3
Holland Lane Neighborhood

Greenway
Bike Langer Drive

Trail Head along
Holland Lane

Add neighborhood greenway improvements (e.g., shared lane
markings) to Holland Lane between Langer Drive and the existing trail
head.

1.5
None (previously
planned project)

B4
Baler Way Neighborhood

Greenway
Bike Trumpeter Drive

Century Drive (east
intersection)

Add neighborhood greenway improvements (e.g., shared lane
markings) to Baler Way between Trumpeter Drive and the eastern
intersection with Century Drive.

2.0
None (previously
planned project)

B5
Main Street Shared Lane

Markings
Bike 1st Street

Sherwood
Boulevard

Add shared lane markings to Main Street between 1st Street and
Sherwood Boulevard.

2.0 52

B6 Pine Street Shared Lane Markings Bike 3rd Street
Sherwood
Boulevard

Add shared lane markings to Pine Street between 3rd Street and
Sherwood Boulevard.

2.5 45

B7 Borchers Bike Lanes Bike Edy Road Roy Rogers Road
Build bike lanes on Borchers Road between Edy Road and Roy Rogers
Road.

3.0 40

B8 3rd Street Shared Lane Markings Bike Washington Street
Sherwood
Boulevard

Add shared lane markings on 3rd Street from Washington Street to
Sherwood Boulevard.

2.0 47

B9 1st Street Shared Lane Markings Bike Main Street Pine Street
Add shared lane markings on 1st Street from Main Street to Pine
Street.

2.0 48

B10 Century Drive Shared Use Path Bike
Tualatin Sherwood

Road
Existing Terminus

Widen the sidewalk on the south/east side of Century Drive between
Tualatin Sherwood Road and the existing terminus to provide a
shared use path

4.5 49

B11 Timbrel Lane Improvements Bike Sunset Boulevard Old Highway 99W
Upgrade Timbrel Lane (from Sunset Boulevard to Old Highway 99W)
to a two lane collector with bike lanes and sidewalks. Would require
removal of street trees.

2.0 59

B12
Old Highway 99W Shared Use

Path
Bike Timbrel Lane Crooked River Lane

Widen the sidewalk along the west side of Old Highway 99W
between Timbrel Lane and Crooked River Lane to provide a shared
use path

2.5 60

B13
Old Highway 99W Improvements

Segment 2
Bike Crooked River Lane Brookman Road

Upgrade Old Highway 99W (from Crooked River Lane to Brookman
Road) to a two lane collector with a shared use path on the west side
and sidewalks on the east side.

3.5 60

B14 Handley Bike Facilities Bike Cedar Brook Way Elwert Road

Add bike lanes along Handley Street between Cedar Brook Way and
Meadow Terrace through parking removal and restriping. Add shared
lane markings and signage along Meadow Terrace and Cereghino
Lane as an alternative bike route to Handley Street west of Meadow
Terrace. Create a bicycle/pedestrian connection between the west
end of Cereghino Lane and Elwert Road.

2.0 #N/A

B15 Galbreath Drive Bike Reroute Bike
Gerda Lane/Tualatin

Sherwood Road
City Limits

Direct bicyclists to use the Herman Road extension instead of
Galbreath Drive and Gerda Lane.

3.5 64, 65

570



B16 Baler Way Bike Lanes Bike Century Drive
Tualatin Sherwood

Road
Rebuild Baler Way to a collector between Century Drive and Tualatin
Sherwood Road to include bike lanes.

3.0 42

B17 12th Street Bike Lanes Bike Highway 99W
Sherwood
Boulevard

Add bike lanes on 12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood
Boulevard.

3.5 43

B18
Washington Street Shared Lane

Markings
Bike 3rd Street 1st Street

Add shared lane markings on Washington Street between 3rd Street
and 1st Street.

1.0 46

B19 Sunset Bike Lanes Bike Aldergrove Avenue Murdock Road
Add bike lanes on Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove Avenue and
Murdock Road

2.5 63

T1
Provide Transit Amenities at

Major Transit Stops
Transit Capital Citywide Provide Transit Amenities at Major Transit Stops . 2.5 73

T2
Improve Pedestrian Connections

to Transit Facilities
Transit Capital Citywide Improve Pedestrian Connections to Transit Facilities. 3.5 74

T3
Increase Density Adjacent to

Transit
Transit Capital Citywide Increase Density Adjacent to Transit. 5.0

None (previously
planned project)

T4 Decrease Headways Transit Capital Citywide Decrease Headways. 2.5
None (previously
planned project)

T5 Provide Local Service Transit Capital Citywide Provide local service to enhanced regional service. 2.5 77

571



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

572



12 | 2014 Sherwood Transportation System Plan (03 20 14 DRAFT): THE TRENDS 573



(This page left intentionally blank)

574



Project # Project Name Project Details
Evaluation

Score
Estimated

Cost
City Cost Priority

D1
Tualatin Sherwood Road
Improvements Phase 2

Widen Tualatin Sherwood Road (from Langer Farms Parkway to Teton
Avenue) to five lanes with bike lanes and sidewalks.

2.5 $43,042,500 $0 Long Term

D2
Tonquin Road Safety

Improvements
Widen Tonquin Road (from Grahams Ferry Road to Oregon Street) to provide
shoulders.

2.5 $28,406,000 $0 Long Term

D3
Oregon Intersections

Improvements at Murdock and
Tonquin

Install a roundabout at the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection with
dual westbound through lanes and a single eastbound through/right lane.
Consider creating a "Dumbbell Roundabout" with the Oregon/Murdock
roundabout by disallowing the west circulating lane at Oregon/Tonquin and
disallowing the east circulating lane at Oregon/Murdock. Add a second
westbound approach lane to the Murdock Road Oregon Street roundabout
for separated westbound left and westbound through lanes. Keep three
lanes on the bridge structure.

3.5 $2,945,000 $1,389,000 Short Term

D4 Elwert Road Improvements
Upgrade Elwert Road (from Highway 99W to Edy Road) to a three lane
arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks. This project may be phased with D30
for design and construction purposes.

3.5 $11,430,000 $2,286,000 Medium Term

D5
Brookman Road Improvements

(Three Lane Arterial)

Implement Brookman Road Concept Plan improvements to Brookman Road
from Highway 99W to Middleton Road. Major improvements include: rebuild
road to a three lane arterial facility, and a shared use path along the north
side. In addition, reserve right of way for the potential widening to five lanes
in the event that further refinements to the I 5/99W Connector Plan identify
Brookman Road as the Southern Arterial to serve as the primary route for
east west mobility.

1.5 $15,300,000 $3,060,000 Long Term

D6 Edy Road Improvements
Upgrade Edy Road (from Borchers Drive to City Limits) to a three lane
collector with bike lanes and sidewalks.

4 $8,760,000 $8,760,000 Medium Term

D7 Ladd Hill Road Improvements
Upgrade Ladd Hill Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the Urban Growth
Boundary) to a three arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks.

3.5 $6,340,000 $6,340,000 Medium Term

D8 Oregon Street Improvements
Upgrade Oregon Street (from Murdock Road to the railroad crossing) to a
three lane collector with sidewalks on south side and a shared use path on
the north side (part of the Ice Age Tonquin Trail).

3 $6,712,000 $6,712,000 Medium Term

D9 Baler to Herman Connection
Build a collector roadway, connecting Baler Way at Tualatin Sherwood Road
to the future terminus of the Herman Road at Langer Farms Parkway.

2 $3,802,000 $3,802,000 Long Term

D10
Cedar Brook Way Extension

Segment 1
Extend Cedar Brook Way from its existing terminus to Meinecke Road as a
two lane local road.

2 $596,000 $596,000 Long Term

D11
Cedar Brook Way Extension

Segment 2
Extend Cedar Brook Way from its existing terminus at Handley Street south
to Elwert Road as a two lane collector road.

2 $13,000,000 $13,000,000 Long Term

D12
Extension of Langer Farms

Parkway at 99W
Extend Langer Farms Parkway from 99W west as a collector road. 2.5 $3,243,000 $3,243,000 Medium Term

D13
Tualatin Sherwood

Improvements – Phase 1

Widen Tualatin Sherwood Road/Roy Rogers Road between Borchers Drive
and Baler Way to five lanes. Includes intersection modifications at OR 99W,
the Sherwood Market Center, and at Baler Way.

$0 $0
Committed

Funding

D14
Highway 99W/Brookman

Traffic Signal and Realignment

Realign Brookman Road to intersect with Highway 99W approximately 1/4
mile north of its existing intersection; this improvement includes a traffic
signal at the realigned intersection with a westbound left and southbound
right turn lane, and a grade separated railroad crossing.

5 $7,020,000 $1,404,000 Medium Term

D15
Sunset Boulevard

Improvements

Upgrade Sunset Boulevard (from Aldergrove Avenue to Eucalyptus Terrace)
to a three lane arterial with sidewalks and bike lanes. Address vertical crest
sight distance issues near Pine Street.

3.5 $8,316,000 $8,316,000 Medium Term

D16
Edy/Highway 99W Intersection

Improvements

Restripe the westbound Sherwood Boulevard approach to have a single left
turn lane, a single through lane, and a single right turn lane. Eliminate the
split phase timing for the side streets, and maintain the existing green time
on OR 99W for the northbound and southbound through movements. Add
the missing crosswalk to the south approach. Consider implementing P3
alongside this project.

5.5 $1,070,000 $214,000 Short Term

D17
Meinecke/Highway 99W

Intersection Improvements

Change the eastbound and westbound left turn phasing on Meinecke Road
from permitted to permitted/protected and maintaining the existing green
time on OR 99W for the northbound and southbound through movements.
Consider implementing P3 alongside this project.

2.5 $5,000 $1,000 Medium Term

D18 Langer Drive Improvements

Construct improvements to Langer Drive between Baler Way and Sherwood
Boulevard that are consistent with the Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major
improvements include: buffered bike lanes, on street parking, wider
sidewalks, narrower travel lanes, removal of the center turn lane, and
landscaping.

4.5 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Short Term

D19 124th Avenue Extension
Extend 124th Avenue as an arterial from Tualatin Sherwood Road to Tonquin
Road.

1 $82,500,000 $0
Committed

Funding

D20
Tonquin Employment Area

East West Collector

Build an east west collector facility between Oregon Street and the 124th
Avenue extension in the Tonquin Employment Area; improvement includes a
roundabout at the Oregon Street intersection.

2 $6,400,000 $6,400,000 Long Term

D21 Herman Road Extension
Extend Herman Road from its existing terminus at Cipole Road west to either
Highway 99W or Langer Farms Parkway as a two to three lane collector
facility.

4 $8,190,000 $8,190,000 Long Term

D22
Kruger/Elwert Intersection

Safety Improvement

Realign Elwert Road to provide more storage at Highway 99W, and realign
the Kruger Road intersection to the Cedarbrook extension as a single lane
roundabout. Consider implementing D31 with this project.

2.5 $1,550,000 $0
Committed

Funding

D23
Edy/Borchers Right In/Right

Out and Eastbound Lefts

Convert the Edy Road/Borchers Drive intersection to only allow right in/right
out and eastbound left in; build a roundabout on Edy Road to the west at the
south property's existing driveway.

3 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Long Term

D24
Sherwood Boulevard

Intersection Modifications

Remove the Sherwood Boulevard/Langer Drive traffic signal (allow right in,
right out, and left in movements only), and install a traffic signal at the
Sherwood Boulevard/Century Drive intersection (add eastbound and
westbound left turn lanes).

4 $900,000 $900,000 Short Term

D25 Sunset/Pine Improvements
Restripe Sunset Boulevard at Pine Street to add eastbound and westbound
left turn lanes.

2.5 $6,000 $6,000 Medium Term

D26
Sunset/Main Traffic Control

Enhancement
Install a traffic signal at the Sunset Boulevard/Main Street intersection 4 $250,000 $250,000 Long Term

D27 Baker Road Improvements
Upgrade Baker Road (from Sunset Boulevard to the urban growth boundary)
to a two lane arterial with bike lanes and sidewalks.

3 $779,000 $779,000 Medium Term

D28
Sunset/Timbrel Traffic Control

Enhancement
Install a single lane roundabout at the Sunset Boulevard/Timbrel Lane
intersection.

2.5 $300,000 $300,000 Long Term

D29
Edy to Roy Rogers Collector

Roadway
Build a collector roadway from Edy Road to Roy Rogers Road, between
Cedarview Way and Lynnly Way.

2.5 $3,400,000 $3,400,000 Long Term

D30 Elwert/Edy Roundabout
Install a single lane roundabout at the Elwert Road/Edy Road intersection.
This project may be phased with D4 for design and construction purposes.

2.5 $1,500,000 $750,000 Medium Term

Motor Vehicle Projects

Sherwood TSP Project List

575



D31
Highway 99W/Sunset

Improvements

Add westbound and eastbound left turn lanes at Highway 99W/Sunset
Boulevard with protective permissive phasing. Consider implementing D22
and P3 alongside this project.

3 $500,000 $100,000 Short Term

D32
Ladd Hill/Brookman

Improvements
Add a southbound right turn lane at the Ladd Hill Road/Brookman Road
intersection.

2 $250,000 $250,000 Long Term

D33 Sunset/Murdock Turn Lanes
Add a southbound right turn lane and a northbound left turn lane at the
Sunset Boulevard/Murdock Road intersection.

2.5 $750,000 $750,000 Medium Term

D34
Brookman/Middleton Traffic

Control Enhancements

Move the stop signs to the north and south approaches, and add a
southbound left turn lane at the Brookman Road/Middleton Road
intersection.

2.5 $250,000 $50,000 Medium Term

D35 Area 59 Neighborhood Route
Build a neighborhood roadway, connecting Elwert Road and Copper Terrace
as identified in the Area 59 concept plan.

4.5 $2,167,000 $2,167,000 Medium Term

D36
Sherwood System Monitoring

Program

Establish and maintain a program involving monitoring performance
measures semiannually. Performance measures to be evaluated will be
determined through an initial study. This program will evaluate if planning
efforts are leading to performance targets, monitor growth , and identify
when improvements are needed.

2.5 $400,000 $400,000 Long Term

P1 Handley Street Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along the north side of Handley Street from Elwert Road
to the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 250 feet east of Elwert
Road.

2 $15,000 $15,000 Medium Term

P2 Highway 99W Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalks along both sides of Highway 99W between the north
Urban Growth Boundary and the south Urban Growth Boundary.

2.5 $1,090,000 $218,000 Medium Term

P3 Highway 99W Crosswalks

Add missing crosswalks at existing traffic signal locations on Highway 99W
between Edy Road and Sunset Boulevard. The crosswalk enhancements may
be phased individually with their corresponding intersection improvements
(D16, D17, D31).

3.5 $7,000 $1,400 Medium Term

P4
Ice Age Tonquin Trail/Highway

99W Connection
Construct a shared use path that connects the proposed Cedar
Creek/Tonquin Trail to Highway 99W.

3.5 $209,000 $41,800 Medium Term

P5
10th Street Neighborhood

Greenway

Add sidewalks and shared lane markings to 10th Street and Gleneagle Drive
from Sherwood Boulevard to the planned Cedar Creek/Tonquin Trail
connection.

2 $10,500 $10,500 Medium Term

P6
Sherwood Boulevard

Improvements

Construct improvements to Sherwood Boulevard between Langer Drive and
3rd Street that are consistent with the Sherwood Town Center Plan. Major
improvements include: a shared use path on the east side, wider sidewalks
on the west side, narrower travel lanes, and landscaping.

4.5 $2,123,500 $2,123,500 Short Term

P7
Langer to Trumpeter Shared

Use Path
Construct a shared use path connecting Langer Drive and Trumpeter Drive. 4 $292,000 $292,000 Long Term

P8
Hopkins Elementary School

North Shared Use Path
Construct a shared use path on the north side of Hopkins Elementary School,
connecting Sherwood Boulevard to the existing trail south of Baler Way.

3.5 $219,000 $219,000 Long Term

P9
Hopkins Elementary School

East Shared Use Path

Construct a shared use path on the east side of Hopkins Elementary School,
connecting the existing trail south of Baler Way to the St Francis south access
road.

3.5 $365,000 $365,000 Long Term

P10
Sherwood Middle School

Shared Use Path

Construct a shared use path on the east side of Sherwood Middle School,
connecting the Hopkins Elementary School East Shared Use Path to the
roundabout at the Oregon Street/Ash Street intersection.

3.5 $365,000 $365,000 Long Term

P11
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

6

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 6 improvements from immediately west of
the Tonquin Road/Morgan Road intersection to the Tonquin Road/Oregon
Street intersection.

3.5 $7,005,000 $1,401,000 Long Term

P12
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

7
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 7 improvements from immediately west of
the Tonquin/Oregon Street intersection to immediately north of Park Street.

4 $1,770,000 $354,000 Short Term

P13
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

8
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 8 improvements from immediately north
of Park Street to immediately south of Highway 99W.

4 $4,677,000 $0
Committed

Funding

P14
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

9
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 9 improvements from immediately south
of Highway 99W to Roy Rogers Road (including Roy Rogers intersection).

4 $2,540,000 $508,000 Short Term

P15
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

10
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 10 improvements from Roy Rogers Road
north to Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge trailhead.

3.5 $4,216,000 $843,200 Long Term

P16
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

11

Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 11 improvements from immediately east
of the Tonquin Road/Oregon Street intersection to immediately west of
Cipole Road.

3 $2,738,000 $547,600 Medium Term

P17
Ice Age Tonquin Trail Segment

12
Implement Tonquin Trail Segment 12 improvements from immediately west
of Cipole Road to immediately north of Highway 99W.

3 $11,697,000 $2,339,400 Long Term

P18 Cipole Road Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along the east side of Cipole Road from approximately
1,250 feet north of Tualatin Sherwood Road to the existing sidewalk
terminus approximately 450 feet north.

2 $27,000 $27,000 Medium Term

P19 12th Street Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along the south side of 12th Street from Highway 99W to
Sherwood Boulevard.

3 $70,000 $70,000 Short Term

P20 Division Street Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along both sides of Division Street from Main Street to
Cuthill Place.

2.5 $327,000 $327,000 Medium Term

P21 Meinecke Road Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along the north side of Meinecke Road from Lee Drive to
the existing sidewalk terminus to the east (approximately 400 feet).

2.5 $23,500 $23,500 Medium Term

P22
Pine Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 1
Construct sidewalk along the west side of Pine Street from Willamette Street
to Columbia Street.

3 $12,000 $12,000 Short Term

P23
Pine Street Sidewalk Infill

Segment 2

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Pine Street from Division Street to
Sunset Boulevard, and fill the sidewalk gap along the west side of Pine Street
just north of Sunset Boulevard.

4 $68,500 $68,500 Short Term

P24
Willamette Street Sidewalk

Infill Segment 1
Construct sidewalk along the south side of Willamette Street from Division
Street to Upper Roy Street.

3 $191,000 $191,000 Long Term

P25
Willamette Street Sidewalk

Infill Segment 2
Fill the sidewalk gap along the north side of Willamette Street from Cochran
Drive to Murdock Road.

3 $8,500 $8,500 Long Term

P26
Highway 99W Grade
Separated Crossing

Build a grade separated crossing of Highway 99W for pedestrians and
bicyclists, providing a direct connection for the Ice Age Tonquin Trail east and
west of the highway.

3 $13,300,000 $2,660,000 Medium Term

P27
Washington Street Sidewalk

Infill
Construct sidewalk along both sides of Washington Street from Division
Street to Tualatin Street.

3 $11,000 $11,000 Long Term

P28
Pine Street/Division Street

Crossing Improvements
Install marked crosswalks at the Pine Street/Division Street intersection. 3 $1,000 $1,000 Long Term

P29
Pine Street/Sunset Boulevard

Crossing Improvements
Install marked crosswalks at the Pine Street/Sunset Boulevard intersection. 2.5 $1,000 $1,000 Long Term

P30
Sunset Boulevard/St Charles
Way Crossing Improvements

Install marked crosswalks at the Sunset Boulevard/St Charles Way
intersection.

2.5 $1,000 $1,000 Medium Term

Pedestrian Projects

576



P31
Sunset Boulevard/Redfern

Drive Crossing Improvements
Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset Boulevard/Redfern Drive
intersection.

2.5 $10,000 $10,000 Medium Term

P32
Sunset Boulevard/Galewood
Drive Crossing Improvements

Install enhanced pedestrian crossing at the Sunset Boulevard/Galewood
Drive intersection.

3 $10,000 $10,000 Medium Term

P33
Cedar Creek Trail/Railroad

Tracks Crossing Improvements
Install a controlled crossing across the railroad tracks at the Cedar Creek
Trail.

3.5 $15,000 $15,000 Long Term

P34
Rock Creek Trail/Tualatin
Sherwood Road Protected

Crossing Improvements

Install a marked crossing across Tualatin Sherwood Road at the Rock Creek
Trail with pedestrian refuge islands and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons.

3.5 $35,000 $35,000 Long Term

P35
Sunset Boulevard/Existing Trail

Crossing Improvements
Install a marked crossing across Sunset Boulevard at the existing trail just
west of Heatherwood Lane.

4 $1,000 $1,000 Long Term

P36
Local Off Street Trail Segment

1
Construct an off street trail from the existing trail on Seely Lane to the
Highway 99W/Home Depot Access intersection (approximately 4,100 feet).

4 $496,000 $496,000 Long Term

P37
Local Off Street Trail Segment

2

Construct an off street trail from the Highway 99W/Home Depot Access
intersection to Tualatin Sherwood Road, approximately 150 feet east of the
Century Drive intersection (approximately 4,800 feet).

4 $421,000 $421,000 Long Term

P38
Local Off Street Trail Segment

3

Construct an off street trail from Tualatin Sherwood Road, approximately
150 feet east of the Century Drive intersection, to the Oregon Street/Tonquin
Road intersection (approximately 2,800 feet).

4 $262,000 $262,000 Long Term

P39
Local Off Street Trail Segment

4
Construct an off street trail from Highway 99W to Woodhaven Drive,
approximately 150 feet west of Dewey Drive (approximately 1,000 feet).

3 $93,000 $93,000 Long Term

P40
Local Off Street Trail Segment

5

Construct an off street trail from the Stellar Drive trail to Sunset Boulevard at
the Galewood Drive pedestrian access, and on off street trail connecting the
Richen Park Terrace pedestrian access to Pinehurst Drive along the back of
Woodhaven City Park (approximately 1,600 feet).

3 $149,000 $149,000 Long Term

P41
Local Off Street Trail Segment

6
Construct an off street trail from Sunset Boulevard, just west of Redfern
Place, to the Saint Charles Way trail (approximately 1,500 feet).

2 $140,000 $140,000 Long Term

P42
Local Off Street Trail Segment

7
Construct an off street trail from the north end of the Saint Charles Way trail
to Villa Road at the existing trail head (approximately 1,200 feet).

3 $112,000 $112,000 Long Term

P43
Local Off Street Trail Segment

9
Construct an off street trail from Sunset Boulevard to Inkster Drive
(approximately 3,500 feet).

3 $327,000 $327,000 Long Term

P44 Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill
Construct sidewalk along the south side of Oregon Street between Hall Street
and Orland Street.

2.5 $32,000 $32,000 Medium Term

P45
Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill

Segment 1
Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from Willamette
Street to Oregon Street.

2 $77,000 $77,000 Medium Term

P46
Murdock Road Sidewalk Infill

Segment 2

Construct sidewalk along the east side of Murdock Road from Sunset
Boulevard to the existing sidewalk terminus approximately 600 feet north of
Upper Roy Street.

2 $201,000 $201,000 Long Term

P47
Roy Rogers Crossing

Improvement
Install a pedestrian crossing on Roy Rogers Road between Lynnly Way and
Lavender Ave (e.g., at the Seely Lane alignment)

2.5 $50,000 $50,000 Long Term

P48
Downtown Streetscapes

Master Plan Phases 1 and 2
(Old Town Core)

Complete Phase 1 (Old Town Core) and Phase 2 (Cannery Arterials) of the
Downtown Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5 $2,801,032 $448,060 Medium Term

P49
Downtown Streetscapes

Master Plan Phase 3 (Old Town
Secondary Streets)

Complete Phase 3 (Old Town Secondary Streets) of the Downtown
Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5 $3,457,000 $0 Short Term

P50
Downtown Streetscapes

Master Plan Phase 4 (Old Town
Residential Neighborhoods)

Complete Phase 4 (Old Town Residential Neighborhoods) of the Downtown
Streetscapes Master Plan.

4.5 $528,000 $0 Short Term

P51
Downtown Streetscapes

Master Plan Phase 6 (Railroad
Siding Relocation)

Complete Phase 6 (Railroad Siding Relocation) of the Downtown Streetscapes
Master Plan.

4.5 $637,000 $0 Long Term

B1 Murdock Shared Use Path
Build a shared use path along the west side of Murdock Road from Oregon
Street to Upper Roy Street.

3 $950,000 $950,000 Medium Term

B2 Meinecke Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on Meinecke Road from Marshall Street to 3rd Street. 4 $399,000 $399,000 Short Term

B3
Holland Lane Neighborhood

Greenway
Add neighborhood greenway improvements (e.g., shared lane markings) to
Holland Lane between Langer Drive and the existing trail head.

1.5 $4,500 $4,500 Long Term

B4
Baler Way Neighborhood

Greenway

Add neighborhood greenway improvements (e.g., shared lane markings) to
Baler Way between Trumpeter Drive and the eastern intersection with
Century Drive.

2 $43,500 $43,500 Long Term

B5
Main Street Shared Lane

Markings
Add shared lane markings to Main Street between 1st Street and Sherwood
Boulevard.

2 $10,500 $10,500 Medium Term

B6
Pine Street Shared Lane

Markings
Add shared lane markings to Pine Street between 3rd Street and Sherwood
Boulevard.

2.5 $18,500 $18,500 Medium Term

B7 Borchers Bike Lanes Build bike lanes on Borchers Road between Edy Road and Roy Rogers Road. 3 $370,000 $370,000 Short Term

B8
3rd Street Shared Lane

Markings
Add shared lane markings on 3rd Street from Washington Street to
Sherwood Boulevard.

2 $2,000 $2,000 Medium Term

B9
1st Street Shared Lane

Markings
Add shared lane markings on 1st Street from Main Street to Pine Street. 2 $3,000 $3,000 Medium Term

B10 Century Drive Shared Use Path
Widen the sidewalk on the south/east side of Century Drive between
Tualatin Sherwood Road and the existing terminus to provide a shared use
path

4.5 $601,000 $601,000 Short Term

B11 Timbrel Lane Improvements
Upgrade Timbrel Lane (from Sunset Boulevard to Old Highway 99W) to a two
lane collector with bike lanes and sidewalks. Would require removal of street
trees.

2 $608,000 $608,000 Long Term

B12
Old Highway 99W Shared Use

Path
Widen the sidewalk along the west side of Old Highway 99W between
Timbrel Lane and Crooked River Lane to provide a shared use path

2.5 $347,000 $347,000 Medium Term

B13
Old Highway 99W

Improvements Segment 2

Upgrade Old Highway 99W (from Crooked River Lane to Brookman Road) to a
two lane collector with a shared use path on the west side and sidewalks on
the east side.

3.5 $691,000 $691,000 Short Term

B14 Handley Bike Facilities

Add bike lanes along Handley Street between Cedar Brook Way and Meadow
Terrace through parking removal and restriping. Add shared lane markings
and signage along Meadow Terrace and Cereghino Lane as an alternative
bike route to Handley Street west of Meadow Terrace. Create a
bicycle/pedestrian connection between the west end of Cereghino Lane and
Elwert Road.

2 $97,000 $97,000 Long Term

B15 Galbreath Drive Bike Reroute
Direct bicyclists to use the Herman Road extension instead of Galbreath Drive
and Gerda Lane.

3.5 $1,000 $1,000 Long Term

Bike Projects

577



B16 Baler Way Bike Lanes
Rebuild Baler Way to a collector between Century Drive and Tualatin
Sherwood Road to include bike lanes.

3 $718,000 $718,000 Short Term

B17 12th Street Bike Lanes
Add bike lanes on 12th Street between Highway 99W and Sherwood
Boulevard.

3.5 $815,000 $815,000 Short Term

B18
Washington Street Shared

Lane Markings
Add shared lane markings on Washington Street between 3rd Street and 1st
Street.

1 $3,000 $3,000 Medium Term

B19 Sunset Bike Lanes
Add bike lanes on Sunset Boulevard between Aldergrove Avenue and
Murdock Road

2.5 $980,000 $980,000 Medium Term

T1
Provide Transit Amenities at

Major Transit Stops
Provide Transit Amenities at Major Transit Stops . 2.5 $50,000 $10,000 Medium Term

T2
Improve Pedestrian

Connections to Transit
Facilities

Improve Pedestrian Connections to Transit Facilities. 3.5 $0 $0 Short Term

T3
Increase Density Adjacent to

Transit
Increase Density Adjacent to Transit. 5 $0 $0 Short Term

T4 Decrease Headways Decrease Headways. 2.5 $2,000,000 $400,000 Long Term
T5 Provide Local Service Provide local service to enhanced regional service. 2.5 $2,000,000 $400,000 Long Term

T6
Support Regional Service to

Tualatin
Support potential transit connections to Tualatin 2.5 $2,000,000 $400,000 Medium Term

Transit Projects

578



579



(This page left intentionally blank)

580



1

Residential Traffic Calming Program Toolbox

PHASE I................................................................................................................................................................. 2
Do Not Enter Sign ......................................................................................................................................... 3
Neighborhood Speed Watch ......................................................................................................................... 4
One-Way Sign ............................................................................................................................................... 5
Pavement Markings....................................................................................................................................... 6
Police Enforcement ....................................................................................................................................... 7
Speed Monitoring Trailer.............................................................................................................................. 8
Turn Prohibition............................................................................................................................................ 9

PHASE II - HORIZONTAL DEFLECTION.....................................................................................................10
Bulb-Outs.....................................................................................................................................................11
Center Island Narrowing.............................................................................................................................12
Chicanes .......................................................................................................................................................13
Chokers/Slow Points ...................................................................................................................................14
Full Closures................................................................................................................................................15
Full Diverter.................................................................................................................................................16
Lane Narrowing...........................................................................................................................................17
Median Barriers ...........................................................................................................................................18
Semi-Diverters.............................................................................................................................................19
Traffic Circles..............................................................................................................................................20

PHASE II - VERTICAL DEFLECTION...........................................................................................................21
Raised Crosswalks.......................................................................................................................................22
Raised Intersections.....................................................................................................................................23
Speed Humps/Tables...................................................................................................................................24
Textured Pavement......................................................................................................................................25

581



2

PHASE I

DO NOT ENTER SIGN.................................................................................................................................... 3
    NEIGHBORHOOD SPEED WATCH............................................................................................................. 4

ONE-WAY SIGN.............................................................................................................................................. 5
PAVEMENT MARKINGS .............................................................................................................................. 6
POLICE ENFORCEMENT.............................................................................................................................. 7
SPEED MONITORING TRAILER ................................................................................................................. 8
TURN PROHIBITION ..................................................................................................................................... 9

582



3

Do Not Enter Sign

Description: Restrict access

Purpose:The purpose of a this sign is to indicate to drivers that they are not 
permitted to proceed straight ahead. When used as a traffic calming measure, it 
is intended to discourage through traffic from short-cutting along a street. The 
sign may be accompanied by a supplementary plate sign indicating the time(s) of 
the day and the days of the week when the regulation applies.

Advantages
- May result in significant reductions in traffic volumes

Disadvantages
- No significant effect on vehicle speeds.
- Restricts resident access.

Equipment Cost:  $100 to $200 per sign, installed.

583



4

Neighborhood Speed Watch

Description: Residents use radar equipment to identify speeding vehicles. The 
information gathered is matched with the Driver and Motor Vehicle Service 
(DMV) records. The City then sends a letter to the vehicle's registered owner 
advising the owner their vehicle was seen speeding. The letter appeals to the 
owner and/or driver to slow down on neighborhood streets. This program does 
not issue speeding tickets.

Purpose: To slow vehicle traffic, educate drivers about vehicle speeds, and allow 
residents to take an active part in the program.

Advantages
- Reduces speed by increasing driver awareness about speeding on residential 

streets and about safety.
- An effective public relations and educational tool. 

Disadvantages
- Not an enforcement tool.
- Not effective in modifying long-term habits.

Cost: $500

584



5

One-Way Sign

Description: Directional movement sign.

Purpose: The purpose of a One-Way sign  is to indicate to drivers that traffic is 
allowed to travel only in the direction of the arrow on the street or section of 
street. When used as a traffic calming measure, the intent of a One-Way sign is 
to prevent through traffic from short-cutting along a street.

Advantages
- Vehicle-vehicle and vehicle-pedestrian conflicts at intersections are reduced 

as there are fewer turning movements.
- Reduction in traffic volume.

Disadvantages
- Removal of traffic travelling in the opposing direction can result in an increase 

in vehicle speeds.
- Reduction in traffic volume may be partially offset by an increase in traffic in 

the remaining direction.

Cost:  $100 to $200 per sign, installed.

585



6

Pavement Markings

Description: Stop bars, yield bars, turn arrows, delineators, lane markings, 
crosswalks, etc.

Purpose: To delineate and to transmit to motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians 
important information necessary to safely travel upon the City’s street.

Advantages
- Low initial cost.
- Quick application.

Disadvantages
- Maintenance cost.
- May not be visible when covered with snow.

Cost: Varies widely depending on type and amount of material used.

586



7

Police Enforcement 

Description: Increased enforcement of speed limits on problem local streets. 

Purpose:To reduce traffic speed and increase traffic safety. 

Potential Advantages
- Visible enforcement could reduce speed by increasing driver awareness 

about speeding on residential streets and about safety.
- The approach is flexible and can be tailored to suit needs.
- Response can be quick and effective.

Potential Disadvantages
- Long-term benefits of speed reduction are unsubstantiated without regular 

periodic enforcement.
- It may be difficult to provide enforcement to the extent and with the frequency 

that residents desire. 

Cost: $90,000 to $100,000 per year for one officer and equipment. 

587



8

Speed Monitoring Trailer

Description: Portable radar speed meter capable of measuring vehicle speed and 
displaying the speed of the motorist. 

Purpose: To slow vehicle traffic and to educate residents and drivers about 
vehicle speeds. 

Advantages
- Speeds may be reduced during short intervals where the radar trailer is 

located.
- An effective public relations and educational tool. 

Disadvantages
- Not an enforcement tool.
- Not effective in modifying long-term habits.
- Effect on speed limited to the vicinity of the trailer.
- Not effective on multi-lane roadways. 

Cost: $8,000 - $13,000 per trailer. 

588



9

Turn Prohibition

Description: Turn Prohibition sign

Purpose:The purpose of a Right (Left) Turn Prohibition sign is to indicate to 
drivers that they are not permitted to turn right (left). When used as a traffic 
calming measure, this sign is intended to prevent traffic from short-cutting along 
a street. The sign may be accompanied by a supplementary plate indicating the 
time(s) of the day and the days of the week when the regulation applies.

Advantages
- May result in significant reductions in traffic volumes where supported 

periodically with police enforcement.

Disadvantages
- No significant effect on vehicle speeds.
- Restricts resident access.

Cost:  $100 to $200 per sign, installed. 

589



10

PHASE II - HORIZONTAL DEFLECTION

Bulb-Outs.....................................................................................................................................................11
Center Island Narrowing.............................................................................................................................12
Chicanes .......................................................................................................................................................13
Chokers/Slow Points ...................................................................................................................................14
Full Closures................................................................................................................................................15
Full Diverter.................................................................................................................................................16
Lane Narrowing...........................................................................................................................................17
Median Barriers ...........................................................................................................................................18
Semi-Diverters.............................................................................................................................................19
Traffic Circles..............................................................................................................................................20

590



11

Bulb-Outs

Description: The lane is narrowed at an intersection or mid-block by extending 
the curbs on one or both sides of the street toward the center of the roadway or 
by building detached raised islands to allow for drainage and bike lane passage. 
May be used in conjunction with striped crosswalks. 

Purpose: To slow traffic at intersections and to improve pedestrian safety. 

Potential Advantages 
- May reduce vehicle speed.
- May reduce cut-through traffic.
- Reduces crossing distance for pedestrians.
- Minimal impact to emergency vehicles.
- Does not restrict access for residents.
- Can be designed to restrict truck entry. 
- Can be aesthetically pleasing, if landscaped. 

Potential Disadvantages
- Some designs can create conflicts for bicyclists (properly designed bulb-outs

do not create such conflicts).
- Can impact drainage (depending on design and location).
- Curbside parking must be prohibited at the bulb, thus eliminating at least one 

space at each bulb location.
- Low impact on mid-block speeding.
- Maintenance responsibility, if landscaped.
- Can impede legitimate truck movements.

Cost:  $3,000 -$5,000

591



12

Center Island Narrowing 

Description: Constructed or painted islands located before an intersection or mid-
block along the centerline of a street. 

Purpose: To reduce traffic speed by narrowing the roadway with a median, and 
to increase pedestrian safety by providing a refuge halfway across the street, so 
that only one direction of traffic need be crossed at a time. 

Potential Advantages
- May reduce traffic speed.
- Improves pedestrian safety.
- Does not restrict emergency vehicle access.
- Can be aesthetically pleasing if landscaped. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May divert traffic to adjacent streets without traffic calming.
- May impact parking depending on lane width.
- May eliminate the possibility of future bike lane installation on street by 

narrowing the travel lane. 

Cost: $60 per linear foot; $7,000 to $10,000 per device 

592



13

Chicanes

Description: Curb extensions or islands that alternate from one side of the street 
to the other, forming S-shaped curves. 

Purpose: To slow vehicle speed mid-block using horizontal deflection. 

Potential Advantages 
- May reduce speed.
- Minimal impact to emergency vehicles.
- Does not restrict access to residents.
- Can be aesthetically pleasing if landscaped.

Potential Disadvantages 
- May increase conflicts between motor vehicles and bicyclists and 

pedestrians.
- May create opportunities for head-on collisions on narrow streets.
- May divert traffic to parallel streets.
- Loss of curbside parking.
- Maintenance responsibility if landscaped. 

Cost: $1,000 per 250 sq. ft. of offset; $22,500 - $37,000 

593



14

Chokers/Slow Points 

Description: Curb extensions on one or both sides of the street that narrow the 
street at that location. They may be designed to alter the path of travel or to 
create single lane, one-way traffic.

Purpose: To reduce vehicle speed mid-block; to increase pedestrian safety.

Potential Advantages 
- Reduces vehicle speed (more effective when used in series).
- Can reduce crossing distance for pedestrians. 
- Aesthetically pleasing if landscaped; provides visual obstruction. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- Some choker designs can be hazardous for cyclists; however the device can 

be designed to be safe and comfortable for cyclists.
- May create conflict between opposing drivers.
- May impact emergency response times.
- May divert traffic to adjacent streets without traffic calming.
- Maintenance responsibility if landscaped.
- Reduces curbside parking.

Cost: $5,000 - $15,000  per pair of offset curb extensions.

594



15

Full Closures

Description: Complete closure of a street either at an intersection or at a mid-
block location. 

Purpose: To reduce traffic volume and speed. 

Potential Advantages 
- Effective at reducing traffic speeds and volumes.
- Improves traffic safety.
- Can allow bicycle and pedestrian through-movements.
- Can be designed to allow emergency vehicle access.
- Aesthetically pleasing if landscaped.
- Creates effective dead-ends that may encourage pedestrian activity.

Potential Disadvantages 
- May impact emergency response times.
- May divert traffic to adjacent streets.
- May increase trip length.
- May create confusion for users unless signed properly. 

Cost: $5,000 - $40,000

595



16

Full Diverter 

Description: Barriers placed diagonally across an intersection, blocking through 
movement. May be used in conjunction with stop signs. 

Purpose: To reduce traffic volume. 

Potential Advantages 
- Reduces traffic volume on the protected street.
- Can be designed to preserve emergency vehicle access.
- Can be designed to allow pedestrian and bicycle through-movement.

Potential Disadvantages 
- Diverts traffic to other streets.
- Can increase trip length. 

Cost: $5,000 -  $20,000

596



17

Lane Narrowing 

Description: Narrowing travel lanes on streets using striping (lane lines) or 
changes in parking configuration (angled parking or changes in parking density). 

Purpose: To slow traffic speed. 

Potential Advantages 
- Changes can be implemented quickly.
- Striping can be modified easily if paint is used.
- Requires minimum maintenance.
- Speed may decrease and safety may be improved through the provision of 

positive guidance to drivers. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May increase car/bike conflicts.
- Would increase regular maintenance cost.
- Residents do not always perceive striping as an effective tool for speed 

reduction.

Cost :The cost of lane striping is variable depending upon the type and amount 
installed. Crosswalks and other pavement markings are between $200 and $500 
per installation. Signs are typically $200 per installation. 

597



18

Median Barriers 

Description: Islands located along the centerline of a street and continuing 
through an intersection to block through movement across a major street. 

Purpose: To reduce traffic speed using roadway narrowing on the street with the 
median, and to increase pedestrian safety. Traffic volume is reduced on cross 
streets because through traffic is eliminated. 

Potential Advantages 
- Makes intersection safer by reducing the number of conflicting turning 

movements.
- Can be designed to allow through-movement for cyclists traveling on local 

street.
- Reduces local street volumes.
- Aesthetically pleasing if landscaped.
- Eliminates the need for future traffic signal installation. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May shift traffic to other locations where turn opportunities exist.
- May inconvenience local residents.
- May impact parking on the major street depending on lane width.
- Blocks emergency vehicle access and delays emergency response 
- Maintenance responsibility if landscaped. 

Cost:  $10,000 - $20,000 

598



19

Semi-Diverters

Description: Barriers that block travel in one direction for a short distance on 
otherwise two-way streets. 

Purpose: To reduce traffic volume in the diverted direction. 

Potential Advantages 
- Restricts movement into a street while maintaining access and movement 

within the street block for residents.
- Reduces cut-through traffic.
- More self-enforcing and aesthetically pleasing than turn restriction signing.
- Reduces crossing distance for pedestrians.
- Aesthetically pleasing if landscaped.
- Emergency vehicles can travel in restricted direction.
- Can be designed to provide two-way access for bicycles. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May divert traffic to parallel streets without traffic calming measures.
- May increase trip length for some residents.
- Curbside parking spaces must be eliminated adjacent to device.
- May increase emergency response times as they maneuver around the 

barrier.

Cost:  $10,000 - $20,000 

599



20

Traffic Circles 

Description: Islands of varying dimensions placed in intersections around which 
traffic circulates. 

Purpose: To slow vehicle speeds at intersections using horizontal deflection and 
a visual deterrent to higher speeds. 

Potential Advantages 
- May reduce vehicle speeds.
- Improve safety.
- Visually appealing if landscaped.
- Create a visual obstruction that deters through traffic.
- Do not restrict access for residents.

Potential Disadvantages
- Effect on vehicle speed limited to device’s immediate vicinity.
- Loss of curbside parking at each corner (typically 25’ to 30’ of curb space is 

restricted at each approach).
- May increase emergency vehicle response time.
- May limit truck and bus access.
- Maintenance responsibility if landscaped.
- Automobile driver's lines of sight may be reduced if landscaped.
- May promote deliberate violation of proper movement.
- May divert traffic to parallel streets. 

Cost:  $5,000 to $15,000

600



21

PHASE II - VERTICAL DEFLECTION

Raised Crosswalks.......................................................................................................................................22
Raised Intersections.....................................................................................................................................23
Speed Humps/Tables...................................................................................................................................24
Textured Pavement......................................................................................................................................25

601



22

Raised Crosswalks

Description: Raised pavement (similar to a speed table) that may be outfitted with 
crosswalk markings and/or signage to channelize pedestrian crossings, providing 
pedestrians with a level street crossing. May be used mid-block or at 
intersections.

Purpose: To reduce vehicle speeds mid-block and to improve pedestrian safety. 

Potential Advantages 
- May reduce vehicle speeds.
- Less disruptive than speed humps.
- May improve safety for pedestrians by making them more visible. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- The physical forces exerted by this vertical deflection device upon fragile 

persons with disability may cause injury.
- Less effective at speed reduction than speed humps.
- May impact emergency vehicle response.
- May disrupt drainage depending on design.
- May divert traffic to other streets.
- May increase noise.
- May give pedestrians a false sense of security. 

Cost: $2,000 per location.

602



23

Raised Intersections 

Description: Flat raised areas covering entire intersections with ramps on all 
approaches and often with brick or other textured materials on the flat section.

Purpose: To slow vehicle traffic at an intersection. 

Potential Advantages 
- Slows vehicles in intersections and therefore makes conflict avoidance easier.
- Highlights intersection. 
- Improves pedestrian safety.
- Aesthetically pleasing if well designed.
- Effective speed reduction at intersection. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May increase emergency response time.
- May increase turning difficulty.
- Increases maintenance.
- Impact on speed limited to within approximately 200’ of intersection.
- May increase noise due to acceleration and braking. 

Cost: $6,000 - $8,000 

603



24

Speed Humps/Tables 

Description: Raised section of pavement across the roadway with curved 
transitions. Humps are generally 3.5” high and 12’ wide. Elongated speed humps 
(speed tables) are generally 3"-4" high x 22' wide. Impacts on vehicle speed vary 
with size of device. 

Purpose: To reduce vehicle speed using vertical deflection.

Potential Advantages 
- Reduces vehicle speed.
- Can reduce vehicular volumes.
- Does not restrict parking.
- Requires minimum maintenance. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- May increase emergency response times.
- May divert traffic to parallel streets.

Cost: $2,000 - $6,800 

604



25

Textured Pavement

Description: A textured surface used in the roadway or crosswalk that causes 
drivers to feel a slight vibration over some distance, while improving the aesthetic 
quality of the street environment. May use brick or stone, but for safety and 
maintenance reasons, imprinted concrete or pavers that are less slick, less 
bumpy and easier to maintain are preferable. 

Purpose: To reduce vehicle speed. 

Potential Advantages 
- Reduces vehicle speeds.
- Improves pedestrian safety.
- Can be aesthetically pleasing. 

Potential Disadvantages 
- Increases vehicle noise.
- Some materials can create hazards for cyclists and pedestrians, particularly 

when wet.
- Can be high maintenance.
- Materials like cobblestones provide too much texture and can create hazards 

for the disabled, particularly when the material begins to degrade. 

Cost: Varies widely depending on type and amount of material used. 

605



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

606



607



(This page left intentionally blank)

608



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 1: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION A – Introduction | Page 1 

PROPOSED TRANSPORTATION GOALS AND POLICIES  
The tables below focus on proposed amendments to the City’s adopted transportation goals, policies 
and strategies that implement the updated Transportation System Plan (TSP).  Identical transportation 
policy language is found in both Chapter 2 of the adopted TSP from 2005 and Chapter 6 of the 
Comprehensive Plan (Transportation).   Language recommended for addition to Chapter 6 of the 
Comprehensive Plan is underlined and language recommended for removal is struck through.  The 
tables in which the amendments are presented include a commentary column explaining the 
background and rationale for the proposed amendment.   

Note that, in addition to goals, policies, and strategies (Section B, pp. 1-11), Comprehensive Plan 
Chapter 6 includes an introduction (Section A, p. 1) and a section addressing roadway functional 
classification and the transportation improvement program projects from the 2005 TSP (Section C, pp.  
11-17). Proposed amendments to these sections are presented in order, in Tables 1, 2, and 3 
respectively. 

Table 1: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION A – 
Introduction 
Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

The purpose of the Transportation element of the Comprehensive Plan is to 
describe a multi-modal system which will serve the future transportation needs 
of Sherwood. The plan for the future transportation system should be capable 
of effective implementation, responsive to changing conditions and be 
consistent with plans of adjoining jurisdictions. The Plan seeks to foresee 
specific transportation needs and to respond to those needs as growth occurs. 
The original Transportation Network Plan was created in 1979. The original 
transportation policy element was created in 1980 as part of the first 
Comprehensive Plan acknowledged by the Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development. The plan policies were updated in 1989 and a 
new Transportation Plan Update was completed in 1991. The most recent 
Transportation element has been was revised substantially to reflect updates 
changes in thean updated new Transportation System Plan (TSP), begun in 2003 
and completed in March 2005 and 2014. The current adopted newest TSP is 
attached as an appendix and technical reference to this Comprehensive Plan, 
including an analysis of the existing transportation system, changes to the 
functional classification of streets, an update of various inventory and plan 
maps, and changes to the street design standards.  
 
NOTE: The following types of capital facilities are not present within the City: 1) 

References to the TSP 
are updated. 

609



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 1: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION A – Introduction | Page 2 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

air transportation, and 2) water transportation. Therefore, they are not 
addressed in this plan. 

 

610



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 3 

Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, 
Policies, and Strategies 
Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 1: Provide a supportive transportation network to the land 
use plan that provides opportunities for transportation choices 
and the use of alternative modes serving all neighborhoods and 
businesses. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City will ensure that public roads and streets 
are planned to provide safe, convenient, efficient and 
economic movement of persons, goods and services 
between and within the major land use activities. Existing 
rights of way shall be classified and improved and new 
streets built based on the type, origin, destination and 
volume of current and future traffic. 

Deleted text has been moved to 
Strategies. 

Policy 2 – Through traffic shall be provided with routes that 
do not congest local streets and impact residential areas. 
Outside traffic destined for Sherwood business and 
industrial areas shall have convenient and efficient access 
to commercial and industrial areas without the need to use 
residential streets. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – Local traffic routes within Sherwood shall be 
planned to provide convenient circulation between home, 
school, work, recreation and shopping. Convenient access 
to major out-of-town routes shall be provided from all 
areas of the city. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 4 – The City shall encourage the use of more energy-
efficient and environmentally sound alternatives to the 
automobile by:  

• The designation and construction of bike paths and 
pedestrian ways;  

• The scheduling and routing of existing mass transit 
systems and the development of new systems to meet local 
resident needs; and 

This is an existing policy. 

611



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 4 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

• Encouraging the development of self-contained 
neighborhoods, providing a wide range of land use activities 
within a single area. 

Policy 6 – The City shall work to ensure the transportation 
system is developed in a manner consistent with state and 
federal standards for the protection of air, land and water 
quality, including the State Implementation Plan for 
complying with the Clean Air Act and the Clean Water Act. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 7 – The City of Sherwood shall foster transportation 
services to the transportation disadvantaged including the 
young, elderly, handicapped, and poor. 

This proposed change reflects a 
recommendation  to make all 
references to the City [of Sherwood] 
consistent throughout this section. 

Policy 8 – The City of Sherwood shall consider infrastructure 
improvements with the least impact to the environment. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 9 – The City of Sherwood shall develop a 
transportation demand management program to 
complement investments in infrastructure (supply). manage 
the transportation system to improve reliability and 
maximize efficient use of existing facilities. 

The proposed modification provides a 
more general policy and minimizes 
redundancy with (existing) Strategy 6. 

Strategies  

1. Establish and maintain design standards for public 
rights of way in accordance with the Functional Street 
Classification System. 

Modified language is based on 
existing Policy 1. 

1.2. Make traffic safety a continuing effort through 
effective law enforcement and educational programs. 

This is an existing strategy. 

2. 3. Design and manage the city street system to meet 
Adopt an acceptable level of service mobility standard 
for the roadway network that is consistent with 
regional transportation policies. 

The proposed change reflects the 
City’s interest in having both level of 
service and volume to capacity (v/c) 
as measures by which to evaluate 
mobility and provide better context 
for decision making. The mobility 
standards will be in the adopted TSP 

612



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 5 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

and implemented through 
development review and the traffic 
impact analysis requirements.  

3. 4. Develop Plan for an array of transportation assets 
and services to meet the needs of the transportation-
disadvantaged. 

The proposed modification narrows 
the intent of this strategy to a system-
level planning effort on the part of 
the City.   Note that more specific 
policies regarding providing for the 
transportation disadvantaged can be 
found under Goal 5. 

4. 5. Evaluate, identify, and map existing and future 
neighborhoods for potential small scale commercial 
businesses to primarily serve local residents. 

This existing strategy to integrate 
small-scale, neighborhood 
commercial uses into existing 
neighborhoods is related to Policy 4.  
Note that this existing strategy does 
not specify the level of analysis or 
proposed approach to implement 
such a study.   This strategy should be 
reevaluated to ensure that it 
continues to be relevant and match 
the City’s priorities.   

5. 6. Adopt a strategy for reducing impacts of 
impervious surfaces to stormwater management. 

This is an existing strategy. 

6. 7. Identify and adopt a transportation demand 
management strategy and program to provide 
incentives to employers who develop transportation 
options for employees. 

This addition is consistent with 
modified Policy 9.

8. Seek strategic opportunities to improve connectivity 
in the city, including measures such as mid-block 
crossings connecting to commercial areas. 

This language is based on comments 
from the Citizen Advisory Committee. 

 

613



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 6 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 2: Develop a transportation system that is consistent with 
the City’s adopted comprehensive land use plan and with the 
adopted plans of state, local, and regional jurisdictions. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City shall implement the transportation plan 
based on the functional classification of streets shown in 
Table 8-1 Figure 16 of the TSP. 

This is existing policy with 
amendments proposed for updating a 
TSP reference. 

Policy 2 – The City shall maintain a transportation plan map 
that shows the functional classification of all streets within 
the Sherwood urban growth area. Changes to the functional 
classification of streets must be approved through an 
amendment to the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, Part 2, 
Chapter 6 - Transportation Element. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – The Sherwood transportation system plan shall 
be consistent with the cCity’s adopted land use plan and 
coordinated with transportation plans and policies of other 
local jurisdictions, especially Washington County, Clackamas 
County, the City of Wilsonville, and the City of Tualatin. 

This is an existing policy with a 
proposed modification that indicates 
that City plans do not have to mirror 
neighboring jurisdictions’ plans, but 
should not be inconsistent with these 
plans. 

Policy 4 – The City will coordinate with Metro regarding 
implementation of the Regional Transportation Plan and 
related transportation sections of the Metro Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan. 

These edits are proposed for 
consistency with regional plans. 

Policy 5 – The City shall adopt and maintain a street 
classification system that is compatible with the 
Washington County Functional Classification System for 
areas inside the Washington County Urban Area Plan and 
with the Washington County 2020 Transportation Plan 
(Ordinance 588). 

The proposed edit signifies the City’s 
ongoing commitment to coordination 
with Washington County. 

Policy 6 — The City will work with Metro and other regional 
transportation partners to implement regional 
transportation system demand management and 
operations programs where appropriate. 

The proposed modifications broaden 
the scope of this policy to 
transportation system management 
and operations (TSMO) programs, of 
which transportation demand 

614



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 7 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

management (TDM) is a part.

Policy 7 — The City shall work cooperatively with the Port 
of Portland and local governments in the region to ensure 
sufficient air and marine passenger access for Sherwood 
residents. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 8 – The City shall work to develop more 
transportation options within city limits to increase 
opportunities for walking, biking, and taking transit and to 
reduce single occupancy vehicle (SOV) trips. 

Establish local non-Single Occupant Vehicle (SOV) modal 
targets, subject to new data and methodology made 
available to local governments, for all relevant design types 
identified in the RTP. Targets must meet or exceed the 
regional modal targets for the 2040 Growth Concept land 
use design types as illustrated in the following table: 

2040 Regional Modal Targets  

Non-single Occupancy Vehicles 

Proposed amendments reflect a 
recommendation to  replace the 
existing policy with a more general 
statement that commits the City to 
reduce SOV trips.   

Strategies  

1. Develop and maintain an intergovernmental 
agreement between Sherwood, Washington County 
and the City of Tualatin, consistent with ORS 195.065, 
to establish urban service boundaries and 
responsibilities for transportation facilities within and 
adjacent to the City of Sherwood. 

This is an existing strategy with 
amendments proposed for clarity 
only. 

2. Work cooperatively with ODOT, Washington County, 
and Metro to develop an interchange area 
management plan for the Pacific Highway 99-W and 
Tualatin- Sherwood Highway intersection. improve 
regional mobility through such efforts as the Westside 
Solution Study and the I-5 to 99W Connector project. 

Proposed language reflects the City’s 
interests in regional transportation 
planning and the fact that planning 
for a grade-separated interchange is 
not an identified transportation need.   

3. Work cooperatively with ODOT, Metro, Washington Proposed language reflects the 

615



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 8 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

County, and Tualatin to develop a corridor 
management plan for Pacific Highway 99W and 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road to preserve that  

� maintains access to the highway for from the cCity’s 
arterial and collector streets and 

� improves pedestrian and bicycle mobility, connectivity 
and safety in the vicinity of, and crossing, the highway. 

community’s focus on Highway 99W 
and desire for enhancements related 
to non-motorized modes of 
transportation.   

4. Participate in regional planning efforts, including the 
development of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), 
to secure funding for safety and capacity improvements 
to the City of Sherwood’s arterial and collector street 
system that are necessary to maintain acceptable levels 
of service for local and through traffic. 

This is an existing strategy. 

5.  Define transportation corridors in advance through 
long range planning efforts. 

This is an existing strategy. 

6. Coordinate the local transportation network planning 
and improvements with adjacent governmental 
agencies, such as Washington County, Metro, and the 
State. Coordinate with ODOT in implementing their Six-
Year Plan and the State Highway Improvement 
Program. 

This is an existing strategy with 
amendments proposed for clarity 
only. 

7.  Adopt performance measures that are consistent 
with regional modal targets for non-single occupancy 
vehicles and track the City’s progress with meeting 
adopted goals and policies each successive TSP update. 

This proposed new policy 
acknowledges regional targets, which 
are reflected in the performance 
measures in TSP.  

8. Accommodate car-sharing programs in the city. This adopted strategy from the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan (Strategy 
9.4) has been modified to apply 
citywide. 

9. Promote development of transportation demand 
management programs by employers in the city. Focus 
on employers with 100 employees or less that are not 

The first part of this strategy is 
adopted Strategy 9.5 in the Sherwood 
Town Center Plan. The strategy has 

616



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 9 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

subject to the Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality’s Employee Commute Options program 
requirements. 

been modified to apply citywide. 
Additional language is based on 
comments from the Citizen Advisory 
Committee. 

10. Support projects that remove regional through 
traffic from the local transportation system or allow 
through traffic to bypass Sherwood. 

This proposed new strategy reflects a 
Citizen Advisory Committee 
recommendation.  

 

617



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 10 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 3: Establish a clear and objective set of transportation 
design and development regulations that addresses all 
elements of the city transportation system and that promote 
access to and utilization of a multi-modal transportation 
system. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City of Sherwood shall adopt requirements 
that proposed for land developments that mitigate the 
adverse traffic impacts and ensure that all new 
development contributes a fair and proportionate share 
toward on-site and off-site transportation system 
improvement remedies. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed for clarity 
only. 

Policy 2 – The City of Sherwood shall require dedication of 
land for future streets when development is approved. The 
property developer shall be required to make full street 
improvements for their portion of the street commensurate 
with the proportional benefit that the improvement 
provides the development. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – The City of Sherwood shall require applicable 
developments (as defined in the development code), to 
prepare a traffic impact analysis. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 4 – The City of Sherwood shall adopt and maintain a 
uniform set of design guidelines that provide one or more 
typical cross section associated with each functional street 
classification. For example, the City may allow for a 
standard roadway cross-section and a boulevard cross 
section for arterial and collector streets. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect 
existing city practices. 

Policy 5 – The City shall adopt and maintain roadway design 
guidelines and standards that ensure sufficient right-of-way 
is provided for necessary roadway, bikeway, and pedestrian 
improvements.

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect 
existing city practices. 

Policy 6 – The City shall adopt and maintain roadway design 
guidelines and standards that ensure sidewalks and 
bikeways be provided on all arterial and collector streets for 
the safe and efficient movement of pedestrians and 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect 
existing city practices. 

618



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 11 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

bicyclists between residential areas, schools, employment, 
commercial and recreational areas. 

Policy 7 – The City of Sherwood will generally favor granting 
property access from the street with the lowest functional 
classification, including alleys. Additional access to arterials 
and collectors for single family units shall be prohibited. and 
Residential uses should be encouraged to use access from 
frontage roads and local streets. Frontage roads shall be 
designed as local streets. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed for clarity 
only. 

Policy 8:  – The City will adopt and maintain access control 
and spacing standards for all arterial and collector streets to 
improve safety and promote efficient through street 
movement. Access control measures shall be generally 
consistent with Washington County access guidelines to 
ensure consistency on city and county roads. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect city 
practices. 

Policy 9 – The City will establish and maintain guidelines 
and standards for the use of medians and islands for 
regulating access and providing pedestrian refuge on 
arterial and collector streets. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect city 
practices. 

Policy 10 – The City of Sherwood will establish and maintain 
a set of guidelines and standards for traffic calming 
measures to retrofit existing streets and as part of land use 
review. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect city 
practices. 

Policy 11 – The City will develop and maintain uniform 
traffic control device standards (signs, signals, and 
pavement markings) and uniformly apply them throughout 
the city. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect city 
practices. 

Policy 12 – The City of Sherwood will adopt parking control 
regulations for streets as needed. On-street parking shall 
not be permitted on any street designated as an arterial, 
unless allowed by special provision within the Town Center 
(Old Town) area or through the road modifications process 
outlined in the Sherwood Development Code. The City will 
support actions that provide sufficient parking for 

Proposed amendments reflect a 
recommendation to replace this 
policy with adopted Policy 9 from the 
Town Center Plan and the more 
specific Strategies from this plan (see 
proposed Strategies 11-18).

619



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 12 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

businesses and residents, while maximizing the efficiency of 
parking areas. 

Policy 13 – The City of Sherwood shall adopt new 
development codes explore and adopt regulatory and 
financing tools to fill in gaps in existing sidewalks to achieve 
a consistent pedestrian system. 

These modifications reflect the fact 
that the City needs to first have a 
policy discussion regarding viable 
funding options before development 
requirements would be modified to be 
consistent with the 
preferred/adopted funding methods.  

Policy 14 – The City will implement transportation system 
improvements and standards that increase access between 
residences and civic, employment, and commercial uses 
within the Town Center boundary and that improve safety 
for all modes of transportation for people traveling to, 
within and adjacent to the Town Center. 

This is adopted Policy 7 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

Policy 15 – The City will balance the need for vehicular 
mobility within and adjacent to the Town Center with the 
other transportation and land use goals and priorities 
identified in the Town Center Plan. 

This is adopted Policy 8 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

Strategies  

1. Ensure consistency between the Transportation 
System Plan, development code requirements, and the 
Incorporate typical street cross section guidelines in the 
City’s public works engineering design standards that 
address regarding street cross sections and other 
standards related to vehicular, bicycle, pedestrian, and 
transit needs. 

The existing strategy is a “one time” 
action; proposed modifications 
address the ongoing need to ensure 
consistency between City plans and 
codes.  

2. Include a Road Modification Process Maintain a 
process  in the Sherwood Ddevelopment Ccode to 
provide a procedure for that allows the City to granting 
variances from street design standards for parking, 
pedestrian facilities, signals, and other roadway 
features. 

The proposed modification is 
consistent with existing Code 
language and City procedures.  

620



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 13 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

3. Consider the Metro 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan Regional System Street Design Concepts Elements 
when planning for improvements to City transportation 
facilities, including those built by ODOT or TriMet.

The proposed modifications are 
consistent with the terms used in the 
RTP. 

4. Incorporate Continue to implement guidelines in the 
City’s development code that establish when a local 
street refinement plan must be prepared and the 
process for preparing such a plan. 

The proposed modification is 
consistent with existing Code 
language and City procedures. 

5. Periodically review the development code, and 
Aamend the city development code as necessary, to 
ensure that regulate vehicular access, spacing, 
circulation, and parking continues to be regulated 
consistent with plan policies. 

The proposed modifications are 
consistent with the intent of the 
existing policy. 

6. Amend the city development code as necessary to 
include specific guidelines for determining the 
proportional benefit contribution associated with 
requirements for street dedication and the construction 
of off-site transportation improvements. 

Proposed code amendments include a 
new section addressing rough 
proportionality, so this strategy is no 
longer needed.  

7. Amend the development code to include standards 
and procedures for a transportation impact analysis 
(TIA). Refer to Appendix for example. 

Proposed code amendments include a 
new section addressing TIA thresholds 
and requirements, so this strategy is 
no longer needed. 

8. 6. Develop a list to prioritize refinement plan needs, 
such as corridor plans and interchange area 
management plans. 

This is an existing strategy. 

9. 7. Amend development code to include provisions for 
implementing traffic calming mechanisms. Allow for the 
implementation of traffic calming mechanisms through 
provisions in the development code.   

The proposed modification reflects 
existing code language. 

10. 8. Create a map that identifies locations targeted for 
on-street parking, such as in neighborhood commercial 
areas and the town center that support multi-modal 

This is an existing strategy. 

621



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 14 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

options. 

11. 9. Regularly review, and update as necessary, the 
development code to ensure consistency with regional 
parking requirements. 

This is an existing strategy; 
modification reflect city practices. 

12. 10. Develop a “conceptual new streets plan” map 
for all contiguous areas of vacant and redevelopable 
parcels of 5 (five) or more acres planned or zoned for 
residential or mixed-use development, and adopt the 
map as part of the TSP. 

This is an existing strategy. 

11. Implement the parking strategies in the Sherwood 
Town Center Plan, including:  

� Evaluate and monitor parking supply and demand in 
Old Town. 

� Evaluate the parking needs for townhome 
developments in the Town Center. 

 � Evaluate the needs of commercial uses in the Langer 
Drive Commercial District.  

This proposed strategy incorporates 
and abbreviates adopted Strategies 
9.1, 9.2, 9.3 and 9.6 from the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan.   

13. 12. Consider a “mixed-use” overlay zone in the 
development code that will apply to the Six Corners 
area. Include design standards that will encourage a 
vibrant, pedestrian friendly environment through the 
implementation of boulevards, medians, mixed-use 
development and site design. Support public or private 
development of the bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements shown on Map 2 of the Town Center 
Plan. 

The proposed amendment reflects a 
recommendation to replace existing 
Strategy 13 with adopted Strategies 
in the Town Center Plan. Underlined 
text is adopted Strategy 7.1 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

 

13. Enhance Sherwood Boulevard for bicycle and 
pedestrian travel consistent with the key changes 
identified for this roadway in the Town Center Plan. 

This is adopted Strategy 7.2 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

14. Enhance Langer Drive for pedestrian and bicycle 
travel to create a complete street that supports a 

This is adopted Strategy 7.3 in the 

622



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 15 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

vibrant mixed use district, consistent with the key 
changes identified for this roadway in the Town Center 
Plan. 

Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

15. Work with ODOT to provide safe pedestrian 
crossing movements for all directions at 99W 
intersections. 

This is adopted Strategy 7.4 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

16. Identify and consider all funding sources 
appropriate and available to work with property owners 
to fill gaps in sidewalk system along neighborhood 
streets. 

This is adopted Strategy 7.5 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

17. The City will support collaborative solutions that 
enhance access and improve safety for pedestrians and 
all other modes of transportation within, adjacent to 
and into the Town Center. 

This is adopted Strategy 7.6 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

18. The City will work with the County, ODOT, and local 
stakeholders to enhance vehicular and pedestrian 
access from the Town Center to developments adjacent 
to the Town Center. 

This is adopted Strategy 8.4 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan; 
Strategies 8.2 and 8.3 included 
direction for the current TSP update 
process and have been addressed.  

19. The City will reexamine local street standards and 
will explore appropriate locations within the city and 
circumstances under which a narrower street standard 
may be permitted as part of new development. 

Reducing pavement width is a 
Transportation Planning Rule 
requirement.  Benefits include 
minimizing impervious surface, 
diminishing run-off/pollution, freeing 
land for other uses, etc.  The proposed 
strategy acknowledges that there 
may be situations where the City’s 
existing local street width standard 
could be reduced in order to minimize 
impervious surface, diminish run-
off/pollution, free land for other uses, 
etc.  Because of issues regarding 
restricting parking and parking 
enforcement, among others, the City 

623



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 16 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

needs more community discussion 
before a narrower local standard can 
be implemented; this policy commits 
the City to having this community 
conversation.  

 

624



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 17 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 4: Develop complementary infrastructure for bicycles and 
pedestrian facilities to provide a diverse range of transportation 
choices for city residents. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City of Sherwood shall provide a supportive 
transportation network to the land use plan that provides 
opportunities for transportation choices and the use of 
alternative modes. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 2 – Sidewalks and bikeways shall be provided on all 
arterial and collector streets for the safe and efficient 
movement of pedestrians and bicyclists between residential 
areas, schools, employment, commercial and recreational 
areas. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – The City of Sherwood will pursue development of 
local and regional pedestrian trail facilities, especially a trail 
system connection between the city and the Tualatin 
National Wildlife Refuge. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 4—The City of Sherwood shall provide design 
standards for roadway traffic calming features such as 
traffic circles, curb extensions, bulb-outs, and speed humps 
that make roadways safer for walking and biking. 

This is an existing policy, with minor 
amendments proposed to broaden 
applicability; more specific action is in 
Strategy 8. 

Policy 5 – The City of Sherwood shall include requirements 
for the provision of short-term and long-term bicycle 
parking on large be included as part of commercial, 
industrial, institutional, and multi-family residential 
projects. 

The TPR, RTP, and RTFP require 
bicycle parking for these uses in 
general, not just “large” projects. 

Policy 6 – The City of Sherwood will coordinate the bikeway 
system with adjacent jurisdictions, especially Tualatin, 
Wilsonville, Clackamas and Washington County. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 7 – The City will work to eliminate architectural 
barriers from buildings and public improvements, which 
limit elderly and handicapped use of the transportation 
system. 

This is an existing policy. 

625



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 18 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Policy 8 – The City will require new development to 
accommodate bicyclists and pedestrians, and to provide 
non-motorized transportation facilities consistent with the 
proposed use and pursuant to applicable code 
requirements.  

This proposed new policy 
acknowledges private development’s 
role in providing bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities. 

Strategies  

1. Include pedestrian and bike projects in the capital 
improvement plan to ensure investment in alternative 
modes;. 

This is an existing strategy. 

2. Use intergovernmental agreements with Tualatin and 
Washington County for the coordination of urban 
services per ORS 196.065 to coordinate the bikeway 
system and trail system;. 

This is an existing strategy. 

3. Include design standards for sidewalk and bikeway 
facilities in the cCity’s roadway design guidelines;. 

This is an existing strategy. 

4. Include provisions for planning the location of 
pedestrian and bike routes for connecting residential, 
school, commercial, employment and recreational 
areas in the development code guidelines for preparing 
local street refinement plans;. 

This is an existing strategy. 

5. Include a system of bikeways along collector and 
arterial roadways as illustrated on the Transportation 
Plan Map;. 

This is existing strategy with minor 
amendments proposed for accuracy. 
(The Transportation Plan Map shows 
recommended projects rather than 
bikeways along all collectors and 
arterials.) 

6. Include requirements in the development code for 
private development to provide bike and pedestrian 
facilities as are related and proportional to the 
projected impacts of the proposed development and 
that are consistent with indicated on the Transportation 
Plan Map in TSP Figures 12, 13, and 14;. 

These changes include updated 
references to the TSP. 

626



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 19 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

7. Include design standards for sidewalks and bicycle 
facilities in the City’s roadway design guidelines;. 

This is an existing strategy. 

8. Pursue traffic calming techniques, such as traffic 
circles, curb extensions and speed humps, for 
neighborhood and local streets so as to provide safe 
passage for pedestrians and bicyclists, and a more 
pleasant neighborhood environment for residents. 

This is an existing strategy with 
proposed additions for clarity. 

9. Construct and install infrastructure, including storm 
drain inlets, which are pedestrian and bicycle-friendly. 

This is an existing strategy. 

 

627



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 20 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 5: Provide reliable convenient transit service to Sherwood 
residents and businesses as well as special transit options for 
the cCity’s elderly and disabled residents. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City shall support and encourage pPublic 
transportation shall be provided as an alternative viable 
means of transportation in Sherwood. 

The policy has been re-written to 
reflect the City’s supporting role in 
providing public transportation. 

Policy 2 – The City of Sherwood will work with Tri-Met to 
expand transit services to all parts of the City through 
additional routes, more frequent service, and transit 
oriented street improvements. 

 This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – Park-and-ride facilities should be located with 
convenient access to the arterial system to facilitate rider 
transfer to transit and car pools. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 4 – The City will Eencourage the construction of bus 
shelters and park-n-ride lots in the vicinity of planned 
transit corridors. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 5 – The City of Sherwood will support the 
establishment of a "feeder" transit route from downtown 
Sherwood to Tualatin employment centers. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 6 – The City of Sherwood will support park and ride 
facilities that are sited for the maximum convenience of 
commuters and transit riders. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 7—The City of Sherwood will support regional efforts 
for the preservation and development of appropriate rail 
rights-of-way for passenger rail service, in particular for 
serving local and regional commuter rail needs in 
Washington County, Clackamas County, and Yamhill 
County. 

Review for consistency with the 
updated TSP recommendations.  Note 
that this policy is related to new 
Strategy 5 (adopted Strategy 6.3 in 
the Sherwood Town Center Plan). 

Policy 8 – The City of Sherwood will encourage the 
provision of special transportation services (i.e., van pools, 
or car pools, dial-a-ride, etc.) to transportation 
disadvantaged by Tri-Met and community-based service 

This is an existing policy. 

628



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 21 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

providers. 

Policy 9 – Fully integrate the City into the regional transit 
system by expanding hours and destinations served by 
transit providers. The City supports transit service that 
serves the needs of the residents and businesses in and 
adjacent to the Town Center, including maintaining a robust 
local transit service network and planning for future local 
and high capacity transit service to neighboring cities. 

Deleted policy is somewhat 
redundant to Policy 2 and suggests 
that the City has authority to expand 
transit hours of service and routes.  
Proposed language is adopted Policy 
6 in the Town Center Plan. 

Policy 10 – The City will meet RTP goals of providing a safe 
and convenient pedestrian circulation system. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 11 – The City will participate in and will support 
regional efforts that seek to improve multi-modal 
transportation options that benefit the residents and 
business in Sherwood. 

The proposed policy recognizes the 
City’s participation in regional 
transportation projects such as the 
Southwest Corridor and Tonquin Trail 
projects. 

Policy 12 – The City will support providing and improving 
transit connections between Sherwood, Tualatin, and other 
communities in the region, particularly for work-related 
trips. 

This proposed policy language is 
based on comments from the Citizen 
Advisory Committee. 

Strategies  

1. In consultation with TriMet and consistent with their 
guidelines, Ddevelop and maintain design standards to 
separate for bus pullouts and stops on buses from the 
arterial roadways while to facilitate safe and efficient 
transferring passengers transfers. Establish a bus 
turnout design for stops on arterial streets. 

Proposed modifications defer to 
TriMet regarding the preferred design 
for bus pullouts and stops.   

2. Update development code to include design 
guidelines that require transit stops to be accessible to 
transit riders, especially the elderly and handicapped.  
Ensure new development and redevelopment provide 
connections to transit streets and facilities, providing 
protected street crossings and bus stop amenities, if 

Existing Strategy is a “one time” 
action; proposed language is 
consistent with existing code 
requirements for new development in 
the vicinity of a transit stop.  

629



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 22 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

needed. 

3. Amend development code to require development 
on sites at major transit stops(defined by the City of 
Sherwood) to do the following:  

� Locate within 20 feet of (or provide a pedestrian 
plaza) at the major transit stop;  

� Provide reasonably direct pedestrian connections 
between the transit stop and building entrances on the 
site;  

� Provide a transit service passenger landing pad 
accessible to disabled persons; 

� Provide an easement or right-of-way dedication for a 
passenger shelter and underground utility connection 
from the new development to the transit amenity if 
requested by the public transit provider; and 

� Improve public safety by providing lighting at transit 
stops. 

Strategy is reflected in existing code 
requirements for new development in 
the vicinity of a transit stop and is no 
longer needed. 

 

4. Work with Tri-Met and Metro to extend transit 
options to Sherwood, which may include: 

� High capacity transit service along 99W terminating 
near Six Corners;  

� Potential extension of commuter rail line from Lake 
Oswego to Sherwood on the existing rail line with 
service to Newberg or McMinnville; and 

� Other regional transit service connections, such as 
frequent bus, interurban bus, as appropriate.  

3. Identify the ongoing transit needs within the 
community and work with Tri-Met and other transit 
providers to enhance services to address short and 

This existing strategy has been 
updated; language proposed here is 
Strategy 6.1 in the Town Center Plan.  

630



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 23 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

long-term transit needs in the community. 

4. Work with Metro, as well as the cities of Tualatin and 
Tigard, to explore feasible modes and locations to 
provide high-capacity transit service to the Town Center 
and adjacent areas. 

This is adopted Strategy 6.2 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

5. Periodically evaluate the feasibility of passenger 
service along the existing rail lines as the Town Center 
grows. 

This is adopted Strategy 6.3 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

6. Continue to explore opportunities to achieve long-
term transit supportive densities in the Town Center in 
order to increase the viability of high-capacity transit. 

This is adopted Strategy 6.4 in the 
Sherwood Town Center Plan. 

 

631



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 24 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 6: Provide a convenient and safe transportation network 
within and between the Sherwood Old Town (Town Center) 
and Six Corners area that enables mixed use development 
and provides multi-modal access to area businesses and 
residents. 

This goal and its policies and strategies 
are consistent with the adopted Town 
Center Plan, but it is proposed that 
references to the Town Center be 
removed because the Town Center now 
applies to an area larger than Old 
Town.   

Policy 1 – The City of Sherwood shall continue to refine 
and develop existing and new design guidelines and 
special standards for the Old Town and Six Corners areas 
to facilitate more pedestrian and transit friendly 
development. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 2 – The City of Sherwood shall work to provide 
connectivity, via the off-street trail system and public 
right-of-way acquisitions and dedications, to better 
achieve street spacing and connectivity standards.

This is an existing policy. 

Strategies  

1. Provide handicap ramps at all intersections with 
landings connected to sidewalk improvements, 
especially within Six Corners and Old Town areas. 

This is an existing strategy. 

2. Work with transit service providers to Ddesign 
transit stops in  to meet ADA requirements for transit 
accessibility.

This is an existing strategy with minor 
amendments proposed acknowledge 
the relationship with transit service 
providers in designing transit stops. 

3. Adopt design and development guidelines for the 
Old Town areas that facilitate pedestrian use and a 
mix of commercial and residential development. 

This is an existing strategy. 

4. Adopt parking guidelines for the Old Town areas 
that are compatible with the parking guidelines 
established in Title 2 of the Metro Urban Growth 
Management Functional Plan. 

It is recommended to replace this 
strategy with proposed Goal 3, Strategy 
11, language that was developed as 
part of the Town Center Plan and 
reflects the need for a parking study 

632



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 25 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

and strategy for Old Town. 

 

633



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 26 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 7: Ensure that efficient and effective freight transportation 
infrastructure is developed and maintained to support local and 
regional economic expansion and diversification consistent with 
City economic plans and policies. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 — The City of Sherwood will collaborate with 
federal, state and neighboring local governments and 
private business to ensure the investment in transportation 
infrastructure and services deemed necessary by the City to 
meet current and future demand for industrial and 
commercial freight movement. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 2 — The City of Sherwood will adopt implementing 
regulations that provide for safe and convenient access to 
industrial and commercial areas for commercial vehicles, 
including freight loading and transfer facilities. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 — The City of Sherwood will work cooperatively 
with local, regional and state agencies to protect the 
viability of truck and freight service routes within, through, 
and around the City of Sherwood, especially for Pacific 
Highway 99-W, the Tualatin-Sherwood Highway, and the 
plannedmulti-corridor I-5/Hwy 99-W Connector corridor 
strategy. 

This is an existing policy with minor 
amendments to acknowledge that 
multiple facilities will be involved in 
the I-5/Highway 99-W Connector. 

Policy 4 — The City of Sherwood will work cooperatively 
with local, regional and state governments to ensure there 
is adequate air transportation infrastructure to serve local 
needs at regional airport facilities, including the Hillsboro 
Airport and Portland International airport. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 5 — The City of Sherwood will strongly encourage the 
preservation of rail rights-of-way for future rail uses, and 
will work with appropriate agencies to ensure the 
availability of rail services to its industrial lands. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 6 — The City of Sherwood will cooperate with local, 
regional and state governments to provide for regional 
marine freight infrastructure sufficient to serve local needs. 

This is an existing policy. 

634



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 27 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Policy 7 — The City of Sherwood will cooperate with the 
Portland Development Commission, Port of Portland, 
Washington County, and other economic development 
agencies to ensure the availability of inter-modal 
connectivity facilities deemed necessary to facilitate 
seamless freight transfer between all transport modes. 

This is an existing policy. 

Strategies  

1. Revise the Sherwood Ddevelopment Ccode as 
necessary to include clear and objective standards for 
the provision of freight loading and handling facilities, 
such as restricted on-street parking, loading docks, 
truck access ways, and rail spurs, in all industrial and 
commercial development districts. 

Note that proposed development 
code revisions include provisions for 
on-street loading. [Proposed new 
Subsection C in Section 16.94.030 
(Off-Street Loading Standards).] 

2. Participate in regional economic development 
planning efforts related to inter-modal transportation 
facilities. 

This is an existing strategy. 

3. Adopt appropriate standards to ensure the 
preservation of rail access corridors to Sherwood the 
City’s industrial land base. 

This is an existing strategy. 

 

635



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 28 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

Goal 8: The Sherwood City’s transportation network will be 
managed in a manner that ensures the plan is implemented in a 
timely fashion and is kept up to date with respect to local and 
regional priorities. 

This is an existing goal. 

Policy 1 – The City of Sherwood shall develop and pursue a 
systematic approach to implementing the transportation 
network. 

This is an existing policy with 
amendments proposed to reflect 
existing city practices. 

Policy 2 – The City of Sherwood shall pursue a diversified 
funding strategy to implement the transportation system 
plan including private, public and regional sources. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 3 – The City of Sherwood shall use its adopted capital 
improvement plan to prioritize and schedule transportation 
projects based upon need as shown in the Transportation 
System Plan. Incorporate the transportation system 
priorities from the TSP into the cCity’s capital improvement 
planning process. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 4 – Project scheduling shall be performed in a 
systematic manner based on the priority rating process 
outlined in the Transportation System Plan and available 
financial resources. 

This is an existing policy. 

Policy 5 – The Transportation System Plan shall be 
periodically updated, preferably on a five-year cycle, to 
assure consistency with changing ideas, philosophies, and 
related policies. 

This is an existing policy. 

Strategies  

1. Participate in MPAC, JPACT and other Metro advisory 
bodies to promote Sherwood the City’s transportation 
system improvements. 

This is an existing strategy. 

2. Local private financing resources will include right of 
way dedication and developer contributions to street 
improvements, and local improvement districts. Public 
resources will include local system development 

This is an existing strategy. 

636



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION B – Goals, Policies, and Strategies | Page 29 

Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

charges and bonding authority. Regional sources will 
include Washington County Traffic Impact Fees (TIF) 
and projects bonded through the County MSTIP 
program. Regional sources will also include Metro 
Transportation Improvement Plan (MTIP) resources and 
other state and federal grant assistance programs. 

3. Adopt a comprehensive local system development 
charge (SDC) ordinance to either augment or replace 
CAPand collector street SDC. 

A SDC ordinance has been adopted, 
so this strategy is no longer needed.  

34. Develop a method for scheduling improvement 
projects based on priority and funding sources. 

This is an existing strategy. 

45. Assign cCity staff and elected officials to participate 
in regional transportation planning processes. 

This is an existing strategy. 

56. Secure intergovernmental agreements between 
Sherwood the City and adjoining communities and 
regional service providers that outline cooperative 
measures for coordinating transportation investment 
and regulation per ORS 195.065. 

This is an existing strategy. 

6. Continue to collaborate with Washington County and 
other regional partners on refinement planning related 
to Brookman Road, and update the Sherwood 
Transportation Plan to incorporate the agreed upon 
classification and design of this roadway.   

This is a new Strategy acknowledging 
the outstanding issues surrounding 
Brookman Road and articulating the 
need for a future amendment to the 
TSP.  

 

637



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
Proposed Transportation Goals and Policies  

 

05/14/14 
Table 3: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION C – The Transportation System Plan | Page 30 

Table 3: Draft Proposed Amendments to SECTION C – The 
Transportation System Plan 
Existing and Proposed Text Commentary 

The Transportation System Plan stresses the improvement of the existing 
system of transportation facilities through transportation system management 
before new facilities are built. Existing conditions have been analyzed in the 
Study Area (lands within UGB) and are contained in Chapter 3 of the TSP 
Appendix (Existing Conditions Report). Transportation analysis zones were 
created for each part of the city based on types of land use in the 
Comprehensive Plan Map. Future traffic volumes were projected based on 
expected build out development of those zones and surrounding areas 
consistent with Metro’s land use projections. Future traffic volumes with trip 
origins or destinations in the Study Area were then calculated for selected 
subareas or zones in this case. Future locally generated traffic volumes were 
then distributed onto the street system based on assumption as to major 
directional movements. From this process future locally generated traffic 
volumes were calculated for major roads. Future traffic volumes within the 
Study Area represent only locally generated traffic. Reduction in traffic volumes 
over time on certain major streets assumes the progressive improvement of 
alternative major street routes, which have the effect of shifting traffic from 
existing to improved routes in satisfying major directional movements. To 
determine total volumes on major streets with significant through traffic (i.e. 
Highway 99W) locally generated volumes should be added to through traffic 
volumes determined by Washington County, Metro or ODOT.  

The above aAnalysis of projected future traffic conditions taken together with 
the application of the goals, objectives and policies described in Section B were 
used in the development of Transportation System Plan. A map for each existing 
and planned transportation system is included in the TSP. Each mMaps, several 
street classifications, and the above policies arewere updated as part of TSP 
updatesas well. The TSP (2005) is a technical reference to the Transportation 
element of the Comprehensive Plan. The following information is included in 
the TSP and is included below for reference. Table 1 is a list of functional 
classifications and definitions for each street followed by Figure 1 
Transportation Plan Map that illustrates the location and functional 
classification of each street. Table 2 is a list of major transportation 
improvements planned for the next twenty years based on the transportation 
system analysis of expected traffic levels, a performance standard Level of 
Service “D”, and projected costs. Generally, most of the improvements are 
upgrades and connections to existing streets while some improvements are 
proposed new streets. 

Specific references to 
the TSP are replaced 
with general 
references. It is 
recommended to 
remove functional 
classification maps 
and project lists from 
this section and 
generally simplify this 
section. 

638



 

Memorandum 
Date: May 6, 2014 Last revised May 14, 2014 

To: Brad Kilby, AICP, City of Sherwood  

From: Darci Rudzinski and Shayna Rehberg, Angelo Planning Group 

cc: Bob Galati, PE, City of Sherwood; Garth Appanaitis, DKS Associates 

Re: Draft Proposed Implementation Language (Task 5.2) 

This memorandum presents draft proposed amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and 
Community Development Code (“development code”), pursuant to Task 5.2. 

Proposed policy and code amendments will be reviewed and considered for adoption in conjunction 
with the updated TSP, as they include amendments that implement recommendations from the updated 
City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan (TSP), create consistency between the TSP and other 
adopted local documents, and comply with state and regional transportation planning regulations. 
Proposed policy amendments are presented in a separate memorandum and proposed code 
amendments are presented below. 

Proposed Development Code Amendments 
Draft code amendments presented in this memorandum were developed according to findings of 
compliance with the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Regional Transportation Functional Plan 
(RTFP).1 Recommendations for potential code amendments to better address compliance with TPR and 
RTFP requirements were summarized in Table 6 of the Needs, Opportunities, Constraints and Tools 
Technical Report (Task 3.2). These recommendations were discussed with City staff in order to 
determine which issues would be pursued and developed into draft code amendments. 

For reference, that summary table is included in this memorandum as Table A-1 in Attachment A, and 
includes commentary indicating which recommendations have been developed into proposed code 
amendments. 

 

1 Detailed and updated findings of compliance will be included in the City’s staff report (Task 5.6).  

639



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 
 

2 

Proposed code amendment text is presented in adoption-ready format in this memorandum. New 
language that is proposed to be added is underlined and proposed deletions are struck through. The 
draft amendments are numbered consistent with the structure of the City development code, and are 
presented in the order of issues included in Table A-1. 

Note: In addition to the amendments proposed in this memorandum, the entire development code 
should be checked to amend all references to the updated TSP, as needed. 

640



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

3 

Consistency of transportation facility standards (Recommendation DC-2 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.106 TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES 

16.106.010 Generally 

A. Creation 

Public streets shall be created in accordance with provisions of this Chapter. Except as otherwise provided, all 
street improvements and rights-of-way shall conform to standards for the City's functional street 
classification, as shown on the TSP Map (Figure 15) and in Figure 1, of Chapter 6 of the Community 
Development Plan, and other applicable City standards. The following table depicts the guidelines for the 
street characteristics. 

[…] 

16.106.040 Design 

Standard cross sections showing street design and pavement dimensions are located in the City of 
Sherwood Transportation System Plan, and City of Sherwood's Engineering Design Manual. 

Definitions of access way and shared-use path (Recommendation DC-3 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.10 DEFINITIONS 

16.10.020 SPECIFICALLY 

[…] 

Access: The way or means by which pedestrians and vehicles enter and leave property. 

Access way: A pathway providing a connection for pedestrians and bicyclists between two streets, 
between two lots, or between a development and a public right-of-way. An access way is intended to 
provide access between a development and adjacent residential uses, commercial uses, public use such 
as schools, parks, and adjacent collector and arterial streets where transit stops or bike lanes are 
provided or designated.   An access way may be a pathway for pedestrians and bicyclists (with no vehicle 
access), a pathway on public or private property (i.e., with a public access easement), and/or a facility 
designed to accommodate emergency vehicles.  

Accessory Building/Use: A subordinate building or use which is customarily incidental to that of the 
principal use or building located on the same property. 

[…] 

641



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

4 

Setback: The minimum horizontal distance between a public street right-of-way line, or side and rear 
property lines, to the front, side and rear lines of a building or structure located on a lot. 

Shared-use path: A facility for non-motorized access conforming to City standards and separated from 
the roadway, either in the roadway right-of-way, independent public right-of-way, or a public access 
easement. It is designed and constructed to allow for safe walking, biking, and other human-powered 
travel modes. 

Sidewalk: A pedestrian walkway with hard surfacing. 

[…] 

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) and rough proportionality requirements (Recommendation DC-4 in Table 
A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.90 SITE PLANNING 

16.90.030 Site Plan Modifications and Revocation 

[…] 

D.  Required Findings 

No site plan approval shall be granted unless each of the following is found: 

[…] 

6.  For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs)Pursuant 
to Section 16.106.080, or at the discretion of the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide 
adequate information, such as a traffic impact analysis (TIA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate 
the level of impact to the surrounding street transportation system. The developer shall be 
required to mitigate for impacts attributable to the project, pursuant to TIA requirements in 
Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality requirements in Section 16.106.090. The 
determination of impact or effect and the scope of the impact study shall be coordinated with 
the provider of the affected transportation facility. 

[…] 

642



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

5 

CHAPTER 16.106 TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES 

16.106.020 Required Improvements 

[…] 

D.  Extent of Improvements 

1.  Streets required pursuant to this Chapter shall be dedicated and improved consistent with 
Chapter 6 of the Community Development Plan, the TSP and applicable City specifications 
included in the City of Sherwood Construction Standards. Streets shall include curbs, sidewalks, 
catch basins, street lights, and street trees. Improvements shall also include any bikeways 
designated on the Transportation System Plan map. Applicant may be required to dedicate land 
for required public improvements only when the exaction is directly related to and roughly 
proportional to the impact of the development, pursuant to Section 16.106.090. 

[…] 

16.106.040 Design 

[…] 

K.  Traffic Controls 

1.  An application for a proposed residential development that will generate more than an 
estimated 200 average daily vehicle trips (ADT) must include a traffic impact analysis to 
determine the number and types of traffic controls necessary to accommodate anticipated 
traffic flow. 

2.  For all other proposed developments including commercial, industrial or institutional uses with 
over an estimated 400 ADTPursuant to Section 16.106.080, or as otherwise required by the City 
Engineer, the an application must include a traffic impact analysis to determine the number and 
types of traffic controls necessary to accommodate anticipated traffic flow. 

[…] 

16.106.080 Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 

A.  Purpose. The purpose of this section is to implement Sections 660-012-0045(2)(b) and -0045(2)(e) of 
the State Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), which require the City to adopt performance 
standards and a process to apply conditions to land use proposals in order to minimize impacts on 

643



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

6 

and protect transportation facilities. This section establishes requirements for when a traffic impact 
analysis (TIA) must be prepared and submitted; the analysis methods and content involved in a TIA; 
criteria used to review the TIA; and authority to attach conditions of approval to minimize the 
impacts of the proposal on transportation facilities.  

This section refers to the TSP for performance standards for transportation facilities as well as for 
projects that may need to be constructed as mitigation measures for a proposal’s projected impacts. 
This section also relies on the City of Sherwood’s Engineering Design Manual to provide street 
design standards and construction specifications for improvements and projects that may be 
constructed as part of the proposal and/or mitigation measures approved for the proposal. 

B.   Applicability.  A traffic impact analysis (TIA) shall be required to be submitted to the City with a land 
use application at the request of the City Engineer or if the proposal is expected to involve one or 
more of the following:  

1.  An amendment to the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan or zoning map. 

2.  A new direct property approach road to Highway 99W is proposed. 

3.  The proposed development generates 50 or more PM peak-hour trips on Highway 99W, or 100 
PM peak-hour trips on the local transportation system.  

4.  An increase in use of any adjacent street or direct property approach road to Highway 99W by 
10 vehicles or more per day that exceed the 20,000 pound gross vehicle weight.  

5.  The location of an existing or proposed access driveway does not meet minimum spacing or 
sight distance requirements, or is located where vehicles entering or leaving the property are 
restricted, or such vehicles are likely to queue or hesitate at an approach or access connection, 
thereby creating a safety hazard. 

6.  A change in internal traffic patterns that may cause safety problems, such as back up onto the 
highway or traffic crashes in the approach area. 

C.  Requirements.  The following are typical requirements that may be modified in coordination with  
Engineering Staff based on the specific application. 

1.  Pre-application Conference. The applicant shall meet with the City Engineer prior to submitting 
an application that requires a TIA.  This meeting will be coordinated with Washington County 
and ODOT when an approach road to a County road or Highway 99W serves the property, so 
that the TIA will meet the requirements of all relevant agencies.   

2.  Preparation.  The TIA shall be prepared by an Oregon Registered Professional Engineer qualified 
to perform traffic engineering analysis and will be paid for by the applicant. 

644



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

7 

3.  Typical Average Daily Trips and Peak Hour Trips. The latest edition of the Trip Generation 
Manual, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), shall be used to gauge PM 
peak hour vehicle trips, unless a specific trip generation study that is approved by the City 
Engineer indicates an alternative trip generation rate is appropriate.   

4.  Intersection-level Analysis.  Intersection-level analysis shall occur at every intersection where 
the analysis shows that 50 or more peak hour vehicle trips can be expected to result from the 
development.   

5.  Transportation Planning Rule Compliance.  The requirements of OAR 660-012-0060 shall apply 
to those land use actions that significantly affect the transportation system, as defined by the 
Transportation Planning Rule. 

D.  Study Area. The following facilities shall be included in the study area for all TIAs: 

1.  All site-access points and intersections (signalized and unsignalized) adjacent to the proposed 
development site. If the site fronts an arterial or collector street, the analysis shall address all 
intersections and driveways along the site frontage and within the access spacing distances 
extending out from the boundary of the site frontage. 

2.  Roads and streets through and adjacent to the site. 

3.  All intersections needed for signal progression analysis. 

4.  In addition to these requirements, the City Engineer may require analysis of any additional 
intersections or roadway links that may be adversely affected as a result of the proposed 
development. 

E.  Analysis Periods. To adequately assess the impacts of a proposed land use action, the following 
study periods, or horizon years, should be addressed in the transportation impact analysis where 
applicable: 

1.  Existing Year.  

2.  Background Conditions in Project Completion Year.  The conditions in the year in which the 
proposed land use action will be completed and occupied, but without the expected traffic from 
the proposed land use action. This analysis should account for all City-approved developments 
that are expected to be fully built out in the proposed land use action horizon year, as well as all 
planned transportation system improvements.   

3. Full Buildout Conditions in Project Completion Year.  The background condition plus traffic from 
the proposed land use action assuming full build-out and occupancy.   

645



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

8 

4.  Phased Years of Completion. If the project involves construction or occupancy in phases, the 
applicant shall assess the expected roadway and intersection conditions resulting from major 
development phases. Phased years of analysis will be determined in coordination with City staff.   

5.  20-Year or TSP Horizon Year.  For planned unit developments, comprehensive plan amendments 
or zoning map amendments, the applicant shall assess the expected future roadway, 
intersection, and land use conditions as compared to approved comprehensive planning 
documents. 

F.  Approval Criteria. When a TIA is required, a proposal is subject to the following criteria, in addition 
to all criteria otherwise applicable to the underlying land use proposal:  

1.  The analysis complies with the requirements of 16.106.080.C;  

2.  The analysis demonstrates that adequate transportation facilities exist to serve the proposed 
development or identifies mitigation measures that resolve identified traffic safety problems in 
a manner that is satisfactory to the City Engineer and, when County or State highway facilities 
are affected, to Washington County and ODOT;  

3.  For affected non-highway facilities, the TIA demonstrates that mobility and other applicable 
performance standards established in the adopted City TSP have been met; and 

4.  Proposed public improvements are designed and will be constructed to the street standards 
specified in Section 16.106.010 and the Engineering Design Manual, and to the access standards 
in Section 16.106.040.  

5.  Proposed public improvements and mitigation measures will provide safe connections across 
adjacent right-of-way (e.g., protected crossings) when pedestrian or bicycle facilities are present 
or planned on the far side of the right-of-way. 

G.  Conditions of Approval. The City may deny, approve, or approve a development proposal with 
conditions needed to meet operations and safety standards and provide the necessary right-of-way 
and improvements to ensure consistency with the future planned transportation system.  
Improvements required as a condition of development approval, when not voluntarily provided by 
the applicant, shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the development on transportation 
facilities, pursuant to Section 16.106.090. Findings in the development approval shall indicate how 
the required improvements are directly related to and are roughly proportional to the impact of 
development. 

646



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

9 

16.106.090 Rough Proportionality  

The purpose of this section is to ensure that required transportation facility improvements are roughly 
proportional to the potential impacts of the proposed development. The rough proportionality 
requirements of this section apply to both frontage and non-frontage improvements. A proportionality 
analysis will be conducted by the City Engineer for any proposed development that triggers 
transportation facility improvements pursuant to this chapter. The City Engineer will take into 
consideration any benefits that are estimated to accrue to the development property as a result of any 
required transportation facility improvements. A proportionality determination can be appealed 
pursuant to Section_16.76. The following general provisions apply whenever a proportionality analysis is 
conducted. 

A. Mitigation of impacts due to increased demand for transportation facilities associated with the 
proposed development shall be provided in rough proportion to the transportation impacts of the 
proposed development.  When applicable, anticipated impacts will be determined by the TIA in 
accordance with Section 16.106.080. When no TIA is required, anticipated impacts will be 
determined by the City Engineer. 

B. The following shall be considered when determining proportional improvements: 

1. Condition and capacity of existing facilities within the impact area in relation to City standards.  
The impact area is generally defined as the area within a one-half (1/2) mile radius of the 
proposed development. If a TIA is required, the impact area is the TIA study area. 

2. Existing vehicle, bicycle, pedestrian, and transit use within the impact area. 

3. The effect of increased demand on transportation facilities and other approved, but not yet 
constructed, development projects within the impact area that is associated with the proposed 
development. 

4. Applicable TSP goals, policies, and plans. 

5. Whether any route affected by increased transportation demand within the impact area is listed 
in any City program including school trip safety; neighborhood traffic management; capital 
improvement; system development improvement, or others. 

6. Accident history within the impact area. 

7. Potential increased safety risks to transportation facility users, including pedestrians and 
cyclists. 

8. Potential benefit the development property will receive as a result of the construction of any 
required transportation facility improvements. 

647



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

10 

9. Other considerations as may be identified in the review process pursuant to Chapter 16.72. 

Preferential carpool and vanpool parking (Recommendation DC-6 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.94 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.010 General Requirements 

[…] 

E.  Location 

3.  Vehicle parking is allowed only on improved parking shoulders that meet City standards for 
public streets, within garages, carports and other structures, or on driveways or parking lots that 
have been developed in conformance with this code. Specific locations and types of spaces (car 
pool, compact, etc.) for parking shall be indicated on submitted plans and located to the side or 
rear of buildings where feasible. 

a.  All new development with twenty (20) employees or more shall include preferential spaces 
for either car pool and/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be 
located closer to the main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the 
exception of ADA parking spaces. Carpool/vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as 
reserved for carpool/vanpool only. 

Exemptions for structured parking and on-street parking (Recommendation DC-8 in Table A-1) 

16.94.010 General Requirements 

[…] 

K.  Structured parking and on-street parking are exempt from the parking space maximums in Section 
16.94.020.A. 

648



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

11 

“Housekeeping” amendments, parking standards table footnotes (Recommendation DC-9 in Table A-
1) 

Section 16.94.020, Parking Standards Table  

1 Parking Zone A reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces allowed for each 
listed land use. Parking Zone A areas include those parcels that are located within one-quarter (¼) mile 
walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or 
both, or that have a greater than 20 minute peak hour transit service. 

2 Parking Zone B. Parking Zone B reflects the maximum number of permitted vehicle parking spaces 
allowed for each listed land use. Parking Zone B areas include those parcels that are located within one-
quarter ¼ mile walking distance of bus transit stops, one-half ½ mile walking distance of light rail station 
platforms, or both, or that have a greater than 20 minute peak hour transit service. Parking Zone B areas 
also include those parcels that are located at a distance greater than one-quarter (¼) mile walking 
distance of bus transit stops, one-half (½) mile walking distance of light rail station platforms, or both. 

Transportation Planning Rule consistency requirements (Recommendation DC-11 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.80 PLAN AMENDMENTS 

16.80.030 Review Criteria 

[…] 

C.  Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

1.  The applicant shall demonstrate consistency with the Transportation Planning Rule, specifically 
by addressing whether the proposed amendment creates a significant effect on the 
transportation system pursuant to OAR 660-012-0060. If required, a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
shall be prepared pursuant to Section 16.106.080. 

Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. 
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation 
facility, in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a development 
application includes a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use 
regulations. 

2. "Significant" means that the transportation facility would change the functional classification of 
an existing or planned transportation facility, change the standards implementing a functional 
classification, allow types of land use, allow types or levels of land use that would result in levels 
of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of a transportation 

649



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

12 

facility, or would reduce the level of service of the facility below the minimum level identified on 
the Transportation System Plan. 

3.  Per OAR 660-12-0060, Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use 
regulations which significantly affect a transportation facility shall assure that allowed land uses 
are consistent with the function, capacity, and level of service of the facility identified in the 
Transportation System Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of the following: 

a.  Limiting allowed uses to be consistent with the planned function of the transportation 
facility. 

b.  Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, improved, or new 
transportation facilities are adequate to support the proposed land uses. 

c.  Altering land use designations, densities or design requirements to reduce demand for 
automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes. 

Major driveway connectivity requirements (Recommendation DC-13 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.90 SITE PLANNING  

16.90.030 Site Plan Modifications and Revocation 

[…] 

D.  Required Findings 

 No site plan approval shall be granted unless each of the following is found: 

[…] 

9.  Driveways that are more than 24 feet in width shall align with existing streets or planned streets 
as shown in the Local Street Connectivity Map in the adopted Transportation System Plan 
(Figure 17), except where prevented by topography, rail lines, freeways, pre-existing 
development, or leases, easements, or covenants. 

650



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

13 

CHAPTER 16.106 TRANSPORTATION FACILTIIES  

16.106.030 Location 

[…] 

B. Street Connectivity and Future Street Systems 

[…] 

2.  Connectivity Map Required. New residential, commercial, and mixed use development involving 
the construction of new streets shall be submitted with a site plan that implements, responds to 
and expands on the Local Street Connectivity map contained in the TSP. 

[…] 

d.  Driveways that are more than 24 feet in width shall align with existing streets or planned 
streets as shown in the Local Street Connectivity Map in the adopted Transportation System 
Plan (Figure 17), except where prevented by topography, rail lines, freeways, pre-existing 
development, or leases, easements, or covenants. 

On-street loading (Recommendation DC-14 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.94 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.030 Off-Street Loading Standards 

[…] 

C. Exceptions and Adjustments. The review authority, through Site Plan Review, may approve loading 
areas within a street right-of-way in the Old Town Overlay District when all of the following 
conditions are met:  

1.  Short in duration (i.e., less than one hour);  

2.  Infrequent (less than three operations occur daily between 5:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m. or all 
operations occur between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. at a location that is not adjacent to a 
residential zone);  

3.  Does not unreasonably obstruct traffic; [or] Does not obstruct traffic during peak traffic hours;  

4. Does not obstruct a primary emergency response route; and  

651



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

14 

5.  Is acceptable to the applicable roadway authority. 

Bicycle parking (Recommendation DC-15 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.94 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING  

16.94.020 Off-Street Parking Standards 

[…] 

C.  Bicycle Parking Facilities 

1.  Location and Design 

a.  Bicycle parking shall be conveniently located with respect to both the street right-of-way 
and at least one (1) building entrance (e.g., no farther away than the closest parking space). 
Bike parking may be located inside the main building or near the main entrance. 

b.  Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within the 
right- of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" design is appropriate. Alternative, creative 
designs are strongly encouraged. 

2.  Visibility and Security. Bicycle parking shall be visible to cyclists from street sidewalks or building 
entrances, so that it provides sufficient security from theft and damage. 

3.  Options for Storage. Bicycle parking requirements for long-term and employee parking can be 
met by providing a bicycle storage room, bicycle lockers, racks, or other secure storage space 
inside or outside of the building. 

4.  Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security. 

5.  Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved for 
bicycle parking only. 

6.  Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking areas shall 
be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards. 

1.  General Provisions 

a.  Applicability. Bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for new development, changes of use, 
and major renovations, defined as construction valued at 25% or more of the assessed value 
of the existing structure.   

652



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

15 

b.  Types of Spaces. Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided in terms of short-term bicycle 
parking and long-term bicycle parking. Short-term bicycle parking is intended to encourage 
customers and other visitors to use bicycles by providing a convenient and readily accessible 
place to park bicycles. Long-term bicycle parking provides employees, students, residents, 
commuters, and others who generally stay at a site for at least several hours a weather-
protected place to park bicycles. 

c.  Minimum Number of Spaces. The required total minimum number of bicycle parking spaces 
for each use category is shown in Table 4, Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces.  [Note: 
Tables in Chapter 16.94 are not currently numbered, so it is recommended that the previous 
tables in the chapter be numbered Tables 1, 2, and 3.] 

d. Minimum Number of Long-term Spaces. At least 50% of the required bicycle parking spaces 
in Table 4 shall be provided as long-term bicycle parking, with a minimum of one long-term 
bicycle parking space. 

e. Multiple Uses. When there are two or more primary uses on a site, the required bicycle 
parking for the site is the sum of the required bicycle parking for the individual primary uses. 

2.  Location and Design. 

a. General Provisions 

(1) Each space must be at least 2 feet by 6 feet in area, be accessible without moving 
another bicycle, and provide enough space between the rack and any obstructions to 
use the space properly.  

(2)  There must be an aisle at least 5 feet wide behind all required bicycle parking to allow 
room for bicycle maneuvering. Where the bicycle parking is adjacent to a sidewalk, the 
maneuvering area may extend into the right-of-way. 

(3)  Lighting. Bicycle parking shall be at least as well lit as vehicle parking for security.   

(4)  Reserved Areas. Areas set aside for bicycle parking shall be clearly marked and reserved 
for bicycle parking only.   

(5)  Bicycle parking in the Old Town Overlay District can be located on the sidewalk within 
the right- of-way. A standard inverted "U shaped" or staple design is appropriate. 
Alternative, creative designs are strongly encouraged.   

(6)  Hazards. Bicycle parking shall not impede or create a hazard to pedestrians. Parking 
areas shall be located so as to not conflict with vision clearance standards.   

b.  Short-term Bicycle Parking 

653



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

16 

(1) Provide lockers or racks that meet the standards of this section. 

(2)  Locate inside or outside the building within 30 feet of the main entrance to the building 
or at least as close as the nearest vehicle parking space, whichever is closer.   

c.  Long-term Bicycle Parking 

(1) Provide racks, storage rooms, or lockers in areas that are secure or monitored (e.g., 
visible to employees or customers or monitored by security guards). 

(2)  Locate the space within 100 feet of the entrance that will be accessed by the intended 
users.  

(3)  All of the spaces shall be covered. 

d.  Covered Parking (Weather Protection) 

(1)  When required, covered bicycle parking shall be provided in one of the following ways: 
inside buildings, under roof overhangs or awnings, in bicycle lockers, or within or under 
other structures.  

(2) Where required covered bicycle parking is not within a building or locker, the cover 
must be permanent and designed to protect the bicycle from rainfall and provide seven 
(7) foot minimum overhead clearance. 

(3) Where required bicycle parking is provided in lockers, the lockers shall be securely 
anchored. 

654



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

17 

Table 4: Minimum Required Bicycle Parking Spaces

 

Map references (Recommendation DC-17 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.106 TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES 

16.106.020 Required Improvements 

A. Generally 

Except as otherwise provided, all developments containing or abutting an existing or proposed street, 
that is either unimproved or substandard in right-of-way width or improvement, shall dedicate the 
necessary right-of-way prior to the issuance of building permits and/or complete acceptable 
improvements prior to issuance of occupancy permits. The following figure provides the depiction of the 
Right-of-way requirements are based on functional classification of the street network as found 
established in the Transportation System Plan, Figure 8-115. 

[Delete following figure] 

655



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

18 

 

[…] 

16.106.030 Location 

[…] 

B. Street Connectivity and Future Street Systems 

1.  Future Street Systems. The arrangement of public streets shall provide for the continuation and 
establishment of future street systems as shown on the Local Street Connectivity Map contained 
in the adopted Transportation System Plan (Figure 8-816). 

[Delete following figure] 

656



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

19 

 

CAP program discontinuation (Recommendation DC-18 in Table A-1) 

CHAPTER 16.106 TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES 

16.106.070 Hwy. 99W Capacity Allocation Program (CAP)  

A.  Purpose - The purpose of the Highway 99W Capacity Allocation Program is to: 

1.  Prevent failure of Highway 99W through Sherwood. 

2.  Preserve capacity on Highway 99W over the next 20 years for new development within Sherwood. 

3.  Preserve land values in Sherwood by preventing failure of one of the City's key transportation links. 

4.  Insure improvements to Highway 99W and adjacent primary roadways are constructed at the time 
development occurs. 

5. Minimize the regulatory burden on developments that have minimal impact on Highway 99W. 

B.  Exclusions 

The following types of projects and activities are specifically excluded from the provisions of this program: 

657



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

20 

1.  Churches. 

2.  Elementary, middle, and high schools. 

3.  Changes in use that do not increase the number of trips generated by the current use. 

C.  Definitions 

1.  "Base Application" means the site plan or conditional use application which invokes the provisions of 
this chapter. 

2.  "Capacity" means the maximum number of peak hour vehicle trips that Highway 99W through 
Sherwood may accommodate at the Level of Service Standard assuming full build-out of all land 
zoned for residential and industrial development in Sherwood. 

3.  "Full Access Intersections" means the following intersections on Highway 99W in Sherwood: 

Sunset, Meinecke, Edy/N. Sherwood, Tualatin-Sherwood/Scholls-Sherwood (Roy Rogers Road, and 
Home Depot (Adams Street). 

4.  "ITE Manual" means the latest edition of the public titled "Trip Generation" by the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers. 

5.  "Level of Service (LOS) Standard" means the lowest acceptable level of service on a transportation 
corridor within Sherwood as stated in the Standard Requirements Section. 

6.  "Mitigation" means improvements to the transportation system that increase or enhance capacity. 

7.  "Net Trips" means the number of trips generated by a regulated activity during the PM Peak Hours. 
Net trips equal new trips, diverted trips, and trips from existing activities on a site that will remain. 
Net trips do not include: Pass-by trips, Internal trips, trips from existing facilities that will be 
removed, and Trips Reduced due to implementation of transportation demand strategies. 

8.  "Peak Hour" means a consecutive sixty (60) minute period during the twelve (12) PM hours of an 
average day, which experience the highest sum of traffic volumes on a roadway. 

9. "Regulated Activity" means project(s) or activities proposed in the base application. 

10.  "Site Trip Limit" means the trip limit multiplied by the acreage of the site containing the regulated 
activity. 

11.  "Trip Allocation Certificate" means a certificate or letter from the City Engineer specifying that a 
regulated activity meets the trip limit and specifying any required mitigation. 

12.  "Trip Analysis" means a study or report that specifies the net trips from a regulated activity and 
analyzes the trip distribution and assignment from the activity. 

658



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

21 

13.  "Trip Limit" means the maximum number of trips per acre from regulated activities that can be 
accommodated without violating the LOS Standard. 

D. Standard Requirements 

1.  All regulated activities shall acquire a Trip Allocation Certificate prior to approval of their base 
application. Lack of a Trip Allocation Certificate shall be the basis for denial of a base application. 

2.  A Trip Analysis is required for all regulated activities prior to being considered for a Trip Allocation 
Certificate. 

3.  The Level of Service Standard for Highway 99W through Sherwood through the year 2020 is "E". 

4.  The trip limit for a regulated activity shall be forty-three (43) net trips per acre. 

5.  Mitigation to comply with the CAP shall not be required for regulated activities occurring on land 
zoned General Industrial (GI) or Light Industrial (LI) when the activity produces less than eight (8) net 
trips per acre. 

E. Trip Analysis 

1.  Purpose 

The first step in the process of seeking a Trip Allocation Certificate is preparation of a Trip Analysis by 
the applicant for the regulated activity. The purpose of the Trip Analysis is to evaluate whether the 
net trips from a regulated activity exceed the site trip limit. 

2.  Timing 

The Trip Analysis shall be submitted with the relevant base application. Base applications without a 
Trip Analysis shall be deemed incomplete. 

3.  Format 

At a minimum, the Trip Analysis shall contain all the following information: 

a.  The type and location of the regulated activity. 

b.  A tax map clearly identifying the parcel(s) involved in the Trip Analysis. 

c.  Square footage used to estimate trips, in accordance with methods outlined in the ITE Manual. 

d.  Description of the type of activity, especially as it corresponds to activities described in the ITE 
Manual. 

e.  Copy of the ITE Manual page used to estimate trips. 

659



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

22 

f.  Acreage of the site containing the regulated activity calculated to two (2) decimal points. 

g.  Trip distributions and assignments from the regulated activity to all full access intersections 
impacted by ten (10) or more trips from the regulated activity with identification of the method 
used to distribute trips from the site. 

h.  Copies of any other studies utilized in the Trip Analysis. 

i.  Summary of the net trips generated by the regulated activity in comparison to the site trip limit. 

j.  Signature and stamp of a professional engineer, registered in the State of Oregon, with expertise 
in traffic or transportation engineering, who prepared the analysis. 

4.  Methods 

a.  The Trip Analysis and trip generation for an activity shall be based on the ITE Manual. 

b.  If a trip generation for the proposed use is not available in the ITE Manual or the applicant 
wishes to dispute the findings in the ITE Manual, the trip generation calculation may be based on 
an analysis of trips from five (5) sites with the same type of activity as that proposed. 

5.  Modification of Trip Analysis Requirements 

The City Engineer may waive, in writing, some of the requirements of the Trip Analysis if: 

a.  The proposed regulated activity is part of a previously approved Trip Allocation Certificate that 
meets the requirements of this chapter and the applicant demonstrates, to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer, that the applicable provisions of the previously approved Trip Allocation 
Certificate shall be met; or 

b.  The City Engineer determines, upon receipt of a letter of request from the applicant, that less 
information is required to accomplish the purposes of this chapter. 

F.  Trip Allocation Certificate 

1.  General 

a.  Trip Allocation Certificates shall be issued by the City Engineer. 

b.  Trip Allocation Certificates shall be valid for the same period as the land use or other city 
approval for the regulated activity. 

c.  The City Engineer may invalidate a Trip Allocation Certificate when, in the City Engineer's 
judgment, the Trip Analysis that formed the basis for award of the Trip Allocation Certificate no 
longer accurately reflects the activity proposed under the base application. 

660



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

23 

2.  Approval Criteria 

a.  Upon receipt of a Trip Analysis, the City Engineer shall review the analysis. The Trip Analysis shall 
meet both of the following criteria to justify issuance of a Trip Allocation Certificate for the 
regulated activity: 

(1) Adequacy of analysis; and 

(2) Projected net trips less than the site trip limit. 

b.  Adequacy of Analysis 

The City Engineer shall judge this criterion based on the following factors: 

(1)  Adherence to the Trip Analysis format and methods described in this chapter. 

(2)  Appropriate use of data and assumptions; and 

(3)  Completeness of the Trip Analysis. 

3. Mitigation 

a.  The Trip Allocation Certificate shall specify required mitigation measures for the regulated 
activity. 

b.  Mitigation measures shall include improvements to Highway 99W and nearby transportation 
corridors that, in the judgment of the City Engineer, are needed to meet the LOS Standard and 
provide capacity for the regulated activity. 

c.  Engineering construction plans for required mitigation measures shall be submitted and 
approved in conjunction with other required construction plans for the regulated activity. 

d.  Mitigation measures shall be implemented in tandem with work associated with the regulated 
activity. 

e.  Failure to implement required mitigation measures shall be grounds for revoking the regulated 
activity's base application approval. 

G.  Other Provisions 

1.  Acreage Calculation for a Regulated Activity 

a.  Acreage calculations used to calculate net trips per acre in the Trip Analysis must use the entire 
area of the tax lot(s) containing the regulated activity, less 100-year floodplain area, in 
accordance with FIRM map for Sherwood. 

661



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

24 

b.  If the site contains existing uses, the net trips generated by these uses shall be included in the 
calculation of net trips generated from the site. 

2.  Partial Development of a Site 

a.  If a regulated activity utilizes a portion of a vacant tax lot, such that the site could be further 
developed in the future, the applicant shall identify the potential uses for the vacant portion and 
reserve trips for that portion of the site in accordance with the uses identified. These reserve 
trips shall be included in the calculation of the net trips generated from the site. 

b.  The Trip Allocation Certificate shall not be issued if the proposed future uses of the vacant area 
and the reserve trips are unrealistic in the opinion of the City Engineer. 

Bike path section update (Recommendation DC-19 in Table A-1) 

16.106.0780 Bike PathsLanes 

If shown in on the Figure 6-113 of the Transportation System Plan, bicycle pathslanes shall be installed in 
public rights-of-way, in accordance with City specifications. Bike lanes shall be installed on both sides of 
designated roads, should be separated from the road by a twelve (12) inch stripe or other means approved 
by Engineering Staff, not a curb, and should be a minimum of five (5) feet wide. Bike paths should not be 
combined with a sidewalk. 

662



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

25 

Attachment A
Table A-1: Summary of Recommended Potential Development Code Amendments and Corresponding 
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) Requirements 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

DC-1 Identify and update all references 
to the TSP in the code. 

 This has been made into a 
note in the introductory 
text of this memorandum. 

DC-2 Ensure that code requirements in 
Chapter 16.96 (On-site 
Circulation) and Chapter 16.106 
(Transportation Facilities) related 
to access spacing/management 
and design of streets, bikeways, 
sidewalks, and accessways/paths 
are consistent with the standards 
established in the updated TSP.

 

TPR Section -0045(2)(a)  

Access Control 

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 

 On-site Pedestrian and 
Bicycle Circulation and 
Connections 

TPR Section -0045(7) 

 Minimizing Roadway 
Width 

RTFP Section 3.08.110B 

 Street System Design for 
Pedestrian and Bicycle 
Access 

No amendments are 
needed to Chapter 16.96 
and Chapter 16.106 related 
to access management and 
spacing standards; existing 
development code and the 
Draft TSP are consistent. 

The updated TSP does not 
include or otherwise 
modify existing street 
design standards in this 
chapter. Minor 
amendments are needed to 
Chapter 16.106 related to 
street design. Amendments 
proposed to Section .010 
reflect deletions proposed 
for Chapter 6 of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
Amendments proposed to 
Section .040 remove a 
reference to cross-sections 
in the TSP, which the 
updated TSP does not 
include. 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.106 

663



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

26 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

Transportation Facilities, 
Section.010 Generally 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation Facilities, 
Section.040 Design 

DC-3 Define the following terms and 
ensure consistency between the 
TSP, Development Code, and 
Engineering Design Manual: 
access way and shared-use path.   

Note: The City Engineering Design 
Manual includes a reference to 
pedestrian and bicycle access 
ways that can be provided at a 
maximum spacing of 330 feet in 
lieu of a street in some cases. 

TPR Section -0045(3)(b) 

 On-site Pedestrian and 
Bicycle Circulation and 
Connections 

RTFP Sections 3.08.110 
B & E 

 Street System Design 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.10 Definitions, 
Section .020 Specifically 

 

 

DC-4 Provide additional guidance 
regarding the applicability and 
preparation of traffic impact 
analyses (TIAs), including rough 
proportionality provisions. 

TPR Section -0045(2)(b) 

Standards to Protect 
Roadways 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.90 Site 
Planning, Section .030.D 
Required Findings  

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .020.D 
Extent of Improvements  

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .040.K 
Traffic Controls 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .080 

664



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

27 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

Traffic Impact Analysis 
[new section] 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .090 
Rough Proportionality 
[new section] 

DC-5 Given TPR requirements for 
coordinated review, consider 
whether inviting transportation 
facility and service providers to 
pre-application conferences 
would be helpful to the review 
process and thus would be 
language to include in the code 
(Section 16.70.010).

TPR Section -0045(2)(d) 

Coordinated Review of 
Land Use Decisions 

The City already allows for 
this level of coordinated 
review, so code 
amendments are not 
necessary. 

DC-6 Provide more direction about 
“preferential” carpool and 
vanpool parking spaces. 

TPR  Section -0045(4)(d)  

Employee Parking  

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.94 Off-Street 
Parking and Loading, 
Section .010.E Location 

DC-7 Consider code changes if there 
are TDM program elements 
developed for the updated TSP 
that lend themselves to 
implementation in code. 

TPR Section -0045(5)(b) 

Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) 
Programs 

TDM program elements in 
the Draft TSP will be 
reviewed. However, it is 
not anticipated that these 
will result in proposed code 
amendments.  

DC-8 Allow exemptions from maximum 
parking space standards for 
structured parking and on-street 
parking.  

TPR Section -0045(5)(d)  

Parking Management 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.94 Off-Street 
Parking and Loading, 
Section .010.K General 
Requirements [new 

665



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

28 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

subsection] 

DC-9 Administrative/housekeeping 
amendments: Address typos and 
inconsistencies in the footnotes 
for the parking standards table. 

TPR Section -0045(5)(d) 

Parking Management 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.94 Off-Street 
Parking and Loading, 
Section .020 Off-Street 
Parking Standards  

DC-10 Consider the feasibility of 
allowing a local street cross-
section of 20-28 feet and under 
what conditions.  

TPR Section -0045(7) 

Minimizing Roadway Width 

This recommendation will 
be developed into 
proposed policy language. 

DC-11 Modify the code provisions for 
plan and land use regulation 
amendments to make simpler 
reference to TPR Section -0060. 

TPR Section -0060 

Plan and Land Use 
Regulations Amendments 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.80 Plan 
Amendments, Section 
.030.C  Transportation 
Planning Rule Consistency  

DC-12 Provide a variance process in 
Chapter 16.84 (Variances and 
Adjustments) and/or Chapter 
16.94 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading) that allows maximum 
parking standards to be 
exceeded.  

RTFP Section 3.08.410 

Parking Management 

Section 16.94.010.A (Off-
Street Parking Required) 
already refers to 
procedures in Chapter 
16.84 for varying from 
minimum or maximum 
parking standards.  No 
amendments are proposed. 

DC-13 Require that major driveways 
that are proposed for mixed-use 
and residential developments 
align with existing and/or planned 
streets. 

RTFP Section 3.08.410 

Parking Management 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.90 Site 
Planning, Section .030.D 
Required Findings 

Chapter 16.106 

666



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

29 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

Transportation 
Facilities, Section 
.030.B.2.d Connectivity 
Map Required [new 
subsection] 

DC-14 Add on-street loading provisions 
in an appropriate location such as 
Old Town, including specific 
conditions for when on-street 
loading would be permitted. 

RTFP Section 3.08.410 

Parking Management 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.94 Off-Street 
Parking and Loading, 
Section .030.C Off-Street 
Loading Standards [new 
subsection] 

DC-15 Provide more requirements and 
guidance regarding short-term 
and long-term bicycle parking.  

RTFP Section 3.08.410 

Parking Management 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.94 Off-Street 
Parking and Loading, 
Section 16.94.020.C Bicycle 
Parking Facilities  

DC-16 Consider whether having a 
hierarchy of management to 
capacity strategies (RTFP Section 
3.08.220A) would be effective as 
part of traffic impact analysis and 
legislative decision conditions of 
approval.  

RTFP Sections 3.08.510  

A & B 

Comprehensive Plan and 
TSP Amendments 

This was determined to not 
be an effective or necessary 
set of potential code 
amendments. 

DC-17 Replace maps in the development 
code with references to the maps 
in the updated TSP. 

 Replacing maps with 
references can help avoid 
inconsistencies between 
the development code and 
TSP and make updates 
easier in the future. 

Proposed code 

667



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

30 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

amendments to: 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .020 
Required Improvements 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .030 
Location  

DC-18 Remove CAP program. 

 

 The CAP program is being 
discontinued given TIA 
requirements and mobility 
standards proposed for 
adoption as part of this TSP 
update. 

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.106 
Transportation 
Facilities, Section .070 
Highway 99W Capacity 
Allocation Program 
(CAP)  

DC-19 Re-number the following section 
(Bike Paths) and update a 
reference to the TSP. 

Update the bike path section to 
address bike lanes. 

 The section on bike paths is 
updated to address bike 
lanes because bike path is 
are not a term that is used 
in the updated TSP or 
elsewhere in the code.

Proposed code 
amendments to: 

Chapter 16.106 

668



SHERWOOD TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
 IMPLEMENTATION LANGUAGE 

MAY 2014 

31 

 Recommended Potential 
Development Code Amendments 

TPR and/or RTFP 
Requirements 

Commentary 

Transportation 
Facilities, Section .080 
Bike Paths 

669



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

670



671



(This page left intentionally blank)

672



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 1 

Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro 
Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) Compliance  
This document presents findings related to compliance of the City of Sherwood’s Zoning and Community 
Development Code (“development code”), Comprehensive Plan, and 2014 Transportation System Plan 
(TSP) with the Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional 
Plan (RTFP). The findings are presented in table format in the following tables: 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Table 3:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

The TPR requirements included in Table 1 are those from Sections -0045 and -0060, which address how 
the TSP is implemented in the development code and how amendments to zoning, plan amendments, or 
other land use regulations are reviewed regarding potential impacts on transportation facilities. 

Tables 2, 3, and 4 are based on a regulatory checklist prepared by Metro designed to help local 
jurisdictions demonstrate compliance with the RTFP.  

The left column of the tables cites the TPR and RTFP requirements and the right column describes how 
the development code, comprehensive plan policies, and/or TSP are consistent with these 
requirements. There are several areas of overlap within and between the TPR and RTFP, and in those 
cases, other findings are referred to rather than duplicated. 

 

  

673



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 2 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

OAR 660-012-0045 
Implementation of the TSP 

 

(1) Each local government shall amend its land use 
regulations to implement the TSP. 

 

(a) The following transportation facilities, services and 
improvements need not be subject to land use 
regulations except as necessary to implement the TSP 
and, under ordinary circumstances do not have a 
significant impact on land use: 

(A) Operation, maintenance, and repair of existing 
transportation facilities identified in the TSP, such as 
road, bicycle, pedestrian, port, airport and rail 
facilities, and major regional pipelines and terminals; 
(B) Dedication of right-of-way, authorization of 
construction and the construction of facilities and 
improvements, where the improvements are 
consistent with clear and objective dimensional 
standards; 
(C) Uses permitted outright under ORS 
215.213(1)(m) through (p) and 215.283(1)(k) 
through (n), consistent with the provisions of 660-
012-0065; and 
(D) Changes in the frequency of transit, rail and 
airport services.

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
Chapter 16.66 (Transportation Facilities and 
Improvements) permits transportation facilities 
and improvements identified in the TSP and 
defined in Section 16.10.020 in all City zoning 
districts. 
  

(b) To the extent, if any, that a transportation facility, 
service, or improvement concerns the application of a 
comprehensive plan provision or land use regulation, it 
may be allowed without further land use review if it is 
permitted outright or if it is subject to standards that do 
not require interpretation or the exercise of factual, 
policy or legal judgment. 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
See findings for TPR Section -0045(1)(a). 
 

(c) In the event that a transportation facility, service or 
improvement is determined to have a significant impact 
on land use or requires interpretation or the exercise of 
factual, policy or legal judgment, the local government 
shall provide a review and approval process that is 
consistent with 660-012-0050.  To facilitate 
implementation of the TSP, each local government shall 
amend regulations to provide for consolidated review of 
land use decisions required to permit a transportation 
project.  

Existing code addresses this TPR provision. 
 
Section 16.66.010.B specifies that construction of 
transportation facilities and improvements that 
are either not designated in the adopted TSP or 
not designed and constructed as part of an 
approved subdivision or partition shall be subject 
to conditional use review. Conditional use 
approval criteria include those that apply 
specifically to transportation facilities and 
improvements (Section 16.82.020.C.9). 

674



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 3 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

(2) Local governments shall adopt land use or subdivision 
ordinance regulations, consistent with applicable federal and 
state requirements, to protect transportation facilities, 
corridors, and sites for their identified functions. 

 

(a) Access control measures such as driveway, road, and 
signal spacing; 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision. 
 
Subsection .040.M of Chapter 16.106 
(Transportation Facilities) addresses access 
management, and establishes required minimum 
spacing between driveways and intersections for 
local roads, neighborhood routes, and collectors 
(25 feet, 50 feet, and 100 feet respectively). The 
same spacing standards are included in Section 8 
(The Standards) of the 2014 TSP. Subsection 
.040.M also refers to the Engineering Design and 
Standard Details Manual for street standards.  
 
Section 120.2.A of the Engineering Design and 
Standard Details Manual refers to the City TSP and 
code for access regulations, and to the City 
Engineer, Washington County, and ODOT for 
authority to control access. Section 210.6.E of the 
manual establishes spacing between intersections 
and Section 210.8.A establishes spacing between 
driveways and intersections, based on roadway 
functional classifications. 
 
Code amendments are not needed to coordinate 
access standards in the development code with 
those in the engineering manual (Section 210.6 – 
Intersections) and the updated TSP because no 
change to access standards were developed or 
proposed as part of the TSP update. 

(b) Standards to protect the future operations of roads 
and major transit corridors 

Existing and proposed code language is 
consistent with this TPR provision.    
 
The 2014 TSP establishes mobility targets and the 
Roadway Element of the Washington County TSP 
establish level-of-service standards for both 
signalized and unsignalized intersections for 
roadways in the city.   
 
Sections 16.90.030.D and 16.106.040 include 

675



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 4 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

general TIA requirements for development 
proposals based on the type of proposed 
development, whether they are subject to site 
plan review, and their projected average daily 
vehicle trips (ADT).  Proposed traffic impact 
analysis (TIA) requirements in a new section, 
Section 16.106.080, provide additional guidance 
regarding the applicability requirements for TIAs 
and preparation and review of TIAs (TSP Volume 
2, Section G). Proposed approval criteria include 
the provision that applicable performance 
measures be met. 

(d) A process for coordinated review of future land use 
decisions affecting transportation facilities, corridors or 
sites 

Existing code is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
Written notice of Type II, III, IV, and V quasi-
judicial and legislative actions is sent to ODOT, 
Metro, applicable transit service providers, and 
other affected or potentially affected agencies 
pursuant to Section 16.72.020.C). The City does 
not have a codified process for inviting agencies to 
a pre-application meeting, prior to a proposed 
project or amendment being submitted.  Pre-
application conferences addressed in existing 
code (Section 16.70.010) are an opportunity to 
coordinate with other transportation facility and 
service providers. 

(e) Process to apply conditions to development 
proposals in order to minimize impacts and protect 
transportation facilities, corridors or sites 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
Criteria applicable to development applications 
grant authority to the Hearing Authority and 
Appeal Authority to approve the application with 
conditions, pursuant to Section 16.72.010.C.1. 
Conditional use provisions specify that conditions 
may be imposed by the Hearings Authority “if 
necessary to fulfill the requirements of the 
adopted Comprehensive Plan, Transportation 
System Plan, or the Code” (Section 16.82.020.A.1). 
Conditional use approval criteria in Section 
16.82.020.C.9 include those that apply specifically 
to transportation facilities and improvements. 

(f) Regulations to provide notice to public agencies 
providing transportation facilities and services, MPOs, 
and ODOT of: land use applications that require public 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
See findings for TPR Section -0045(2)(d). 

676



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 5 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

hearings, subdivision and partition applications, 
applications which affect private access to roads, 
applications within airport noise corridor and imaginary 
surfaces which affect airport operations. 

 

g) Regulations assuring amendments to land use 
designations, densities, design standards are consistent 
with the function, capacities, and levels of service of 
facilities designated in the TSP. 

Existing and proposed code language is 
consistent with this TPR provision. 
 
See findings regarding traffic impact analyses in 
TPR Section -0045(2)(b) and plan and land use 
regulation amendments in TPR Section -0060. 

(3) Local governments shall adopt land use or subdivision 
regulations for urban areas and rural communities as set 
forth below. 

 

(a) Bicycle parking as part of new multifamily residential 
developments of 4 units or more, new retail, office and 
institutional developments, and all transit transfer 
stations and park-and-ride lots 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
Section 16.94.020.C requires bicycle parking for 
uses including multi-family housing, office and 
most other commercial uses, institutional uses, 
and park-and-ride facilities. The provisions also 
address location and design of bicycle parking.  

(b) On-site facilities shall be provided which 
accommodate safe and convenient   pedestrian and 
bicycle access from within new subdivisions, multi-family 
developments, planned developments, shopping centers, 
and commercial districts to adjacent residential areas 
and transit stops, and to neighborhood activity centers 
within one-half mile of the development. Single-family 
residential developments shall generally include streets 
and accessways. Pedestrian circulation through parking 
lots should generally be provided in the form of 
accessways. 

(A) "Neighborhood activity centers" includes, but is 
not limited to, existing or planned schools, parks, 
shopping areas, transit stops or employment 
centers; 
(B) Bikeways shall be required along arterials and 
major collectors. sidewalks shall be required along 
arterials, collectors and most local streets in urban 
areas except that sidewalks are not required along 
controlled access roadways, such as freeways; 
(C) Cul-de-sacs and other dead-end streets may be 
used as part of a development plan, consistent with 
the purposes set forth in this section; 

Existing and proposed code addresses this TPR 
provision.   
 

On-site circulation and connections – Chapter 
16.96 (On-Site Circulation) establishes 
requirements for on-site pedestrian, bicycle, 
and vehicular circulation. Standards for 
residential and non-residential development 
require that a private pathway/sidewalk 
system extend throughout the site that 
connects existing development, building 
entrances, adjacent development, future 
phases of development, public rights-of-way, 
open space, and parking and storage areas. On-
site pathway/sidewalk systems addressed in 
Chapter 16.96 require the system to connect to 
transit facilities within 500 feet of the site. This 
is reinforced by language in the transportation 
facilities section that requires site connections 
to transit streets, as designated in the TSP, 
pursuant to Section 16.106.040.J.  

 

Parking lots – Section 16.96.020.B and Section 

677



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 6 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

(D) Local governments shall establish their own 
standards or criteria for providing streets and 
accessways consistent with the purposes of this 
section. Such measures may include but are not 
limited to: standards for spacing of streets or 
accessways; and standards for excessive out-of-
direction travel; 
(E) Streets and accessways need not be required 
where one or more of the following conditions exist: 

(i) Physical or topographic conditions make a 
street or accessway connection impracticable. 
Such conditions include but are not limited to 
freeways, railroads, steep slopes, wetlands or 
other bodies of water where a connection could 
not reasonably be provided; 
(ii) Buildings or other existing development on 
adjacent lands physically preclude a connection 
now or in the future considering the potential 
for redevelopment; or 

(iii) Where streets or accessways would violate 
provisions of leases, easements, covenants, restrictions 
or other agreements existing as of May 1, 1995, which 
preclude a required street or accessway connection. 

16.96.030.B require separation of pathways 
and sidewalks from vehicle traffic in parking 
lots.  

 

Bikeways and sidewalks – Section 16.106.010 
provides street design guidelines, including 
dimensions for sidewalks on all streets and bike 
lanes on all streets except downtown streets, 
commercial/industrial streets under 3,000 ADT, 
neighborhood routes, and local streets.  
Proposed amendments to Section 16.10.020 
include providing a definition for shared-use 
paths (TSP Volume 2, Section G). 

 

Street and access way layout – Street spacing is 
addressed in the Engineering Design and 
Standard Details manual and access spacing 
standards in Section 16.106.40.M and the 2014 
TSP. Section 16.106.30 establishes maximum 
block lengths of 530 feet for new streets, 
except for arterials, which have a maximum 
block length requirement of 1,800 feet. Where 
full street crossings occur at distances of more 
1,200 feet, bicycle and pedestrian crossings 
must be provided at an average of 530 feet. 
Section 16.106.30 also requires consistency 
with a local connectivity plan established in the 
TSP.   Proposed amendments to Section 
16.10.020 include providing a definition for 
access ways, a term already used in the City’s 
development code (TSP Volume 2, Section G). 

(c) Off-site road improvements are otherwise required as 
a condition of development approval, they shall include 
facilities accommodating convenient pedestrian and 
bicycle and pedestrian travel, including bicycle ways on 
arterials and major collectors. 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
See findings regarding authority to condition 
approval in TPR Section -0045(2)(e). 

(e) Internal pedestrian circulation within new office parks 
and commercial developments shall be provided through 
clustering of buildings, construction of accessways, 
walkways and similar techniques. 

Existing code addresses this TPR provision. 
 
See findings regarding on-site circulation in TPR 
Section -0045(3)(b). 

(4) To support transit in urban areas containing a population 
greater than 25,000, where the area is already served by a 
public transit system or where a determination has been 
made that a public transit system is feasible, local 

 

678



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 7 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

governments shall adopt land use and subdivision regulations 
as provided in (a)-(g) below:  

(a) Transit routes and transit facilities shall be designed 
to support transit use through provision of bus stops, 
pullouts and shelters, optimum road geometrics, on-road 
parking restrictions and similar facilities, as appropriate;  

Existing code addresses the elements of this TPR 
requirement that apply to the development 
code. 
 
On-site pathway/sidewalk system provisions 
established in Chapter 16.96 require the system to 
connect to transit facilities within 500 feet of the 
site. Section 16.106.040.J (Transit Facilities) 
reinforces this requirement by also requiring site 
connections to transit streets, as designated in the 
TSP, and either proving or allowing for transit 
amenities and/or easements. Further, 
front/primary entrances of commercial, multi-
family, institutional, and mixed-use development 
must be oriented to existing and planned transit 
facilities and be built with no or minimal setbacks 
according to underlying zoning and site plan 
provisions, pursuant to Section 16.90.030.D.7. 

(b) New retail, office and institutional buildings at or near 
major transit stops shall provide for convenient 
pedestrian access to transit through the measures listed 
in (A) and (B) below.  
(A) Walkways shall be provided connecting building 
entrances and streets adjoining the site;  
(B) Pedestrian connections to adjoining properties shall 
be provided except where such a connection is 
impracticable as provided for in OAR 660-012-
0045(3)(b)(E). Pedestrian connections shall connect the 
on site circulation system to existing or proposed streets, 
walkways, and driveways that abut the property. Where 
adjacent properties are undeveloped or have potential 
for redevelopment, streets, accessways and walkways on 
site shall be laid out or stubbed to allow for extension to 
the adjoining property;  

Existing code language is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
See the findings regarding on-site circulation in 
TPR Section -0045(3)(b). 
 

(C) In addition to (A) and (B) above, on sites at major 
transit stops provide the following:  
(i) Either locate buildings within 20 feet of the transit 
stop, a transit street or an intersecting street or provide 
a pedestrian plaza at the transit stop or a street 
intersection;  
(ii) A reasonably direct pedestrian connection between 
the transit stop and building entrances on the site; 

Existing code language is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
See the findings regarding site circulation and 
connections in TPR Sections -0045(3)(b) and -
0045(4)(a). 

679



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 8 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

(iii) A transit passenger landing pad accessible to 
disabled persons;  
(iv) An easement or dedication for a passenger shelter if 
requested by the transit provider; and  
(v) Lighting at the transit stop.  

(c) Local governments may implement (4)(b)(A) and (B) 
above through the designation of pedestrian districts 
and adoption of appropriate implementing measures 
regulating development within pedestrian districts. 
Pedestrian districts must comply with the requirement of 
(4)(b)(C) above; 

The City is not proposing to designate a 
pedestrian district at this time, so this TPR 
provision does not apply. 

(d) Designated employee parking areas in new 
developments shall provide preferential parking for 
carpools and vanpools;  

Existing and proposed code addresses this TPR 
provision.  
 
Section 16.94.010.E.3.a requires all new 
development with at least 20 employees to 
provide preferential parking spaces for carpools 
and vanpools. Proposed amendments to Section 
16.94.010.E define the term “preferential” (TSP 
Volume 2, Section G).  

(e) Existing development shall be allowed to redevelop a 
portion of existing parking areas for transit-oriented 
uses, including bus stops and pullouts, bus shelters, park 
and ride stations, transit-oriented developments, and 
similar facilities, where appropriate;  

Existing code is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
Section 16.94.010.E.3.b allows redevelopment of 
portions of designated parking areas for multi-
modal facilities (transit shelters, park and ride, 
and bicycle parking), subject to meeting all other 
applicable standards, including minimum space 
standards.  

(f) Road systems for new development shall be provided 
that can be adequately served by transit, including 
provision of pedestrian access to existing and identified 
future transit routes. This shall include, where 
appropriate, separate accessways to minimize travel 
distances;  

Existing code addresses this TPR provision.  
 
See the findings regarding transit access in TPR 
Sections -0045(3)(b) and -0045(4)(a). 

(g) Along existing or planned transit routes, designation 
of types and densities of land uses adequate to support 
transit.  

Adopted planning documents and current 
planning processes address this TPR provision. 
 
The City has engaged in two significant planning 
processes – the Sherwood Town Center Plan and 
the Southwest Corridor Study – to examine future 
land use and transit service and routes. These 

680



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 9 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

planning processes are summarized in the Plans 
and Policies Report prepared for this TSP update 
(TSP Volume 2, Section A, pp. 14-15 and 23-25).  
The Existing Conditions Report (TSP Volume 2, 
Section B, Figure 1 and Figure 7) shows existing 
zoning and existing transit routes in the city. 

(5) In MPO areas, local governments shall adopt land use and 
subdivision regulations to reduce reliance on the automobile 
which:  

 

(a) Allow transit-oriented developments (TODs) on lands 
along transit routes; 

Existing code, adopted planning documents, and 
current planning processes address this TPR 
provision. 
 
See the findings for TPR Sections -0045(4)(a) and 
(g). 

(b) Implements a demand management program to meet 
the measurable standards set in the TSP;  

Existing code and the updated TSP are consistent 
with this TPR provision. 
 
See findings regarding pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities on streets, pedestrian and bicycle 
circulation on-site, shared-use access ways, 
transit access and amenities, and 
carpool/vanpool and bicycle parking in TPR 
Sections -0045(3)(a) and (b) and Sections -
0045(4)(a), (d), (e), and (f). 
 
Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 
programs are addressed in Section 8 (The 
Standards) of the updated TSP. 

(c) Implements a parking plan which: 
(A) Achieves a 10% reduction in the number of parking 
spaces per capita in the MPO area over the planning 
period. This may be accomplished through a 
combination of restrictions on development of new 
parking spaces and requirements that existing parking 
spaces be redeveloped to other uses;  
(B) Aids in achieving the measurable standards set in the 
TSP in response to OAR 660-012-0035(4) [reducing 
reliance on the automobile];  
(C) Includes land use and subdivision regulations setting 
minimum and maximum parking requirements in 
appropriate locations, such as downtowns, designated 
regional or community centers, and transit oriented-

A citywide parking plan is not being considered 
at this time, so this TPR provision does not apply.  
 
Also see findings regarding alternative parking 
regulations in TPR Section -0045(5)(d). 
 
 
 

681



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 10 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

developments; and  
(D) Is consistent with demand management programs, 
transit-oriented development requirements and planned 
transit service.  
OR 

(d) As an alternative to (c) above, local governments in 
an MPO may instead revise ordinance requirements for 
parking as follows:  
(A) Reduce minimum off-street parking requirements for 
all non-residential uses from 1990 levels; 
(B) Allow provision of on-street parking, long-term lease 
parking, and shared parking to meet minimum off-street 
parking requirements; 
(C) Establish off-street parking maximums in appropriate 
locations, such as downtowns, designated regional or 
community centers, and transit-oriented developments; 
(D) Exempt structured parking and on-street parking 
from parking maximums;  
(E) Require that parking lots over 3 acres in size provide 
street-like features along major driveways (including 
curbs, sidewalks, and street trees or planting strips); and 
(F) Provide for designation of residential parking districts. 

Existing and proposed code addresses this TPR 
provision.   
 
Existing off-street parking regulations allow for 
shared parking, blended parking rates, on-street 
parking credits, preferential carpool/vanpool 
parking, residential parking districts, and reduced 
parking requirements in environmentally sensitive 
areas (Section 16.94.010). 
 

Minimum and maximum parking requirements 
– Section16.94.020.A establishes both 
minimum and maximum. Minimum parking 
standards comply with Metro standards, which 
were originally developed to reduce 
requirements from historic levels.  

 

Parking credits and parking districts – Section 
16.94.010 allows for shared parking, blended 
parking rates, on-street parking credits, 
preferential carpool/vanpool parking, 
residential parking districts, and reduced 
parking requirements in environmentally 
sensitive areas. 

 

Structured parking and on-street parking 
maximums – Proposed amendments to parking 
standards specify that structured parking and 
on-street parking are exempt from parking 
space maximums (Section 16.94.010.K) (TSP 
Volume 2, Section G). On-street parking is not 
subject to minimum requirements and can be 
used to count toward meeting off-street 
requirements, pursuant to Section 
16.94.010.B.5.  

 

Large parking lots – Section 16.94.010.I 
(Parking and Loading Plan) requires parking lots 

682



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 11 

Table 1: TPR Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Transportation Planning Rule Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

larger than one acre to provide street-like 
features. 

(e) Require all major industrial, institutional, retail and 
office developments to provide either a transit stop on 
site or connection to a transit stop along a transit trunk 
route when the transit operator requires such an 
improvement. 

Existing code is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
See findings regarding transit provisions in TPR 
Section -0045(4)(a).  

(6) In developing a bicycle and pedestrian circulation plan as 
required by 660-012-0020(2)(d), local governments shall 
identify improvements to facilitate bicycle and pedestrian 
trips to meet local travel needs in developed areas. 
Appropriate improvements should provide for more direct, 
convenient and safer bicycle or pedestrian travel within and 
between residential areas and neighborhood activity centers 
(i.e., schools, shopping, transit stops). Specific measures 
include, for example, constructing walkways between cul-de-
sacs and adjacent roads, providing walkways between 
buildings, and providing direct access between adjacent uses. 

The 2014 TSP includes pedestrian and bicycle 
plans and is consistent with this TPR provision. 
 
Also see findings regarding pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities in TPR Section -0045(3)(b) and 
regarding pedestrian and bicycle connections in 
RTFP Section 3.08.110E. 

(7) Local governments shall establish standards for local 
streets and accessways that minimize pavement width and 
total ROW consistent with the operational needs of the 
facility. The intent of this requirement is that local 
governments consider and reduce excessive standards for 
local streets and accessways in order to reduce the cost of 
construction, provide for more efficient use of urban land, 
provide for emergency vehicle access while discouraging 
inappropriate traffic volumes and speeds, and which 
accommodate convenient pedestrian and bicycle circulation. 
Notwithstanding section (1) or (3) of this rule, local street 
standards adopted to meet this requirement need not be 
adopted as land use regulations. 

Existing code is consistent with this TPR 
provision. 
 
Section 16.106.010 provides street design 
standards by street functional classification and 
traffic volume. The standards include those for a 
28-foot-wide local street, with parking on one side 
and a shared travel lane.  

OAR 660-012-0060 
Plan and Land Use Regulation Amendments 

 

Amendments to functional plans, acknowledged 
comprehensive plans, and land use regulations that 
significantly affect an existing or planned transportation 
facility shall assure that allowed land uses are consistent with 
the identified function, capacity, and performance standards 
of the facility.  

Existing and proposed code is consistent with this 
TPR provision. 

 
Section 16.80.030.C addresses TPR compliance. 
Proposed amendments to the section make 
simpler reference to Section -0060 in order to 
capture all of its requirements and allowances 
related to reviewing plan and land use regulation 
amendments (TSP Volume 2, Section G). 

683



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 12 

 

684



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 13 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

Allow complete street designs consistent with regional street 
design policies 
(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110A(1)) 

Existing code is consistent with these RTFP 
provisions. 
 
See findings regarding street design and transit 
facilities in TPR Sections -0045(3)(b), (4)(a), and 
(7).  

Allow green street designs consistent with federal regulations 
for stream protection  
(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110A(2)) 

Allow transit-supportive street designs that facilitate existing 
and planned transit service pursuant 3.08.120B 
(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110A(3)) 

Allow implementation of: 
narrow streets (<28 ft curb to curb);  
wide sidewalks (at least five feet of through zone);  
landscaped pedestrian buffer strips or paved furnishing 
zones of at least five feet, that include street trees; 
Traffic calming to discourage traffic infiltration and 
excessive speeds; 
short and direct right-of-way routes and shared-use paths 
to connect residences with commercial services, parks, 
schools, hospitals, institutions, transit corridors, regional 
trails and other neighborhood activity centers; 
opportunities to extend streets in an incremental fashion, 
including posted notification on streets to be extended.  

(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110B) 

Existing and proposed code and proposed policy 
are consistent with this RTFP provision. 
 
Also see findings regarding street design in TPR 
Section -0045(7). 
 

Narrow streets – Existing street standards 
include a cross-section for a local residential 
street that is 28 feet curb to curb (Section 
16.106.010). Proposed Strategy 19 under Goal 3 
of the Transportation policies commits the City 
to reevaluate street design standards and to 
establish conditions under which narrower 
street standards would be permitted (TSP 
Volume 2, Section G). 
 
Sidewalks, buffer strips, and traffic calming – 
Street design guidelines in Section 16.106.010 
call for sidewalks of 6-12 feet on all streets but 
alleys. Buffer strips of at least five feet are 
called for also on all streets but alleys. Traffic 
calming is authorized for use on new and 
existing streets in Section 16.106.040. 

 
Path and access way connections – Connections 
to adjacent sites and activity centers are 
addressed by the findings and 
recommendations for TPR Section -0045(3)(b). 

 
Streets to be extended – Section 16.106.040.C 
requires notice be posted on dead-end streets 
that are planned for extension.  

685



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 14 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

Require new residential or mixed-use development (of five or 
more acres) that proposes or is required to construct or 
extend street(s) to provide a site plan (consistent with the 
conceptual new streets map required by Title 1, Sec 
3.08.110D) that: 

provides full street connections with spacing of no more 
than 530 feet between connections except where 
prevented by barriers 
Provides a crossing every 800 to 1,200 feet if streets must 
cross water features protected pursuant to Title 3 UGMFP 
(unless habitat quality or the length of the crossing 
prevents a full street connection) 
provides bike and pedestrian accessways in lieu of streets 
with spacing of no more than 330 feet except where 
prevented by barriers 
limits use of cul-de-sacs and other closed-end street 
systems to situations where barriers prevent full street 
connections 
includes no closed-end street longer than 220 feet or 
having no more than 25 dwelling units 

(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110E) 

Existing code is consistent with these RTFP 
provisions. 
 

Connections and crossings – Provisions in 
transportation facility standards (Section 
16.106.030.B) and land division standards 
(Section 16.128.010.A) establish maximum 
block lengths of 530 feet for new streets, except 
for arterials, which have a maximum block 
length requirement of 1,800 feet. Section 
16.106.30 also requires consistency with a local 
connectivity plan established in the TSP.  The 
standards also specify that where full street 
crossings occur at distances of more 1,200 feet, 
bicycle and pedestrian crossings must be 
provided at an average of 530 feet.   
 
Bike and pedestrian access ways – Connectivity 
provisions in Section 16.128.010.A.2 (Block 
Length) require that paved bike and pedestrian 
access ways be provided in easements or right-
of-way consistent with Figure 7.401. Given 
maximum block length standards of 530 feet 
(except for arterials), these mid-block access 
ways can be assumed to be spaced at a 
maximum of 330 feet. 

 
Cul-de-sacs and closed-end streets – Section 
16.106.040.E.1 limits cul-de-sacs to 200 feet and 
25 dwelling units, except when constrained by 
topography and existing development. Section 
16.106.040.E.3 requires access ways to be 
provided in public easements, tracts, or right-of-
way on cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets in order 
to connect streets. 

Establish city/county standards for local street connectivity, 
consistent with Title 1, Sec 3.08.110E, that applies to new 
residential or mixed-use development (of less than five acres) 
that proposes or is required to construct or extend street(s). 
(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110F) 

Existing code is consistent with this RTFP 
provision. 
 
See findings for RTFP Section 3.08.110E; the 
standards apply regardless of site size. 

Applicable to both Development Code and TSP 
To the extent feasible, restrict driveway and street access in 
the vicinity of interchange ramp terminals, consistent with 

Proposed policy amendments address this RTFP 
provision. 
 

686



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 15 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

Oregon Highway Plan Access Management Standards, and 
accommodate local circulation on the local system. Public 
street connections, consistent with regional street design and 
spacing standards, shall be encouraged and shall supersede 
this access restriction. Multimodal street design features 
including pedestrian crossings and on-street parking shall be 
allowed where appropriate. 
(Title 1,Street System Design Sec 3.08.110G) 

Also see findings regarding access management 
in TPR Section -0045(2)(a) and regarding street 
spacing in TPR Section -0045(3)(b) and RTFP 
Section 3.08.110E. 
 
Proposed amendments to Strategy 2 under Goal 2 
in Transportation Policies commits the City to 
work with ODOT, Washington County, and Metro 
to improve regional mobility through such efforts 
as the Westside Solution Study and the I-5 to 99W 
Connector project (TSP Volume 2, Section G). 

Include Site design standards for new retail, office, multi-
family and institutional buildings located near or at major 
transit stops shown in Figure 2.15 in the RTP: 

Provide reasonably direct pedestrian connections between 
transit stops and building entrances and between building 
entrances and streets adjoining transit stops; 
Provide safe, direct and logical pedestrian crossings at all 
transit stops where practicable. 
 

At major transit stops, require the following: 
Locate buildings within 20 feet of the transit stop, a transit 
street or an intersection street, or a pedestrian plaza at the 
stop or a street intersections; 
Transit passenger landing pads accessible to disabled 
persons to transit agency standards;
An easement or dedication for a passenger shelter and an 
underground utility connection to a major transit stop if 
requested by the public transit provider; 
Lighting to transit agency standards at the major transit 
stop; 
Intersection and mid-block traffic management 
improvements as needed and practicable to enable 
marked crossings at major transit stops. 

(Title 1, Transit System Design Sec 3.08.120B(2)) 

Existing code is consistent with this RTFP 
provision. 
 
See findings regarding transit access and 
amenities in TPR Sections -0045(3)(b) and -
0045(4)(a), and regarding crossings in RTFP 
Section 3.08.110E. 
 
 
 

(Could be in Comprehensive plan or TSP as well) As an 
alternative to implementing site design standards at major 
transit stops (section 3.08.120B(2), a city or county may 
establish pedestrian districts with the following elements: 

A connected street and pedestrian network for the district; 
An inventory of existing facilities, gaps and deficiencies in 
the network of pedestrian routes; 

An alternative to the site design standards is not 
needed and the City is not proposing to 
designate a pedestrian district at this time, so 
this RTFP provision does not apply. 
 
 
 

687



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 16 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

Interconnection of pedestrian, transit and bicycle systems; 
Parking management strategies; 
Access management strategies; 
Sidewalk and accessway location and width; 
Landscaped or paved pedestrian buffer strip location and 
width; 
Street tree location and spacing; 
Pedestrian street crossing and intersection design; 
Street lighting and furniture for pedestrians; 
A mix of types and densities of land uses that will support a 
high level of pedestrian activity. 

(Title 1, Pedestrian System Design Sec 3.08.130B) 

Require new development to provide on-site streets and 
accessways that offer reasonably direct routes for pedestrian 
travel. 
(Title 1, Pedestrian System Design Sec 3.08.130C) 

Existing code is consistent with this RTFP 
provision. 
 
See findings for TPR Section -0045(3)(b). 
 

Establish parking ratios, consistent with the following: 
No minimum ratios higher than those shown on Table 
3.08-3. 
Mo maximum ratios higher than those shown on Table 
3.08-3 and illustrated in the Parking Maximum Map. If 20-
minute peak hour transit service has become available to 
an area within a one-quarter mile walking distance from 
bus transit one-half mile walking distance from a high 
capacity transit station, that area shall be removed from 
Zone A. Cities and counties should designate Zone A 
parking ratios in areas with good pedestrian access to 
commercial or employment areas (within one-third mile 
walk) from adjacent residential areas. 
 

Establish a process for variances from minimum and 
maximum parking ratios that include criteria for a variance. 

Require that free surface parking be consistent with the 
regional parking maximums for Zones A and B in Table 3.08-
3. Following an adopted exemption process and criteria, 
cities and counties may exempt parking structures; fleet 
parking; vehicle parking for sale, lease, or rent; employee car 
pool parking; dedicated valet parking; user-paid parking; 

Existing and proposed code is consistent with 
these RTFP provisions.   
 
Also see findings regarding minimum/maximum 
parking standards, on-street parking credits, 
parking districts, and street-like features in large 
parking lots in TPR Section -0045(5)(d). 
 

Variances process – Existing off-street parking 
regulations in Section 16.94.010 allow for 
reductions in parking requirements in 
environmentally sensitive areas. Section 
16.84.030 (Types of Variances) establishes 
adjustments and Class B variances that allow 
for reductions in standards. 
 
Blended parking rates – Existing off-street 
parking regulations in Section 16.94.010 allow 
for blended parking rates. 

 
Major driveways – Driveways for residential 
and non-residential uses are addressed in 

688



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 17 

Table 2:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Development Code 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Development Code Compliance 

market rate parking; and other high-efficiency parking 
management alternatives from maximum parking standards. 
Reductions associated with redevelopment may be done in 
phases. Where mixed-use development is proposed, cities 
and counties shall provide for blended parking rates. Cities 
and counties may count adjacent on-street parking spaces, 
nearby public parking and shared parking toward required 
parking minimum standards. 

Use categories or standards other than those in Table 3.08-3 
upon demonstration that the effect will be substantially the 
same as the application of the ratios in the table. 

Provide for the designation of residential parking districts in 
local comprehensive plans or implementing ordinances. 

Require that parking lots more than three acres in size 
provide street-like features along major driveways, including 
curbs, sidewalks and street trees or planting strips. Major 
driveways in new residential and mixed-use areas shall meet 
the connectivity standards for full street connections in 
section 3.08.110, and should line up with surrounding streets 
except where prevented by topography, rail lines, freeways, 
pre-existing development or leases, easements or covenants 
that existed prior to May 1, 1995, or the requirements of 
Titles 3 and 13 of the UGMFP. 

Require on-street freight loading and unloading areas at 
appropriate locations in centers. 

Establish short-term and long-term bicycle parking minimums 
for: 

New multi-family residential developments of four units or 
more;  
New retail, office and institutional developments;  
Transit centers, high capacity transit stations, inter-city bus 
and rail passenger terminals; and 
Bicycle facilities at transit stops and park-and-ride lots. 

(Title 4, Parking Management Sec 3.08.410) 

Sections 16.96.030 and 16.96.030. Section 
16.106.30 also requires consistency with a 
local connectivity plan established in the TSP.  
Proposed amendments to site planning 
requirements in Section 16.90.030.D and 
connectivity requirements in Section 
16.106.030.B.2.d define major driveways and 
set connectivity requirements for major 
driveways (TSP Volume 2, Section G).  

 
On-street parking and loading – Proposed 
amendments to Section 16.94.030.C establish 
standards for on-street loading in the Old 
Town Overlay District (TSP Volume 2, Section 
G). 

 
Bicycle parking – Section 16.94.020.C requires 
bicycle parking for uses including multi-family 
housing, office and most other commercial 
uses, institutional uses, and park-and-ride 
facilities. The provisions address location and 
design of bicycle parking. Proposed 
amendments to this section set long-term 
bicycle parking requirements as well as 
provide additional guidance about parking 
location and design (TSP Volume 2, Section 
G). 

 

 

689



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 18 

Table 3:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Comprehensive Plan Compliance 

(Could be located in Development code or Comprehensive 
Plan) 
As an alternative to implementing site design standards at 
major transit stops (section 3.08.120B(2), a city or county 
may establish pedestrian districts with the following 
elements: 

A connected street and pedestrian network for the district; 
An inventory of existing facilities, gaps and deficiencies in 
the network of pedestrian routes; 
Interconnection of pedestrian, transit and bicycle systems; 
Parking management strategies; 
Access management strategies; 
Sidewalk and accessway location and width; 
Landscaped or paved pedestrian buffer strip location and 
width; 
Street tree location and spacing; 
Pedestrian street crossing and intersection design; 
Street lighting and furniture for pedestrians;
A mix of types and densities of land uses that will support a 
high level of pedestrian activity. 

(Title 1, Pedestrian System Design Sec 3.08.130B) 

An alternative to the site design standards is not 
needed and the City is not proposing to 
designate a pedestrian district at this time, so 
this RTFP provision does not apply.  
 
 
 

When proposing an amendment to the comprehensive plan 
or to a zoning designation, consider the strategies in 
subsection 3.08.220A as part of the analysis required by OAR 
660-012-0060. 

If a city or county adopts the actions set forth in 3.08.230E 
(parking ratios, designs for street, transit, bicycle, pedestrian, 
freight systems, TSMO projects and strategies, and land use 
actions) and section 3.07.630.B of Title 6 of the UGMFP, it 
shall be eligible for an automatic reduction of 30 percent 
below the vehicular trip generation rates recommended by 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers when analyzing the 
traffic impacts, pursuant to OAR 660-012-0060, of a plan 
amendment in a Center, Main Street, Corridor or Station 
Community.  
(Title 5, Amendments of City and County Comprehensive 
and Transportation System Plans Sec 3.08.510A,B) 

Existing and proposed code addresses this RTPF 
provision.   
 
See the findings in TPR Section -0060.  
 
As established in Section 2 (The Vision) of the 
2014 TSP, the City considered transportation 
solutions in 3.08.220A as part of the TSP update 
process.   
 

(Could be located in TSP or other adopted policy document) 
Adopt parking policies, management plans and regulations 
for Centers and Station Communities. Plans may be adopted 

Proposed policy language addresses this RTFP 
provision.    
 

690



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 19 

Table 3:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of Comprehensive Plan Compliance 

in TSPs or other adopted policy documents and may focus on 
sub-areas of Centers. Plans shall include an inventory of 
parking supply and usage, an evaluation of bicycle parking 
needs with consideration of TriMet Bicycle Parking 
Guidelines. Policies shall be adopted in the TSP. Policies, plans 
and regulations must consider and may include the following 
range of strategies: 

By-right exemptions from minimum parking requirements; 
Parking districts; 
Shared parking; 
Structured parking; 
Bicycle parking; 
Timed parking; 
Differentiation between employee parking and parking for 
customers, visitors and patients; 
Real-time parking information; 
Priced parking; 
Parking enforcement.

(Title 4, Parking Management Sec 3.08.410I) 

Also refer to findings from the Town Center Plan. 
 
Proposed Strategy 11 under Goal 3 of the 
Transportation Policies commits the City to 
implement parking strategies from the Town 
Center Plan, including: evaluating and monitoring 
parking supply and demand in Old Town; evaluate 
the parking needs for townhome developments in 
the Town Center; and evaluating the needs of 
commercial uses in the Langer Drive Commercial 
District (TSP Volume 2, Section G).  
 

 

691



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 20 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

Include, to the extent practicable, a network of major arterial streets at one-
mile spacing and minor arterials or collectors at half-mile spacing, considering:  

existing topography;  
rail lines; freeways; pre-existing development, leases, easements or 
covenants; 
requirements of Metro’s Urban Growth Management Functional Plan Title 3 
(Water Quality and Flood plains) and Title 13 (Nature in Neighborhoods), 
such as streams, rivers, flood plains, wetlands, riparian and upland fish and 
wildlife habitat areas.  
arterial design concepts in chapter 2 of RTP  
 best practices and designs as set forth in regional state or local plans and 
best practices for protecting natural resources and natural areas  

(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110C) 

Yes – Included 
The TSP update reviewed the 
system’s connectivity and 
spacing of arterials and 
collectors. Volume 2, Section C, 
pages 31-32. 
 

Include a conceptual map of new streets for all contiguous areas of vacant and 
re-developable lots and parcels of five or more acres that are zoned to allow 
residential or mixed-use development. The map shall identify street 
connections to adjacent areas  and should demonstrate opportunities to 
extend and connect new streets to existing streets, provide direct public right-
of-way routes and limit closed-end street designs consistent with  Title 1, Sec 
3.08.110E  
(Title 1, Street System Design Sec 3.08.110D) 

Yes – Included
The TSP update includes a 
“functional class” and a “local 
street connectivity” map 
showing conceptual locations for 
future street connections, as 
shown in TSP. Volume 1, Section 
8, page 54 (Figure 17). 

To the extent feasible, restrict driveway and street access in the vicinity of 
interchange ramp terminals, consistent with Oregon Highway Plan Access 
Management Standards, and accommodate local circulation on the local 
system. Public street connections, consistent with regional street design and 
spacing standards, shall be encouraged and shall supersede this access 
restriction. Multimodal street design features including pedestrian crossings 
and on-street parking shall be allowed where appropriate. 
(Title 1,Street System Design Sec 3.08.110G) 

Yes - Not applicable 
 
There are no interchanges 
within the City of Sherwood. 

Include investments, policies, standards and criteria to provide pedestrian and 
bicycle connections to all existing transit stops and major transit stops 
designated in Figure 2.15 of the RTP. 
(Title 1, Transit System Design Sec 3.08.120A) 

Yes – Included  
Gaps in pedestrian and bicycle 
connections to transit stops are 
identified in Volume 2, Section 
C, pages 6 to 11. Solutions are 
displayed in Volume 1, Section 7, 
pages 42 and 43, and listed in 
Volume 2, Section E. 

Include a transit plan consistent with transit functional classifications shown in 
Figure 2.15 of the RTP that shows the locations of major transit stops, transit 
centers, high capacity transit stations, regional bike-transit facilities, inter-city 
bus and rail passenger terminals designated in the RTP, transit-priority 
treatments such as signals, park-and-ride facilities, and bicycle and pedestrian 

Yes – Included 
The TSP update inventoried and 
evaluated the City’s transit 
network, including identifying 
gaps for pedestrian and bicycle 

692



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 21 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

routes, consistent with sections 3.08.130 and 3.08.140, between essential 
destinations and transit stops. 
(Title 1, Transit System Design Sec 3.08.120B(1)) 

connections to transit. Volume 
2, Section B, pages 15 to 16 
present the existing transit 
system. Transit projects in the 
TSP are listed in Volume 2, 
Section E. 

Include a pedestrian plan, for an interconnected network of pedestrian routes 
within and through the city or county. The plan shall include: 

An inventory of existing facilities that identifies gaps and deficiencies in the 
pedestrian system; 
An evaluation of needs for pedestrian access to transit and essential 
destinations for all mobility levels, including direct, comfortable and safe 
pedestrian routes; 
A list of improvements to the pedestrian system that will help the city or 
county achieve the regional Non-SOV modal targets in Table 3.08-1 of the 
RTFP, and other targets established pursuant to section 3.08.230; 
Provisions for sidewalks along arterials, collectors and most local streets, 
except that sidewalks are not required along controlled roadways, such as 
freeways; 
Provision for safe crossings of streets and controlled pedestrian crossings on 
major arterials 

(Title 1, Pedestrian System Design Sec 3.08.130A) 

Yes – Included 
Existing pedestrian facilities and 
gaps are presented in Volume 2, 
Section C, pages 6 to 8. 
Pedestrian improvements are 
displayed in Volume 1, Section 7, 
page 42, and listed in Volume 2, 
Section E. 

Include a bicycle plan for an interconnected network of bicycle routes within 
and through the city or county. The plan shall include: 

An inventory of existing facilities that identifies gaps and deficiencies in the 
bicycle system; 
An evaluation of needs for bicycle access to transit and essential 
destinations, including direct, comfortable and safe bicycle routes and 
secure bicycle parking, considering TriMet Bicycle Parking Guidelines; 
A list of improvements to the bicycle system that will help the city or county 
achieve the regional Non-SOV modal targets in Table 3.08-1 of the RTFP and 
other targets established pursuant to section 3.08.230; 
Provision for bikeways along arterials, collectors and local streets, and 
bicycling parking in centers, at major transit stops shown in Figure 2.15 in 
the RTP, park-and-ride lots and associated with institutional uses; 
Provision for safe crossing of streets and controlled bicycle crossings on 
major arterials 

(Title 1, Bicycle System Design Sec 3.08.140) 

Yes – Included 
Existing bicycle facilities and 
gaps are presented in Volume 2, 
Section C, pages 9 to 10. Biking 
improvements are displayed in 
Volume 1, Section 7, page 43, 
and listed in Volume 2, Section 
E. 

Include a freight plan for an interconnected system of freight networks within 
and through the city or county. The plan shall include: 

An inventory of existing facilities that identifies gaps and deficiencies in the 

Yes – Included 
Existing freight facilities are 
presented in Volume 2, Section 
C, pages 17 to 18. The TSP 

693



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 22 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

freight system; 
An evaluation of freight access to freight intermodal facilities, employment 
and industrial areas and commercial districts; 
A list of improvements to the freight system that will help the city or county 
increase reliability of freight movement, reduce freight delay and achieve 
targets established pursuant to section 3.08.230. 

(Title 1, Freight System Design Sec 3.08.150) 

identifies existing and future 
truck routes, along with their 
classifications, in Volume 1, 
Section 8, pages 56 to 57. 
Capacity improvements needed 
along the freight system are 
discussed in Volume 2, Section 
C, pages 14 to 16. Improvements 
to the freight system are 
displayed in Volume 1, Section 7, 
page 41 and are listed in Volume 
2, Section E. 

Include a transportation system management and operations (TSMO) plan to 
improve the performance of existing transportation infrastructure within or 
through the city or county. A TSMO plan shall include: 

An inventory and evaluation of existing local and regional TSMO 
infrastructure, strategies and programs that identifies gaps and 
opportunities to expand infrastructure, strategies and programs 
A list of projects and strategies, consistent with the Regional TSMO Plan, 
based upon consideration of the following functional areas: 

o Multimodal traffic management investments 
o Traveler Information investments 
o Traffic incident management investments 
o Transportation demand management investments 

(Title 1, Transportation System Management and Operations Sec 3.08.160)

Yes – Included 
TSMO solutions were prioritized 
to address transportation 
system needs (see requirements 
to address (Title 2, Sec 3.08.220 
Transportation Solutions)). In 
addition to these specific 
projects, general TSMO 
strategies are contained in 
Volume 1, Section 8, page 58. 

Incorporate regional and state transportation needs identified in the 2035 RTP 
as well as local transportation needs. The determination of local transportation 
needs based upon: 

System gaps and deficiencies identified in the inventories and analysis of 
transportation system pursuant to Title 1; 
Identification of facilities that exceed the Deficiency Thresholds and 
Operating Standards in Table 3.08-2 or the alternative thresholds and 
standards established pursuant to section 3.08.230; 
Consideration and documentation of the needs of youth, seniors, people 
with disabilities and environmental justice populations within the city or 
county, including minorities and low-income families. 
 

A local determination of transportation needs must be consistent with the 
following elements of the RTP: 

The population and employment forecast and planning period of the RTP, 
except that a city or county may use an alternative forecast for the city or 
county, coordinated with Metro, to account for changes to comprehensive 

Yes – Included 
System needs and gaps are 
identified in Volume 2, Section B 
and Section C.  
 

694



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 23 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

plan or land use regulations adopted after adoption of the RTP; 
System maps and functional classifications for street design, motor vehicles, 
transit, bicycles, pedestrians and freight in Chapter 2 of the RTP; 
Regional non-SOV modal targets in Table 3.08-1 and the Deficiency 
Thresholds and Operating Standards in Table 3.08-2. 
 

When determining its transportation needs, a city or county shall consider the 
regional needs identified in the mobility corridor strategies in Chapter 4 of the 
RTP.
(Title 2,  Transportation Needs Sec 3.08.210) 

Consider the following strategies in the order listed, to meet the transportation 
needs determined pursuant to section 3.08.210 and performance targets and 
standards pursuant to section 3.08.230. The city or county shall explain its 
choice of one or more of the strategies and why other strategies were not 
chosen: 

TSMO, including localized TDM, safety, operational and access management 
improvements; 
Transit, bicycle and pedestrian system improvements; 
Traffic-calming designs and devices; 
Land use strategies in OAR 660-012-0035(2)  
Connectivity improvements to provide parallel arterials, collectors or local 
streets that include pedestrian and bicycle facilities, consistent with the 
connectivity standards in section 3.01.110 and design classifications in Table 
2.6 of the RTP, 
Motor vehicle capacity improvements, consistent with the RTP Arterial and 
Throughway Design and Network Concepts in Table 2.6 and Section 2.5.2 of 
the RTP, only upon a demonstration that other strategies in this subsection 
are not appropriate or cannot adequately address identified transportation 
needs 
 

A city or county shall coordinate its consideration of the above strategies with 
the owner of the transportation facility affected by the strategy. Facility design 
is subject to the approval of the facility owner. 
If analysis under subsection 3.08.210A (Local Needs determination) indicates a 
new regional or state need that has not been identified in the RTP, the city or 
county may propose one of the following actions: 

Propose a project at the time of Metro review of the TSP to be incorporated 
into the RTP during the next RTP update; or 
Propose an amendment to the RTP for needs and projects if the amendment 
is necessary prior to the next RTP update. 

(Title 2, Sec 3.08.220 Transportation Solutions)

Yes – Included 
Transportation system needs 
were addressed with project 
solutions following the hierarchy 
of strategies Volume 2, Section 
D, pages 19 to 20. 

695



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 24 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

Demonstrate that solutions adopted pursuant to section 3.08.220 
(Transportation Solutions) will achieve progress toward the targets and 
standards in Tables 3.08-1, and 3.08-2 and measures in subsection D (local 
performance measures), or toward alternative targets and standards adopted 
by the city or county. The city or county shall include the regional targets and 
standards or its alternatives in its TSP. 
A city or county may adopt alternative targets or standards in place of the 
regional targets and standards upon a demonstration that the alternative 
targets or standards: 

Are no lower than the modal targets in Table 3.08-1 and no lower than the 
ratios in Table 3.08-2; 
Will not result in a need for motor vehicle capacity improvements that go 
beyond the planned arterial and throughway network defined in Figure 2.12 
of the RTP and that are not recommended in, or are inconsistent with, the 
RTP; and 
Will not increase SOV travel to a degree inconsistent with the non-SOV 
modal targets in Table 3.08-1. 
 

If the city or county adopts mobility standards for state highways different 
from those in Table 3.08-2, it shall demonstrate that the standards have been 
approved by the Oregon Transportation Commission. 
Each city and county shall also include performance measures for safety, 
vehicle miles traveled per capita, freight reliability, congestion, and walking, 
bicycling and transit mode shares to evaluate and monitor performance of the 
TSP. 
To demonstrate progress toward achievement of performance targets in 
Tables 3.08-1 and 3.08-2 and to improve performance of state highways within 
its jurisdiction as much as feasible and avoid their further degradation, the city 
or county shall adopt the following: 

Parking minimum and maximum ratios in Centers and Station Communities 
consistent with subsection 3.08.410A; 
Designs for street, transit, bicycle, freight and pedestrian systems consistent 
with Title 1: and 
TSMO projects and strategies consistent with section 3.08.160; and  
Land use actions pursuant to OAR 660-012-0035(2). 

(Title 2, Performance Targets and Standards Sec 3.08.230) 

Yes – Included 
Progress towards the targets 
and standards in the RTFP are 
discussed in Volume 1, Section 
9, pages 61 to 64. 
Mobility targets for facilities in 
Sherwood are discussed in 
Volume 1, Section 8, pages 55 to 
56. 

Specify the general locations and facility parameters, such as minimum and 
maximum ROW dimensions and the number and width of traffic lanes, of 
planned regional transportation facilities and improvements identified on 
general location depicted in the appropriate RTP map. Except as otherwise 
provided in the TSP, the general location is as follows: 

For new facilities, a corridor within 200 feet of the location depicted on the 

Yes – Included 
Planned regional facilities are 
shown in Volume 1, Section 7, 
page 41 (Figure 12). A 
description of the planned 
facilities can be found in Volume 

696



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 25 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

appropriate RTP map; 
For interchanges, the general location of the crossing roadways, without 
specifying the general location of connecting ramps; 
For existing facilities planned for improvements, a corridor within 50 feet of 
the existing right-of-way and  
For realignments of existing facilities, a corridor within 200 feet of the 
segment to be realigned as measured from the existing right-of-way 
depicted on the appropriate RTP map. 
 

A City or county may refine or revise the general location of a planned regional 
facility as it prepares or revises impacts of the facility or to comply with 
comprehensive plan or statewide planning goals. If, in developing or amending 
its TSP, a city or county determines the general location of a planned regional 
facility or improvement is inconsistent with its comprehensive plan or a 
statewide goal requirement, it shall: 

Propose a revision to the general location of the planned facility or 
improvement to achieve consistency and, if the revised location lies outside 
the general location depicted in the appropriate RTP map, seek an 
amendment to the RTP; or
Propose a revision to its comprehensive plan to authorize the planned 
facility or improvement at the revised location. 

(Title 3, Defining Projects in Transportation System Plan Sec 3.08.310) 

2, Section E. 

(Could be adopted in TSP or other adopted policy document)  
Adopt parking policies, management plans and regulations for Centers and 
Station Communities. Plans may be adopted in TSPs or other adopted policy 
documents and may focus on sub-areas of Centers. Plans shall include an 
inventory of parking supply and usage, an evaluation of bicycle parking needs 
with consideration of TriMet Bicycle Parking Guidelines. Policies shall be 
adopted in the TSP.  Policies, plans and regulations must consider and may 
include the following range of strategies: 

By-right exemptions from minimum parking requirements; 
Parking districts; 
Shared parking; 
Structured parking; 
Bicycle parking; 
Timed parking; 
Differentiation between employee parking and parking for customers, 
visitors and patients; 
Real-time parking information; 
Priced parking; 
Parking enforcement. 

Yes – Other Policy Document 
Existing parking policy is 
included in Development Code 
Chapter 16.94. In addition, the 
TSP update identifies that a 
future study will prepare a 
parking management plan for 
the Town Center, as discussed in 
Volume 1, Section 9, page 66.  

697



Sherwood Transportation System Plan
TPR and RTFP Compliance Findings 

 

5/2/14 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) and Metro Regional Transportation Functional Plan 

(RTFP) Compliance | Page 26 

Table 4:  RTFP Compliance of Sherwood TSP Update 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan Requirement Findings of TSP Compliance 

(Title 4, Parking Management Sec 3.08.410I) 

If a city or county proposes a transportation project that is not included in the 
RTP and will result in a significant increase in SOV capacity or exceeds the 
planned function or capacity of a facility designated in the RTP, it shall 
demonstrate consistency with the following in its project analysis: 

The strategies set forth in subsection 3.08.220A(1-5) (TSMO, 
Transit/bike/ped system improvements, traffic calming, land use strategies, 
connectivity improvements) 
Complete street designs consistent with regional street design policies 
Green street designs consistent with federal regulations for stream 
protection. 
 

If the city or county decides not to build a project identified in the RTP, it shall 
identify alternative projects or strategies to address the identified 
transportation need and inform Metro so that Metro can amend the RTP. 
This section does not apply to city or county transportation projects that are 
financed locally and would be undertaken on local facilities. 
(Title 5, Amendments of City and County Comprehensive and Transportation 
System Plans Sec 3.08.510C)

Yes – Included 
The TSP includes strategies and 
projects that focus on improving 
multimodal travel opportunities 
and improved efficiency of the 
existing system.  The projects 
included in the TSP would not 
result in a significant 
disproportionate increase in SOV 
capacity. Projects identified in 
the plan are shown in Volume 1, 
Figures 12, 13, and 14. Capacity 
projects on regional facilities are 
consistent with prior plans. 
  

698



699



(This page left intentionally blank)

700



TITLE VI REQUIREMENTS
The City’s plan for meeting Title VI requirements was to provide an on going outreach notification program to
identified minority groups within the City populace. To accomplish this task, the City identified the largest
minority group within the City (Hispanic) and provided dual language notifications of City processes and
meetings.

The City’s project webpage included a translated version of current public notices of events and project
information. In addition the City placed notification ads within the local Spanish language newspaper. Both of
these actions are supported by the following section, which established the notifications and translation.

701



(This page left intentionally blank)

702



703



704



705



706



707



708



709



710



711



712



713



714



715



(This page left intentionally blank)

716



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Langer Farms Pkwy -- SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 11224713
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Langer Farms Pkwy
(Northbound)

SW Langer Farms Pkwy
(Southbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 1 0 10 0 0 1 2 0 0 53 5 0 9 62 1 0 144
4:05 PM 2 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 10 0 13 71 0 0 158
4:10 PM 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 66 4 0 6 61 0 0 144
4:15 PM 2 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 66 5 0 10 63 1 0 156
4:20 PM 2 0 5 0 0 0 1 0 2 39 5 0 7 69 0 0 130
4:25 PM 1 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 53 1 0 6 77 1 0 144
4:30 PM 0 0 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 64 7 0 13 64 0 0 156
4:35 PM 0 0 4 1 0 1 0 0 2 69 5 0 8 83 0 0 173
4:40 PM 2 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 7 0 12 72 0 0 168
4:45 PM 2 0 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 61 2 0 5 84 0 0 158
4:50 PM 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 76 5 0 10 67 0 0 162
4:55 PM 3 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 74 13 0 9 74 0 0 177 1870
5:00 PM 2 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 5 0 10 69 0 0 160 1886
5:05 PM 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 80 3 0 10 65 0 0 167 1895
5:10 PM 4 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 1 60 5 0 26 77 2 0 183 1934
5:15 PM 2 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 71 2 0 17 68 0 0 164 1942
5:20 PM 2 0 6 0 0 0 3 0 0 53 8 0 5 68 0 0 145 1957
5:25 PM 0 0 4 0 2 0 1 0 1 60 5 0 8 72 0 0 153 1966
5:30 PM 1 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 51 6 0 9 65 0 0 138 1948
5:35 PM 1 0 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 50 5 0 17 65 0 0 144 1919
5:40 PM 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 3 0 5 60 0 0 142 1893
5:45 PM 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 63 11 0 10 62 0 0 149 1884
5:50 PM 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 63 7 0 18 62 0 0 156 1878
5:55 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 3 0 14 71 0 0 151 1852

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 24 0 80 0 0 0 4 0 4 844 40 0 212 840 8 0 2056
Heavy Trucks 0 0 8 0 0 0 4 28 0 4 56 4 104
Pedestrians 4 4 0 0 8

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:30 PM -- 5:30 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:05 PM -- 5:20 PM

19 0 62

236

6

803

67 133

863

2

81

11

876

998

8

204

867

887

0.96

5.3 0.0 8.1

0.033.30.0

50.0

5.4

1.5 4.5

4.8

50.0

7.4

9.1

5.4

4.8

50.0

3.9

5.5

4.7

1

3

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 2

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

717



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Gerda Ln -- SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 11224712
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Gerda Ln
(Northbound)

SW Gerda Ln
(Southbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 7 0 8 0 6 52 1 0 0 55 5 0 134
4:05 PM 1 0 0 0 5 0 11 0 5 61 0 0 0 76 4 0 163
4:10 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 10 0 3 52 0 0 1 58 7 0 134
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 5 0 16 0 8 73 0 0 0 58 0 0 160
4:20 PM 1 1 1 0 4 1 13 0 3 56 0 0 0 77 2 0 159
4:25 PM 0 0 0 0 4 0 12 0 5 60 0 0 0 76 6 0 163
4:30 PM 1 0 1 0 8 0 17 0 8 62 1 0 0 70 2 0 170
4:35 PM 1 0 0 0 12 0 15 0 2 56 1 0 0 59 4 0 150
4:40 PM 0 0 1 0 3 0 16 0 3 66 0 0 0 75 6 0 170
4:45 PM 3 0 0 0 8 0 16 0 8 67 0 0 0 65 2 0 169
4:50 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 6 0 4 72 0 0 0 73 3 0 160
4:55 PM 0 0 2 0 2 0 9 0 3 60 0 0 0 67 1 0 144 1876
5:00 PM 2 0 0 0 7 0 10 0 2 84 0 0 1 60 3 0 169 1911
5:05 PM 0 0 1 0 6 0 16 0 2 71 0 0 1 70 1 0 168 1916
5:10 PM 1 0 1 0 3 0 15 0 3 63 0 0 0 79 0 0 165 1947
5:15 PM 0 1 0 0 3 0 9 0 6 63 1 0 0 60 2 0 145 1932
5:20 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 7 0 2 56 0 0 0 68 1 0 135 1908
5:25 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 8 0 3 67 1 0 0 62 3 0 145 1890
5:30 PM 0 0 1 0 10 0 5 0 6 56 1 0 0 73 1 0 153 1873
5:35 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 8 0 2 72 0 0 0 58 1 0 143 1866
5:40 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 0 0 60 0 0 1 68 2 0 137 1833
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 73 0 0 0 71 1 0 153 1817
5:50 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 7 0 0 72 0 0 0 72 0 0 154 1811
5:55 PM 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 63 0 0 0 66 0 0 136 1803

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 12 0 8 0 64 0 164 0 28 872 0 0 8 836 16 0 2008
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 4 0 12 8 24 0 0 36 8 92
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:15 PM -- 5:15 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:00 PM -- 5:15 PM

9 1 7

641161

51

790

2 2

829

30

17

226

843

861

82

5

861

999

0.97

11.1 0.0 28.6

6.30.05.0

13.7

5.7

50.0 0.0

3.3

26.7

17.6

5.3

6.3

4.1

18.3

20.0

5.9

3.6

0

2

0 4

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

1

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

718



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Oregon St -- SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 11224711
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Wed, Sep 11 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Oregon St
(Northbound)

SW Oregon St
(Southbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 8 0 20 0 2 0 0 0 1 37 14 0 34 52 0 0 168
4:05 PM 13 0 27 0 0 1 0 0 1 54 17 0 24 68 0 0 205
4:10 PM 14 0 25 0 0 1 1 0 0 39 13 0 26 66 1 0 186
4:15 PM 16 0 10 0 1 0 0 0 0 45 10 0 31 57 1 0 171
4:20 PM 9 1 10 0 0 1 0 0 0 50 11 0 28 63 0 0 173
4:25 PM 16 0 11 0 1 0 0 0 2 52 13 0 20 54 0 0 169
4:30 PM 9 0 8 0 0 1 0 0 1 54 19 0 32 69 0 0 193
4:35 PM 10 0 16 0 1 0 0 0 1 48 22 0 26 58 2 0 184
4:40 PM 8 0 27 0 1 0 0 0 1 56 12 0 38 56 0 0 199
4:45 PM 20 0 13 0 4 0 0 0 0 50 15 0 33 42 3 0 180
4:50 PM 14 0 12 0 0 0 1 0 0 44 10 0 30 56 0 0 167
4:55 PM 9 0 18 0 1 1 1 0 0 46 21 0 41 63 2 0 203 2198
5:00 PM 9 0 13 0 3 1 3 0 0 49 18 0 40 55 0 0 191 2221
5:05 PM 20 0 26 0 3 2 2 0 0 43 13 0 38 44 0 0 191 2207
5:10 PM 11 0 15 0 2 3 0 0 0 65 13 0 38 51 0 0 198 2219
5:15 PM 18 0 17 0 2 1 1 0 1 68 14 0 36 41 1 0 200 2248
5:20 PM 10 0 19 0 3 0 1 0 0 55 18 0 42 68 1 0 217 2292
5:25 PM 15 0 14 0 0 0 1 0 1 54 16 0 40 62 0 0 203 2326
5:30 PM 14 0 9 0 0 1 0 0 0 52 16 0 35 68 1 0 196 2329
5:35 PM 9 0 20 0 0 0 1 0 0 64 17 0 42 57 0 1 211 2356
5:40 PM 9 0 16 0 1 0 1 0 0 59 18 0 34 56 1 0 195 2352
5:45 PM 11 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 22 0 38 49 0 0 190 2362
5:50 PM 12 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 48 12 0 34 61 0 0 181 2376
5:55 PM 12 0 7 0 0 0 1 0 0 41 12 0 33 65 0 0 171 2344

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 172 0 200 0 20 4 12 0 8 708 192 0 472 684 8 0 2480
Heavy Trucks 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 16 0 32 0 80
Pedestrians 0 4 4 0 8

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:55 PM -- 5:55 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:15 PM -- 5:30 PM

147 0 194

15911

2

660

198 459

675

6

341

35

860

1140

8

665

870

833

0.96

8.2 0.0 2.1

0.00.00.0

0.0

4.1

12.1 1.7

4.1

16.7

4.7

0.0

5.9

3.2

12.5

4.8

3.6

4.8

0

1

1 0

0 0 0

000

0

1

0 3

1

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

719



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Langer Farms Pkwy -- SW Oregon St QC JOB #: 11224709
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Langer Farms Pkwy
(Northbound)

SW Langer Farms Pkwy
(Southbound)

SW Oregon St
(Eastbound)

SW Oregon St
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 11 0 5 0 2 10 0 0 0 23 17 0 68
4:05 PM 0 0 0 0 19 0 3 0 0 4 0 0 0 12 11 0 49
4:10 PM 0 0 0 0 4 0 5 0 4 8 0 0 0 16 11 0 48
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 8 0 3 0 2 5 0 0 0 10 7 0 35
4:20 PM 0 0 0 0 10 0 4 0 4 7 0 0 0 16 9 0 50
4:25 PM 0 0 0 0 12 0 3 0 4 0 0 0 0 17 11 0 47
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 17 0 6 0 4 6 0 0 0 12 9 0 54
4:35 PM 0 0 0 0 21 0 3 0 3 11 0 0 0 12 9 0 59
4:40 PM 0 0 0 0 13 0 5 0 2 11 0 0 0 14 6 0 51
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 19 0 3 0 3 8 0 0 0 10 14 0 57
4:50 PM 0 0 0 0 9 0 3 0 6 11 0 0 0 18 15 0 62
4:55 PM 0 0 0 0 14 0 2 0 6 10 0 0 0 17 7 0 56 636
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 20 0 3 0 2 11 0 0 0 13 7 0 56 624
5:05 PM 0 0 0 0 17 0 5 0 3 7 0 0 0 15 11 0 58 633
5:10 PM 0 0 0 0 15 0 7 0 2 8 0 0 0 31 18 0 81 666
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 14 0 9 0 1 5 0 0 0 13 7 0 49 680
5:20 PM 0 0 0 0 13 0 4 0 4 6 0 0 0 13 12 0 52 682
5:25 PM 0 0 0 0 22 0 3 0 1 7 0 0 0 16 11 0 60 695
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 13 0 4 0 2 13 0 0 0 15 11 0 58 699
5:35 PM 0 0 0 0 17 0 10 0 2 5 0 0 0 9 12 0 55 695
5:40 PM 0 0 0 0 12 0 6 0 1 8 0 0 0 19 15 0 61 705
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 19 0 6 0 4 7 0 0 0 25 12 0 73 721
5:50 PM 0 0 0 0 19 0 7 0 6 12 0 0 0 12 6 0 62 721
5:55 PM 0 0 0 0 19 0 3 0 4 11 0 0 0 18 10 0 65 730

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 0 0 0 228 0 64 0 56 120 0 0 0 220 112 0 800
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 8
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:45 PM -- 6:00 PM

0 0 0

200067

32

100

0 0

199

132

0

267

132

331

164

0

300

266

0.91

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.50.03.0

0.0

3.0

0.0 0.0

3.0

0.8

0.0

1.1

2.3

2.1

0.6

0.0

1.3

3.0

0

1

0 0

0 0 0

002

1

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

720



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW 3rd St -- SW Washington St QC JOB #: 11224708
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW 3rd St
(Northbound)

SW 3rd St
(Southbound)

SW Washington St
(Eastbound)

SW Washington St
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 1 2 0 0 1 4 14 0 5 4 1 0 0 9 0 0 41
4:05 PM 2 3 0 0 2 6 8 0 2 4 0 0 0 4 1 0 32
4:10 PM 1 1 1 0 0 4 12 0 3 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 30
4:15 PM 1 3 0 0 3 6 8 0 5 2 3 0 0 5 1 0 37
4:20 PM 4 0 0 0 2 7 8 0 6 4 0 0 0 3 1 0 35
4:25 PM 1 3 0 0 0 8 7 0 9 6 1 0 0 11 1 0 47
4:30 PM 2 4 0 0 1 3 11 0 11 10 0 0 0 6 0 0 48
4:35 PM 0 3 0 0 4 5 12 0 7 6 0 0 1 5 2 0 45
4:40 PM 0 1 0 0 4 7 12 0 11 5 4 0 0 5 0 0 49
4:45 PM 1 2 0 0 2 5 12 0 6 5 3 0 0 1 0 0 37
4:50 PM 4 1 0 0 1 8 18 0 8 5 1 0 0 4 2 0 52
4:55 PM 0 5 0 0 1 8 14 0 15 5 4 0 0 7 1 0 60 513
5:00 PM 7 0 0 0 2 4 15 0 10 4 3 0 0 9 1 0 55 527
5:05 PM 3 1 0 0 4 7 12 0 13 7 2 0 0 6 1 0 56 551
5:10 PM 1 2 0 0 2 7 19 0 11 7 4 0 0 13 1 0 67 588
5:15 PM 1 4 1 0 2 5 15 0 7 4 0 0 0 9 2 0 50 601
5:20 PM 1 3 0 0 1 5 19 0 8 2 1 0 0 7 0 0 47 613
5:25 PM 1 2 0 0 2 6 22 0 8 4 1 0 1 5 1 0 53 619
5:30 PM 2 3 0 0 1 5 24 0 13 9 2 0 0 3 2 0 64 635
5:35 PM 0 1 0 0 1 7 13 0 7 3 1 0 0 13 2 0 48 638
5:40 PM 1 0 0 0 1 7 21 0 10 5 6 0 0 9 0 0 60 649
5:45 PM 4 1 0 0 2 6 17 0 18 11 1 0 0 5 1 0 66 678
5:50 PM 5 3 0 0 3 11 15 0 23 14 3 0 0 3 3 0 83 709
5:55 PM 5 6 0 0 2 5 11 0 7 11 6 0 0 9 2 0 64 713

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 56 40 0 0 28 88 172 0 192 144 40 0 0 68 24 0 852
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 4
Pedestrians 8 0 0 0 8

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:45 PM -- 6:00 PM

31 26 1

2375203

135

81

30 1

91

16

58

301

246

108

177

106

105

325

0.84

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.01.0

1.5

0.0

3.3 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.2

0.0

1.1

0.9

0.0

0.6

8

5

7 0

0 0 0

100

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

721



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Main St -- SW Railroad St QC JOB #: 11224707
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Main St
(Northbound)

SW Main St
(Southbound)

SW Railroad St
(Eastbound)

SW Railroad St
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 11 6 0 0 14 0 0 1 0 1 0 3 1 1 0 38
4:05 PM 1 7 2 0 1 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 1 0 28
4:10 PM 1 4 8 0 1 6 0 0 1 1 1 0 5 1 1 0 30
4:15 PM 2 5 4 0 1 10 1 0 1 1 2 0 7 0 0 0 34
4:20 PM 0 10 5 0 0 14 2 0 0 2 1 0 4 3 0 0 41
4:25 PM 3 14 4 0 1 11 1 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 1 0 39
4:30 PM 1 12 1 0 0 7 0 0 2 1 1 0 11 0 1 0 37
4:35 PM 1 4 5 0 1 12 1 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 0 30
4:40 PM 0 5 5 0 1 18 0 0 0 3 0 0 6 0 2 0 40
4:45 PM 0 7 3 0 0 21 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 35
4:50 PM 0 18 4 0 2 10 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 38
4:55 PM 1 6 7 0 2 20 1 0 0 1 1 0 3 1 0 0 43 433
5:00 PM 0 12 4 0 0 13 0 0 1 2 1 0 9 0 2 0 44 439
5:05 PM 0 8 4 0 0 18 2 0 0 0 1 0 8 0 0 0 41 452
5:10 PM 0 12 8 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 44 466
5:15 PM 0 12 5 0 0 13 0 0 0 2 0 0 5 0 0 0 37 469
5:20 PM 3 11 3 0 2 8 1 0 0 2 1 0 7 0 1 0 39 467
5:25 PM 2 12 6 0 2 11 2 0 1 0 0 0 5 1 1 0 43 471
5:30 PM 0 9 11 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 1 0 8 1 0 0 48 482
5:35 PM 0 8 7 0 0 22 0 0 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 42 494
5:40 PM 1 5 7 0 2 22 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 2 0 44 498
5:45 PM 0 13 3 0 2 13 2 0 1 0 3 0 8 2 0 0 47 510
5:50 PM 0 15 10 0 1 25 0 0 0 0 1 0 7 0 4 0 63 535
5:55 PM 0 12 6 0 0 20 0 0 1 1 2 0 10 3 2 0 57 549

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 160 76 0 12 232 8 0 8 4 24 0 100 20 24 0 668
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 8 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
Pedestrians 4 0 4 12 20

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:45 PM -- 6:00 PM

6 129 74

92017

4

8

12 75

10

14

209

217

24

99

147

288

91

23

0.82

0.0 0.0 1.4

66.72.00.0

0.0

12.5

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

4.6

4.2

0.0

0.0

1.4

8.8

0.0

2

10

14 8

0 0 0

001

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

722



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Timbrel Ln -- SW Sunset Blvd QC JOB #: 11224705
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Timbrel Ln
(Northbound)

SW Timbrel Ln
(Southbound)

SW Sunset Blvd
(Eastbound)

SW Sunset Blvd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 6 0 1 16 0 0 42
4:05 PM 8 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 3 0 1 14 0 0 54
4:10 PM 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 3 0 5 18 0 0 46
4:15 PM 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 6 0 2 19 0 0 45
4:20 PM 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 8 0 1 20 0 0 51
4:25 PM 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 2 0 1 19 0 0 41
4:30 PM 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 2 0 6 18 0 0 49
4:35 PM 8 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 8 0 3 17 0 0 55
4:40 PM 4 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 7 0 2 12 0 0 54
4:45 PM 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 10 0 5 22 0 0 69
4:50 PM 12 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 7 0 6 19 0 0 67
4:55 PM 7 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 8 0 7 19 0 0 61 634
5:00 PM 6 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 5 0 6 23 0 0 72 664
5:05 PM 5 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 11 0 5 18 0 0 61 671
5:10 PM 7 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 6 0 5 24 0 0 71 696
5:15 PM 6 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 11 0 4 26 0 0 76 727
5:20 PM 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 6 0 4 22 0 0 59 735
5:25 PM 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 11 0 4 22 0 0 73 767
5:30 PM 7 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 6 0 7 18 0 0 69 787
5:35 PM 9 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 9 0 2 30 0 0 74 806
5:40 PM 8 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 33 11 0 7 18 0 0 78 830
5:45 PM 12 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 6 0 8 24 0 0 77 838
5:50 PM 9 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 13 0 6 28 0 0 83 854
5:55 PM 10 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 8 0 7 16 0 0 72 865

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 116 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 292 120 0 84 280 0 0 952
Heavy Trucks 4 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:40 PM -- 5:55 PM

87 0 60

000

0

281

103 65

269

0

147

0

384

334

0

168

341

356

0.91

2.3 0.0 1.7

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

1.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

0.0

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.6

0.3

0.6

0

5

0 9

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

1

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

723



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Main St -- SW Sunset Blvd QC JOB #: 11224704
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Main St
(Northbound)

SW Main St
(Southbound)

SW Sunset Blvd
(Eastbound)

SW Sunset Blvd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 6 1 0 0 8 5 0 10 11 3 0 4 22 1 0 71
4:05 PM 1 4 4 0 3 6 3 0 3 6 1 0 3 14 1 0 49
4:10 PM 2 5 1 0 1 5 8 0 6 10 2 0 4 15 0 0 59
4:15 PM 1 2 3 0 1 8 6 0 4 11 1 0 5 22 5 0 69
4:20 PM 6 4 2 0 0 9 6 0 7 6 2 0 4 16 1 0 63
4:25 PM 2 3 2 0 1 4 10 0 7 15 0 0 4 25 4 0 77
4:30 PM 4 6 1 0 3 9 10 0 8 14 2 0 2 23 2 0 84
4:35 PM 1 3 2 0 1 8 9 0 8 11 2 0 10 17 3 0 75
4:40 PM 4 5 3 0 5 6 7 0 4 16 4 0 4 22 0 0 80
4:45 PM 4 8 1 0 4 10 8 0 7 22 1 0 4 27 1 0 97
4:50 PM 2 8 2 0 2 8 7 0 8 17 3 0 6 28 2 0 93
4:55 PM 2 5 2 0 2 6 10 0 6 6 3 0 1 28 3 0 74 891
5:00 PM 1 2 3 0 1 14 14 0 7 18 1 0 6 22 6 0 95 915
5:05 PM 2 9 3 0 0 15 10 0 5 14 4 0 4 32 1 0 99 965
5:10 PM 4 4 5 0 4 7 10 0 10 13 2 0 3 26 4 0 92 998
5:15 PM 2 6 1 0 5 10 7 0 6 12 6 0 8 19 3 0 85 1014
5:20 PM 3 4 5 0 2 5 10 0 10 17 0 0 4 25 3 0 88 1039
5:25 PM 2 9 0 0 0 6 9 0 6 16 2 0 4 26 2 0 82 1044
5:30 PM 3 7 2 0 2 7 9 0 9 21 2 0 10 20 4 0 96 1056
5:35 PM 0 5 2 0 3 10 16 0 4 13 6 0 7 23 8 0 97 1078
5:40 PM 0 5 0 0 3 5 15 0 7 16 2 0 2 23 2 0 80 1078
5:45 PM 4 9 4 0 1 3 11 0 7 21 2 0 5 26 1 0 94 1075
5:50 PM 5 6 3 0 3 9 11 0 17 13 8 0 3 20 4 0 102 1084
5:55 PM 0 5 0 0 3 16 11 0 14 17 4 0 6 23 1 0 100 1110

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 36 80 28 0 28 112 132 0 152 204 56 0 56 276 24 0 1184
Heavy Trucks 0 0 8 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:45 PM -- 6:00 PM

26 71 28

27107133

102

191

39 62

285

39

125

267

332

386

212

208

246

444

0.94

7.7 0.0 14.3

0.02.80.0

0.0

2.1

2.6 0.0

1.4

2.6

4.8

1.1

1.5

1.3

0.5

1.9

3.3

1.4

4

2

5 8

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

724



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Murdock Rd/SW Baker Rd -- SW Sunset Blvd/ SW McKinley Dr QC JOB #: 11224703
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Murdock Rd/SW Baker Rd
(Northbound)

SW Murdock Rd/SW Baker Rd
(Southbound)

SW Sunset Blvd/ SW McKinley Dr
(Eastbound)

SW Sunset Blvd/ SW McKinley Dr
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 10 3 0 0 1 3 10 0 6 1 7 0 0 3 1 0 45
4:05 PM 11 3 0 0 0 8 8 0 6 0 5 0 0 1 0 0 42
4:10 PM 14 5 1 0 0 6 23 0 6 2 3 0 1 1 2 0 64
4:15 PM 11 2 0 0 0 1 20 0 8 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 47
4:20 PM 14 6 0 0 1 4 22 0 2 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 54
4:25 PM 18 6 0 0 1 7 26 0 8 2 5 0 1 0 1 0 75
4:30 PM 5 6 0 0 1 5 21 0 7 0 4 0 0 1 1 0 51
4:35 PM 13 7 0 0 1 7 16 0 5 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 54
4:40 PM 13 8 1 0 1 9 19 0 8 0 9 0 1 0 1 0 70
4:45 PM 11 7 1 0 2 6 30 0 9 1 7 0 0 1 1 0 76
4:50 PM 19 6 0 0 1 6 17 0 8 0 11 0 1 2 1 0 72
4:55 PM 16 3 0 0 2 8 18 0 3 1 4 0 0 1 0 0 56 706
5:00 PM 20 4 0 0 0 8 22 0 13 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 74 735
5:05 PM 21 6 0 0 0 5 20 0 10 1 5 0 0 1 0 0 69 762
5:10 PM 18 4 1 0 2 4 17 0 8 2 7 0 0 1 0 0 64 762
5:15 PM 15 2 1 0 1 5 13 0 9 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 52 767
5:20 PM 17 6 0 0 0 5 14 0 9 1 7 0 0 0 0 0 59 772
5:25 PM 16 10 0 0 2 5 21 0 9 0 10 0 0 1 2 0 76 773
5:30 PM 11 5 1 0 1 7 21 0 10 1 10 0 0 1 0 0 68 790
5:35 PM 13 8 1 0 1 9 21 0 12 1 10 0 0 0 0 0 76 812
5:40 PM 18 3 1 0 3 5 16 0 8 1 6 0 0 2 0 0 63 805
5:45 PM 10 8 0 0 1 5 17 0 5 3 10 0 0 0 1 0 60 789
5:50 PM 13 7 0 0 1 3 16 0 8 1 7 0 1 0 2 0 59 776
5:55 PM 11 4 0 0 5 13 19 0 8 1 13 0 0 0 2 0 76 796

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 160 92 8 0 16 84 252 0 124 8 120 0 0 8 8 0 880
Heavy Trucks 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 4 20
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:40 PM -- 5:40 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:25 PM -- 5:40 PM

190 69 6

1377233

108

9

92 2

8

5

265

323

209

15

182

171

28

431

0.92

1.6 5.8 0.0

7.73.90.4

0.9

0.0

3.3 0.0

12.5

20.0

2.6

1.5

1.9

13.3

3.3

3.5

3.6

1.2

0

0

2 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

725



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Ladd Hill Rd -- SW Brookman Rd QC JOB #: 11224702
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Ladd Hill Rd
(Northbound)

SW Ladd Hill Rd
(Southbound)

SW Brookman Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Brookman Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 2 0 0 0 5 5 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 16
4:05 PM 0 3 0 0 0 2 3 0 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 12
4:10 PM 0 1 0 0 0 5 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
4:15 PM 1 5 0 0 0 6 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16
4:20 PM 2 5 0 0 0 3 3 0 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 18
4:25 PM 1 1 0 0 0 3 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
4:30 PM 0 5 0 0 0 8 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15
4:35 PM 2 3 0 0 0 3 1 0 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 13
4:40 PM 0 8 0 0 0 5 4 0 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 21
4:45 PM 0 6 0 0 0 3 5 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20
4:50 PM 2 6 0 0 0 4 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
4:55 PM 1 6 0 0 0 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 186
5:00 PM 2 3 0 0 0 12 4 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 23 193
5:05 PM 2 4 0 0 0 6 7 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 206
5:10 PM 0 7 0 0 0 4 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 208
5:15 PM 1 2 0 0 0 9 9 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 215
5:20 PM 2 3 0 0 0 4 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 211
5:25 PM 2 6 0 0 0 4 4 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 219
5:30 PM 2 7 0 0 0 6 7 0 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 27 231
5:35 PM 0 3 0 0 0 13 1 0 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 22 240
5:40 PM 2 2 0 0 0 5 2 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 14 233
5:45 PM 0 5 0 0 0 4 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 228
5:50 PM 1 3 0 0 0 5 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 222
5:55 PM 0 4 0 0 0 9 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 227

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 16 64 0 0 0 92 48 0 32 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 268
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 8
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:40 PM -- 5:40 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:25 PM -- 5:40 PM

14 61 0

07353

33

0

6 0

0

0

75

126

39

0

94

79

0

67

0.90

0.0 1.6 0.0

0.01.41.9

6.1

0.0

16.7 0.0

0.0

0.0

1.3

1.6

7.7

0.0

3.2

2.5

0.0

1.5

0

0

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

726



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/17/2013 1:32 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: 99W -- SW Brookman Rd QC JOB #: 11224701
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Thu, Sep 05 2013

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

99W
(Northbound)

99W
(Southbound)

SW Brookman Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Brookman Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 90 1 2 0 116 2 1 0 1 1 0 3 1 0 0 218
4:05 PM 1 81 0 1 2 180 0 0 2 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 270
4:10 PM 0 121 4 0 2 158 2 0 2 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 295
4:15 PM 1 101 6 0 0 147 2 1 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 263
4:20 PM 0 110 4 0 1 186 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 305
4:25 PM 0 100 2 0 1 138 3 0 2 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 251
4:30 PM 0 106 5 3 3 146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 264
4:35 PM 0 117 5 1 3 140 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 270
4:40 PM 0 125 5 1 2 180 2 1 5 1 1 0 2 1 2 0 328
4:45 PM 0 107 6 1 3 162 1 0 0 1 0 0 6 0 2 0 289
4:50 PM 0 120 2 1 1 172 2 0 2 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 304
4:55 PM 0 134 1 0 1 171 2 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 2 0 316 3373
5:00 PM 0 96 3 0 3 186 3 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 2 0 299 3454
5:05 PM 2 104 2 1 0 176 4 0 1 1 0 0 7 0 3 0 301 3485
5:10 PM 0 118 2 0 1 137 0 0 4 2 3 0 5 0 3 0 275 3465
5:15 PM 0 111 3 0 3 178 2 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 2 0 302 3504
5:20 PM 0 104 3 1 4 129 4 0 2 0 0 0 3 1 2 0 253 3452
5:25 PM 1 96 6 0 2 149 1 0 2 0 0 0 4 0 2 0 263 3464
5:30 PM 0 127 6 1 3 129 0 0 1 0 1 0 4 2 2 0 276 3476
5:35 PM 0 103 2 2 4 150 3 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 270 3476
5:40 PM 0 120 3 0 3 158 1 1 2 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 292 3440
5:45 PM 1 117 0 0 5 135 2 0 2 2 0 0 2 1 1 0 268 3419
5:50 PM 0 109 1 0 4 141 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 0 1 0 261 3376
5:55 PM 0 84 3 0 4 143 2 0 6 1 0 0 4 0 2 0 249 3309

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 1408 52 12 24 2056 20 4 28 8 4 0 44 4 20 0 3684
Heavy Trucks 0 72 0 0 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 120
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:20 PM -- 5:20 PM
Peak 15-Min: 4:40 PM -- 4:55 PM

10 1348 40

23197221

15

5

5 39

2

24

1398

2016

25

65

1388

2024

67

25

0.95

0.0 5.3 0.0

8.73.54.8

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

5.2

3.6

0.0

0.0

5.2

3.5

3.0

4.0

0

0

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

727



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Copper Terr -- SW Edy Rd QC JOB #: 10871808
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Wed, Dec 19 2012

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Copper Terr
(Northbound)

SW Copper Terr
(Southbound)

SW Edy Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Edy Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 12 0 0 26
4:05 PM 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 2 6 0 0 21
4:10 PM 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 2 0 0 9
4:15 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 1 8 0 0 15
4:20 PM 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 1 0 4 11 0 0 27
4:25 PM 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 3 18 0 0 39
4:30 PM 1 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 1 16 0 0 33
4:35 PM 1 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 1 16 0 0 33
4:40 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 12 0 0 18
4:45 PM 1 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 2 6 0 0 24
4:50 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 2 9 0 0 27
4:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 4 8 0 0 27 299
5:00 PM 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 2 17 0 0 34 307
5:05 PM 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 1 0 3 8 0 0 23 309
5:10 PM 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 4 14 0 0 26 326
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 1 0 1 9 0 0 20 331
5:20 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 2 16 0 0 34 338
5:25 PM 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 1 20 0 0 33 332
5:30 PM 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 2 22 0 0 45 344
5:35 PM 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 3 0 1 7 0 0 27 338
5:40 PM 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 12 0 0 20 340
5:45 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 2 11 0 0 22 338
5:50 PM 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 1 10 0 0 26 337
5:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 1 0 2 12 0 0 27 337

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 168 0 0 20 232 0 0 448
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:35 PM -- 5:35 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:20 PM -- 5:35 PM

3 0 26

000

0

131

3 24

157

0

29

0

134

181

0

27

157

160

0.77

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

1.5

0.0 0.0

1.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

1.3

1.9

0

0

0 1

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

728



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Copper Terr -- SW Handley St QC JOB #: 10871802
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Wed, Dec 19 2012

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Copper Terr
(Northbound)

SW Copper Terr
(Southbound)

SW Handley St
(Eastbound)

SW Handley St
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4
4:05 PM 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 6
4:10 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 5
4:15 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
4:20 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
4:25 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
4:30 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2
4:35 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 2 0 7
4:40 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2 3 0 6
4:45 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 3 0 0 7
4:50 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 10
4:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 60
5:00 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 61
5:05 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 2 1 0 8 63
5:10 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 63
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 65
5:20 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 0 0 3 3 0 13 76
5:25 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 0 0 0 1 3 0 11 82
5:30 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 12 92
5:35 PM 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 3 0 13 98
5:40 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 3 0 0 11 103
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 1 1 0 8 104
5:50 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 3 0 0 0 2 0 0 8 102
5:55 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 2 0 0 7 105

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 0 0 0 12 0 12 0 40 28 0 0 0 16 36 0 144
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pedestrians 0 8 0 0 8

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:20 PM -- 5:35 PM

0 0 0

15010

14

33

1 0

16

16

0

25

48

32

30

1

48

26

0.73

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0

2

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

729



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: Elwert Rd -- Edy Rd QC JOB #: 10781226
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Tue, Jun 26 2012

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

Elwert Rd
(Northbound)

Elwert Rd
(Southbound)

Edy Rd
(Eastbound)

Edy Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 0 6 1 0 4 24 0 0 3 3 0 0 2 1 4 0 48
4:05 PM 1 12 0 0 7 14 0 0 1 6 1 0 3 5 4 0 54
4:10 PM 2 12 0 0 2 20 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 5 1 0 48
4:15 PM 0 8 2 0 0 21 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 1 0 38
4:20 PM 0 10 1 0 3 26 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 4 0 48
4:25 PM 0 14 2 0 1 31 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 7 4 0 62
4:30 PM 0 5 2 0 4 29 0 0 0 4 1 0 1 5 2 0 53
4:35 PM 1 14 2 0 4 17 3 0 0 0 1 0 1 4 2 0 49
4:40 PM 0 11 1 0 5 39 1 0 1 3 0 0 2 9 3 0 75
4:45 PM 0 6 4 0 6 29 0 0 0 4 1 0 1 7 2 0 60
4:50 PM 1 17 1 0 6 34 0 0 1 3 1 0 2 8 1 0 75
4:55 PM 1 9 3 0 2 32 1 0 0 1 2 0 2 10 3 0 66 676
5:00 PM 0 11 2 0 8 35 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 6 4 0 69 697
5:05 PM 1 11 3 0 3 46 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6 3 0 78 721
5:10 PM 2 16 2 0 4 33 0 0 3 3 2 0 1 5 4 0 75 748
5:15 PM 0 12 0 0 9 35 0 0 0 5 0 0 1 7 5 0 74 784
5:20 PM 0 12 2 0 4 31 1 0 2 5 0 0 1 4 5 0 67 803
5:25 PM 1 12 1 0 8 40 1 0 0 2 5 0 2 4 2 0 78 819
5:30 PM 2 12 4 0 5 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 5 0 57 823
5:35 PM 1 7 6 0 8 39 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 6 2 0 72 846
5:40 PM 1 16 2 0 3 25 1 0 0 1 0 0 4 4 5 0 62 833
5:45 PM 2 14 2 0 4 18 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 6 4 0 55 828
5:50 PM 1 13 4 0 3 41 1 0 2 4 2 0 1 10 3 0 85 838
5:55 PM 1 18 1 0 5 36 0 0 1 3 2 0 3 4 2 0 76 848

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 12 156 20 0 64 456 0 0 12 52 8 0 8 72 48 0 908
Heavy Trucks 0 8 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 16
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 5:00 PM -- 6:00 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:05 PM -- 5:20 PM

12 154 29

644045

8

33

14 15

66

44

195

473

55

125

206

433

126

83

0.93

0.0 2.6 3.4

0.00.50.0

0.0

0.0

7.1 0.0

1.5

6.8

2.6

0.4

1.8

3.2

3.4

0.7

0.8

1.2

0

1

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

1

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

730



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: Hwy 99W -- Sunset Blvd QC JOB #: 10781224
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Tue, Jun 26 2012

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

Hwy 99W
(Northbound)

Hwy 99W
(Southbound)

Sunset Blvd
(Eastbound)

Sunset Blvd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 5 87 5 0 12 118 1 3 0 2 9 0 10 5 10 0 267
4:05 PM 8 94 5 0 7 112 1 0 0 5 19 0 14 9 7 0 281
4:10 PM 7 106 11 0 9 158 2 2 1 8 13 0 5 5 15 0 342
4:15 PM 6 66 10 0 11 110 2 3 0 4 16 0 18 2 22 0 270
4:20 PM 9 107 13 0 14 108 3 1 1 7 15 0 18 10 9 0 315
4:25 PM 8 120 9 0 9 148 1 1 1 6 21 0 7 1 11 0 343
4:30 PM 10 84 10 0 19 120 2 3 1 6 29 0 13 5 9 0 311
4:35 PM 10 84 5 0 14 156 1 4 1 6 17 0 8 3 9 0 318
4:40 PM 8 75 8 0 15 136 2 2 0 5 17 0 13 3 9 0 293
4:45 PM 8 65 15 0 11 106 1 0 2 15 30 0 14 6 14 0 287
4:50 PM 11 105 7 0 15 90 1 2 1 15 25 0 10 8 11 0 301
4:55 PM 7 76 10 0 12 125 0 1 1 11 26 0 9 11 10 0 299 3627
5:00 PM 3 73 11 0 17 115 3 2 0 13 30 0 13 9 7 0 296 3656
5:05 PM 20 100 6 1 15 127 4 3 3 9 22 0 10 7 8 0 335 3710
5:10 PM 7 101 12 0 19 179 4 3 0 6 21 0 7 2 17 0 378 3746
5:15 PM 9 94 14 0 15 146 1 3 1 12 24 0 12 6 17 0 354 3830
5:20 PM 14 101 8 0 12 110 0 4 1 13 27 0 6 7 12 0 315 3830
5:25 PM 7 86 5 0 10 142 1 2 1 7 18 0 5 14 8 0 306 3793
5:30 PM 10 92 14 0 19 129 5 5 0 16 24 0 5 4 14 0 337 3819
5:35 PM 2 65 9 1 18 119 1 3 1 14 18 0 18 8 18 0 295 3796
5:40 PM 15 115 11 0 14 107 3 1 6 14 22 0 10 6 15 0 339 3842
5:45 PM 9 94 4 0 8 137 1 2 1 14 14 0 10 7 17 0 318 3873
5:50 PM 10 79 7 0 23 121 1 5 1 11 26 0 7 5 13 0 309 3881
5:55 PM 12 93 6 0 16 94 2 5 3 10 29 0 7 8 12 0 297 3879

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 144 1180 128 4 196 1808 36 36 16 108 268 0 116 60 168 0 4268
Heavy Trucks 8 48 8 0 24 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 92
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:55 PM -- 5:55 PM
Peak 15-Min: 5:05 PM -- 5:20 PM

115 1076 111

216155724

16

140

272 112

86

156

1302

1797

428

354

1282

1943

433

223

0.91

2.6 3.9 1.8

0.51.70.0

0.0

0.0

1.1 1.8

0.0

0.0

3.6

1.6

0.7

0.6

3.3

1.6

0.7

1.3

0

0

0 0

0 0 1

010

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

731



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Baler Way -- SW Century Dr QC JOB #: 10702329
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Tue, Jan 24 2012

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Baler Way
(Northbound)

SW Baler Way
(Southbound)

SW Century Dr
(Eastbound)

SW Century Dr
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:00 PM 1 0 0 0 3 1 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 4 2 0 15
4:05 PM 1 0 0 0 3 7 2 0 1 1 1 0 0 3 0 0 19
4:10 PM 0 1 0 0 0 1 3 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 2 0 13
4:15 PM 1 1 1 0 2 3 4 0 2 1 0 0 0 3 5 0 23
4:20 PM 0 0 0 0 3 3 2 0 4 1 0 0 1 4 1 0 19
4:25 PM 1 1 0 0 2 3 2 0 3 1 0 0 0 2 2 0 17
4:30 PM 1 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 4 2 1 0 0 1 3 0 16
4:35 PM 1 2 0 0 5 0 1 0 4 1 0 0 0 6 2 0 22
4:40 PM 1 0 0 0 7 1 5 0 6 5 1 0 1 4 1 0 32
4:45 PM 3 4 1 0 0 1 6 0 4 2 2 0 2 3 5 0 33
4:50 PM 0 2 0 0 3 0 4 0 4 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 15
4:55 PM 0 0 1 0 7 5 5 0 3 2 0 0 0 1 4 0 28 252
5:00 PM 0 2 0 0 3 1 3 0 4 2 1 0 2 7 6 0 31 268
5:05 PM 0 0 0 0 3 1 2 0 1 2 0 0 1 6 0 0 16 265
5:10 PM 1 0 1 0 3 4 5 0 6 4 0 0 1 4 2 0 31 283
5:15 PM 0 0 0 0 1 3 2 0 3 0 1 0 0 2 3 0 15 275
5:20 PM 0 0 0 0 2 4 7 0 4 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 22 278
5:25 PM 0 0 0 0 4 3 1 0 2 0 1 0 0 2 3 0 16 277
5:30 PM 1 0 0 0 4 3 2 0 2 3 2 0 0 5 1 0 23 284
5:35 PM 1 1 0 0 1 1 4 0 5 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 20 282
5:40 PM 1 2 0 0 4 2 3 0 3 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 19 269
5:45 PM 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 9 245
5:50 PM 0 0 0 0 2 1 3 0 2 4 2 0 1 2 2 0 19 249
5:55 PM 1 2 0 0 3 1 1 0 7 4 0 0 1 3 1 0 24 245

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 20 24 4 0 48 8 48 0 56 32 12 0 12 52 32 0 348
Heavy Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pedestrians 0 0 0 8 8

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:35 PM -- 5:35 PM
Peak 15-Min: 4:35 PM -- 4:50 PM

7 10 3

422643

43

22

9 7

43

29

20

111

74

79

82

42

67

93

0.82

0.0 0.0 0.0

0.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4

0

0 2

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

732



Type of peak hour being reported: Intersection Peak Method for determining peak hour: Total Entering Volume

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:17 PM SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net) 1-877-580-2212

LOCATION: SW Oregon St -- SW Tonquin Rd QC JOB #: 10562836
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR DATE: Tue, Dec 07 2010

5-Min Count
Period

Beginning At

SW Oregon St
(Northbound)

SW Oregon St
(Southbound)

SW Tonquin Rd
(Eastbound)

SW Tonquin Rd
(Westbound)

Total Hourly
Totals

Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U
4:10 PM 0 17 6 0 15 37 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 15 0 101
4:15 PM 0 13 8 0 13 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 9 0 91
4:20 PM 0 5 5 0 14 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 0 10 0 87
4:25 PM 0 10 5 0 9 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 6 0 82
4:30 PM 0 22 6 0 17 29 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 7 0 96
4:35 PM 0 15 2 0 14 24 0 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 14 0 91
4:40 PM 0 17 7 0 16 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 16 0 114
4:45 PM 0 13 7 0 17 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 11 0 122
4:50 PM 0 6 7 0 19 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 0 10 0 92
4:55 PM 0 12 8 0 16 42 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 0 18 0 120 1168
5:00 PM 0 14 12 0 11 29 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 13 0 102 1199
5:05 PM 0 13 8 0 20 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 10 0 110 1208
5:10 PM 0 15 5 0 13 38 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 17 0 105 1212
5:15 PM 0 12 7 0 13 33 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 19 0 107 1228
5:20 PM 0 18 7 0 21 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 11 0 106 1247
5:25 PM 0 14 5 0 10 52 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 12 0 108 1273
5:30 PM 0 14 9 0 15 38 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 0 12 0 114 1291
5:35 PM 0 10 5 0 16 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 0 10 0 112 1312
5:40 PM 0 19 5 0 13 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 13 0 103 1301
5:45 PM 0 14 3 0 10 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 14 0 100 1279
5:50 PM 0 19 8 0 9 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 14 0 103 1290
5:55 PM 0 7 4 0 17 38 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 9 0 86 1256
6:00 PM 0 13 8 0 13 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 9 0 106 1260
6:05 PM 0 17 6 0 5 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 7 0 86 1236

Peak 15-Min Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound
TotalFlowrates Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U Left Thru Right U

All Vehicles 0 124 88 0 208 504 0 0 0 0 0 0 256 0 156 0 1336
Heavy Trucks 0 0 4 20 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 44
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0

Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Railroad

Stopped Buses
Comments:

Peak-Hour: 4:40 PM -- 5:40 PM
Peak 15-Min: 4:45 PM -- 5:00 PM

0 158 87

1874750

0

0

0 246

0

159

245

662

0

405

317

721

274

0

0.98

0.0 1.3 1.1

8.02.10.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.4

0.0

1.9

1.2

3.8

0.0

1.0

1.6

1.5

5.8

0.0

0

0

0 0

0 0 0

000

0

0

0 0

0

0

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA NA

733



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: #445 Cipole Rd 0.1 N of Tualatin-Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 10719736
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 0 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Washington County, OR

DIRECTION: SB
DATE: Mar 08 2012 - Mar 08 2012

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

08-Mar-12
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 2 2 2
1:00 AM 1 1 1
2:00 AM 3 3 3
3:00 AM 2 2 2
4:00 AM 7 7 7
5:00 AM 22 22 22
6:00 AM 50 50 50
7:00 AM 110 110 110
8:00 AM 88 88 88
9:00 AM 82 82 82

10:00 AM 97 97 97
11:00 AM 119 119 119
12:00 PM 128 128 128
1:00 PM 124 124 124
2:00 PM 135 135 135
3:00 PM 181 181 181
4:00 PM 180 180 180
5:00 PM 182 182 182
6:00 PM 109 109 109
7:00 PM 53 53 53
8:00 PM 34 34 34
9:00 PM 20 20 20

10:00 PM 10 10 10
11:00 PM 14 14 14
Day Total 1753 1753 1753

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 11:00 AM 11:00 AM 11:00 AM
Volume 119 119 119

PM Peak 5:00 PM 5:00 PM 5:00 PM
Volume 182 182 182

Comments: NA

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:15 PM

734



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: #445 Cipole Rd 0.1 N of Tualatin-Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 10719736
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 0 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Washington County, OR

DIRECTION: NB
DATE: Mar 08 2012 - Mar 08 2012

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

08-Mar-12
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 2 2 2
1:00 AM 2 2 2
2:00 AM 3 3 3
3:00 AM 6 6 6
4:00 AM 30 30 30
5:00 AM 33 33 33
6:00 AM 128 128 128
7:00 AM 143 143 143
8:00 AM 114 114 114
9:00 AM 94 94 94

10:00 AM 70 70 70
11:00 AM 94 94 94
12:00 PM 130 130 130
1:00 PM 97 97 97
2:00 PM 104 104 104
3:00 PM 155 155 155
4:00 PM 119 119 119
5:00 PM 93 93 93
6:00 PM 48 48 48
7:00 PM 24 24 24
8:00 PM 9 9 9
9:00 PM 14 14 14

10:00 PM 10 10 10
11:00 PM 7 7 7
Day Total 1529 1529 1529

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 7:00 AM 7:00 AM 7:00 AM
Volume 143 143 143

PM Peak 3:00 PM 3:00 PM 3:00 PM
Volume 155 155 155

Comments: NA

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:15 PM

735



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: #421 Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 0.1 E of Cipole Rd QC JOB #: 10719719
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 0 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Washington County, OR

DIRECTION: WB
DATE: Mar 08 2012 - Mar 08 2012

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

08-Mar-12
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 74 74 74
1:00 AM 55 55 55
2:00 AM 50 50 50
3:00 AM 55 55 55
4:00 AM 131 131 131
5:00 AM 236 236 236
6:00 AM 454 454 454
7:00 AM 677 677 677
8:00 AM 671 671 671
9:00 AM 683 683 683

10:00 AM 681 681 681
11:00 AM 774 774 774
12:00 PM 811 811 811

1:00 PM 832 832 832
2:00 PM 836 836 836
3:00 PM 969 969 969
4:00 PM 1022 1022 1022
5:00 PM 916 916 916
6:00 PM 984 984 984
7:00 PM 649 649 649
8:00 PM 550 550 550
9:00 PM 441 441 441

10:00 PM 314 314 314
11:00 PM 172 172 172
Day Total 13037 13037 13037

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 11:00 AM 11:00 AM 11:00 AM
Volume 774 774 774

PM Peak 4:00 PM 4:00 PM 4:00 PM
Volume 1022 1022 1022

Comments: NA

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:15 PM

736



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: #421 Tualatin-Sherwood Rd 0.1 E of Cipole Rd QC JOB #: 10719719
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 0 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Washington County, OR

DIRECTION: EB
DATE: Mar 08 2012 - Mar 08 2012

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

08-Mar-12
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 72 72 72
1:00 AM 43 43 43
2:00 AM 86 86 86
3:00 AM 72 72 72
4:00 AM 237 237 237
5:00 AM 437 437 437
6:00 AM 951 951 951
7:00 AM 1088 1088 1088
8:00 AM 695 695 695
9:00 AM 693 693 693

10:00 AM 780 780 780
11:00 AM 799 799 799
12:00 PM 851 851 851
1:00 PM 810 810 810
2:00 PM 838 838 838
3:00 PM 886 886 886
4:00 PM 882 882 882
5:00 PM 836 836 836
6:00 PM 712 712 712
7:00 PM 550 550 550
8:00 PM 349 349 349
9:00 PM 289 289 289

10:00 PM 170 170 170
11:00 PM 127 127 127
Day Total 13253 13253 13253

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 7:00 AM 7:00 AM 7:00 AM
Volume 1088 1088 1088

PM Peak 3:00 PM 3:00 PM 3:00 PM
Volume 886 886 886

Comments: NA

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/27/2013 5:15 PM

737



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: Roy Rogers Rd South of Scholls-Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 10936805
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 750 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR

DIRECTION: SB
DATE: Apr 11 2013 - Apr 11 2013

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

11-Apr-13
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 28 28 28
1:00 AM 14 14 14
2:00 AM 20 20 20
3:00 AM 33 33 33
4:00 AM 128 128 128
5:00 AM 222 222 222
6:00 AM 504 504 504
7:00 AM 767 767 767
8:00 AM 565 565 565
9:00 AM 382 382 382

10:00 AM 375 375 375
11:00 AM 410 410 410
12:00 PM 365 365 365
1:00 PM 424 424 424
2:00 PM 470 470 470
3:00 PM 515 515 515
4:00 PM 716 716 716
5:00 PM 788 788 788
6:00 PM 523 523 523
7:00 PM 277 277 277
8:00 PM 188 188 188
9:00 PM 162 162 162

10:00 PM 74 74 74
11:00 PM 48 48 48
Day Total 7998 7998 7998

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 7:00 AM 7:00 AM 7:00 AM
Volume 767 767 767

PM Peak 5:00 PM 5:00 PM 5:00 PM
Volume 788 788 788

Comments:

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/17/2013 3:02 PM

738



Type of report: Tube Count - Volume Data

SOURCE: Quality Counts, LLC (http://www.qualitycounts.net)

LOCATION: Roy Rogers Rd South of Scholls-Sherwood Rd QC JOB #: 10936805
SPECIFIC LOCATION: 750 ft from 
CITY/STATE: Sherwood, OR

DIRECTION: NB
DATE: Apr 11 2013 - Apr 11 2013

Start Time
Mon Tue Wed Thu

11-Apr-13
Fri Average Weekday

Hourly Traffic
Sat Sun Average Week

Hourly Traffic
Average Week Profile

12:00 AM 34 34 34
1:00 AM 14 14 14
2:00 AM 28 28 28
3:00 AM 20 20 20
4:00 AM 48 48 48
5:00 AM 122 122 122
6:00 AM 452 452 452
7:00 AM 759 759 759
8:00 AM 701 701 701
9:00 AM 438 438 438

10:00 AM 349 349 349
11:00 AM 397 397 397
12:00 PM 407 407 407
1:00 PM 391 391 391
2:00 PM 514 514 514
3:00 PM 716 716 716
4:00 PM 822 822 822
5:00 PM 830 830 830
6:00 PM 562 562 562
7:00 PM 315 315 315
8:00 PM 321 321 321
9:00 PM 180 180 180

10:00 PM 129 129 129
11:00 PM 86 86 86
Day Total 8635 8635 8635

% Weekday
Average 100.0%
% Week
Average 100.0% 100.0%
AM Peak 7:00 AM 7:00 AM 7:00 AM
Volume 759 759 759

PM Peak 5:00 PM 5:00 PM 5:00 PM
Volume 830 830 830

Comments:

Page 1 of 1

Report generated on 9/17/2013 3:02 PM

739



 

(This page left intentionally blank)  

740



741



(This page left intentionally blank)

742



Access Management: Refers to measures regulating access to streets, roads and highways from public roads and 
private driveways. Measures may include but are not limited to restrictions on the type and amount of access to 
roadways, and use of physical controls such as signals and channelization including raised medians, to reduce 
impacts of approach road traffic on the main facility. 

Alternative Modes: Transportation alternatives other than single-occupant automobiles such as rail, transit, 
bicycles and walking. 

Arterial (Street): A street designated in the functional class system as providing the highest amount of 
connectivity and mostly uninterrupted traffic flow through an urban area. 

Aspirational Plan: The entire set of investments in the TSP if funding were not a constraint. 

Bicycle Facility: Any facility provided for the benefit of bicycle travel, including bikeways and parking facilities. 

Bicycle Network: A system of connected bikeways that provide access to and from local and regional 
destinations. 

Bike Lane: Area within street right-of-way designated specifically for bicycle use 

Capacity: The maximum number of vehicles or individuals that can traverse a given segment of a transportation 
facility with prevailing roadway and traffic conditions. 

Capacity Allocation Program (CAP): A trip density limit set by Sherwood for new development to preserve the 
mobility of Highway 99W.  

Collector (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that provides connectivity between local and 
neighborhood streets with the arterial streets serving the urban area. Usually shorter in distance than arterials, 
designed with lower traffic speeds and has more traffic control devises than the arterial classification. 

Community Advisory Committee (CAC): A committee of stakeholders in Sherwood who met regularly with the 
project team to give input for the production of the TSP. 

Conservatively Fundable Plan: The set of investments in the TSP that could be funded assuming a funding level 
of $11.3 million through 2035. The $11.3 million funding level is based on historic growth in the Sherwood area. 

Crosswalk: Portion of a roadway designated for pedestrian crossing and can be either marked or unmarked. 
Unmarked crosswalks are the national extension of the shoulder, curb line or sidewalk. 

Grade: A measure of the steepness of a roadway, bikeway or walkway, usually expressed in a percentage form of 
the ratio between vertical rise to horizontal distance. (e.g., a 5% grade means that the facility rises 5 feet in height 
over a length of 100 feet.) 

Grade Separation: The vertical separation of conflicting travelways. 

743



Level of Service (LOS): A qualitative measure describing the perception of operation conditions within a traffic 
steam by motorists and or passengers. An LOS rating of “A” to “F” describes the traffic flow on streets and at 
intersections, ranging from LOS A, representing virtually free flow conditions and no impedance to LOS F 
representing forced flow conditions and congestion. 

Local (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is to provide access to 
land use as opposed to enhancing mobility. These streets typically have low volumes and are very short in 
relation to collectors and arterials. 

Major Streets Transportation Improvement Program (MSTIP): MSTIP is a local property tax in Washington 
County that funds transportation improvements. 

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP): The list of projects selected by Metro to receive 
regional funding assistance. 

Mobility Targets: The level of congestion the corresponding jurisdiction has defined as acceptable. Mobility 
targets are in the form of LOS or v/c ratios.  

Multi-Modal: Involving several modes of transportation including bus, rail, bicycle, motor vehicle etc. 

National Highway System (NHS): The National Highway System is interconnected urban and rural principal 
arterial and highways that serve major population centers, ports, airports and other major travel destinations, 
meet national defense requirements and serve interstate and interregional travel. 

Neighborhood Greenway: improvements to local roads to provide sidewalks and/or shared lane bicycle 
markings. These improvements are also known as “bicycle boulevards” and “family-friendly bikeways.” 

Neighborhood (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is to provide 
access to land use, but provides more mobility than a local street. These streets typically have moderate volumes 
and are shorter in relation to collectors and arterials. 

Oregon Highway Plan (OHP): The document that establishes long range policies and investment strategies for 
the state highway system in Oregon 

Peak Period or Peak Hour: The period of the day with the highest number of travelers. This is normally between 
4-6 PM on weekdays. 

Pedestrian Connection: A continuous, unobstructed, reasonability direct route between two points that is 
intended and suitable for pedestrian use. These connections could include sidewalks, walkways, stairways, and 
pedestrian bridges. 

Pedestrian Facility: A facility provided for the benefit of pedestrian travel, including walkways, crosswalks, 
signs, signals and benches. 

744



Projected Fundable Plan: The set of investments in the TSP that could be funded assuming a funding level of $60 
million through 2035. The $60 million funding level is based on levels of growth seen in the areas surrounding 
Sherwood. 

Reduction of Vehicle-Carrying Capacity: A permanent reduction in the horizontal or vertical clearance of a 
highway section. 

Reduction Review Routes: State highways where all proposed actions along the facility require review prior to 
determination of a potential reduction of vehicle-carrying capacity is determined.  

Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP): Part of Metro’s code, the RTFP establishes the criteria cities 
and counties in the Metro area need to follow to comply with the Metro RTP.  

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP): The transportation plan for the Portland Metro region 

Right-Of-Way (ROW): A general term denoting publicly-owned land or property upon which public facilities 
and infrastructure is placed. 

Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient, Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU): A 
funding and authorization bill that governed U.S. federal surface transportation spending. 

Safety Priority Index System (SPIS): An indexing system used by Oregon Department of Transportation to 
prioritize safety improvements based on crash frequency and severity on state facilities. 

Shared Street: Roadways where bicyclists and autos share the same travel lane. Shared streets may include a 
wider outside lane and/or bicycle boulevard treatment (e.g., sharrows, wayfinding).  

Shared-Use Path: Off-street route (typically recreationally focused) that can be used by several transportation 
modes, including bicycles, pedestrians and other non-motorized modes (i.e. skateboards, roller blades, etc.)  

Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV): A vehicle containing only a single occupant, the driver. 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC): A group of transportation professionals in the public sector who 
represent an agency with transportation system elements in Sherwood (e.g., city, county, state, and TriMet staff). 
This group met regularly with the project team to give input for the production of the TSP.  

Traffic Calming: Traffic control devices typically used in residential neighborhoods to slow traffic or possibly 
reduce the volume of traffic. 

Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA): A study that evaluates the potential impacts a project may have on the 
transportation system, and determines mitigations required to meet transportation standards. These are necessary 
for projects to be approved (e.g., proposed developments, roadway extensions, zone changes). 

Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ): A geographic sub-area used to assess travel demands using a travel 
demand forecasting model, and is often defined by the transportation network and US Census blocks. 

745



Transportation Demand Management (TDM): A policy tool as well as any action that removes single occupant 
vehicle trips from the roadway network during peak travel demand periods. 

Transportation Growth and Management (TGM): Grants that fund projects that address both land use and 
transportation planning, provided through a partnership between the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development and the Oregon Department of Transportation. 

Transportation Planning Rule (TPR): Section 660-012 of the Oregon Administrative Rules. This section 
implements Statewide Planning Goal 12 (Transportation).  

Transportation System Management (TSM): Management strategies such as signal improvements, traffic signal 
coordination, traffic calming, access management, local street connectivity, and intelligent transportation systems  

Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO): Strategies and policies that work towards 
improving mobility through cost-effective methods, and can be categorized as transportation system 
management or transportation demand management. 

Transportation System Plan (TSP): Is a comprehensive plan that is developed to provide a coordinated, seamless 
integration of continuity between modes at the local level as well as integration with the regional transportation 
system. 

Urban Area: The area immediately surrounding an incorporated city or rural community that is urban in 
character, regardless of size. 

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB): The regional boundary that encompasses zoning designations in an urban area. 

Vehicle Hours of Delay (VHD): The cumulative amount of time vehicles are delayed in a system.  

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): The cumulative distance a vehicle travels, regardless of number of occupants 

Volume-to-Capacity (v/c) ratio: A decimal representation (between 0.00 and 1.00) of the proportion of capacity 
that is being used. It is determined by dividing the peak hour traffic volume by the hourly capacity of a given 
turn movement, approach leg, or intersection. A lower ratio indicates smooth operations and minimal delays. As 
the ratio approaches 1.00, congestion increases and performance is reduced. At 1.00, demand is greater than 
capacity and the turn movement, approach leg, or intersection is oversaturated—this results in excessive queues 
and long delays. 

 

746



ATTACHMENT G

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 6 747



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 6 748



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 3 of 6 749



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 4 of 6 750



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 5 of 6 751



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment G to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 6 of 6 752



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 1 of 24 

 

City of Sherwood, Oregon 
Planning Commission 

May 27, 2014 

Planning Commission Members Present:  Staff Present:  
Chair Jean Simson Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director 
Commissioner John Clifford    Bob Galati, Civil Engineer 
Commissioner Beth Cooke (at 7:05 pm)   Brad Kilby, Planning Manager 
Commissioner Russell Griffin Kirsten Allen, Planning Dept. Program Coordinator 
Commissioner Sally Robinson  
Commissioner Lisa Walker   
 
Planning Commission Members Absent:     
Vice Chair James Copfer     
   
Council Members Present:     Legal Counsel:  
Councilor Robyn Folsom    Chris Crean 
  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Chair Jean Simson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   

2. Agenda Review 

The agenda consisted of the Consent Agenda and a public hearing for the PA 14-01 Transportation 

System Plan Update.    

3. Consent Agenda:   

a. January 28, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

b. February 11, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

c. March 11, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

d. April 8, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes 

e. May 13, 2014 Planning Commission Minutes    

Chair Simson indicated that she submitted Scrivener’s errors that did not change the content of the 

minutes and recommended that on page 22 of the February 11, 2014 minutes the record show that Mr. 

Tiemann declined an opportunity for rebuttal or additional testimony with his remaining time.    

Commissioner John Clifford indicated that he was present for the February 11th meeting, but in the final 

motion it indicated that he was absent.  Commissioner Clifford’s name was changed to Commissioner 

Walker who was absent at the meeting.  At Commissioner Clifford’s request the first line at the top of page 

23 of the packet was changed to read “Brad responded to a question from Commissioner Clifford and 

commented that…” 

Motion: From Commissioner Russell Griffin to approve the Consent Agenda as amended.  Seconded 

by Commissioner Lisa Walker.  All present Planning Commissioners voted in favor (Vice Chair 

James Copfer was absent). 

 

753



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 24 

 

4. Staff Announcements 

Brad Kilby, Planning Manager, spoke of the first Local Trail Advisory Committee (LTAC) meeting for the 

Cedar Creek Trail that was held on May 15, 2014 at City Hall.  He asked Commissioner Clifford, LTAC 

liaison, to tell about the meeting.   Commissioner Clifford said there was a good turn out and the main 

speaker, from the Tualatin Hills Park and Recreation District (THPRD), was very informative.   

Brad indicated that the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) also held a meeting on May 15th 

about the Ken Foster Farms site in southeast Sherwood.  The DEQ has provided the City with a draft 

copy of the findings in the Remedial Investigation Report, dated May 15, 2014.  The report has been 

placed in the Sherwood Library reference section.    

Brad asked Commissioner Walker, who was in attendance, to convey what happened at the meeting. 

Commissioner Walker said the meeting was meant to be a general information meeting to let the public 

know that the process is ongoing and on hold.  She said the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) may 

change some of the threshold levels allowed for Chromium levels in the soil (they did not indicate whether 

it was up or down) and it may be another year from any conclusions.   Brad said he heard that the 

Chromium was concentrated in certain areas and that there were two types of in it the area.  Commissioner 

Walker said it was a complicated site with a continuing process.   

Julia added that even though nothing on the site may change, the standards change, so the rules and 

complications change too.  She recounted that at the Oregon Brownfields Conference earlier that day the 

tannery and the Ken Foster Farms site was a topic of discussion where even the environmental 

professionals commented on how complicated the site was.    

Note:  a brownfield site is real property where the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be 

complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant 

(www.epa.gov/brownfields/overview/glossary.htm). 

Brad informed the Commission that TriMet has announced that they will be investing in services again and 

will release their Draft Service Enhancement Plan this summer.  He said they have discussed expanding 

service to the YMCA and an option for service between Tualatin and Sherwood.  Brad said the City can 

provide comments to advocate for or against proposed enhancements.    

Brad related that the Friends of the Tualatin River Wildlife Refuge had over a thousand people attend their 

annual Bird Festival and Sherwood is in the running for a $100,000 grant towards a dog park.  The City is 

looking at the west portion of Snyder Park for the first dog park and there is a link on the City website to 

vote for Sherwood.   

Brad thanked the Commission for their commitment to reading all of the material for the Transportation 

System Plan update and pointed out that the consultants role was to:  

 Create a network of connected streets which serve all transportation modes in Sherwood.  

 Create an efficient system that is compliant with state and regional policies.  

 Ensure that all people have access to safe, healthy, convenient and affordable transportation options 

regardless of age, income or other socioeconomic factors.  

754

http://www.epa.gov/brownfields/overview/glossary.htm


  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 24 

 

 Propose measures, by way of the project list, to the community to help realize a complete system of 

streets, sidewalks, trails, bike lands, and transit amenities.  

Brad said the Planning Commission’s role was as an advisory body to the policy makers, which is the City 

Council.  He said the proposal was a mix of policy and regulation based on engineering data, long range 

forecasting and assumptions that he did not always understand and encouraged members to ask questions.  

Brad advised that the Planning Commission was to make a recommendation to the City Council based on 

the proposal and if the recommendation changed the direction of the policy or regulation, follow up with 

the reasoning for that change would be needed.  He suggested that members ask themselves if they liked 

or disliked the concept, if the language afforded the community an opportunity to study the concept, if it 

was right for the community, and if the City was compliant with state and regional policies.      

Brad reported that there was an article in the May 27, 2014 edition of the Daily Journal of Commerce 

(DJC) about the signal removal and the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) court case.  

5. Council Liaison Announcements 

Councilor Folsom said the Budget Committee passed the budget for the Fiscal Year 2014-15 with a vote 

of 13 to 1, which will go to City Council on June 17, 2014.  She said there was an 11% extra reserve over 

the 20% requirement due to the economy and hard work of staff equivalent to over $900,000. The budget 

committee opted to use approximately $450,000 on one time assets like park equipment replacement, and 

$300,000 would be placed in a reserve account for maintenance of assets built about ten years ago.  

Councilor Folsom mentioned Murdock Park as one of those assets recently finished from funds allocated 

in the last budget cycle.  At Chair Simson’s request, Councilor Folsom explained that the Budget 

Committee is made up of seven citizen volunteers and the seven City Council members.  She added that 

citizen comments were part of the budgeting process and a Budget Committee meeting was held on a 

Saturday to encourage citizen involvement, but it did not.  After the budget is approved by the Budget 

Committee it is forwarded to the City Council for adoption (see the June 17, 2014 agenda) and public 

comment will be allowed at that hearing.   

Councilor Folsom reported that all five of the Charter Amendments on the May ballot had passed by a 

great margin.   

6. Community Comments 

Keith Weir, Sherwood resident came forward and said he drives to Sherwood nearly every day using 

Railroad Street and Main Street.  He spoke of the TriMet bus taking up both lanes [when turning] and of 

instances where either he or the bus had to back up. Mr. Weir recounted that he spoke with the Police 

Department and City staff who told him that TriMet “handles everything”.   He suggested that the City 

not let TriMet handle everything.  Mr. Weir commented that Tualatin Sherwood Road needed more lanes 

and it could be done with the space used by the bike lanes and sidewalks. Mr. Weir commented that Old 

Town had the character to be like Bridgeport in the future and eliminate cars in Old Town except for 

during Cruise-in Sherwood.  

 

Chair Simson explained that Washington County takes care of Tualatin Sherwood Road and it is in their 

plan to widen the road.   

 

755



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 24 

 

Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director, added that there is coordination with TriMet and the 

conversation about routes and the ease of their turning movements could be had.  She responded to Chair 

Simson’s question about which department that would be and said that it was multiple departments: 

Engineering, Public Works, and Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R). 

 

Bob Galati, City Engineer, added that the City Council has directed staff to look into the cost of removing 

the monuments, replacing them with something less site restraining.  It is on the Engineering 

Department’s task list.  

 

7. New Business  

a. Public Hearing – PA 14-01 Transportation System Plan Update 

Chair Simson read the public hearing statement and stated that the Planning Commission would be 

making a recommendation to City Council. She asked for any conflicts of interest.  Receiving none, she 

asked for the staff report.   

Brad Kilby, Planning Manager, gave a presentation (see record, Exhibit 1) and explained that the 

Transportation System Plan was last updated in 2005 except for the minor amendments done for 

individual projects such as Cedar Brook Way, the extension of Baler Way, and Langer Farms Parkway 

North.  He indicated that the update was staff initiated was to amend:  

 Goals and Policies within Chapter 6 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan,    

 City’s Development Code Chapters: 
o 16.10 Definitions 
o 16.80 Plan Amendments 
o 16.90 Site Plan Review 
o 16.94 Off-Street Parking and Loading 
o 16.106 Transportation Facilities 

 2005 Transportation System Plan (superseded if adopted) 

 Map Amendment to remove the trip cap imposed through Ord. 2008-003 regarding the Pfeiffer 
property on Hwy 99W next to Providence Medical.   

 

Brad explained that a traffic analysis was not performed for the Pfeiffer property when Ord. 2008-003 was 
adopted and Council decided that the additional CAP would be put on the property.  As a result of the 
TSP update there has been traffic modeling as retail commercial for the property and that the analysis is no 
longer needed because measures to mitigate the impacts have been identified.   

Brad explained that the public involvement included two Planning Commission work sessions, a dedicated 

website that was updated at least monthly, two public open houses, a Citizens Advisory Committee that 

met three times, and a Technical Advisory Committee consisting of engineers, planners and policy makers 

from Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), Washington County, Tualatin, Beaverton, and 

Tigard.  He said the Draft TSP has been available to the public for comment since late March, and there 

were several articles about the TSP Update in the Archer or Gazette.   

756



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 5 of 24 

 

Brad stated that the proposed amendments meet the necessary approval criteria to justify a Planning 

Commission recommendation for approval of the policy document and Staff recommends that the 

Commission forward a recommendation of approval of the proposed amendments to the Sherwood City 

Council based on the work and input that has been put into this process to date. 

Brad turned the time over to the Bob Galati, City Engineer.  Bob introduced the project consultants Chris 

Maciejewski and Garth Appanaitis from DKS Associates and Darci Rudzinkski with Angelo Planning 

Group.  Mr. Maciejewski gave a presentation (see record, Exhibit 2) and recapped the process to date.  He 

said the process was at the final step of adoption for a process that started about a year ago.  Mr. 

Maciejewski reported that  the planning work done in the city and the region over the past five plus years 

was compiled and the City’s transportation infrastructure inventoried regarding how it was working and 

how people use it in order to identify transportation needs. Then transportation needs were forecasted 20 

years into the future using Metro’s regional forecasting tool to the year 2035.  Mr. Maciejewski stated that 

money available was considered to develop alternatives to meet those transportation needs through multi-

modal transportation projects.  With that we came out with a preferred list of projects and accompanying 

implementing ordinances.   

Mr. Maciejewski gave an overview of what the document contained and said that it sets the vision for the 

community on how the transportation system will help manage growth with strategies to guide in those 

decisions.  He said there is list of future improvement projects that would improve safety, operation, 

mobility, connectivity and other types of transportation needs around the community.  He said one of the 

most important section was the standards which include standards for:  

 Cross-sections – the components of a street, width, sidewalk, etc.  

 Access spacing – how far apart should driveways and roadways be 

 Traffic calming – how to protect the livability for residential neighborhoods as traffic volumes 
increase 

 Connectivity – local street connection 

 Mobility targets – how to manage congestion and how much congestion is acceptable 

Mr. Maciejewski explained that the update was being done because the 2005 Transportation System Plan 

looked to the year 2020 and a twenty year plan needs to be in place.  He said the update contains an 

updated project list that compiles all the work that has been done over the last five plus years, regional 

projects like the Tualatin Sherwood Road widening project, and concept plans areas.  The project list is a 

little different from the last update and is focused on lower cost strategies used to manage congestion as 

opposed to major capital improvements to widen roadways to build out of congestion.  Mr. Maciejewski 

related that mobility targets are highlighted more in the document and the Capacity Allocation Program 

(CAP) Ordinance is removed.   

Mr. Maciejewski explained that to build the project list the City started by establishing transportation goals 

from goals already in place as policy elements and worked with advisory groups to develop evaluation 

criteria that aligned with those goals. He said the process used revenue constraints and compared the 

evaluation criteria to choose which alternatives made the most sense.   Mr. Maciejewski showed that there 

were two types of projects; conservatively fundable projects which looked at the revenue from the last five 

757



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 6 of 24 

 

years that can be used on transportation and projected out the next twenty years; projected fundable projects 

take into account the potential growth areas around the city and the revenue that could come in with that.   

Mr. Maciejewski concluded that there was a focus on lower cost items, safety and multi- modal projects 

and roughly a third of the approximated costs are spent on each of the major types of transportation: 37% 

is projected to be used for pedestrian enhancements,  33% for Motor Vehicle, 23% for Bicycle, and  7% 

on Transit.  A more significant component in the 2005 plan was motor vehicle focused.  Mr. Maciejewski 

said the documents list each project by mode and color coded with near term, medium term or long term 

priority.    

Mr. Maciejewski explained that there was updated language in the draft TSP about the Brookman Road 

area as the city coordinated with Washington County in designating that as an arterial roadway, but the 

language acknowledges that there are compatibility issues with the Brookman Road Concept Plan that may 

need further work or revisited.   

Mr. Maciejewski indicated that the City and ODOT staff have been coordinating on the Hwy 99W cross 

sections and are close to having an agreement.  He said TriMet has continued its Local transit service 

enhancements planning and a proposal from them will be coming this summer that will need to be 

incorporated into the TSP in the future.  Mr. Maciejewski advised that the need for parking management 

plan was identified as part of the Sherwood Town Center planning process. He recounted that a statement 

that was added relating support from the community regarding relieving traffic congestion from through 

traffic and support for regional efforts with Washington County or other jurisdictions to get through 

traffic onto Tualatin Sherwood Road or Hwy 99W, giving an option to go around the city.   

Note: Part of the TSP Update includes amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code so that all documents complement each other.  DKS Associates was contracted to work on the 

transportation aspect of the TSP update.  Angelo Planning was contracted to work on Comprehensive Plan and Sherwood 

Zoning and Community Development Code language.   

Darci Rudzinski from Angelo Planning Group explained that she was one of the planners that worked on 

the policies in the Comprehensive Plan and Development Code language.  She explained that the language 

has evolved as a result of feedback from the Planning Commission, the City Council, the Technical and 

Citizen Advisory Committees and City staff.   She related that one of the objectives was to get the 

proposed language in closer compliance with the Regional Transportation Functional Plan, which 

implements that Regional Transportation Plan, as well as the state Transportation Planning Rule. Ms. 

Rudzinski reported that some of the more substantial areas of change being proposed in the code was the 

traffic impact analysis;  the code articulates existing city practice that the city uses the impact analysis to 

assess what the impacts of proposed development might be on the transportation system and, if necessary, 

gives the city the power to ask for mitigation to make sure the system is in line with the growth that 

happens.  She added that bicycle parking requirements were clarified, and the CAP program was removed.    

Ms. Rudzinski stated that the changes in the Code and the Comprehensive Plan are intended to reflect 

what is happening in the transportation system plan so there is underlying policy that supports what the 

city requires of developments and city improvements when building a new facility for the community.  She 

noted that there were some housekeeping items; if strategies or implementation measures have already 

happened it was suggested they be deleted.  Ms. Rudzinski revealed that some comprehensive plan policies 

758



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 7 of 24 

 

included planning coordination with regional partners like Metro, Washington County and ODOT,  and 

added performance targets and measures  with a policy that articulates Sherwood’s intention to try to 

adopt measures that reflect Metro targets.  She concluded by saying that the through traffic had come up 

as an issue so there is policy language that encourages regional trips do not occur on local street systems.   

Chair Simson proposed that the Commission hear public testimony before the consultants answer 

questions. The Commission was in agreement.    

Brad said there was written testimony submitted by Sherwood resident, Wade Anderson.  Chair Simson 

indicated that the Commission would read the letter after hearing public testimony. 

Ty Wyman, attorney representing Merlone Geier Partners, which owns the Albertsons based shopping 

center on Tualatin Sherwood Road, cited his appreciation for the time and attention given to Merlone 

Geier.  He commented that the article distributed by Brad Kilby did a good job talking about the LUBA 

case regarding the removal of the signal on Tualatin Sherwood Road.  Mr. Wyman mentioned that the TSP 

Update is far beyond the traffic signal, but the signal was important to them.  He said that Merlone Geier 

was not going to ask for any revisions or additions to the proposed update, because the signal is already in 

the existing plan.  Mr. Wyman stated that Merlone Geier is invested in the Sherwood community and 

intends to stay with or without the signal.  He expressed appreciation for time spent by Bob Galati and 

Brad Kilby with himself and his client about property issues and acknowledged that is was not an easy one.   

Anthony Bevel, Sherwood resident said he has lived in Sherwood for sixteen years and told the 

Commission that SW Lynnly to SW Houston serves as cut through streets from Roy Rogers Road to Edy 

Road.  He commented that drivers go very fast through the neighborhood and said he would like to see 

traffic calming devices placed on the street.  Mr. Bevel said that he has picked up dead animals and 

described the difficulty in retrieving his mail at 5:30 pm because of the danger. He asked the City to put 

traffic calming devices on his street to correct the bad behavior.  Mr. Bevel added that he had been told 

the reason for not having traffic calming devices was because of the damage caused to emergency vehicles 

and he did not find it acceptable.   

Mr. Bevel asked how a pedestrian was expected to get to the south side of Sherwood and commented that 

twenty years from now he did not see it happening.  He commented about living near the Ross Island 

bridge that had a pedestrian bridge across Powell Blvd.   

Eugene Stewart, Sherwood property owner said as a member of the Citizen’s Advisory Committee he 

felt that there was not sufficient time to discuss a number of topics and he felt as though the process was 

rushed to satisfy Metro instead of looking at the needs of the citizens.   He asked that the Planning 

Commission continue the hearing and leave it open for public comment.   Mr. Stewart commented 

regarding a bypass around Sherwood and advised at that when the Dundee Newberg bypass is built, 

Sherwood will see more truck traffic.  He said trucks currently cut over to Salem and when the bypass is 

done it will create a better situation to drive up here instead of going through Salem.   

Mr. Stewart told of a property owner on Roy Rogers Road who may develop that was told by Washington 

County planners that the road will be five lanes by 2018 from Scholls Ferry Road to Hwy 99W.  He asked 

what would happen to the neighborhoods then and stressed the importance for Sherwood to look at a 

bypass around our core area so traffic that does not want to stop in Sherwood can get through without 

759



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 8 of 24 

 

causing traffic jams.  He said that evening traffic can back up to the junkyard, which was unacceptable, and 

suggested that 90% of evening traffic through Old Town does not stop. Mr. Stewart urged that Sherwood 

look more seriously at where is traffic coming from, where is it going, and how it can be handled.  He 

commented that Metro was pushing against single occupant vehicles and traffic counts done in the 

evening when commercial trucks were no longer on the road or are from 2010. Mr. Stewart asked how the 

recession has affected truck traffic and suggested that bicycle and pedestrian counts at major intersections 

be completed. He commented that some counts showed only one bicycle to four pedestrians and asked 

why plans to accommodate bicyclists were being moved forward when there is no demand.  Mr. Stewart 

commented that the plans show where the bicyclist could go, but not where they were coming from.  He 

asked where skate boarders would go and said there were a number of things he would like discussed, but 

four minutes was not enough time.  

With no other public testimony, Chair Simson called for a recess at 8:03 pm and reconvened at 8:12 pm. 

The letter from Wade Anderson (read by Commissioners during the break) was labeled Exhibit G in the 

PA 14-01 file.   

Chair Simson advocated discussing the questions raised by public comment first and asked about the 

process for getting traffic calming implemented.  

Bob Galati responded that the City receives complaints through either the Engineering or Police 

Department. The Police Department determines, through an investigation of the complaint, what the 

traffic conditions are like.  He said they may run a traffic count scenario that collects data such as speed, 

number of cars, and determine if the average speed is it hitting the 85% or are they exceeding it.  If it is a 

speed issue they will do enforcement because it is a safety issue.  Bob said that traffic volume was more a 

quality of life issue and the City will try to change the system to make the drivers go a route other than 

through the subdivision.  He related that with Mr. Bevel’s subdivision stop signs were added at every 

intersection, but the City has not revisited to see if there has been a change.  Bob explained that the 

process is to go back and check if the change had a positive effect and if not, decide on the next 

implementation; what least option works the best and then ratcheting it up.   

Chair Simson summarized that the citizen has an opportunity aside from the TSP process to raise the level 

of awareness through staff, Police and the City Council.  Bob confirmed that there was an internal process 

to address the issue.  Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director, added that the City is developing a 

more formal traffic calming program.  She set forth that the City plans to address concerns as they arise 

and consider the impacts on the local roadways when money is allocated for traffic improvements on 

major roadways through the capital improvement program.   

Chair Simson commented that in the TSP there is a collector street from Roy Rogers Road to Sherwood 

Blvd, D29, identified as a long term project.  Chris Macijewski confirmed and said that the project came 

from collector grid spacing and Metro’s requirement for having a complete grid.  Chair Simson 

commented that there could be potential relief for Lynnly/ Houston in the long term.   

Chair Simson asked regarding additional pedestrian crossings in the update.  Mr. Maciejewski answered 

that crossings have been identified at the signalized locations; for example crossings on both sides of Edy 

Road crossing Hwy 99W.  He added that the Cedar Creek Trail has a grade separated crossing in the long 

term.  Chair Simson asked about a crossing on Langer Farms Parkway between Century Drive and Oregon 

760



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 9 of 24 

 

Street for safety purposes.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that crossings were at the intersections and in order 

to have a safe crossing at another location it may need more than striping.  He suggested that an enhanced 

crossing might be added as a TSP project.  The Commission was in favor of adding it.   

Chair Simson addressed Mr. Stewart’s request to continue the hearing and said in a quasi-judicial hearing 

the body is obligated to keep the record open if a continuance is requested. She asked if this was true for a 

legislative hearing.  Chair Simson commented that the public could testify at the City Council level.  Chris 

Crean, City attorney, answered that it was not a legal requirement because it was not in the statute.  He said 

it was required in a quasi-judicial, but not in a legislative context.  

Chair Simson began the Commission’s comments by turning to Volume 2 of the TSP documents, Section 

A, page 4.  She noted the Tualatin Sherwood Industrial Area and expressed a concern that the Tonquin 

Employment Area (TEA) was not called out and asked how the TEA was incorporated into the plan.  Mr. 

Maciejewski responded that Volume 2 was documentation of the context setting exercise for the project 

where all of the currently adopted plans were reviewed and said this particular language came from Metro’s 

TSP plan.  He said the land use and the transportation system from the concept planning for the TEA 

were incorporated into the analysis.  He suggested that a footnote could be added to clarify the reference, 

but it would not change the analysis.  The Commission was in favor of adding it.   

Chair Simson referred to the footnote 11 on page 5 and asked that it show the Sherwood Town Center as 

adopted instead of being considered for adoption.   

Chair Simson turned to page 9 of the same section and asked how Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan 

(RTP) regarding non-single occupancy vehicles targets applied to Sherwood.  She remarked that Sherwood 

is outside of the Portland area and not covered well by transit.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that Metro 

establishes the targets for the region and their targets vary by area; outer neighborhoods have different 

targets than inner neighborhoods, town centers, or employment areas.  He expressed that the designations 

in Metro’s 2040 Concept Plan for Sherwood are equivalent to what would be seen for other suburban 

areas around the region and not unique. He added that the City has to incorporate the targets into the TSP 

and Sherwood is compliant with those targets or moving towards those targets in the twenty year plan.  

The analysis in the plan shows that all areas of town, except the very northeastern portion off of Cipole 

Road, are in compliance with the targets and no specific strategies are needed to address shortcomings.   

Chair Simson asked for confirmation that Sherwood was already in compliance or moving towards 

compliance with Metro’s targets.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed and clarified that the Regional 

Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP) had a series of development alternatives the City needed to go 

through starting with operational enhancements, pedestrian and bicycle projects and building up to major 

capacity projects. He said that the process itself is one of the ways Metro dictates that communities move 

towards those targets in the process of updating the plan.  

Chair Simson expressed her concerns with applying Metro’s standards to our unique community and said 

we should try to preserve the small town community feeling when reviewing the document.  She said she 

has spoken with others in the community with the same concerns regarding Metro.   

Mr. Maciejewski discerned that if Sherwood was not meeting the targets and Metro was forcing action the 

City did not want, then it would be a greater issue.  He said the findings of the analysis were not used to 

761



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 10 of 24 

 

modify the project lists or the policies and advocated that the Commission address concerns with Metro in 

the long term, if it becomes an issue.  Chair Simson asked if that applied to the draft goals, strategies and 

policies should the Commission change items in the draft TSP because they did not meet the community 

vision and if the Commission was in jeopardy of violating Metro standards that would cause funding to be 

cut.   

Darci Rudzinski responded that the changes in the document reflect the multi-modal goals and non-single 

occupant vehicle (SOV) targets which are now in the document, because they were not strongly 

emphasized in the policy language or needed clarification that Sherwood was part of regional planning 

process.  She said the recommended language could be modified to better reflect the community and it 

was the appropriate time to do that. Ms. Rudzinski said the targets in the Regional Transportation 

Functional Plan (RTFP), and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) are high level and all-encompassing of 

the region. She remarked that Sherwood has representation at Metro and is represented on the technical 

advisory and policy advisory committees, and has a Metro councilor.  Sherwood’s plan should reflect the 

community’s goals and recognize that Sherwood is part of a region with regional aspirations.   

On that point, Chair Simson turned to page 12 of Section A under the heading Metro RTP Near-term 

goals, which is within the next one to four years, where it says that alternatives analysis for high capacity 

transit (HCT) corridor should be completed.  She enquired how that would be integrated into our 

community.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that it was in reference to the ongoing Southwest Corridor 

planning process underway that Metro was leading and not a new effort that Sherwood would undertake.  

Julia Hajduk concurred, suggesting that it could be clarified specifically as the Southwest Corridor project.  

A process that has decided not to bring high capacity transit (HCT) to Sherwood, but that Sherwood is 

part of the planning effort with local transit service connecting into the HCT in Portland, Tigard, and 

Tualatin.    

Chair Simson sought confirmation that the document was what Metro was requesting of us and by being 

included in the Southwest Corridor study area, even though Sherwood is not part of the HCT solution, it 

is connected locally through enhanced transit service through Tualatin.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that 

the goal is reached by participating in the planning processed which looks at the overall corridor strategies.    

Discussion followed with a reference to the Southwest Corridor process being added to the draft 

document.   

Ms. Rudzinski commented that the plan and policy summary was, a background policy document, done at 

the beginning of the process to illustrate all of the planning documents that informed the transportation 

planning process.  It does not obligate the City to do anything but identified anything that could be 

relevant to developing the TSP update. 

Chair Simson remarked that the only process she knew to review the Draft TSP was to start at the 

beginning and go through page by page.  She turned to Volume 1 of the TSP documents, page v, Traffic 

Calming. She asked regarding traffic calming and if the process needed to be called out in more detail; how 

does a citizen requests traffic calming per the TSP?  Julia responded that it was not appropriate to have 

that level of detail in the TSP and it was more of process of policy and the Community Development 

Department was working on a more comprehensive traffic calming program.  Even once that has been 

completed it would be part of the Municipal Code not the TSP.  Chair Simson asked if it should be part of 

762



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 11 of 24 

 

the goals, policies, or strategies in the Comprehensive Plan.  Julia concurred that it could be in the 

Comprehensive Plan as a goal to have a traffic calming program, but it would not identify the process.   

Mr. Maciejewski added that there are standards in Volume 2 around which types of traffic calming 

treatments are appropriate on which types of facilities which came from Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 

(TVF&R).  He explained that TVF&R went to all of their cities and counties in their service area and 

coordinated on what was acceptable for their primary response routes based on safety and impacts on 

travel time.   

Ms. Rudzinski added that Goal 3, Policy 10 is an existing policy that discusses traffic calming: the city will 

establish and maintain a set of guidelines and standards for traffic calming measures to retrofit existing streets and as part of 

land use review.  Chair Simson suggested a corresponding strategy to implement a traffic calming plan.   

Bob Galati, City Engineer, provided that there was language in the Traffic Calming section should change 

from the Sherwood “Public Works” department to the “Community Development” department.  

Chair Simson pointed to the Street Cross-Sections standard on page v and asked about the last sentence 

which reads: In constrained situations, a design exception may be allowed through a variance procedure.   She said in the 

development code a “variance” was a term used in land use application and in this context the street cross 

section would go through a “design exception”.  Bob, agreed and explained that in the Engineering Design 

Manual described how to apply for a design variation, the internal review process, and the appeal process 

to City Council.  Chair Simson requested to change the language from a variation procedure, which is already 

defined in the code, to a design exception process.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 37, project D24, Sherwood Blvd Intersection Modifications: remove 

the Sherwood Blvd/Langer Drive traffic signal (allow right-in, right-out, and left-in movement only), and install a traffic 

signal at the Sherwood Blvd/Century Drive intersection (add eastbound and westbound left turn lanes).  She commented 

that this was a topic of the [written] testimony and expressed her concern.   Chair Simson acknowledged 

that technically it was the correct project, but asked, as citizens of Sherwood, if it was politically and 

emotionally correct to remove the light.  She argued that the consultants and staff provided technically 

correct answers from Metro, ODOT, and computer models, but just as Villa Road was removed from the 

last TSP, did the Commission believe the signal should be removed in the short term.   

Commissioner Cooke indicated that she had concerns about removing the light and said she would like to 

see the impact of the new road going in off of Tualatin Sherwood Road first.  She acknowledged that the 

removal of the light may be an eventuality, but she was concerned of the impact on the retail areas nearby 

that already had vacant issues.  Discussion followed.  Bob Galati clarified that the removal of the light 

would make access right-in/right-out only and the project tries to correct an existing deficiency in how 

traffic backs up at the highway light through the intersection at peak times during the day.  He added that 

Dutch Bros was required to make improvements to prevent turning movement and traffic stacking onto 

Century Drive.  Bob explained that the identified project solution is to move signals around, but there is 

no indication of whether it will get worse.  He commented that it was more appropriate to determine 

whether it was a short term project, medium term, or long term project.  Commissioner Cooke 

commented on how long the Kohl’s location was empty and wanted to give them a chance to survive.  

With the Commission’s agreement, Chair Simson requested that project D24 be moved. She noted that the 

project list can change at the desire of City Council.  

763



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 12 of 24 

 

Julia Hajduk added that when the City Engineer prepares the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), a five year 

plan, the City looks at funds available, project costs, priorities, impacts, and need.  She said the preparation 

process for the CIP may become more publically inclusive.  Julia stated that if a project is listed as short 

term but there was no public support or dire need it would not be included in the CIP.  If a project is 

listed as long term and citizens are eager about getting the project done it might be moved up in priority.  

Chair Simson said that it was a $900,000 project and if it moved to an aspirational list it would free up 

funds for more appealing projects.   

Commissioner Griffin indicated that he would like to wait and see how the overall traffic pattern is 

affected by other signaling changes and suggested the project be placed on the medium term list.  He said 

he did not want to leave it on the short term list.  Mr. Maciejewski reminded the Commission that there 

was a major retail development on the east end of the corridor which showed the Century Drive/ 12th 

Street as a key corridor.   

Commissioner Cooke commented that she was not comfortable killing off an existing retail in favor of 

another and she would like to see how it played out.  Discussion followed.  

Chair Simson stated that she could see the benefit of the light on Century Drive, but did not see it as a 

short term project that needs to be done right now without roads in place and suggested medium term.  

The Commission was in agreement.  

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 39, Project P44, Oregon Street Sidewalk Infill Segment 1, and 

asked if the project was supposed to be a short term project.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that is was, but 

was missed when the draft document was edited.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 44, Figure 14 and asked if the map was presented to the Technical 

Advisory Committee or Citizen’s Advisory Committee.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that he did not think 

the map had been presented, but that it was a graphic representation of the strategies discussed with the 

committees with options for enhancing local transit service and providing connections to Tualatin.  He 

said they were routes where local service would be an option and if a local was study done regarding local 

transit routes, these were the prioritized locations.  Commissioner Griffin questioned if it would be 

TriMet, or a local city service.  Mr. Maciejewski said it could be either, but the map was showed the larger, 

arterial collector roadways that might be appropriate for a transit service route.    

Chair Simson asked how this impacted the developer when an application came in if a wider road would 

be required.  Brad commented that he would point it out to TriMet when notifying them of the project 

and see what kind of comment they provide.  He said if TriMet was not going to provide transit service, 

there would be no issues and until transit is within a quarter of a mile of a site, the city does not generally 

require anything of a developer and ask TriMet what they have planned for the area 99% of the time they 

don’t respond.  Chair Simson clarified that the existing blue colored line impacted current development 

and provides an opportunity if TriMet decides to connect Sherwood to Tualatin.  Brad responded that 

there is talk in the service enhancement plan of looking down Tualatin Sherwood road or to the YMCA.  

There may be opportunites on the blue line,but TriMet already stops where they want and the map was 

more of an indicator to the city staff.  Maciejewski added regarding traffic calming that if there was a 

proposal to do any modification to any roads to narrow or put in “vertical deflection devices” speed 

humps the transit routes should be cross referenced when making those decisions.   

764



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 13 of 24 

 

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 57, Truck Routes, where ODOT and Washington County identify 

Hwy 99W and Tualatin Sherwood /Roy Rogers Road as truck routes and that the city cannot limit the 

volume to capacity (V/C) ratio.    She explained that on page 55 it indicates that within the Sherwood 

Town Center, which includes Hwy 99W and Tualatin Sherwood /Roy Rogers Road, the traffic will be 

allowed to be over capacity.  She asked regarding this discrepancy.  Mr. Maciejewski explained that the 1.1 

v/c is part of metro’s RTP and should also match the Oregon Plan for that area and is an overlay that 

would supersede the freight route mobility standard for ODOT.   He said that Washington County, who 

manages Tualatin Sherwood Road does not necessarily comply with what Metro has in the RTP and  when 

doing something on Tualatin Sherwood Road, Washignton County standards trump. When doing 

something on the highway system, ODOT standards apply, but they are consistent with Metro in the 

Town Center overlay.  He said the freight routes outside of the Town Center have a certain standard and 

roads inside the Town Center apply a new Town Center standards.   

Chair Simson asked if the City was setting up for failure.  She went on the say that the standard for 

Washington County and ODOT was .99 and .90 and the City says it will allow 1.1 capacity on our Town 

Center which is over 100%.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that it was being done on facilities that were not 

Sherwood’s and those agencies have said they want to plan for that, because otherwise they would have to 

spend a lot more money that they do not have to avoid congestion issues.  It is how they choose to 

manage their system and planning for more than capacity, 1.1 v/c, what that means is they are anticipating 

that demand will spread into multiple hourse and people will change driving behavior, there will be more 

congestion in those areas, and traffic queues will get longer which is what they are expecting. 

Commissioner Cooke asked if those agencies were planning for more congestion in order to save money 

that it would cost to relieve in our small town.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed that it was not just for 

Sherwood but part of the statewide and regional policy.  Ms. Rudzinski added that planning and building 

for that type of congestion may give facilities that are larger and may destroy downtown as well.  You can 

try to build your way out of congestion, but the roadways you end up with are very wide.   

Chair Simson said she was reading a concern into it.  Mr. Maciejewski expressed that it was a tough 

balance. Commissioner Griffin added the plan mentions the effect of a change to the footprint of an 

intersection several times.  He said the intersections were rated with possible soluttions.  He said some of 

the solutions were ranked lower than others but were more palatable because it was less infrastructure 

coming into the city.  He said having 1.1 v/c was better than having eight lanes.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 67-68, Transit Service Enhancements and said it was her two 

greatest concerns about projects going forward and making sure the language allows citizen input.  It talks 

about high capacity transit.  In the last paragraph it says:  While it have been determine that high capacity transit 

(HCT) will not be provided from Portland to Sherwood through the current Southwest Corridor planning process, it is 

possible that HCT to Sherwood may be reconsidered in the long term.  Chair Simson suggesting added language 

indicating it would go through another public process.   Commissioner Griffin asked who decided that the 

option to reconsider HCT was going in the document.  Julia answered that the issue came up with Chair 

Simson said that HCT is not coming to Sherwood and this additional language that there may be addition 

processes that look at it long term and I think that is totally valid to acknowledge that if it is consider it will 

be through another regional planning process not because there is a sentence about it in the TSP.  Mr. 

765



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 14 of 24 

 

Maciejewski concurred and said it was consistent with the Sherwood Town Center process.  Discussion 

followed and staff was directed add the language to the plan.   

Chair Simson turned to Volume 1, page 67 and said the Brookman Road Concept Plan was mentioned in 

the plan several times that Washington County wants to designate Brookman Road and arterial road.  She 

explained that Brookman Road in the Concept Plan, as approved by City Council, as a collector route with 

several streets connecting to it. Chair Simson said she could not support the TSP that calls Brookman 

Road an arterial and inconsistent with the Brookman Road Concept Plan.  She said the Concept Plan 

should be revisited.  The spacing for the collector was set at 100-400 spaced roads, if it is made an arterial 

it would have 600-1000 foot spacing and a lot of people would be driving through small neighborhoods to 

get to a very big road and the plan did not intend this.   Commissioner Griffin commented that the 

property was inside our Urban Growth Boundary, but not inside the City limits and the County’s road.  He 

said he felt the County was mandating the road to be five lanes and he was not in favor of it.  Chair 

Simson asked if the City could designate the road to be a collector and force the County to come before 

the Planning Commission to change it to an arterial.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that the County has 

jurisdiction over the roadway so their road designation trumps the City’s designation.  He said if a land use 

action for the property was submitted, the County would make the decision.  Chair Simson stated that 

scenario is okay so long as the area was in Washington County, because the project will be completed to 

County Standards, but if the area is annexed into our city the Comprehensive Plan and the Brookman Area 

Concept plan will be in play and there would be a conflict.  Chris Crean commented that, absent an 

agreement between the County and the City, both comprehensive plans can’t apply at the same time; it is 

one or the other.  So long as the road is outside of the city, the County’s comp plan applies.  Brookman 

road is a County road, some roads automatically transfer juridictions with an annexation others are subject 

to a transfer process.  If the county transfers the road to the city then the city’s comp plan applies.   

Julia specified that the zoning is not for a collector road, but the street spacing that was illustrated in the 

concept plan shows spacing much closer together and it was envisioned that it was going to be a collector 

road.  She said that if it comes in as an arterial road and the county standards apply the zoning does not 

change, but there would be wider spacing.  That does not mean that we would not want to review if the 

planned zoning on an arterial road was still appropriate.  

Chair Simson explained that she was part of the Brookman Road Concept planning and she was looking at 

the zoning map that lays out all of the zoning and language in the Comprehensive plan with the roads.  In 

there is says a significant challenge to development of the Brookman Road area is providing connections to the surrounding 

street network without degrading livability on residential streets.  When created the plan anticipated light industrial, 

neighborhood commercial with a lot of density next to 99w anticipating that people would be able to 

access it.  She said that if they cannot access Hwy 99W then they will use Middleton Road to get to Sunset 

or down the road 1000 feet to go through a residential neighborhood and she had great concerns that we 

will be sending commercial traffic through neighborhoods to get to get to Hwy 99. 

Bob interjected that in his discussions with the County they said it would not happen, County arterial 

spacing standards cannot be maintained with that development and an already concept planned area with 

the spacing requirements.  He explained that normally there could be a parallel collector status road that 

would connect to the arterial at the appropriate spacing levels, but that is not going to work there because 

the spacing is too narrow, with topographic constraints, the vegetative corridor and presence of the 

766



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 15 of 24 

 

railroad that chops it up.  Bob said there is no way to meet the County’s spacing standards for an arterial 

and be able to develop the area.  He commented that the other aspect is that the identified southern 

connector is not set up, they want to go further south, but cannot because of political lines.   It is a 

roadway that has been overlaid for political expediency and even if the County indicated it would be 

twenty years before constructing the southern connector there was a question of what happens with all the 

road connections.  The area will develop and the properties will have to have local road connectors. Bob 

said it will have to be a compromise, that is why it is a redefinement area and the Concept Plan will have to 

be looked at again.   

Mr. Maciejewski added that it was important to understand the context. This is the I-5 /99 connector 

southern arterial that the County is talking about and they believe it is important.  He said the City 

supports a strategy for roads to bypass the city and the County cannot show the line south of Brookman 

Road because that would be outside the Urban Growth Boundary.   The County needs to adopt their plan 

with the connector shown on Brookman Road and they want to move ahead with the arterial shown there.  

He said the County has suggested policy language acknowledging that there is a functional need for both 

types of roads in the area; one to move regional traffic and one to provide access to Brookman Road and 

the County will have to look case by case as development comes in and cannot legally land lock properties 

and say there is no access unless they buy the property.   Mr. Maciejewski acknowledged that there will 

have to be compromises until additional planning work is done and The County may have to apply for a 

goal exception to move the arterial alignment south of Brookman Road.   

Commissioner Griffin asked why the County was designating only a portion of the road if they do not 

have a plan for the southern extension of I-5.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that from 124th Ave east they 

do, from Ladd Hill to 99W is Brookman Road, and the part in between goes through Clackamas County 

and they do not have control over that area.  He said The RTP has the entire corridor in the plan and 

when the I-5/ 99 Connector Study was completed it showed a fairly straight east to west alignment across 

the area that would require major grading work to get through the hills.   

Bob said the language in the TSP update was approximately three months of negotiation with County 

Planning and it was the best compromise to provide assurances for the developer’s expectations, and still 

give the city the flexibility to change the plan to meet needs as they occur.   He said it is a difficult situation 

to get both the city and county TSPs to align.   

Commissioner Griffin asked if the city could show support a bypass route that would take traffic out of 

populated areas.  Chair Simson expressed her concern for the language that said the long term intent is to re-

evaluate the Brookman Addition Concept Plan.  She asked if long term meant after the area is annexed in and 

then change the plan for the property owners.  She commented that it would be a staff level and a funding 

issue to revisit the concept plan to match the arterial.   

Julia added that the reevaluation could happen at any time; if funding can be obtained, concurrent with 

annexation discussions, after annexation.  Sher explained that re-planning and re-zoning happen often, it is 

not unheard of to do after annexation and a conversation to have with property owners.   

Commissioner Sally Robinson said she would be more comfortable with language at the bottom of page 

67 where it says In the interim to provide for future flexibility, Brookman Road has been designated as an arterial with a 

5-lanes of right away needed if it indicated that the County was identifying the road as an arterial.   

767



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 16 of 24 

 

Chair Simson asked regarding the County giving the road to the City and reverting access spacing that 

complies with the concept plan.  Mr. Maciejewski advised that if the County was preserving the roadway 

corridor for the southern arterial they were unlikely to hand the road over.  Bob added that if the County 

could build the corridor further south they may be amenable to if it the City wanted it.  The Commission 

requested to add “by Washington County” to the document. Julia reminded the Commission that the city 

was required to have our TSP to be consistent with the County’s TSP and Metro RTP.    Julia indicated 

that the City did discuss this with the county, regarding the arterial, but in the end the two documents have 

to be consistent and we cannot adopt something that is blatantly not.   Chair Simson asked if the County 

was willing to incorporate the Brookman Concept Plan into their document.  Bob answered that the 

County had worked the flexibility into the language that allows the concept plan to be looked at and the 

need to be flexible in applying county standards for development in the area.  Mr. Maciejewski 

acknowledged that it was not the ideal and the desired function is to have no access except aat a few 

arterial street connections based on the TSP language for the eastern portion of the corridor from 124th to 

I-5.  With the language proposed for Brookman Road the county shows that they realize they cannot have 

that type of access control.   The language in the County’s TSP is “cut and pasted” into the City’s.  Bob 

added that the language was what we worked together with them that was something was acceptable. 

Commissioner Griffin commented that it was a triumph considering that the City does not even own the 

road. Staff was requested to add “designated by Washington County” to the document. 

Commissioner Robinson asked regarding Langer Farms Parkway near Home Depot.  She referred to 

project D12 on the project list which extends it to the other side of 99W and asked if it was considered to 

have Langer Farms Parkway wider to accommodate the growth from the Walmart coming in to town and 

the other traffic that will be created by that.  Mr. Maciejewski replied that the volume demand for the road 

was projected for the next twenty years and when the concept plan for the area was designed the city took 

into account all of the potential development in the area and forecast out twenty years to see if there was 

enough demand to warrant a four or five lane corridor. At the time there was not enough demand to use it 

as a short cut route, but primarily to provide access and the decision was to design it as a two to three lane 

roadway.  Chair Simson asked if none of the modeling for the road from Oregon Street to Home Depot 

projected more than one lane each way.  Mr. Maciejewski affirmed.    

 

Commissioner Robinson expressed her surprise and expressed that she thought it should be part of a long 

term plan to expand the roadway if development warrants it.  Chair Simson commented that designating it 

as a larger road would require a larger right of way than is currently required.  Mr. Maciejewski confirmed 

and said that by adopting the road as a larger corridor a right of way dedication would be required from 

future developments.  He commented that there would be no technical basis for justifying a larger corridor 

and questioned if that would cause issues.  Bob related that staff could provide the technical basis for the 

road designations and said to speculate on the future size of the road or the business development without 

the technical support leaves the City open to being challenged at all levels the first of which would be an 

appeal that the City would lose.  Mr. Maciejewski related that the study did not indicate a huge demand 

using the link from Tualatin Sherwood to 99W north towards Tigard; coming south from Tigard to 

Tualatin was not a huge demand. The major regional demand is crossing the highway to Roy Rogers or 

south to Newberg and of all those origins of destinations. It is the least dominant traffic stream.  After a 

768



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 17 of 24 

 

comment from Commissioners Walker and Simson that they plan using the road, Mr. Maciejewski stated 

that the road will be utilized by local traffic, but local traffic generally are not enough to trigger a multi-lane 

roadway.  Commissioner Walker said she expected traffic from Tigard turning left at the Home Depot to 

cut through to Tualatin Sherwood Road to avoid the traffic stacking at the light at Tualatin Sherwood 

Road and Hwy 99W.  Mr. Maciejewski reminded the Commission to remember that SW 124th Ave going 

south of Tualatin Sherwood down to Tonquin Road, into the north Wilsonville area, so all the 

Tigard/northern Tualatin demand will use the 124th corridor to go north/south through the area, which 

may explain the projections.   

Commissioner Robinson asked regarding upgrades to Tonquin Road.  Mr. Maciejewski indicated that the 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Washington County’s TSP have upgrades to Tonquin Road, not 

to a five lane road, but a standard two lane road with upgrades to an urban standard east into Tualatin’s 

planning area with three lanes, sidewalks and bike lanes.   

Bob read on page V of the Preface, Transportation Standards, Street Cross-Sections where it states that new 

streets shall meet the design requirement in Sherwood’s Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual per the functional class 

in the TSP was referring to the street cross sections.  He said the cross section requirements need to be part 

of the TSP and the design manual concurs with the TSP and may even show the same details.    Bob 

explained that, as the City Engineer, he was following the TSP as far as the standard for road sections; 

designation and physical standard.  He stated that details (Figure 8-2 to Figure 8-6) needed to be in the 

TSP documents.  The language Engineering Design and Standard Details Manual per the functional class in the TSP was 

changed to Transportation System Plan per Figures attached.   

Chair Simson moved to page 53 of the Planning Commission packet to the Proposed Transportation 

Goals and Policies and asked for comments.  Receiving none, she turned to page 57 and expressed that 

she thought Strategy 4: Plan for an array of transportation assets and services to meet the needs of the transportation –

disadvantaged, was a duplicate of Goal 5: Provide reliable convenient transit service to Sherwood residents and businesses 

as well as special transit options for the City’s elderly and disable residents.  Darci Rudzinski responded that she did 

not think the strategy was as narrow as just planning for transit.   

Chair Simson read Strategy 5: Evaluate, identify, and map existing and further neighborhoods for potential small scale 

commercial businesses to primarily serve local residents.   She said this was an existing strategy and that the 

commentary suggested that the strategy be reevaluated to ensure that is continues to be relevant and match 

the city’s priorities. She asked if there was ever a need to rezone from residential to commercial and if it 

was a strategy that was needed in the TSP.  Ms. Rudzinski responded that the strategy was related to Policy 

4: The City shall encourage the use of more energy efficient and environmentally sound alternatives to the automobile by: (last 

bullet) encouraging the development of self-contained neighborhoods, providing a wide range of land use activities within a 

single area.  She said it was likely the City was looking at mixed use neighborhoods with a small commercial 

serving the neighborhood through a convenience store or hair salon that would not attract a lot of traffic 

but serve the needs of the immediate neighborhood.  The strategy was there to ensure those uses were 

allowed in the right places and not just everywhere.   Commissioner Griffin commented that it said 

potential and that action was not required. He said it could apply to the edge between Brookman Road 

residential the commercial properties and the strategy was not irrelevant yet.  Chair Simson suggested that 

it was more for the existing neighborhoods like the southeast Sherwood area.  The strategy remained.   

769



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 18 of 24 

 

Chair Simson turned to page 60, Goal 2, Strategy 7: Adopt performance measures that are consistent with regional 

modal targets for non-single occupancy vehicles and track the City’s progress with meeting adopted goals and policies each 

successive TSP update.  Chair Simson suggested to add “based on local community goals” and said she did 

not like having to adopt Metro’s standards without applying community values.  Ms. Rudzinski  suggested 

“consistent with community values”, which was accepted by the Commission.   

Chair Simson turned to page 66, Goal 3, Strategy 12 it has deleted language and with the new language that 

says Support public or private development of the bicycle and pedestrian improvements shown on Map 2 of the Town Center 

Plan.   She said that through the town center plan we were trying to incorporate both sides of 99w and 

making sure that opportunities were available throughout the six corners area and commented that the 

deleted language included six corners. We have identified six corners within our comprehensive plan   as a 

region and the area developing on both sides of the highway to complement each other and not be 

completely different.   

Note: The deleted language was “consider a mixed use overlay zone in a the development code that will apply to the Six 

Corners area.  Include design standards that will encourage a vibrant, pedestrian friendly environment through the 

implementation of boulevards, medians, mixed-use development and site design”.   

Commissioner Griffin commented that the strategy changed from six corners to bicycle and pedestrian 

improvements and they seem unrelated. 

Ms. Rudzinski  responded that coming out of the Town Center Plan, the town center was identified as the 

city’s concentration zone where mixed use would be the most appropriate and the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation was not to ignore north of 99w but that there should be some integration with similar 

policies. She was not aware that there was strong support for mixed use and she could see that what was 

recommended was not a one for one replacement, but taking advantage of the space provided by a deleted 

policy.  She said that if the existing policy is still valid, and the Town Center Plan did not fulfill the desire 

then it could remain, but she thought it was a placeholder for when Six Corners was considered the town 

center.  Chair Simson concurred that the mixed use overlay was not as relevant as when the area was the 

town center but as was testified tonight, the citizens on both sides of the highway need to have the same 

opportunity for bicycle and pedestrian avenues that connect to each other.  She said the Commission 

fought during the town center planning efforts to create cohesion; that six corners, both north and south 

of Tualatin Sherwood Road but east and west of Hwy 99 be treated to get the connectivity. Ms. Rudzinski  

replied that she did not think Map 2 would satisfy that for north of the highway, Although it was an 

important strategy for the Town Center Plan.  She suggested adding the six corners language to the 

proposed language so that the support for public and private development of bicycle and pedestrians 

without being confined the map that shows the town center.  The Commission was in favor of adding 

“and within the six corners area north and south of the highway”.   

Chair Simson turned to page 73, Goal 5,  Policy 9: The city supports transit service that serves the needs of the 

residents and businesses in and adjacent to the Town Center, including maintaining a robust local transit service network and 

planning for future local and high capacity transit service to neighboring cities.  She asked if there was any concern 

about the language.  Commissioner Griffin commented that it did not tie the city down to anything.  

 

770



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 19 of 24 

 

Chair Simson turned to page 75, Goal 5, Strategy 4: Work with Metro, as well as the cities of Tualatin and Tigard, 

to explore feasible modes and location to provide high-capacity transit service to the Towne Center and adjacent areas.   She 

said that she was okay with this strategy and expressed concern for Strategy 6: Continue to explore opportunities 

to achieved long term transit supportive densities in the Town Center in order to increase the viability of high-capacity transit.   

Chair Simson said to her it meant an increase in density and expressed concern over that policy decision.  

Commissioner Griffin commented that this concern not wanting to increase density was expressed during 

the town center meetings.   Chair Simson disclosed that the commission felt pressured during the Town 

Center planning process to comply with metro requirements.  She asked if the city was required through 

this process or any other process to increase our densities.   

Ms. Rudzinski responded that it was not required through this process, but as part of having a community 

that can support transit is having enough people and businesses to do that.  High Capacity Transit is very 

destination oriented and there needs to be enough of those to support that type of investement.  Ms. 

Rudziniski reminded that there were also positive comments regarding having transit as an option, but 

ridership drives demand and demand is provided by people and businesses and without one you cannot 

cost effectively have the other.  She said the focus has shifted since the development of the Town Center 

planning away from high capacity transit because it has been deemed not feasible to come all the way to 

Sherwood.  She said Strategy 4 keeps the door open for future planning and Strategy 6 is a question for the 

PlanningCommission to answer.   

Commissioner Griffin declared that it was too far in the wrong direction to continue to explore to increase 

the viability of high capacity transit; he did now think the city was in a position to be looking for that right 

now and that the statement was not relavant at the moment.  He said Sherwood wanted connectivity with 

TriMet and surrounding cities, but the public has not shown interest in light rail or increasing density.  

Chair Simson commented that the buildings shown, in the town center planning process, over three stories 

were received poorly.  Commissioner   Robinson suggested deleting Strategy 6 and keeping Strategy 4.  

The Commission voiced their approval of the suggestion.   

Chair Simson said she was done with her suggestions for Goals and Policies.  Commissioner Griffin 

pointed to page 67, Goal 3, Strategy 19: The City will reexamine local street standards and will expore appropriate 

locations within the City an circumstances under which a narrower street standards may be permitted as part of new 

development.  He said he understood having less impervious surface and commented with words like 

reexamine, consider, explore, and if appropriate the strategy may be vague enough to be acceptable.  

Commissioner Clifford commented on SW Dewey Drive, a curved road with houses on either side, with 

parking on one side and parking was horrible on Fridays because of garbage cans on the street for 

collection and the buses and car traffic. He asked how a situation like that could be avoided.  

Commissioner Cooke concurred that the situation was unsafe.  Mr. Maciejewski responded that the issues 

were a lack of connectivity that forces all the traffic onto one roadway and the design of the road itself.  

He said the cross-sections in the Plan have a narrower local street (28’) and a wider option; there are 

volume thresholds for when each street would be appropriate.  In the update, a road like Dewey, that is a 

higher local volume, would not be a 28 foot wide street and he thought it has already been addressed with 

the cross-sections and the strategy may not be relevant by the work that has been done in the TSP.   

 

771



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 20 of 24 

 

Commissioner Walker commented that when the road is built you may not know how much traffic it will 

have.  Mr. Maciejewski answered that when development occurs a traffic study is done for the roadways 

and should consider connectivity in the area and what the TSP forecast has indicated.   Chair Simson 

commented it was probably not envisioned that SW Lynnly and Houston would be accessed the way they 

are either and it is hard to think of using streets more narrow than we already have.   The commission 

wanted to remove Strategy 19.  

Chair Simson noted errors beginning with page 85, the first reference to the TSP should be written out as 

Transportation System Plan and page 88, second paragraph, the and/or should be and.   

Chair Simson turned to page 92, and expressed concern for the existing code for carpool and vanpool 

parking spaces that requires preferential spaces for development with twenty or more employees.  

Commissioner Griffin added that the carpool/vanpool spaces would be required to be located closer to 

the main entrance than all other spaces except for ADA spaces and asked where that came from.  Ms. 

Rudzinski replied that the language was modified language from the model code for small cities and 

commented that it was not a lot of spaces, but a space or two next to the employee entrance and was 

intended to incentivize carpooling to increase the non-single occupant vehicle percentage.  Commissioner 

Simson asked how the twenty employees was determined.  Ms. Rudzinski responded that it did not make 

sense to provide carpool spaces for small businesses, the number is somewhat arbitrary and the intent was 

to incentivize the behavior in the larger businesses.  Commissioner Walker asked if the employees were full 

time or part time.  Ms. Rudzinski answered that the determination would be at development review and 

would not be monitored over time in a community this small.  It would be a one-time deal; for a business 

park, larger employer, or industrial area.  Commissioner Walker suggested increasing the number of 

employees.  Discussion followed regarding the correct number.  Suggestions ranged from a hundred 

employees when TDM requirements are required, forty five for when healthcare is required.  

Commissioner Walker suggested forty full time employees, which was accepted by the Commission.  

Commissioner Clifford asked about local shopping centers that have fifteen minute parking stalls and 

asked if the businesses were offering that or if it was an incentive by the developer.  Ms. Rudzinski 

indicated that she had not seen any code that required them.  Brad Kilby suggested it was a leasing 

incentive and the City only required that a minimum number of parking spaces be provided and how the 

parking is managed is up to the property owner.  Ms. Rudzinski added that a parking management plan 

should be part of development in the Town Center Plan.   

Chair Simson turned to pages 100-101 and asked why the maps were being deleted.  Ms. Rudzinski 

explained it was so that information was not duplicated so that the development code does not have to be 

updated when the TSP updates.  She added that it was unusual to have the maps in the code.   

Chair Simson complimented staff for the article in the May edition of the Sherwood Archer explaining that 

the Capacity Allocation Program (CAP) would be removed.  She indicated that if there were issues from 

the development community, they would be at the hearing, but none were present.  Chair Simson 

explained that Bob Galati had explained why the CAP was no longer relevant in a work session and she 

thought it was a great idea.  She said the citizens had enough notice and opportunity to raise a concern if 

they wanted the CAP to remain and it gave her a comfort level that the Commission was doing something 

outside of what citizens would be concerned about.   

772



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 21 of 24 

 

Chair Simson turned to pages 96-99, Bicycle Parking and Facilities.  She said the section seemed cost 

prohibitive and needed a defined number of hours for short term and long term parking.  Commissioner 

Griffin stated that the language says long term is defined as at least several hours which needed to be 

clearer.   If it is long term racks, storage rooms, or lockers have to be provided located within one hundred 

feet of the entrance and covered.  He said that could be expensive.   

Chair Simson agreed and turned to the table on page 99.  She said it was an existing table with use 

categories that she thought was in the code because it was required by Metro in 2005. She said the use 

categories listed in the table did not match the use categories in Sherwood’s code and what was driving the 

number of bicycle spaces required did not align with existing uses.  Chair Simson asked what the City was 

required to put in the code per Metro or any other governing agencies.  Ms. Rudzinski answered that the 

City needs to distinguish between long term and short term   and the definition is by design.  The City may 

identify people who will not only use a bike rack for a certain duration, but to look at it as a design issue in 

providing space for people to feel comfortable leaving the bicycle for a longer period of time.  

Commissioner Griffin said the commission needed to come up with a more concrete way of measuring 

long term parking.   

Ms. Rudzinski answered that the city requires the design to have a certain amount to be long term bicycle 

parking and must have at least one long term space and of the amount required a certain percentage of 

those will be long term. Commissioner Griffin asked what the racks, storage rooms, or lockers were like 

and if they were inside or outside.   Ms. Rudzinski responded that there should be flexibility in the code in 

this respect and examples can be found to guide developers; a plastic locker like the ones found at transit 

centers, a closet area inside, anything as long as somebody feels like they can leave their bike there for 

longer than it takes to go into a convenience store.  She explained that the long term parking is for the 

commuter, student, or employee who will work a shift and does not want to leave their bike vulnerable to 

the elements or to being taken.  She recognized that it was a shift in thinking and was more difficult to 

conceive how it would look in Sherwood but everyone was struggling with this and figuring out what 

makes sense for their communities. Regarding the table, Ms. Rudzinski said it was not unusual to roll up 

uses, unlike parking requirements that are use oriented.  She said the bicycle parking could be tacked on to 

the parking requreiments table but the existing table would be the easiest way to go because only the 

design will change not the requirements.  She suggested that looking at the appropriateness of specific 

bicycle parking requirements for specific uses was a longer process.   

Chair Simson pointed out that the last items on the list (colleges, schools, community service, parks and 

open spaces, park and ride facilities) were zoned Institutional Public and should be categorized as such.  

She advocated changing Basic utilities to Industrial and asked what drive up vehicle servicing was.  She was 

informed it was like a Jiffy Lube.  She asked about Drive-thru restaurants and determined that they would 

require bicycle parking with one long term space.  This provided four categories: Residential, Commercial, 

Industrial, and Institutional Public.   

Chair Simson and Commissioner Griffin declared that they were still not happy with the long term 

parking.  Chair Simson repeated her sentiment that it was cost prohibitive.  Brad commented that in 1.d of 

the section it requires that at least 50% of the require bicycle parking spaces be long-term.  He noted a project he 

worked on in the private sector for a private school that required 40 parking spaces and commented that 

the 50% requirement would have been an issue.  He said there were different ways to cover the bicycle 

773



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 22 of 24 

 

parking and talked about the cantilevered roof on the bathrooms at Stella Olsen Park to provide covered 

bicycle parking.  If cost is a concern the Commission could lower the percentage of required long term 

spaces.     

Chair Simson asked regarding long term parking in a park, where the parking has to been within one 

hundred feet of the entrance and secured or with a security guard.  Councilor Robyn Folsom revealed that 

she was the council liaison to the parks board when the bathrooms were being built and this code 

requirement was a concern. She said it almost stopped the bathrooms from being built.   

Commissioner Cook added that she had a child who bikes around town and she was teaching him to lock 

up his bicycle.  She said she did not see very many bike commuters and did not see an increase in the next 

twenty years.  She said 50% seemed aspirational and a high threshold to reach.  Brad added that he rode 

his bike to work at a previous job and often the employer will make concessions for bicycle commuters.   

Chair Simson and Commissioner Cooke said that their experience was that bicycle commuters would bring 

their bicycles inside the building for long term parking.   Commissioner Cooke intimated that she would be 

comfortable with 25%.   

Ms. Rudzinski reminded that the long term parking requirement was flexible and could be as little as a 

bicycle hook on the wall in the utility closet inside that building. She said it may be difficult at site design 

approval without the building plans, but for the smaller employer it would be easier to accommodate 

inside.  Ms. Rudzinski said there was a lot of flexibility for how to satisfy what secure means and the 

language is not suggesting that Sherwood has to make sure every development has a security guard for one 

bike commuter.   

Chair Simson commented that it may be difficult for an applicant that has to meet all of the code 

requirements with a code requiring racks in an area that is secure or monitored, within a hundred feet of 

the entrance.  Commissioner Griffin asked if the requirement was putting a burden on certain businesses 

and said that he understood the concept of encouraging people to bicycle.  

Commissioner Walker suggested that if the requirement is more than four or five long term spaces then 

the code applies, and if the applicant meets a minimum threshold then the 25% of the parking must be 

long term parking.  Discussion followed with the following language being proposed.  “If required to 

provide eight or more bicycle parking spaces, 25% of those spaces must be long term”.   The commission 

discussed how this would work with Target as an example. They decided that if Target was a new 

development they would be required to provide five long term bicycle parking spaces and that it was a 

reasonable number.   

Commissioner Walker said she was more concerned for the burden placed on the small businesses.  Brad 

commented that he liked long term bike parking for his bike and he did not want to leave it out.  Chair 

Simson asked him that if long term bicycle parking was at City Hall and it met the code if he would park 

his bike there or in his workspace.  Brad responded that he would use the long term parking because he 

did not have room in his work space.  He revealed that when he does ride his bike there is closet under the 

stairs that is available.   

Chris Crean added that when he was a bicycle commuter he used a fenced off area in the parking structure 

that was secured and he would not leave his bicycle outside all day.   Bob Galati commented on bicycle 

774



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 23 of 24 

 

lockers that could be rented at a location in Portland.  Mr. Crean commented that they were expensive and 

a secure, covered and fenced area was good.   

Commissioner Robinson asked if the current schools in Sherwood were meeting the criteria being 

discussed and was informed that they probably were not.   She said she did not think much of the 

population in Sherwood commuted and asked if anyone had researched how much of the population was 

being served.  Mr. Maciejewski said those numbers were not available.  Ms. Rudzinski argued that it was a 

“Catch 22” and facilities need to be provided before people will commute by bicycle.  It is a safety and 

security issue and if you do not build it, people won’t commute by bicycle.   Brad related that Sherwood is 

on the scenic route for Washington County and the Commission has discussed ways to do agro-tourism to 

wineries and the city could attract that dynamic.  The commission members confirmed the suggested 

language.   

Commissioner Clifford asked regarding the language requiring the long term spaces to be located within 

one hundred feet of the entrance and asked if it could be changed to be more specific which entrance was 

appropriate.  Commissioner Griffin said it specified that the language indicates that it is the entrance 

accessed by the intended users.  He commented that it did not matter to him where it was located if it was 

inside the building because it would be out of the rain. Chair Simson suggested that the space could be any 

place inside the building or within 100 feet of the entrance, if outside.  Discussion followed with the 

language changed to “Locate outside spaces within a hundred feet of the entrance that will be accessed by 

the intended users”.  

Chair Simson stated that she had no other concerns or comments and asked the commission for any.    

Commissioner Griffin commented that at the discretion of the City Engineer was used several times in the code 

and asked if that was how it was meant to be.  Bob responded that the TSP goes hand and hand with 

design variations and if an applicant comes up with something outside of the standards they will have to 

justify it but it will not be a granted for monetary motives.  He said he needed some leeway to take into 

account certain design requirements that are unique; a property that does not fit and development cannot 

work without flexibility.  Bob said it was a balancing act and he did not grant everything that comes in.   

Commissioner Griffin asked if it would stand up at LUBA.   

Chris Crean said he was less concerned about LUBA and more concerned with statutes that allow 

challenges to conditions that seem arbitrary.    A decision that is exclusively at the discretion of a person 

without standards and safeguards could be abused and become arbitrary and capricious decision making.  

He said in this case the way the code and the manual work out, the design exception process allows for 

variations from design standards that are administered by the City Engineer with its own internal standards 

and safeguards to protect against arbitrary decision making by the City Engineering.   Bob added that the 

design standards manual is written in a manner that requires the City Engineer to document decisions, 

with background information and written justification why the exceptions are accepted with limitations 

being placed on them.  He said he liked having the option of trying to make something work but was very 

rigid when it came to the applicability of making a change to a standard and if there is a very good reason 

for it that can be supported.  

With no other comments, the following motion was received. 

775



  
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes- DRAFT  

May 27, 2014 

Page 24 of 24 

 

Motion: From Commissioner Lisa Walker to forward a recommendation of approval to the City 

Council for PA 14-01 Transportation System Plan Update based on the applicant testimony, public 

testimony received, and the analysis, findings and conditions in the staff report with the 

modifications as discussed. Seconded by Commissioner John Clifford.   

Julia Hajduk asked if the recommendation could be to a “date certain” so the public hearing with the City 

Council did not have to be noticed.  Discussion followed regarding when the Council would be available, 

noticing procedures, deadlines for the grant contract and who pays for the consultants.  The Commission 

decided to re-notice and the vote was taken.   

All present Planning Commissioners voted in favor (Vice Chair James Copfer was absent). 

8.  Adjourn 

Chair Simson adjourned the meeting at 10:35 pm. 

 

Submitted by: 

_________________________________________     

Kirsten Allen 

Planning Department Program Coordinator 

 

 

Approval Date: __________________________________ 

776



ATTACHMENT I

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 6 777



Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 2 of 6 778



June 3, 2014 

Proposed edits to the Transportation System Plan 

TSP Volume I 

Scrivener’s Errors  

Preface page V  

 First paragraph, second sentence under Transportation Standards – insert “to” so that the 

sentence reads, “These apply to city…” 

 Second paragraph, first sentence under Transportation Standards – replace, “Engineering Design 

and Standard Details Manual1” with “TSP” and eliminate footnote 1.  

 Check all footnote numbering. 

 Fourth paragraph, first sentence under Transportation Standards – replace “Sherwood Public 

Works Department” with “Sherwood Community Development Department” at the end of the 

sentence. 

 Fifth paragraph, second sentence under Transportation Standards – insert “incorporate” so that 
the sentence reads, “Connections shown on the figure do not necessarily incorporate 
topographic,...” 

 

Page 67 

 Second paragraph, first sentence under Function and Design of Brookman Road and Concept 

Plan Area Update – insert, “designated by Washington County” so that the sentence reads, “In 

the interim…arterial designated by Washington County with 5-lanes…” 

 

Page 68 

 Second Paragraph – add the following language to the end of the sentence to read, “…it is 

possible that HCT to Sherwood may be reconsidered in the long term, but any decision to do so 

would require a separate public process. 

Substantive Changes 

Table 1: The Fundable Transportation System  

 Page 37 - Move Project D-24 from a short- term priority to a medium- term project 

 Page 39- Move Project P44 from a medium-term project to a short-term project 

 

Throughout the document  

 Change the term “variance procedure” to “design exception process” when discussing an 

exception made to the design as authorized by the City Engineer as opposed to  “Variances” 

regulated under Chapter 16.84 of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code 

(SZCDC). 

 

ATTACHMENT J

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 3 of 6 779



TSP Volume II – Section G - Code Amendments from Angelo Planning Group revised May 14, 2014  

 

Scrivener’s Errors  

 

 Section 16.106.010.A (page 3) – Spell out “Transportation System Plan” as opposed to TSP since 

this is the first time in the section that it is referenced. 

 Section 16.106.080.A (page 6) – Last sentence in second paragraph replace “and/or” with “and” 

so that the sentence reads, “…part of the proposal and mitigation measures approved for the 

proposal. 

 Section 16.106.090 (page 9) – renumber so that the purpose statement is “A.” and becomes 

“16.106.090.A Purpose” 

Substantive Changes 

 Section 16.94.010.E.3.a (page 10) – Change the provision so that new developments with forty 

(40) or more employees include preferential carpool/vanpool spaces as opposed to the current 

language which requires twenty (20) or more. The language would read as follows: “All new 

development with (20)(40) employees or more shall include preferential spaces for either car-

pool and/vanpool designation. Carpool and vanpool parking spaces shall be located closer to the 

main employee entrance than all other parking spaces with the exception of ADA parking 

spaces. Carpool/Vanpool spaces shall be clearly marked as reserved for carpool/vanpool only. 

 Section 16.94.020.1.d (page 15) – Amend the language to say, “Minimum number of long-term 

spaces. If a development is required to provide eight (8) or more required bicycle parking spaces 

in Table 4, at least 25% shall be provided as long-term bicycle with a minimum of one long-term 

bicycle parking space.” – This is a new standard. The consultants recommended 50% of required 

bicycle parking spaces regardless of the number required be provided as long-term spaces. With 

the Planning Commission recommendation a use would require 160- vehicle parking spaces 

before it would be required to provide one long-term bicycle parking space. 

 Section 16.94.020.2.c.(2) (page 16) – Amend the language to say, “Locate the outside bicycle 

parking spaces within 100 feet of the entrance that will be accessed by the intended users.” – 

This is a new standard, the Planning Commission just intended that bicycle parking spaces that 

were placed outside of the business would need to be located within 100 feet to allow bicycle 

parking that may be provided indoors for employees to be located anywhere within the 

building. 

 Table 4 (Page 17) – Amend the table so that the categories include “Public and Institutional 

Categories” for the uses Park and Ride facilities and below, and replace “Basic Utilities” with 

“Industrial Uses.” – Table 4 would be amended as follows: 

Use Categories Minimum Required Spaces 

Residential Categories  

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 4 of 6 780



Household living Multi-dwelling — 2 or 1 per 10 auto 

spaces. 

All other residential structure types 

— None 

Group living 1 per 20 auto spaces 

Commercial Categories  

Retail sales/service office 2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever 

is greater 

Drive-up vehicle servicing None 

Vehicle repair None 

Commercial parking facilities, commercial, outdoor recreation, 

major event entertainment 

4 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever 

is greater 

Self-service storage None 

Industrial Categories/Service Categories  

Basic utilities 

Industrial 

2 or 1 per 40 spaces, whichever is 

greater 

Public and Institutional Categories  

Park and ride facilities 2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces 

Community service essential service providers parks and open 

areas 

2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces, whichever 

is greater 

Schools High schools — 4 per classroom 

 Middle schools — 2 per classroom 

 Grade schools — 2 per 4th & 5th 

grade classroom 

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 5 of 6 781



Colleges, medical centers, religious institutions, daycare uses 2 or 1 per 20 auto spaces whichever 

is greater 

 

TSP Volume II – Section G- Table 2: Draft Proposed Amendments to Section B [Chapter 6 of the 

Comprehensive Plan] – Goals Policies and Strategies 

Scrivener’s Errors 

 None Identified 

Substantive Changes 

 Strategy 7 on (page 8) – Add the language “consistent with community values in” so that the 

strategy reads, “Adopt performance measures that are consistent with regional modal targets 

for non-single occupancy vehicles and track the City’s progress with meeting adopted goals and 

policies that are consistent with community values in each  successive TSP update.” 

 Strategy 12 on (page 14) – Add language within the proposed Strategy 12 to include the Six 

Corners area so that the strategy reads, “Support public or private development of bicycle and 

pedestrian improvements shown on Map 2 of the Town Center Plan and on both sides of 

Highway 99W in the Six Corners area.” 

 Strategy 19 on (page 15) – Remove this strategy 

 Strategy 6 on (Page 23) – Remove this strategy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance 2014-012, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1 
June 17, 2014, Page 6 of 6 782



ÍÎW99

ÍÎW99

PA
CI

FI
C

EDY

SUNSET

EL
W

ER
T

BA
KE

R

BROOKMAN

TUALATIN SHERWOOD

KRUGER

OREGON

M
AI

N

ROY ROGERS

LANGER

MEINECKE

1ST

MCCONNELL

CHAPMAN

BO
RC

H
ER

S

O
LD

 H
IG

HW
AY

 9
9W

LA
DD

 H
ILL

W
ASHINGTON

TIMBREL

BA
LE

R

SHERW
OOD

ASH

Figure 16
Street Functional Classification

City of Sherwood
Transportation System Plan

Legend
Principal Arterial
Arterial
Collector
Neighborhood
Local8

0 0.25 0.5
Miles

LA
N

G
ER

 FA
RM

S

M
U

RD
O

CK

PINE

GALB
REATH

HANDLEY

CENTURY

CIPO
LE

Parcel
Park

Railroad

Old Town Sherwood 
Overlay

City Limit
Urban Growth Boundary

Proposed Arterial
Proposed Collector

Note: alignments shown are approximate and may vary

*

* A potential OR 99W access point connecting to the Cedarbrook Way extension
as a collector is located within this area. The location must be at least 990 feet 
away from both Sunset Boulevard and Meinecke Road, and will be based on
transportation design standards.

Proposed Neighborhood
Proposed Local

Ordinance 2014-012, Exhibit 2,June 17, 2014, Page 1 of 1

783



May-14 May-14 YTD May-13
Est.

Usage People People People 
Count Served* Count Served* Served*

Leagues 4 350 27 6000 312
Rentals 94 1504 770 12779 1580
Other (Classes)
[1]  Day Use 3 21 70 542 53
Total Usage 1875 19321 1945

Income May-14 YTD
Rentals $5,770 $45,591
League fees (indoor) $3,725 $78,206
Card fees (indoor) $30 $3,559
Day Use $33 $1,659
Advertising $1,500
Snacks $256 $4,747
Classes
Total $9,814 $135,262

FY 12 13
Income May-13 YTD
Rentals $4,970 $50,582
League fees (indoor) $2,085 $61,328
Card fees (indoor) $40 $3,470
Day Use $129 $1,710
Advertising
Snacks $286 $5,107
Classes
Total $7,510 $122,197

*Estimated number of people served
based on all rentals have a different # of

people. Along with each team will carry

a different # of people on their roster.

Sherwood Field House Monthly Report May  2014  

784



 

Sports Fields and Gyms 

Spring Basketball has finished up in the Gyms. 

The Youth Track Club continues to practice at SMS but will be moving to the high school after graduation 

is over. 

Youth soccer held tryouts for their competitive teams in May and is already vying for any field space 

they can get. 

Youth softball held 35 recreational games at the high school complex in May. They held their U14 

tournament on May 3rd and 4th. They were rained out on Sunday but Saturday had teams from Eugene, 

Pendleton and Lebanon here as well as teams from the greater Portland Metro area. 

Youth Lacrosse held The Sherwood Shoot Out on May 3rd and 4th that consisted of 22 games and had a 

team from as far away as Bend. The rest of the teams 16 in all were from all around the Portland Metro 

area. In addition to the tournament they played approximately 32 league games at Snyder Park and the 

High School. 

Youth Baseball held approximately 112 league games all over town during the month of May. They also 

held two tournaments during May one on the 3rd and 4th and one on the 30th and the 1st. They were 

rained out on the 4th but played 36 pool play games on the 3rd. They had great weather at the end of the 

month and 57 total games during their Federal Tournament. In addition they played approximately 112 

league games during the month. 

Greater Portland Soccer District only held 3 games at Snyder on Sundays but that will ramp up in June. 

Field House 

As the weather continues to improve we are slowing down some, Dennis will start working 6 days a 

week and we start to change our hours around. 

We are still running four adult leagues at night with about 22 teams. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Lance Gilgan 

June 3, 2014 

 

785



Sherwood Public Library – May 2014 
Monthly Management Report 

 
 
 

 
Current Year       Past Year     % Change 

 
 
Check out                              29,096           31,936                -8.89% (23% Self-check) 
 
 
Check in                                21,524            22,951               -6.21%   
 

New Library cards 91  
Volunteer hours  160.25 hours; equivalent to .95 FTE (24 volunteers) 
 
 New Library2Go users 23 
 Library2Go check outs 1035   
 

 Monthly Activities 
 

 Thirty Baby, Preschool and Toddler Storytimes (738 attendees)  
 

 Two Read-to-the-Dogs programs 
 

 Magazine Monday (free magazine giveaway) 
 

 05/01 Friends of the Library Meeting 
 

 05/03 Family Game Day (7 attendees) 
 

 05/04 & 05/18 Marie Buckley’s Writing Workshops for Adults (11 & 13 attendees) 
 

 05/07 Envisionware upgrade 
 

 05/12 Robin Hood Festival’s Maid Marian Coronation 
 

 05/14 & 05/17 City of Sherwood Budget Meetings 
 

 05/18 WCCLS Publicity Photo Shoot  
 

 05/21 April/May/June Birthday Potluck 
 

786



 
 05/21 Wednesday Crafternoon - Birdfeeders (32 attendees) 

 
 05/22 Library Manager Interviews (First Round) 

 
 05/22 “We Are What We Eat: Connecting Food and Citizenship” Oregon 

Humanities Conversation Program (7 attendees) 
 

 05/24 Saturday Family Storytime “Farm Animals” (18 attendees) 
 

 05/26 Library closed for Memorial Day Holiday 
 

 05/28 DIY Craftshop – Bottle Cap Necklaces (13 attendees) 
 

 05/31 Tracy Malek represents Library at Annual Community Services Fair  
 

 Children’s Book Week Raffle (106 entries) 
 

 Volunteer recruitment & training continues / New volunteers started shifts 
 

 Library staff attended various regional, City and WCCLS meetings: OLA/PLD 
Executive Board, Circulation, WUG, Adult Summer Reading Program, Publicity, 
Youth Services, YALL, Cataloging, Executive Board, Policy Group and “See to 
Read”  

 

 

787


	01 City Council Packet Cover
	02 City Council Agenda 06.17.14
	03  06.03.14 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  Resolution 2014-037 Certification of Provisions of Services-STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2014-037 Certification of Provision of Services-DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2014-038 Authorize IGA with Metro & WACO, CPDG funds-STAFF REPORT
	07  Resolution 2014-038 Authorize IGA with Metro & WACO,CPDG funds-DRAFT
	08  Resolution 2014-038 Authorize IGA with Metro & WACO, CPDG Funds-EXH 1
	09 Resolution 2014-039 Adopt FY2014-15 CIP-STAFF REPORT
	10 Resolution 2014-039 Adopt FY2014-15 CIP-DRAFT
	11 Resolution 2014-039 Adopt FY2014-15 CIP-EXH A
	12 Resolution 2014-040 Budget Appropriation Transfer 2013-14-STAFF REPORT
	13 Resolution 2014-040 Budget Appropriation Transfer 2013-14-DRAFT
	14 Resolution 2014-041 Contract with Blackline Inc, 2014 Slurry Seal Prog-STAFF REPORT
	15  Resolution 2014-041 Contract with Blackline Inc, 2014 Slurry Seal Exh to Staff Report
	15 Resolution 2014-041 Slurry Seal 2014-Staff Report Attachment
	17 Resolution 2014-041 Contract with Blackline Inc, 2014 Slurry Seal Prog-EXH A

	16  Resolution 2014-041 Contract with Blackline Inc, 2014 Slurry Seal Prog-DRAFT
	17 Resolution 2014-042 Authorize contract, Musco Sports Lighting for Field Lights-STAFF REPORT
	18 Resolution 2014-042 Authorize contract, Musco Sports Lighting for Field Lights-DRAFT
	19 Resolution 2014-043 Approving J. Gall Emplyment Agreement-STAFF REPORT
	20 Resolution 2014-043 Approving J. Gall Employment Agreement-DRAFT
	21 Resolution 2014-043 Approving J. Gall  Employment Agreement
	22 Resolution 2014-044 Adopt FY2014-15 Fee Schedule-STAFF REPORT
	23  Resolution 2014-044 Adopt FY2014-15 Fee Schedule Marked up version
	24 Resolution 2014-044 Adopt FY2014-15 Fee Schedule-DRAFT
	25 Resolution 2014-044 Adopt FY2014-15 Fee Schedule Clean version-EXH A
	26 Resolution 2014-045 Election to receive State Shared Revenue-STAFF REPORT
	27 Resolution 2014-045 Election to receive State Shared Revenues-DRAFT
	28 Resolution 2014-046 Adopt FY2014-15 COS Budget-STAFF REPORT
	29 Resolution 2014-046 Adopt FY2014-15 COS Budget-DRAFT
	29.0 Resolution 2014-046 FY2014-15 Approved City Budget-EXH A
	30 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update-STAFF REPORT
	31 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update-DRAFT
	32 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update Exhibit 1, PC Recommendation
	33 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update, Attachments A-D to Exhibit 1
	33.1 Ord. 2014-012 Sherwood TSP (Draft TSP Volume 1) Attach E
	33.2 Ord. 2014-012 Sherwood TSP (Draft TSP Volume 2) Attach F
	34 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update, Attachment G to Exhibit 1
	35 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update, Attachment I-J to Exhibit 1
	36 Ordinance 2014-012 Adopt TSP Update Exhibit 2, Street Function Class Map
	37 Field house Report May 2014
	38 Recreation Report May 2014
	39 Library Report May 2014



